
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
MARCH 19, 2012
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

Mission Statement

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community.

Vision Statement 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity.

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

IV. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

Consider a motion approving a proclamation declaring March 26-31, 2012, as Carnegie Library 
Week.  (Pgs. 3-4)

V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed)

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2993 approving City Attorney Terrence 
Mahr’s annual evaluation.  (Pgs. 5-7)

2. Consider a motion approving the February 21, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  (Pgs. 9-14)

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 

City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 19, 2012) Page 1 of 2 
Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 

City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 19, 2012) Page 2 of 2 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2750 deferring the collection of System 
Development Charges for affordable housing projects. (Additional material enclosed - Please bring
material from the 3/5/2012 meeting)  (Pgs. 15-19)
(Legislative Hearing – Second Reading) 

2. Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2751 adopting revised findings for the South 
Industrial UGB amendment and revisions to the Economic Opportunities Analysis.  (Pgs. 21-364)
(Quasi-Judicial Hearing – First Reading) 

3. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2994 adopting new monthly water rates 
effective January 1, 2013.  (Pgs. 365-451)

  (Administrative Hearing) 

4. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2995 adopting new monthly wastewater rates 
effective January 1, 2013.  (RCA - Pgs. 365-449/Resolution - Pgs. 453-454)

  (Administrative Hearing)

5. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2996 adopting new monthly stormwater rates 
effective January 1, 2013.  (RCA - Pgs. 365-449/Resolution - Pgs. 455-457)

  (Administrative Hearing)

IX. NEW BUSINESS

Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2988 establishing policies and procedures for 
administration of the Affordable Housing Trust Fund Bylaws.  (Pgs. 457-469)

X. COUNCIL BUSINESS

XI. ADJOURNMENT 

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711.

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 5:00 p.m. on the preceding 
Thursday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record.

Page 2



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance Resolution   Motion XX  Information ___ 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT: Approve a proclamation declaring March 
26-31, 2012, Carnegie Library Week 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Leah Griffith, Library Director 
Dept.:  Library
File No.: 

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve a proclamation declaring March 26-31, 2012, as Carnegie Library Week in Newberg.   

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:      

March 29, 2012, marks the 100th anniversary of the opening of the Carnegie Library in Newberg.   A 
number of activities are being planned for the week to honor the efforts of citizens in 1910-1912 that 
resulted in a grant from Andrew Carnegie of $10,000.00 for a library.   Carnegie gave funds to build 1,689 
libraries in the United States from 1883 to 1929.   Today, Newberg’s Carnegie is one of about 400 that still 
serve their communities as libraries.    

Andrew Carnegie, a believer in the simplified spelling movement of the time, would give a library bilding
[sic] to a community only after the city council had pledged to support it.  In his early library giving he had 
not added that stipulation and some communities built a library and then had no funds to support it and it 
never served as a library.  He did not want his future contributions to be wasted.  Newberg’s City Council 
approved a resolution of support on April 13, 1911, securing funding for the building. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

No city funds will be expensed, because the Newberg Library Friends have graciously provided the funds 
for the celebrations.

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:

The Newberg Public Library is a major part of the community and the Newberg Cultural District.  The 
Carnegie Library is one of our community’s most loved historic buildings.    

Page 3



PROCLAMATION 

A PROCLAMATION DECLARING MARCH 26-31, 2012, AS CARNEGIE LIBRARY WEEK 

WHEREAS, in 1910 a group of Newberg citizens petitioned library philanthropist, Andrew Carnegie for 
funds to build a library for Newberg; and  

WHEREAS, Andrew Carnegie funded the construction of 2,509 libraries throughout the world from 1883 to 
1929 with 1,689 of them in the United States; and  

WHEREAS, on February 11, 1911, the Newberg Library Committee received word that if “the city agree by 
Resolution of Council to maintain a Free Public Library, Mr. Carnegie will be glad to giv Ten Thousand 
Dollars to erect a Free Public Library Bilding for Newberg” [sic]; and

WHEREAS, on April 13, 1911, the Newberg City Council approved a resolution agreeing to the 
maintenance of a public library and construction began on the library on October 17, 1911; and

WHEREAS, on March 29, 1912, a gala dedication of the Newberg Carnegie Library was held with many 
distinguished guests in attendance; and

WHEREAS, in 2012, the City of Newberg Public Library continues to serve the people of the community 
and the community responds by using the library and its services extensively. 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Newberg, 
Oregon that March 26-31, 2012 is Carnegie Library Week in Newberg and calls upon our citizens to 
celebrate the centennial of Newberg’s Carnegie Library by attending an activity in celebration of the 
centennial and visiting the library to discover what was set in motion 100 years ago by Andrew Carnegie and 
how it continues to serve the residents of Newberg today.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and cause the Seal of the City of Newberg to be 
affixed on this 19th day of March, 2012.

       ________________________________ 
       Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 4



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2993 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance Resolution  XX   Motion   Information ___ 
No. No. No. 2012-2993 

SUBJECT: Resolution approving the annual 
evaluation of the city attorney.

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Bob Andrews, Mayor 
Dept.: Administration

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2993 approving the annual evaluation of the city attorney.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The city council performed an annual evaluation of the city attorney.  That evaluation was held during 
executive session on March 5, 2012, in which no decisions were made.  This resolution is to solidify that 
evaluation and to provide a formal guidance of his performance. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:

The evaluation of the city attorney is necessary in order to increase communication between the city council 
and the city attorney concerning the performance of the city attorney in accomplishing his assigned duties 
and responsibilities. 

Page 5



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2993

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2011 ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE 
CITY ATTORNEY 

RECITALS:

1. In accordance with the Newberg City Charter, the city attorney is the chief legal officer of the city of 
Newberg, which reports directly to the mayor and city council and is supervised by the governing 
body.

2. The city has a contract with the city attorney and pursuant to that contract; the city council will 
evaluate the city attorney in executive session. 

3. The Open Meetings Law of the State of Oregon allows the evaluation of the job performance of the 
chief legal officer to be conducted in executive session by the city council and pursuant to such 
Standards, Criteria, and Policy Directives adopted by Resolution No. 1999-2192 on July 19, 1999. 

4. The mayor, city councilors, and the city attorney met in executive session on March 5, 2012, to 
discuss the city attorney’s annual evaluation. 

5. The mayor has submitted the written evaluation which will be placed in the city attorney’s personnel 
file after being adopted by the city council. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. The written evaluation of the city attorney is attached as Exhibit “A”, which by this reference is 
hereby adopted. 

2. The city attorney shall be given a copy of the evaluation to sign and may make any written 
comments after which the written evaluation shall be placed in the city attorney’s personnel file. 

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 20, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this  day of , 2012. 

__________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this                day of , 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2993 PAGE 1

Page 6



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2993 PAGE 2

EXHIBIT “A”

City Attorney (Terrence Mahr) 
Annual Written Evaluation – 2011 

By Newberg City Council 

The City Council has received a written report from the city attorney concerning his performance during his 
evaluation period.  The respective mayor and councilors have met with the city attorney in executive session 
on March 5, 2012, to discuss their evaluation of his performance from September, 2010, to August, 2011.  

The City Council has evaluated the performance of Terrence Mahr as the city attorney of the city of 
Newberg.  As part of the evaluation council reviewed the report given them by the city attorney indicating 
his self-evaluation during the evaluation period. The City Council assessed the attorney’s performance in 
eight major categories: 

1. Management 
2. Planning Goals 
3. Communications 
4. Fiscal Agent 
5. Community Relations 
6. Intergovernmental/Interagency Relations 
7. Consultative Legal Services 
8. Legal Preparation 

Overall the City Council found the city attorney’s performance fell between excellent and exceeds 
expectations.  The City Council felt the working relationship with the city attorney was excellent and that 
city government could rely on the city attorney’s high level of expertise.  The council expressed satisfaction 
with the initial goal setting for the near future and looks forward to long-range strategic planning for the 
City Attorney’s Office. 

DATED this ____ day of _______, 2012. 

____________________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

______________________ ______________________ 
Denise Bacon, Councilor Ryan Howard, Councilor 

_________________________ ______________________ 
Stephen McKinney, Councilor Bart Rierson, Councilor 

______________________ _________________________ 
Marc Shelton, Councilor Wade Witherspoon, Councilor 

Page 7



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 8



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance Resolution         Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the February 21, 2012, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration

RECOMMENDATION:

Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:

None.

Page 9



City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 21, 2012) Page 1 of 5 

CITY OF NEWBERG COUNCIL MINUTES 
FEBRUARY 21, 2012

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A briefing was given from the City Manager on Bypass funding 
and a discussion lead by the Legal department on a possible levy for the Newberg-Dundee Dispatch Center.  All 
Councilors and the Mayor were present; no action was taken and no decisions were made. 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM.

II. ROLL CALL

Members 
Present: Mayor Bob Andrews  Denise Bacon   Stephen McKinney  Bart Rierson  

Marc Shelton    Wade Witherspoon Ryan Howard (arrived at 6:13 PM) 
Staff 
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Dawn Wilson, Senior Paralegal 

Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 
David Beam, Economic Development Coordinator Jennifer Nelson, Deputy City Recorder 

Others
Present: Robert Soppe, Ralph E. Johnson, Doug Bartlett, Charlie Harris, Rick Rogers, and Hank Grum 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 

IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Daniel Danicic, City Manager, offered any Council member wishing to ride-a-long with a police officer to 
contact himself or the chief of police to make arrangements.  He spoke of the installation of radio read water 
meters allowing reads to be conducted from a single truck rather than having someone physically go to every 
meter and said the public works department will be coming to present the new technology to the Council in 
April.  He gave a reminder Representative Suzanne Bonamici’s Town Hall will be held in the Public Safety 
Building (PSB) tomorrow night.  The Budget Committee will meet next Tuesday, February 28, 2012, at 7:00 
PM with a brief overview of the role of the committee, how things look now, and future concerns; the hard 
work on the budget begins in April. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr. Robert Soppe thanked the chief of police for having a conversation with George Fox University regarding 
his previous concerns with parking citations.  He provided commentary on discussions from the previous 
Council meeting regarding the McClure property saying although he was involved in the original agreement and 
he agreed there were many details of their plans he liked, he was concerned with some of the remarks made by 
the Council.  He disagreed with Councilor Stephen McKinney’s comments that this was in the best interest of 
everyone.  He felt the original agreement was for the best because it supported development taking place 
without wells and septic and allowed for city services.  He spoke of other comments by Councilor McKinney 
about people no longer able to develop a piece of property the way they want and expressed concern about the 
term “highest and best”.  He also warned Councilor McKinney to be careful of comments about the governor 

Page 10



City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 21, 2012) Page 2 of 5 

and the rights the people of Oregon gave to him to make these decisions.  He noted Councilor Marc Shelton’s 
quotes about the 14th amendment being violated left off the part about “due process” and stated just because the 
outcome is not as they hoped, it does not mean there was not due process; he cautioned him about referencing 
The Declaration of Independence as well.  He also spoke about Mayor Andrews saying this is a government of 
the people and the Council is the closest they are going to get to the people because he argued getting a legal 
vote of the electorate would be closer.

Councilor Bart Rierson said he agreed with some of what Mr. Soppe said this evening about due process but 
also expressed there is frustration because there seems to be some abuse of this process by special interest 
groups constantly appealing the decisions to just make it difficult.  He said there are groups with funding and a 
full understanding of the LUBA process who know how to draw it out and circumvent decisions.  He said he 
appreciates Mr. Soppe’s summary although it may not have been accurate.  Mr. Soppe agreed he does not like 
legislation by endurance either, but he did not think that was the case here, although he admits he is no legal 
expert.

Mr. Ralph Johnson discussed some of the issues he is having with his property on Chehalem Drive and his 
Measure 37 claim.  He is one of three other people, along with the McClures, who have been going to the circuit 
court; one member of this group has been lucky and is now building homes while the rest of them are still 
waiting on the remand to the appellate court.  He said he understands the McClure’s hesitance to go on because 
they did not have much work onsite, but he has all but ten septic tanks on forty-one lots and are vested by about 
$1,200,000.00 for lots they cannot sell or build on or do anything with.  He just wished to share with the 
Council the kind of predicament people are in with this vested situation (see official meeting packet for written 
testimony).  

Councilor McKinney asked how long this has been going on for him.  Mr. Johnson said he applied right after 
the government validated Measure 37 in February of 2005 and he has at least two to three more years to go. 

Councilor Shelton asked approximately how much the litigation has cost him.  Mr. Johnson replied over 
$100,000.00 and the improvements for vesting about $1.2 million since the time this was activated.  Councilor 
Shelton added it was good to have him give an example of his situation after discussions tonight; he said it is 
one thing for the City to fight using tax payer dollars, but it is another thing for an individual.  Mr. Johnson 
added that his neighbor is using the 1,000 Friends of Oregon attorneys and he wondered about the process due 
to them; he said he has no choice other than to fight but it is very discouraging and he is not sure how much 
longer he can last. 

Councilor McKinney spoke about a letter form Mr. Chuck McClure that will be in the newspaper tomorrow 
addressing some misperceptions with vesting.  He spoke about the strategy of special interest groups to out-live 
or out-spend people in litigation without thinking about the public’s interest.  He said he is most distressed 
about the land use laws and their endorsement by everyone because Oregon is the only state that tried to do this 
and others were smart enough to recognize a bad idea.  He told Mr. Johnson he was sorry for his troubles and 
grief and he did not see how putting citizens through this was in the public’s best interest; he wished him 
heartfelt hope for a better future. 

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2987 approving the annual evaluation of 
Municipal Judge Larry Blake, Jr. 

2. Consider a motion approving Resolution No. 2012-2989 reappointing Municipal Judge Larry 
Blake, Jr., and approving a contract for an indefinite period. 

3. Consider a motion approving the January 17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. 

Page 11



City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 21, 2012) Page 3 of 5 

MOTION: Shelton/Bacon approving the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. 2012-2987,
Resolution No. 2012-2989, and the City Council minutes from January 17, 2012, as presented.  Motion carried 
(7 Yes/0 No). 

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS

Consider a motion approving Ordinance No. 2012-2749 establishing a Newberg Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund. 

TIME – 7:25 PM 

Mayor Andrews called for any conflicts of interest or abstentions; none appeared.  Staff spoke about this being 
a first reading and deliberations would be held until the next meeting unless Council moved to accept it this 
evening.

Mr. David Beam, Economic Development Coordinator, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet 
for full report). 

Councilor Ryan Howard asked about the funding mechanisms in the affordable housing action plan and wished 
to clarify they were not enacting any of those funding methods with this, but leaving that to the future; he 
wanted to make sure they were not bound by any of the funding sources in this plan.  Staff replied this was 
correct.

Councilor Wade Witherspoon asked for an explanation of the voluntary in lieu of funding source. Staff spoke of 
previous proposed code changes brought to Council with the flexible development track which would provide 
flexibility in building standards if a developer provided affordable housing assistance; one of those options is to 
provide funding towards another affordable housing project in the future. 

Mayor Andrews discussed references in the proposed recitals to very low, low and moderate incomes as well as 
working people. He asked staff to explain how this fits in with funding assistance vs. subsidy.  Mr. Beam 
replied he was unsure if there was a distinction between subsidy and assistance.  He continued by saying the 
vision of funding is as a leverage piece and there would be a leveraging of other resources the person requesting 
the funding has to make a feasible project.  Mayor Andrews asked what is the median income.  Staff replied that 
although Newberg is considered part of the Portland Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which has defined 
the median at $67,000.00, the proposal in the bylaws has the planning director defining what is the most 
appropriate number.  The median for Newberg may or may not be what the MSA numbers are since is it a rural 
area and the metro numbers may be high. 

Councilor Shelton asked why we would not use the Yamhill County numbers given by the Housing Authority.  
Staff said they are not saying we would not use those numbers, just that it would be the decision of the planning 
director to look at the different sources and determine which is most appropriate for our community. 

Mayor Andrews opened the public testimony and called for proponents of the ordinance first.  

Mr. Doug Bartlett said he is not a resident of Newberg but has been a part the Newberg Affordable Housing 
Ad-hoc Committee and followed this group with interest.  He said affordable housing would not fall under the 
highest and best use of land use and felt this was an interesting juxtaposition to the earlier discussions tonight.  
He said nobody, if they only sought the highest and best, would ever build housing that would be affordable for 
the low income people of the community so there is always a need to find ways to assist in providing that.  
Those experimenting with an Affordable Housing Trust Fund and have developed a resource and a way to use it 
in the best way are way down the road in taking community action to support those not able to have housing by 

Page 12



City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 21, 2012) Page 4 of 5 

commercial standards.  He said that number is growing and he is a fan of this action tonight even if it is just an 
establishment, not all the funding policies and regulations.  He encouraged the Council to pass this as a step 
towards fulfilling the part of the Mission Statement for a healthy community and thanked them for their service 
and commitment. 

Mr. Charlie Harris said he is fully in support of the ordinance after serving on the Affordable Housing Ad-hoc 
Committee.  He spoke of working for nonprofit for twenty years and the competition for scarce dollars to build 
and develop affordable housing; those cities contributing something to the cause do much better than those that 
do not.  He discussed leverage and the local ability to match monies to build a fund and that no matter what 
number is used for the median income they are talking about the bank tellers, school teachers, and almost 
anyone working in Newberg and at least half of the people who fall below the median would be beneficiaries of 
this possibility.  He said whether it is for better or worse, the land use policies of the State focus on urban city 
limits and this will help us put more affordable housing here. 

Mr. Rick Rogers testified as another member of the Affordable Housing Ad-hoc Committee and stressed this is 
a great step for the city to attract additional money and address needs not being met currently.  He said this is 
not just for Habitat for Humanity or home ownership, but also for the rental and renovation needs for 
manufactured homes or smaller based projects that cannot get assistance from rehabilitation programs right now 
for health, safety, and access issues.  He discussed a veteran they are currently working with to rehabilitate for 
wheelchair access to his bathroom; it took six months to come up with the $5,000.00 for the project.  He 
strongly encouraged Council to support the trust fund and said it would be a great thing in the future for 
citizens.

Mr. Hank Grum was determined to be undecided because of concerns the ordinance establishes a vessel and 
nothing else or a blank check for policies for an unknown future with funding through resolutions where 
taxpayers have no say.  Some of the funding sources could come from donations or private grants which are 
good, but others are from federal grants which are not good because it comes out of the taxpayers, consumers, 
and savers pocketbooks and takes away from investments into more productive activities for machinery and 
land development.  Money from Federal loans also takes from the private market or other savers or causes the 
Federal Reserve to just put more ones and zeros in the bank account, contributing to inflation.  He felt when 
they are discussing looking for money to fund the dispatch call center how can they be looking at something 
that is not a core function of government, especially when they already recognize this will be a tough sell to the 
voters.  He wondered how much the citizens can give and if it was the responsible to use someone else’s money 
from the top half of the median to the benefit of only half the people in the lower portion’s basic necessities.  He 
said they cannot take care of every problem faced and that he works hard for his basic necessities; the private 
sector cannot meet the need for low cost housing because things like waiving System Development Charges 
(SDCs) done in the past contributes to the reasons why it is so expensive to build suitable housing properly. 

Mayor Andrews closed the verbal public testimony, but the record would remain open for written testimony 
only for seven days. No deliberations were held as this was only the first reading. Staff recommended passing 
the ordinance. The public hearing was closed until March 5, 2012. 

VIII. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

TIME – 7:57 PM 

Mr. Danicic gave updates on the Fire Station project and additional grant funds received from Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  He said staff would be returning for Council authorization to use 
the funds for other items included on the list of improvements provided previously during the change order 
discussions.

Page 13



City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 21, 2012) Page 5 of 5 

Councilor Denise Bacon discussed progress with the emergency preparedness program focusing on Spanish-
speaking community members and cultural differences in reactions to emergency situations as presented 
through the League of Oregon Cities (LOC). 

Councilor Rierson spoke about the Willamette River Keepers sponsored event in August with a week long 
paddling camp starting in Harrisburg, OR and ending up in Roger’s Landing in Newberg.  He mentioned it 
would be a great opportunity to coordinate with downtown businesses and the Chamber of Commerce and “roll 
out the red carpet” for the 180 some participants coming town. 

Mayor Andrews gave updates from the Steering Committee about Federal funding towards efforts and 
publications being produced by the West Coast Electric Highway group focusing on clean cities, electric 
vehicles, and charging stations throughout Oregon.  He also mentioned a new Level 1 charging station recently 
installed at Walgreens and a Level 3 station anticipated to be coming at the Chevron gas station in town.  He 
also discussed continuing the “Roving Gavel” at the March 5, 2012, meeting; Councilor Howard volunteered to 
participate. 

Councilor McKinney discussed the letter drafted to be signed by the Council and given to the McClure family.  
He felt because many items would be addressed in the Mr. McClure’s letter to be printed in The Newberg 
Graphic and because Mr. McClure appears to have a clear understanding of where the Council stands, the letter 
may be unnecessary now.  Since the motion on February 3, 2012, was only to draft the letter, that direction was 
completed.   

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:17 PM. 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 19th day of March, 2012. 

    ____________________________ 
     Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012.

__________________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 14



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance  XX Resolution   Motion   Information ___ 
No. No. 2012-2750 No. 

SUBJECT:  System development charge deferral for 
affordable housing projects (Second Reading) 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Barton Brierley, AICP 
Dept.:  Planning and Building Director
File No.: G-12-002

HEARING TYPE: ��LEGISLATIVE �QUASI-JUDICIAL �NOT APPLICABLE 

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Ordinance No. 2012-2750 allowing deferral of collection of system development charges for 
affordable housing projects until time of occupancy.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:     The City Council heard this item on March 5, 2012.  At that meeting, the 
Council had a number of questions.  Below are answers to those questions. 

What were the results of the 2011 fee deferral program? 
During 2011, the city offered a deferral of SDCs for 90 days after issuance of a building permit for any 
project.  This program was used for construction of 14 single family homes, and one 18-unit apartment 
complex.  All deferred SDCs have been paid except for two projects, which are still under the 90-day 
deferral.  In two cases, the deferred SDCs were paid after but within two weeks of the 90-day deadline.  

Are there any projects waiting to use this deferral?   
There is one project that is currently under the 90-day deferral under the 2011 program that would like to be 
able to extend that deferral using this new program.  We anticipate there will be other projects that would be 
eligible within the next year, but there are no definite plans. 

How are low income households defined?   
The draft ordinance referred to standards within the Newberg Affordable Housing Action Plan.  This was 
not clear for the Council.  Staff suggests simply bringing the standards from the plan into the ordinance 
itself. 
The applicant shall demonstrate that the dwelling will be occupied by a household with an income of less 
than 80 percent of the area median income.  The city manager, or designee, shall determine whether the 
project qualifies, and may establish conditions to insure compliance.  The applicant may appeal the decision 
to the city council.

This allows the city manager to determine which source of data to use for median income. 

What protections does the city have if the deferred SDCs are not paid? 
The city does have several layers of protection in case deferred SDCs are not paid prior to occupancy. 

First, the city will not issue a certificate of occupancy unless the SDCs are paid.   

Second, if the dwelling is not occupied, there is not an impact to the system. 

Page 15



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 2

Third, if the dwelling is occupied despite not having a certificate of occupancy, the city can issue a citation 
to municipal court, and enforce the agreement and lien on the property. 

Fourth, if the city issues a certificate of occupancy in error, it still can collect per the recorded agreement 
and lien on property. 

What are the administrative costs for the deferral?
As long as the deferred SDCs are paid per the agreement, the administrative costs are relatively minor.  Staff 
estimates that each deferral under the 2011 program took one hour of time each for a building permit 
technician and a finance staff person, plus about one-half hour of supervisor time to track and process.  Cost 
plus overhead for this time is around $150.  

If the city needs to resort to any of the enforcement mechanisms, then the administrative costs increase to 
several times that expense. 

Should the SDC deferral be allowed for every project, not just affordable housing projects? 
Of all permits issued where SDCs are charged, less than five percent are for affordable housing projects.  
Some of these may not be built if the city does not provide some sort of incentive, such as an SDC deferral.  
Thus, while, the SDC deferral program is a cost and administrative burden to the city, it is an incentive that 
can benefit the city by furthering its affordable housing goals and by achieving some revenue where projects 
otherwise would not be built. 

If the program were to include other projects, it would increase the costs and administrative burden of the 
deferral program substantially.   As noted, deferring collection of SDCs during 2011 was not a significant 
issue because the city did not have capital projects scheduled that would use those funds, and because 
development was light.  This will not always be the case.  In future years, deferring collection of what could 
be 20 times more projects could place a strain on the system development charge funds.  Also, the 
administrative burden during 2011 was manageable given a relatively low number of projects being 
deferred.  Multiplying this amount substantially will have a real impact on staff resources. 

Staff does not recommend the SDC deferral be allowed for projects other than affordable housing projects.  
Instead, staff recommends the Council have the ability to make exceptions for certain projects it wants to 
facilitate or provide incentives for on a case by case basis.  This concept is included in the attached revised 
ordinance.

Should a fee be charged to allow the deferral? 
If the Council chooses to charge a fee, staff suggests the charge be $150, plus a $500 deposit that is 
refundable if the fees are paid on time per the agreement.  The Council could charge that fee for affordable 
housing projects, but it makes the program less of an incentive.   Staff does recommend that the fee be 
charged if the program is extended beyond affordable housing projects. 

What is the standard for what interest rate would be charged if the SDC is not paid upon occupancy?  
The March 5 draft ordinance stated that the “interest rate shall be specified in the agreement.”  The Council 
asked if there should be some guidelines for what the rate should be.  Newberg Municipal Code 13.05.100 
(C) states that delinquent SDCs are charged interest at a rate of 10 percent.  Staff suggests that the deferral 
ordinance simply use this rate.  

If payment is allowed to be “immediately after issuance of the certificate of occupancy,” should the 
“in no case less than six months” be a shorter time frame? 

Page 16



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 3

In some cases, housing projects funded by grants or federal funding may require the applicant to show a 
certificate of occupancy in order to release the final funds.  This may put some applicants in a catch-22 
situation if they need those final funds in order to get the certificate of occupancy.  That is why the 
affordable housing committee recommended allowing payment immediately after occupancy.  With federal 
paperwork, there could be processing time after occupancy to actually issue funds.  Six months was thought 
to be a comfortable time frame to allow such processing to occur.  This could be shortened.  In the March 19 
draft ordinance staff has included shortening this to three months. 

Are there other options available to developers? 
Yes.  Per state law, the city must allow the developer to make installment payments for the system 
development charges.  Developers are charged interest on the unpaid balance at the Bancroft financing rate.  
Developers usually don’t take advantage of this because they intend to transfer title at the time of 
occupancy, thus the lien must be cleared at that time.  However, this option is available, and can be 
attractive if the developer intends to retain ownership. 

Page 17



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750

AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING DEFERRAL OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT
CHARGES FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS

RECITALS:

1. In May, 2009, the City adopted an affordable housing plan.  One strategy in the plan is to consider 
reducing fees for affordable housing projects. 

2. Newberg currently assesses all system development charges at the time of building permit issuance.  
Deferring payment of these fees until time of occupancy can reduce the upfront costs needed to 
construct the project, and may help a project to secure financing.  This can be done while still 
securing the same amount necessary for the public improvements funded with the SDCs.  Deferring 
payment does not reduce the total amount of system development charges collected.

3. Thus, the purpose of this policy is to encourage the development of housing for low and very low 
income households by deferring payment of certain fees until time of occupancy.   

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

The following shall be added as Newberg Municipal Code §13.05.095 and §13.05.096:

13.05.095  Collection of Charge for Affordable Housing Projects 

The city manager, or designee, may defer payment of system development charges until occupancy in 
accordance with the following provisions. 

A.  Payment of the following fees may be deferred: 

 1. Wastewater development charges. 
 2. Water development charges. 
 3. Storm drainage development charges.
 4.  Transportation development charges. 

B. The deferral is for construction of a new dwelling, including additions or remodels that create new 
dwelling units. 

C. The applicant shall demonstrate the dwelling will be for a low income or very low income 
household, as defined in the Newberg Affordable Housing Action Plan, which uses guidelines from 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  The applicant shall demonstrate 
that the dwelling will be occupied by a household with an income of 80 percent or less of the area 
median income.  The city manager, or designee, shall determine whether the project qualifies, and 
may establish conditions to insure compliance.  The applicant may appeal the decision to the city 
council.

City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 4

Page 18



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2750 PAGE 5

D. The applicant shall enter into a development agreement with the city that guarantees payment of the 
deferred fees prior to occupancy.  The city shall place a lien on the property to guarantee payment of 
the fees. 

E. The applicant shall pay all deferred fees prior to the city issuing a certificate of occupancy for the 
dwelling.  As an exception, the city manager, or designee, may allow payment upon closing of 
escrow for sale of a property if that is anticipated immediately after issuance of the certificate.  In no 
case shall the fee be deferred more than six three months after issuance of the certificate of 
occupancy.

F. If the applicant does not pay the deferred development charges when due, the city shall assess 
interest at an annual rate of 10 percent on the balance starting from the date of issuance of building 
permit.  The interest rate shall be specified in the agreement.

13.05.096  Collection of Charge for Other Community Development Projects

 The City Council, upon application, may allow deferral of payment of system development charges 
in the same manner as for Affordable Housing projects under 13.05.095 above where the council 
determines the deferral is needed for the project to proceed, and the project promotes important city 
community development goals.

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is 30 days after the adoption date, which is: April 18, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of March, 2012, by the 
following votes: AYE:  NAY:  ABSENT:  ABSTAIN:

_________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Affordable Housing Action Committee at the 7/14/2010 meeting.

Page 19



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 20



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance  XX Resolution   Motion   Information ___ 
No. No. 2012-2751 No. 

SUBJECT:  Adoption of revised findings for the 
South Industrial UGB amendment and revisions to 
the Economic Opportunities Analysis 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Barton Brierley, AICP
Dept.: Planning and Building Department 
File No.: UGB 09-001

HEARING TYPE: ��LEGISLATIVE �QUASI-JUDICIAL �NOT APPLICABLE 

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Ordinance No. 2012-2751, which adopts revised findings for the South Industrial UGB amendment, 
and revisions to the Economic Opportunities Analysis.  The proposal includes the following elements: 

� Inclusion of approximately 132 gross buildable acres (260 total acres) into the Newberg UGB.  129 
acres would be designated Industrial (IND) and approximately 3 acres would be designated 
Public/Quasi Public (PQ).

� Redesignation of 7 acres of land in the Newberg UGB from Medium Density Residential (MDR) to 
Industrial (IND). 

� Amendment to the Transportation System Plan to include the future transportation plan for the south 
industrial area. 

� Adoption of the revised Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA). 
� Adoption of comprehensive plan amendments related to updates from the revised EOA and updated 

population projections. 

The proposed area for inclusion in the UGB is located south of Wynooski Rd and Wilsonville Rd, on either 
side of Highway 219. 

This proposal originally was adopted in July 2011.  The proposal makes the following revisions: 

1. Modifies the previously adopted Economic Opportunities Analysis to do the following: 

a. Adopt a “safe harbor” population forecast for use with the industrial lands analysis. 

b. Adopt revised employment projections based on the average of historic employment growth 
in Newberg, and regional employment projections  

c. Exclude modifications to commercial land needs projections. 

2. Adopt new findings in support of the South Industrial UGB amendment that relate to changes in the 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.  The changes extend the 20-year planning period to 2032.  The 
changes include the same land in the UGB as the previous proposal. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:    Newberg has adopted economic development goals to promote businesses 
and job growth in the area.  To accomplish these goals, the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future, the 
Newberg Urban Area Management Commission, and the Newberg Planning Commission all have 

Page 21



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751 PAGE 2

recommended that the city include the South Industrial Area in the UGB.  In 2009, the City Council 
accepted the South Industrial Master Plan.  In July, 2011, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2011-2740, 
which adopted revisions to the city’s Economic Opportunities Analysis, and which included 132 gross 
buildable acres in the South Industrial area into the Urban Growth Boundary.

The proposed UGB amendment requires concurrence from the Yamhill County Board of 
Commissioners.  The County also must adopt a coordinated population forecast for the urban area.  The 
Commissioners have put on hold a proposal to adopt countywide population forecasts.  In order to move 
forward, this proposed amendment would adopt the “safe harbor” population forecast for the Newberg 
Urban Area under OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b).  This method uses forecasts from the Oregon Office of 
Economic Analysis to forecast county population, and assumes that the ratio of Newberg urban area 
population to the County population remains constant.  Once adopted by the City and the County, this 
safe harbor fulfills the requirements for a coordinated population forecast. 

The proposed amendment also adopts a new employment forecast.  The proposed employment forecast is 
based on historic employment growth rate for Newberg, and the Oregon Employment Department’s regional 
employment forecast.  The employment forecast projects employment in the Newberg Urban Area will grow 
by an average of 2.5% per year through 2032. 

If adopted, this proposal will be forwarded to the Yamhill County Commissioners for adoption. 

FISCAL IMPACT:   The proposed changes have no immediate or direct impact on city finances.  Inclusion 
of the land in the UGB and development of the area will have significant positive fiscal impacts for the 
community through increased employment and business opportunities, and through property revenues. 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:
Urban growth boundaries are meant to include a 20-year supply of land for “needed housing, 
employment and other urban uses such as public facilities, streets and roads, schools, parks and open 
space” (OAR 660-024-0040(1)).  The land inventories in the revised EOA clearly indicate a shortage of 
employment land to meet the 20-year need.  Throughout the future planning process, starting with the 
Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future and continuing with the South Industrial Area Master Plan 
process, we heard from Newberg citizens that they want to be able to “live here, work here, shop here”.  
That vision cannot happen without adequate employment land to ensure that our residents will be able to 
work and shop where they live.  Adopting the proposed urban growth boundary amendment clears a 
path for the city to create a new employment area that will meet the city’s needs for the next 20 years.    

Safe harbor population forecasts are designed to be used in the interim periods before counties 
coordinated population projections countywide.  Adopting the safe harbor population forecast will 
enable this UGB amendment proposal to move forward.  We expect that the forecast will be revised for 
future planning applications.

ATTACHMENTS:
Ordinance 2012-2751 with: 
 Exhibit A: City of Newberg Industrial UGB Expansion and Comprehensive Plan Map 

Amendment Report and Findings including: 
 Appendix A:  Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012) 
 Appendix B:  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments 
 Appendix C:  Findings for Economic Opportunities Analysis and Comprehensive Plan 

Page 22



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751 PAGE 3

Text Amendments 
 Appendix D:  Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Amendments Relating to Population 
 Appendix E:  Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information 
 Appendix F:  ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 

Interchange
 Appendix G:  Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan 
 Appendix H:  Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic 

Intra/Inter-County Corridors 
 Appendix I:  Site Photos 
 Appendix J:  DLCD Notices of Proposed Amendment 

22. OEA Population Forecast, 2004 
23. Public Comment received prior to 3/1/2012 

The following are available on Newberg’s website at 
http://www.newbergoregon.gov/planning/ordinance-2012-2751-attachments

1. NUAMC Resolution 2010-22 
2. NUAMC Meeting Minutes from 6/15/10 (UGB hearing) 
3. NUAMC Meeting Minutes from 6/1/10 (UGB hearing) 
4. Letter from Michael Williams, Industrial Lands Specialist, Business Oregon (July 2010) 
5. Oregon Court of Appeals Decision – Judicial Review of LUBA 2010-015 (issued 2/1/11) 
6. LUBA Final Opinion and Order, No. 2010-015 (issued 8/26/10) 
7. Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industries, Newberg Planning 

Division (June 2011) 
8. Public Comment from prior hearings 
9. City of Newberg Record for LUBA 2010-015 (EOA Record) 
10. Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future Report to City Council (2005) 
11. Newberg Water Features Inventory (Winterbrook Planning, 2006) 
12. Public Involvement and County Coordination Process for Newberg 2007 URA Expansion

(Newberg Community Development Department, 2007) 
13. Ordinance 2009-2720 (Adopting M-4 Zoning)
14. Resolution 2009-2872 and the Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan (2009)
15. Newberg Industrial Users Survey 
16. Bill Grunkemeyer, Characteristics of an Industrial Site, Ohio State University Extension Fact 

Sheet.
17. Deloitte & Touche, Industrial/Business Park Standards: Rural Regions (October 2001) 
18. Alabama Cooperative Extension System, Creating Industrial Sites (January 1999) 
19. Otak, Incorporated and ECONorthwest, Methods for Evaluating Commercial and Industrial 

Land Sufficiency: A Recommendation for Oregon Communities prepared for The Advisory 
Committee on Commercial and Industrial Development (December 2002) 

20. Department of Land Conservation and Development, Goal 9 Guidebook, Appendix A. 
21. Sampling of Industrial Firm RFPs for Oregon, compiled by Newberg Planning Division (2010) 

Page 23



ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING REVISED FINDINGS IN SUPPORT OF THE 
SOUTH INDUSTRIAL URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY AMENDMENT;
REVISING THE ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES ANALYSIS; AMENDING 
THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM PLAN;
AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 2010-2723 AND ORDINANCE NO.
2010-2740

RECITALS:

1. Newberg’s comprehensive plan states, “In order to increase the percentage of persons who live in 
Newberg and work in Newberg, the City shall encourage a diverse and stable economic base.”  

2. Newberg has adopted a vision statement:  “Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment 
where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, dynamic and diverse community valuing 
partnerships and opportunity.” 

3. Newberg has a shortage of industrial land needed to meet these goals and visions. 

4. The Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future’s Report to City Council recommends that the South 
Industrial area be added to the urban growth boundary to meet future industrial land needs. 

5. The Newberg City Council has accepted the south industrial master plan as a vision for the south 
industrial area. 

6. On June 15, 2010, the Newberg Urban Area Management Commission recommended adoption of 
the proposed urban growth boundary amendment. 

7. On July 18, 2011, the Newberg City Council adopted the proposed urban growth boundary 
amendment and the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis. 

8. Yamhill County is intending to adopt new population forecasts as some unknown future date.  
Newberg would like to adopt safe harbor population forecast for the purposes of this UGB 
amendment. 

9. The proposal meets the goals and policies of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and implementing 
ordinance, the Statewide Planning Goals, and statutes and rules. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

1. The South Industrial UGB Report and Findings shown in Exhibit “A”, including its appendices, is 
hereby adopted and by this reference incorporated. 

City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751 PAGE 1

Page 24



City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2012-2751 PAGE 2

2. The Newberg Urban Growth Boundary is hereby amended to include that territory as shown on Map 
12 of Exhibit “A”. 

3. The Newberg Comprehensive Plan Map is hereby amended as shown on Map 12 of Exhibit “A”.  
This includes the following changes: 

a. The comprehensive plan map designation of tax lot 3221-2600 and 3228BB-100 are changed 
from Medium Density Residential (MDR) to Industrial (IND). 

b. The comprehensive plan map designation of parcels included in the UGB are changed from 
Yamhill County AFLH, AFSH, P, and IND to Newberg Industrial (IND) and Public/Quasi-
Public (PQ) as shown on Map 12. 

c. The stream corridor overlay and future park site designations as shown on Map 12 are 
hereby adopted.

4. The Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis is hereby adopted as shown in Appendix A of 
Exhibit “A”.  This shall replace the corresponding sections of Chapter 12 of the Inventory of Natural 
and Cultural Resources. 

5. The Newberg Comprehensive Plan Text is hereby amended as shown in Appendix B of Exhibit “A”. 

6. The Newberg Transportation System Plan is hereby amended to include the future transportation 
plan text and map for the south industrial area, as shown in Appendix G of Exhibit “A”. 

7. Ordinance No. 2010-2723, which adopted a revision to Newberg’s Economic Opportunities 
Analysis, and Ordinance No. 2010-2740, which adopted further revisions to the Newberg Economic 
Opportunities Analysis and findings in support of the South Industrial UGB amendment are hereby 
repealed.

8. Adoption of this ordinance is subject to adoption of corresponding amendments to the UGB and 
adoption of Newberg’s revised population projections by the Yamhill County Board of 
Commissioners. 

� Effective Date of this ordinance is the date on which corresponding amendments to the Newberg Urban Growth 
Boundary and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan are adopted by Yamhill County, but no earlier than 30 days after the 
adoption date, which is:  April 18, 2012. 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this  ______ day of   _______, 2012, by the 
following votes: AYE:  NAY:  ABSENT:  ABSTAIN:

_________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this ____ day of _____, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Newberg Urban Area Management Commission at their 6/15/2010 meeting.

Page 25



City of Newberg 

Industrial UGB Expansion and 

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 

Report and Findings 

DRAFT  February 2012

 

A b 2012

Exhibit "A" To Ordinance 2012-2751

Page 26



 

Page 27



Page i CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

City of Newberg 
Industrial UGB Expansion and Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Report and Findings 

Contents 
List of Tables .................................................................................................................................... ii 
List of Maps ...................................................................................................................................... ii 
List of Background Studies .............................................................................................................. iii 

SUMMARY.................................................................................................................................................. 1 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

Background ...................................................................................................................................... 2 
Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy .................................................................................. 7 
Summary of Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Boundary Amendment Process ................ 11 

SECTION 1: NEWBERG’S 2032 INDUSTRIAL LAND NEED AND SUPPLY .................................... 14 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 14 
Summary of Land Need Rules ........................................................................................................ 14 
How Newberg Determined Its Land Needs ................................................................................... 15 
Meeting Newberg’s Land Needs inside the UGB ........................................................................... 17 
Land Needs That Only Can Be Met by UGB Expansion .................................................................. 24 

SECTION 2: URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY LOCATION ANALYSIS ............................................ 26 

Summary of Boundary Location Analysis Rules and Process ......................................................... 26 
Inventory of Land Suitable for Industrial Use Adjacent to the UGB .............................................. 29 
Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis ................................................................................... 44 
Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis Summary and Conclusion ......................................... 55 

SECTION 3: FINDINGS FOR APPLICABLE STATUTES, RULES, GOALS, AND
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS ..................................................................................................................... 59 

State Statutory and Rule Requirements ........................................................................................ 59 
Statewide Planning Goals and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan ............................................... 68 
Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies ............................................................... 79 
Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement .............................................................. 82 
Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment ......................................................................................... 83 
Conclusion ...................................................................................................................................... 84 

OVERALL CONCLUSION AND ACTIONS ........................................................................................... 84 

SECTION 4: MAPS.................................................................................................................................... 86 

APPENDICES .......................................................................................................................................... 100 

Appendix A: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012) ................................................. A-1 
Appendix B:  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments ................................................................. B-1 
Appendix C:  Economic Opportunities Analysis and Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment 

Findings ............................................................................................................................. C-1 
Appendix D: Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Amendment ................................................. D-1 
Appendix E: Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information .............................................. E-1 

Page 28



Page ii CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 
Interchange ....................................................................................................................... F-1 

Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan ....................... G-1 
Appendix H: Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic Intra/Inter-

County Corridors .............................................................................................................. H-1 
Appendix I:  Site Photos ................................................................................................................. I-1 
Appendix J: DLCD Notices of Proposed Amendment .................................................................... J-1 

 

List of Tables 
Table 1: Newberg's Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages ............................................................... 8 
Table 2: Newberg’s Targeted Industries ..................................................................................................... 10 
Table 3:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 2032 ........................................................ 15 
Table 4:  Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 2032 .......................................................... 16 
Table 5:  Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012) ....................................................................... 18 
Table 6: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics ....................................................................... 21 
Table 7:  Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032 ........................................................................... 25 
Table 8: Summary of Industrial Site Suitability Analysis ............................................................................. 38 
Table 9:  Buildable Acres in Boundary Alternatives .................................................................................... 47 
Table 10:  EEES Consequences Summary .................................................................................................... 53 
Table 11:  Location Factor Summary........................................................................................................... 54 
Table 12:  Sites included in UGB by Priority Class ....................................................................................... 56 
Table 13:  Properties Redesignated Industrial or Included in UGB ............................................................. 57 
Table 14:  Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor . 61 
Table 15:  UGB Designation by Priority ....................................................................................................... 66 

 

List of Maps 
Map 1:  City of Newberg Industrial Land Supply ......................................................................................... 87 
Map 2: Sites in UGB Studied for Change to Industrial ................................................................................ 88 
Map 3:  Study Area with Yamhill County Zoning Designations ................................................................... 89 
Map 4:  Newberg Study Areas Parcels with Buildable Land by Parcel Size ................................................ 90 
Map 5:  Newberg Study Areas Topographic Suitability .............................................................................. 91 
Map 6:  Newberg Study Areas:  Industrial Proximity Requirements .......................................................... 92 
Map 7:  Newberg Study Areas:  Compatibility Requirements .................................................................... 93 
Map 8:  Sites 11 and 14 with Aerial Photo .................................................................................................. 94 
Map 9:  Sites 11 and 15 with Soil Class in Agricultural Planned Areas ....................................................... 95 
Map 10:  Sites 11 and 14 with Subsites and Priority Classes ...................................................................... 96 
Map 11:  Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Alternatives ........................................................................ 97 
Map 12:  Selected UGB Amendment and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Area with Proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Designations .............................................................................................................. 98 
Map 13:  Property Information ................................................................................................................... 99 

Page 29



Page iii CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

List of Background Studies 
� City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land (Johnson-Gardner, 2004)  
� Report and Recommendations to Newberg City Council (Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s 

Future, 2005) 
� Newberg Water Features Inventory (Winterbrook Planning, 2006) 
� Public Involvement and County Coordination Process for Newberg 2007 URA Expansion 

(Newberg Community Development Department, March 2007) 
� City of Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012)  
� City of Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2006) 
� Newberg Ordinance 2005-2626 (Adopting population and land needs). 
� Newberg Public Facilities Plan Capital Improvements – Water (City of Newberg 1991) 
� Water Treatment Facilities Plan (City of Newberg, 2002) 
� Letter from Tom Fox (Oregon Business Development Department  December 1, 2009) 
� Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan (WRG 2009) 
� M-4 Industrial Zoning District (Adopted, Ordinance 2009-2720) 
� Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industries, November 2010 

 
 

Page 30



Page 1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Summary 
Newberg is a thriving community that boasts a high quality of life, good jobs, good parks, schools and 
other institutions, and a strong sense of community.  Newberg also is growing.  Its population has grown 
65% in the past two decades, and it is expected to continue to grow.  In order to keep Newberg a 
community where citizens can “live here, work here, and shop here,” it must make strong efforts to 
retain and attract business that can employ its citizens and bring new resources to the community. 

To achieve this goal, Newberg has adopted an economic development strategy that focuses both on 
retaining and growing existing businesses and on recruiting new businesses.  Newberg has identified 
four primary existing business clusters that it can expect 
to expand and attract: manufacturing, health care, higher 
education, and the wine/tourism industry.  

Unfortunately, Newberg finds itself with a severe 
shortage of industrial land within its Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) to retain and attract these types of 
industries, particularly in the manufacturing cluster.   

Newberg considered the infill and redevelopment 
potential of existing industrial sites to meet these needs.  
Infill, redevelopment, and intensification of uses can 
potentially accommodate needs for about 44 percent of 
expected firms.  However, even with these 
considerations, Newberg will still need 138 gross 
buildable acres1

In conjunction with the Oregon Business Development 
Department, industry experts, professional literature, and 
local interviews, Newberg has determined the site sizes 
and characteristics needed to attract its targeted industries.  In general, industries need sites that are 
large and level, have adequate access, and that are near existing industrial areas. 

 of industrial and industrial type 
public/quasi-public land to meet its needs through 2032.  

This study considers whether industrial needs could be met by redesignating land within the existing 
UGB to meet industrial land needs.  Newberg studied 12 sites within the UGB that potentially could 
meet its industrial land need.   Of these, only one site meets or could meet industrial land needs, and 
that site contains only 1 gross buildable acre of land. 

The study then considered expanding the UGB to accommodate Newberg’s future land needs.  The 
study considered 21 potential sites around the UGB that might be able to meet future industrial needs.  

                                                           
1 Acreage figures in this report have been rounded to the nearest acre.  For more detailed property by property calculations, see Table 13on page 

61. 

Figure 1:  Meeting Industrial Land Needs by 
Percent of Firms 

Through 
infill & 

redevelop
ment 
44% 

On 
buildable 
industrial 

land in 
UGB 
18% 

On land 
inside 
UGB 

redesigna
ted 

industrial 
1% 

On land 
added to 

UGB 
37% 

Page 31



Page 2 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Of these, only two sites meet the site suitability criteria needed for the target industries.  All other sites 
failed to meet one or more of the industrial site suitability criteria.  Both suitable sites are located on the 
south side of Newberg near Highway 219, Wynooski Road and Wilsonville Road.  That area has large, 
level sites, has excellent access, is adjacent to existing industrial areas, and has natural buffers from 
residential areas.  

Some of the land within one of the sites is within the Newberg Urban Reserve Area established in 1995.  
Some of the land is rural exception land.  The remainder is on farm land, which is fourth priority for 
inclusion in a UGB.  An inventory of suitable land found no higher priority lands that met the required 
site characteristics; thus, Newberg can justify inclusion of these fourth priority lands. In conjunction with 
including the south study area into the UGB, Newberg has identified some property in the area that 
would be appropriate for a water treatment plant and for designation as Public/Quasi-Public. 

This report provides findings in support of two changes: 

� Inclusion of 132 gross buildable acres (260 total acres) into the Newberg Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB).  Of the 132 gross buildable acres, 129 gross buildable acres would receive a 
comprehensive plan designation of Industrial (IND), and 3 gross buildable acres would be 
designated Public/Quasi-Public (PQ). 

� Redesignation of 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) of land already in the Newberg UGB from 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) to Industrial (IND). 

This report includes findings addressing the applicable state and local rules for amending the 
comprehensive plan map and urban growth boundary. 

Introduction 

Background 

Description of Newberg 
Newberg is a thriving, independent community in Yamhill County, located in the Willamette Valley.  It is 
about 25 miles southwest of Portland, and about 30 miles north of Salem.  Newberg is on Highway 99W, 
a major transportation corridor to Yamhill County, the western Willamette Valley, and the Oregon 
Coast.  According to the 2010 Census, Newberg has a population of 22,068.  The Newberg UGB has an 
estimated 2011 population of 22,7942

Newberg’s city limits encompass 5.8 square miles and the urban growth boundary includes 6.6 square 
miles.  There are 0.9 square miles remaining in Newberg’s urban reserve as established in 1995. 

. 

                                                            
2 Source:  Newberg Planning Division, 2011, based on 2011 Population Estimate from PSU, andU.S. Census 2010 data at the block level. 

Page 32



Page 3 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The Newberg urban area is bounded on the south by the Willamette River.  On the east is Parrett 
Mountain, and on the north is Chehalem Mountain.   To the west is the Chehalem Valley, which includes 
more level farm and rural residential land.  The City of Dundee is about two miles to the southwest. 

Newberg is home to George Fox University, a private university with about 2,000 students.  Portland 
Community College recently opened new campus in Newberg, which provides excellent vocational 
training services for local employers.  The Newberg School District operates a high school and several 
other schools in Newberg.  There are several other private schools that are successful in the area. 

Newberg has a strong industrial base.  According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Newberg has about 60 
percent more than the national average in percentage of workforce in manufacturing employment.  
Major industrial employers include A-dec and several other dental equipment manufacturers, Climax 
Portable Machine Tools, SP Newsprint, and Harris Thermal Transfer Products.  

Planning History 

Comprehensive Plan Adoption 
Newberg’s comprehensive plan was acknowledged by the State of Oregon on August 6, 1981.  The plan 
included an urban growth boundary, which was estimated to contain sufficient land to meet needs 
through 2000.  Newberg underwent Periodic Review in the early 1990’s. At that time, Newberg 
determined that the UGB contained adequate land to meet needs through 2010. 

1995 Urban Reserve Adoption 
In 1992 and 1993, the Oregon state legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission (LCDC) adopted statutes and rules on urban reserves.  These required Newberg and other 
cities to adopt an urban reserve area.  

In 1995, the City of Newberg and Yamhill County jointly established Oregon’s first urban reserve area 
(URA).  The 1995 URA contained 750 gross buildable acres, which was estimated to accommodate 
growth needs through the year 2020, or 10 years beyond the urban growth boundary time frame 
(Newberg Ordinance 95-2397). 

Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future 
By 2003, it was clear that the Newberg UGB no longer contained a 20-year supply of buildable land.  
Newberg decision makers faced a number of questions about the amount and direction of future growth 
of the city.  To formulate a direction for the future of Newberg, the Newberg City Council established 
the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future (the committee) in 2003.  The Council created the 
committee to provide a forum for citizen involvement in planning for Newberg’s future land use 
patterns. The committee was asked to make recommendations that would help the City Council make 
future amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.  In support of the committee’s deliberations, the City 
undertook population, employment, housing and buildable lands studies.  The City considered 
Newberg’s future land use needs through the years 2025 and 2040.   

The committee met from April 2004 to July 2005 and considered future population, employment and 
housing needs, and buildable land requirements for residential, institutional, industrial and commercial 

Page 33



Page 4 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

development.  The committee reviewed the supply of buildable land within the existing UGB, and 
evaluated land suitability in designated Urban Reserve Areas (URAs) and surrounding Urban Reserve 
Study Areas. 

The committee received support from City staff and consultants, including Barry Edmonston, Johnson-
Gardner Associates and Winterbrook Planning. The committee also sought and received input from state 
agencies and the general public, including residents, businesses, and property owners within the 
Newberg city limits and nearby.  The committee provided for citizen involvement at 26 public meetings 
and two public open houses.  The committee also conducted two surveys, received comments at each of 
their meetings, and reviewed scores of letters.  As a result of this process, the committee made 
recommendations regarding future land needs, buildable lands, and the magnitude and direction of UGB 
and URA expansion.  The committee presented its Report to Newberg City Council on July 21, 2005.  The 
City Council unanimously accepted the committee’s report. 

A key recommendation of the committee was that Newberg should not simply be a bedroom 
community that provided housing but no new jobs.  The committee felt strongly that the community 
needed to expand its industrial base so that existing and future residents could work in the community 
without commuting to other communities.  A strong industrial base also would serve to bring wealth 
and stability to the community, and thus improve the quality of life for all residents. 

The committee considered a number of general options for future industrial growth.  After considering 
the existing supply of industrial land and various options for expansion, the committee concluded that 
the south study area was uniquely suited to meet the community’s future industrial needs.  The area has 
the site characteristics sought after by industries, has excellent access to transportation facilities, is 
adjacent to existing industrial areas, and has excellent separation from incompatible uses.  The 
committee recommended including adequate land from the area into the urban growth boundary to 
meet the 20-year need for industrial land, and including the remainder of the area in the urban reserve 
to meet land needs through 2040. 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
On August 1, 2005, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-2590, directing City staff to undertake 
activities needed to implement the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future.  
The City Council subsequently adopted a series of ordinances based on this report as described below.   

� Newberg Transportation System Plan  (2005 Update – Ordinance 2005-2619) 

� Newberg Comprehensive Plan  (Revised Population Projection and Land Needs Assessment – 
Ordinance 2005-2626) 

� Newberg Comprehensive Plan Policy Amendments  (Ordinance 2006-2634) 

� Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis  (Ordinance 2006-2635) 

� Newberg Urban Growth Boundary Amendments (Ordinance 2006-2661) (added approximately 
200 gross buildable acres, largely for residential use) 
 

Each of the above amendments was acknowledged through the post-acknowledgment plan amendment 
process. 

Page 34



Page 5 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

2007 Urban Reserve Amendment 
In July 2008, the Newberg City Council and the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners approved the 
2007 Urban Reserve Amendment package.  This adoption was the result of an extensive public 
involvement process that began with Newberg Urban Area Management Commission (NUAMC) 
workshops in 2006.  NUAMC held a series of hearings in 2007 to consider the plan.  The Newberg City 
Council held hearings later in 2007 and into 2008.  The Yamhill County Commissioners also held hearings 
on the plan in 2008.  After extensive deliberation and some negotiation between the two bodies, both 
adopted the proposed urban reserve.  Newberg adopted the urban reserve on July 7, 2008 through 
Ordinance 2008-2698.  Yamhill County adopted the urban reserve on July 16, 2008 through Ordinance 
828.  The adopted URA included the south study area.  Newberg submitted DLCD notice of the adoption 
of the urban reserve, along with the record, on August 28, 2008. 

On April 10, 2009, DLCD issued Order No. 001767, remanding the urban reserve designation.  In the 
decision, DLCD raised concerns about Newberg’s targeted industries list contained in the adopted and 
acknowledged EOA.  The department also raised concerns about including land in an urban reserve to 
meet needs for specific identified land needs.   

On May 1, 2009, Newberg appealed the DLCD remand order to LCDC.  Other parties also appealed.  
LCDC held hearings to consider the appeals on June 5, 2009 and July 21, 2009.  In its July 9, 2009 
supplemental report, page 9, the Department stated an opinion that: 

Finally, the city may well be able to demonstrate a need for large, relatively flat 
industrial lands based on its recent economic opportunities analysis.  The course for 
adding such lands to the city’s UGB is through a UGB amendment for that specific land 
need, not through the reserves process. 
 

At the hearing, Newberg agreed to a voluntary remand of the decision to address the issues raised.  
LCDC issued the remand order on April 22, 2010. 

Updated Economic Opportunities Analysis 
During the fall of 2009 and winter of 2010, Newberg drafted amendments to its 2006 Economic 
Opportunities Analysis (EOA) to address issues raised during the review of the 2007 URA, and to update 
the EOA with current information.  The revised EOA explains how the City considered economic trends 
and its comparative advantages in developing a coherent economic development strategy.  The revised 
EOA carefully spells out the City’s economic vision and actions necessary to achieve it.  The EOA, along 
with related comprehensive plan amendments, does the following: 

� Analyzes economic trends, including national, state, regional, and local trends. 

� Assesses the economic development potential of Newberg – it includes an analysis of Newberg’s 
comparative advantages and disadvantages, and identifies special opportunities within the 
Newberg area. 

� Identifies Newberg’s specific targeted industries and industry clusters.  

� Details Newberg’s economic development strategy, including plans to capitalize on Newberg’s 
comparative advantages and overcome its disadvantages. 

Page 35



Page 6 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

� Identifies Newberg’s industrial and commercial land needs, and the site characteristics needed 
for businesses in the targeted industry clusters. 

� Inventories existing buildable industrial and commercial land in the Newberg UGB, and 
measures that supply against the projected need. 

The City Council adopted the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis through Ordinance 2010-2723 at 
their February 1, 2010 meeting.   Several parties filed a notice of intent to appeal the decision to LUBA 
on February 22, 2010.  LUBA heard the appeal, and on August 26, 2010 remanded the decision on 
several points.  Two parties further appealed the remand to the Oregon Court of Appeals.    On February 
16, 2011, the Court of Appeals affirmed LUBA’s decision.  

In 2012, the Newberg City Council will consider amendments to the Economic Opportunities Analysis to 
address the remand.  This will be done in conjunction with this UGB amendment. 

South Industrial Area Master Plan 
The Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future looked at a number of areas that potentially could meet 
future industrial needs.  The committee ultimately recommended that Newberg look to the area along 
Highway 219 near Wynooski Road as a future industrial area.  The area meets many of the identified 
needs for industrial development, including that it is a large flat area that can accommodate large 
industrial sites, has easy access to I-5 and the other regional highways, and is naturally buffered from 
surrounding uses by the stream corridor that borders the site on both sides.  The committee 
recommended adding sufficient land from the area into the UGB to meet 20-year land needs, and 
include the remainder of the area in the urban reserve.   

In order to determine which land in the area would be most appropriate to include in the UGB, and to 
investigate and plan for future land uses, transportation networks, and utility needs, Newberg initiated 
the South Industrial Area Master Plan.  City staff kicked off the planning effort for the South Industrial 
area in early 2009 with the help of their consultant, WRG Design, Inc.   

Through the months of March, April and May 2009, city staff and their project consultant met with the 
area property owners, engaged citizens at a community visioning meeting and a community open house, 
and met with their collaborative design team for the project to distill the public’s vision into a plan.  
Citizens gave a lot of positive feedback at the community events and reinforced the idea that they want 
Newberg to be able to provide adequate jobs for its citizens.  The most commonly stated goal was that 
citizens want Newberg to be a place where all your needs are met – to be able to work, shop and play in 
the same place where you live – “live here, work here, shop here.” 

The process resulted in creation of the South Industrial Area Master Plan.  The plan was the result of 
public feedback from the community visioning meeting, the community open house, and the project’s 
collaborative design team.  The layout contains many positive elements, including large lot flexibility, a 
comprehensive transportation network that is designed to function well both pre- and post- bypass 
construction, a park and trail network that will tie into future area trails as well as the future CPRD park 
to be located just south of the study area, and a small commercial area designed to serve the needs of 
the industrial park users.  It includes a plan for serving the area with public utilities, including a proposed 
location for a future sewer pump station near the existing Wastewater treatment plant. 

Page 36



Page 7 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The City Council accepted the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP) as a vision plan for the area 
through Resolution 2009-2872 on November 2, 2009.  In addition to accepting the SIAMP, the Newberg 
City Council also adopted a new M-4 Industrial zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay 
zoning district (Ordinance 2009-2720).  The M-4 zoning district includes standards for preservation of 
large lot industrial parcels (of 20+ acres), and requires a planned unit development for smaller 
developments or industrial parks.  It also includes comprehensive landscape and design standards along 
all arterial and collector streets within the South Industrial area.  The Interim Industrial overlay zoning 
district provides for limited industrial development in areas identified for future right-of-way acquisition 
for capital projects such as the future Newberg-Dundee Bypass.   

With this very strong base of vision, technical planning, and public support, the natural next step is to 
propose bringing the first part of the South Industrial Area into the UGB. 

Updated Housing and Institutional Land Needs 
On April 5, 2010, the Newberg City Council adopted Ordinance 2010-2724, which amended the housing 
element of the comprehensive plan and to the residential and institutional land needs, including public 
facilities land needs.  That ordinance reallocated the land needs from 2005-2025 and 2026-2040 time 
frames to 2010-2030 and 2031-2040 time frames, and updated the buildable lands inventories.  
Ordinance 2010-2724 was appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals, which remanded the ordinance 
based on issues not related to the public facility land needs. 

Revised Population Forecast 
Newberg adopted population forecasts for the Newberg urban area in 2005.  Following receipt of the 
2010 Census information, Yamhill County has announced a desire to create a population study for the 
County and the urban areas within the county.  At this time, there is no definite timeline for completion 
of this study.  In the meantime, for purposes of the current project Newberg will use the “safe harbor” 
population forecast method allowed under OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b).    It is generally recognized that 
this method yields a conservative population forecast suitable for an amendment of an urban growth 
boundary in interim periods before a county adopts a coordinated forecast for all urban areas within the 
county.   This method uses the most recent long range population forecast for the county from the 
Oregon Office of Economic Analysis to project future county population.   It assumes that the urban 
area’s share of the future county population remains the same as the current share. 

Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy 
Newberg’s revised Economic Opportunities Analysis describes its economic development strategy.  
Newberg’s overall economic development efforts focus on two principal strategies: 1) retention and 
expansion of existing businesses, and 2) recruitment of new businesses.  A major component of 
successful economic development efforts is analyzing Newberg’s marketability in the regional 
marketplace to retain and attract its targeted industries.  The revised EOA lists Newberg’s comparative 
advantages and disadvantages along with strategies and actions to capitalize on and address them:  

  

Page 37



Page 8 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 1: Newberg's Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages 
Advantage Strategy / Action 
1. Small Town 
Quality of Life 

� Continue to provide relatively affordable housing opportunities. 
� Minimize adverse impacts on existing and planned residential neighborhoods from 

conflicting employment opportunities. 
� Continue revitalization efforts of historic downtown. 
� Support organizations that foster “social capital”. 
� Work to improve the pedestrian/bicycle network in Newberg. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p., 1.q., 3.a.) 

2. Access to 
Quality Education 
and Skills Training 

� Continue to support the Newberg School District, George Fox University, Portland 
Community College, and other public and private schools in their efforts to train and 
motivate the kind of workforce required by existing and future employers in Newberg. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.q.) 

3.  Strong 
Established and 
Growing Industry 
Clusters 

� Provide sufficient land near existing industrial areas to allow for expansion. 
� Provide suitable sites with characteristics required by such industries to take advantage of 

industrial clusters in Newberg. 
� Encourage the reuse/redevelopment of properties in zones allowing business. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 2.e., 2.g.) 

4. Strong Local 
Support for 
Business and 
Employment 
Opportunities  

� Continue to plan for future employment opportunities by providing suitable sites for 
industrial (export) and commercial uses. 

� Continue to work collaboratively with the State, Yamhill County, and local businesses to 
fund infrastructure and planning necessary to maintain and attract desired employment. 

� Continue to work with and support the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.m., 1.n., 1.o., 3.b.) 

5. Proximity to 
Portland 
Metropolitan 
Region   

� Continue to work with Metropolitan area partners in promoting the economic advantages 
of the region. 

� Provide opportunities for identified regional employment clusters in Newberg. 
� Continue to advocate for improved access to regional markets, via Highways 99W and 219 

and the Interstate. 
� Continue to maintain rail and air access opportunities. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.o., 2.g.) 

6. Future 
Newberg-Dundee 
Bypass 

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to build political support 
and ensure funding for the Bypass. 

� Encourage support, funding and construction of the full Bypass project. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals 

� Newberg has taken advantage of Oregon’s Economic Development Program (Goal 9) by 
identifying comparative advantages (and disadvantages), targeting export-based 
employment clusters, identifying and providing for the site requirements necessary to 
maintain and attract such clusters in Newberg, and coordinating with Yamhill County and 
affected state agencies to retain and provide services to suitable employment sites.  
Newberg will continue to coordinate with these agencies. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 

Disadvantage Strategy / Action 

Page 38



Page 9 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

1. Transportation 
and Access Issues 

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to ensure funding for 
the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 

� Continue to advocate for Highway 99W improvements to reduce congestion and maintain 
regional connectivity. 

� Continue to work with ODOT for review of all development proposals in areas that may 
impact a state highway facility. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 

2. Lack of Suitable 
Employment Sites 

� Newberg has considered local, regional, state and national economic trends and identified 
industry clusters that the City has a reasonable likelihood of attracting to the community. 

� Newberg has also researched and identified the site characteristics demanded by firms 
within these industry clusters.   Newberg is actively planning for a future industrial area 
that will meet both the industrial site characteristics and the land needs of the city’s 
population over the next 30 years. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.h., 2.g.) 

3. Limited 
Suitable Land 
Supply Outside 
UGB 

� After considering the potential for rural residential exception areas to meet identified site 
requirements, the City has selected sites on agricultural land that will be reserved for 
identified employment needs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.e., 2.g.) 

4. and 5. Stressed 
Commercial 
Sector and Retail 
Dollar Leakage 

� Recruit businesses that can fulfill commercial needs that are currently being unmet locally.   
� Support small businesses that are adjusting these new retail realities by either focusing on 

high quality customer service and/or gearing their business plans toward niche markets.   
� Encourage local retail businesses to improve their online presence.     
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.i). 

6. Market 
Pressures on SP 
Newsprint 

� Newberg will continually look for opportunities to work with SP Newsprint to help reduce 
their operational costs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d.) 

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals 

� Newberg will continue to pursue Urban Growth Boundary amendments and Urban 
Reserve expansions to provide adequate land for future uses. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 

Regional Focus 
Newberg has worked extensively with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments and the 
Oregon Business Development Department for many years, and has recently developed relationships 
with economic development organizations in the metropolitan area.  In 2004, the City joined the 
Association of Regional Economic Development Partners, Inc. (now the Greater Portland, Inc.).  The 
Newberg City Council passed Resolution 2005-2554 in January 2005, stating the City’s support for the 
framework of the Portland Regional Business Plan of the Regional Economic Development Partners.   In 
addition, in January 2005, the Newberg City Council adopted the shared regional economic vision 
Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley.   

Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters 
As stated above, Newberg’s economic development strategy is two-pronged: 1) retention and expansion 
of existing businesses, and 2) recruitment of new businesses.  In general, 80 percent of Newberg’s 
economic development efforts are spent on the first part of the strategy and 20 percent on the second 

Page 39



Page 10 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

part – it is far easier, effective, and efficient to maintain and expand the local economy through existing 
local industries than to attract new ones.  Newberg has identified four business clusters that are the 
foundation of its economy: manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism 
industry.  Table 2 below lists targeted business types within each business cluster that Newberg will 
focus economic development efforts on to expand and attract.   

Table 2: Newberg’s Targeted Industries 
Business Cluster Targeted Business Types 

Manufacturing and Industry 
High Tech 
Manufacturing 
 

Semiconductors/silicon, imaging & display technology 
Nano & micro technology, cyber-security, health/medical information technology 
Biotech/bioscience (medical devices, bioinfomatics, pharmaceuticals, genomics, anti-virals) 

General 
Manufacturing 

Dental equipment 
Metals, machinery, transportation equipment 
Lumber and wood products (value added) 
Sustainable industries (renewable energy, resource efficiency technologies, sustainable 
building materials, green chemistry) 
Distribution & logistics 
Sports apparel/recreation-related products 

Aviation Related Specialty aircraft equipment, aircraft repair, machine shops, small entrepreneur business 

Agriculture 
Wineries 
Specialty foods and food processing 
 Nursery and agricultural products (value added) 

Services 
Professional services architecture, engineering, legal and financial services, etc. 
Creative services (advertising, public relations, film and video, web/internet content and 
design) 

Health Care 
 Providence Medical Center Expansion, medical offices, senior services 
Higher Education 

 
Portland Community College campus, George Fox University expansion, high school 
vocational training and college preparedness, private post-secondary training 

Wine/Tourism 

 
Wineries and tasting rooms, restaurants, art studios, theater and entertainment, recreation 
(golf, bowling), conference facilities, specialty retail 

 

Other Supportive Economic Development Actions 
The City of Newberg’s adopted Comprehensive Plan contains a list of goals and policies that help shape 
Newberg’s future economy (Section H. The Economy).  In addition to the actions and strategies to 
specifically address Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages, the economic development 
strategy includes supportive actions that help implement the goals and policies in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  The following is a list of the supportive economic development actions and the Comprehensive 
Plan policies they support (from Section H).   

1. Work with the State to “certify” industrial sites to shorten the development time of projects and 
provide certainty to a business that regulatory and permitting issues will not delay the project’s 

Page 40



Page 11 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

timeline. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 2.g. 

2. Identify and implement cost and time saving measures that improve the development 
permitting process. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d. 

3. Develop a financial incentives “toolbox” to recruit new businesses and encourage existing 
business expansions.  The incentives should be applied only after a proposed project has been 
reviewed by a rigorous analysis that demonstrates a clear benefit to the City. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 1.g. 

4. Maintain a useful economic development website that is easy to navigate and contains 
substantive content that meets the needs of business. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.a., 1.g. 

5. Work with local, regional and state educational and training resources (private and public) to 
assist with the workforce training needs of businesses and provide opportunities for workers to 
voluntarily upgrade their skills.  The available workforce pool in the Newberg region is 
approximately 223,000.  The regional workforce is estimated by using the assumption that a 23 
minute mean commute time (2000 Census) draws workers from an approximately 15 mile radius 
from the center of Newberg Oregon is recognized for having an educated workforce, one with 
good basic work skill sets that allows them to be relatively easily trained. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.f. 

6. Gauge the health of local businesses regularly and identify how the City can help resolve issues, 
when feasible.  Focus should be on businesses of the traded-sector and local clusters.  Anticipate 
local problem areas by keeping abreast of regional, national, and international business trends. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p. 

7. Develop closer ties to organizations/businesses located within the Portland area with a similar 
interest in regional economic development (e.g. Regional Economic Development Partners, 
future Portland Economic Development District, etc).  However, joining METRO will not be 
considered.  Reevaluate current relationship with Mid-Willamette Valley Community 
Development Partnership.  
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f. 

8. Develop a Downtown Revitalization Master Plan prior to the construction of the Newberg-
Dundee Bypass.  Identify funding sources necessary to implement the plan. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 3.a. 

Summary of Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Boundary Amendment 
Process 
In order to address this unmet land need, including amending the UGB to add additional industrial land, 
Oregon statutes and rules establish the following process. 

First, Establish Need 
Before amending an urban growth boundary, a local government must establish the amount and type of 
land to be added to meet 20-year needs.  The need must be based on a coordinated 20-year future 
population forecast, and on future employment forecasts (OAR 660-024-0030 & -0040).  State rules 

Page 41



Page 12 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

permit Newberg to specify site suitability characteristics for each type of identified land need (OAR 660-
024-0060(5)).   

Once needs are determined, the local government must determine whether any of that need can be 
met on lands already in the urban growth boundary.  To do this, it must inventory the supply of 
buildable industrial land within the UGB3

Section 1 of this report follows this process and determines the amount and type of land needed to be 
added to the Newberg UGB to meet 2032 industrial and industrial type public/quasi-public needs.  

.  Then, it must consider what amount of the need could be met 
through infill, redevelopment, and expanded use of existing land.  Then it must determine whether any 
of the need could be met by redesignating land to meet the specified need.  If so, it must present 
findings establishing addressing the applicable criteria to allow this change.  After these steps, the local 
government establishes the amount and type of land that must be added to the urban growth 
boundary. 

Second, Determine Location of Urban Growth Boundary Expansion 
After establishing a need to expand the UGB under Step 1, a local government is to determine the 
location of the urban growth boundary using the following steps: 

1. Inventory land adjacent to and in the vicinity of the urban growth boundary that meets the site 
suitability characteristics identified in Section 1 and thus is suitable for the identified use.  

2. Determine whether any suitable land that meets the specified site characteristics exists within 
first priority urban reserve area land, and if so, include that land in the UGB.   

3. If there is not sufficient suitable urban reserve land to meet the identified need, then determine 
whether any suitable land exists within second priority adjacent rural exception areas.  If so, also 
include that land in the UGB. 

4.  If sufficient suitable rural exception land cannot be included in the UGB, then include suitable 
land within fourth priority farm and forest resource land.4

5. At the priority stage that has more suitable land than needed to meet the identified need, the 
local government must apply the Goal 14 Location Factors, and determine which land of that 
priority best meets those factors, and then include that land. 

    Farm and forest land of lower soil 
quality must receive priority over land of higher soil quality.   

Findings addressing the location of the urban growth boundary expansion are included in Section 2 of 
this report. 

Third, Make Findings in Support of an Urban Growth Boundary Expansion  
Finally, the local government must make findings for applicable statutes, rules, goals and comprehensive 
plans.   Although several of the rules and statutes are addressed throughout Sections 1 and 2 of this 
                                                            
3  For more information on the definition of “buildable land,” see page 20. 
4 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, thus there is no third priority land. 

Page 42



Page 13 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

report, Section 3 will have detailed findings to the statutory and local requirements for Urban Growth 
Boundary and Comprehensive Plan map amendments.  This includes findings addressing applicable goals 
and policies in the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 43



Page 14 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 1: Newberg’s 2032 Industrial Land Need and Supply 

Introduction 
Newberg adopted a revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) in conjunction with this UGB 
amendment that includes updated buildable land and supply information and updated economic 
projections.  The land need and supply analysis concluded that Newberg has a substantial need for 
additional industrial land through 2032.  The Newberg Comprehensive Plan also includes needs for 
additional buildable industrial type public/quasi-public (PQ) land for a new water treatment plant.  The 
identified needs far exceed the amount of available land in the UGB.  Thus Newberg will need to add 
industrial and industrial type PQ land to meet identified needs through 2032.  This section will discuss 
how Newberg determined its land needs and how its land needs can best be met.   

Summary of Land Need Rules  
Statewide Planning Goal 14, OAR 660-024-0040, and OAR 660, Division 9 prescribe the rules and process 
for determining industrial land needs.  The main purpose of Goal 14 is “to provide for an orderly and 
efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate urban population and urban 
employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable 
communities.”  Goal 14 requires that UGB expansions be based on a “(1) Demonstrated need to 
accommodate long range urban population, consistent with a 20-year population forecast coordinated 
with affected local governments; and (2) Demonstrated need for housing, employment opportunities, 
livability or uses such as public facilities, streets and roads, schools, parks or open space, or any 
combination of the need categories in this subsection.”  Newberg has an adopted population forecast , 
coordinated with Yamhill County, that shows that the 2032 population will be 33,367 residents.  This 
UGB expansion is meant to bring in land to meet Newberg’s long term employment needs as well as 
provide for a necessary public facility.   

OAR 660-024-0040 echoes Goal 14 and requires cities to base their land need on their coordinated 
population forecast and to provide for needed uses over a 20-year planning period.  Newberg projected 
that employment growth would be midway between the historic employment growth and the short 
term regional employment projections. 

OAR 660, Division 9 establishes rules for creating an Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA).  OAR 660-
009-0015 requires a review of trends, identification of required site types, an inventory of employment 
lands, and an assessment of economic development potential.  OAR 660-009-0015 (2) states: 

 The plan must identify the approximate number, acreage and site characteristics of sites 
needed to accommodate industrial and other employment uses to implement plan policies. 
Plans do not need to provide a different type of site for each industrial or other employment 
use. Compatible uses with similar site characteristics may be combined into broad site 
categories. Several broad site categories will provide for industrial and other employment uses 
likely to occur in most planning areas. Cities and counties may also designate mixed-use zones 
to meet multiple needs in a given location. 

  

Page 44



Page 15 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

How Newberg Determined Its Land Needs 
Newberg’s recently updated EOA determined the acres of buildable industrial land Newberg will need 
through 2032, including a determination of site sizes and site characteristics needed.  The 2012 EOA 
thus provides the basis for Newberg’s industrial land needs.   

The EOA determined land needs by first determining future industrial employment projections.  Second, 
the EOA projected the proportion of future industrial firms in various small, medium, and large 
employment and site size categories.  Third, the EOA allocates the future employment to the various 
firm and site size categories, and thus determines the total amount of buildable industrial land needed 
for the planning period.  Finally, the EOA inventories buildable industrial land currently inside the UGB, 
and thus determines the unmet need for industrial land.  The following information, drawn from 
Newberg’s EOA, details this process.  See Appendix A: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012). 

Industrial Employment Projections 
Newberg projected the proportion of employment utilizing industrial space according to the 
percentages shown in Table 3 below. 

Table 3:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 2032 

Industry 2010 Total 
Emp.

%Industrial
Space 

2010 2032

Construction 387 30% 116 200 
Manufacturing 2,164 91% 1,969 3,390 
Wholesale Trade 115 82% 94 162 
Retail Trade 837 0% - - 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 

119 82% 98 168 

Information 51 40% 20 35 
Financial Activities 253 0% - - 
Professional & Business 370 14% 52 89 
Education & Health Services 2,978 0% - - 
Leisure & Hospitality 1,033 0% - - 
Other Services 439 40% 176 302 
Government 173 0% - - 
Total 8,919 28.3% 2,525 4,347

Cumulative from 2010  1,822 

Source:  Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis 2012 

  

Page 45



Page 16 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Determining Needs for Industrial Sites by Firm and Site Size 
A variety of parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations are required to provide suitable sites 
to attract targeted industry clusters.  The Economic Opportunities Analysis allocated the projected future 
employment by site size category as shown in Table 4 below.   The data is based on the assumption that 
most sites under 10 acres will be located in industrial parks, which will require dedication of an average 
of 15% right-of-way for streets and utilities.  For sites over 10 acres, the table assumes 5% of the area for 
streets and utilities.  The table also includes assumptions that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial 
employment will be located on sites 10 acres or less, and that one-third of those future new industrial 
firms 2-10 acres in size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill, 
redevelopment or intensification of existing employment land uses.  The table also assumes that for sites 
over 10 acres, one currently unoccupied site (Suntron) will be reoccupied, and that some infill will occur 
within existing larger sites.   

Table 4:  Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 2032 

Emps. 
per Firm 

Percent of 
Emp. 

Number of 
New Emps. 

Number 
of Firms 

Sites 
Needed 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Ave. 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

Ave. 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres) 

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed 

0-9 15% 273 46 
23 <2 1 0.15 26 

23 infill & redevelopment 0 

10 to 74 40% 729 21 
14 2 - 10 5 0.75 81 

7 infill & redevelopment 0 

75 + 45% 820 

2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42 

1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42 

1 1 infill & redevelopment 0 

Total 100% 1,822 71 71 191 

Source: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis 2012 

Public/Quasi-Public Land Needs 
Newberg’s comprehensive plan identifies a need for a new water treatment plant.  See Appendix E: 
Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information. 

.  Newberg’s existing water treatment plant is located on a parcel outside the urban growth boundary.  
The site is very constrained in that it is located entirely within the perimeter of the SP Newsprint site.  It 
is on a small footprint with no opportunities for expansion.  Newberg’s Public Facilities Plan includes a 
need for a new water treatment plant on Wynooski Road.  According to the City of Newberg Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan, Newberg should relocate the plant to a new site to allow upgrade and 
expansion.  According to the plan and the Newberg Public Works Department, this site needs to include 
at least 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, needs through 2032 are for at least 3 additional gross buildable 
acres of industrial type PQ land.  Additional industrial type PQ needs may be identified in the future. 

  

Page 46



Page 17 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Combined Industrial and Industrial Type Public/Quasi-Public Land Needs through 2032 
In summary, the total needs identified for industrial land and industrial type public/quasi-public land 
(water treatment plant) through 2032 is for 194 gross buildable acres (191 gross buildable acres of 
industrial and at least 3 gross buildable acres of industrial type PQ land). 

Meeting Newberg’s Land Needs inside the UGB 
OAR 660-024-0050 (4) states, “Prior to expanding the UGB, a local government must demonstrate that 
the estimated needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the UGB.”  Thus, to 
determine how best to meet Newberg’s land needs, Newberg must look at the current buildable land 
supply, the possibilities for infill and redevelopment of existing industrial land, and the possibilities for 
redesignation of land in other categories to industrial.  The result of this analysis will be Newberg’s 
unmet land need:  the acreage that will need to be met through a UGB expansion.   

Newberg’s Buildable Industrial Land Supply 
The comprehensive plan inventory of buildable industrial land was updated in 2012, consistent with the 
requirement in OAR 660-009-0015 (3) for an inventory of industrial and other employment land.  The 
term “buildable industrial land” as used in this context means both suitable “vacant” and “developed” 
[i.e. redevelopable] land as those terms are defined in OAR 660-009-0005.  Buildable industrial land: 
1) Includes lots that have any “Industrial” comprehensive plan designation.  This includes land in the 

“Employment” Springbrook District, specific plan industrial districts, and land in the MIX 
comprehensive plan district zoned industrial.  It excludes publicly owned properties intended for city 
facilities such as the wastewater treatment plant expansion, which are counted in the “public/quasi-
public” category. 

2) Includes lots that are: 
a) Equal to or larger than one half-acre not currently containing permanent buildings or 

improvements; or  
b) Equal to or larger than five acres where less than one half-acre is occupied by permanent 

buildings or improvements. 
c) Non-vacant land that is likely to be redeveloped during the planning period.  For this inventory, 

this included (but was not limited to),  
i) Lots equal to or larger than one-half acre, and less than five acres likely to be redeveloped 

during the planning period. 
ii) The undeveloped portion of a lot equal to or larger than five acres. 

d) Excludes (unsuitable) portions of lots within stream corridors, with slopes over 10 percent, or 
currently occupied by buildings or industrial uses not likely to be redeveloped during the 
planning period, or contained within the Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-way as shown in the 
Tier 2 Preferred Alternative selected September 2010.  See Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative 
and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 Interchange 

Table 5 shows the existing buildable industrial land in the UGB as of 2012.  Map 1 at the end of this 
report shows the amount of buildable industrial land in the UGB in 2012.  

Page 47



Page 18 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 5:  Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012)  

Location Potential Uses 
Buildable 

Acres 

Site Sizes 

< 2 ac. 2-10 ac. 10-30 ac. 30-50 ac. Total 
Springbrook 
Employment 

Light Manufacturing 
or Industrial Office 

23 
 

1 1 
 

2 

Sportsman 
Airpark5 Airport Industrial 

 
22 2 4 

  
6 

Wynooski 
Industrial 

Light Industrial 10 1 2 
  

3 

Elliot Road 
Industrial 

Light Manufacturing 
or Industrial Office 

1 1 
   

1 

Total 56 4 7 1 12 
Source: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis, 2012 

The current UGB has approximately 56 gross buildable industrial acres.  Newberg’s existing industrial 
land supply is mostly contained within two industrial/employment park areas: approximately 23 gross 
buildable acres zoned SD/E (Springbrook District Employment) in the Springbrook area and 
approximately 22 gross buildable acres near the Sportsman Airpark. There are also about 11 gross 
buildable acres of industrial land scattered in other areas.  

Infill and Redevelopment Possibilities 
Newberg considered the infill and redevelopment potential of existing industrial sites to meet its 
industrial land needs.  These areas are illustrated on Map 1.  Table 4 on page 16 includes assumptions 
that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial employment will be located on sites 10 acres or less, and 
that one-third of those future new industrial firms 2-10 acres in size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres 
in size, will find a site through infill redevelopment or intensification of existing employment land uses.  
This could include some industrial uses that are able to locate outside a traditional industrial zone6

Figure 2

.  The 
table also assumes that for sites over 10 acres, one currently unoccupied site (Suntron) will be 
reoccupied, and that some infill will occur within existing larger sites.    on page 19 illustrates the 
percentage of firms expected to locate through infill, redevelopment, and intensification versus 
constructing facilities on buildable industrial land. 

                                                            
5 The Sportsman Airpark contains one large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 10.8 acres of buildable 

industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing the buildable industrial land into an industrial 
park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre category, even though it contains slightly over 10 acres of buildable 
land, because the approved master plan envisions further division, and the aviation related uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms 
rather than one large firm. 

6 At the hearings, there was a suggestion that winery uses might be able to locate on hilly land outside traditional industrial areas.  While there 
are winery uses in rural areas on larger acreages, this same rural type use does not necessarily translate to an urban site.  Urban winery 
sites typically are smaller acreages, which gives fewer options for siting the actual facilities on level land within the site.  They also have 
closer neighbors, which can lead to land use conflicts if sited outside industrial areas.  For example, Dundee has several wineries, and all of 
them are on level sites in industrial areas.  Newberg staff interviewed a user seeking to locate a winery within the Newberg UGB.  That 
interviewee indicated he was seeking a site surrounded by other light industrial uses that is not close to residential areas. He indicated a 
winery is quiet most of the year but can be very busy for 6-8 weeks during the grape harvest, when trucks may be arriving early and late. If 
the site were near a residential area, he was concerned about limiting their operating hours because of noise, lights, or traffic.  
Nevertheless, not all urban wineries follow this typical industrial pattern, and the infill and redevelopment allowance here could include an 
urban winery located on a site not having the industrial site suitability characteristics. 

Page 48



Page 19 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Figure 2:  Percent of industrial firms by location of industrial land 

 

However, even with these considerations, Newberg will still need 135 additional gross buildable acres of 
industrial land to meet 2032 needs (191 gross buildable acre need minus 56 gross buildable acre current 
supply = 135 gross buildable acres unmet need). 

Redesignation Possibilities for Land in the UGB 
One other option that must be considered is whether sites that already are in the UGB could be 
redesignated industrial to meet the employment needs.  If a site is well suited for industrial use, then it 
may be appropriate to redesignate that site industrial.  If that would require expand the UGB to add 
additional land in the other category, this may be appropriate if the site characteristics needed for land 
in the current plan classification are more flexible than industrial, such as single family residential land.  
This may not be possible if the site suitability characteristics of the current designation are similar to 
industrial, such as commercial land, or if there is some unique characteristic of the property that makes 
is especially suited for the current planned use.  This also would not be possible if the current property 
owner has some vesting in the current designation, such as an approved subdivision tentative plan, a 
development agreement, or site design review approval. 

This report considers whether there is any buildable land currently in the UGB that could be 
redesignated industrial.   This report first examines whether any land currently in the UGB meets the 
industrial site suitability characteristics established in Newberg’s Economic Opportunities Analysis.  The 
report then examines the potential for redesignating that land from its current designation to industrial. 

Specific Industrial Site Characteristics 
The impetus to create industrial site suitability criteria comes from OAR 660, Division 9 (Economic 
Development), from the following two sections: 

Through infill & 
redevelopment 

44% 

On buildable 
industrial land in 

UGB 
18% 

On land inside UGB 
redesignated 

industrial 
1% 

On land added to 
UGB 
37% 

Page 49



Page 20 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

OAR 660-009-0015 Economic Opportunities Analysis - (2) Identification of Required Site 
Types. The economic opportunities analysis must identify the number of sites by type 
reasonably expected to be needed to accommodate the expected employment growth 
based on the site characteristics typical of expected uses.   

OAR 660-009-025 Designation of Lands for Industrial and Other Employment Uses – (1) 
Identification of Needed Sites. The plan must identify the approximate number, acreage 
and site characteristics of sites needed to accommodate industrial and other 
employment uses to implement plan policies.   

It also comes from the Goal 14 Land Need factors, which state: 

In determining need, local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel size, 
topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need. 

Newberg’s Economic Opportunities Analysis includes all the background work of identifying land 
supply, land need, identification of needed sites (including necessary site characteristics), and 
assessment of community economic potential.  The next step for cities is to identify which land can 
best meet the needs identified in the EOA through the urban growth boundary amendment process.  
The urban growth boundary process is prescribed by OAR 660, Division 24 (Urban Growth 
Boundaries), which states in part that “If a local government has specified characteristics such as 
parcel size, topography, or proximity that are necessary for land to be suitable for an identified land 
need, the local government may limit its consideration to land that has the specified characteristics 
when it conducts the boundary location analysis…” (OAR 660-024-0060(5)).  Newberg has identified 
specific site characteristics in its EOA and thus is limiting its analysis to land with those 
characteristics. 

The revised Newberg EOA specifically identifies required industrial site characteristics.  These are shown 
in Table 6 below. 

  

Page 50



Page 21 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 6: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics 
Required Site 
Characteristic 

Description 

Site Size 

� Inventory to include a sufficient number of sites within each site category to 
meet identified needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 to 30 
buildable acres, and 30 to 50 buildable acres). 

� Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable 
land that contains at least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or 
smaller if adjacent to existing industrial district). 

Topography 

  Exclude: 

� Slopes of 10% or greater, 

� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable areas, 
and 

� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

Proximity 

  Include parcels or contiguous group of parcels: 

� Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the 
vicinity of the UGB that immediately could be added to the UGB. 

� Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 
buildable or industrially developed acres to create new industrial area. 

� That have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 
1/8 mile. 

Compatibility 

  Exclude sites that: 

� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter 
unless effective topographical buffers are present, such as a stream 
corridor, arterial street, state highway, rail line, or park.  

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential 
neighborhood to reach an arterial street or state highway.    

Source:  Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis, 2012 

This analysis inventoried existing sites within the UGB that may have these characteristics.  The analysis 
first looked for parcels or groups of parcels in close proximity with buildable land that contain at least 20 
buildable or industrially developed acres, or parcels adjacent to existing industrial districts.  This analysis 
yielded 12 groups of properties in various areas within the UGB.  Exact boundaries of these groups were 
not defined, as these boundaries could be refined for sites.  These 12 sites are shown on Map 2, and are 
designated with roman numerals I-XII.  The study then applies the site suitability criteria to these sites, 
considers the current designation for each site and any prior commitment, then determines whether 
redesignating that site to industrial would be a reasonable alternative. 

Public/Quasi-public site suitability characteristics 
The City and public facility needs identified in the comprehensive plan have siting requirements that 
vary depending on the specifics of the use.  For this application, the City is seeking to locate 
public/quasi-public land to site a water treatment plant.  This use is an industrial type use, and has site 

Page 51



Page 22 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

suitability characteristics that are similar to and compatible with industrial site suitability characteristics.  
In addition, a critical criterion is that the site has ready access to the Newberg’s water source.  
Newberg’s primary water source is a series of wells located south of the Willamette River.  The city has 
two transmission mains from this well field:  one on the old Highway 219 bridge near SP Newsprint, and 
under the Willamette River ending near Dog Ridge Road.  This second pipe is the long term transmission 
source, and the new plant must be readily accessible to this line.  

Analysis of sites within the UGB for redesignation as industrial 
Below is a detailed discussion of the application of the site suitability criteria to non-industrial sites in 
the UGB. 

Site I is at the intersection of North Valley Road and Chehalem Drive.  This area includes about 40 
buildable acres, including some 5-10 acre parcels.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area.  
The site is predominantly over 5% slope, with large areas over 10% slope.  The area is bisected by a 
stream corridor.  It abuts residential areas on more than 25 percent of its perimeter.  Truck traffic would 
need to travel through residential neighborhoods to reach the closest state highway or arterial:  
Highway 219. Thus, Site I is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site II is near the intersection of Hwy 219 and Bell Road.  This area includes approximately 25 buildable 
acres in non-contiguous parcels.  It is predominantly over 5% slope with much of the area over 10% 
slope.  Part of the site has access to Highway 219.  The site abuts residential areas on more than 25 
percent of its perimeter.  A portion of the site is owned by the North Valley Friends Church.  The Church 
has a development agreement with the City regarding development of a church and school on the 
property.7

Sites III, IV, and V are along Mountainview Drive and Crestview Drive.   These sites have an approved 
master plan and development agreement: the Springbrook Master Plan.  The master plan envisions a 
variety of uses including commercial, multi-family, and other residential uses for these areas.  The 
master plan does designate an employment area just south of Site IV that is included in the buildable 
industrial land inventory.  The sites have an approved subdivision plat for the entire acreage.  Thus Sites 
III, IV, and V could not reasonably accommodate industrial needs. 

  The remainder of the site is committed to non industrial use through its inclusion in the 
Northwest Newberg Specific Plan (1993), which plans for future residential uses on this site.  Thus, Site II 
is not suitable for redesignation as industrial.   

Site VI is between Zimri Drive and N. Springbrook Road.  While this area does include about 30 buildable 
acres, it is not adjacent to industrial or commercial areas.  It is adjacent to a resort hotel.  It lacks 
proximity to an arterial or state highway, and it abuts residential areas on more than 25 percent of its 
boundary.  Thus, Site VI is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site VII is on the north side of Highway 99W.  It does include nearly 40 buildable acres.  It is not adjacent 
to an industrial or commercial area.  It is across the street from Providence Newberg Medical Center.  It 
is adjacent to and can access Highway 99W at the Providence Drive intersection.  It abuts residential 

                                                            
7 Executed May 5, 2003.   

Page 52



Page 23 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

areas on more than 25 percent of its boundary.  There is an approved commercial/residential 
subdivision tentative plan on a part of the property.  Thus, Site IX is suitable for commercial employment 
and residential uses, and is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site VIII is along Providence Drive and is just south of Providence Medical Center, and west of the 
existing medical center.  It contains about 25 buildable acres.  The property west of the medical center is 
planned for expansion of the medical center.  The property to the south is planned for construction of 
medical office or medical service uses according to the adopted Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan.  This 
land would meet many of the community’s employment needs as the health care industry expands.  It 
does abut a residential neighborhood on more than 25 percent of its border.  There is one industrially 
zoned property adjacent.  Redesignating this parcel industrial would deplete the supply of needed 
commercial and office employment land, which is uniquely appropriate near Providence Medical Center.   
Thus, Site VIII is appropriate for health care type institutional uses, and is not suitable for redesignation 
as industrial. 

Site IX is located on both sides of Hayes Street at Springbrook Road.  The site includes approximately 8 
buildable acres; however, the site is bisected by the stream corridor, an area of steep slopes.  The site 
has access to Springbrook Road, a major arterial, and is within 1/8 mile of Highway 99W.  It has 
commercial uses on the north and west sides and an industrially designated parcel (but not used as 
industrial) on the south side.  However, the site is included within the adopted Springbrook Oaks Specific 
Plan area and is planned to accommodate commercial and multi-family uses.  Thus, while Site IX is 
suitable for the already planned for commercial and residential-professional uses envisioned in the 
Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan and should not be redesignated to industrial.   

Site X is along South Springbrook Road.   While the site does access South Springbrook Road, a major 
arterial, it also abuts residential areas along more than 25 percent of its boundary.  It abuts one 
industrial use to the south and one across South Springbrook Street; however, it also abuts 
manufactured dwelling parks across the street, and residential uses to the north.  The site is designated 
mostly High Density Residential and part Medium Density Residential.  The Ad Hoc Committee on 
Newberg’s Future and the Affordable Housing Committee both recommended this site be considered for 
High Density Residential uses.  Thus, Site X is appropriate for multi-family residential use, and is not 
suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site XI is along Adolf Road.   It includes about 7 total acres of property.  However, since the property is 
crossed by the Newberg-Dundee Bypass corridor, most of the property is not buildable.  The site could 
be suited to some interim industrial use, such as storage.  This actually would be more appropriate than 
constructing multi-family residential uses on the site under the current Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) designation, where residences would only be removed upon bypass construction.  If land across 
Adolf Road also is included in the UGB as industrial, this land could be part of group of more than 20 
buildable acres that is adjacent to an existing industrial area.   The site fronts Highway 219, though 
actual access is through Wilsonville Road/Highway 219.  The highway would act as a buffer from the 
manufactured housing park across the highway.  The total boundary with residential is less than 25%.   
Future access could be via a new frontage road to Highway 219, as envisioned in the South Industrial 

Page 53



Page 24 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Area Master Plan.  Thus, Site XI is appropriate for interim industrial use, provided additional land on 
Adolf Road is brought into the UGB and designated industrial.  These findings include redesignating this 
land to industrial.  

Site XII is along Waterfront Street.  This area is a part of Newberg’s Riverfront Master Plan.  It includes 
one residentially designated parcel crossed by the Newberg-Dundee bypass, and one former landfill site 
envisioned as a future park.  The site is more than a mile from a state highway or arterial street.   
Industrial access would have to go through existing residential neighborhoods.  Thus, Site XII is not 
suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Redesignation of Land Conclusion 
Two parcels in the UGB along Adolf Road should be redesignated industrial, provided additional land 
along Adolf Road is included in the UGB and designated industrial.  This would add approximately 1 
buildable acre of industrial land to the Newberg industrial land supply.  No other sites within the UGB 
meet the industrial site suitability characteristics and are suitable for redesignation as industrial.  The 
two parcels are currently designated as Medium Density Residential (MDR) in the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan.  Although there is currently a deficit of Medium Density Residential land to meet 
future needs, this redesignation is appropriate because of the following: 

� Although there is a deficit of residential land, there is also a deficit of industrial land, and this 
area is better suited to meet that need.  

� The two parcels are located in between two roads, one of them a major highway, that does not 
provide a welcoming environment for residential development.  In addition, if the land on the 
other side of Adolf Road is brought into the UGB with an industrial designation, the parcels 
would be between Highway 219 and industrial development.   

� It is far more difficult to find land that meets the industrial site suitability characteristics than 
that meets criteria for residential development.   As stated elsewhere in this report, the 
industrial site suitability criteria are quite specific and are not met except where noted. 

Land Needs That Only Can Be Met by UGB Expansion 
As shown in Table 7, Newberg has an unmet need for one 30- to 50-acre site, two 10- to 30-acre sites, 
56 acres of 2- to 10-acre sites, and 23 acres of sites under 2 acres in size. 

  

Page 54



Page 25 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Table 7:  Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032 

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Number 
of Sites -
2012 UGB

Buildable 
Acres -

2012
UGB

2032
Needed

Buildable 
Sites

2032
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres

2032
Deficit # 
of Sites

2032
Deficit 

Buildable 
Acres

<2 5  6  23  26  (18) (20) 
2 to 10 7  30  14  81  (7) (51) 
10 to 30 1  20  2  42  (1) (22) 
30 to 50 0  0  1  42  (1) (42) 
Total 13 56 40 191 (27) (135)

Source: Winterbrook Planning, City of Newberg 

This means Newberg will need to include 135 additional buildable industrial acres within the UGB.  In 
addition, there is a need for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type public/quasi-
public land beyond that already in the UGB, for a total need of 138 gross buildable acres.  One acre of 
this need can be met by redesignating land along Adolf Road as industrial.  The remaining land need 
must be met by expanding the UGB by 137 gross buildable industrial acres to include: 
1) A 30- to 50-acre site; 
2) A 10- to 30-acre site; and 
3) Industrial park sites totaling approximately 71 buildable acres. 
4) 3 buildable acres of industrial type Public/Quasi-Public land. 

 
Figure 3:  Meeting Buildable Industrial Land and PQ-WTP Needs through 2032 

 
Note:  Numbers are gross buildable acres.  

Buildable 
industrial land in 

UGB, 56 ac. 

Buildable land in 
UGB to be 

redesignated 
industrial, 1 ac. 

Buildable 
industrial land 
needed to be 

added to UGB, 
134 ac. 

Buildable PQ Land 
needed to be 

added to UGB for 
a water treatment 

plant, 3 ac. 

Page 55



Page 26 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 2: Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis 

Summary of Boundary Location Analysis Rules and Process 
Section 1 of these findings establishes the need to expand the Newberg UGB for industrial land, 
including industrial type public/quasi-public land, and established site characteristics that the industrial 
land needs to meet.  Findings in Section 2 will determine which land should be included in the UGB to 
meet that identified industrial land need. 

Three main statutes and rules govern the boundary location process: 

1. ORS 197.298 Priorities.  This statute states: 

§ 197.298  Priority of land to be included within urban growth boundary 

(1) In addition to any requirements established by rule addressing urbanization, land may not 
be included within an urban growth boundary except under the following priorities: 

(a) First priority is land that is designated urban reserve land under ORS 195.145 (Urban 
reserves), rule or metropolitan service district action plan. 

(b) If land under paragraph (a) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the amount 
of land needed, second priority is land adjacent to an urban growth boundary that is identified 
in an acknowledged comprehensive plan as an exception area or nonresource land. Second 
priority may include resource land that is completely surrounded by exception areas unless 
such resource land is high-value farmland as described in ORS 215.710. 

(c) If land under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, third priority is land designated as marginal land pursuant to ORS 
197.247 (1991 Edition).8

(d) If land under paragraphs (a) to (c) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, fourth priority is land designated in an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan for agriculture or forestry, or both. 

 

(2) Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

(3) Land of lower priority under subsection (1) of this section may be included in an urban 
growth boundary if land of higher priority is found to be inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land estimated in subsection (1) of this section for one or more of the following 
reasons: 

(a) Specific types of identified land needs cannot be reasonably accommodated on higher 
priority lands; 

                                                            
8 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, so this priority is not applicable. 

Page 56



Page 27 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(b) Future urban services could not reasonably be provided to the higher priority lands due to 
topographical or other physical constraints; or 

(c) Maximum efficiency of land uses within a proposed urban growth boundary requires 
inclusion of lower priority lands in order to include or to provide services to higher priority 
lands.  

2. Goal 14 Location Factors. Goal 14 establishes the following “location factors” governing UGB 
amendments: 

The location of the urban growth boundary and changes to the boundary shall be determined 
by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with ORS 197.298 and with 
consideration of the following factors: 

(1)  Efficient accommodation of identified land needs; 

(2)  Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 

(3)  Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and 

(4)  Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 
occurring on farm and forest land outside the urban growth boundary. 

 3. OAR Chapter 660, Division 024.  This rule further clarifies the UGB amendment process.  660-
024-0060 (1) states: 

Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis  

(1) When considering a UGB amendment, a local government must determine which land to 
add by evaluating alternative boundary locations. This determination must be consistent with 
the priority of land specified in ORS 197.298 and the boundary location factors of Goal 14, as 
follows:  

(a) Beginning with the highest priority of land available, a local government must determine 
which land in that priority is suitable to accommodate the need deficiency determined under 
OAR 660-024-0050.  

(b) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category exceeds the amount necessary 
to satisfy the need deficiency, a local government must apply the location factors of Goal 14 to 
choose which land in that priority to include in the UGB.  

(c) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category is not adequate to satisfy the 
identified need deficiency, a local government must determine which land in the next priority 
is suitable to accommodate the remaining need, and proceed using the same method specified 
in subsections (a) and (b) of this section until the land need is accommodated.  

Page 57



Page 28 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) to (c) of this section, a local government may consider land 
of lower priority as specified in ORS 197.298(3).  

(e) For purposes of this rule, the determination of suitable land to accommodate land needs 
must include consideration of any suitability characteristics specified under section (5) of this 
rule, as well as other provisions of law applicable in determining whether land is buildable or 
suitable.   

Put together, these statutes and rules provide that, after establishing a need to expand the UGB (See 
Section 1), a local government is to determine the location of the urban growth boundary using the 
following steps: 

1. Inventory land adjacent to and in the vicinity of the urban growth boundary that meets the site 
suitability characteristics identified in Section 1 and thus is suitable for the identified use.  

2. Determine whether any suitable land that meets the specified site characteristics exists within 
an urban reserve area.   

a. If there is no suitable land in the urban reserve, proceed to consideration of the next 
priority land. 

b. If there is some suitable land in the urban reserve, but this amount is less than or equal 
to the identified need, then include all the suitable urban reserve land into the UGB.  
Exclude land that cannot reasonably be served by public facilities and services.  Include 
non-urban reserve land where maximum efficiency requires including that land to 
include the urban reserve land.  Then proceed to consideration of the next priority land. 

c. If there is more suitable land in the urban reserve than needed to meet the identified 
need, then apply the Goal 14 Location Factors to determine which of the suitable urban 
reserve lands to include in the UGB.  Include those lands that best meet the location 
factors.  Again, exclude land that cannot be serviced, and include lower priority land 
where maximum efficiency requires it. 

3. If there is not sufficient suitable urban reserve land to meet the identified need, then determine 
whether any suitable land exists within adjacent rural exception areas.  Process the results 
similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.  

4.  If sufficient suitable rural exception land cannot be included in the UGB, then determine what 
suitable land exists within lower quality farm and forest resource land.9

                                                            
9 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, thus there is no third priority land. 

  Again, process the 
results similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.    

Page 58



Page 29 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

5. If sufficient suitable lower quality farm or forest land cannot be included in the UGB, then 
determine what suitable land exists within higher quality farm or forest resource land.  Again, 
process the results similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.   

This section follows the steps above to determine which lands to include in the urban growth boundary 
to meet the identified needs for industrial land. 

Inventory of Land Suitable for Industrial Use Adjacent to the UGB 

Study Area 
As stated earlier, the first part of the locational analysis is to inventory land adjacent to the UGB that 
meets the site characteristics determined in Section 1.  According to OAR 660-024-0060 (4): 

 In determining alternative land for evaluation under ORS 197.298, "land adjacent to the UGB" 
is not limited to those lots or parcels that abut the UGB, but also includes land in the vicinity of 
the UGB that has a reasonable potential to satisfy the identified need deficiency.  

This report used the land shown in Map 3 as the study area.  This study area coincides with the study 
area approved by the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s Future in 2004 for analyzing growth 
alternatives.  The study area includes about 10 square miles of rural land that potentially could 
accommodate Newberg’s Year 2032 industrial land needs.  Thus, the study area includes many times 
more land than needed to accommodate planned Year 2032 industrial growth.  The rationale for 
determining the boundaries of each study area is described in the committee’s Report to Newberg City 
Council – Recommendations for Newberg’s Future (pp. 21-24).  In general, the study area includes all 
land within ½ to ¾ mile of the UGB.  Thus, it includes many areas that may not be “adjacent to” the UGB.  
It includes all lands within the 1995 Newberg Urban Reserve that have not already been included in the 
UGB.  The study area excludes lands south of the Willamette River and on Ash Island.  Due to the 
locations within the floodplain and inaccessibility, these lands are not suitable for industrial use.  Map 3 
also shows whether land within the study area is an Urban Reserve Area, an Exception Area or Resource 
Land. 

Specific Industrial Site Characteristics  
As noted in Goal 14 itself: 

In determining need, local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel size, 
topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need. 

In addition, OAR 660-024-0060 (5) states 

(5) If a local government has specified characteristics such as parcel size, topography, or 
proximity that are necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need, the local 
government may limit its consideration to land that has the specified characteristics when it 
conducts the boundary location alternatives analysis and applies ORS 197.298. 

Page 59



Page 30 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis establishes site suitability characteristics for industrial 
lands.  These are shown in Table 6 on page 21.  The suitability characteristics cover four areas: 

� Site Size 
� Topography 
� Proximity 
� Compatibility 

Application of Site Characteristics to Inventory Suitable Lands  
The remainder of this section applies these industrial site characteristics to land within the study area to 
determine which sites have the required site characteristics. 

Site Size Criteria 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following industrial site size suitability criteria: 
 

� Inventory to include a sufficient number of sites within each site category to meet identified 
needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 to 30 buildable acres, and 30 to 50 
buildable acres). 

� Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable land that contains at 
least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or smaller if adjacent to existing industrial 
district). 

To address the site size suitability criteria, the study first inventoried buildable land10

Second, the study considered areas where groups of parcels group of parcels in close proximity with 
buildable land that contains at least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres could be found 
together.  This analysis yielded 21 groups of properties in various areas surrounding the UGB.  Exact 
boundaries of these groups were not defined, as these boundaries could be refined for sites generally 
meeting the suitability criteria.  These 21 sites are shown on Map 4. 

 in the study area.  
These are shown on Map 4.  The map categorizes parcels by amount of buildable land:  < 5 acres, 5 to 10 
acres, 10 to 30 acres, and 30+ acres.  This allows identification of areas that may be sufficient size to 
meet site needs for each size category.  As can be seen, this includes a very large number of properties 
in many areas surrounding the UGB, and most notably in the northwest and southeast. 

Of note, each of the areas with the 1995 Urban Reserve area was carefully considered.   Site 11 includes 
land in the Wynooski Road URA.  Site 12 is in the South Springbrook Road URA.  Site 18 includes land in 
the Klimek Lane URA.  Site 20 is located within the North Hills URA.   

  

                                                            
10This report uses the term “buildable land” to refer to land that could be developed over the planning period if included in the UGB and provided 

adequate public facilities and services.  For employment land, it includes “vacant land” as defined in OAR 660-000-0005 (14), and “developed 
land” as defined in OAR 660-000-0005 (1).  This should not be confused with the term “buildable land” in OAR 660-008-0005(2), because that 
rule specifically applies only to residential land.  For more information, see page 20. 

Page 60



Page 31 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Topography Criteria 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following topography suitability criteria: 

Exclude: 
� Slopes of 10% or greater, 
� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable areas, and 
� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

 
Map 5 depicts lands with slopes of 5% and 10% or greater, stream corridors and wetlands. 
 
Site 1 is predominantly over 5% slope, and much of the site is over 10% slope.  Thus, Site 1 does not 
meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 2, 3, 4 all contain large contiguous blocks of topographically suitable land and are carefully 
considered in the analysis to follow.  Sites 2, 3, and 4 meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 5, 6, 7, and 8 all contain small acreage rural residential parcels.  The slopes of these sites are all 
predominantly less than 5% slope.  They are bordered by stream corridors.  Sites 5, 6, 7, and 8 meet the 
topography criteria 
 
Site 9 is on a knoll that is predominantly over 5% slope, and contains slopes over 10%.  Thus, Site 9 does 
not meet the topography criteria.  
  
Site 10 is within the floodplain of the Willamette River. The site is predominantly over 5% slopes, and 
contains many areas of over 10% slope.  Thus, Site 10 does not meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 11 through 14 are all predominantly less than 5% slope outside stream corridors.  Thus Sites 11 
through 14 meets the topography criteria. 
 
Site 15 is predominantly less than 5% slope on the north side of Wilsonville Road.  The area on the south 
side of Wilsonville Road is predominantly over 10% slope.  Thus, only the north side of Site 15 meets the 
topography criteria. 
 
Sites 16 contains a mixture of slopes <5%, 5-10%, and >10%.  The site is not predominantly less than 5% 
slope.  Site 16 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 17 is on a hillside with slopes > 10%.  Site 17 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 18 is predominantly over 5% slope, and contains large areas > 10% slope.  It has stream corridors 
interspersed within the site.  Site 18 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 19 is predominantly >5% slope.  Thus, Site 19 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 20 is the North Hills URA.  This site is predominantly over 5% slope, and has many areas >10% slope.  
Thus, Site 20 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 21 is largely in land with over 10% slope, thus Site 21 does not meet the topography criteria. 

Page 61



Page 32 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Proximity 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following proximity suitability criteria: 

Include parcels or contiguous group of parcels: 

� Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the vicinity of the UGB that 
immediately could be added to the UGB. 

� Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 buildable or industrially 
developed acres to create new industrial area. 

� That have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 1/8 mile. 

 
Map 6 shows the location of each of the study sites, and assesses them according to the proximity 
criteria.   
 
Site 1 is contiguous to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  While the parcel does touch Highway 219, the topography is over 10% near that 
portion of the highway.  This exceeds the typical slope required by industrial uses for access.  Because of 
that, truck access would have to be to North Valley Road.  Via that route, it is over 1/8 mile to state 
highway.  Thus, Site 1 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 2 is 1/3 to ¾ miles from the UGB, and there is intervening farm land.  Thus, it could not be 
immediately added to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  Truck traffic would have to travel about a mile to reach the nearest major road:  
Highway 219.  Thus, Site 2 does not meet the UGB proximity and transportation proximity criteria. 
 
Site 3 is contiguous to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  However, it is about ¾ mile to the nearest major arterial or state highway.  Thus, 
Site 3 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 4 also is contiguous to the UGB.  It does have close access to Highway 240.  It is over 100 acres, so a 
new industrial district theoretically could be created in that area.  If access were taken through Old 
Yamhill Highway to Highway 240, it would have access with 1/8 mile.  Thus, Site 4 meets the proximity 
criteria if access is taken to Highway 240 via Old Yamhill Highway. 
 
Site 5 is 1/3 to 2/3 mile from the UGB, and thus is not adjacent to the UGB, and could not be part of a 
group of parcels that could immediately be added to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or 
commercial area, and there is not enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial 
district.   It does have close access to Highway 240.  Thus, Site 5 does not meet the UGB proximity and 
industrial/commercial proximity criteria. 
 
Site 6 is adjacent to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, and there is not 
enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial district.  It has access to Highway 
240.  Thus, site 6 does not meet industrial/commercial proximity criterion.  
 

Page 62



Page 33 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 7 is adjacent to the UGB, though it is separated by a stream corridor, and extension of utilities 
would be very problematic.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, and there is not 
enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial district.  It does not have access to 
a state highway or major arterial within 1/8 mile.  Thus, site 7 does not meet the industrial/commercial 
proximity or transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 8 is 1/3 to 3/4 miles from the UGB, and thus is not adjacent to the UGB.  The area is separated from 
the UGB by the Chehalem Creek Canyon, which would make extension of facilities to the site very 
problematic.  For example, previous studies showed that two miles of wastewater lines and a new 
wastewater pump station, or a new wastewater treatment plant would be needed to serve this area.  
Thus, it could not reasonably be added to the UGB in conjunction with adjoining properties.  There are 
three small non-contiguous parcels in the area with county industrial zoning. It does have close access to 
Highway 99W, though access restrictions along that stretch of highway may prevent access directly to 
the highway.   The future connection to the bypass between Newberg and Dundee might provide access 
from Highway 219.   Thus, Site 8 does not meet the UGB proximity criterion. 
 
Site 9 is adjacent to the UGB, although it is separated from the urbanizable area by a stream corridor, 
which would make serving the site with utilities very difficult.  It is not adjacent to industrial or 
commercial areas, and does not contain 100 acres to create a new industrial district.  While it is adjacent 
to Highway 99W, actual access is restricted due to an intervening rail line.  The only other access is 
Dayton Avenue, which is not an arterial, and has access issues on both ends.  Thus, site 9 does not meet 
the industrial/commercial proximity or transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 10 is adjacent to the UGB, but is separated from the urbanizable area by a stream corridor, which 
would make serving the area with utilities very difficult.  The site contains over 100 acres, which in 
theory would allow creation of a new industrial district.  It does not have access to a state highway or 
major arterial within 1/8 mile.  Thus, Sites 10 does not meet the transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 11 is adjacent to the Newberg UGB.  The site is adjacent to the existing industrial areas in south 
Newberg, and thus would benefit greatly from the synergy, short travel times, and compatibility with 
these areas.  It abuts and has access to Highway 219.  Thus, Site 11 meets the proximity criteria. 
 
Site 12 is adjacent to the Newberg UGB.  It touches on industrial property.  It is close to Springbrook 
Road, a major arterial.  Access could be created within 1/8 mile.  Thus, Site 12 meets the proximity 
criteria. 
 
Site 13 is not adjacent to the UGB.  Farm land intervenes, so it is not a part of an area that could be 
immediately added to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to any existing industrial or commercial areas.  It does 
not contain 100 acres unless land on the north side of Wilsonville Road (Site 14) also is included as an 
industrial district.  It does have access to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Thus, Site 13 does not meet 
the UGB proximity criterion.   
 
Site 14 is technically adjacent to the UGB along the northern boundary, and practically within about 1/8 
mile of the UGB to the west.  Properties to the west across Springbrook Creek are within the urban 
reserve area.  The site contains over 100 acres to allow creation of a new industrial district.  It has access 
to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Thus, Site 14 meets the proximity criteria. 
 

Page 63



Page 34 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 15 is not adjacent to UGB.  Intervening land is farm land, so it is not part of an area that could 
immediately be added to the UGB.  The site has over 100 buildable acres to allow creation of a new 
industrial district.  It abuts and has access to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial. Thus, Site 15 does not 
meet the UGB proximity criteria. 
 
Site 16 is contiguous to the UGB.  The site has over 100 buildable acres theoretically to allow creation of 
a new industrial district.  However, it is not adjacent or close to a major arterial or state highway.  Thus, 
Site 16 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 17 is generally about 1/5 to 1 mile from the UGB, with farm land intervening.  It is not near existing 
industrial or commercial areas.  It does contain over 100 acres, though much of that land is over 10% 
slope.  While it does front Highway 99W, access to the highway is either restricted or very problematic 
because of the slope of Rex Hill.  Thus, Site 17 does not meet the proximity criterion. 
 
Site 18 is close to the UGB (less than 1/8 mile).  It may technically be possible to assemble enough 
adjacent land to include the property in the UGB, though access to the site is a major issue.  The site is 
not adjacent to any existing Newberg industrial areas, and is across the highway from a commercial 
area.  The site abuts Highway 99W, though the only current access is at Corral Creek Road and Veritas 
Lane. Neither of these accesses is suitable for industrial traffic.  Thus, Site 18 does not meet the 
transportation proximity criterion.  
 
Site 19 is adjacent to the UGB.  It is adjacent to a commercial area.  It is close to Highway 99W, though 
actual access would need to be from the Providence Drive/Crestview Drive intersection, with travel over 
1/3 mile through a commercial/residential area. Site 19 does not meet the transportation proximity 
criterion. 
 
Site 20 is within the Newberg urban reserve area, and is close enough to the UGB that an assembly of 
parcels could be added.  The site is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, but does contain 
over 100 acres to theoretically allow creation of a new industrial district.  The site is not near a state 
highway or arterial.  Thus, Site 20 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion. 
 
Site 21 almost touches the UGB at one point, but is generally ¾ mile distant.  It is not adjacent to existing 
industrial areas or commercial areas; assembling 100 acres to create a new industrial district would be 
very difficult.  The site does not have any close access to an arterial or state highway.  Thus, Site 21 does 
not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   

Compatibility 
As noted in ORS 197.712(2)(d): “Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for 
compatible uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses.” The Newberg EOA 
establishes the following compatibility criteria: 

Exclude sites that: 

� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter unless effective 
topographical buffers are present, such as a stream corridor, arterial street, state highway, rail 
line, or park.  

Page 64



Page 35 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential neighborhood to reach an 
arterial street or state highway. 

This study investigated each identified site to determine whether it met the compatibility criteria.  The 
results also are shown on Map 7. 

Site 1 is adjacent to urban residential on its south side.   The truck access would be to North Valley Road.   
The nearest arterial or state highway is College Street (Highway 219).  Truck travel on North Valley Road 
would travel adjacent to residential areas to reach College Street.  Thus, Site 1 does not meet the truck 
travel compatibility criterion. 

Site 2 is largely separated from residential areas.  However, truck traffic would have to travel through 
residential areas, such as those along North Valley Road to reach College Street (Highway 219), or those 
along Chehalem Drive to reach Highway 240.   Thus, Site 2 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 3 abuts urban residential areas to the east and somewhat to the south.  The overall boundary is 
over 25%.  However, truck traffic would have to travel through residential areas along Chehalem Drive 
to reach the closest major road: Highway 240.  Thus, Site 3 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 4 abuts residential neighborhoods along the entire east and south side of the area.  Truck traffic 
would pass through residential neighborhoods on Old Yamhill Highway (a local street) or Chehalem 
Drive to reach Highway 240, the nearest major road.   Thus, Site 4 does not meet the compatibility 
criteria.   

Sites 5 and 6 abut residential neighborhoods on all sides.  There is a stream corridor buffer on the south 
and a highway buffer on the north, but the overall boundary still exceeds 25%.  Both areas have access 
to Highway 240.  Thus, Sites 5 and 6 fail to meet the residential separation criterion.  

The majority of Site 7 is developed with rural residential.  While there are stream corridors on the north 
and south side, it still would not be possible to establish an industrial area with a residential boundary of 
less than 25%.  Truck travel would have to go through residential areas on Sunnycrest Road to reach 
Highway 99W, the nearest major road.  Thus, Site 7 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 8 is unbuffered from rural residential development to the north and west.  The area abuts Highway 
99W, but actual truck access may be restricted and may need to travel adjacent to a residential area. 
Site 8 does not meet the residential separation criterion. 

Site 9 abuts Highway 99W on the north, a stream corridor on the east, a residential area on the south, 
and rural residential land on the west.  A hillside splits this area.  It may theoretically be possible to 
establish an industrial area with less than 25% boundary with residential areas.  However, access to the 
nearest major road, Highway 99W, is restricted due to a rail line and access controls.  Thus, industrial 
development in this area would result in truck traffic on Dayton Avenue, which is largely residential.  
Thus, Site 9 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criteria. 

Page 65



Page 36 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 10 is agricultural land.   It is bounded by the Willamette River on the south, Chehalem Creek on the 
west, a stream corridor and the future Newberg-Dundee bypass on the north, and farm land on the 
west.  However, the only access would be through residential areas in Dundee.  Thus, Site 10 does not 
meet the truck travel compatibility criteria. 

Site 11 has excellent stream corridor buffers on both the east and west side.  It abuts industrial land on 
the northwest side.  It has a limited border with agricultural land on the south that is owned by the 
Chehalem Parks and Recreation District.  Thus, it meets the residential separation compatibility 
criterion.  Truck traffic could access Highway 219 and connect to I-5 or the Portland area without 
traveling through residential areas.  Thus, Site 11 meets the compatibility criteria. 

Site 12 abuts residential land on the west, and is across the street from residential on the north.   Thus, 
the site has abuts residential on more than 25% of its perimeter.  Truck travel would be to Fernwood 
Road, adjacent to residential areas, or across properties to Springbrook Road, again through residential 
areas. Thus Site 12 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Much of Site 13 is developed with rural residential.  It does have an arterial street to the north, farm 
land to the east, and a stream corridor to the south.  It may be possible to create an industrial area with 
less than 25% of the border adjacent to residential.  Truck travel could be on Wilsonville Road, an 
arterial street, though it would still be adjacent to a residential area.   Thus, Site 13 meets the 
compatibility criteria. 

Site 14 has stream corridor buffers on the north and west side, and farm land on the east side.  It is 
across the street from a rural residential area on the south, but this is across Wilsonville Road, a minor 
arterial.  Thus, the site meets the residential separation criterion.  Truck traffic could access Wilsonville 
Road, and reach Highway 219 and connect to I-5 or the Portland area.  Thus, Site 14 meets the 
compatibility criteria. 

Site 15 has a small stream corridor buffer on the north side.  It abuts agricultural land across the street 
on the east side, and along the south side.  With some enhancements, these could make effective 
buffers.  Truck traffic would be to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Site 15 meets the compatibility 
criteria. 

Site 16 has some topographic features that could serve as buffers.  The Chehalem Glenn Golf Course and 
a hillside are on the west side.  Hills are along the east side across Corral Creek Road, though these 
include residential neighborhoods (Site 17).  A small stream is on the south side.  A hill separates sites 16 
and 18.  However, all truck travel would be directed to Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through 
residential areas to reach either Springbrook Road or Highway 219.   Thus, Site 16 does not meet the 
truck travel compatibility standard. 

Site 17 is on the hill east of sites 16 and 18.  It is within an agricultural/forest small holding area.  All 
truck travel would be directed to Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through residential areas to 
reach either Springbrook Road or Highway 219.   Thus, Site 17 does not meet the truck travel 
compatibility criterion.   

Page 66



Page 37 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 18 has good buffers from residential areas.  However, all truck travel would be directed to 
Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through residential areas to reach either Springbrook Road or 
Highway 219.   Thus, Site 18 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion.  

Site 19 is in the middle of a residential area without adequate buffers.  All truck travel would be directed 
to Highway 99W, and would have to pass adjacent to residential areas to reach the highway.   Thus, Site 
19 does not meet the compatibility criteria.   

Site 20 borders an urban residential area on the south.  It is within an agricultural/forest small holding 
area.  All truck traffic would have to travel through residential areas to reach the nearest arterial street, 
Mountainview Drive.  Thus, Site 20 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion. 

Site 21 is in the middle of an agricultural small holding area with many residences.  All truck traffic would 
have to travel through or adjacent to residential areas to reach an arterial or state highway.  Thus, Sites 
21 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion. 

Summary of Industrial Site Suitability Analysis 
Table 8 on page 38 summarizes the industrial site suitability analysis. The symbols are interpreted as 
follows: 

� means site meets the criteria in the column. 

� means site could meet the criteria under some conditions or mitigation. 

� means the site does not meet the criteria in the column. 

Page 67



Pa
ge

 3
8 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Ta
bl

e 
8:

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 In
du

st
ri

al
 S

it
e 

Su
it

ab
ili

ty
 A

na
ly

si
s 

Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
:  

N
or

th
 

V
al

le
y 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

��
 M

os
t o

f s
ite

 >
5%

 s
lo

pe
, 

w
ith

 la
rg

e 
ar

ea
s 

>1
0%

 s
lo

pe
 
��

 A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B.
  S

ite
 >

 1
00

 
ac

re
s.

  N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al
 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  

��
 N

o 

#2
:  

N
or

th
 

V
al

le
y 

Rd
. 

/T
an

ge
n 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
  

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 >

 1
00

 a
cr

es
.  

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 

m
ile

 o
f s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  
 

��
 N

o 

#3
: C

he
ha

le
m

 
D

r.
 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 >
 1

00
 

ac
re

s.
  N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r 
ar

te
ri

al
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

ea
st

 a
nd

 s
om

e 
to

 s
ou

th
. 

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  
 

��
 N

o 

#4
: C

he
ha

le
m

 
D

r.
/C

ul
le

n 
Ln

. 
��

 Si
te

 >
 1

00
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 >
 1

00
 

ac
re

s.
  C

ou
ld

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 

of
 H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
 if

 a
cc

es
s 

vi
a 

O
ld

 
Ya

m
hi

ll 
H

ig
hw

ay
  

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 r

ur
al

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

w
es

t a
nd

 s
ou

th
 

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
.  

W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ar
ea

s.
   

 
 

��
 N

o 

Page 68



Pa
ge

 3
9 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#5
: H

ig
hw

ay
 

24
0 

W
es

t 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 
m

ak
e 

it 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
to

 
as

se
m

bl
e 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
pa

rc
el

s 
w

ith
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 
la

nd
 a

nd
 >

20
 a

cr
es

 
to

ta
l.   

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

  
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 
 

��
 S

ur
ro

un
de

d 
by

 r
ur

al
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

 

��
 N

o 

#6
: H

on
ey

 L
n.

 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 
m

ak
e 

it 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
to

 
as

se
m

bl
e 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
pa

rc
el

s 
w

ith
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 
la

nd
 a

nd
 >

20
 a

cr
es

 
to

ta
l.   

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
U

G
B 

an
d 

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f H
ig

hw
ay

 2
40

.  
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
, s

ou
th

 a
nd

 
w

es
t.

 

��
 N

o 

#7
: S

un
ny

cr
es

t 
Rd

. 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 

m
ak

e 
it 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

to
 

as
se

m
bl

e 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 >
20

 a
cr

es
 

to
ta

l.  

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 o
ut

si
de

 s
tr

ea
m

 
co

rr
id

or
 

��
 N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f s

ta
te

 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

.  
N

ot
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 

��
 Si

te
 is

 w
ith

in
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 

ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a.

  W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ar
ea

s.
   

 

��
 N

o 

Page 69



Pa
ge

 4
0 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#8
: F

ox
 F

ar
m

 
Rd

. 
��

 G
ro

up
 o

f p
ar

ce
ls

 

w
ith

 a
bo

ut
 8

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

.  
Co

nt
ai

ns
 s

om
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 >
 1

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

  
A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
, 

ho
w

ev
er

 d
ir

ec
t h

ig
hw

ay
 a

cc
es

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
O

D
O

T.
 

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

Co
un

ty
 in

du
st

ri
al

 
ar

ea
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 r

ur
al

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t 

 

��
 N

o 

#9
: D

ay
to

n 
A

ve
. N

or
th

 
��

 G
ro

up
 o

f 

bu
ild

ab
le

 p
ar

ce
ls

 w
ith

 
> 

20
 a

cr
es

.  
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 >
5%

 a
nd

 >
10

%
 

sl
op

es
 

��
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
ar

ea
 is

 c
lo

se
 to

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
, t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
di

re
ct

 
ac

ce
ss

, s
o 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

m
aj

or
 

ar
te

ri
al

 a
cc

es
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
th

an
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

in
du

st
ri

al
 o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 

no
 g

ro
up

 o
f p

ar
ce

ls
 w

ith
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 la
nd

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

10
0 

ac
re

s 
to

ta
l  

(c
om

m
er

ci
al

/i
nd

us
tr

ia
l a

re
a 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 r

ai
l l

in
e)

.  
 

� �
 It

 m
ay

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
in

du
st

ri
al

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 

bu
ff

er
s 

fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l. 

 
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
. 

 

��
 N

o 

#1
0:

 
Ri

ve
rf

ro
nt

 
W

es
t 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

��
 M

uc
h 

of
 s

ite
 h

as
 s

lo
pe

s 

ov
er

 1
0%

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B 

bu
t 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

st
re

am
 

co
rr

id
or

. S
ite

 >
 1

00
 a

cr
es

.  
N

o 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

��
  B

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

ar
ea

s 
by

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
or

ri
do

rs
.  

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 in
 

D
un

de
e.

 

��
 N

o 

#1
1:

 H
ig

hw
ay

 
21

9/
W

yn
oo

sk
i 
��

 Si
te

 c
on

ta
in

s 
> 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 1
0-

30
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 5

-1
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
. 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 is
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  

A
bu

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
ig

hw
ay

 
21

9.
   

 

��
  B

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 r
ur

al
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l b

y 
st

re
am

 
co

rr
id

or
s.

 

��
 Y

es
 

Page 70



Pa
ge

 4
1 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
2:

  S
. S

pr
in

g-
br

oo
k 

U
RA

 
��

 Si
te

 c
on

ta
in

s 
ab

ou
t 2

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 
an

d 
to

uc
he

s 
on

e 
in

du
st

ri
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 
to

uc
he

s 
on

e 
in

du
st

ri
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
  

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

pr
in

gb
ro

ok
 R

oa
d 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

w
es

t.
  W

ou
ld

 re
qu

ir
e 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 to

 r
ea

ch
 

ar
te

ri
al

. 

��
 N

o 

#1
3:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
So

ut
h 

��
 S

ite
 c

on
ta

in
s 

ab
ou

t 6
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 
ac

re
s 

w
ith

 2
 p

ar
ce

ls
 o

f 
ab

ou
t 1

0 
ac

re
s.

 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 o
ut

si
de

 s
tr

ea
m

 
co

rr
id

or
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 

pa
rt

 o
f a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B.
  

N
ea

rb
y 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 

la
nd

 h
av

e 
< 

10
0 

ac
re

s.
  I

f S
ite

 
#1

4 
is

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
, c

om
bi

ne
d 

ar
ea

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

> 
10

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 
fo

r n
ew

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
w

es
t s

id
e 

– 
bo

un
da

ry
 is

 <
 2

5%
.  

W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a 

on
ly

 o
n 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t.

 

��
 N

o 

#1
4:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
N

or
th

w
es

t 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 a

nd
 

10
-3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 h
as

 >
 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 fo

r n
ew

 
in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  A

bu
ts

 a
nd

 h
as

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 (m
in

or
 

ar
te

ri
al

). 
  

��
  S

tr
ea

m
 c

or
ri

do
rs

 o
n 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t s

id
e 

Ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 R

oa
d,

 a
nd

 a
lo

ng
 

w
es

t s
id

e.
  W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a 
on

ly
 o

n 
ar

te
ri

al
 s

tr
ee

t.
 

��
 Y

es
 

Page 71



Pa
ge

 4
2 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
5:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
N

or
th

ea
st

 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 a

nd
 

10
-3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 A

re
a 

no
rt

h 
of

 W
ils

on
vi

lle
 

Rd
. i

s 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 <

 5
%

 
sl

op
e;

 a
re

a 
so

ut
h 

of
 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 R

d.
 is

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
.  

� �
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 h

as
 >

 1
00

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

   
A

bu
ts

 
an

d 
ha

s 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
(m

in
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l).
   

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
pa

rt
 o

f w
es

t 
si

de
 –

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
is

 <
 2

5%
.  

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l a
re

a 
on

ly
 o

n 
ar

te
ri

al
 s

tr
ee

t.
 

��
 N

o 

#1
6:

 C
or

ra
l 

Cr
ee

k 
Rd

. 
So

ut
h 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 1

0-
30

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 a
nd

 5
-

10
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f <

5%
 

sl
op

es
, 5

-1
0%

 s
lo

pe
s,

 a
nd

 
st

ee
pe

r 
sl

op
es

. 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 S
ite

 h
as

 >
 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 fo

r n
ew

 
in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  N

o 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t o

r 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#1
7:

 P
ar

re
tt

 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 3

0+
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 1

0-
30

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 a
nd

 5
-

10
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Sl

op
es

 o
ve

r 
10

%
 d

o 
no

t 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

in
du

st
ri

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 h

as
 >

 1
00

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

 
N

o 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t 

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

 

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#1
8:

 C
or

ra
l 

Cr
ee

k 
Rd

. 
N

or
th

 

��
 Si

te
 h

as
 a

bo
ut

 6
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.  

H
as

 
so

m
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 
ab

ou
t 1

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s.
 

� �
 M

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
 is

 >
 5

%
 

sl
op

e,
 w

ith
 la

rg
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 
sl

op
e 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 
M

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ss

em
bl

e 
10

0 
ac

re
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
la

nd
 o

n 
hi

lls
id

es
 e

as
t o

f 
Co

rr
al

 C
re

ek
 R

d.
  C

or
ra

l C
re

ek
 

Rd
. a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
ig

hw
ay

 9
9W

 n
ot

 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
tr

uc
k 

tr
af

fic
.  

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 to
 

re
ac

h 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l. 
  

 

��
 N

o 

Page 72



Pa
ge

 4
3 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
9:

 B
en

ja
m

in
 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 2
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 
ac

re
s.
 

��
 La

rg
e 

pa
rt

 o
f s

ite
 is

 >
 5

%
 

sl
op

e,
 w

ith
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t o
r 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
Si

te
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

re
a 
 

� �
 In

 th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

of
 ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a 

w
ith

 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
uf

fe
rs

. 
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  
  

� �
 N

o 

#2
0:

 N
or

th
 

H
ill

s 
U

RA
 

��
 Si

te
 >

 2
0 

ac
re

s.
  

In
cl

ud
es

 s
ite

s 
w

ith
 1

0-
30

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

. 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 

>5
%

 a
nd

 >
10

%
 s

lo
pe

s 
��

 A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B.
   

M
ay

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ss
em

bl
e 

10
0 

ac
re

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t b

y 
as

se
m

bl
in

g 
no

n-
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

  N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t o

r 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

��
 A

bu
ts

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
on

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e.

   
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#2
1:

 B
el

l R
d.

 
��

 Si
te

 >
 2

0 
ac

re
s.

  
In

cl
ud

es
 s

ite
s 

w
ith

 1
0-

30
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.  

��
 Sl

op
es

 o
ve

r 
10

%
 d

o 
no

t 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

in
du

st
ri

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
 

��
 Ex

ce
pt

 o
n 

w
es

t s
id

e,
 a

re
a 

is
 

no
t a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 
M

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ss

em
bl

e 
10

0 
ac

re
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
y 

as
se

m
bl

in
g 

no
n-

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
   

N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t 
or

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

��
 In

 th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

of
 ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a 

w
ith

 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
uf

fe
rs

.  
W

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ir

e 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ar

ea
s 

��
 N

o 

 

Page 73



Page 44 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Suitable Land Conclusion 
Site 11, the Highway 219/Wynooski site, has all the industrial site suitability characteristics and thus is 
suitable for industrial use. 

Site 14, the Wilsonville Road Northwest site, also meets the site suitability characteristics. 

No other sites within the study area meet the industrial site suitability criteria. 

Thus, Site 11 and Site 14 are then the only sites that are advanced to the boundary location analysis. 

Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis 
After determining which adjacent sites are suitable for industrial land, the next step is to select which 
land in those sites to include in the UGB.  In order to do this, local governments must determine the ORS 
197.298 priority of each suitable site, and designate land according to those priorities.  When a priority 
class is reached and there is more land in that priority class than is needed to meet the projected needs, 
then the local government applies the Goal 14 locational factors to determine which land in that priority 
to include in UGB. 

As noted, only two sites meet the industrial site suitability criteria:  Sites 11 and 14.  A more detailed 
view of these sites is on Map 8.  These sites are made up of a combination of first, second, and fourth 
priority sites.  The fourth priority agricultural sites consist of lower and higher priority sites also. See 
Map 9.  Thus, various parts of these sites must be considered differently according to the priorities.  For 
ease of analysis, these sites have been further divided into subsites numbered Site 11.1 through 11.9, 
and Site 14.1 through 14.3.  These are shown on Map 10. 

First Priority Urban Reserve Area Sites  
Newberg designated urban reserves in 1995.  Several of these urban reserves have since been included 
in the urban growth boundary.  One parcel in the Wynooski Road Urban Reserve was included as 
industrial land – the remaining were added to meet residential, commercial, or institutional needs.   

Sites 11.2 and 11.3 are within the urban reserve area.  These consist of four parcels on Wynooski Road 
(Tax lots 3229-400 & 500, 3228-1200 & 1700). 

Site 11.2 along with Site 11.1 is the anticipated site of the future water treatment plant.  A water line 
under the Willamette River has been extended near this area in anticipation of the relocation of the 
water plant to these parcels.  The two sites contain 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, Site 11.2 should be 
included in the UGB and designated Public/Quasi-Public.  This should be considered in conjunction with 
Site 11.1. 

Site 11.3 includes a solid waste transfer facility.  It includes 3 gross buildable acres.  Including it in the 
UGB would facilitate connecting the site to municipal sewer and water, which would be useful to some 
of the operations.  Sites 11.3 should be included in the UGB. 

No parcels in Site 14 are within the urban reserve area. 

Page 74



Page 45 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The four parcels in Sites 11.2 and 11.3 total 47 total acres.  However, they include only 6 gross buildable 
acres, as the sites are largely in the stream corridor or in industrial use.  Thus the total industrial and 
public/quasi-public land needs are far from being met on these sites.  Thus, Newberg must look to 
second priority rural exception sites.  

Second Priority Rural Exception Areas Sites  
Site 11.1, 11.9, and 14.1 are rural exception sites.   

Site 11.1 consists of three parcels on Wynooski Road (Tax Lots 3229-202 (part), 600 & 2200).  These are 
part of the anticipated future water treatment plant site, and thus are suited for Public/Quasi-Public 
designation.  This site along with Site 11.2 contains 3 gross buildable acres.  Site 11.1 should be included 
in the UGB and designated Public/Quasi-Public.  

Site 11.9 and Site 14.1 are along Wilsonville Road near the Springbrook Creek crossing.  Neither of sites 
independently contain 20 acres for industrial uses – they only should be included if adjacent parcels also 
are included as industrial.  Otherwise, they would fail to meet the industrial district size suitability 
characteristic.  Site 11.9 (Tax lots 3221-5200 & 5300 on the west side of the creek) contains 5 total acres, 
but only 1 gross buildable acre.  Site 11.9 should be included in the UGB only if adjoining properties in 
Site 11.8 also is included in the UGB.  Site 14.1 (Tax lot 3221-4900, 4901 & 5100 on the east side of the 
creek) contains 9 total acres, but only 1 gross buildable acre.   Site 14.1 should be included in the UGB 
only if Site 14.2 also is included in the UGB.   

Even if all these sites were included in the UGB, they do not come close to meeting future industrial land 
needs.  Thus, Newberg must look toward lower priority lands. 

Third Priority Marginal Land 
No marginal land exists in Yamhill County, thus no third priority land exists. 

Fourth Priority Agricultural Land   
The remaining parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 are designated agricultural.  According to ORS 197.298(2): 

Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

Thus, the remaining parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 are to be compared according to their soil types.  Map 
9 shows the soil classification in these sites.  Both of these sites are comprised primarily of Class II soils.  
Each has Class III – VI soils, primarily located within stream corridors.  Sites 11.6 and 14.2 contain some 
Class I soils.  Therefore, these two subsites should receive lower priority (See Map 10).  The remaining 
subsites have similar enough soil characteristics that they can be considered the same priority.  These 
sites are 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.811

                                                            
11 Site 11.8 contains approximately 1 acre in Class I soils, a portion of which is under two buildings. If Site 11.8 is included, the small area of Class 

I soil should be included under the “maximum efficiency” exception under ORS 197.298 (3)(b). 

, and 14.3.  These sites consist of 16 parcels containing approximately 
166 gross buildable acres (269 total acres).  This exceeds the total need for industrial land for the 20-

Page 75



Page 46 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

year planning period through 2032.  Thus, the decision on which of these sites to include in the UGB 
(Sites 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.8 and/or 14.3) depends on the Goal 14 Location Factor Analysis below. 

Goal 14 Location Factor Analysis 
The decision on which suitable sites of the same priority class (Sites 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.8 and/or 14.3) 
should be included in the UGB is determined using the Goal 14 Location Factors.   The four Goal 14 
location factors are: 

(1) Efficient accommodation of identified land needs;  

(2) Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 

 (3) Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and  

(4) Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 
occurring on farm and forest land outside the UGB. 

The local government is to evaluate alternative boundary locations of properties in the same priority 
class, and determine which boundary alternative best meets the factors listed.   

OAR 660-024-0060 (3) states: 

(3) The boundary location factors of Goal 14 are not independent criteria. When the factors 
are applied to compare alternative boundary locations and to determine the UGB location, a 
local government must show that all the factors were considered and balanced.  

Thus the factors are not criteria that are either met or not met:  they are comparative factors to 
determine which alternative best meets the factors.  They must be considered together, and no one 
factor may be given decisive weight without considering the others.   Also note that they are used only 
to determine which suitable land of a particular priority should be included in the UGB.  Thus, lower 
priority land cannot be included even though it may better meet the factors, and higher priority land 
need not be included if it is not suitable.  Finally, note that the factors have a significant amount of 
overlap.  For example, the cost of providing services to an area is directly an element of Factor 2 
(economic provision of services), but also an element of Factor 1 (efficient accommodation of land 
needs), and Factor 3 (economic consequences).   This is simply a matter of how the factors are written, 
and there is no indication in the rule that such elements should not be included in each factor. 

Boundary Alternatives 

The agricultural parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 were compared and arranged in three alternative 
Boundary Locations.  All three boundary alternative assume that land along Adolf Road already in the 
UGB is changed to industrial, and that Site 11.1, 11.2  are included and designated Public/Quasi-Public, 
and that Site 11.3 is included and designated industrial.  The boundary alternatives are shown on Map 
11. 

Boundary Alternative A:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB along Wilsonville Road for 
industrial uses.  This alternative includes sites 11.8, 11.9, 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3.  Site 14.2 includes some 

Page 76



Page 47 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Class I soils, so this would be included under the “maximum efficiency” exception under ORS 197.298 
(3)(b). 

Boundary Alternative B:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB along Highway 219 and Adolf 
Road for industrial uses.  This alternative includes sites 11.4, 11.7, 11.8, and 11.9.  

Boundary Alternative C:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB south on Highway 219 for 
industrial uses, and not include properties on the east side of Adolf Road.  This alternative includes sites 
11.4, 11.5, and 11.7.  Site 11.6 would be excluded, since it includes some Class I soils. 

As shown in Table 9 below, all three alternatives contain between 125 and 128 gross buildable acres.  All 
options would meet all but about 2-5 acres of the remaining buildable industrial land needs through 
2032. 

Table 9:  Buildable Acres in Boundary Alternatives 
 Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 

Buildable Acres 128 125 126 
10-30 ac. sites 2 2 2 
30-50 ac. sites 2 2 2 

 

Location Factor 1: Efficient accommodation of identified land needs 

Boundary Alternative B would accommodate industrial land needs very efficiently.  It is adjacent to the 
Newberg UGB.  It contains level land within mostly large parcels.  It contains adequate land to meet all 
the 2032 large site industrial land needs.  It includes a few rural home sites, an existing agricultural 
industrial plant, and a large riding stable.  Sewer and water service are nearby.  Sewer service to the 
area can be provided via a planned east side sewer pump station.   All the buildable land in this area is 
estimated to be able to flow by gravity to this station.  This alternative is crossed by the bypass corridor.  
Upon construction of the bypass, Wilsonville Road will need to be relocated through this area.  This 
would provide some efficiency. 

Boundary Alternative C would accommodate industrial land needs, but somewhat less efficiently than 
Alternative B.  This site contains mostly level land, though there is some more sloping land at the 
southeast corner.  It is adjacent to the existing Wynooski Road industrial area.  It also includes pre-
existing home sites, and the same agricultural industrial plant as Alternative B.  Because Site 11.6 would 
be excluded, the back part of several lots would not be included, resulting in some inefficiency.  Sewer 
and water could be extended to this area, though they would need to be extended a somewhat greater 
distance than for Boundary Alternative B. 

Boundary Alternative A would accommodate industrial land needs the least efficiently of the three 
alternatives.  The site does include level land with mostly large parcels, and contains enough land to 
meet 2032 large site industrial needs.  It is the furthest from the existing industrial areas along Wynooski 
Road.   Because it contains land on the east side of Springbrook Creek, an additional sanitary sewer 
pump station would be needed to provide services.  This would add to the cost of providing services and 
increase inefficiency.   

Page 77



Page 48 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Location Factor 2: Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services 

As noted in OAR 660-024-0060: 

 (7) For purposes of Goal 14 Boundary Location Factor 2, "public facilities and services" means 
water, sanitary sewer, storm water management, and transportation facilities.  

(8) The Goal 14 boundary location determination requires evaluation and comparison of the 
relative costs, advantages and disadvantages of alternative UGB expansion areas with respect 
to the provision of public facilities and services needed to urbanize alternative boundary 
locations. This evaluation and comparison must be conducted in coordination with service 
providers, including the Oregon Department of Transportation with regard to impacts on the 
state transportation system. "Coordination" includes timely notice to service providers and the 
consideration of evaluation methodologies recommended by service providers. The evaluation 
and comparison must include:  
 
(a) The impacts to existing water, sanitary sewer, storm water and transportation facilities 
that serve nearby areas already inside the UGB;  

 (b) The capacity of existing public facilities and services to serve areas already inside the UGB 
as well as areas proposed for addition to the UGB; and  

 (c) The need for new transportation facilities, such as highways and other roadways, 
interchanges, arterials and collectors, additional travel lanes, other major improvements on 
existing roadways and, for urban areas of 25,000 or more, the provision of public transit 
service. 

As stated in the Goal 9 Rule (OAR 660-009-0005(9)): 

“Serviceable" means the city or county has determined that public facilities and transportation 
facilities, as defined by OAR Chapter 660, Divisions 011 and 012, currently have adequate 
capacity for development planned in the service area where the site is located or can be 
upgraded to have adequate capacity within the 20-year planning period. 

Findings 
Among other things, the South Industrial Area Master Plan looked carefully at existing urban facilities in 
the south part of Newberg and how these facilities can be economically extended to serve the Highway 
219/Wynooski study area (Sites 11.1 through 11.9) .  The plan was carefully coordinated with a number 
of service providers, including the Newberg Public Works Department (sewer, water, and storm 
drainage); Yamhill County Public Works (County roads and rural storm drainage); and the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (State highways).  

With regard to access, the plan notes that: 

Primary access to the plan area is taken from Highway 219 which runs north/south through 
the middle of the plan area. Highway 219 is the highest order street that runs through the 

Page 78



Page 49 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

immediate vicinity of the plan area. The western portion of the site currently has secondary 
access through several local streets that connect to properties within the plan area. There are 
no major roads or access points on the eastern side of the plan area. A portion of the 
northwest section of the plan area is identified on the Newberg-Dundee Bypass Project map as 
the approved corridor location for the Newberg Oregon 219 interchange. The following table 
describes the both the existing improvement and the City’s current improvement plans for 
roadways within the plan area: 

Street Name 
Functional 

Classification 
Existing Improvement 

Preliminary 
Improvement Plans 

State Highway 219 Minor Arterial 3 Lanes 5 Lanes 
Springbrook Road Minor Arterial 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 
Wilsonville Road Minor Arterial 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 
Wynooski Road Major Collector 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 

 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan makes the following findings with respect to providing sewer, 
water, storm drainage and transportation services to Sites 11.1-11.9: 

UTILITIES: The storm, wastewater, and water utility connections are all located near the west 
and northwest borders of the plan area. 

Water: An eighteen-inch water line runs east-west along Wynooski Road to intersect with 
Sandoz Road. The eighteen-inch line continues along Sandoz Road to Springbrook Road. 
Several six-inch lines spur off of the Sandoz line to serve local development. A twelve-inch line 
runs along Wynooski Road from the Wynooski-Sandoz intersection up to dead end around 
Highway 219.  

Wastewater: A 36-inch wastewater line runs from the intersection of Wynooski Road and Dog 
Ridge Road, it continues along Dog Ridge, and connects to the Treatment Plant located to the 
northwest of the plan area. Both 24-inch and 36-inch sections run from the northwest portion 
of the plan area along Wynooski Road to the north. A 36-inch line runs along Sandoz Road. 

Stormwater: The storm sewer system borders the plan area in a more continuous manner. It 
runs south along both sides of Highway 219 to the intersection of Wynooski Road and Adolf 
Road where it turns west and continues down the northern side of Wynooski Road for 
approximately 1,300 feet. It also runs east along Wilsonville Road and terminates at the 28805 
Wilsonville Road property. 

Recycled Water: The City of Newberg provides recycled water for irrigation use in an effort to 
reduce the amount of demand on the potable water system. It also reduces the amount of 
treated effluent that is directly discharged into the Willamette River. Wastewater is treated at 
the City of Newberg Wastewater Treatment Plant and conveyed through a “purple pipe” to 
private properties. The purple pipe currently runs east under Wynooski Road, north under 

Page 79



Page 50 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Sandoz Road, east under Highway 219 and east along Wilsonville Road to the S-turn, then 
north through the golf course. 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan goes on to describe how services can be provided in an orderly 
and economic manner to Site 11 while enhancing service to areas already within the UGB: 

UTILITIES: The plan area rests on a prominent plateau of approximately 375 acres that is 
bounded by Hess Creek on the west and Springbrook Creek on the east. Elevations of this 
plateau range from slightly above 170-feet of elevation to 110-feet along the incised 
drainages at the boundaries of the plan area. Natural existing soils of the Chehalem Valley 
consist predominately of clays with incidence of perched water tables; these soils typically 
have very low infiltration rates. 

Water: The City of Newberg Water System Master Plan states that a 24-inch main should be 
extended to the site from the water treatment plant to allow for further extension up 
Springbrook Road. The existing water system has adequate quantity and pressure sufficient to 
serve the area. It is assumed that water pressures would be high enough to warrant pressure 
reduction. Extension of water mains within the alignments of the proposed street will provide 
adequate service and redundancy to the plan area. Further demand analysis should be 
implemented with each development to ensure adequate volume and pressure is available for 
the needs of each individual user. 

Sewer: Sanitary sewer service to the master plan area can be provided by siting a pump 
station on property south of Wynooski Road across from the existing waste water treatment 
plant. This location may require the acquisition of additional land to accommodate the pump 
station and connection. This pump station should be of significant depth to allow a large 
diameter trunk line to be extended from the head works of the pump station at a depth of 20 
to 22 feet. At this depth the sanitary sewer trunk line can be extended east along Wynooski 
Road to Highway 219 and south along Highway 219 at a minimum slope.  

This sanitary sewer trunk line along with the pump station will provide the backbone for 
sanitary sewer service to the area and provide a basis for systematic extension of facilities and 
services from Highway 219 to the boundaries of the plan area. Installation of interceptor and 
service mains from this backbone infrastructure can be further extended along the alignments 
of Street “A”, Street “B”, Street “C”, the proposed realignment of Wynooski Road and within 
optional or local service roads to provide sanitary sewer service to the master plan area. The 
ten acre area east of Highway 219 at the southern end of the planning area will require a 
small local lift station to address the 50-foot drop in elevation. 

Recycled water should be extended to the master plan area to extend the benefits that this 
service provides. Recycled water can be extended from the waste water treatment plant or a 
connection could be made to the main that serves the Chehalem Glenn Golf Course in the area 
of Springbrook Road. Location of the connection to the existing system and transmission main 
sizes should be determined from further investigation into availability of reclaimed water and 

Page 80



Page 51 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

demand estimates for the plan area. Currently recycled water is only available on demand and 
is conveyed via a non-pressurized distribution system. Potential customers would need to work 
closely with the City of Newberg to address Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 
standards and requirements. 

Thus, public facilities and services can be extended orderly and efficiently to the areas in Boundary 
Alternatives B and C.  Relatively speaking, extending services to Boundary Alterative B would be more 
orderly than Alternative C.  Sewer and water services will first need to be extended to near the 
intersection of Wynooski Road and Highway 219.  From there, they can be extended in an orderly and 
economic manner north to serve Sites 11.8 and 11.9, and south to serve 11.4 and 11.7.  Alternative C 
would require a longer extension past 11.4 and 11.7 to serve Site 11.5, making this alternative less 
orderly and efficient than Alternative B.  

The area in Alternative A also could be served with transportation, sewer, water, and storm drainage 
facilities.  Wilsonville Road would need to be upgraded to an urban arterial standard.  The Springbrook 
Creek crossing would need to be upgraded before any industrial development could occur.  This would 
add an upfront cost that would be less orderly and economic than the other options.  Upon construction 
of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass, the Wilsonville Road connection would be terminated at the bypass.  
Thus, a new road would have to be constructed to the south to connect to Highway 219.  This new road 
would pass through Site 11.8.  Sewer service also would need to be extended first through or past Site 
11.8, 11.9, 14.1, and 14.2 to reach Site 14.3.  A new sanitary sewer pump station would be needed at 
the crossing of Springbrook Creek.  Again, this would make it more orderly and efficient to include 
Alternative B or C. 

Location Factor 3: Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences 

Environmental Consequences  
All the boundary alternatives are bordered by stream corridors.  These provide excellent buffers from 
nearby agricultural land and rural residential areas.  The buffers limit intrusion of noise, dust, vibration, 
or other environmental considerations to neighboring uses.  Boundary Alternative A only has such a 
buffer on the north side.  The south boundary is Wilsonville Road, which provides a minimal buffer from 
residential uses on the south side.  Thus, this boundary alternative would be less effective in buffering 
environmental impacts to surrounding uses. 

Of course including stream corridors at the edge of an industrial area also has some risks of negative 
impacts to the water resources.  The South Industrial Area Master plan shows that all of these areas will 
be protected from urban industrial use.  Limited trail uses will be encouraged to provide access to these 
riparian corridors.  The South Industrial Area Master Plan also calls for sustainable design and building 
practices to minimize impacts from run-off and development on these important natural features.  

Energy Consequences 
The main energy consequences include (a) vehicle miles traveled for employees; (b) vehicle miles 
travelled for truck traffic associated with industrial clusters that choose to locate or expand in Newberg. 

Page 81



Page 52 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The energy consequence of not providing basic employment opportunities in Newberg are that Newberg 
area residents will need to commute to Portland, Salem, Hillsboro, McMinnville or elsewhere for 
employment opportunities.  Since the Highway 219/Wynooski area best meets identified industrial siting 
requirements, it’s reasonable to conclude that this site will have the highest likelihood of success in 
attracting and maintaining traded-sector employment opportunities in Newberg.  

All alternatives are relatively accessible for Newberg residents and for those commuting to Newberg to 
work.  Other locations would require driving through the congested downtown area, or spending more 
time on congested Highway 99W, where mileage efficiency (due to stop-and-go travel) would likely 
decrease. 

Alternative B is closest to Newberg’s largest industrial area and the Sportsman Airpark, which means 
that travel between industry clusters would be reduced when compared with other potential sites.   

Alternatives B and C offer the most direct route to I-5 and regional markets, when compared with other 
sites.  Alternative C is slightly closer to I-5, but slightly further from Newberg than Alternative B.   

Thus, Alternative B would have the most positive and fewest negative energy consequences of the study 
alternatives, followed closely by Alternative C and lastly by Alternative A. 

Economic Consequences 
Newberg has developed an economic strategy, listed targeted industrial clusters that will help 
implement this strategy, and identified site characteristics necessary to be successful in attracting these 
industrial clusters to the community. Based on analysis found in the EOA and in these findings, the City 
has concluded that only Sites 11 (Highway 219/Wynooski) and 14 (Wilsonville Road Northwest) have the 
characteristics necessary for Newberg to be competitive in attracting targeted industrial clusters.   

Inclusion of any alternatives for urban industrial purposes would marginally reduce the amount of 
agricultural land in production.  On the other hand, including this industrial land will provide land for 
processing agricultural products and other industrial needs of the agricultural economy.  Several 
agricultural industries are included in the Newberg’s targeted industry list, including wineries, specialty 
foods and food processing, and nursery and agricultural products (value added).    Note that inclusion of 
agricultural land within a UGB does not mean that this land will immediately be lost to agricultural 
production; the City anticipates that this land will develop gradually over a 20-year period, and that land 
will stay in agricultural use until needed for planned industrial development12

As noted in the findings under Location Factor 2, public facilities and services can most efficiently be 
provided to Boundary Alternative B.  Sewer, water, storm drainage, and transportation facilities all are 
close by and can be extended economically.   

.   

                                                            
12 Recent experience has shown this to be the case.  For example, the undeveloped industrial land on Mountainview Drive remains in a filbert 

orchard, which continues to produce crops, even though the area was included in the UGB in 1979.  Much of the undeveloped farm land in 
the Springbrook master plan area remains in commercial agricultural production.  In addition, the undeveloped portions of the Springbrook 
Oaks area remained in commercial agricultural production until about 80% of the area was developed. 

Page 82



Page 53 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Alternative A would require an additional sanitary sewer pump station. Alternative A would also require 
immediate reconstruction of the Springbrook Creek crossing, adding costs.  Thus there are more positive 
economic consequences to including Alternative B or C than Alternative A.  Alternative B, being closer to 
existing services, would have the best economic consequences.   

Social Consequences 
Including Alternative B would have a number of positive social consequences: 

(1) It would provide industrial land that would meet the needs of future industrial users, thus 
providing jobs and economic resources for the community.  It would increase the local tax base, 
and provide resources for other important facilities such as parks, schools, and quality urban 
neighborhoods. 

(2) The site has effective buffers from existing residential uses through two large stream corridors. 
(3) An important social consequence is the perception of Newberg as people enter.  This area is at 

the south gateway to Newberg.  The Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan included 
streetscape and design requirements for the Highway 219 frontage, so the appearance of this 
gateway could actually be enhanced.  

Including Alternative C would provide similar social benefits of jobs and economic resources as 
Alternative B.  Alternative C has less of a buffer from agricultural use due to the exclusion of Site 11.6.  
Alternative C would extend the entrance to Newberg further to the south than Alternative B.   

Boundary Alternative A lacks this type of buffer on the south side, which could result in negative 
consequences to residences south of Wilsonville Road.   Alternative C would be on the Wilsonville Road 
entrance to Newberg as opposed to the Highway 219 entrance.   

All three alternatives include some existing rural home sites which could be affected by the conversion 
to industrial uses. 

Overall, the most positive and fewest negative social consequences would come from including 
Alternative B, followed by Alternative C. 

EEES Conclusion 
Table 10 below summarizes the EEES findings above.  As can be seen, Alternative B has the most positive 
and least negative consequences of all the alternatives. 

Table 10:  EEES Consequences Summary 
 Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 
Environmental Consequences 3rd Best (tie) Best (tie) 

Energy Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Economic Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Social Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Overall 3rd  Best 2nd Best 

Factor 4: Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 

occurring on farm and forest land outside the urban growth boundary 

Page 83



Page 54 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The interface between agriculture uses and industrial uses does not pose the same compatibility issues 
as with other urban uses.  For example, siting residential uses near agricultural lands can create conflicts 
as farmers plow fields, spray chemicals, and operate farm machinery near houses.  Conducting these 
same farming practices near industrial land does not necessarily generate conflicts.  Having nearby 
industrial land can in fact enhance the farm activities, as farmers can have a nearby location to store and 
process agricultural products, and to store equipment.  Conflicts can arise, but they generally are not as 
severe as for other urban uses.  

All three boundary alternatives have minimal borders with agricultural land.  There is little significant 
difference between the three alternatives. 

Boundary Alternative A would border agricultural land on the south side of Site 11.8, and on the east 
side of 14.3.  Overall, this alternative has the least border with agricultural land of the three alternatives. 

Boundary Alternative B would border agricultural land only on the south side. 

Boundary Alternative C would border agricultural land on the both the north and south side, and 
adjacent to Site 11.6.  This has the longest border of the three alternatives. 

Location Factor Conclusion 

Table 11 contains a summary of the findings relative to the boundary location factors for each of the 
three boundary alternatives.  As can be seen, Alternative B best meets the Goal 14 Location factors: 

� Alternative B can most efficiently accommodate industrial land uses. 

� Public Facilities and Services can be provided most efficiently and economically to Alternative B. 

� Alternative B would have effective buffers from residential uses, thus minimizing negative 
environmental consequences. 

� Alternative B is close to existing industrial areas, close to the Newberg center, and has close 
access to I-5.  This results in the most positive energy consequences of all options. 

� Including Alternative B would have a number of very positive economic consequences, including 
providing sufficient land for future employers. 

� Including Alternative B would have the most positive and fewest negative social consequences.  
Including the area would provide land for jobs for Newberg area citizens and it has effective 
buffers from residential uses. 

� Alternative B has a slightly larger border with agricultural land than Alternative C, but overall the 
difference is negligible. 

Table 11:  Location Factor Summary 
Location Factor Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 
Factor 1: Efficient  Accommodation of 
Land Needs 

3rd Best 2nd Best 

Factor 2: Efficient Public Facilities 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Factor 3: ESEE Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Factor 4: Compatibility with 
Farm/Forest Uses 

Best 2nd Best 3rd 

Overall 3rd  Best 2nd Best 

Page 84



Page 55 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Thus, the land within Boundary Alternative B best meets the Goal 14 Location Factors and should be 
included in the UGB. 

Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis Summary and Conclusion 
The Urban Growth Boundary location as shown in Map 12 complies with the UGB amendment priorities 
of ORS 197.298, the Goal 14 Needs Factors, and the requirement s of OAR Chapter 660, Division 24.  

The findings examined a study area extending ½ to ¾ miles from the UGB.  Within this study area, the 
finding identified 21 sites for potential UGB expansion.  Of the potential industrial areas within the study 
area, only the Highway 219/Wynooski Site (Site 11) and the Wilsonville Road Northwest Site (Site 14) 
meet the industrial site suitability 
criteria. 

Because the land within these two 
sites contains more land than is 
needed for 2032 industrial land 
needs, and because the sites include 
property under several different 
priorities under ORS 197.298, the 
sites were segregated into several 
subsites.  The findings applied the 
ORS 197.298 priorities to these 
subsites to include urban reserve and 
rural exception land in the UGB.  
Because these higher priority lands 
did not contain sufficient land to 
meet 2032 industrial land needs, the 
findings then looked toward fourth 
priority agricultural lands.  The 
findings applied the Goal 14 
locational factors to three boundary alternatives within Sites 11 and 14.  The analysis concluded that 
Boundary Alternative B, shown on Map 10, should be included.  The selected UGB boundary best meets 
the Goal 14 Needs factors.  The site provides the type of industrial land needed by Newberg’s targeted 
industries.  Including that land will be an economic and social benefit to the community.  The site is well 
buffered from adjoining residential and agricultural uses by stream corridors.  The South Industrial 
Master Plan’s green street and environmentally friendly drainage systems will ensure compatibility with 
the natural environment.  Overall, the site will provide jobs in Newberg, thus lessening the need for 
commuting outside the community to work, and benefitting the community and state environmentally, 
economically, socially, and energy-wise.  

Thus, in summary, the subsites shown in Table 12 below should be included in the UGB.  A detailed map 
of the properties to be included is on Map 13, and a list shown in Table 13 below. 

Figure 4:  Meeting Buildable Industrial and PQ Land Needs 
through 2032 

Buildable 
industrial 

land in UGB, 
56 ac. 

Buildable 
land to be 

redesignated 
industrial in 
UGB, 1 ac. 

Urban 
reserve land 

added to 
UGB, 3 ac. 

Rural 
exception 

land addded 
to UGB, 4 ac. 

Ag. Land 
added to 
UGB (Mix 

Class II-VI), 
124 ac. 

Ag land 
added to 

UGB (Class I), 
1 ac. 

All numbers are gross buildable acres. 

Page 85



Page 56 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

 

Table 12:  Sites included in UGB by Priority Class 
Priority Total  Acres Buildable Acres13

1st:  Urban Reserve 

 
47 6 

Site 11.2 23 3 

Site 11.3 24 3 

2nd:  Rural Exception 19 1 

Site 11.1 14 0 

Site 11.9 5 1 

4th:  Agricultural 194 125 

Site 11.4 44 25 

Site 11.7 113 85 

Site 11.8 37 14 

Grand Total 260 132 
 

                                                            
13 Numbers are rounded to the nearest acre.  For a more detailed acreage per property, see Table 13:  Properties Redesignated Industrial or 

Included in UGB 

Page 86



Pa
ge

 5
7 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Ta
bl

e 
13

:  
Pr

op
er

ti
es

 R
ed

es
ig

na
te

d 
In

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 U

G
B 

 

Si
te

 
Ta

x 
Lo

t 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

A
dd

re
ss

 
O

w
ne

r 
To

ta
l 

A
cr

es
 

Bu
ild

ab
le

 
A

cr
es

 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 

Cu
rr

en
t C

om
p.

 
Pl

an
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Co

m
p.

 P
la

n 

In
du

st
ri

al
  

Si
te

 S
iz

e 
Ca

te
go

ry
 

N
ot

es
 

In
 

U
G

B 
32

21
-

26
00

 
N

E 
St

. P
au

l 
H

w
y.

 
Ta

ut
fe

st
, W

ay
ne

 C
. 

3.
05

 
0.

00
 

U
G

B 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

, 
M

D
R 

(C
ity

) 
IN

D
 

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 w
ith

in
 p

la
nn

ed
 

by
pa

ss
 R

O
W

 

11
.9

 
32

21
-

52
00

 

28
74

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

H
ag

ge
rt

y,
 R

ob
er

t 
&

 L
oi

s 
1.

08
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

 
 

11
.9

 
32

21
-

53
00

 

28
73

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

So
ve

y,
 L

lo
yd

 H
. &

 
Ca

ro
l M

. 
3.

51
 

0.
69

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

< 
2 

 

11
.7

 
32

28
-

10
00

 
91

50
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
Sc

hm
id

t,
 C

ha
rl

es
 

M
. L

iv
in

g 
Tr

us
t 1

/2
 

40
.4

6 
34

.2
6 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

30
 to

 5
0 

In
cl

ud
es

 p
ot

en
tia

l w
et

la
nd

 o
f 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5 

ac
re

s.
  

W
et

la
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
fu

tu
re

 p
ar

k 
si

te
. 

11
.4

 
32

28
-

11
00

 
91

95
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
La

Jo
ie

, M
er

lin
 A

. &
 

Sa
nd

ra
 K

. 
14

.4
9 

12
.3

4 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
10

 to
 3

0 
 

11
.3

 
32

28
-

12
00

 
94

75
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
La

Jo
ie

, M
er

lin
 A

. &
 

Sa
nd

ra
 K

. 
13

.3
2 

3.
32

 
U

RA
 

P 
(C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
 

 

11
.3

 
32

28
-

17
00

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

La
Jo

ie
, M

er
lin

 A
. &

 
Sa

nd
ra

 K
. 

10
.5

0 
0.

00
 

U
RA

 
P 

(C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 

11
.4

 
32

28
-

19
00

 
N

E 
St

. P
au

l 
H

w
y.

 
W

al
ke

r,
 C

ur
tis

 D
. 

1/
2 

29
.3

0 
13

.0
6 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

10
 to

 3
0 

 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
0 

28
57

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

H
od

gd
on

, D
on

al
d 

E.
 Jr

. 
4.

17
 

1.
48

 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
< 

2 
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 fe
et

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 b

e 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 th
e 

U
G

B.
 

Page 87



Pa
ge

 5
8 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 

Si
te

 
Ta

x 
Lo

t 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

A
dd

re
ss

 
O

w
ne

r 
To

ta
l 

A
cr

es
 

Bu
ild

ab
le

 
A

cr
es

 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 

Cu
rr

en
t C

om
p.

 
Pl

an
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Co

m
p.

 P
la

n 

In
du

st
ri

al
  

Si
te

 S
iz

e 
Ca

te
go

ry
 

N
ot

es
 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
1 

96
90

 A
do

lf 
Rd

. 
Ch

ur
ch

, R
ic

k 
20

.1
3 

8.
25

 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
2 

to
 1

0 

Ea
st

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 U
G

B 
is

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

.  
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 
fe

et
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 b
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 

th
e 

U
G

B.
 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
2 

10
10

0 
A

do
lf 

Rd
. 

Cl
ay

, T
im

ot
hy

 A
. &

 
La

ur
ie

 S
. 

13
.1

6 
4.

59
 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

2 
to

 1
0 

Ea
st

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 U
G

B 
is

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

.  
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 
fe

et
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 b
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 

th
e 

U
G

B.
 

11
.7

 
32

28
-

90
0 

96
80

 A
do

lf 
Rd

. 
G

ai
bl

er
 F

am
ily

 
Fa

rm
s 

LL
C 

72
.2

8 
50

.6
0 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

30
 to

 5
0 

 

In
 

U
G

B 
32

28
BB

-1
00

 
A

do
lf 

Ro
ad

 
N

ic
kl

ou
s,

 M
ar

tin
 T

. 
&

 K
at

he
ri

ne
 R

. 
3.

53
 

1.
13

 
U

G
B 

A
FS

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
, 

M
D

R 
(C

ity
) 

IN
D

 
< 

2 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 w
ith

in
 p

la
nn

ed
 

by
pa

ss
 R

O
W

 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

20
2 

 
So

ut
he

as
t P

ap
er

 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 C
o.

 
0.

10
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
IN

D
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

PQ
 

 

U
G

B 
am

en
dm

en
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

sm
al

l p
or

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

so
ut

h 
of

 D
og

 R
id

ge
 R

oa
d 

no
t 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 U

G
B.

 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

22
00

 
13

01
 

W
yn

oo
sk

i 
So

ut
he

as
t P

ap
er

 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 C
o.

 
5.

57
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
IN

D
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

PQ
 

 
Pa

rc
el

 is
 e

nt
ir

el
y 

w
ith

in
 

st
re

am
 c

or
ri

do
r 

11
.2

 
32

29
-

40
0 

26
08

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

19
.2

2 
2.

05
 

U
RA

 
IN

D
 

PQ
 

 
 

11
.2

 
32

29
-

50
0 

26
00

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

4.
17

 
0.

72
 

U
RA

 
IN

D
 

PQ
 

 
 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

60
0 

24
12

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

8.
32

 
0.

45
 

Ru
ra

l 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n 

IN
D

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
PQ

 
 

 

Page 88



Page 59 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 3: Findings for Applicable Statutes, Rules, Goals, and 
Comprehensive Plans  
This section makes findings addressing the applicable Oregon Statutes, the Oregon Administrative Rules, 
the Statewide Planning Goals, Newberg and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan policies.  These findings 
are in addition to detailed findings shown in Section 1 dealing with land needs, and Section 2 dealing 
with the UGB location. 

State Statutory and Rule Requirements 
ORS 195.036 Area population forecast; coordination. 

 The coordinating body under ORS 195.025 (1) shall establish and maintain a population 
forecast for the entire area within its boundary for use in maintaining and updating 
comprehensive plans, and shall coordinate the forecast with the local governments within its 
boundary. 

OAR 660-024-0040 Population Forecasts 

(1) Counties must adopt and maintain a coordinated 20-year population forecast for the 
county and for each urban area within the county consistent with statutory requirements for 
such forecasts under ORS 195.025 and 195.036. Cities must adopt a 20-year population 
forecast for the urban area consistent with the coordinated county forecast, except that a 
metropolitan service district must adopt and maintain a 20-year population forecast for the 
area within its jurisdiction. In adopting the coordinated forecast, local governments must 
follow applicable procedures and requirements in ORS 197.610 to 197.650 and must provide 
notice to all other local governments in the county. The adopted forecast must be included in 
the comprehensive plan or in a document referenced by the plan. 

(2) The forecast must be developed using commonly accepted practices and standards for 
population forecasting used by professional practitioners in the field of demography or 
economics, and must be based on current, reliable and objective sources and verifiable factual 
information, such as the most recent long-range forecast for the county published by the 
Oregon Office of Economic Analysis (OEA). The forecast must take into account documented 
long-term demographic trends as well as recent events that have a reasonable likelihood of 
changing historical trends. The population forecast is an estimate which, although based on 
the best available information and methodology, should not be held to an unreasonably high 
level of precision.  

(3) For a population forecast used as a basis for a decision adopting or amending a UGB 
submitted under ORS 197.626, the director or Commission may approve the forecast if they 
determine that a failure to meet a particular requirement of section (2) of this rule is 
insignificant in nature and is unlikely to have a significant effect on the needs determined 
under OAR 660-024-0040.  

Page 89



Page 60 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(4) A city and county may apply one of the safe harbors in subsections (a), (b), or (c) of this 
section, if applicable, in order to develop and adopt a population forecast for an urban area:  

(a) If a coordinated population forecast was adopted by a county within the previous 10 years 
but does not provide a 20-year forecast for an urban area at the time a city initiates an 
evaluation or amendment of the UGB, a city and county may adopt an updated forecast for 
the urban area consistent with this section. The updated forecast is deemed to comply with 
applicable goals and laws regarding population forecasts for purposes of the current UGB 
evaluation or amendment provided the forecast:  

(A) Is adopted by the city and county in accordance with the notice, procedures and 
requirements described in section (1) of this rule; and  

(B) Extends the current urban area forecast to a 20-year period commencing on the date 
determined under OAR 660-024-0040(2) by using the same growth trend for the urban area 
assumed in the county's current adopted forecast.  

(b) A city and county may adopt a 20-year forecast for an urban area consistent with this 
section. The forecast is deemed to comply with applicable goals and laws regarding 
population forecasts for purposes of the current UGB evaluation or amendment provided the 
forecast:  

(A) Is adopted by the city and county in accordance with the notice, procedures and 
requirements described in section (1) of this rule;  

(B) Is based on OEA's population forecast for the county for a 20-year period commencing on 
the date determined under OAR 660-024-0040(2); and  

(C) Is developed by assuming that the urban area's share of the forecasted county population 
determined in subsection (B) of this rule will be the same as the urban area's current share of 
county population based on the most recent certified population estimates from Portland 
State University and the most recent data for the urban area published by the U.S. Census 
Bureau.  

(c) A city may adopt a revised 20-year forecast for its urban area by following the 
requirements in ORS 195.034.  

 

Finding:   For purposes of this UGB amendment., Newberg and Yamhill County are adopting a 
population forecast for the  Newberg urban area use the “safe harbor” population forecast method 
allowed under OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b).  It is generally recognized that this method yields a 
conservative population forecast suitable for an amendment of an urban growth boundary in interim 
periods before a county adopts a coordinated forecast for all urban areas within the county.   This 
method uses the most recent long range population forecast for the county from the Oregon Office of 
Economic Analysis to project future county population.   It assumes that the urban area’s share of the 

Page 90



Page 61 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

future county population remains the same as the current share.  The resulting forecast is shown in 
Table 14. 

Table 14:  Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor 

  
Population 
Estimate 

Population 
Forecast 

  2011 2032 

Yamhill County 99,850 146,167 

Newberg UGB 22,794 33,367 

Newberg UGB % of County 22.8% 22.8% 

Sources:  The Yamhill County 2011 estimate is from Portland State University Population Research Center (2011).  
The Newberg UGB 2011 estimate was derived using the revised July 1, 2011 PSU population estimate for the city, 
and adding the 2010 Census data at the block level for land between the UGB and city limits The Yamhill County 
2032 population forecast is from the Oregon Office of Economic Analysis (2003).  The 2032 county population 
forecast was interpolated using OEA’s forecasted 2030-2035 growth rate. 

Notice of this amendment was provided to all other local governments in the Yamhill County.  The 
amendment was adopted into the Newberg Comprehensive Plan as part of the Economic Opportunities 
Analysis 2012 adoption.  It was adopted into the Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan in conjunction with 
this UGB amendment. 

OAR 660-024-0040 – Land Need: (1) The UGB must be based on the adopted 20-year 
population forecast for the urban area described in OAR 660-024-0030, and must provide for 
needed housing, employment and other urban uses such as public facilities, streets and roads, 
schools, parks and open space over the 20-year planning period consistent with the land need 
requirements of Goal 14 and this rule.  The 20-year need determinations are estimates which, 
although based on the best available information and methodologies, should not be held to an 
unreasonably high level of precision.  

Finding:  This proposed UGB expansion is based on the 20-year population forecast adopted in 
conjunction with this UGB amendment.  The 20-year period is through 2032.  In this case, the UGB 
expansion will provide for needed industrial employment uses and an industrial type public/quasi-public 
use.  It also includes some land for streets and riparian buffers.  Local governments are permitted to 
bring in land for one (or more) land needs without needing to take all land needs into consideration 
(OAR 660-024-0040(3)).  Sections 1 and 2 of this report contain detailed findings to the requirements of 
Goal 14 as they relate to this UGB expansion.  City staff used the latest data from the Oregon 
Employment Department along with historic employment growth data for Newberg to determine the 
20-year employment land need for the City.  These were adopted as part of the EOA.   

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (2) If the UGB analysis or amendment is conducted as part of a 
periodic review work program, the 20-year planning period must commence on the date 

Page 91



Page 62 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

initially scheduled for completion of the appropriate work task.  If the UGB analysis or 
amendment is conducted as a post-acknowledgement plan amendment under ORS 197.610 to 
197.625, the 20-year planning period must commence either: 

(a) On the date initially scheduled for final adoption of the amendment specified by the 
local government in the initial notice of the amendment required by OAR 660-018-0020; or 

(b) If more recent than the date determined in subsection (a), at the beginning of the 20-
year period specified in the coordinated population forecast for the urban area adopted by the 
city and county pursuant to OAR 660-024-0030, unless ORS 197.296 requires a different date 
for local governments subject to that statute.   

Finding:  The urban growth boundary amendment is conducted as a post-acknowledgement plan 
amendment.  The review is being conducted in the manner of periodic review, pursuant to ORS 197.626.  
The 20-year period specified in the coordinated population forecast is to 2032, so the 20-year period is 
2012-2032. 

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (3) A local government may review and amend the UGB in 
consideration of one category of land need without a simultaneous review and amendment in 
consideration of other categories of land need. 

Finding:  This urban growth boundary amendment is only in consideration of industrial and public/quasi-
public land needs.  It does not review or consider other categories of land need.   

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (5) Except for a metropolitan service district described in ORS 
197.015(13), the determination of 20-year employment land need for an urban area must 
comply with applicable requirements of Goal 9 and OAR chapter 660, division 9, and must 
include a determination of the need for a short-term supply of land for employment uses 
consistent with OAR 660-009-0025. Employment land need may be based on an estimate of 
job growth over the planning period; local government must provide a reasonable justification 
for the job growth estimate but Goal 14 does not require that job growth estimates 
necessarily be proportional to population growth.   

Finding: The City of Newberg is not located within a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).  OAR 
660-009-0025(3) encourages but does not require local governments outside an MPO have policies 
regarding a short-term supply of industrial land.  The City will adopt a revised and updated Economic 
Opportunities Analysis that meets the requirements set forth in Goal 9 and OAR chapter 660, Division 9 
in conjunction with this amendment.   Employment land need is based on an estimate of job growth 
over the planning period.  This estimate considers both historic job growth in Newberg, and regional 
employment projections published by Oregon Employment Department.  The plan did not establish 
specific targets for a short-term supply of land. 

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (7) The determination of 20-year land needs for transportation 
and public facilities for an urban area must comply with applicable requirements of Goals 11 

Page 92



Page 63 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

and 12, rules in OAR chapter 660, divisions 11 and 12, and public facilities requirements in ORS 
197.712 and 197.768.   

Finding:  The City has adopted Public Facilities Plans in accordance with the requirements of Goal 11 and 
OAR chapter 660, Division 11.  One project identified in the capital improvements project list is a new 
water treatment plant on Wynooski Street.  This UGB expansion includes 3 gross buildable acres for 
public/quasi-public land to allow for the future construction of a new water treatment plant.  The City of 
Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan further discusses the need, cost, layout and alternative sites of 
the future new plant.  The Water Treatment Facilities Plan was adopted by Council in June 2002 by 
Resolution 2002-2365.  

 Goal 12 and OAR chapter 660, Division 12, don’t apply to this application 

660-024-0050 – Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency: (1) When evaluating or amending 
a UGB, a local government must inventory land inside the UGB to determine whether there is 
adequate development capacity to accommodate 20-year needs determined in OAR 660-024-
0040…For employment land, the inventory must include suitable vacant and developed land 
designated for industrial or other employment use, and must be conducted in accordance with 
OAR 660-009-0015.   

Finding: The adopted Economic Opportunities Analysis contains an inventory of industrial land within 
the UGB, and was conducted in accordance with OAR 660-009-0015.  The inventory included suitable 
vacant and developed land designated for industrial or other employment use.  The Economic 
Opportunities Analysis land inventory analysis showed that there were 56 existing gross buildable acres 
of industrial land in the UGB but a 20-year need for 191 acres. Therefore, there is a deficit of 135 
buildable acres of industrial land within the UGB to meet Newberg’s 20-year land need.   Section 1 of 
this report contains a map and a description of the existing buildable industrial land within the UGB.  In 
addition, there is an unmet need for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type 
Public/Quasi-Public land for a water treatment plant. 

660-024-0050 – Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency: (4) If the inventory demonstrates 
that the development capacity of land inside the UGB is inadequate to accommodate the 
estimated 20-year needs determined under OAR 660-024-0040, the local government must 
amend the plan to satisfy the need deficiency, either by increasing the development capacity 
of land already inside the city or by expanding the UGB, or both, and in accordance with ORS 
197.296 where applicable.  Prior to expanding the UGB, a local government must demonstrate 
that the estimated needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the 
UGB.  If the local government determines there is a need to expand the UGB, changes to the 
UGB must be determined by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with Goal 14 
and OAR 660-024-0060.  

Finding:  As stated above, the City’s industrial land inventory shows an inadequate capacity of land to 
meet the 20-year need.  The City projects a need for 191 gross buildable acres of industrial land through 
2032.  The Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) takes infill and redevelopment into account, and 

Page 93



Page 64 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

projects that out of 46 needed sites of less than 2 acres, 23 sites will be made up through infill and 
redevelopment.  Similarly, the EOA projects that 7 out of 21 needed sites of 2-10 acres will be made up 
through infill and redevelopment.  One existing site over 10 acres, the Suntron site, also is projected to 
accommodate new employment.  In addition, it’s possible that some of the need for sites of 10-50 acres 
will be met through infill and redevelopment or through a higher density of employees per site.  Table 4 
on page 16 and Figure 2 on page 19 illustrates this concept. 

In Addition, Newberg’s Comprehensive Plan identifies a need for a new water treatment plant.  See 
Appendix E: Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information.  Newberg’s existing water treatment 
plant is located on a parcel outside the urban growth boundary.  The site is very constrained in that it is 
located entirely within the perimeter of the SP Newsprint site.  It is on a small footprint with no 
opportunities for expansion.  Newberg’s Public Facilities Plan includes a need for a new water treatment 
plant on Wynooski Road.  According to the City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan, Newberg 
should relocate the plant to a new site to allow upgrade and expansion.  According to the plan and the 
Newberg Public Works Department, this site needs to include at least 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, 
needs through 2032 are for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type PQ land.  
Additional industrial type PQ needs may be identified in the future. 

Newberg’s analysis has determined that 56 gross buildable acres of this need can met inside current 
industrial designated land inside the UGB, and one buildable acre of this need can be met by 
redesignating land already in the UGB.  The UGB must be expanded to include the 137 gross buildable 
acres necessary to meet the 20-year industrial and the public/quasi-public need for a water treatment 
plant.  The proposed UGB expansion includes 132 gross buildable acres to meet most of these needs.  
Section II of this document includes detailed findings to the Goal 14 and OAR 660-024-0060 boundary 
location requirements.   

ORS 197.298 – Priority of Land to be Included within Urban Growth Boundary 

(1) In addition to any requirements established by rule addressing urbanization, land may not 
be included within an urban growth boundary except under the following priorities: 

(a) First priority is land that is designated urban reserve land under ORS 195.145 (Urban 
reserves), rule or metropolitan service district action plan. 

(b) If land under paragraph (a) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the amount 
of land needed, second priority is land adjacent to an urban growth boundary that is identified 
in an acknowledged comprehensive plan as an exception area or nonresource land. Second 
priority may include resource land that is completely surrounded by exception areas unless 
such resource land is high-value farmland as described in ORS 215.710 (High-value farmland 
description for ORS 215.705). 

(c) If land under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, third priority is land designated as marginal land pursuant to ORS 
197.247 (1991 Edition). 

Page 94



Page 65 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(d) If land under paragraphs (a) to (c) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, fourth priority is land designated in an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan for agriculture or forestry, or both. 

(2) Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

(3) Land of lower priority under subsection (1) of this section may be included in an urban 
growth boundary if land of higher priority is found to be inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land estimated in subsection (1) of this section for one or more of the following 
reasons: 

(a) Specific types of identified land needs cannot be reasonably accommodated on higher 
priority lands; 

(b) Future urban services could not reasonably be provided to the higher priority lands due to 
topographical or other physical constraints; or 

(c) Maximum efficiency of land uses within a proposed urban growth boundary requires 
inclusion of lower priority lands in order to include or to provide services to higher priority 
lands. [1995 c.547 §5; 1999 c.59 §56] 

 

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (1) When considering a UGB 
amendment, a local government must determine which land to add by evaluating alternative 
boundary locations. This determination must be consistent with the priority of land specified in 
ORS 197.298 and the boundary location factors of Goal 14, as follows: 

(a) Beginning with the highest priority of land available, a local government must 
determine which land in that priority is suitable to accommodate the need deficiency 
determined under OAR 660-024-0050. 

(b) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category exceeds the amount 
necessary to satisfy the need deficiency, a local government must apply the location factors of 
Goal 14 to choose which land in that priority to include in the UGB. 

(c) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category is not adequate to satisfy 
the identified need deficiency, a local government must determine which land in the next 
priority is suitable to accommodate the remaining need, and proceed using the same method 
specified in subsections (a) and (b) of this section until the land need is accommodated.  

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) to (c) of this section, a local government may consider 
land of lower priority as specified in ORS 197.298(3).  

Page 95



Page 66 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(e) For purposes of this rule, the determination of suitable land to accommodate land 
needs must include consideration of any suitability characteristics specified under section (5) 
of this rule, as well as other provisions of law applicable in determining whether land is 
buildable or suitable.  

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings regarding the boundary location analysis and 
priority of land to be included in the UGB.  In summary, Newberg first applied the identified site 
suitability characteristics to the potential sites in the study area.  Newberg identified two sites that met 
the industrial site suitability criteria.  The city applied the priority factors to the two sites, and 
designated land according to the priorities.  This included first priority urban reserve land, second 
priority rural exception land, and fourth priority agricultural land.  Fourth priority agricultural land was 
designated with higher priority given according to soil classification.  The Goal 14 location factors were 
applied to agricultural land to determine which of that suitable land to include in the urban growth 
boundary.  Table 15 below shows how land was designated by priority. 

Table 15:  UGB Designation by Priority 

  Gross Buildable Acres 

Need through 2032 194   

Land already in UGB 56  

Redesignate land in UGB 1  

Priority 1 Urban Reserve 
Land 

 3 

Priority 2 Rural Exception 
Land 

 4 

Priority 4 Agricultural Land 
 125 

Total Added to UGB  132 
Remaining Need 5   

 

The analysis of agricultural land gave higher priority to land of lower agricultural capability class.  Of the 
suitable agricultural sites, two subsites contain large amounts of Class I soils:  Sites 11.6 and 14.2.  
Neither of these sites was included in the UGB.  The remaining sites have generally the same agricultural 
capability classes, a mixture of Class II, III, and VI, and can be considered the same priority class.  An 
exception is about one acre of land within site 11.8 which has a sliver of Class I soils.  See Map 9.   That 
small portion actually has a house, two outbuildings and a parking area built on it.  It would be very 
inefficient to exclude this sliver of land, as it would be sandwiched between industrial land on either side 
and would very much limit the usefulness of the future industrial site in that area, would limit extension 
of utilities or roads through that site. Thus, maximum efficiency of land use requires including that sliver.  

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (3) The boundary location factors of 
Goal 14 are not independent criteria.  When the factors are applied to compare alternative 

Page 96



Page 67 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

boundary locations and to determine the UGB location, a local government must show that all 
the factors were considered and balanced. 

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings regarding the boundary location factors and how 
they were applied to all of the potential alternative sites to determine the best location for future 
industrial land.  All factors were considered and balanced. 

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (4) In determining alternative land 
for evaluation under ORS 197-298, “land adjacent to the UGB” is not limited to those lots or 
parcels that abut the UGB, but also includes land in the vicinity of the UGB that has a 
reasonable potential to satisfy the identified needs deficiency. 

Finding:  These findings considered sites not only abutting the UGB, but those sites within a study area 
extending about ¾ miles from the UGB.  Newberg relies on OAR 660-024-0060(5), which states that local 
governments may specify certain characteristics, including proximity, necessary for land to be suitable 
for an identified need.  One of Newberg’s industrial site suitability characteristics is proximity, and it 
specifies that parcels be “Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the 
vicinity of the UGB that immediately could be added to the UGB.”  Sites within the study area not 
abutting the UGB were evaluated to determine if intervening land also reasonably could be included in 
the UGB.  Therefore, Newberg’s boundary location alternatives analysis includes land in the vicinity of 
the UGB that has a reasonable potential to satisfy the identified needs deficiency.   

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (5) If a local government has 
specified characteristics such as parcel size, topography, or proximity that are necessary for 
land to be suitable for an identified need, the local government may limit its consideration to 
land that has the specified characteristics when it conducts the boundary location alternatives 
analysis and applies ORS 197.298. 

Finding:  Newberg has specified characteristics necessary for industrial land in its Economic 
Opportunities Analysis, and used those characteristics to guide the required boundary location 
alternatives analysis.  In addition, the City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan identifies specific 
areas and characteristics for consideration of land suitable for a new water treatment plant; the 
identified public/quasi-public land proposed for inclusion in the UGB meets these criteria.  Section 2 of 
this report has detailed boundary location alternatives analysis findings that apply the site suitability 
characteristics.   

The industrial site suitability characteristics are listed in detail in Table 6: Required Industrial Site 
Suitability Characteristics on page 21. 

 
660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (6) The adopted findings for UGB 
adoption or amendment must describe or map all of the alternative areas evaluated in the 
boundary location alternatives analysis.  If the analysis involves more than one parcel or area 
within a particular priority category in ORS 197.298 for which circumstances are the same, 
these parcels or areas may be considered and evaluated as a single group. 

Page 97



Page 68 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings that describe all of the alternative areas evaluated 
through the boundary location alternatives analysis.  In addition, all of the alternative areas have been 
mapped and may be seen on Map 4 and Map 11.   

Statewide Planning Goals and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan  
As required by State Senate Bill 100, the Newberg Comprehensive Plan addresses and is consistent with 
the established statewide planning goals and guidelines.  Each of the goals and/or policies within the 
Comprehensive Plan corresponds with an applicable statewide planning goal and implements the goal in 
conjunction with local needs and desires.  Because an Urban Growth Boundary amendment is also a 
Comprehensive Plan amendment, it must be found that “the proposed change is consistent with and 
promotes the goals and policies of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and this Code (Development 
Code)” (NMC 15.302.030 (2)(a)).  

660-024-0020 Adoption or Amendment of a UGB  

(1) All statewide goals and related administrative rules are applicable when establishing or 
amending a UGB, except as follows:  

(a) The exceptions process in Goal 2 and OAR chapter 660, division 4, is not applicable unless a 
local government chooses to take an exception to a particular goal requirement, for example, 
as provided in OAR 660-004-0010(1);  

(b) Goals 3 and 4 are not applicable; 

(c) Goal 5 and related rules under OAR chapter 660, division 23, apply only in areas added to 
the UGB, except as required under OAR 660-023-0070 and 660-023-0250;  

(d) The transportation planning rule requirements under OAR 660-012-0060 need not be 
applied to a UGB amendment if the land added to the UGB is zoned as urbanizable land, either 
by retaining the zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary or by assigning 
interim zoning that does not allow development that would generate more vehicle trips than 
development allowed by the zoning assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary;  

(e) Goal 15 is not applicable to land added to the UGB unless the land is within the Willamette 
River Greenway Boundary;  

(f) Goals 16 to 18 are not applicable to land added to the UGB unless the land is within a 
coastal shorelands boundary;  

(g) Goal 19 is not applicable to a UGB amendment.  

Finding:  As noted above, statewide planning goals 3, 4, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19 do not apply to this 
application.  The remaining goals are addressed through the applicable Comprehensive Plan goals and 
policies below.   

Page 98



Page 69 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Citizen Involvement (Statewide Planning Goal 1). NCP Goal: To maintain a Citizen Involvement 
Program that offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning 
process. 

Finding:  The overall goal is for all governing bodies to develop and maintain a citizen involvement 
program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.    
Public and agency involvement is addressed in Public Involvement and County Coordination Process for 
Newberg 2007 URA Expansion (Newberg Community Development Department, 2007) and the South 
Industrial Study (WRG, 2009).  In addition, Newberg and Yamhill County will be holding public hearings 
on the UGB expansion with adequate public notice for participation.  Coordination with DLCD, OBDD 
and the Governor’s ERT occurred in putting together revisions to the EOA and in developing industrial 
site selection criteria. 

Newberg has a citizen involvement strategy through Ordinance 91-2297.  Part of the evaluation of the 
current program notes that, in addition to other avenues of citizen participation, “involvement is also 
encouraged through citizen involvement at public meetings”.  The analysis section of the report also 
noted that “the City of Newberg has a sound and comprehensive citizen involvement program” (ORD 91-
2297).  Newberg is currently using the same citizen involvement program as described and analyzed by 
Ordinance 91-2297. 

Land Use Planning (Statewide Planning Goal 2).  NCP Goal: To maintain an on-going land use 
planning program to implement statewide and local goals. The program shall be consistent 
with natural and cultural resources and needs. 

Finding:  This goal provides for creating and maintaining a Comprehensive Plan for the city.  The 
statewide goal further states that “city…plans and actions related to land use shall be consistent with 
the comprehensive plans…adopted under ORS Chapter 268”.  This report serves to determine the 
compliance of the proposal with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan and statewide goals.  In 
addition, Goal 2 requires an adequate factual base, the consideration of alternatives, and coordination 
with Yamhill County and affected state agencies.   This report, the South Industrial Area Master Plan, 
and the Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis provide the principal factual bases for this UGB 
amendment.   

Agricultural Lands (Statewide Planning Goal 3 – Goal 3 does not apply to UGB amendments). 
NCP Goal: To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1) The conversion of urbanizable land from 
agricultural to urban land uses shall be orderly and efficient; 2) Agriculture is a part of our 
heritage, uniqueness, culture and future. Inclusion of lands in agricultural use within the 
Urban Growth Boundary is recognition of a commitment to future urbanization, as such lands 
are necessary to meet long-range population and economic needs, based on criteria outlined 
in the statewide Urbanization Goal. Urbanization of agricultural land shall be carefully 
considered and balanced with the needs of the community as a whole.  

Page 99



Page 70 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Finding:  The south study area is an appropriate place for future industrial development because it 
would result in an orderly and efficient transition from agricultural uses to urban uses.  This area is 
located near industrially zoned and developed land already, minimizing conflicts with adjacent 
residential or other agricultural lands, and can be easily served with city and private infrastructure.  
Newberg has a severe shortage of employment lands, a deficit that can only be remedied by choosing an 
appropriate place for future employment that meets the industrial site suitability criteria in the adopted 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.   

Wooded Areas (Statewide Planning Goal 4 – Goal 4 does not apply to UGB amendments). NCP 
Goal: To retain and protect wooded areas. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2) Development in drainageways shall be limited in 
order to prevent erosion and protect water quality. Trees provide needed protection from 
erosion and should be maintained.   

Finding:  The City has regulations governing development within mapped stream corridors, including the 
protection of vegetation.  The south study area is ringed by natural riparian areas with deep stream 
corridors.  Because the subject properties are located outside of the current Urban Growth Boundary, 
the City does not yet have the stream corridors mapped throughout the study area.  Stream corridors on 
these properties will be designated through this amendment as shown on Map 12.  Any future 
development on the study parcels will have to go through review to ensure that wetlands are protected. 

Air, Water, and Land Resource Quality (Statewide Planning Goal 6). NCP Goal: To maintain, 
and where feasible, enhance the air, water and land resource qualities within the community. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1) Development shall not exceed the carrying capacity 
of the air, water or land resource base; 5) New industry should be located in areas which 
minimize impacts upon the air, water, and land resource base, as well as upon surrounding 
land uses. 

Finding:  This UGB expansion is for industrial and public/quasi-public land.  The south study area is an 
appropriate place for industrial development as it is located adjacent to other industrially zoned and 
developed parcels, is adjacent to a major road network with access to the interstate, and can be 
adequately served with sewer and water.  The western portion of the south study area is an appropriate 
place for public/quasi-public land because it is adjacent to the City’s existing treatment plants, meets 
the site suitability criteria for public/quasi-public land, and was identified in the adopted Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan (2002) as the appropriate location for a new water treatment plant.  As noted 
above, any site development would have to comply with the city’s stream corridor regulations to protect 
the natural vegetation and the quality of water in the stream corridor.  The corridors themselves will 
serve to minimize impacts on surrounding land uses. 

Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards (Statewide Planning Goal 7). NCP Goal: To 
protect life and property from natural disasters and hazards.  

Page 100



Page 71 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Applicable Statewide Goal 7 Standards: A.2. (Natural Hazard Planning) Natural hazards for 
purposes of this goal are: floods (coastal and riverine), landslides, earthquakes and related 
hazards, tsunamis, coastal erosion, and wildfires. Local governments may identify and plan for 
other natural hazards; B.4. (Guidelines - Implementation) When reviewing development 
requests in high hazard areas, local governments should require site-specific reports, 
appropriate for the level and type of hazard prepared by a licensed professional. 

Finding:  Many of the properties in the south study area have portions of a natural stream corridor 
across or along them.  FEMA has mapped flood plains in the area.  The maps, with effective date March 
2, 2010, show all flood plains are contained within the mapped stream corridors (Map 5).  Yamhill 
County’s flood plain management regulations will apply prior to annexation, and Newberg’s flood plain 
management regulations will apply upon annexation. 

Open Space, Scenic, Natural, Historic and Recreational Resources (Statewide Planning Goals 5 
& 8). NCP Goals: 1) To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space 
use and that natural, scenic and historic resources are protected; 2) To provide adequate 
recreational resources and opportunities for the citizens of the community and visitors; 3) To 
protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the Willamette River Greenway. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.e) The floodplains and natural drainageway areas 
in Newberg should be preserved with a largely open character to provide a basic open space 
framework for the community. The capacities of these areas shall be maintained to provide a 
natural stormwater and natural drainage system, as well as to continue to provide a natural 
habitat for local fish and wildlife. Natural drainageways should be kept in open space uses. 
Bicycle and pedestrian pathways might be included in these areas. Care should be taken to 
minimize disturbances in these often erosive and steep areas. All uses should be compatible 
with the specific sites. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 5 Standards: Local governments shall adopt programs that will 
protect natural resources and conserve scenic, historic, and open space resources for present 
and future generations. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 8 Standards: To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the 
state and visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational 
facilities including destination resorts. 

Finding: In accordance with Goal 5, Newberg has adopted stream corridor regulations to protect 
and conserve the area within the stream corridor as open space for the city.   Many of the 
properties within the south study area have a portion of stream corridor across or along them. The 
west corridor is a portion of the Hess Creek stream corridor.  These are shown on Map 12.  The east 
corridor is part of the Springbrook Creek stream corridor.  Newberg’s comprehensive plan includes 
detailed Goal 5 ESEE findings regarding these two corridors.   The same findings apply to the 
portions of these corridors included in the present UGB amendment.  Any development on the 
properties would have to comply with the stream corridor regulations.  The stream corridor 

Page 101



Page 72 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

regulations restrict any development or mechanized removal of vegetation and seek to minimize 
any disturbance in the corridor area. 

The south study area for the industrial UGB expansion is within the study area for the South 
Industrial Area Master Plan.  The stream corridor areas are necessary to include within the UGB, not 
only to provide compatibility and buffering in accordance with other Goal requirements, but also to 
fulfill the provisions of the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP).  The stream corridor areas 
provide the necessary buffering and industrial amenities required and envisioned by the SIAMP.  
When discussing the master plan design concept, the plan states:  

“The plan district edges are designated as conservation corridors to protect existing 
natural areas and to provide a buffer to other surrounding uses in the immediate vicinity. 
The plan district design includes two parks to provide recreational access to the 
conservation areas and to complement the employment uses. The parks are located on 
each side of the plan area to ensure that recreational accessibility is evenly distributed 
across the employment district. The plan envisions a trail/multi-use path network within 
the conservation areas to create an integrated system that links this plan district to 
existing and planned city-wide and regional trail networks.” (SIAMP, p. 28) 

The plan goes into more detail about the conservation corridors and the industrial amenities on the 
following pages, noting that “The conservation corridor provides a distinctive edge to the plan 
district while also providing an effective buffer between planned land uses and existing uses in the 
immediate vicinity.” (SIAMP, p. 30)  The plan also states that “Park and recreational amenities are 
envisioned to contribute to the daily health and quality of life for those working within the plan 
districts and living nearby.” (SIAMP, p. 30)  The SIAMP was developed through an extensive public 
process and reflects the desires of the community to have a well-planned, attractive industrial area 
as the gateway to the city.  The Newberg City Council accepted the South Industrial Area Master 
Plan on November 2, 2009 through Resolution 2009-2872.   

Including the stream corridor areas within the UGB clearly meet the requirements of the 
Comprehensive Plan Goals as well as Goals 5 and 8.  As stated above, Newberg has effective stream 
corridor regulations to protect and conserve the areas as open space.  In addition, the corridors may 
provide some passive recreation benefits to the city and to the future industrial area as envisioned 
by the SIAMP, as well as provide the necessary buffering from adjacent properties.   

The Economy (Statewide Planning Goal 9). NCP Goal: To develop a diverse and stable 
economic base. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2.a) Industrial expansion shall be located and 
designed to minimize impacts on surrounding land uses; 2.c) Newberg shall actively pursue the 
inclusion of large industrial sites within the urban growth boundary; 2.d) The City shall 
undertake specific activities to encourage the growth of existing businesses, to encourage a 
diversity of businesses, and to attract new businesses to the community in industries that will 
provide local employment opportunities consistent with community needs and goals; 2.f) 

Page 102



Page 73 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Concerted community efforts should be made to see that industrial development expands 
outward from existing areas rather than occurring in haphazard patterns; 2.g) The City shall 
identify land that will provide for expansion of existing businesses and/or attract new 
businesses and shall reserve that land for future industrial development that is consistent with 
community needs and goals; 2.h) Where areas have been planned for large industrial sites, 
zoning regulations shall be developed and maintained to keep those sites intact.  Such sites 
shall not be further divided except to create planned industrial parks that support a specific 
industry.  

Finding: The site suitability criteria for industrial land take compatibility into account, an important 
principle stated multiple times in the Comprehensive Plan policies.  The south study area is the only 
area that meets all the site suitability criteria, including the compatibility criterion.  The south study 
area is located adjacent to other industrially zoned and developed parcels, ensuring that future 
industrial development will expand outward from an existing industrial area rather than occurring in 
a haphazard or leapfrog type of pattern.  The City’s Economic Opportunities Analysis contains 
Newberg’s economic development strategy for how to retain existing businesses and allow them to 
expand while at the same time providing enough land for new businesses to locate here.  This 
overall process was spurred by the work of the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s Future, which 
identified a need for large industrial sites within the City and gave the direction to try to remedy 
that problem.  Part of the overall process included the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP).  
The SIAMP identified a layout that would preserve large lot availability for future industrial 
development.  The large lot availability was preserved further through the adoption of the M-4 
Industrial zoning district requiring either a minimum of 20-acre parcels or Planned Unit 
Developments for smaller acreages (Ordinance 2009-2720).   

Housing (Statewide Planning Goal 10). NCP Goal: To provide for a diversity in the type, density 
and location of housing within the City to ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable 
housing units to meet the needs of City residents of various income levels. 

Finding: Inclusion of properties in the south study area in the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary will 
not help provide housing as prescribed by this goal.  However, it will provide additional industrial 
land which in turn will provide jobs, helping City residents afford housing.  In addition, industrial 
land provides a stable tax base for the city that generally doesn’t use many City resources (Police, 
Fire).   Therefore, inclusion of industrial land in the Urban Growth Boundary, and eventually 
annexing it into the city, may be beneficial to the housing goals and policies of the City.   

Urban Design. NCP Goals: 1) To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character 
of the City; 2) To develop and maintain the physical context needed to support the livability 
and unique character of Newberg.  

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.e) Developments should respect the natural ground 
cover of their sites to the extent possible and plans should be made to preserve existing 
mature, non-hazardous trees in healthy condition; 1.h) Landscaping shall be required along 
street frontage strips within the street right-of-way in order to soften the appearance of 

Page 103



Page 74 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

commercial and industrial developments;2.a) Industrial development should be encouraged to 
located in industrial parks offering good access, buffering and landscaping. 

Finding:  The south study area is located near other industrially zoned and developed properties, 
making properties within it a good choice to add to the Urban Growth Boundary.  The study area 
would have to comply with applicable City landscaping and buffering regulations, and the landscape 
provisions of the South Industrial Area Master Plan upon site development.  In addition, 
development on many of the properties would have to comply with the City’s stream corridor 
regulations to preserve and protect trees and other vegetation within the stream corridor.   

Public Facilities and Services (Statewide Planning Goal 11).  NCP Goal: To plan and develop a 
timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a 
framework for urban development. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2.b) The extension of publicly-owned facilities and 
services into currently undeveloped areas shall occur only in accordance with the Public 
Facilities and Service Plan; 2.d) Services shall be planned to meet anticipated community 
needs. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 11 Standards: A.1) Plans providing for public facilities and services 
should be coordinated with plans for designation of urban boundaries, urbanizable land, rural 
uses and for the transition of rural land to urban uses; A.5) A public facility or service should 
not be provided in an urbanizable area unless there is provision for the coordinated 
development of all the other urban facilities and services appropriate to that area.   

Finding:  The UGB expansion includes land designated as public/quasi-public, in part to allow for 
construction of a new water treatment Plant for Newberg.  The City has an adopted Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan (2002) that designates the site, the layout, and the estimated cost of the 
new plant. 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan includes plans for future sewer, water, storm drain, and 
transportation improvements to serve the UGB expansion area. 

Transportation (Statewide Planning Goal 12). NCP Goals: 1) Establish cooperative agreements 
to address transportation based planning, development, operation and maintenance; 2) 
Establish consistent policies which require concurrent consideration of transportation/land use 
system impacts; 3)Promote reliance on multiple modes of transportation and reduce reliance 
on the automobile; 4) Minimize the impact of regional traffic on the local transportation 
system; 5) Maximize pedestrian, bicycle, and other non-motorized travel throughout the City; 
6) Provide effective levels of non-auto oriented support facilities (e.g. bus shelters, bicycle 
racks, etc.); 7) Minimize the capital improvement and community costs to implement the 
transportation plan; 8) Maintain and enhance the City’s image, character and quality of life; 9) 
Create effective circulation and access for the local transportation system; 10) Maintain the 
viability of existing rail, water and air transportation systems; 11) Establish fair and equitable 

Page 104



Page 75 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

distribution of transportation improvement costs; 12) Minimize the negative impact of a 
Highway 99 bypass on the Newberg community. 

OAR 660-024-0020 (1)(d) The transportation planning rule requirements under OAR 660-012-
0060 need not be applied to a UGB amendment if the land added to the UGB is zoned as 
urbanizable land, either by retaining the zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion in the 
boundary or by assigning interim zoning that does not allow development that would 
generate more vehicle trips than development allowed by the zoning assigned prior to 
inclusion in the boundary; 

 
Finding:   Overall, this UGB amendment will provide significant benefits to the transportation system 
by reducing the number of workers that need to commute out of Newberg to work.  According to 
information from the U.S. Census, approximately 58% of workers in Newberg commute outside the 
community to go to work.14

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) will be amended as part of this request to include the 
proposed road network identified and planned for in the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP) 
(See 

  Creating opportunities for local employment will have an overall 
beneficial effect of lessening per capita vehicle miles traveled on area roads. 

Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan).  ODOT, Yamhill 
County Road Department, Marion County Public Works/Planning, and Newberg Planning Division 
and Public Works Engineering Division were all active participants in the planning and design of the 
SIAMP, including the proposed road network through the area.  More study will be done in the 
future to determine potential impacts to the local and regional transportation system; the City is not 
required at this time to address the Transportation Planning Rule under OAR 660-012-0060 until the 
zoning changes on the properties, allowing for uses that would generate more vehicle trips than 
currently permitted (OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d)).  The SIAMP designated several new major collector 
and local roadways throughout the south study area; the TSP currently requires all major collector 
streets to be built with bike lanes, and both types of roadway will have sidewalks on both sides.  In 
addition, a pedestrian and bicycle network of paths is being planned throughout the stream corridor 
areas of the SIAMP plan area.   

The south study area is the most appropriate place for future industrial development because it is 
the area with the fewest potential impacts on the existing transportation system: 

� Development is not likely to result in increased big truck traffic through downtown 
Newberg – due to its location, truck traffic will access I-5 via Highway 219 or will use the 
future 99W bypass route to travel westbound. 

� The area has good existing access to I- 5 via Highway 219. 
� The area is located adjacent to existing industrially zoned and developed properties so 

much of the traffic through the area is already industrial in nature – there will not be new 
conflicts with existing residential traffic. 

                                                            
14 Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2009 American Community Survey  

Page 105



Page 76 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

In reviewing the Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan 2005 Update (MCRTSP), it is clear that 
the UGB amendment is consistent with and promotes the goals contained in the plan.  The MCRTSP 
identifies Highway 219 and Ehlen/McKay Road as a “Strategic Intra/Inter- County Corridors” (See 
Appendix H: Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic Intra/Inter-County 
Corridors), and designates them as “freight routes.”  Chapter 10 of the RTSP (Transportation Policies) 
has the following policies: 

� Policy 11: The County recognizes the importance of facilitating freight movement. With this in 
mind, the strategic routes designated in Figure 7-1 are also hereby designated freight routes. 
Effort will be made to facilitate freight movement on freight routes. (10.3.1 Transportation 
System Planning Policies) 

In their 20-year strategy, Goal 2 is to “Provide an Accessible, Efficient, and Practical Transportation 
System.” The following objectives of that Goal provide favorable achievement of Strategy 3, Inter-
County Mobility: 

Facilitate goods movement into and out of area, increase freight mobility, and intermodal 
transfer. 

 Facilitate shipping of goods by the most efficient and least impactive means possible. 

 Address changing characteristics of trucking, aviation, agriculture, and rail industries. 

 Facilitate system connections as needed to improve efficiency and access. 

10.3.7 Urban Growth Management Framework Coordination Policies, Policy 6 is: 

  Improve key freight routes. 

The plan also makes the following statement: 

The Aurora/Donald Interchange serves the communities of Aurora and Donald, St. Paul, Canby, 
Barlow, Butteville, connects to the Aurora State Airport, and provides a good connection to 
Newberg and the Hwy 18/99W corridor, which connects to Yamhill County and the Coast.  (RTSP, 
pg. 12-9, emphasis added) 

It is clear that Newberg’s UGB amendment is consistent with the planned function of these routes, and 
the goals and policies contained in the Marion County RTSP. 

Newberg will coordinate future transportation analysis studies for the south industrial area with Yamhill 
County, Marion County, and the communities of St. Paul and Donald. 

Energy (Statewide Planning Goal 13). NCP Goal: To conserve energy through efficient land use 
patterns and energy related policies and ordinances. 

Page 106



Page 77 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.a) The city will encourage energy-efficient 
development patterns. Such patterns shall include the mixture of compatible land uses and a 
compactness of urban development.  

Applicable Statewide Goal 13 Standards: B.1)Land use plans should be based on utilization of 
the following techniques and implementation devices which can have  material impact on 
energy efficiency: a. lot size, dimension, and siting controls; b. building height, bulk and 
surface area; c. density of uses, particularly those which relate to housing densities; d. 
availability of light, wind and air; e. compatibility of and competition between competing land 
use activities; and f. systems and incentives for the collection, reuse and recycling of metallic 
and nonmetallic waste. 

Finding: The properties in the south study area are adjacent to existing and planned major 
transportation facilities (Highway 219 and the future Newberg-Dundee Bypass), and are adjacent to 
other industrially zoned and developed properties.  By including these properties in the Urban 
Growth Boundary with an Industrial designation, the City would be encouraging energy-efficient 
development patterns.  Any industrial development on these properties could have a symbiotic 
relationship with surrounding industrial uses, and would not require supply and delivery trucks to 
travel far off the main transportation facilities.   

In addition, any industrial development on the properties would have to comply with the Newberg 
Development Code standards (once annexed) for lot dimensions, density, bulk, and other similar 
standards in accordance with statewide Goal 13.   

This UGB amendment includes land that is currently used for the Newberg Garbage & Recycling 
Transfer site.  Bringing this land into the UGB with its existing use may also provide for greater 
collaboration with future surrounding industrial uses for the collection, reuse and recycling of 
metallic and nonmetallic waste.   

One of Newberg’s target industries includes alternative energy equipment manufacturing.  Including 
the land in the UGB will opportunities to develop new equipment to harness wind, solar, and other 
energy sources. 

A very important component is providing adequate land for local employment.  Newberg’s past 
population growth has been strong, and this growth is expected to continue.  If adequate 
employment land is not available, these residents will have to travel outside the community for jobs, 
greatly increasing energy usage.   

Urbanization (Statewide Planning Goal 14). NCP Goals: 1) To provide for the orderly and 
efficient transition from rural to urban land uses; 2) To maintain Newberg’s identity as a 
community which is separate from the Portland Metropolitan Area; 3) To create a quality 
living environment through a balanced growth of urban and cultural activities. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.a) The conversion of lands from rural to urban uses 
within the Urban Growth Boundary will be based on a specific plan for the extension of urban 

Page 107



Page 78 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

services; 1.b) The City shall oppose urban development outside the city limits but within the 
Newberg Area of Influence; 1.c) The City shall encourage urban development within the city 
limits; 1.d) The Urban Growth Boundary shall designate urbanizable land; 1.e) The City will 
support development within the areas outside the city limits but within the Newberg Urban 
Growth Boundary or Urban Reserve Area based on the following standards or restrictions: 
….New commercial or industrial uses will generally be discouraged within the UGB and Urban 
Reserve Area; 1.f) In expanding or otherwise altering the Urban Growth Boundary, the 
Boundary shall follow road rights-of-way, lot lines, or natural features;3.b) The City shall 
coordinate planning activities with the County in order that lands suitable for industrial use 
but not needed within the planning period are zoned in a manner which retains these lands for 
future industrial use.   

Applicable Goal 14 Standards:  

Land Need – Establishment and change of urban growth boundaries shall be based on the 
following: 1) Demonstrated need to accommodate long range urban population, consistent 
with a 20-year population forecast coordinated with affected local governments; and 2) 
Demonstrated need for housing, employment opportunities, livability or uses such as public 
facilities, street and roads, schools, parks or open space, or any combination of the need 
categories in this subsection (2).  In determining need, local government may specify 
characteristics, such as parcel size, topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable 
for an identified need.  Prior to expanding an urban growth boundary, local governments shall 
demonstrate that needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the 
urban growth boundary. 

Boundary Location – The location of the urban growth boundary and changes to the boundary 
shall be determined by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with ORS 197.298 
and with consideration of the following factors: 1) Efficient accommodation of identified land 
needs; 2) Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 3) Comparative 
environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and 4) Compatibility of the 
proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities occurring on farm and 
forest land outside the UGB.  

Applicable Goal 14 Guidelines: A.1) Plans should designate sufficient amounts of urbanizable 
land to accommodate the need for further urban expansion, taking into account (1) the 
growth policy of the area; (2) the needs of the forecast population; (3) the carrying capacity of 
the planning area; and (4) open space and recreational needs. A.2) The size of the parcels of 
urbanizable land that are converted to urban land should be of adequate dimension so as to 
maximize the utility of the land resource and enable the logical and efficient extension of 
services to such parcels. B.1) The type, location and phasing of public facilities and services are 
factors which should be utilized to direct urban expansion.   

Finding:  Section 1 of this report has detailed land need findings for Goal 14, and Section 2 of this 
report has detailed findings for the boundary location requirements of Goal 14.   

Page 108



Page 79 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

 
The identified stream corridors are an important component of the overall urbanizable area for the 
future industrial area, and including them fulfills the requirements of the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan and Goal 14.  First, including them meets the Comprehensive Plan Goal to “create a quality 
living environment through a balanced growth of urban and cultural activities.”  That goal illustrates 
the aim of the South Industrial Area Master Plan – to create a quality, attractive and balanced 
working environment for the workers in that area.  In this way, the stream corridors meet this goal 
by providing some respite and green space for the workers, as well as helping to create an attractive 
industrial area that is buffered from adjacent uses.  Including the stream corridor areas as shown on 
Map 12 also meets the Comprehensive Plan policy that says, “In expanding or otherwise altering the 
Urban Growth Boundary, the Boundary shall follow road rights-of-way, lot lines, or natural 
features.”  The proposed boundary of the UGB follows lot lines wherever practical, and follows the 
centerline of the creek on those lots where land on the other side of the stream corridor (on the 
same parcel) can be used in the future for another use.   

Goal 14 requires cities to show a demonstrated need for livability.  It goes on to say that local 
governments may specify characteristics necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need.  
The South Industrial Area Master Plan shows the stream corridors as meeting needs for livability for 
the future industrial area, both as buffers and amenities for the industrial uses.  Therefore, there is 
an inherent need for those things that can only be met through inclusion of the stream corridors.  
The boundary location requirements direct that you take into account “efficient accommodation of 
identified land needs” when deciding which land can meet the need.  In this case, a need for 
buffering (for livability of both the industrial area employers and workers as well as adjacent 
residents) for the future industrial area cannot be met in other areas not immediately adjacent to 
the future industrial area. 

Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 
A.  URBAN AREA DEVELOPMENT GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To encourage the containment of growth within existing urban centers, provide for the 

orderly, staged, diversified and compatible development of all of the cities of Yamhill 
County, and assure an efficient transition from rural to urban land use.   

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will, in cooperation with the cities and special districts of the county, 

encourage urban growth to take the form of a series of compact, balanced 
communities, each with its own business and community center and each related to 
industrial areas and other centers of employment.  

b. Yamhill County will cooperate and coordinate with each of the cities in the 
development of urban growth boundaries and will adopt an urban area growth 
management agreement with each city which outlines a growth management plan for 
unincorporated areas within the boundary and the means by which the boundary can 
be modified.  

c. Yamhill County will recognize the lands within established urban growth boundaries as 
the appropriate and desired location for urban development.  

Page 109



Page 80 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

2. To encourage the containment of urban services and facilities and other public capital 
improvements within existing urbanizing areas in order to achieve an orderly pattern of 
urban growth.  

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will continue to seek full cooperation and coordination among the 

cities, the school districts, other special-purpose districts of the county and the county 
itself in jointly planning and programming all land use, urban services and facilities 
and other public improvements having an impact on the rate and direction of urban 
growth.   

Finding:  The proposed UGB amendment to include identified large site needs within a master-
planned industrial area is consistent with Statewide Planning Goals 9 and 14, ensuring both an 
adequate supply of industrial sites over the planning period and a compact and efficient urban form. 
In addition, it meets the above policy (A.1.a.) of encouraging urban growth to be compact and have 
industrial areas and other centers of employment, as opposed to having dispersed industrial 
development throughout the city.  Having a central, planned industrial area located adjacent to 
existing industrial development will assure an efficient transition from rural to urban land use due to 
the ability to share resources such as high wattage power substations, sewer pump stations, and 
transportation infrastructure. The cost to extend utilities to industrial development can better be 
shared by many similar users as well.  This helps meet Goal 2 above as well by encouraging capital 
improvements within urbanizing areas to achieve an orderly pattern of growth. 

The proposed UGB amendment extends Newberg’s UGB to the southeast – avoiding infringement 
upon neighboring communities.  

Upon adoption, urban services and facilities will be contained within the amended UGB, as required 
by County and City comprehensive policies, and the NUAGMA.  These policies are met. 

B.  CITY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES  
a. All urban growth boundaries in the county will be delineated as shown on the plan 

map and no extension of urban land uses or city water and sewer services beyond the 
designated urban growth boundaries will be undertaken without concurrent 
amendments to both the respective city and county comprehensive plans.  

b. Yamhill County will encourage major land uses or functional areas and domestic water 
supply and sanitary sewer service areas in the cities to develop progressively outward 
and to be extended on a staged basis until they become coextensive with and fully 
service the designated urban area.  

 

Finding:  Newberg can efficiently provide the proposed UGB amendment area with urban services, 
as documented by the South Industrial Area Master Plan. No extension of urban services will occur 
until the UGB amendments are adopted. These policies are met. 

C.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GOAL STATEMENT  

Page 110



Page 81 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

1. To maintain a rate and pattern of economic growth sufficient to prevent recurring high 
levels of unemployment and under-employment in the county, balance the real property 
tax base of the various cities, and strengthen local economic bases.  

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will, in cooperation with the cities, the local chambers of commerce 

and affiliated industrial promotion groups, and State agencies concerned with State 
and regional economic development, encourage a diversified employment base, the 
strengthening of trade centers, and the attraction of both capital and labor intensive 
enterprises, consistent with the needs of each community and the county as a whole.  

b. Yamhill County will encourage economic development projects which do not conflict 
with the predominant timber and agricultural character of the county.  

Finding:  The proposed UGB amendment provides suitable sites for Newberg’s targeted industries, 
consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 9 (Employment). Adoption of the UGB amendment would 
encourage jobs, strengthen trade centers, and attract capital enterprises consistent with Yamhill 
County’s economic development objectives. These policies are met. 

D.  AGRICULTURAL LANDS GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To conserve Yamhill County's farm lands for the production of crops and livestock and 
to ensure that the conversion of farm land to urban use where necessary and appropriate 
occurs in an orderly and economical manner.  

Finding:  ORS 197.296 priorities effectively implement Yamhill County’s goal to protect farm lands 
where possible. As described in Sections 1 and 2, Newberg looked first to land inside the UGB, then 
land in urban reserve areas, then to exception areas, before determining that targeted industry site 
needs could only be met on farm lands in two potential areas. The selected UGB expansion site 
contains lower quality agricultural soils than the alternatives. 

The proposed UGB amendment will be buffered from agricultural uses to the east by natural 
constraints – slope breaks and riparian areas – and from agricultural uses to the south by a planned 
road. The South Industrial Area Master Plan ensures orderly and economical development.. 

Overall the Urban Growth Boundary is designed to preserve farm lands outside the boundary.  A 
UGB only is effective in achieving this goal if there is adequate land inside the boundary to 
accommodate future urban land uses.  This UGB amendment will help achieve the goal of 
conserving farm lands outside the boundary. 

E.  TRANSPORTATION GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To provide and encourage an efficient, safe, convenient and economic transportation 
and communication system, including road, rail, waterways, public transit and air, to serve the 
needs of existing and projected urban and rural development within the county, as well as to 
accommodate the regional movement of people and goods and the transfer of energy, 
recognizing the economic, social and energy impacts of the various modes of transportation. 

Page 111



Page 82 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

e. Yamhill County will cooperate with and support the State Highway Division, the Mid-
Willamette Valley Council of Governments, and any other county or regional transportation 
agency in an effort to establish a viable and productive regional transportation planning 
process and operations system geared to identifying, prioritizing and resolving both present 
and future transportation needs, with special reference to our county and regional network.   

k. All county transportation-related decisions will be made in particular consideration of 
energy efficiency and conservation.  

o. All transportation-related decisions will be made in support of the efficient and 
economic movement of people, goods, and services throughout the region, and will be based 
on the location and adequacy of facilities for such goods and services.  

Finding:  The Yamhill County Road Department was an active participant during the City’s South 
Industrial Area Master Plan process, including during the planning of the future road network 
through the study area.  The City of Newberg, Yamhill County, and other county or regional partners 
will continue to work cooperatively to plan and implement the future road network for the 
proposed industrial area.  As previously discussed above in the Goal 12 finding, the south study area 
is the best location for future industrial development as it is the most efficient location for existing 
and planned transportation networks and will have the least impact on surrounding uses. 

F.  AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To conserve and to protect natural resources, including air, water, soil and vegetation and 

wildlife, from pollution or deterioration which would dangerously alter the ecological 
balance, be detrimental to human health, or compromise the beauty and tranquility of the 
natural environment. 

Findings:  The Newberg Comprehensive Plan includes policies that address air, water and land 
resources quality as development occurs within the Newberg UGB.  LCDC has acknowledged these 
policies as adequate to address state and federal environmental standards.  The City of Newberg will 
protect identified riparian areas within the proposed UGB expansion when this land is annexed and 
developed in accordance with City standards. 

Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement 
The Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement (NUAGMA) is a joint agreement between 
Newberg and Yamhill County for coordination and cooperation in the management of growth in and 
around the Newberg Urban Area.  The NUAGMA covers Urban Growth Boundary agreements and says 
that decisions must be made based on the following factors: 

a. Demonstrated need to accommodate long-range urban population growth requirements 
consistent with LCDC goals; 

b. Need for housing, employment opportunities, and livability; 
c. Orderly and economic provision for public facilities and services; 
d. Maximum efficiency of land uses within and on the fringe of the existing urban area; 

Page 112



Page 83 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

e. Environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; 
f. Retention of agricultural land as defined, with Class I being the highest priority for retention and 

Class VI the lowest priority; and, 
g. Compatibility of proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural activities.  

Finding: As demonstrated previously in this report, the City has a demonstrated need for employment 
land to meet our long-range population requirements.  The south study area is the most appropriate 
place for future industrial lands as it is in a location where public infrastructure may be extended in an 
orderly and efficient manner.  The south study are is located adjacent to the existing wastewater 
treatment plant and the water treatment plant; the South Industrial Area Master Plan identifies a 
location for a new sewer pump station to serve the proposed industrial area and water can easily be 
brought to the area from Wynooski Road.  The south study area is also located adjacent to other 
industrially zoned and developed properties, making it an efficient place to locate new industrial 
developments with minimal conflicts with adjacent non-industrial uses.  In addition, the south study 
area is naturally buffered from other nearby agricultural uses by a natural stream corridor ringing the 
area.  Criteria e and f are addressed in more detail in Section 2 of this report. 

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
Section 151.122(B) (2) of the Newberg Development Code has criteria for Comprehensive Plan map 
amendments.  This UGB amendment package includes two different Comprehensive Plan Amendments: 

1. Amend the Comprehensive Plan Map to include 132 gross buildable acres, including 129 gross 
buildable acres of Industrial (IND) land and 3 gross buildable acres of Public/Quasi-Public (PQ) 
land. 

2. Change the Comprehensive Plan designation of 2 parcels of Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
land along Adolf Road to Industrial (IND) – a net gain of 1 buildable acre of industrial land. 

§151.122(B) (2) Amendment Criteria.  The City must demonstrate: 
(a) The proposed change is consistent with and promotes the objectives of the Newberg 

Comprehensive Plan and this code; 
(b) There is a public need for a change of the kind in question; 
(c) The need will be best served by changing the classification of the particular piece of property in 

question as compared with all other available property. 
(d) Compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) for proposals that 

significantly affect transportation facilities.   

Finding:  This report has detailed findings in support of the Comprehensive Plan amendment that would 
expand the UGB; therefore, this finding will focus on the second Comprehensive Plan amendment listed 
above.  The properties in question are bounded by Highway 219, Wilsonville Road, and Adolf Road, in a 
triangular configuration (See Map 12).  The area is not an appropriate place for residential development 
as it is bounded by busy roads, adjacent to future industrial uses, and is located in the future right-of-
way alignment of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  The Comprehensive Plan Goal for Housing is: “To 
provide for a diversity in the type, density and location of housing within the City to ensure there is an 
adequate supply of affordable housing units to meet the needs of City residents of various income 

Page 113



Page 84 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

levels.”  Although this amendment would remove land from the housing designation, including it in the 
industrial designation is a better fit for these reasons: 

� Because the triangular area is located in the future Bypass interchange area, there is only 
approximately one gross buildable acre.  Any housing units on this land still would be heavily 
affected by a bypass interchange ramp. 

� By including the land in industrial use instead, the land has the ability to provide jobs in the 
interim time before the Bypass interchange is constructed.  Local jobs provide residents with the 
income to afford other housing in Newberg and otherwise contribute to the community.   

The Transportation section of the Comprehensive Plan includes two relevant policies to this 
amendment:  

2.a) Transportation improvements shall be used to guide urban development and shall be 
designed to serve anticipated future needs; and 2.b) The city shall adopt zoning and 
development overlay regulations to manage land uses and access in the vicinity of Newberg-
Dundee Bypass interchanges that are consistent with the primary function of the bypass to 
serve through traffic and that are consistent with the Oregon Highway Plan.  Highway 
oriented development and retail commercial shall be precluded at proposed access points.   

The future Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-way and interchange planned for the area around 
Wilsonville Road/Wynooski Road/Highway 219 should be used to guide the form of urban development 
in the nearby area.  Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 
219 Interchange.  For this reason, the City seeks to redesignate the parcels from residential to industrial, 
and include an interim industrial overlay that further restricts the types of uses available to the 
properties.  As previously stated in this report, the City has a demonstrated need for industrial land, and 
this triangular area is in an optimal location for restricted industrial uses, and meets site suitability 
criteria as listed previously in this report.  Because the designation of the property would further restrict 
the available uses, the Transportation Planning Rule does not apply in this case. 

Conclusion 
Based on the findings in Sections 1-3, the proposed UGB amendment complies with applicable Oregon 
Administrative Rules, Oregon Revised Statutes, Oregon Statewide Planning Goals and provisions of the 
Newberg and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plans, the Newberg Urban Area Growth Management 
Agreement, and the Newberg Development Code. 

Overall Conclusion and Actions 
The proposed urban growth boundary amendment would meet most the needs for industrial land and a 
part of the need for public/quasi-public land for the Newberg Urban Area through 2032.  Figure 5 
summarizes the land needs met by this expansion. 

  

Page 114



Page 85 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Figure 5:  Meeting Industrial and Industrial Type PQ Needs through 2032 

 

 

The proposed urban growth boundary amendment and comprehensive plan amendment meet the 
applicable state statutes and rules, and comply with City and County comprehensive plan policies.  Thus, 
this report contains findings that support the following Newberg and Yamhill County actions: 

(1) Amend the comprehensive plan map to change the designation of two parcels (tax lots 3221-
2600 & 3228B-100) with 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) from Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) to Industrial (IND) 

(2) Amend the UGB to include 132 gross buildable acres of land as shown on Map 13. 

(3) Designate the properties included in the UGB as Industrial (IND) or Public/Quasi-Public (PQ) as 
shown on Map 12. 

(4) Designate a stream corridor overlay as shown on Map 12. 

(5) Amend the Newberg Transportation System Plan to include the road network as shown in 
Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan.

Buildable 
industrial 

land in UGB, 
56 ac. 

Buildable 
land to be 

redesignated 
industrial in 
UGB, 1 ac. 

Urban 
reserve 

land 
added to 

UGB, 3 ac. 

Rural 
exception 

land addded 
to UGB, 4 ac. 

Ag. Land 
added to 
UGB (Mix 

Class II-VI), 
124 ac. 

Ag land 
added to 

UGB (Class I), 
1 ac. 

Remaining 
unmet 
need, 5 

ac. 

All numbers are gross buildable acres. 

Page 115



Page 86 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 4: Maps 
 

Page 116



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
1

C
ity

 o
f N

ew
be

rg
In

du
st

ria
l L

an
d 

Su
pp

ly

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
B

ui
ld

ab
le

 In
du

st
ria

l
Ex

is
tin

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
U

N
D

EE
´

Page 117



W
as

te
w

at
er

Pl
an

t
Ex

pa
ns

io
n

I

IV

VI
I

VI
II

X

XI
I

XI

V

VI

II

III

IX

Airport

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
2

Si
te

s 
in

 U
G

B
 S

tu
di

ed
Fo

r C
ha

ng
e 

to
 In

du
st

ria
l

Le
ge

nd Pa
rc

el
 w

/ 5
+ 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
c.

Pl
an

ne
d 

B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
Bu

ild
ab

le
 In

du
st

ria
l L

an
d

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B
U

rb
an

 R
es

er
ve

 A
re

a
St

re
am

 C
or

rid
or

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE
´

VI
II 

   
  S

ite
s 

st
ud

ie
d

   
   

   
  f

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

   
   

   
  i

nd
us

tr
ia

l

Page 118



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
3

St
ud

y 
A

re
as

 w
ith

 
Ya

m
hi

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
Zo

ni
ng

 D
es

ig
na

tio
ns

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B
Ya

m
hi

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 Z

on
in

g
A

g 
Fo

re
st

 S
m

al
l H

ol
di

ng
 E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
/F

or
es

t
M

in
er

al
 R

es
ou

rc
e

R
es

id
en

tia
l E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t E
xc

ep
tio

n 
A

re
a

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

´

Page 119



109
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

13

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
4

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

Pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 L

an
d

B
y 

Pa
rc

el
 S

iz
e

Le
ge

nd Pl
an

ne
d 

By
pa

ss
 C

or
rid

or

Bu
ild

ab
le

 <
 5

 a
c.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 5
+ 

an
d 

<1
0 

ac
.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 1
0 

- 3
0 

ac
.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 >
 3

0 
ac

.

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

St
re

am
s 

an
d 

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE
´

14
  S

tu
dy

 S
ite

Th
is

 m
ap

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
gr

ou
ps

of
 p

ar
ce

ls
 in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
at

 le
as

t 2
0 

ac
re

s 
(o

r s
m

al
le

r
if 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
du

st
ria

l
di

st
ric

t).

Th
is

 m
ap

 a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

si
te

s
by

 s
iz

e 
ca

te
go

ry
.

Page 120



Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f
<5

%
 s

lo
pe

s,
 

5-
10

%
 s

lo
pe

s,
 

an
d 

st
ee

pe
r s

lo
pe

s.

M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

is
 >

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
, w

ith
 

la
rg

e 
ar

ea
s 

> 
10

%
 s

lo
pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 
>5

%
 a

nd
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
s

M
uc

h 
of

 s
ite

 h
as

 s
lo

pe
s 

ov
er

 1
0%

Sl
op

es
 o

ve
r 1

0%
 d

o
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r i
nd

us
tr

ia
l

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

La
rg

e 
pa

rt
 o

f s
ite

is
 >

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
, w

ith
so

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 s
lo

pe

Sl
op

es
 o

ve
r 1

0%
 d

o
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r i
nd

us
tr

ia
l

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
5

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

To
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

Su
ita

bi
lit

y

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

U
G

B
_S

tu
dy

_A
re

a

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 <

 5
 a

c.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 5

 - 
<1

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 1

0 
- 3

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 >

 3
0 

ac
.

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

Fl
oo

dp
la

in

Sl
op

e
Pe

rc
en

t 0%
 - 

5%

5%
-1

0%

>1
0%

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

To
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
Ex

cl
ud

e:
• S

lo
pe

s 
of

 1
0%

 o
r g

re
at

er
,

• S
ite

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 
   

le
ss

 th
an

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

-
   

m
en

t a
re

as
, a

nd
• A

re
as

 w
ith

in
 s

tr
ea

m
 c

or
rid

or
s

   
an

d 
w

et
la

nd
s.

´

Si
te

 is
 >

5%
 a

nd
>1

0%
 s

lo
pe

s

M
os

t o
f s

ite
 >

5%
 s

lo
pe

,
la

rg
e 

ar
ea

s 
>1

0%
 s

lo
pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or

9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

N
or

th
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
; 

So
ut

h 
is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
. 

Page 121



9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
6

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

:
In

du
st

ria
l P

ro
xi

m
ity

 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 <

 5
 a

c.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 5

+ 
an

d 
<1

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 1

0 
- 3

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 >

 3
0 

ac
.

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

In
cl

ud
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

or
 c

on
tig

uo
us

gr
ou

p 
of

 p
ar

ce
ls

:
1.

  W
ith

in
, o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B
,

   
  o

r 
as

 p
ar

t o
f g

ro
up

 o
f p

ar
ce

ls
 in

 th
e

   
  v

ic
in

ity
 o

f t
he

 U
G

B
 th

at
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
   

  c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
U

G
B

.
2.

  A
dj

oi
n 

an
 in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

   
  a

re
a,

 o
r t

ha
t c

on
ta

in
 a

t l
ea

st
 1

00
   

  a
cr

es
 to

 c
re

at
e 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a.
3.

  T
ha

t h
av

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

   
  a

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

   
  w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B

.
N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r a

rt
er

ia
l

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
.

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 is
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 in
du

st
ria

l d
is

tr
ic

t.
A

bu
ts

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 2
19

.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
co

ul
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B
.

C
or

ra
l C

re
ek

 R
d.

 a
cc

es
s

to
 H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
 n

ot
 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r t

ru
ck

 tr
af

fic
.  

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.

´

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
of

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l

A
cr

os
s 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 fr

om
 U

G
B

.
N

o 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l a
cc

es
s.

 
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

ar
ea

, n
or

 g
ro

up
 o

f b
ui

ld
ab

le
 p

ar
ce

ls
 

> 
10

0 
ac

re
s.

  

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
. N

o 
ac

ce
ss

to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t o
r s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t
or

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  

A
dj

ac
en

cy
 to

 U
G

B
 is

 is
su

e.
N

o 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l
st

re
et

 o
r s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
  

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 to
uc

he
s

on
e 

in
du

st
ria

l p
ro

pe
rt

y.
  A

cc
es

s
to

 S
pr

in
gb

ro
ok

 R
oa

d 
ar

te
ria

l 
st

re
et

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l. 
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ria
l

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

re
a,

 n
o 

gr
ou

p 
of

bu
ild

ab
le

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 1

00
 a

cr
es

.

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
.  

D
ire

ct
 h

ig
hw

ay
ac

ce
ss

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

. 

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.
A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B

 b
ut

 s
ep

ar
at

ed
by

 th
e 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
.

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
co

ul
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B
.  

C
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

of
 H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
 if

 a
cc

es
s

vi
a 

O
ld

 Y
am

hi
ll 

H
ig

hw
ay

 

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

U
G

B
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

1/
8 

m
ile

 o
f H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
.  

N
ot

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

ar
ea

, n
o 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 1
00

 a
cr

es
.

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 h
as

 >
 1

00
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.

A
cc

es
s 

to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

ar
te

ria
l. 

  

Page 122



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
7

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

:
C

om
pa

tib
ili

ty
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

10
%

 S
lo

pe
s 

or
 G

re
at

er

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

R
es

id
en

tia
l A

re
as

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l
to

 e
as

t. 
 W

ou
ld

 re
qu

ire
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

to
 w

es
t a

nd
 s

ou
th

.  
U

nb
uf

fe
re

d
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

Su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
tia

l

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

to
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 w
es

t

B
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 

ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

by
 s

tr
ea

m
 c

or
rid

or
s.

St
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 a

rt
er

ia
l

cr
ea

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.  

Tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

on
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l
on

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

 W
ou

ld
re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 to

 re
ac

h
ar

te
ria

l. 
 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 
Ex

cl
ud

e 
si

te
s 

th
at

:
1.

 A
bu

t r
es

id
en

tia
l n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
ds

   
 o

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 2
5%

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 p

er
im

et
er

   
 u

nl
es

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

to
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l b
uf

fe
rs

 
   

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

.
2.

 R
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

af
fic

 to
 tr

av
el

 th
ro

ug
h

   
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

a 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
   

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
to

 re
ac

h 
an

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

   
 o

r s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
.  

 ´

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k
tr

av
el

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

- 
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 to
 re

ac
h

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r a

rt
er

ia
l. 

 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

In
 th

e 
m

id
dl

e 
of

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

ar
ea

 w
ith

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  
 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l

to
 e

as
t, 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t.

Si
te

 is
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

ed
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
tia

l a
re

a.
  W

ou
ld

re
qu

ire
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

R
es

id
en

tia
l b

ou
nd

ar
y 

is
 <

 2
5%

.
Tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 o

n 
ar

te
ria

l s
tr

ee
t.

St
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 a

rt
er

ia
l

cr
ea

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.  

Tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

on
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

Page 123



11

14
W

IL
SO

N
VI

LL
E

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

9T
H

ADOLF

R
A

IN
TR

EE

SANDOZ

O
A

K
 M

EA
D

CORRAL CREEK

U
N

N
A

M
ED

 S
TR

E
ET

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILLE

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
EN

N
ED

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
8

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 A
er

ia
l P

ho
to

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
1

Si
te

 1
4

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´
14

Si
te

Page 124



11

14
W

IL
SO

N
V

IL
LE

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

ADOLF

9T
H

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

O
A

K 
M

EA
D

CORRAL C
REEK

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILL

E

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
9

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 S
oi

l C
la

ss
 in

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l P
la

nn
ed

A
re

as

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
4

Si
te

 1
1

SO
IL

_C
LA

SS
I II III IV VI Ex

is
tin

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

14
Si

te

Page 125



11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.5

11
.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

ADOLF

9T
H

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

O
A

K 
M

EA
D

CORRAL C
REEK

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILL

E

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
10

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 S
ub

si
te

s 
an

d
Pr

io
rit

y 
C

la
ss

es

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
1

Si
te

 1
4

Pr
io

rit
y 

C
la

ss
Pr

io
rit

y 1s
t -

 U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve

2n
d 

- R
ur

al
 E

xc
ep

tio
n

4t
h 

H
ig

h-
A

gr
., 

C
la

ss
 II

I &
 lo

w
er

4t
h 

M
ed

.-A
gr

., 
C

la
ss

 II
 w

/II
I, 

V
I

4t
h 

Lo
w

-A
gr

., 
C

la
ss

 II
 w

/I,
 II

I, 
V

I

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

Pl
an

ne
d 

B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

14
.1

Su
bs

ite

Page 126



11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

8T
H

WYNOOSKI

11
TH

RENNE

STATE HWY 219

RIVER

PARRISH

NEUMANN

DOG RIDGE

ADOLF

PACIFIC

12
TH10

TH
9T

H

14
TH

SANDOZ

AIRPARK

COLUMBIA

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

13
TH

SIEFKEN

PI
N

AF
O

R
E RIVERSIDE

CENTER

INDUSTRIAL

A
LL

E
Y

SP
R

IN
G

BR
O

O
K

C
O

R
IN

N
E

MILL

ROGERS LA
NDIN

G

M
CK

ER
N

COMMERCE

9T
H

UNNAMED STREET

0
1,

20
0

2,
40

0
60

0
Fe

et

M
A

P 
11

U
rb

an
 G

ro
w

th
 B

ou
nd

ar
y

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

Le
ge

nd Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

A

Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

B

Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

C

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

ll 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

yp
as

s 
C

or
rid

or

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.511

.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

WYNOOSKI

HASH

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

RAINTREE

INDUSTRIAL

M
C

K
ER

N STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

HASH

NEUMANN

R
AI

N
TR

EE

11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.511

.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

WYNOOSKI

PARRISH

HASH

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

RAINTREE

AIRPARK

INDUSTRIAL

M
CK

ER
N

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
A

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
B

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
C

Th
is

 m
ap

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

re
e 

bo
un

da
ry

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

us
in

g
th

e 
G

oa
l 1

4 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
Fa

ct
or

s.
A

ll 
th

re
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
re

 4
th

 p
ri

or
ity

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l l

an
d,

 a
nd

 c
on

ta
in

 
ro

ug
hl

y 
eq

ua
l a

m
ou

nt
s 

of
bu

ild
ab

le
 la

nd
.

14
.1S

ub
si

te

Page 127



PQ
IN

D

IN
D

IN
D

*
*

U
G

B
 e

xt
en

ds
 to

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

U
G

B
 e

xt
en

ds
 to

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

U
G

B
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

po
rti

on
of

 p
ro

pe
rty

 n
ot

 a
lre

ad
y

in
 U

G
B

Pr
op

er
tie

s 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 U
G

B
re

de
si

gn
at

ed
 IN

D

PARRISH

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

STATE HWY 219

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

DOG RIDGE
NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

HASH

M
C

K
ER

N

UNNAMED STREET

R
AI

N
TR

EE

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
12

Se
le

ct
ed

 U
G

B
 A

m
en

dm
en

t
an

d 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n 
M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t A
re

a
w

ith
 P

ro
po

se
d 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
Pl

an
 D

es
ig

na
tio

ns

Le
ge

nd Ex
pa

nd
ed

 U
G

B

A
ffe

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
la

n 
D

es
ig

na
tio

n
PQ

  P
ub

lic
/Q

ua
si

-P
ub

lic

IN
D

  I
nd

us
tri

al

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

St
re

am
 C

or
rid

or
 O

ve
rla

y

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´
*Fu

tu
re

 P
ar

k 
S

ite

Page 128



32
28

   
00

90
0

96
80

 A
D

O
LF

 R
D

32
28

   
01

00
0

91
50

 S
T 

PA
U

L 
H

W
Y

 N
E

32
28

   
01

90
0

ST
 P

A
U

L 
H

W
Y 

N
E

32
28

   
00

80
1

96
90

 A
D

O
LF

 R
D

3229   00400
2608 WYNOOSKI

3228   01700
WYNOOSKI

32
28

   
00

80
2

10
10

0 
A

D
O

LF
 R

D

3228   01100
9195 ST PAUL HWY NE

3228   01200

9475 ST PAUL HWY NE

32
29

   
00

60
0

24
12

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
29

   
02

20
0

13
01

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
29

   
00

50
0

26
00

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
28

   
00

80
0

28
57

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
21

   
05

30
0

28
73

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
21

   
05

20
0

28
74

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
29

   
00

20
2

 

32
28

B
B

 0
01

00
A

D
O

LF
 R

D

32
21

   
02

60
0

S
T 

PA
U

L 
H

W
Y

 N
E

PARRISH

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

STATE HWY 219

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

DOG RIDGE

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

SIEFKEN

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

HASH

M
C

K
ER

N

UNNAMED STREET

R
AI

N
TR

EE

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
13

Pr
op

er
ty

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Le
ge

nd Af
fe

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rti

es

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

Page 129



Forecasts of Oregon's County Populations and Components of Change, 2000 - 2040

Note: populations as of July 1
Base population of July 1, 2000: Totals estimated by PRC, PSU and age-sex details estimated by OEA based on Census Bureau's distributions.
Oregon's age-sex detail may not match with the short-term forecast released in the OEA's Economic and Revenue Forecast
Prepared by Office of Economic Analysis, Department of Administrative Services, State of Oregon
Release: April 2004

Area Name 2000 2003 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040
Oregon 3,436,750 662,816 3,618,200 3,843,900 4,095,708 4,359,258 4,626,015 4,891,225 5,154,793 5,425,408
Yamhill 85,500 88,150 90,098 98,932 108,812 119,011 129,850 141,505 153,549 166,776

Population Change
Estimate

Area Name 2000-2003 2000-2005 2005-2010 2010-2015 2015-2020 2020-2025 2025-2030 2030-2035 2035-2040
Oregon 104,750 181,450 225,700 251,808 263,550 266,757 265,210 263,568 270,615
Yamhill 2,650 4,598 8,834 9,880 10,199 10,839 11,655 12,044 13,227

Annual Growth Rate
Estimate

Area Name 2000-2003 2000-2005 2005-2010 2010-2015 2015-2020 2020-2025 2025-2030 2030-2035 2035-2040
Oregon 1.00% 1.03% 1.21% 1.27% 1.25% 1.19% 1.11% 1.05% 1.02%
Yamhill 1.02% 1.05% 1.87% 1.90% 1.79% 1.74% 1.72% 1.63% 1.65%

Estimates (PSU) FORECAST

FORECAST

FORECAST

Attachment 22  
to Ord 2012-2751

Page 130



1

Barton Brierley

From: Roger Currier [rcurrier@hevanet.com]
Sent: Monday, February 27, 2012 4:28 PM
To: Barton Brierley; Marc Shelton; Bob Andrews; Bart Rierson; Denise Bacon; 

Wade Witherspoon; Stephen McKinney
Cc: Leslie Lewis; Kathy George; Mary Stern
Subject: UGB expansion letter.doc

City of Newberg 
Re: UGB -09-001 
For the record of the UGB expansion 

Newberg City Council, I understand that you  are again considering  the same UGB 
amendment that failed ( reconsidered) last time. It seems that from what I have followed that 
Yamhill County Comissioners have not as yet produced a new population number. I believe that 
this failed last time due to the numbers possibly being larger for projections than actual?  

How can you reconsider something that was sent back based on that projection if you do 
not have it yet? I would think that the idea of a hearing would wait until these numbers are 
released in final form? How can you believe that they have changed enough (in your favor) to 
quantify this hearing before the release? 

And further on that subject, I believe that the numbers for growth have “maybe” fallen 
from the original given the state of the County now? So if the numbers “when” released  are less, 
what would your basis be for passing this same UGB expansion? Remember tat you have already 
stated that what you needed in the original application was on these large (unverified by the 
County) numbers for population. 

Roger Currier 
Newberg, Or.
97132

Attachment 23 to 
Ord. 2012-2751

Page 131



City of Newberg 

Industrial UGB Expansion and 

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 

Report and Findings 

DRAFT  February 2012

 

A b 2012

Exhibit "A" to  
Ordinance 2012-2751

Page 132



 

Page 133



Page i CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

City of Newberg 
Industrial UGB Expansion and Comprehensive Plan Amendment 

Report and Findings 

Contents 
List of Tables .................................................................................................................................... ii 
List of Maps ...................................................................................................................................... ii 
List of Background Studies .............................................................................................................. iii 

SUMMARY.................................................................................................................................................. 1 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

Background ...................................................................................................................................... 2 
Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy .................................................................................. 7 
Summary of Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Boundary Amendment Process ................ 11 

SECTION 1: NEWBERG’S 2032 INDUSTRIAL LAND NEED AND SUPPLY .................................... 14 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 14 
Summary of Land Need Rules ........................................................................................................ 14 
How Newberg Determined Its Land Needs ................................................................................... 15 
Meeting Newberg’s Land Needs inside the UGB ........................................................................... 17 
Land Needs That Only Can Be Met by UGB Expansion .................................................................. 24 

SECTION 2: URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY LOCATION ANALYSIS ............................................ 26 

Summary of Boundary Location Analysis Rules and Process ......................................................... 26 
Inventory of Land Suitable for Industrial Use Adjacent to the UGB .............................................. 29 
Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis ................................................................................... 44 
Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis Summary and Conclusion ......................................... 55 

SECTION 3: FINDINGS FOR APPLICABLE STATUTES, RULES, GOALS, AND
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS ..................................................................................................................... 59 

State Statutory and Rule Requirements ........................................................................................ 59 
Statewide Planning Goals and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan ............................................... 68 
Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies ............................................................... 79 
Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement .............................................................. 82 
Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment ......................................................................................... 83 
Conclusion ...................................................................................................................................... 84 

OVERALL CONCLUSION AND ACTIONS ........................................................................................... 84 

SECTION 4: MAPS.................................................................................................................................... 86 

APPENDICES .......................................................................................................................................... 100 

Appendix A: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012) ................................................. A-1 
Appendix B:  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments ................................................................. B-1 
Appendix C:  Economic Opportunities Analysis and Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment 

Findings ............................................................................................................................. C-1 
Appendix D: Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Amendment ................................................. D-1 
Appendix E: Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information .............................................. E-1 

Page 134



Page ii CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 
Interchange ....................................................................................................................... F-1 

Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan ....................... G-1 
Appendix H: Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic Intra/Inter-

County Corridors .............................................................................................................. H-1 
Appendix I:  Site Photos ................................................................................................................. I-1 
Appendix J: DLCD Notices of Proposed Amendment .................................................................... J-1 

 

List of Tables 
Table 1: Newberg's Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages ............................................................... 8 
Table 2: Newberg’s Targeted Industries ..................................................................................................... 10 
Table 3:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 2032 ........................................................ 15 
Table 4:  Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 2032 .......................................................... 16 
Table 5:  Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012) ....................................................................... 18 
Table 6: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics ....................................................................... 21 
Table 7:  Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032 ........................................................................... 25 
Table 8: Summary of Industrial Site Suitability Analysis ............................................................................. 38 
Table 9:  Buildable Acres in Boundary Alternatives .................................................................................... 47 
Table 10:  EEES Consequences Summary .................................................................................................... 53 
Table 11:  Location Factor Summary........................................................................................................... 54 
Table 12:  Sites included in UGB by Priority Class ....................................................................................... 56 
Table 13:  Properties Redesignated Industrial or Included in UGB ............................................................. 57 
Table 14:  Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor . 61 
Table 15:  UGB Designation by Priority ....................................................................................................... 66 

 

List of Maps 
Map 1:  City of Newberg Industrial Land Supply ......................................................................................... 87 
Map 2: Sites in UGB Studied for Change to Industrial ................................................................................ 88 
Map 3:  Study Area with Yamhill County Zoning Designations ................................................................... 89 
Map 4:  Newberg Study Areas Parcels with Buildable Land by Parcel Size ................................................ 90 
Map 5:  Newberg Study Areas Topographic Suitability .............................................................................. 91 
Map 6:  Newberg Study Areas:  Industrial Proximity Requirements .......................................................... 92 
Map 7:  Newberg Study Areas:  Compatibility Requirements .................................................................... 93 
Map 8:  Sites 11 and 14 with Aerial Photo .................................................................................................. 94 
Map 9:  Sites 11 and 15 with Soil Class in Agricultural Planned Areas ....................................................... 95 
Map 10:  Sites 11 and 14 with Subsites and Priority Classes ...................................................................... 96 
Map 11:  Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Alternatives ........................................................................ 97 
Map 12:  Selected UGB Amendment and Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment Area with Proposed 
Comprehensive Plan Designations .............................................................................................................. 98 
Map 13:  Property Information ................................................................................................................... 99 

Page 135



Page iii CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

List of Background Studies 
� City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land (Johnson-Gardner, 2004)  
� Report and Recommendations to Newberg City Council (Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s 

Future, 2005) 
� Newberg Water Features Inventory (Winterbrook Planning, 2006) 
� Public Involvement and County Coordination Process for Newberg 2007 URA Expansion 

(Newberg Community Development Department, March 2007) 
� City of Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012)  
� City of Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2006) 
� Newberg Ordinance 2005-2626 (Adopting population and land needs). 
� Newberg Public Facilities Plan Capital Improvements – Water (City of Newberg 1991) 
� Water Treatment Facilities Plan (City of Newberg, 2002) 
� Letter from Tom Fox (Oregon Business Development Department  December 1, 2009) 
� Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan (WRG 2009) 
� M-4 Industrial Zoning District (Adopted, Ordinance 2009-2720) 
� Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industries, November 2010 

 
 

Page 136



Page 1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Summary 
Newberg is a thriving community that boasts a high quality of life, good jobs, good parks, schools and 
other institutions, and a strong sense of community.  Newberg also is growing.  Its population has grown 
65% in the past two decades, and it is expected to continue to grow.  In order to keep Newberg a 
community where citizens can “live here, work here, and shop here,” it must make strong efforts to 
retain and attract business that can employ its citizens and bring new resources to the community. 

To achieve this goal, Newberg has adopted an economic development strategy that focuses both on 
retaining and growing existing businesses and on recruiting new businesses.  Newberg has identified 
four primary existing business clusters that it can expect 
to expand and attract: manufacturing, health care, higher 
education, and the wine/tourism industry.  

Unfortunately, Newberg finds itself with a severe 
shortage of industrial land within its Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB) to retain and attract these types of 
industries, particularly in the manufacturing cluster.   

Newberg considered the infill and redevelopment 
potential of existing industrial sites to meet these needs.  
Infill, redevelopment, and intensification of uses can 
potentially accommodate needs for about 44 percent of 
expected firms.  However, even with these 
considerations, Newberg will still need 138 gross 
buildable acres1

In conjunction with the Oregon Business Development 
Department, industry experts, professional literature, and 
local interviews, Newberg has determined the site sizes 
and characteristics needed to attract its targeted industries.  In general, industries need sites that are 
large and level, have adequate access, and that are near existing industrial areas. 

 of industrial and industrial type 
public/quasi-public land to meet its needs through 2032.  

This study considers whether industrial needs could be met by redesignating land within the existing 
UGB to meet industrial land needs.  Newberg studied 12 sites within the UGB that potentially could 
meet its industrial land need.   Of these, only one site meets or could meet industrial land needs, and 
that site contains only 1 gross buildable acre of land. 

The study then considered expanding the UGB to accommodate Newberg’s future land needs.  The 
study considered 21 potential sites around the UGB that might be able to meet future industrial needs.  

                                                           
1 Acreage figures in this report have been rounded to the nearest acre.  For more detailed property by property calculations, see Table 13on page 

61. 

Figure 1:  Meeting Industrial Land Needs by 
Percent of Firms 

Through 
infill & 

redevelop
ment 
44% 

On 
buildable 
industrial 

land in 
UGB 
18% 

On land 
inside 
UGB 

redesigna
ted 

industrial 
1% 

On land 
added to 

UGB 
37% 

Page 137



Page 2 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Of these, only two sites meet the site suitability criteria needed for the target industries.  All other sites 
failed to meet one or more of the industrial site suitability criteria.  Both suitable sites are located on the 
south side of Newberg near Highway 219, Wynooski Road and Wilsonville Road.  That area has large, 
level sites, has excellent access, is adjacent to existing industrial areas, and has natural buffers from 
residential areas.  

Some of the land within one of the sites is within the Newberg Urban Reserve Area established in 1995.  
Some of the land is rural exception land.  The remainder is on farm land, which is fourth priority for 
inclusion in a UGB.  An inventory of suitable land found no higher priority lands that met the required 
site characteristics; thus, Newberg can justify inclusion of these fourth priority lands. In conjunction with 
including the south study area into the UGB, Newberg has identified some property in the area that 
would be appropriate for a water treatment plant and for designation as Public/Quasi-Public. 

This report provides findings in support of two changes: 

� Inclusion of 132 gross buildable acres (260 total acres) into the Newberg Urban Growth 
Boundary (UGB).  Of the 132 gross buildable acres, 129 gross buildable acres would receive a 
comprehensive plan designation of Industrial (IND), and 3 gross buildable acres would be 
designated Public/Quasi-Public (PQ). 

� Redesignation of 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) of land already in the Newberg UGB from 
Medium Density Residential (MDR) to Industrial (IND). 

This report includes findings addressing the applicable state and local rules for amending the 
comprehensive plan map and urban growth boundary. 

Introduction 

Background 

Description of Newberg 
Newberg is a thriving, independent community in Yamhill County, located in the Willamette Valley.  It is 
about 25 miles southwest of Portland, and about 30 miles north of Salem.  Newberg is on Highway 99W, 
a major transportation corridor to Yamhill County, the western Willamette Valley, and the Oregon 
Coast.  According to the 2010 Census, Newberg has a population of 22,068.  The Newberg UGB has an 
estimated 2011 population of 22,7942

Newberg’s city limits encompass 5.8 square miles and the urban growth boundary includes 6.6 square 
miles.  There are 0.9 square miles remaining in Newberg’s urban reserve as established in 1995. 

. 

                                                            
2 Source:  Newberg Planning Division, 2011, based on 2011 Population Estimate from PSU, andU.S. Census 2010 data at the block level. 

Page 138



Page 3 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The Newberg urban area is bounded on the south by the Willamette River.  On the east is Parrett 
Mountain, and on the north is Chehalem Mountain.   To the west is the Chehalem Valley, which includes 
more level farm and rural residential land.  The City of Dundee is about two miles to the southwest. 

Newberg is home to George Fox University, a private university with about 2,000 students.  Portland 
Community College recently opened new campus in Newberg, which provides excellent vocational 
training services for local employers.  The Newberg School District operates a high school and several 
other schools in Newberg.  There are several other private schools that are successful in the area. 

Newberg has a strong industrial base.  According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Newberg has about 60 
percent more than the national average in percentage of workforce in manufacturing employment.  
Major industrial employers include A-dec and several other dental equipment manufacturers, Climax 
Portable Machine Tools, SP Newsprint, and Harris Thermal Transfer Products.  

Planning History 

Comprehensive Plan Adoption 
Newberg’s comprehensive plan was acknowledged by the State of Oregon on August 6, 1981.  The plan 
included an urban growth boundary, which was estimated to contain sufficient land to meet needs 
through 2000.  Newberg underwent Periodic Review in the early 1990’s. At that time, Newberg 
determined that the UGB contained adequate land to meet needs through 2010. 

1995 Urban Reserve Adoption 
In 1992 and 1993, the Oregon state legislature and the Oregon Land Conservation and Development 
Commission (LCDC) adopted statutes and rules on urban reserves.  These required Newberg and other 
cities to adopt an urban reserve area.  

In 1995, the City of Newberg and Yamhill County jointly established Oregon’s first urban reserve area 
(URA).  The 1995 URA contained 750 gross buildable acres, which was estimated to accommodate 
growth needs through the year 2020, or 10 years beyond the urban growth boundary time frame 
(Newberg Ordinance 95-2397). 

Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future 
By 2003, it was clear that the Newberg UGB no longer contained a 20-year supply of buildable land.  
Newberg decision makers faced a number of questions about the amount and direction of future growth 
of the city.  To formulate a direction for the future of Newberg, the Newberg City Council established 
the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future (the committee) in 2003.  The Council created the 
committee to provide a forum for citizen involvement in planning for Newberg’s future land use 
patterns. The committee was asked to make recommendations that would help the City Council make 
future amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.  In support of the committee’s deliberations, the City 
undertook population, employment, housing and buildable lands studies.  The City considered 
Newberg’s future land use needs through the years 2025 and 2040.   

The committee met from April 2004 to July 2005 and considered future population, employment and 
housing needs, and buildable land requirements for residential, institutional, industrial and commercial 

Page 139



Page 4 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

development.  The committee reviewed the supply of buildable land within the existing UGB, and 
evaluated land suitability in designated Urban Reserve Areas (URAs) and surrounding Urban Reserve 
Study Areas. 

The committee received support from City staff and consultants, including Barry Edmonston, Johnson-
Gardner Associates and Winterbrook Planning. The committee also sought and received input from state 
agencies and the general public, including residents, businesses, and property owners within the 
Newberg city limits and nearby.  The committee provided for citizen involvement at 26 public meetings 
and two public open houses.  The committee also conducted two surveys, received comments at each of 
their meetings, and reviewed scores of letters.  As a result of this process, the committee made 
recommendations regarding future land needs, buildable lands, and the magnitude and direction of UGB 
and URA expansion.  The committee presented its Report to Newberg City Council on July 21, 2005.  The 
City Council unanimously accepted the committee’s report. 

A key recommendation of the committee was that Newberg should not simply be a bedroom 
community that provided housing but no new jobs.  The committee felt strongly that the community 
needed to expand its industrial base so that existing and future residents could work in the community 
without commuting to other communities.  A strong industrial base also would serve to bring wealth 
and stability to the community, and thus improve the quality of life for all residents. 

The committee considered a number of general options for future industrial growth.  After considering 
the existing supply of industrial land and various options for expansion, the committee concluded that 
the south study area was uniquely suited to meet the community’s future industrial needs.  The area has 
the site characteristics sought after by industries, has excellent access to transportation facilities, is 
adjacent to existing industrial areas, and has excellent separation from incompatible uses.  The 
committee recommended including adequate land from the area into the urban growth boundary to 
meet the 20-year need for industrial land, and including the remainder of the area in the urban reserve 
to meet land needs through 2040. 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments 
On August 1, 2005, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2005-2590, directing City staff to undertake 
activities needed to implement the recommendations of the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future.  
The City Council subsequently adopted a series of ordinances based on this report as described below.   

� Newberg Transportation System Plan  (2005 Update – Ordinance 2005-2619) 

� Newberg Comprehensive Plan  (Revised Population Projection and Land Needs Assessment – 
Ordinance 2005-2626) 

� Newberg Comprehensive Plan Policy Amendments  (Ordinance 2006-2634) 

� Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis  (Ordinance 2006-2635) 

� Newberg Urban Growth Boundary Amendments (Ordinance 2006-2661) (added approximately 
200 gross buildable acres, largely for residential use) 
 

Each of the above amendments was acknowledged through the post-acknowledgment plan amendment 
process. 

Page 140



Page 5 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

2007 Urban Reserve Amendment 
In July 2008, the Newberg City Council and the Yamhill County Board of Commissioners approved the 
2007 Urban Reserve Amendment package.  This adoption was the result of an extensive public 
involvement process that began with Newberg Urban Area Management Commission (NUAMC) 
workshops in 2006.  NUAMC held a series of hearings in 2007 to consider the plan.  The Newberg City 
Council held hearings later in 2007 and into 2008.  The Yamhill County Commissioners also held hearings 
on the plan in 2008.  After extensive deliberation and some negotiation between the two bodies, both 
adopted the proposed urban reserve.  Newberg adopted the urban reserve on July 7, 2008 through 
Ordinance 2008-2698.  Yamhill County adopted the urban reserve on July 16, 2008 through Ordinance 
828.  The adopted URA included the south study area.  Newberg submitted DLCD notice of the adoption 
of the urban reserve, along with the record, on August 28, 2008. 

On April 10, 2009, DLCD issued Order No. 001767, remanding the urban reserve designation.  In the 
decision, DLCD raised concerns about Newberg’s targeted industries list contained in the adopted and 
acknowledged EOA.  The department also raised concerns about including land in an urban reserve to 
meet needs for specific identified land needs.   

On May 1, 2009, Newberg appealed the DLCD remand order to LCDC.  Other parties also appealed.  
LCDC held hearings to consider the appeals on June 5, 2009 and July 21, 2009.  In its July 9, 2009 
supplemental report, page 9, the Department stated an opinion that: 

Finally, the city may well be able to demonstrate a need for large, relatively flat 
industrial lands based on its recent economic opportunities analysis.  The course for 
adding such lands to the city’s UGB is through a UGB amendment for that specific land 
need, not through the reserves process. 
 

At the hearing, Newberg agreed to a voluntary remand of the decision to address the issues raised.  
LCDC issued the remand order on April 22, 2010. 

Updated Economic Opportunities Analysis 
During the fall of 2009 and winter of 2010, Newberg drafted amendments to its 2006 Economic 
Opportunities Analysis (EOA) to address issues raised during the review of the 2007 URA, and to update 
the EOA with current information.  The revised EOA explains how the City considered economic trends 
and its comparative advantages in developing a coherent economic development strategy.  The revised 
EOA carefully spells out the City’s economic vision and actions necessary to achieve it.  The EOA, along 
with related comprehensive plan amendments, does the following: 

� Analyzes economic trends, including national, state, regional, and local trends. 

� Assesses the economic development potential of Newberg – it includes an analysis of Newberg’s 
comparative advantages and disadvantages, and identifies special opportunities within the 
Newberg area. 

� Identifies Newberg’s specific targeted industries and industry clusters.  

� Details Newberg’s economic development strategy, including plans to capitalize on Newberg’s 
comparative advantages and overcome its disadvantages. 

Page 141



Page 6 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

� Identifies Newberg’s industrial and commercial land needs, and the site characteristics needed 
for businesses in the targeted industry clusters. 

� Inventories existing buildable industrial and commercial land in the Newberg UGB, and 
measures that supply against the projected need. 

The City Council adopted the revised Economic Opportunities Analysis through Ordinance 2010-2723 at 
their February 1, 2010 meeting.   Several parties filed a notice of intent to appeal the decision to LUBA 
on February 22, 2010.  LUBA heard the appeal, and on August 26, 2010 remanded the decision on 
several points.  Two parties further appealed the remand to the Oregon Court of Appeals.    On February 
16, 2011, the Court of Appeals affirmed LUBA’s decision.  

In 2012, the Newberg City Council will consider amendments to the Economic Opportunities Analysis to 
address the remand.  This will be done in conjunction with this UGB amendment. 

South Industrial Area Master Plan 
The Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future looked at a number of areas that potentially could meet 
future industrial needs.  The committee ultimately recommended that Newberg look to the area along 
Highway 219 near Wynooski Road as a future industrial area.  The area meets many of the identified 
needs for industrial development, including that it is a large flat area that can accommodate large 
industrial sites, has easy access to I-5 and the other regional highways, and is naturally buffered from 
surrounding uses by the stream corridor that borders the site on both sides.  The committee 
recommended adding sufficient land from the area into the UGB to meet 20-year land needs, and 
include the remainder of the area in the urban reserve.   

In order to determine which land in the area would be most appropriate to include in the UGB, and to 
investigate and plan for future land uses, transportation networks, and utility needs, Newberg initiated 
the South Industrial Area Master Plan.  City staff kicked off the planning effort for the South Industrial 
area in early 2009 with the help of their consultant, WRG Design, Inc.   

Through the months of March, April and May 2009, city staff and their project consultant met with the 
area property owners, engaged citizens at a community visioning meeting and a community open house, 
and met with their collaborative design team for the project to distill the public’s vision into a plan.  
Citizens gave a lot of positive feedback at the community events and reinforced the idea that they want 
Newberg to be able to provide adequate jobs for its citizens.  The most commonly stated goal was that 
citizens want Newberg to be a place where all your needs are met – to be able to work, shop and play in 
the same place where you live – “live here, work here, shop here.” 

The process resulted in creation of the South Industrial Area Master Plan.  The plan was the result of 
public feedback from the community visioning meeting, the community open house, and the project’s 
collaborative design team.  The layout contains many positive elements, including large lot flexibility, a 
comprehensive transportation network that is designed to function well both pre- and post- bypass 
construction, a park and trail network that will tie into future area trails as well as the future CPRD park 
to be located just south of the study area, and a small commercial area designed to serve the needs of 
the industrial park users.  It includes a plan for serving the area with public utilities, including a proposed 
location for a future sewer pump station near the existing Wastewater treatment plant. 

Page 142



Page 7 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The City Council accepted the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP) as a vision plan for the area 
through Resolution 2009-2872 on November 2, 2009.  In addition to accepting the SIAMP, the Newberg 
City Council also adopted a new M-4 Industrial zoning district and a new Interim Industrial (II) overlay 
zoning district (Ordinance 2009-2720).  The M-4 zoning district includes standards for preservation of 
large lot industrial parcels (of 20+ acres), and requires a planned unit development for smaller 
developments or industrial parks.  It also includes comprehensive landscape and design standards along 
all arterial and collector streets within the South Industrial area.  The Interim Industrial overlay zoning 
district provides for limited industrial development in areas identified for future right-of-way acquisition 
for capital projects such as the future Newberg-Dundee Bypass.   

With this very strong base of vision, technical planning, and public support, the natural next step is to 
propose bringing the first part of the South Industrial Area into the UGB. 

Updated Housing and Institutional Land Needs 
On April 5, 2010, the Newberg City Council adopted Ordinance 2010-2724, which amended the housing 
element of the comprehensive plan and to the residential and institutional land needs, including public 
facilities land needs.  That ordinance reallocated the land needs from 2005-2025 and 2026-2040 time 
frames to 2010-2030 and 2031-2040 time frames, and updated the buildable lands inventories.  
Ordinance 2010-2724 was appealed to the Land Use Board of Appeals, which remanded the ordinance 
based on issues not related to the public facility land needs. 

Revised Population Forecast 
Newberg adopted population forecasts for the Newberg urban area in 2005.  Following receipt of the 
2010 Census information, Yamhill County has announced a desire to create a population study for the 
County and the urban areas within the county.  At this time, there is no definite timeline for completion 
of this study.  In the meantime, for purposes of the current project Newberg will use the “safe harbor” 
population forecast method allowed under OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b).    It is generally recognized that 
this method yields a conservative population forecast suitable for an amendment of an urban growth 
boundary in interim periods before a county adopts a coordinated forecast for all urban areas within the 
county.   This method uses the most recent long range population forecast for the county from the 
Oregon Office of Economic Analysis to project future county population.   It assumes that the urban 
area’s share of the future county population remains the same as the current share. 

Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy 
Newberg’s revised Economic Opportunities Analysis describes its economic development strategy.  
Newberg’s overall economic development efforts focus on two principal strategies: 1) retention and 
expansion of existing businesses, and 2) recruitment of new businesses.  A major component of 
successful economic development efforts is analyzing Newberg’s marketability in the regional 
marketplace to retain and attract its targeted industries.  The revised EOA lists Newberg’s comparative 
advantages and disadvantages along with strategies and actions to capitalize on and address them:  

  

Page 143



Page 8 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 1: Newberg's Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages 
Advantage Strategy / Action 
1. Small Town 
Quality of Life 

� Continue to provide relatively affordable housing opportunities. 
� Minimize adverse impacts on existing and planned residential neighborhoods from 

conflicting employment opportunities. 
� Continue revitalization efforts of historic downtown. 
� Support organizations that foster “social capital”. 
� Work to improve the pedestrian/bicycle network in Newberg. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p., 1.q., 3.a.) 

2. Access to 
Quality Education 
and Skills Training 

� Continue to support the Newberg School District, George Fox University, Portland 
Community College, and other public and private schools in their efforts to train and 
motivate the kind of workforce required by existing and future employers in Newberg. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.q.) 

3.  Strong 
Established and 
Growing Industry 
Clusters 

� Provide sufficient land near existing industrial areas to allow for expansion. 
� Provide suitable sites with characteristics required by such industries to take advantage of 

industrial clusters in Newberg. 
� Encourage the reuse/redevelopment of properties in zones allowing business. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 2.e., 2.g.) 

4. Strong Local 
Support for 
Business and 
Employment 
Opportunities  

� Continue to plan for future employment opportunities by providing suitable sites for 
industrial (export) and commercial uses. 

� Continue to work collaboratively with the State, Yamhill County, and local businesses to 
fund infrastructure and planning necessary to maintain and attract desired employment. 

� Continue to work with and support the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.m., 1.n., 1.o., 3.b.) 

5. Proximity to 
Portland 
Metropolitan 
Region   

� Continue to work with Metropolitan area partners in promoting the economic advantages 
of the region. 

� Provide opportunities for identified regional employment clusters in Newberg. 
� Continue to advocate for improved access to regional markets, via Highways 99W and 219 

and the Interstate. 
� Continue to maintain rail and air access opportunities. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.o., 2.g.) 

6. Future 
Newberg-Dundee 
Bypass 

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to build political support 
and ensure funding for the Bypass. 

� Encourage support, funding and construction of the full Bypass project. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals 

� Newberg has taken advantage of Oregon’s Economic Development Program (Goal 9) by 
identifying comparative advantages (and disadvantages), targeting export-based 
employment clusters, identifying and providing for the site requirements necessary to 
maintain and attract such clusters in Newberg, and coordinating with Yamhill County and 
affected state agencies to retain and provide services to suitable employment sites.  
Newberg will continue to coordinate with these agencies. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 

Disadvantage Strategy / Action 

Page 144



Page 9 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

1. Transportation 
and Access Issues 

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to ensure funding for 
the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 

� Continue to advocate for Highway 99W improvements to reduce congestion and maintain 
regional connectivity. 

� Continue to work with ODOT for review of all development proposals in areas that may 
impact a state highway facility. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 

2. Lack of Suitable 
Employment Sites 

� Newberg has considered local, regional, state and national economic trends and identified 
industry clusters that the City has a reasonable likelihood of attracting to the community. 

� Newberg has also researched and identified the site characteristics demanded by firms 
within these industry clusters.   Newberg is actively planning for a future industrial area 
that will meet both the industrial site characteristics and the land needs of the city’s 
population over the next 30 years. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.h., 2.g.) 

3. Limited 
Suitable Land 
Supply Outside 
UGB 

� After considering the potential for rural residential exception areas to meet identified site 
requirements, the City has selected sites on agricultural land that will be reserved for 
identified employment needs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.e., 2.g.) 

4. and 5. Stressed 
Commercial 
Sector and Retail 
Dollar Leakage 

� Recruit businesses that can fulfill commercial needs that are currently being unmet locally.   
� Support small businesses that are adjusting these new retail realities by either focusing on 

high quality customer service and/or gearing their business plans toward niche markets.   
� Encourage local retail businesses to improve their online presence.     
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.i). 

6. Market 
Pressures on SP 
Newsprint 

� Newberg will continually look for opportunities to work with SP Newsprint to help reduce 
their operational costs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d.) 

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals 

� Newberg will continue to pursue Urban Growth Boundary amendments and Urban 
Reserve expansions to provide adequate land for future uses. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.) 

Regional Focus 
Newberg has worked extensively with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments and the 
Oregon Business Development Department for many years, and has recently developed relationships 
with economic development organizations in the metropolitan area.  In 2004, the City joined the 
Association of Regional Economic Development Partners, Inc. (now the Greater Portland, Inc.).  The 
Newberg City Council passed Resolution 2005-2554 in January 2005, stating the City’s support for the 
framework of the Portland Regional Business Plan of the Regional Economic Development Partners.   In 
addition, in January 2005, the Newberg City Council adopted the shared regional economic vision 
Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley.   

Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters 
As stated above, Newberg’s economic development strategy is two-pronged: 1) retention and expansion 
of existing businesses, and 2) recruitment of new businesses.  In general, 80 percent of Newberg’s 
economic development efforts are spent on the first part of the strategy and 20 percent on the second 

Page 145



Page 10 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

part – it is far easier, effective, and efficient to maintain and expand the local economy through existing 
local industries than to attract new ones.  Newberg has identified four business clusters that are the 
foundation of its economy: manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism 
industry.  Table 2 below lists targeted business types within each business cluster that Newberg will 
focus economic development efforts on to expand and attract.   

Table 2: Newberg’s Targeted Industries 
Business Cluster Targeted Business Types 

Manufacturing and Industry 
High Tech 
Manufacturing 
 

Semiconductors/silicon, imaging & display technology 
Nano & micro technology, cyber-security, health/medical information technology 
Biotech/bioscience (medical devices, bioinfomatics, pharmaceuticals, genomics, anti-virals) 

General 
Manufacturing 

Dental equipment 
Metals, machinery, transportation equipment 
Lumber and wood products (value added) 
Sustainable industries (renewable energy, resource efficiency technologies, sustainable 
building materials, green chemistry) 
Distribution & logistics 
Sports apparel/recreation-related products 

Aviation Related Specialty aircraft equipment, aircraft repair, machine shops, small entrepreneur business 

Agriculture 
Wineries 
Specialty foods and food processing 
 Nursery and agricultural products (value added) 

Services 
Professional services architecture, engineering, legal and financial services, etc. 
Creative services (advertising, public relations, film and video, web/internet content and 
design) 

Health Care 
 Providence Medical Center Expansion, medical offices, senior services 
Higher Education 

 
Portland Community College campus, George Fox University expansion, high school 
vocational training and college preparedness, private post-secondary training 

Wine/Tourism 

 
Wineries and tasting rooms, restaurants, art studios, theater and entertainment, recreation 
(golf, bowling), conference facilities, specialty retail 

 

Other Supportive Economic Development Actions 
The City of Newberg’s adopted Comprehensive Plan contains a list of goals and policies that help shape 
Newberg’s future economy (Section H. The Economy).  In addition to the actions and strategies to 
specifically address Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages, the economic development 
strategy includes supportive actions that help implement the goals and policies in the Comprehensive 
Plan.  The following is a list of the supportive economic development actions and the Comprehensive 
Plan policies they support (from Section H).   

1. Work with the State to “certify” industrial sites to shorten the development time of projects and 
provide certainty to a business that regulatory and permitting issues will not delay the project’s 

Page 146



Page 11 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

timeline. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 2.g. 

2. Identify and implement cost and time saving measures that improve the development 
permitting process. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d. 

3. Develop a financial incentives “toolbox” to recruit new businesses and encourage existing 
business expansions.  The incentives should be applied only after a proposed project has been 
reviewed by a rigorous analysis that demonstrates a clear benefit to the City. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 1.g. 

4. Maintain a useful economic development website that is easy to navigate and contains 
substantive content that meets the needs of business. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.a., 1.g. 

5. Work with local, regional and state educational and training resources (private and public) to 
assist with the workforce training needs of businesses and provide opportunities for workers to 
voluntarily upgrade their skills.  The available workforce pool in the Newberg region is 
approximately 223,000.  The regional workforce is estimated by using the assumption that a 23 
minute mean commute time (2000 Census) draws workers from an approximately 15 mile radius 
from the center of Newberg Oregon is recognized for having an educated workforce, one with 
good basic work skill sets that allows them to be relatively easily trained. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.f. 

6. Gauge the health of local businesses regularly and identify how the City can help resolve issues, 
when feasible.  Focus should be on businesses of the traded-sector and local clusters.  Anticipate 
local problem areas by keeping abreast of regional, national, and international business trends. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p. 

7. Develop closer ties to organizations/businesses located within the Portland area with a similar 
interest in regional economic development (e.g. Regional Economic Development Partners, 
future Portland Economic Development District, etc).  However, joining METRO will not be 
considered.  Reevaluate current relationship with Mid-Willamette Valley Community 
Development Partnership.  
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f. 

8. Develop a Downtown Revitalization Master Plan prior to the construction of the Newberg-
Dundee Bypass.  Identify funding sources necessary to implement the plan. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 3.a. 

Summary of Comprehensive Plan and Urban Growth Boundary Amendment 
Process 
In order to address this unmet land need, including amending the UGB to add additional industrial land, 
Oregon statutes and rules establish the following process. 

First, Establish Need 
Before amending an urban growth boundary, a local government must establish the amount and type of 
land to be added to meet 20-year needs.  The need must be based on a coordinated 20-year future 
population forecast, and on future employment forecasts (OAR 660-024-0030 & -0040).  State rules 

Page 147



Page 12 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

permit Newberg to specify site suitability characteristics for each type of identified land need (OAR 660-
024-0060(5)).   

Once needs are determined, the local government must determine whether any of that need can be 
met on lands already in the urban growth boundary.  To do this, it must inventory the supply of 
buildable industrial land within the UGB3

Section 1 of this report follows this process and determines the amount and type of land needed to be 
added to the Newberg UGB to meet 2032 industrial and industrial type public/quasi-public needs.  

.  Then, it must consider what amount of the need could be met 
through infill, redevelopment, and expanded use of existing land.  Then it must determine whether any 
of the need could be met by redesignating land to meet the specified need.  If so, it must present 
findings establishing addressing the applicable criteria to allow this change.  After these steps, the local 
government establishes the amount and type of land that must be added to the urban growth 
boundary. 

Second, Determine Location of Urban Growth Boundary Expansion 
After establishing a need to expand the UGB under Step 1, a local government is to determine the 
location of the urban growth boundary using the following steps: 

1. Inventory land adjacent to and in the vicinity of the urban growth boundary that meets the site 
suitability characteristics identified in Section 1 and thus is suitable for the identified use.  

2. Determine whether any suitable land that meets the specified site characteristics exists within 
first priority urban reserve area land, and if so, include that land in the UGB.   

3. If there is not sufficient suitable urban reserve land to meet the identified need, then determine 
whether any suitable land exists within second priority adjacent rural exception areas.  If so, also 
include that land in the UGB. 

4.  If sufficient suitable rural exception land cannot be included in the UGB, then include suitable 
land within fourth priority farm and forest resource land.4

5. At the priority stage that has more suitable land than needed to meet the identified need, the 
local government must apply the Goal 14 Location Factors, and determine which land of that 
priority best meets those factors, and then include that land. 

    Farm and forest land of lower soil 
quality must receive priority over land of higher soil quality.   

Findings addressing the location of the urban growth boundary expansion are included in Section 2 of 
this report. 

Third, Make Findings in Support of an Urban Growth Boundary Expansion  
Finally, the local government must make findings for applicable statutes, rules, goals and comprehensive 
plans.   Although several of the rules and statutes are addressed throughout Sections 1 and 2 of this 
                                                            
3  For more information on the definition of “buildable land,” see page 20. 
4 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, thus there is no third priority land. 

Page 148



Page 13 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

report, Section 3 will have detailed findings to the statutory and local requirements for Urban Growth 
Boundary and Comprehensive Plan map amendments.  This includes findings addressing applicable goals 
and policies in the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan. 

Page 149



Page 14 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 1: Newberg’s 2032 Industrial Land Need and Supply 

Introduction 
Newberg adopted a revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) in conjunction with this UGB 
amendment that includes updated buildable land and supply information and updated economic 
projections.  The land need and supply analysis concluded that Newberg has a substantial need for 
additional industrial land through 2032.  The Newberg Comprehensive Plan also includes needs for 
additional buildable industrial type public/quasi-public (PQ) land for a new water treatment plant.  The 
identified needs far exceed the amount of available land in the UGB.  Thus Newberg will need to add 
industrial and industrial type PQ land to meet identified needs through 2032.  This section will discuss 
how Newberg determined its land needs and how its land needs can best be met.   

Summary of Land Need Rules  
Statewide Planning Goal 14, OAR 660-024-0040, and OAR 660, Division 9 prescribe the rules and process 
for determining industrial land needs.  The main purpose of Goal 14 is “to provide for an orderly and 
efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to accommodate urban population and urban 
employment inside urban growth boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable 
communities.”  Goal 14 requires that UGB expansions be based on a “(1) Demonstrated need to 
accommodate long range urban population, consistent with a 20-year population forecast coordinated 
with affected local governments; and (2) Demonstrated need for housing, employment opportunities, 
livability or uses such as public facilities, streets and roads, schools, parks or open space, or any 
combination of the need categories in this subsection.”  Newberg has an adopted population forecast , 
coordinated with Yamhill County, that shows that the 2032 population will be 33,367 residents.  This 
UGB expansion is meant to bring in land to meet Newberg’s long term employment needs as well as 
provide for a necessary public facility.   

OAR 660-024-0040 echoes Goal 14 and requires cities to base their land need on their coordinated 
population forecast and to provide for needed uses over a 20-year planning period.  Newberg projected 
that employment growth would be midway between the historic employment growth and the short 
term regional employment projections. 

OAR 660, Division 9 establishes rules for creating an Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA).  OAR 660-
009-0015 requires a review of trends, identification of required site types, an inventory of employment 
lands, and an assessment of economic development potential.  OAR 660-009-0015 (2) states: 

 The plan must identify the approximate number, acreage and site characteristics of sites 
needed to accommodate industrial and other employment uses to implement plan policies. 
Plans do not need to provide a different type of site for each industrial or other employment 
use. Compatible uses with similar site characteristics may be combined into broad site 
categories. Several broad site categories will provide for industrial and other employment uses 
likely to occur in most planning areas. Cities and counties may also designate mixed-use zones 
to meet multiple needs in a given location. 

  

Page 150



Page 15 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

How Newberg Determined Its Land Needs 
Newberg’s recently updated EOA determined the acres of buildable industrial land Newberg will need 
through 2032, including a determination of site sizes and site characteristics needed.  The 2012 EOA 
thus provides the basis for Newberg’s industrial land needs.   

The EOA determined land needs by first determining future industrial employment projections.  Second, 
the EOA projected the proportion of future industrial firms in various small, medium, and large 
employment and site size categories.  Third, the EOA allocates the future employment to the various 
firm and site size categories, and thus determines the total amount of buildable industrial land needed 
for the planning period.  Finally, the EOA inventories buildable industrial land currently inside the UGB, 
and thus determines the unmet need for industrial land.  The following information, drawn from 
Newberg’s EOA, details this process.  See Appendix A: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012). 

Industrial Employment Projections 
Newberg projected the proportion of employment utilizing industrial space according to the 
percentages shown in Table 3 below. 

Table 3:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 2032 

Industry 2010 Total 
Emp.

%Industrial
Space 

2010 2032

Construction 387 30% 116 200 
Manufacturing 2,164 91% 1,969 3,390 
Wholesale Trade 115 82% 94 162 
Retail Trade 837 0% - - 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 

119 82% 98 168 

Information 51 40% 20 35 
Financial Activities 253 0% - - 
Professional & Business 370 14% 52 89 
Education & Health Services 2,978 0% - - 
Leisure & Hospitality 1,033 0% - - 
Other Services 439 40% 176 302 
Government 173 0% - - 
Total 8,919 28.3% 2,525 4,347

Cumulative from 2010  1,822 

Source:  Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis 2012 

  

Page 151



Page 16 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Determining Needs for Industrial Sites by Firm and Site Size 
A variety of parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations are required to provide suitable sites 
to attract targeted industry clusters.  The Economic Opportunities Analysis allocated the projected future 
employment by site size category as shown in Table 4 below.   The data is based on the assumption that 
most sites under 10 acres will be located in industrial parks, which will require dedication of an average 
of 15% right-of-way for streets and utilities.  For sites over 10 acres, the table assumes 5% of the area for 
streets and utilities.  The table also includes assumptions that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial 
employment will be located on sites 10 acres or less, and that one-third of those future new industrial 
firms 2-10 acres in size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill, 
redevelopment or intensification of existing employment land uses.  The table also assumes that for sites 
over 10 acres, one currently unoccupied site (Suntron) will be reoccupied, and that some infill will occur 
within existing larger sites.   

Table 4:  Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 2032 

Emps. 
per Firm 

Percent of 
Emp. 

Number of 
New Emps. 

Number 
of Firms 

Sites 
Needed 

Size 
Range 
(Acres) 

Ave. 

Site Size 
(Acres) 

Ave. 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres) 

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed 

0-9 15% 273 46 
23 <2 1 0.15 26 

23 infill & redevelopment 0 

10 to 74 40% 729 21 
14 2 - 10 5 0.75 81 

7 infill & redevelopment 0 

75 + 45% 820 

2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42 

1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42 

1 1 infill & redevelopment 0 

Total 100% 1,822 71 71 191 

Source: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis 2012 

Public/Quasi-Public Land Needs 
Newberg’s comprehensive plan identifies a need for a new water treatment plant.  See Appendix E: 
Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information. 

.  Newberg’s existing water treatment plant is located on a parcel outside the urban growth boundary.  
The site is very constrained in that it is located entirely within the perimeter of the SP Newsprint site.  It 
is on a small footprint with no opportunities for expansion.  Newberg’s Public Facilities Plan includes a 
need for a new water treatment plant on Wynooski Road.  According to the City of Newberg Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan, Newberg should relocate the plant to a new site to allow upgrade and 
expansion.  According to the plan and the Newberg Public Works Department, this site needs to include 
at least 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, needs through 2032 are for at least 3 additional gross buildable 
acres of industrial type PQ land.  Additional industrial type PQ needs may be identified in the future. 

  

Page 152



Page 17 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Combined Industrial and Industrial Type Public/Quasi-Public Land Needs through 2032 
In summary, the total needs identified for industrial land and industrial type public/quasi-public land 
(water treatment plant) through 2032 is for 194 gross buildable acres (191 gross buildable acres of 
industrial and at least 3 gross buildable acres of industrial type PQ land). 

Meeting Newberg’s Land Needs inside the UGB 
OAR 660-024-0050 (4) states, “Prior to expanding the UGB, a local government must demonstrate that 
the estimated needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the UGB.”  Thus, to 
determine how best to meet Newberg’s land needs, Newberg must look at the current buildable land 
supply, the possibilities for infill and redevelopment of existing industrial land, and the possibilities for 
redesignation of land in other categories to industrial.  The result of this analysis will be Newberg’s 
unmet land need:  the acreage that will need to be met through a UGB expansion.   

Newberg’s Buildable Industrial Land Supply 
The comprehensive plan inventory of buildable industrial land was updated in 2012, consistent with the 
requirement in OAR 660-009-0015 (3) for an inventory of industrial and other employment land.  The 
term “buildable industrial land” as used in this context means both suitable “vacant” and “developed” 
[i.e. redevelopable] land as those terms are defined in OAR 660-009-0005.  Buildable industrial land: 
1) Includes lots that have any “Industrial” comprehensive plan designation.  This includes land in the 

“Employment” Springbrook District, specific plan industrial districts, and land in the MIX 
comprehensive plan district zoned industrial.  It excludes publicly owned properties intended for city 
facilities such as the wastewater treatment plant expansion, which are counted in the “public/quasi-
public” category. 

2) Includes lots that are: 
a) Equal to or larger than one half-acre not currently containing permanent buildings or 

improvements; or  
b) Equal to or larger than five acres where less than one half-acre is occupied by permanent 

buildings or improvements. 
c) Non-vacant land that is likely to be redeveloped during the planning period.  For this inventory, 

this included (but was not limited to),  
i) Lots equal to or larger than one-half acre, and less than five acres likely to be redeveloped 

during the planning period. 
ii) The undeveloped portion of a lot equal to or larger than five acres. 

d) Excludes (unsuitable) portions of lots within stream corridors, with slopes over 10 percent, or 
currently occupied by buildings or industrial uses not likely to be redeveloped during the 
planning period, or contained within the Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-way as shown in the 
Tier 2 Preferred Alternative selected September 2010.  See Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative 
and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 Interchange 

Table 5 shows the existing buildable industrial land in the UGB as of 2012.  Map 1 at the end of this 
report shows the amount of buildable industrial land in the UGB in 2012.  

Page 153



Page 18 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 5:  Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012)  

Location Potential Uses 
Buildable 

Acres 

Site Sizes 

< 2 ac. 2-10 ac. 10-30 ac. 30-50 ac. Total 
Springbrook 
Employment 

Light Manufacturing 
or Industrial Office 

23 
 

1 1 
 

2 

Sportsman 
Airpark5 Airport Industrial 

 
22 2 4 

  
6 

Wynooski 
Industrial 

Light Industrial 10 1 2 
  

3 

Elliot Road 
Industrial 

Light Manufacturing 
or Industrial Office 

1 1 
   

1 

Total 56 4 7 1 12 
Source: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis, 2012 

The current UGB has approximately 56 gross buildable industrial acres.  Newberg’s existing industrial 
land supply is mostly contained within two industrial/employment park areas: approximately 23 gross 
buildable acres zoned SD/E (Springbrook District Employment) in the Springbrook area and 
approximately 22 gross buildable acres near the Sportsman Airpark. There are also about 11 gross 
buildable acres of industrial land scattered in other areas.  

Infill and Redevelopment Possibilities 
Newberg considered the infill and redevelopment potential of existing industrial sites to meet its 
industrial land needs.  These areas are illustrated on Map 1.  Table 4 on page 16 includes assumptions 
that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial employment will be located on sites 10 acres or less, and 
that one-third of those future new industrial firms 2-10 acres in size, and one-half of firms under 2 acres 
in size, will find a site through infill redevelopment or intensification of existing employment land uses.  
This could include some industrial uses that are able to locate outside a traditional industrial zone6

Figure 2

.  The 
table also assumes that for sites over 10 acres, one currently unoccupied site (Suntron) will be 
reoccupied, and that some infill will occur within existing larger sites.    on page 19 illustrates the 
percentage of firms expected to locate through infill, redevelopment, and intensification versus 
constructing facilities on buildable industrial land. 

                                                            
5 The Sportsman Airpark contains one large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 10.8 acres of buildable 

industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing the buildable industrial land into an industrial 
park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre category, even though it contains slightly over 10 acres of buildable 
land, because the approved master plan envisions further division, and the aviation related uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms 
rather than one large firm. 

6 At the hearings, there was a suggestion that winery uses might be able to locate on hilly land outside traditional industrial areas.  While there 
are winery uses in rural areas on larger acreages, this same rural type use does not necessarily translate to an urban site.  Urban winery 
sites typically are smaller acreages, which gives fewer options for siting the actual facilities on level land within the site.  They also have 
closer neighbors, which can lead to land use conflicts if sited outside industrial areas.  For example, Dundee has several wineries, and all of 
them are on level sites in industrial areas.  Newberg staff interviewed a user seeking to locate a winery within the Newberg UGB.  That 
interviewee indicated he was seeking a site surrounded by other light industrial uses that is not close to residential areas. He indicated a 
winery is quiet most of the year but can be very busy for 6-8 weeks during the grape harvest, when trucks may be arriving early and late. If 
the site were near a residential area, he was concerned about limiting their operating hours because of noise, lights, or traffic.  
Nevertheless, not all urban wineries follow this typical industrial pattern, and the infill and redevelopment allowance here could include an 
urban winery located on a site not having the industrial site suitability characteristics. 

Page 154



Page 19 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Figure 2:  Percent of industrial firms by location of industrial land 

 

However, even with these considerations, Newberg will still need 135 additional gross buildable acres of 
industrial land to meet 2032 needs (191 gross buildable acre need minus 56 gross buildable acre current 
supply = 135 gross buildable acres unmet need). 

Redesignation Possibilities for Land in the UGB 
One other option that must be considered is whether sites that already are in the UGB could be 
redesignated industrial to meet the employment needs.  If a site is well suited for industrial use, then it 
may be appropriate to redesignate that site industrial.  If that would require expand the UGB to add 
additional land in the other category, this may be appropriate if the site characteristics needed for land 
in the current plan classification are more flexible than industrial, such as single family residential land.  
This may not be possible if the site suitability characteristics of the current designation are similar to 
industrial, such as commercial land, or if there is some unique characteristic of the property that makes 
is especially suited for the current planned use.  This also would not be possible if the current property 
owner has some vesting in the current designation, such as an approved subdivision tentative plan, a 
development agreement, or site design review approval. 

This report considers whether there is any buildable land currently in the UGB that could be 
redesignated industrial.   This report first examines whether any land currently in the UGB meets the 
industrial site suitability characteristics established in Newberg’s Economic Opportunities Analysis.  The 
report then examines the potential for redesignating that land from its current designation to industrial. 

Specific Industrial Site Characteristics 
The impetus to create industrial site suitability criteria comes from OAR 660, Division 9 (Economic 
Development), from the following two sections: 

Through infill & 
redevelopment 

44% 

On buildable 
industrial land in 

UGB 
18% 

On land inside UGB 
redesignated 

industrial 
1% 

On land added to 
UGB 
37% 

Page 155



Page 20 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

OAR 660-009-0015 Economic Opportunities Analysis - (2) Identification of Required Site 
Types. The economic opportunities analysis must identify the number of sites by type 
reasonably expected to be needed to accommodate the expected employment growth 
based on the site characteristics typical of expected uses.   

OAR 660-009-025 Designation of Lands for Industrial and Other Employment Uses – (1) 
Identification of Needed Sites. The plan must identify the approximate number, acreage 
and site characteristics of sites needed to accommodate industrial and other 
employment uses to implement plan policies.   

It also comes from the Goal 14 Land Need factors, which state: 

In determining need, local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel size, 
topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need. 

Newberg’s Economic Opportunities Analysis includes all the background work of identifying land 
supply, land need, identification of needed sites (including necessary site characteristics), and 
assessment of community economic potential.  The next step for cities is to identify which land can 
best meet the needs identified in the EOA through the urban growth boundary amendment process.  
The urban growth boundary process is prescribed by OAR 660, Division 24 (Urban Growth 
Boundaries), which states in part that “If a local government has specified characteristics such as 
parcel size, topography, or proximity that are necessary for land to be suitable for an identified land 
need, the local government may limit its consideration to land that has the specified characteristics 
when it conducts the boundary location analysis…” (OAR 660-024-0060(5)).  Newberg has identified 
specific site characteristics in its EOA and thus is limiting its analysis to land with those 
characteristics. 

The revised Newberg EOA specifically identifies required industrial site characteristics.  These are shown 
in Table 6 below. 

  

Page 156



Page 21 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Table 6: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics 
Required Site 
Characteristic 

Description 

Site Size 

� Inventory to include a sufficient number of sites within each site category to 
meet identified needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 to 30 
buildable acres, and 30 to 50 buildable acres). 

� Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable 
land that contains at least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or 
smaller if adjacent to existing industrial district). 

Topography 

  Exclude: 

� Slopes of 10% or greater, 

� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable areas, 
and 

� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

Proximity 

  Include parcels or contiguous group of parcels: 

� Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the 
vicinity of the UGB that immediately could be added to the UGB. 

� Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 
buildable or industrially developed acres to create new industrial area. 

� That have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 
1/8 mile. 

Compatibility 

  Exclude sites that: 

� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter 
unless effective topographical buffers are present, such as a stream 
corridor, arterial street, state highway, rail line, or park.  

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential 
neighborhood to reach an arterial street or state highway.    

Source:  Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis, 2012 

This analysis inventoried existing sites within the UGB that may have these characteristics.  The analysis 
first looked for parcels or groups of parcels in close proximity with buildable land that contain at least 20 
buildable or industrially developed acres, or parcels adjacent to existing industrial districts.  This analysis 
yielded 12 groups of properties in various areas within the UGB.  Exact boundaries of these groups were 
not defined, as these boundaries could be refined for sites.  These 12 sites are shown on Map 2, and are 
designated with roman numerals I-XII.  The study then applies the site suitability criteria to these sites, 
considers the current designation for each site and any prior commitment, then determines whether 
redesignating that site to industrial would be a reasonable alternative. 

Public/Quasi-public site suitability characteristics 
The City and public facility needs identified in the comprehensive plan have siting requirements that 
vary depending on the specifics of the use.  For this application, the City is seeking to locate 
public/quasi-public land to site a water treatment plant.  This use is an industrial type use, and has site 

Page 157



Page 22 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

suitability characteristics that are similar to and compatible with industrial site suitability characteristics.  
In addition, a critical criterion is that the site has ready access to the Newberg’s water source.  
Newberg’s primary water source is a series of wells located south of the Willamette River.  The city has 
two transmission mains from this well field:  one on the old Highway 219 bridge near SP Newsprint, and 
under the Willamette River ending near Dog Ridge Road.  This second pipe is the long term transmission 
source, and the new plant must be readily accessible to this line.  

Analysis of sites within the UGB for redesignation as industrial 
Below is a detailed discussion of the application of the site suitability criteria to non-industrial sites in 
the UGB. 

Site I is at the intersection of North Valley Road and Chehalem Drive.  This area includes about 40 
buildable acres, including some 5-10 acre parcels.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area.  
The site is predominantly over 5% slope, with large areas over 10% slope.  The area is bisected by a 
stream corridor.  It abuts residential areas on more than 25 percent of its perimeter.  Truck traffic would 
need to travel through residential neighborhoods to reach the closest state highway or arterial:  
Highway 219. Thus, Site I is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site II is near the intersection of Hwy 219 and Bell Road.  This area includes approximately 25 buildable 
acres in non-contiguous parcels.  It is predominantly over 5% slope with much of the area over 10% 
slope.  Part of the site has access to Highway 219.  The site abuts residential areas on more than 25 
percent of its perimeter.  A portion of the site is owned by the North Valley Friends Church.  The Church 
has a development agreement with the City regarding development of a church and school on the 
property.7

Sites III, IV, and V are along Mountainview Drive and Crestview Drive.   These sites have an approved 
master plan and development agreement: the Springbrook Master Plan.  The master plan envisions a 
variety of uses including commercial, multi-family, and other residential uses for these areas.  The 
master plan does designate an employment area just south of Site IV that is included in the buildable 
industrial land inventory.  The sites have an approved subdivision plat for the entire acreage.  Thus Sites 
III, IV, and V could not reasonably accommodate industrial needs. 

  The remainder of the site is committed to non industrial use through its inclusion in the 
Northwest Newberg Specific Plan (1993), which plans for future residential uses on this site.  Thus, Site II 
is not suitable for redesignation as industrial.   

Site VI is between Zimri Drive and N. Springbrook Road.  While this area does include about 30 buildable 
acres, it is not adjacent to industrial or commercial areas.  It is adjacent to a resort hotel.  It lacks 
proximity to an arterial or state highway, and it abuts residential areas on more than 25 percent of its 
boundary.  Thus, Site VI is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site VII is on the north side of Highway 99W.  It does include nearly 40 buildable acres.  It is not adjacent 
to an industrial or commercial area.  It is across the street from Providence Newberg Medical Center.  It 
is adjacent to and can access Highway 99W at the Providence Drive intersection.  It abuts residential 

                                                            
7 Executed May 5, 2003.   

Page 158



Page 23 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

areas on more than 25 percent of its boundary.  There is an approved commercial/residential 
subdivision tentative plan on a part of the property.  Thus, Site IX is suitable for commercial employment 
and residential uses, and is not suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site VIII is along Providence Drive and is just south of Providence Medical Center, and west of the 
existing medical center.  It contains about 25 buildable acres.  The property west of the medical center is 
planned for expansion of the medical center.  The property to the south is planned for construction of 
medical office or medical service uses according to the adopted Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan.  This 
land would meet many of the community’s employment needs as the health care industry expands.  It 
does abut a residential neighborhood on more than 25 percent of its border.  There is one industrially 
zoned property adjacent.  Redesignating this parcel industrial would deplete the supply of needed 
commercial and office employment land, which is uniquely appropriate near Providence Medical Center.   
Thus, Site VIII is appropriate for health care type institutional uses, and is not suitable for redesignation 
as industrial. 

Site IX is located on both sides of Hayes Street at Springbrook Road.  The site includes approximately 8 
buildable acres; however, the site is bisected by the stream corridor, an area of steep slopes.  The site 
has access to Springbrook Road, a major arterial, and is within 1/8 mile of Highway 99W.  It has 
commercial uses on the north and west sides and an industrially designated parcel (but not used as 
industrial) on the south side.  However, the site is included within the adopted Springbrook Oaks Specific 
Plan area and is planned to accommodate commercial and multi-family uses.  Thus, while Site IX is 
suitable for the already planned for commercial and residential-professional uses envisioned in the 
Springbrook Oaks Specific Plan and should not be redesignated to industrial.   

Site X is along South Springbrook Road.   While the site does access South Springbrook Road, a major 
arterial, it also abuts residential areas along more than 25 percent of its boundary.  It abuts one 
industrial use to the south and one across South Springbrook Street; however, it also abuts 
manufactured dwelling parks across the street, and residential uses to the north.  The site is designated 
mostly High Density Residential and part Medium Density Residential.  The Ad Hoc Committee on 
Newberg’s Future and the Affordable Housing Committee both recommended this site be considered for 
High Density Residential uses.  Thus, Site X is appropriate for multi-family residential use, and is not 
suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Site XI is along Adolf Road.   It includes about 7 total acres of property.  However, since the property is 
crossed by the Newberg-Dundee Bypass corridor, most of the property is not buildable.  The site could 
be suited to some interim industrial use, such as storage.  This actually would be more appropriate than 
constructing multi-family residential uses on the site under the current Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) designation, where residences would only be removed upon bypass construction.  If land across 
Adolf Road also is included in the UGB as industrial, this land could be part of group of more than 20 
buildable acres that is adjacent to an existing industrial area.   The site fronts Highway 219, though 
actual access is through Wilsonville Road/Highway 219.  The highway would act as a buffer from the 
manufactured housing park across the highway.  The total boundary with residential is less than 25%.   
Future access could be via a new frontage road to Highway 219, as envisioned in the South Industrial 

Page 159



Page 24 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Area Master Plan.  Thus, Site XI is appropriate for interim industrial use, provided additional land on 
Adolf Road is brought into the UGB and designated industrial.  These findings include redesignating this 
land to industrial.  

Site XII is along Waterfront Street.  This area is a part of Newberg’s Riverfront Master Plan.  It includes 
one residentially designated parcel crossed by the Newberg-Dundee bypass, and one former landfill site 
envisioned as a future park.  The site is more than a mile from a state highway or arterial street.   
Industrial access would have to go through existing residential neighborhoods.  Thus, Site XII is not 
suitable for redesignation as industrial. 

Redesignation of Land Conclusion 
Two parcels in the UGB along Adolf Road should be redesignated industrial, provided additional land 
along Adolf Road is included in the UGB and designated industrial.  This would add approximately 1 
buildable acre of industrial land to the Newberg industrial land supply.  No other sites within the UGB 
meet the industrial site suitability characteristics and are suitable for redesignation as industrial.  The 
two parcels are currently designated as Medium Density Residential (MDR) in the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan.  Although there is currently a deficit of Medium Density Residential land to meet 
future needs, this redesignation is appropriate because of the following: 

� Although there is a deficit of residential land, there is also a deficit of industrial land, and this 
area is better suited to meet that need.  

� The two parcels are located in between two roads, one of them a major highway, that does not 
provide a welcoming environment for residential development.  In addition, if the land on the 
other side of Adolf Road is brought into the UGB with an industrial designation, the parcels 
would be between Highway 219 and industrial development.   

� It is far more difficult to find land that meets the industrial site suitability characteristics than 
that meets criteria for residential development.   As stated elsewhere in this report, the 
industrial site suitability criteria are quite specific and are not met except where noted. 

Land Needs That Only Can Be Met by UGB Expansion 
As shown in Table 7, Newberg has an unmet need for one 30- to 50-acre site, two 10- to 30-acre sites, 
56 acres of 2- to 10-acre sites, and 23 acres of sites under 2 acres in size. 

  

Page 160



Page 25 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Table 7:  Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032 

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Number 
of Sites -
2012 UGB

Buildable 
Acres -

2012
UGB

2032
Needed

Buildable 
Sites

2032
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres

2032
Deficit # 
of Sites

2032
Deficit 

Buildable 
Acres

<2 5  6  23  26  (18) (20) 
2 to 10 7  30  14  81  (7) (51) 
10 to 30 1  20  2  42  (1) (22) 
30 to 50 0  0  1  42  (1) (42) 
Total 13 56 40 191 (27) (135)

Source: Winterbrook Planning, City of Newberg 

This means Newberg will need to include 135 additional buildable industrial acres within the UGB.  In 
addition, there is a need for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type public/quasi-
public land beyond that already in the UGB, for a total need of 138 gross buildable acres.  One acre of 
this need can be met by redesignating land along Adolf Road as industrial.  The remaining land need 
must be met by expanding the UGB by 137 gross buildable industrial acres to include: 
1) A 30- to 50-acre site; 
2) A 10- to 30-acre site; and 
3) Industrial park sites totaling approximately 71 buildable acres. 
4) 3 buildable acres of industrial type Public/Quasi-Public land. 

 
Figure 3:  Meeting Buildable Industrial Land and PQ-WTP Needs through 2032 

 
Note:  Numbers are gross buildable acres.  

Buildable 
industrial land in 

UGB, 56 ac. 

Buildable land in 
UGB to be 

redesignated 
industrial, 1 ac. 

Buildable 
industrial land 
needed to be 

added to UGB, 
134 ac. 

Buildable PQ Land 
needed to be 

added to UGB for 
a water treatment 

plant, 3 ac. 

Page 161



Page 26 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 2: Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis 

Summary of Boundary Location Analysis Rules and Process 
Section 1 of these findings establishes the need to expand the Newberg UGB for industrial land, 
including industrial type public/quasi-public land, and established site characteristics that the industrial 
land needs to meet.  Findings in Section 2 will determine which land should be included in the UGB to 
meet that identified industrial land need. 

Three main statutes and rules govern the boundary location process: 

1. ORS 197.298 Priorities.  This statute states: 

§ 197.298  Priority of land to be included within urban growth boundary 

(1) In addition to any requirements established by rule addressing urbanization, land may not 
be included within an urban growth boundary except under the following priorities: 

(a) First priority is land that is designated urban reserve land under ORS 195.145 (Urban 
reserves), rule or metropolitan service district action plan. 

(b) If land under paragraph (a) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the amount 
of land needed, second priority is land adjacent to an urban growth boundary that is identified 
in an acknowledged comprehensive plan as an exception area or nonresource land. Second 
priority may include resource land that is completely surrounded by exception areas unless 
such resource land is high-value farmland as described in ORS 215.710. 

(c) If land under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, third priority is land designated as marginal land pursuant to ORS 
197.247 (1991 Edition).8

(d) If land under paragraphs (a) to (c) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, fourth priority is land designated in an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan for agriculture or forestry, or both. 

 

(2) Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

(3) Land of lower priority under subsection (1) of this section may be included in an urban 
growth boundary if land of higher priority is found to be inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land estimated in subsection (1) of this section for one or more of the following 
reasons: 

(a) Specific types of identified land needs cannot be reasonably accommodated on higher 
priority lands; 

                                                            
8 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, so this priority is not applicable. 

Page 162



Page 27 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(b) Future urban services could not reasonably be provided to the higher priority lands due to 
topographical or other physical constraints; or 

(c) Maximum efficiency of land uses within a proposed urban growth boundary requires 
inclusion of lower priority lands in order to include or to provide services to higher priority 
lands.  

2. Goal 14 Location Factors. Goal 14 establishes the following “location factors” governing UGB 
amendments: 

The location of the urban growth boundary and changes to the boundary shall be determined 
by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with ORS 197.298 and with 
consideration of the following factors: 

(1)  Efficient accommodation of identified land needs; 

(2)  Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 

(3)  Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and 

(4)  Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 
occurring on farm and forest land outside the urban growth boundary. 

 3. OAR Chapter 660, Division 024.  This rule further clarifies the UGB amendment process.  660-
024-0060 (1) states: 

Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis  

(1) When considering a UGB amendment, a local government must determine which land to 
add by evaluating alternative boundary locations. This determination must be consistent with 
the priority of land specified in ORS 197.298 and the boundary location factors of Goal 14, as 
follows:  

(a) Beginning with the highest priority of land available, a local government must determine 
which land in that priority is suitable to accommodate the need deficiency determined under 
OAR 660-024-0050.  

(b) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category exceeds the amount necessary 
to satisfy the need deficiency, a local government must apply the location factors of Goal 14 to 
choose which land in that priority to include in the UGB.  

(c) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category is not adequate to satisfy the 
identified need deficiency, a local government must determine which land in the next priority 
is suitable to accommodate the remaining need, and proceed using the same method specified 
in subsections (a) and (b) of this section until the land need is accommodated.  

Page 163



Page 28 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) to (c) of this section, a local government may consider land 
of lower priority as specified in ORS 197.298(3).  

(e) For purposes of this rule, the determination of suitable land to accommodate land needs 
must include consideration of any suitability characteristics specified under section (5) of this 
rule, as well as other provisions of law applicable in determining whether land is buildable or 
suitable.   

Put together, these statutes and rules provide that, after establishing a need to expand the UGB (See 
Section 1), a local government is to determine the location of the urban growth boundary using the 
following steps: 

1. Inventory land adjacent to and in the vicinity of the urban growth boundary that meets the site 
suitability characteristics identified in Section 1 and thus is suitable for the identified use.  

2. Determine whether any suitable land that meets the specified site characteristics exists within 
an urban reserve area.   

a. If there is no suitable land in the urban reserve, proceed to consideration of the next 
priority land. 

b. If there is some suitable land in the urban reserve, but this amount is less than or equal 
to the identified need, then include all the suitable urban reserve land into the UGB.  
Exclude land that cannot reasonably be served by public facilities and services.  Include 
non-urban reserve land where maximum efficiency requires including that land to 
include the urban reserve land.  Then proceed to consideration of the next priority land. 

c. If there is more suitable land in the urban reserve than needed to meet the identified 
need, then apply the Goal 14 Location Factors to determine which of the suitable urban 
reserve lands to include in the UGB.  Include those lands that best meet the location 
factors.  Again, exclude land that cannot be serviced, and include lower priority land 
where maximum efficiency requires it. 

3. If there is not sufficient suitable urban reserve land to meet the identified need, then determine 
whether any suitable land exists within adjacent rural exception areas.  Process the results 
similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.  

4.  If sufficient suitable rural exception land cannot be included in the UGB, then determine what 
suitable land exists within lower quality farm and forest resource land.9

                                                            
9 No marginal land exists within Yamhill County, thus there is no third priority land. 

  Again, process the 
results similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.    

Page 164



Page 29 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

5. If sufficient suitable lower quality farm or forest land cannot be included in the UGB, then 
determine what suitable land exists within higher quality farm or forest resource land.  Again, 
process the results similar to steps a. b., and c. under step 2.   

This section follows the steps above to determine which lands to include in the urban growth boundary 
to meet the identified needs for industrial land. 

Inventory of Land Suitable for Industrial Use Adjacent to the UGB 

Study Area 
As stated earlier, the first part of the locational analysis is to inventory land adjacent to the UGB that 
meets the site characteristics determined in Section 1.  According to OAR 660-024-0060 (4): 

 In determining alternative land for evaluation under ORS 197.298, "land adjacent to the UGB" 
is not limited to those lots or parcels that abut the UGB, but also includes land in the vicinity of 
the UGB that has a reasonable potential to satisfy the identified need deficiency.  

This report used the land shown in Map 3 as the study area.  This study area coincides with the study 
area approved by the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s Future in 2004 for analyzing growth 
alternatives.  The study area includes about 10 square miles of rural land that potentially could 
accommodate Newberg’s Year 2032 industrial land needs.  Thus, the study area includes many times 
more land than needed to accommodate planned Year 2032 industrial growth.  The rationale for 
determining the boundaries of each study area is described in the committee’s Report to Newberg City 
Council – Recommendations for Newberg’s Future (pp. 21-24).  In general, the study area includes all 
land within ½ to ¾ mile of the UGB.  Thus, it includes many areas that may not be “adjacent to” the UGB.  
It includes all lands within the 1995 Newberg Urban Reserve that have not already been included in the 
UGB.  The study area excludes lands south of the Willamette River and on Ash Island.  Due to the 
locations within the floodplain and inaccessibility, these lands are not suitable for industrial use.  Map 3 
also shows whether land within the study area is an Urban Reserve Area, an Exception Area or Resource 
Land. 

Specific Industrial Site Characteristics  
As noted in Goal 14 itself: 

In determining need, local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel size, 
topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need. 

In addition, OAR 660-024-0060 (5) states 

(5) If a local government has specified characteristics such as parcel size, topography, or 
proximity that are necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need, the local 
government may limit its consideration to land that has the specified characteristics when it 
conducts the boundary location alternatives analysis and applies ORS 197.298. 

Page 165



Page 30 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis establishes site suitability characteristics for industrial 
lands.  These are shown in Table 6 on page 21.  The suitability characteristics cover four areas: 

� Site Size 
� Topography 
� Proximity 
� Compatibility 

Application of Site Characteristics to Inventory Suitable Lands  
The remainder of this section applies these industrial site characteristics to land within the study area to 
determine which sites have the required site characteristics. 

Site Size Criteria 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following industrial site size suitability criteria: 
 

� Inventory to include a sufficient number of sites within each site category to meet identified 
needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 to 30 buildable acres, and 30 to 50 
buildable acres). 

� Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable land that contains at 
least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or smaller if adjacent to existing industrial 
district). 

To address the site size suitability criteria, the study first inventoried buildable land10

Second, the study considered areas where groups of parcels group of parcels in close proximity with 
buildable land that contains at least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres could be found 
together.  This analysis yielded 21 groups of properties in various areas surrounding the UGB.  Exact 
boundaries of these groups were not defined, as these boundaries could be refined for sites generally 
meeting the suitability criteria.  These 21 sites are shown on Map 4. 

 in the study area.  
These are shown on Map 4.  The map categorizes parcels by amount of buildable land:  < 5 acres, 5 to 10 
acres, 10 to 30 acres, and 30+ acres.  This allows identification of areas that may be sufficient size to 
meet site needs for each size category.  As can be seen, this includes a very large number of properties 
in many areas surrounding the UGB, and most notably in the northwest and southeast. 

Of note, each of the areas with the 1995 Urban Reserve area was carefully considered.   Site 11 includes 
land in the Wynooski Road URA.  Site 12 is in the South Springbrook Road URA.  Site 18 includes land in 
the Klimek Lane URA.  Site 20 is located within the North Hills URA.   

  

                                                            
10This report uses the term “buildable land” to refer to land that could be developed over the planning period if included in the UGB and provided 

adequate public facilities and services.  For employment land, it includes “vacant land” as defined in OAR 660-000-0005 (14), and “developed 
land” as defined in OAR 660-000-0005 (1).  This should not be confused with the term “buildable land” in OAR 660-008-0005(2), because that 
rule specifically applies only to residential land.  For more information, see page 20. 

Page 166



Page 31 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Topography Criteria 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following topography suitability criteria: 

Exclude: 
� Slopes of 10% or greater, 
� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable areas, and 
� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

 
Map 5 depicts lands with slopes of 5% and 10% or greater, stream corridors and wetlands. 
 
Site 1 is predominantly over 5% slope, and much of the site is over 10% slope.  Thus, Site 1 does not 
meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 2, 3, 4 all contain large contiguous blocks of topographically suitable land and are carefully 
considered in the analysis to follow.  Sites 2, 3, and 4 meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 5, 6, 7, and 8 all contain small acreage rural residential parcels.  The slopes of these sites are all 
predominantly less than 5% slope.  They are bordered by stream corridors.  Sites 5, 6, 7, and 8 meet the 
topography criteria 
 
Site 9 is on a knoll that is predominantly over 5% slope, and contains slopes over 10%.  Thus, Site 9 does 
not meet the topography criteria.  
  
Site 10 is within the floodplain of the Willamette River. The site is predominantly over 5% slopes, and 
contains many areas of over 10% slope.  Thus, Site 10 does not meet the topography criteria.  
 
Sites 11 through 14 are all predominantly less than 5% slope outside stream corridors.  Thus Sites 11 
through 14 meets the topography criteria. 
 
Site 15 is predominantly less than 5% slope on the north side of Wilsonville Road.  The area on the south 
side of Wilsonville Road is predominantly over 10% slope.  Thus, only the north side of Site 15 meets the 
topography criteria. 
 
Sites 16 contains a mixture of slopes <5%, 5-10%, and >10%.  The site is not predominantly less than 5% 
slope.  Site 16 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 17 is on a hillside with slopes > 10%.  Site 17 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 18 is predominantly over 5% slope, and contains large areas > 10% slope.  It has stream corridors 
interspersed within the site.  Site 18 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 19 is predominantly >5% slope.  Thus, Site 19 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 20 is the North Hills URA.  This site is predominantly over 5% slope, and has many areas >10% slope.  
Thus, Site 20 does not meet the topography criteria. 
 
Site 21 is largely in land with over 10% slope, thus Site 21 does not meet the topography criteria. 

Page 167



Page 32 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Proximity 
The Newberg EOA establishes the following proximity suitability criteria: 

Include parcels or contiguous group of parcels: 

� Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the vicinity of the UGB that 
immediately could be added to the UGB. 

� Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 buildable or industrially 
developed acres to create new industrial area. 

� That have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 1/8 mile. 

 
Map 6 shows the location of each of the study sites, and assesses them according to the proximity 
criteria.   
 
Site 1 is contiguous to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  While the parcel does touch Highway 219, the topography is over 10% near that 
portion of the highway.  This exceeds the typical slope required by industrial uses for access.  Because of 
that, truck access would have to be to North Valley Road.  Via that route, it is over 1/8 mile to state 
highway.  Thus, Site 1 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 2 is 1/3 to ¾ miles from the UGB, and there is intervening farm land.  Thus, it could not be 
immediately added to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  Truck traffic would have to travel about a mile to reach the nearest major road:  
Highway 219.  Thus, Site 2 does not meet the UGB proximity and transportation proximity criteria. 
 
Site 3 is contiguous to the UGB.  It is over 100 acres, so a new industrial district theoretically could be 
created in that area.  However, it is about ¾ mile to the nearest major arterial or state highway.  Thus, 
Site 3 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 4 also is contiguous to the UGB.  It does have close access to Highway 240.  It is over 100 acres, so a 
new industrial district theoretically could be created in that area.  If access were taken through Old 
Yamhill Highway to Highway 240, it would have access with 1/8 mile.  Thus, Site 4 meets the proximity 
criteria if access is taken to Highway 240 via Old Yamhill Highway. 
 
Site 5 is 1/3 to 2/3 mile from the UGB, and thus is not adjacent to the UGB, and could not be part of a 
group of parcels that could immediately be added to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or 
commercial area, and there is not enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial 
district.   It does have close access to Highway 240.  Thus, Site 5 does not meet the UGB proximity and 
industrial/commercial proximity criteria. 
 
Site 6 is adjacent to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, and there is not 
enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial district.  It has access to Highway 
240.  Thus, site 6 does not meet industrial/commercial proximity criterion.  
 

Page 168



Page 33 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 7 is adjacent to the UGB, though it is separated by a stream corridor, and extension of utilities 
would be very problematic.  It is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, and there is not 
enough buildable land in the area to create a new 100 acre industrial district.  It does not have access to 
a state highway or major arterial within 1/8 mile.  Thus, site 7 does not meet the industrial/commercial 
proximity or transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 8 is 1/3 to 3/4 miles from the UGB, and thus is not adjacent to the UGB.  The area is separated from 
the UGB by the Chehalem Creek Canyon, which would make extension of facilities to the site very 
problematic.  For example, previous studies showed that two miles of wastewater lines and a new 
wastewater pump station, or a new wastewater treatment plant would be needed to serve this area.  
Thus, it could not reasonably be added to the UGB in conjunction with adjoining properties.  There are 
three small non-contiguous parcels in the area with county industrial zoning. It does have close access to 
Highway 99W, though access restrictions along that stretch of highway may prevent access directly to 
the highway.   The future connection to the bypass between Newberg and Dundee might provide access 
from Highway 219.   Thus, Site 8 does not meet the UGB proximity criterion. 
 
Site 9 is adjacent to the UGB, although it is separated from the urbanizable area by a stream corridor, 
which would make serving the site with utilities very difficult.  It is not adjacent to industrial or 
commercial areas, and does not contain 100 acres to create a new industrial district.  While it is adjacent 
to Highway 99W, actual access is restricted due to an intervening rail line.  The only other access is 
Dayton Avenue, which is not an arterial, and has access issues on both ends.  Thus, site 9 does not meet 
the industrial/commercial proximity or transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 10 is adjacent to the UGB, but is separated from the urbanizable area by a stream corridor, which 
would make serving the area with utilities very difficult.  The site contains over 100 acres, which in 
theory would allow creation of a new industrial district.  It does not have access to a state highway or 
major arterial within 1/8 mile.  Thus, Sites 10 does not meet the transportation proximity criteria.  
 
Site 11 is adjacent to the Newberg UGB.  The site is adjacent to the existing industrial areas in south 
Newberg, and thus would benefit greatly from the synergy, short travel times, and compatibility with 
these areas.  It abuts and has access to Highway 219.  Thus, Site 11 meets the proximity criteria. 
 
Site 12 is adjacent to the Newberg UGB.  It touches on industrial property.  It is close to Springbrook 
Road, a major arterial.  Access could be created within 1/8 mile.  Thus, Site 12 meets the proximity 
criteria. 
 
Site 13 is not adjacent to the UGB.  Farm land intervenes, so it is not a part of an area that could be 
immediately added to the UGB.  It is not adjacent to any existing industrial or commercial areas.  It does 
not contain 100 acres unless land on the north side of Wilsonville Road (Site 14) also is included as an 
industrial district.  It does have access to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Thus, Site 13 does not meet 
the UGB proximity criterion.   
 
Site 14 is technically adjacent to the UGB along the northern boundary, and practically within about 1/8 
mile of the UGB to the west.  Properties to the west across Springbrook Creek are within the urban 
reserve area.  The site contains over 100 acres to allow creation of a new industrial district.  It has access 
to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Thus, Site 14 meets the proximity criteria. 
 

Page 169



Page 34 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 15 is not adjacent to UGB.  Intervening land is farm land, so it is not part of an area that could 
immediately be added to the UGB.  The site has over 100 buildable acres to allow creation of a new 
industrial district.  It abuts and has access to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial. Thus, Site 15 does not 
meet the UGB proximity criteria. 
 
Site 16 is contiguous to the UGB.  The site has over 100 buildable acres theoretically to allow creation of 
a new industrial district.  However, it is not adjacent or close to a major arterial or state highway.  Thus, 
Site 16 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   
 
Site 17 is generally about 1/5 to 1 mile from the UGB, with farm land intervening.  It is not near existing 
industrial or commercial areas.  It does contain over 100 acres, though much of that land is over 10% 
slope.  While it does front Highway 99W, access to the highway is either restricted or very problematic 
because of the slope of Rex Hill.  Thus, Site 17 does not meet the proximity criterion. 
 
Site 18 is close to the UGB (less than 1/8 mile).  It may technically be possible to assemble enough 
adjacent land to include the property in the UGB, though access to the site is a major issue.  The site is 
not adjacent to any existing Newberg industrial areas, and is across the highway from a commercial 
area.  The site abuts Highway 99W, though the only current access is at Corral Creek Road and Veritas 
Lane. Neither of these accesses is suitable for industrial traffic.  Thus, Site 18 does not meet the 
transportation proximity criterion.  
 
Site 19 is adjacent to the UGB.  It is adjacent to a commercial area.  It is close to Highway 99W, though 
actual access would need to be from the Providence Drive/Crestview Drive intersection, with travel over 
1/3 mile through a commercial/residential area. Site 19 does not meet the transportation proximity 
criterion. 
 
Site 20 is within the Newberg urban reserve area, and is close enough to the UGB that an assembly of 
parcels could be added.  The site is not adjacent to an industrial or commercial area, but does contain 
over 100 acres to theoretically allow creation of a new industrial district.  The site is not near a state 
highway or arterial.  Thus, Site 20 does not meet the transportation proximity criterion. 
 
Site 21 almost touches the UGB at one point, but is generally ¾ mile distant.  It is not adjacent to existing 
industrial areas or commercial areas; assembling 100 acres to create a new industrial district would be 
very difficult.  The site does not have any close access to an arterial or state highway.  Thus, Site 21 does 
not meet the transportation proximity criterion.   

Compatibility 
As noted in ORS 197.712(2)(d): “Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for 
compatible uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses.” The Newberg EOA 
establishes the following compatibility criteria: 

Exclude sites that: 

� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter unless effective 
topographical buffers are present, such as a stream corridor, arterial street, state highway, rail 
line, or park.  

Page 170



Page 35 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential neighborhood to reach an 
arterial street or state highway. 

This study investigated each identified site to determine whether it met the compatibility criteria.  The 
results also are shown on Map 7. 

Site 1 is adjacent to urban residential on its south side.   The truck access would be to North Valley Road.   
The nearest arterial or state highway is College Street (Highway 219).  Truck travel on North Valley Road 
would travel adjacent to residential areas to reach College Street.  Thus, Site 1 does not meet the truck 
travel compatibility criterion. 

Site 2 is largely separated from residential areas.  However, truck traffic would have to travel through 
residential areas, such as those along North Valley Road to reach College Street (Highway 219), or those 
along Chehalem Drive to reach Highway 240.   Thus, Site 2 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 3 abuts urban residential areas to the east and somewhat to the south.  The overall boundary is 
over 25%.  However, truck traffic would have to travel through residential areas along Chehalem Drive 
to reach the closest major road: Highway 240.  Thus, Site 3 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 4 abuts residential neighborhoods along the entire east and south side of the area.  Truck traffic 
would pass through residential neighborhoods on Old Yamhill Highway (a local street) or Chehalem 
Drive to reach Highway 240, the nearest major road.   Thus, Site 4 does not meet the compatibility 
criteria.   

Sites 5 and 6 abut residential neighborhoods on all sides.  There is a stream corridor buffer on the south 
and a highway buffer on the north, but the overall boundary still exceeds 25%.  Both areas have access 
to Highway 240.  Thus, Sites 5 and 6 fail to meet the residential separation criterion.  

The majority of Site 7 is developed with rural residential.  While there are stream corridors on the north 
and south side, it still would not be possible to establish an industrial area with a residential boundary of 
less than 25%.  Truck travel would have to go through residential areas on Sunnycrest Road to reach 
Highway 99W, the nearest major road.  Thus, Site 7 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Site 8 is unbuffered from rural residential development to the north and west.  The area abuts Highway 
99W, but actual truck access may be restricted and may need to travel adjacent to a residential area. 
Site 8 does not meet the residential separation criterion. 

Site 9 abuts Highway 99W on the north, a stream corridor on the east, a residential area on the south, 
and rural residential land on the west.  A hillside splits this area.  It may theoretically be possible to 
establish an industrial area with less than 25% boundary with residential areas.  However, access to the 
nearest major road, Highway 99W, is restricted due to a rail line and access controls.  Thus, industrial 
development in this area would result in truck traffic on Dayton Avenue, which is largely residential.  
Thus, Site 9 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criteria. 

Page 171



Page 36 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 10 is agricultural land.   It is bounded by the Willamette River on the south, Chehalem Creek on the 
west, a stream corridor and the future Newberg-Dundee bypass on the north, and farm land on the 
west.  However, the only access would be through residential areas in Dundee.  Thus, Site 10 does not 
meet the truck travel compatibility criteria. 

Site 11 has excellent stream corridor buffers on both the east and west side.  It abuts industrial land on 
the northwest side.  It has a limited border with agricultural land on the south that is owned by the 
Chehalem Parks and Recreation District.  Thus, it meets the residential separation compatibility 
criterion.  Truck traffic could access Highway 219 and connect to I-5 or the Portland area without 
traveling through residential areas.  Thus, Site 11 meets the compatibility criteria. 

Site 12 abuts residential land on the west, and is across the street from residential on the north.   Thus, 
the site has abuts residential on more than 25% of its perimeter.  Truck travel would be to Fernwood 
Road, adjacent to residential areas, or across properties to Springbrook Road, again through residential 
areas. Thus Site 12 does not meet the compatibility criteria. 

Much of Site 13 is developed with rural residential.  It does have an arterial street to the north, farm 
land to the east, and a stream corridor to the south.  It may be possible to create an industrial area with 
less than 25% of the border adjacent to residential.  Truck travel could be on Wilsonville Road, an 
arterial street, though it would still be adjacent to a residential area.   Thus, Site 13 meets the 
compatibility criteria. 

Site 14 has stream corridor buffers on the north and west side, and farm land on the east side.  It is 
across the street from a rural residential area on the south, but this is across Wilsonville Road, a minor 
arterial.  Thus, the site meets the residential separation criterion.  Truck traffic could access Wilsonville 
Road, and reach Highway 219 and connect to I-5 or the Portland area.  Thus, Site 14 meets the 
compatibility criteria. 

Site 15 has a small stream corridor buffer on the north side.  It abuts agricultural land across the street 
on the east side, and along the south side.  With some enhancements, these could make effective 
buffers.  Truck traffic would be to Wilsonville Road, a minor arterial.  Site 15 meets the compatibility 
criteria. 

Site 16 has some topographic features that could serve as buffers.  The Chehalem Glenn Golf Course and 
a hillside are on the west side.  Hills are along the east side across Corral Creek Road, though these 
include residential neighborhoods (Site 17).  A small stream is on the south side.  A hill separates sites 16 
and 18.  However, all truck travel would be directed to Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through 
residential areas to reach either Springbrook Road or Highway 219.   Thus, Site 16 does not meet the 
truck travel compatibility standard. 

Site 17 is on the hill east of sites 16 and 18.  It is within an agricultural/forest small holding area.  All 
truck travel would be directed to Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through residential areas to 
reach either Springbrook Road or Highway 219.   Thus, Site 17 does not meet the truck travel 
compatibility criterion.   

Page 172



Page 37 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Site 18 has good buffers from residential areas.  However, all truck travel would be directed to 
Fernwood Road, and would have to pass through residential areas to reach either Springbrook Road or 
Highway 219.   Thus, Site 18 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion.  

Site 19 is in the middle of a residential area without adequate buffers.  All truck travel would be directed 
to Highway 99W, and would have to pass adjacent to residential areas to reach the highway.   Thus, Site 
19 does not meet the compatibility criteria.   

Site 20 borders an urban residential area on the south.  It is within an agricultural/forest small holding 
area.  All truck traffic would have to travel through residential areas to reach the nearest arterial street, 
Mountainview Drive.  Thus, Site 20 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion. 

Site 21 is in the middle of an agricultural small holding area with many residences.  All truck traffic would 
have to travel through or adjacent to residential areas to reach an arterial or state highway.  Thus, Sites 
21 does not meet the truck travel compatibility criterion. 

Summary of Industrial Site Suitability Analysis 
Table 8 on page 38 summarizes the industrial site suitability analysis. The symbols are interpreted as 
follows: 

� means site meets the criteria in the column. 

� means site could meet the criteria under some conditions or mitigation. 

� means the site does not meet the criteria in the column. 

Page 173



Pa
ge

 3
8 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Ta
bl

e 
8:

 S
um

m
ar

y 
of

 In
du

st
ri

al
 S

it
e 

Su
it

ab
ili

ty
 A

na
ly

si
s 

Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
:  

N
or

th
 

V
al

le
y 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

��
 M

os
t o

f s
ite

 >
5%

 s
lo

pe
, 

w
ith

 la
rg

e 
ar

ea
s 

>1
0%

 s
lo

pe
 
��

 A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B.
  S

ite
 >

 1
00

 
ac

re
s.

  N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al
 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  

��
 N

o 

#2
:  

N
or

th
 

V
al

le
y 

Rd
. 

/T
an

ge
n 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
  

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 >

 1
00

 a
cr

es
.  

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 

m
ile

 o
f s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  
 

��
 N

o 

#3
: C

he
ha

le
m

 
D

r.
 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 >
 1

00
 

ac
re

s.
  N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r 
ar

te
ri

al
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

ea
st

 a
nd

 s
om

e 
to

 s
ou

th
. 

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  
 

��
 N

o 

#4
: C

he
ha

le
m

 
D

r.
/C

ul
le

n 
Ln

. 
��

 Si
te

 >
 1

00
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 >
 1

00
 

ac
re

s.
  C

ou
ld

 b
e 

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 

of
 H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
 if

 a
cc

es
s 

vi
a 

O
ld

 
Ya

m
hi

ll 
H

ig
hw

ay
  

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 r

ur
al

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

w
es

t a
nd

 s
ou

th
 

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
.  

W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ar
ea

s.
   

 
 

��
 N

o 

Page 174



Pa
ge

 3
9 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#5
: H

ig
hw

ay
 

24
0 

W
es

t 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 
m

ak
e 

it 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
to

 
as

se
m

bl
e 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
pa

rc
el

s 
w

ith
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 
la

nd
 a

nd
 >

20
 a

cr
es

 
to

ta
l.   

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

  
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 
 

��
 S

ur
ro

un
de

d 
by

 r
ur

al
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

 

��
 N

o 

#6
: H

on
ey

 L
n.

 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld

 
m

ak
e 

it 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
to

 
as

se
m

bl
e 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
pa

rc
el

s 
w

ith
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 
la

nd
 a

nd
 >

20
 a

cr
es

 
to

ta
l.   

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
U

G
B 

an
d 

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f H
ig

hw
ay

 2
40

.  
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
, s

ou
th

 a
nd

 
w

es
t.

 

��
 N

o 

#7
: S

un
ny

cr
es

t 
Rd

. 
��

 In
te

rs
pe

rs
ed

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 

m
ak

e 
it 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

to
 

as
se

m
bl

e 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 

la
nd

 a
nd

 >
20

 a
cr

es
 

to
ta

l.  

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 o
ut

si
de

 s
tr

ea
m

 
co

rr
id

or
 

��
 N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f s

ta
te

 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

.  
N

ot
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 n

o 
gr

ou
p 

of
 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 

co
nt

ai
ni

ng
 1

00
 a

cr
es

 to
ta

l. 

��
 Si

te
 is

 w
ith

in
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 

ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a.

  W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

ar
ea

s.
   

 

��
 N

o 

Page 175



Pa
ge

 4
0 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#8
: F

ox
 F

ar
m

 
Rd

. 
��

 G
ro

up
 o

f p
ar

ce
ls

 

w
ith

 a
bo

ut
 8

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

.  
Co

nt
ai

ns
 s

om
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 >
 1

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

  
A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
, 

ho
w

ev
er

 d
ir

ec
t h

ig
hw

ay
 a

cc
es

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
O

D
O

T.
 

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

Co
un

ty
 in

du
st

ri
al

 
ar

ea
 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 r

ur
al

 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l t
o 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t 

 

��
 N

o 

#9
: D

ay
to

n 
A

ve
. N

or
th

 
��

 G
ro

up
 o

f 

bu
ild

ab
le

 p
ar

ce
ls

 w
ith

 
> 

20
 a

cr
es

.  
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 >
5%

 a
nd

 >
10

%
 

sl
op

es
 

��
 A

lth
ou

gh
 th

e 
ar

ea
 is

 c
lo

se
 to

 
H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
, t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
di

re
ct

 
ac

ce
ss

, s
o 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r 

m
aj

or
 

ar
te

ri
al

 a
cc

es
s 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r 
th

an
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

in
du

st
ri

al
 o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
re

a,
 

no
 g

ro
up

 o
f p

ar
ce

ls
 w

ith
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 la
nd

 c
on

ta
in

in
g 

10
0 

ac
re

s 
to

ta
l  

(c
om

m
er

ci
al

/i
nd

us
tr

ia
l a

re
a 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ig
hw

ay
 a

nd
 r

ai
l l

in
e)

.  
 

� �
 It

 m
ay

 b
e 

po
ss

ib
le

 to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
in

du
st

ri
al

 a
re

a 
w

ith
 

bu
ff

er
s 

fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l. 

 
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
. 

 

��
 N

o 

#1
0:

 
Ri

ve
rf

ro
nt

 
W

es
t 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

��
 M

uc
h 

of
 s

ite
 h

as
 s

lo
pe

s 

ov
er

 1
0%

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B 

bu
t 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

st
re

am
 

co
rr

id
or

. S
ite

 >
 1

00
 a

cr
es

.  
N

o 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

��
  B

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 r
es

id
en

tia
l 

ar
ea

s 
by

 s
tr

ea
m

 c
or

ri
do

rs
.  

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 in
 

D
un

de
e.

 

��
 N

o 

#1
1:

 H
ig

hw
ay

 
21

9/
W

yn
oo

sk
i 
��

 Si
te

 c
on

ta
in

s 
> 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 

in
cl

ud
es

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 1
0-

30
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 5

-1
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
. 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
th

e 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 is
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  

A
bu

ts
 a

nd
 h

as
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
ig

hw
ay

 
21

9.
   

 

��
  B

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 r
ur

al
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l b

y 
st

re
am

 
co

rr
id

or
s.

 

��
 Y

es
 

Page 176



Pa
ge

 4
1 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
2:

  S
. S

pr
in

g-
br

oo
k 

U
RA

 
��

 Si
te

 c
on

ta
in

s 
ab

ou
t 2

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 
an

d 
to

uc
he

s 
on

e 
in

du
st

ri
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 
to

uc
he

s 
on

e 
in

du
st

ri
al

 p
ro

pe
rt

y.
  

A
cc

es
s 

to
 S

pr
in

gb
ro

ok
 R

oa
d 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

��
 U

nb
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
th

e 
no

rt
h 

an
d 

w
es

t.
  W

ou
ld

 re
qu

ir
e 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 to

 r
ea

ch
 

ar
te

ri
al

. 

��
 N

o 

#1
3:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
So

ut
h 

��
 S

ite
 c

on
ta

in
s 

ab
ou

t 6
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 
ac

re
s 

w
ith

 2
 p

ar
ce

ls
 o

f 
ab

ou
t 1

0 
ac

re
s.

 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 

5%
 s

lo
pe

 o
ut

si
de

 s
tr

ea
m

 
co

rr
id

or
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 

pa
rt

 o
f a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e 

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B.
  

N
ea

rb
y 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 

la
nd

 h
av

e 
< 

10
0 

ac
re

s.
  I

f S
ite

 
#1

4 
is

 a
ls

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
, c

om
bi

ne
d 

ar
ea

 w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

> 
10

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s 
fo

r n
ew

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
w

es
t s

id
e 

– 
bo

un
da

ry
 is

 <
 2

5%
.  

W
ou

ld
 

re
qu

ir
e 

tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 r
es

id
en

tia
l a

re
a 

on
ly

 o
n 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t.

 

��
 N

o 

#1
4:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
N

or
th

w
es

t 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 a

nd
 

10
-3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 s

tr
ea

m
 

co
rr

id
or

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  S
ite

 h
as

 >
 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 fo

r n
ew

 
in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  A

bu
ts

 a
nd

 h
as

 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 (m
in

or
 

ar
te

ri
al

). 
  

��
  S

tr
ea

m
 c

or
ri

do
rs

 o
n 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t s

id
e 

Ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l u

se
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 R

oa
d,

 a
nd

 a
lo

ng
 

w
es

t s
id

e.
  W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

a 
on

ly
 o

n 
ar

te
ri

al
 s

tr
ee

t.
 

��
 Y

es
 

Page 177



Pa
ge

 4
2 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
5:

 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
N

or
th

ea
st

 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 3
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 a

nd
 

10
-3

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 

� �
 A

re
a 

no
rt

h 
of

 W
ils

on
vi

lle
 

Rd
. i

s 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 <

 5
%

 
sl

op
e;

 a
re

a 
so

ut
h 

of
 

W
ils

on
vi

lle
 R

d.
 is

 
pr

ed
om

in
an

tly
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
.  

� �
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 h

as
 >

 1
00

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

   
A

bu
ts

 
an

d 
ha

s 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

 
(m

in
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l).
   

 

��
  A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l o

n 
pa

rt
 o

f w
es

t 
si

de
 –

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
is

 <
 2

5%
.  

W
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 r

es
id

en
tia

l a
re

a 
on

ly
 o

n 
ar

te
ri

al
 s

tr
ee

t.
 

��
 N

o 

#1
6:

 C
or

ra
l 

Cr
ee

k 
Rd

. 
So

ut
h 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 1

0-
30

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 a
nd

 5
-

10
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Si

te
 is

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f <

5%
 

sl
op

es
, 5

-1
0%

 s
lo

pe
s,

 a
nd

 
st

ee
pe

r 
sl

op
es

. 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 S
ite

 h
as

 >
 

10
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 fo

r n
ew

 
in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t.
  N

o 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t o

r 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#1
7:

 P
ar

re
tt

 
M

ou
nt

ai
n 

��
 Si

te
 >

 1
00

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

, 
in

cl
ud

es
 p

ar
ce

ls
 3

0+
 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
, 1

0-
30

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 a
nd

 5
-

10
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
 

� �
 Sl

op
es

 o
ve

r 
10

%
 d

o 
no

t 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

in
du

st
ri

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
 

��
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B,

 n
or

 
pa

rt
 o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B.

 
Si

te
 h

as
 >

 1
00

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

 fo
r 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t.

 
N

o 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t 

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

 

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
av

el
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#1
8:

 C
or

ra
l 

Cr
ee

k 
Rd

. 
N

or
th

 

��
 Si

te
 h

as
 a

bo
ut

 6
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.  

H
as

 
so

m
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

 
ab

ou
t 1

0 
bu

ild
ab

le
 

ac
re

s.
 

� �
 M

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
ar

ea
 is

 >
 5

%
 

sl
op

e,
 w

ith
 la

rg
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 
sl

op
e 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 
M

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ss

em
bl

e 
10

0 
ac

re
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
la

nd
 o

n 
hi

lls
id

es
 e

as
t o

f 
Co

rr
al

 C
re

ek
 R

d.
  C

or
ra

l C
re

ek
 

Rd
. a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
ig

hw
ay

 9
9W

 n
ot

 
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
tr

uc
k 

tr
af

fic
.  

 

��
 W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 to
 

re
ac

h 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l. 
  

 

��
 N

o 

Page 178



Pa
ge

 4
3 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Si
te

 
Si

ze
 

To
po

gr
ap

hy
 

Pr
ox

im
it

y 
Co

m
pa

ti
bi

lit
y 

Su
it

ab
le

 fo
r 

In
du

st
ri

al
? 

#1
9:

 B
en

ja
m

in
 

Rd
. 

��
 Si

te
 >

 2
0 

bu
ild

ab
le

 
ac

re
s.
 

��
 La

rg
e 

pa
rt

 o
f s

ite
 is

 >
 5

%
 

sl
op

e,
 w

ith
 s

om
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 s
lo

pe
 

��
 A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

  N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t o
r 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
Si

te
 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

re
a 
 

� �
 In

 th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

of
 ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a 

w
ith

 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
uf

fe
rs

. 
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  
  

� �
 N

o 

#2
0:

 N
or

th
 

H
ill

s 
U

RA
 

��
 Si

te
 >

 2
0 

ac
re

s.
  

In
cl

ud
es

 s
ite

s 
w

ith
 1

0-
30

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 a

cr
es

. 

��
 Si

te
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 

>5
%

 a
nd

 >
10

%
 s

lo
pe

s 
��

 A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B.
   

M
ay

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

ss
em

bl
e 

10
0 

ac
re

 in
du

st
ri

al
 d

is
tr

ic
t b

y 
as

se
m

bl
in

g 
no

n-
co

nt
ig

uo
us

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

  N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t o

r 
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

��
 A

bu
ts

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
on

 s
ou

th
 s

id
e.

   
W

ou
ld

 r
eq

ui
re

 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

  

��
 N

o 

#2
1:

 B
el

l R
d.

 
��

 Si
te

 >
 2

0 
ac

re
s.

  
In

cl
ud

es
 s

ite
s 

w
ith

 1
0-

30
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.  

��
 Sl

op
es

 o
ve

r 
10

%
 d

o 
no

t 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

in
du

st
ri

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.
 

��
 Ex

ce
pt

 o
n 

w
es

t s
id

e,
 a

re
a 

is
 

no
t a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B.

 
M

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 a
ss

em
bl

e 
10

0 
ac

re
 in

du
st

ri
al

 d
is

tr
ic

t b
y 

as
se

m
bl

in
g 

no
n-

co
nt

ig
uo

us
 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
   

N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t 
or

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
 

��
 In

 th
e 

m
id

dl
e 

of
 ru

ra
l 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
a 

w
ith

 
in

ad
eq

ua
te

 b
uf

fe
rs

.  
W

ou
ld

 
re

qu
ir

e 
tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ar

ea
s 

��
 N

o 

 

Page 179



Page 44 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Suitable Land Conclusion 
Site 11, the Highway 219/Wynooski site, has all the industrial site suitability characteristics and thus is 
suitable for industrial use. 

Site 14, the Wilsonville Road Northwest site, also meets the site suitability characteristics. 

No other sites within the study area meet the industrial site suitability criteria. 

Thus, Site 11 and Site 14 are then the only sites that are advanced to the boundary location analysis. 

Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis 
After determining which adjacent sites are suitable for industrial land, the next step is to select which 
land in those sites to include in the UGB.  In order to do this, local governments must determine the ORS 
197.298 priority of each suitable site, and designate land according to those priorities.  When a priority 
class is reached and there is more land in that priority class than is needed to meet the projected needs, 
then the local government applies the Goal 14 locational factors to determine which land in that priority 
to include in UGB. 

As noted, only two sites meet the industrial site suitability criteria:  Sites 11 and 14.  A more detailed 
view of these sites is on Map 8.  These sites are made up of a combination of first, second, and fourth 
priority sites.  The fourth priority agricultural sites consist of lower and higher priority sites also. See 
Map 9.  Thus, various parts of these sites must be considered differently according to the priorities.  For 
ease of analysis, these sites have been further divided into subsites numbered Site 11.1 through 11.9, 
and Site 14.1 through 14.3.  These are shown on Map 10. 

First Priority Urban Reserve Area Sites  
Newberg designated urban reserves in 1995.  Several of these urban reserves have since been included 
in the urban growth boundary.  One parcel in the Wynooski Road Urban Reserve was included as 
industrial land – the remaining were added to meet residential, commercial, or institutional needs.   

Sites 11.2 and 11.3 are within the urban reserve area.  These consist of four parcels on Wynooski Road 
(Tax lots 3229-400 & 500, 3228-1200 & 1700). 

Site 11.2 along with Site 11.1 is the anticipated site of the future water treatment plant.  A water line 
under the Willamette River has been extended near this area in anticipation of the relocation of the 
water plant to these parcels.  The two sites contain 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, Site 11.2 should be 
included in the UGB and designated Public/Quasi-Public.  This should be considered in conjunction with 
Site 11.1. 

Site 11.3 includes a solid waste transfer facility.  It includes 3 gross buildable acres.  Including it in the 
UGB would facilitate connecting the site to municipal sewer and water, which would be useful to some 
of the operations.  Sites 11.3 should be included in the UGB. 

No parcels in Site 14 are within the urban reserve area. 

Page 180



Page 45 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The four parcels in Sites 11.2 and 11.3 total 47 total acres.  However, they include only 6 gross buildable 
acres, as the sites are largely in the stream corridor or in industrial use.  Thus the total industrial and 
public/quasi-public land needs are far from being met on these sites.  Thus, Newberg must look to 
second priority rural exception sites.  

Second Priority Rural Exception Areas Sites  
Site 11.1, 11.9, and 14.1 are rural exception sites.   

Site 11.1 consists of three parcels on Wynooski Road (Tax Lots 3229-202 (part), 600 & 2200).  These are 
part of the anticipated future water treatment plant site, and thus are suited for Public/Quasi-Public 
designation.  This site along with Site 11.2 contains 3 gross buildable acres.  Site 11.1 should be included 
in the UGB and designated Public/Quasi-Public.  

Site 11.9 and Site 14.1 are along Wilsonville Road near the Springbrook Creek crossing.  Neither of sites 
independently contain 20 acres for industrial uses – they only should be included if adjacent parcels also 
are included as industrial.  Otherwise, they would fail to meet the industrial district size suitability 
characteristic.  Site 11.9 (Tax lots 3221-5200 & 5300 on the west side of the creek) contains 5 total acres, 
but only 1 gross buildable acre.  Site 11.9 should be included in the UGB only if adjoining properties in 
Site 11.8 also is included in the UGB.  Site 14.1 (Tax lot 3221-4900, 4901 & 5100 on the east side of the 
creek) contains 9 total acres, but only 1 gross buildable acre.   Site 14.1 should be included in the UGB 
only if Site 14.2 also is included in the UGB.   

Even if all these sites were included in the UGB, they do not come close to meeting future industrial land 
needs.  Thus, Newberg must look toward lower priority lands. 

Third Priority Marginal Land 
No marginal land exists in Yamhill County, thus no third priority land exists. 

Fourth Priority Agricultural Land   
The remaining parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 are designated agricultural.  According to ORS 197.298(2): 

Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

Thus, the remaining parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 are to be compared according to their soil types.  Map 
9 shows the soil classification in these sites.  Both of these sites are comprised primarily of Class II soils.  
Each has Class III – VI soils, primarily located within stream corridors.  Sites 11.6 and 14.2 contain some 
Class I soils.  Therefore, these two subsites should receive lower priority (See Map 10).  The remaining 
subsites have similar enough soil characteristics that they can be considered the same priority.  These 
sites are 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.811

                                                            
11 Site 11.8 contains approximately 1 acre in Class I soils, a portion of which is under two buildings. If Site 11.8 is included, the small area of Class 

I soil should be included under the “maximum efficiency” exception under ORS 197.298 (3)(b). 

, and 14.3.  These sites consist of 16 parcels containing approximately 
166 gross buildable acres (269 total acres).  This exceeds the total need for industrial land for the 20-

Page 181



Page 46 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

year planning period through 2032.  Thus, the decision on which of these sites to include in the UGB 
(Sites 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.8 and/or 14.3) depends on the Goal 14 Location Factor Analysis below. 

Goal 14 Location Factor Analysis 
The decision on which suitable sites of the same priority class (Sites 11.4, 11.5, 11.7, 11.8 and/or 14.3) 
should be included in the UGB is determined using the Goal 14 Location Factors.   The four Goal 14 
location factors are: 

(1) Efficient accommodation of identified land needs;  

(2) Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 

 (3) Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and  

(4) Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 
occurring on farm and forest land outside the UGB. 

The local government is to evaluate alternative boundary locations of properties in the same priority 
class, and determine which boundary alternative best meets the factors listed.   

OAR 660-024-0060 (3) states: 

(3) The boundary location factors of Goal 14 are not independent criteria. When the factors 
are applied to compare alternative boundary locations and to determine the UGB location, a 
local government must show that all the factors were considered and balanced.  

Thus the factors are not criteria that are either met or not met:  they are comparative factors to 
determine which alternative best meets the factors.  They must be considered together, and no one 
factor may be given decisive weight without considering the others.   Also note that they are used only 
to determine which suitable land of a particular priority should be included in the UGB.  Thus, lower 
priority land cannot be included even though it may better meet the factors, and higher priority land 
need not be included if it is not suitable.  Finally, note that the factors have a significant amount of 
overlap.  For example, the cost of providing services to an area is directly an element of Factor 2 
(economic provision of services), but also an element of Factor 1 (efficient accommodation of land 
needs), and Factor 3 (economic consequences).   This is simply a matter of how the factors are written, 
and there is no indication in the rule that such elements should not be included in each factor. 

Boundary Alternatives 

The agricultural parcels in Site 11 and Site 14 were compared and arranged in three alternative 
Boundary Locations.  All three boundary alternative assume that land along Adolf Road already in the 
UGB is changed to industrial, and that Site 11.1, 11.2  are included and designated Public/Quasi-Public, 
and that Site 11.3 is included and designated industrial.  The boundary alternatives are shown on Map 
11. 

Boundary Alternative A:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB along Wilsonville Road for 
industrial uses.  This alternative includes sites 11.8, 11.9, 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3.  Site 14.2 includes some 

Page 182



Page 47 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Class I soils, so this would be included under the “maximum efficiency” exception under ORS 197.298 
(3)(b). 

Boundary Alternative B:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB along Highway 219 and Adolf 
Road for industrial uses.  This alternative includes sites 11.4, 11.7, 11.8, and 11.9.  

Boundary Alternative C:  This boundary alternative would extend the UGB south on Highway 219 for 
industrial uses, and not include properties on the east side of Adolf Road.  This alternative includes sites 
11.4, 11.5, and 11.7.  Site 11.6 would be excluded, since it includes some Class I soils. 

As shown in Table 9 below, all three alternatives contain between 125 and 128 gross buildable acres.  All 
options would meet all but about 2-5 acres of the remaining buildable industrial land needs through 
2032. 

Table 9:  Buildable Acres in Boundary Alternatives 
 Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 

Buildable Acres 128 125 126 
10-30 ac. sites 2 2 2 
30-50 ac. sites 2 2 2 

 

Location Factor 1: Efficient accommodation of identified land needs 

Boundary Alternative B would accommodate industrial land needs very efficiently.  It is adjacent to the 
Newberg UGB.  It contains level land within mostly large parcels.  It contains adequate land to meet all 
the 2032 large site industrial land needs.  It includes a few rural home sites, an existing agricultural 
industrial plant, and a large riding stable.  Sewer and water service are nearby.  Sewer service to the 
area can be provided via a planned east side sewer pump station.   All the buildable land in this area is 
estimated to be able to flow by gravity to this station.  This alternative is crossed by the bypass corridor.  
Upon construction of the bypass, Wilsonville Road will need to be relocated through this area.  This 
would provide some efficiency. 

Boundary Alternative C would accommodate industrial land needs, but somewhat less efficiently than 
Alternative B.  This site contains mostly level land, though there is some more sloping land at the 
southeast corner.  It is adjacent to the existing Wynooski Road industrial area.  It also includes pre-
existing home sites, and the same agricultural industrial plant as Alternative B.  Because Site 11.6 would 
be excluded, the back part of several lots would not be included, resulting in some inefficiency.  Sewer 
and water could be extended to this area, though they would need to be extended a somewhat greater 
distance than for Boundary Alternative B. 

Boundary Alternative A would accommodate industrial land needs the least efficiently of the three 
alternatives.  The site does include level land with mostly large parcels, and contains enough land to 
meet 2032 large site industrial needs.  It is the furthest from the existing industrial areas along Wynooski 
Road.   Because it contains land on the east side of Springbrook Creek, an additional sanitary sewer 
pump station would be needed to provide services.  This would add to the cost of providing services and 
increase inefficiency.   

Page 183



Page 48 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Location Factor 2: Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services 

As noted in OAR 660-024-0060: 

 (7) For purposes of Goal 14 Boundary Location Factor 2, "public facilities and services" means 
water, sanitary sewer, storm water management, and transportation facilities.  

(8) The Goal 14 boundary location determination requires evaluation and comparison of the 
relative costs, advantages and disadvantages of alternative UGB expansion areas with respect 
to the provision of public facilities and services needed to urbanize alternative boundary 
locations. This evaluation and comparison must be conducted in coordination with service 
providers, including the Oregon Department of Transportation with regard to impacts on the 
state transportation system. "Coordination" includes timely notice to service providers and the 
consideration of evaluation methodologies recommended by service providers. The evaluation 
and comparison must include:  
 
(a) The impacts to existing water, sanitary sewer, storm water and transportation facilities 
that serve nearby areas already inside the UGB;  

 (b) The capacity of existing public facilities and services to serve areas already inside the UGB 
as well as areas proposed for addition to the UGB; and  

 (c) The need for new transportation facilities, such as highways and other roadways, 
interchanges, arterials and collectors, additional travel lanes, other major improvements on 
existing roadways and, for urban areas of 25,000 or more, the provision of public transit 
service. 

As stated in the Goal 9 Rule (OAR 660-009-0005(9)): 

“Serviceable" means the city or county has determined that public facilities and transportation 
facilities, as defined by OAR Chapter 660, Divisions 011 and 012, currently have adequate 
capacity for development planned in the service area where the site is located or can be 
upgraded to have adequate capacity within the 20-year planning period. 

Findings 
Among other things, the South Industrial Area Master Plan looked carefully at existing urban facilities in 
the south part of Newberg and how these facilities can be economically extended to serve the Highway 
219/Wynooski study area (Sites 11.1 through 11.9) .  The plan was carefully coordinated with a number 
of service providers, including the Newberg Public Works Department (sewer, water, and storm 
drainage); Yamhill County Public Works (County roads and rural storm drainage); and the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (State highways).  

With regard to access, the plan notes that: 

Primary access to the plan area is taken from Highway 219 which runs north/south through 
the middle of the plan area. Highway 219 is the highest order street that runs through the 

Page 184



Page 49 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

immediate vicinity of the plan area. The western portion of the site currently has secondary 
access through several local streets that connect to properties within the plan area. There are 
no major roads or access points on the eastern side of the plan area. A portion of the 
northwest section of the plan area is identified on the Newberg-Dundee Bypass Project map as 
the approved corridor location for the Newberg Oregon 219 interchange. The following table 
describes the both the existing improvement and the City’s current improvement plans for 
roadways within the plan area: 

Street Name 
Functional 

Classification 
Existing Improvement 

Preliminary 
Improvement Plans 

State Highway 219 Minor Arterial 3 Lanes 5 Lanes 
Springbrook Road Minor Arterial 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 
Wilsonville Road Minor Arterial 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 
Wynooski Road Major Collector 2 Lanes 3 Lanes 

 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan makes the following findings with respect to providing sewer, 
water, storm drainage and transportation services to Sites 11.1-11.9: 

UTILITIES: The storm, wastewater, and water utility connections are all located near the west 
and northwest borders of the plan area. 

Water: An eighteen-inch water line runs east-west along Wynooski Road to intersect with 
Sandoz Road. The eighteen-inch line continues along Sandoz Road to Springbrook Road. 
Several six-inch lines spur off of the Sandoz line to serve local development. A twelve-inch line 
runs along Wynooski Road from the Wynooski-Sandoz intersection up to dead end around 
Highway 219.  

Wastewater: A 36-inch wastewater line runs from the intersection of Wynooski Road and Dog 
Ridge Road, it continues along Dog Ridge, and connects to the Treatment Plant located to the 
northwest of the plan area. Both 24-inch and 36-inch sections run from the northwest portion 
of the plan area along Wynooski Road to the north. A 36-inch line runs along Sandoz Road. 

Stormwater: The storm sewer system borders the plan area in a more continuous manner. It 
runs south along both sides of Highway 219 to the intersection of Wynooski Road and Adolf 
Road where it turns west and continues down the northern side of Wynooski Road for 
approximately 1,300 feet. It also runs east along Wilsonville Road and terminates at the 28805 
Wilsonville Road property. 

Recycled Water: The City of Newberg provides recycled water for irrigation use in an effort to 
reduce the amount of demand on the potable water system. It also reduces the amount of 
treated effluent that is directly discharged into the Willamette River. Wastewater is treated at 
the City of Newberg Wastewater Treatment Plant and conveyed through a “purple pipe” to 
private properties. The purple pipe currently runs east under Wynooski Road, north under 

Page 185



Page 50 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Sandoz Road, east under Highway 219 and east along Wilsonville Road to the S-turn, then 
north through the golf course. 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan goes on to describe how services can be provided in an orderly 
and economic manner to Site 11 while enhancing service to areas already within the UGB: 

UTILITIES: The plan area rests on a prominent plateau of approximately 375 acres that is 
bounded by Hess Creek on the west and Springbrook Creek on the east. Elevations of this 
plateau range from slightly above 170-feet of elevation to 110-feet along the incised 
drainages at the boundaries of the plan area. Natural existing soils of the Chehalem Valley 
consist predominately of clays with incidence of perched water tables; these soils typically 
have very low infiltration rates. 

Water: The City of Newberg Water System Master Plan states that a 24-inch main should be 
extended to the site from the water treatment plant to allow for further extension up 
Springbrook Road. The existing water system has adequate quantity and pressure sufficient to 
serve the area. It is assumed that water pressures would be high enough to warrant pressure 
reduction. Extension of water mains within the alignments of the proposed street will provide 
adequate service and redundancy to the plan area. Further demand analysis should be 
implemented with each development to ensure adequate volume and pressure is available for 
the needs of each individual user. 

Sewer: Sanitary sewer service to the master plan area can be provided by siting a pump 
station on property south of Wynooski Road across from the existing waste water treatment 
plant. This location may require the acquisition of additional land to accommodate the pump 
station and connection. This pump station should be of significant depth to allow a large 
diameter trunk line to be extended from the head works of the pump station at a depth of 20 
to 22 feet. At this depth the sanitary sewer trunk line can be extended east along Wynooski 
Road to Highway 219 and south along Highway 219 at a minimum slope.  

This sanitary sewer trunk line along with the pump station will provide the backbone for 
sanitary sewer service to the area and provide a basis for systematic extension of facilities and 
services from Highway 219 to the boundaries of the plan area. Installation of interceptor and 
service mains from this backbone infrastructure can be further extended along the alignments 
of Street “A”, Street “B”, Street “C”, the proposed realignment of Wynooski Road and within 
optional or local service roads to provide sanitary sewer service to the master plan area. The 
ten acre area east of Highway 219 at the southern end of the planning area will require a 
small local lift station to address the 50-foot drop in elevation. 

Recycled water should be extended to the master plan area to extend the benefits that this 
service provides. Recycled water can be extended from the waste water treatment plant or a 
connection could be made to the main that serves the Chehalem Glenn Golf Course in the area 
of Springbrook Road. Location of the connection to the existing system and transmission main 
sizes should be determined from further investigation into availability of reclaimed water and 

Page 186



Page 51 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

demand estimates for the plan area. Currently recycled water is only available on demand and 
is conveyed via a non-pressurized distribution system. Potential customers would need to work 
closely with the City of Newberg to address Oregon Department of Environmental Quality 
standards and requirements. 

Thus, public facilities and services can be extended orderly and efficiently to the areas in Boundary 
Alternatives B and C.  Relatively speaking, extending services to Boundary Alterative B would be more 
orderly than Alternative C.  Sewer and water services will first need to be extended to near the 
intersection of Wynooski Road and Highway 219.  From there, they can be extended in an orderly and 
economic manner north to serve Sites 11.8 and 11.9, and south to serve 11.4 and 11.7.  Alternative C 
would require a longer extension past 11.4 and 11.7 to serve Site 11.5, making this alternative less 
orderly and efficient than Alternative B.  

The area in Alternative A also could be served with transportation, sewer, water, and storm drainage 
facilities.  Wilsonville Road would need to be upgraded to an urban arterial standard.  The Springbrook 
Creek crossing would need to be upgraded before any industrial development could occur.  This would 
add an upfront cost that would be less orderly and economic than the other options.  Upon construction 
of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass, the Wilsonville Road connection would be terminated at the bypass.  
Thus, a new road would have to be constructed to the south to connect to Highway 219.  This new road 
would pass through Site 11.8.  Sewer service also would need to be extended first through or past Site 
11.8, 11.9, 14.1, and 14.2 to reach Site 14.3.  A new sanitary sewer pump station would be needed at 
the crossing of Springbrook Creek.  Again, this would make it more orderly and efficient to include 
Alternative B or C. 

Location Factor 3: Comparative environmental, energy, economic and social consequences 

Environmental Consequences  
All the boundary alternatives are bordered by stream corridors.  These provide excellent buffers from 
nearby agricultural land and rural residential areas.  The buffers limit intrusion of noise, dust, vibration, 
or other environmental considerations to neighboring uses.  Boundary Alternative A only has such a 
buffer on the north side.  The south boundary is Wilsonville Road, which provides a minimal buffer from 
residential uses on the south side.  Thus, this boundary alternative would be less effective in buffering 
environmental impacts to surrounding uses. 

Of course including stream corridors at the edge of an industrial area also has some risks of negative 
impacts to the water resources.  The South Industrial Area Master plan shows that all of these areas will 
be protected from urban industrial use.  Limited trail uses will be encouraged to provide access to these 
riparian corridors.  The South Industrial Area Master Plan also calls for sustainable design and building 
practices to minimize impacts from run-off and development on these important natural features.  

Energy Consequences 
The main energy consequences include (a) vehicle miles traveled for employees; (b) vehicle miles 
travelled for truck traffic associated with industrial clusters that choose to locate or expand in Newberg. 

Page 187



Page 52 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The energy consequence of not providing basic employment opportunities in Newberg are that Newberg 
area residents will need to commute to Portland, Salem, Hillsboro, McMinnville or elsewhere for 
employment opportunities.  Since the Highway 219/Wynooski area best meets identified industrial siting 
requirements, it’s reasonable to conclude that this site will have the highest likelihood of success in 
attracting and maintaining traded-sector employment opportunities in Newberg.  

All alternatives are relatively accessible for Newberg residents and for those commuting to Newberg to 
work.  Other locations would require driving through the congested downtown area, or spending more 
time on congested Highway 99W, where mileage efficiency (due to stop-and-go travel) would likely 
decrease. 

Alternative B is closest to Newberg’s largest industrial area and the Sportsman Airpark, which means 
that travel between industry clusters would be reduced when compared with other potential sites.   

Alternatives B and C offer the most direct route to I-5 and regional markets, when compared with other 
sites.  Alternative C is slightly closer to I-5, but slightly further from Newberg than Alternative B.   

Thus, Alternative B would have the most positive and fewest negative energy consequences of the study 
alternatives, followed closely by Alternative C and lastly by Alternative A. 

Economic Consequences 
Newberg has developed an economic strategy, listed targeted industrial clusters that will help 
implement this strategy, and identified site characteristics necessary to be successful in attracting these 
industrial clusters to the community. Based on analysis found in the EOA and in these findings, the City 
has concluded that only Sites 11 (Highway 219/Wynooski) and 14 (Wilsonville Road Northwest) have the 
characteristics necessary for Newberg to be competitive in attracting targeted industrial clusters.   

Inclusion of any alternatives for urban industrial purposes would marginally reduce the amount of 
agricultural land in production.  On the other hand, including this industrial land will provide land for 
processing agricultural products and other industrial needs of the agricultural economy.  Several 
agricultural industries are included in the Newberg’s targeted industry list, including wineries, specialty 
foods and food processing, and nursery and agricultural products (value added).    Note that inclusion of 
agricultural land within a UGB does not mean that this land will immediately be lost to agricultural 
production; the City anticipates that this land will develop gradually over a 20-year period, and that land 
will stay in agricultural use until needed for planned industrial development12

As noted in the findings under Location Factor 2, public facilities and services can most efficiently be 
provided to Boundary Alternative B.  Sewer, water, storm drainage, and transportation facilities all are 
close by and can be extended economically.   

.   

                                                            
12 Recent experience has shown this to be the case.  For example, the undeveloped industrial land on Mountainview Drive remains in a filbert 

orchard, which continues to produce crops, even though the area was included in the UGB in 1979.  Much of the undeveloped farm land in 
the Springbrook master plan area remains in commercial agricultural production.  In addition, the undeveloped portions of the Springbrook 
Oaks area remained in commercial agricultural production until about 80% of the area was developed. 

Page 188



Page 53 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Alternative A would require an additional sanitary sewer pump station. Alternative A would also require 
immediate reconstruction of the Springbrook Creek crossing, adding costs.  Thus there are more positive 
economic consequences to including Alternative B or C than Alternative A.  Alternative B, being closer to 
existing services, would have the best economic consequences.   

Social Consequences 
Including Alternative B would have a number of positive social consequences: 

(1) It would provide industrial land that would meet the needs of future industrial users, thus 
providing jobs and economic resources for the community.  It would increase the local tax base, 
and provide resources for other important facilities such as parks, schools, and quality urban 
neighborhoods. 

(2) The site has effective buffers from existing residential uses through two large stream corridors. 
(3) An important social consequence is the perception of Newberg as people enter.  This area is at 

the south gateway to Newberg.  The Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan included 
streetscape and design requirements for the Highway 219 frontage, so the appearance of this 
gateway could actually be enhanced.  

Including Alternative C would provide similar social benefits of jobs and economic resources as 
Alternative B.  Alternative C has less of a buffer from agricultural use due to the exclusion of Site 11.6.  
Alternative C would extend the entrance to Newberg further to the south than Alternative B.   

Boundary Alternative A lacks this type of buffer on the south side, which could result in negative 
consequences to residences south of Wilsonville Road.   Alternative C would be on the Wilsonville Road 
entrance to Newberg as opposed to the Highway 219 entrance.   

All three alternatives include some existing rural home sites which could be affected by the conversion 
to industrial uses. 

Overall, the most positive and fewest negative social consequences would come from including 
Alternative B, followed by Alternative C. 

EEES Conclusion 
Table 10 below summarizes the EEES findings above.  As can be seen, Alternative B has the most positive 
and least negative consequences of all the alternatives. 

Table 10:  EEES Consequences Summary 
 Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 
Environmental Consequences 3rd Best (tie) Best (tie) 

Energy Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Economic Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Social Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Overall 3rd  Best 2nd Best 

Factor 4: Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities 

occurring on farm and forest land outside the urban growth boundary 

Page 189



Page 54 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

The interface between agriculture uses and industrial uses does not pose the same compatibility issues 
as with other urban uses.  For example, siting residential uses near agricultural lands can create conflicts 
as farmers plow fields, spray chemicals, and operate farm machinery near houses.  Conducting these 
same farming practices near industrial land does not necessarily generate conflicts.  Having nearby 
industrial land can in fact enhance the farm activities, as farmers can have a nearby location to store and 
process agricultural products, and to store equipment.  Conflicts can arise, but they generally are not as 
severe as for other urban uses.  

All three boundary alternatives have minimal borders with agricultural land.  There is little significant 
difference between the three alternatives. 

Boundary Alternative A would border agricultural land on the south side of Site 11.8, and on the east 
side of 14.3.  Overall, this alternative has the least border with agricultural land of the three alternatives. 

Boundary Alternative B would border agricultural land only on the south side. 

Boundary Alternative C would border agricultural land on the both the north and south side, and 
adjacent to Site 11.6.  This has the longest border of the three alternatives. 

Location Factor Conclusion 

Table 11 contains a summary of the findings relative to the boundary location factors for each of the 
three boundary alternatives.  As can be seen, Alternative B best meets the Goal 14 Location factors: 

� Alternative B can most efficiently accommodate industrial land uses. 

� Public Facilities and Services can be provided most efficiently and economically to Alternative B. 

� Alternative B would have effective buffers from residential uses, thus minimizing negative 
environmental consequences. 

� Alternative B is close to existing industrial areas, close to the Newberg center, and has close 
access to I-5.  This results in the most positive energy consequences of all options. 

� Including Alternative B would have a number of very positive economic consequences, including 
providing sufficient land for future employers. 

� Including Alternative B would have the most positive and fewest negative social consequences.  
Including the area would provide land for jobs for Newberg area citizens and it has effective 
buffers from residential uses. 

� Alternative B has a slightly larger border with agricultural land than Alternative C, but overall the 
difference is negligible. 

Table 11:  Location Factor Summary 
Location Factor Alternative A Alternative B Alternative C 
Factor 1: Efficient  Accommodation of 
Land Needs 

3rd Best 2nd Best 

Factor 2: Efficient Public Facilities 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Factor 3: ESEE Consequences 3rd Best 2nd Best 
Factor 4: Compatibility with 
Farm/Forest Uses 

Best 2nd Best 3rd 

Overall 3rd  Best 2nd Best 

Page 190



Page 55 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Thus, the land within Boundary Alternative B best meets the Goal 14 Location Factors and should be 
included in the UGB. 

Urban Growth Boundary Location Analysis Summary and Conclusion 
The Urban Growth Boundary location as shown in Map 12 complies with the UGB amendment priorities 
of ORS 197.298, the Goal 14 Needs Factors, and the requirement s of OAR Chapter 660, Division 24.  

The findings examined a study area extending ½ to ¾ miles from the UGB.  Within this study area, the 
finding identified 21 sites for potential UGB expansion.  Of the potential industrial areas within the study 
area, only the Highway 219/Wynooski Site (Site 11) and the Wilsonville Road Northwest Site (Site 14) 
meet the industrial site suitability 
criteria. 

Because the land within these two 
sites contains more land than is 
needed for 2032 industrial land 
needs, and because the sites include 
property under several different 
priorities under ORS 197.298, the 
sites were segregated into several 
subsites.  The findings applied the 
ORS 197.298 priorities to these 
subsites to include urban reserve and 
rural exception land in the UGB.  
Because these higher priority lands 
did not contain sufficient land to 
meet 2032 industrial land needs, the 
findings then looked toward fourth 
priority agricultural lands.  The 
findings applied the Goal 14 
locational factors to three boundary alternatives within Sites 11 and 14.  The analysis concluded that 
Boundary Alternative B, shown on Map 10, should be included.  The selected UGB boundary best meets 
the Goal 14 Needs factors.  The site provides the type of industrial land needed by Newberg’s targeted 
industries.  Including that land will be an economic and social benefit to the community.  The site is well 
buffered from adjoining residential and agricultural uses by stream corridors.  The South Industrial 
Master Plan’s green street and environmentally friendly drainage systems will ensure compatibility with 
the natural environment.  Overall, the site will provide jobs in Newberg, thus lessening the need for 
commuting outside the community to work, and benefitting the community and state environmentally, 
economically, socially, and energy-wise.  

Thus, in summary, the subsites shown in Table 12 below should be included in the UGB.  A detailed map 
of the properties to be included is on Map 13, and a list shown in Table 13 below. 

Figure 4:  Meeting Buildable Industrial and PQ Land Needs 
through 2032 

Buildable 
industrial 

land in UGB, 
56 ac. 

Buildable 
land to be 

redesignated 
industrial in 
UGB, 1 ac. 

Urban 
reserve land 

added to 
UGB, 3 ac. 

Rural 
exception 

land addded 
to UGB, 4 ac. 

Ag. Land 
added to 
UGB (Mix 

Class II-VI), 
124 ac. 

Ag land 
added to 

UGB (Class I), 
1 ac. 

All numbers are gross buildable acres. 

Page 191



Page 56 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

 

Table 12:  Sites included in UGB by Priority Class 
Priority Total  Acres Buildable Acres13

1st:  Urban Reserve 

 
47 6 

Site 11.2 23 3 

Site 11.3 24 3 

2nd:  Rural Exception 19 1 

Site 11.1 14 0 

Site 11.9 5 1 

4th:  Agricultural 194 125 

Site 11.4 44 25 

Site 11.7 113 85 

Site 11.8 37 14 

Grand Total 260 132 
 

                                                            
13 Numbers are rounded to the nearest acre.  For a more detailed acreage per property, see Table 13:  Properties Redesignated Industrial or 

Included in UGB 

Page 192



Pa
ge

 5
7 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 Ta
bl

e 
13

:  
Pr

op
er

ti
es

 R
ed

es
ig

na
te

d 
In

du
st

ri
al

 o
r 

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 U

G
B 

 

Si
te

 
Ta

x 
Lo

t 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

A
dd

re
ss

 
O

w
ne

r 
To

ta
l 

A
cr

es
 

Bu
ild

ab
le

 
A

cr
es

 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 

Cu
rr

en
t C

om
p.

 
Pl

an
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Co

m
p.

 P
la

n 

In
du

st
ri

al
  

Si
te

 S
iz

e 
Ca

te
go

ry
 

N
ot

es
 

In
 

U
G

B 
32

21
-

26
00

 
N

E 
St

. P
au

l 
H

w
y.

 
Ta

ut
fe

st
, W

ay
ne

 C
. 

3.
05

 
0.

00
 

U
G

B 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

, 
M

D
R 

(C
ity

) 
IN

D
 

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 w
ith

in
 p

la
nn

ed
 

by
pa

ss
 R

O
W

 

11
.9

 
32

21
-

52
00

 

28
74

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

H
ag

ge
rt

y,
 R

ob
er

t 
&

 L
oi

s 
1.

08
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

 
 

11
.9

 
32

21
-

53
00

 

28
73

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

So
ve

y,
 L

lo
yd

 H
. &

 
Ca

ro
l M

. 
3.

51
 

0.
69

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
A

FS
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

< 
2 

 

11
.7

 
32

28
-

10
00

 
91

50
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
Sc

hm
id

t,
 C

ha
rl

es
 

M
. L

iv
in

g 
Tr

us
t 1

/2
 

40
.4

6 
34

.2
6 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

30
 to

 5
0 

In
cl

ud
es

 p
ot

en
tia

l w
et

la
nd

 o
f 

ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
5 

ac
re

s.
  

W
et

la
nd

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
fu

tu
re

 p
ar

k 
si

te
. 

11
.4

 
32

28
-

11
00

 
91

95
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
La

Jo
ie

, M
er

lin
 A

. &
 

Sa
nd

ra
 K

. 
14

.4
9 

12
.3

4 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
10

 to
 3

0 
 

11
.3

 
32

28
-

12
00

 
94

75
 N

E 
St

. 
Pa

ul
 H

w
y.

 
La

Jo
ie

, M
er

lin
 A

. &
 

Sa
nd

ra
 K

. 
13

.3
2 

3.
32

 
U

RA
 

P 
(C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
 

 

11
.3

 
32

28
-

17
00

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

La
Jo

ie
, M

er
lin

 A
. &

 
Sa

nd
ra

 K
. 

10
.5

0 
0.

00
 

U
RA

 
P 

(C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 

11
.4

 
32

28
-

19
00

 
N

E 
St

. P
au

l 
H

w
y.

 
W

al
ke

r,
 C

ur
tis

 D
. 

1/
2 

29
.3

0 
13

.0
6 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

10
 to

 3
0 

 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
0 

28
57

0 
N

E 
W

ils
on

vi
lle

 
Rd

. 

H
od

gd
on

, D
on

al
d 

E.
 Jr

. 
4.

17
 

1.
48

 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
< 

2 
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 fe
et

 a
pp

ea
r 

to
 b

e 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 th
e 

U
G

B.
 

Page 193



Pa
ge

 5
8 

CI
TY

 O
F 

N
EW

BE
RG

 �
�In

du
st

ri
al

 U
G

B 
�

�
��

��
��

	�

��

	�
�

�	
�

��
�

��
�

�
��

��
��

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
01

2 

 

Si
te

 
Ta

x 
Lo

t 
Pr

op
er

ty
 

A
dd

re
ss

 
O

w
ne

r 
To

ta
l 

A
cr

es
 

Bu
ild

ab
le

 
A

cr
es

 
Pr

io
ri

ty
 

Cu
rr

en
t C

om
p.

 
Pl

an
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 
Co

m
p.

 P
la

n 

In
du

st
ri

al
  

Si
te

 S
iz

e 
Ca

te
go

ry
 

N
ot

es
 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
1 

96
90

 A
do

lf 
Rd

. 
Ch

ur
ch

, R
ic

k 
20

.1
3 

8.
25

 
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

A
FL

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

IN
D

 
2 

to
 1

0 

Ea
st

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 U
G

B 
is

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

.  
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 
fe

et
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 b
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 

th
e 

U
G

B.
 

11
.8

 
32

28
-

80
2 

10
10

0 
A

do
lf 

Rd
. 

Cl
ay

, T
im

ot
hy

 A
. &

 
La

ur
ie

 S
. 

13
.1

6 
4.

59
 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

2 
to

 1
0 

Ea
st

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 U
G

B 
is

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

.  
Th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
65

 
fe

et
 a

pp
ea

r 
to

 b
e 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 

th
e 

U
G

B.
 

11
.7

 
32

28
-

90
0 

96
80

 A
do

lf 
Rd

. 
G

ai
bl

er
 F

am
ily

 
Fa

rm
s 

LL
C 

72
.2

8 
50

.6
0 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l 
A

FL
H

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
IN

D
 

30
 to

 5
0 

 

In
 

U
G

B 
32

28
BB

-1
00

 
A

do
lf 

Ro
ad

 
N

ic
kl

ou
s,

 M
ar

tin
 T

. 
&

 K
at

he
ri

ne
 R

. 
3.

53
 

1.
13

 
U

G
B 

A
FS

H
 (C

ou
nt

y)
, 

M
D

R 
(C

ity
) 

IN
D

 
< 

2 
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 w
ith

in
 p

la
nn

ed
 

by
pa

ss
 R

O
W

 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

20
2 

 
So

ut
he

as
t P

ap
er

 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 C
o.

 
0.

10
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
IN

D
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

PQ
 

 

U
G

B 
am

en
dm

en
t i

nc
lu

de
s 

sm
al

l p
or

tio
n 

of
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

so
ut

h 
of

 D
og

 R
id

ge
 R

oa
d 

no
t 

al
re

ad
y 

in
 U

G
B.

 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

22
00

 
13

01
 

W
yn

oo
sk

i 
So

ut
he

as
t P

ap
er

 
M

an
uf

ac
tu

ri
ng

 C
o.

 
5.

57
 

0.
00

 
Ru

ra
l 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
IN

D
 (C

ou
nt

y)
 

PQ
 

 
Pa

rc
el

 is
 e

nt
ir

el
y 

w
ith

in
 

st
re

am
 c

or
ri

do
r 

11
.2

 
32

29
-

40
0 

26
08

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

19
.2

2 
2.

05
 

U
RA

 
IN

D
 

PQ
 

 
 

11
.2

 
32

29
-

50
0 

26
00

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

4.
17

 
0.

72
 

U
RA

 
IN

D
 

PQ
 

 
 

11
.1

 
32

29
-

60
0 

24
12

 
W

yn
oo

sk
i 

So
ut

he
as

t P
ap

er
 

M
an

uf
ac

tu
ri

ng
 C

o.
 

8.
32

 
0.

45
 

Ru
ra

l 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n 

IN
D

 (C
ou

nt
y)

 
PQ

 
 

 

Page 194



Page 59 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 3: Findings for Applicable Statutes, Rules, Goals, and 
Comprehensive Plans  
This section makes findings addressing the applicable Oregon Statutes, the Oregon Administrative Rules, 
the Statewide Planning Goals, Newberg and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan policies.  These findings 
are in addition to detailed findings shown in Section 1 dealing with land needs, and Section 2 dealing 
with the UGB location. 

State Statutory and Rule Requirements 
ORS 195.036 Area population forecast; coordination. 

 The coordinating body under ORS 195.025 (1) shall establish and maintain a population 
forecast for the entire area within its boundary for use in maintaining and updating 
comprehensive plans, and shall coordinate the forecast with the local governments within its 
boundary. 

OAR 660-024-0040 Population Forecasts 

(1) Counties must adopt and maintain a coordinated 20-year population forecast for the 
county and for each urban area within the county consistent with statutory requirements for 
such forecasts under ORS 195.025 and 195.036. Cities must adopt a 20-year population 
forecast for the urban area consistent with the coordinated county forecast, except that a 
metropolitan service district must adopt and maintain a 20-year population forecast for the 
area within its jurisdiction. In adopting the coordinated forecast, local governments must 
follow applicable procedures and requirements in ORS 197.610 to 197.650 and must provide 
notice to all other local governments in the county. The adopted forecast must be included in 
the comprehensive plan or in a document referenced by the plan. 

(2) The forecast must be developed using commonly accepted practices and standards for 
population forecasting used by professional practitioners in the field of demography or 
economics, and must be based on current, reliable and objective sources and verifiable factual 
information, such as the most recent long-range forecast for the county published by the 
Oregon Office of Economic Analysis (OEA). The forecast must take into account documented 
long-term demographic trends as well as recent events that have a reasonable likelihood of 
changing historical trends. The population forecast is an estimate which, although based on 
the best available information and methodology, should not be held to an unreasonably high 
level of precision.  

(3) For a population forecast used as a basis for a decision adopting or amending a UGB 
submitted under ORS 197.626, the director or Commission may approve the forecast if they 
determine that a failure to meet a particular requirement of section (2) of this rule is 
insignificant in nature and is unlikely to have a significant effect on the needs determined 
under OAR 660-024-0040.  

Page 195



Page 60 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(4) A city and county may apply one of the safe harbors in subsections (a), (b), or (c) of this 
section, if applicable, in order to develop and adopt a population forecast for an urban area:  

(a) If a coordinated population forecast was adopted by a county within the previous 10 years 
but does not provide a 20-year forecast for an urban area at the time a city initiates an 
evaluation or amendment of the UGB, a city and county may adopt an updated forecast for 
the urban area consistent with this section. The updated forecast is deemed to comply with 
applicable goals and laws regarding population forecasts for purposes of the current UGB 
evaluation or amendment provided the forecast:  

(A) Is adopted by the city and county in accordance with the notice, procedures and 
requirements described in section (1) of this rule; and  

(B) Extends the current urban area forecast to a 20-year period commencing on the date 
determined under OAR 660-024-0040(2) by using the same growth trend for the urban area 
assumed in the county's current adopted forecast.  

(b) A city and county may adopt a 20-year forecast for an urban area consistent with this 
section. The forecast is deemed to comply with applicable goals and laws regarding 
population forecasts for purposes of the current UGB evaluation or amendment provided the 
forecast:  

(A) Is adopted by the city and county in accordance with the notice, procedures and 
requirements described in section (1) of this rule;  

(B) Is based on OEA's population forecast for the county for a 20-year period commencing on 
the date determined under OAR 660-024-0040(2); and  

(C) Is developed by assuming that the urban area's share of the forecasted county population 
determined in subsection (B) of this rule will be the same as the urban area's current share of 
county population based on the most recent certified population estimates from Portland 
State University and the most recent data for the urban area published by the U.S. Census 
Bureau.  

(c) A city may adopt a revised 20-year forecast for its urban area by following the 
requirements in ORS 195.034.  

 

Finding:   For purposes of this UGB amendment., Newberg and Yamhill County are adopting a 
population forecast for the  Newberg urban area use the “safe harbor” population forecast method 
allowed under OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b).  It is generally recognized that this method yields a 
conservative population forecast suitable for an amendment of an urban growth boundary in interim 
periods before a county adopts a coordinated forecast for all urban areas within the county.   This 
method uses the most recent long range population forecast for the county from the Oregon Office of 
Economic Analysis to project future county population.   It assumes that the urban area’s share of the 

Page 196



Page 61 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

future county population remains the same as the current share.  The resulting forecast is shown in 
Table 14. 

Table 14:  Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor 

  
Population 
Estimate 

Population 
Forecast 

  2011 2032 

Yamhill County 99,850 146,167 

Newberg UGB 22,794 33,367 

Newberg UGB % of County 22.8% 22.8% 

Sources:  The Yamhill County 2011 estimate is from Portland State University Population Research Center (2011).  
The Newberg UGB 2011 estimate was derived using the revised July 1, 2011 PSU population estimate for the city, 
and adding the 2010 Census data at the block level for land between the UGB and city limits The Yamhill County 
2032 population forecast is from the Oregon Office of Economic Analysis (2003).  The 2032 county population 
forecast was interpolated using OEA’s forecasted 2030-2035 growth rate. 

Notice of this amendment was provided to all other local governments in the Yamhill County.  The 
amendment was adopted into the Newberg Comprehensive Plan as part of the Economic Opportunities 
Analysis 2012 adoption.  It was adopted into the Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan in conjunction with 
this UGB amendment. 

OAR 660-024-0040 – Land Need: (1) The UGB must be based on the adopted 20-year 
population forecast for the urban area described in OAR 660-024-0030, and must provide for 
needed housing, employment and other urban uses such as public facilities, streets and roads, 
schools, parks and open space over the 20-year planning period consistent with the land need 
requirements of Goal 14 and this rule.  The 20-year need determinations are estimates which, 
although based on the best available information and methodologies, should not be held to an 
unreasonably high level of precision.  

Finding:  This proposed UGB expansion is based on the 20-year population forecast adopted in 
conjunction with this UGB amendment.  The 20-year period is through 2032.  In this case, the UGB 
expansion will provide for needed industrial employment uses and an industrial type public/quasi-public 
use.  It also includes some land for streets and riparian buffers.  Local governments are permitted to 
bring in land for one (or more) land needs without needing to take all land needs into consideration 
(OAR 660-024-0040(3)).  Sections 1 and 2 of this report contain detailed findings to the requirements of 
Goal 14 as they relate to this UGB expansion.  City staff used the latest data from the Oregon 
Employment Department along with historic employment growth data for Newberg to determine the 
20-year employment land need for the City.  These were adopted as part of the EOA.   

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (2) If the UGB analysis or amendment is conducted as part of a 
periodic review work program, the 20-year planning period must commence on the date 

Page 197



Page 62 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

initially scheduled for completion of the appropriate work task.  If the UGB analysis or 
amendment is conducted as a post-acknowledgement plan amendment under ORS 197.610 to 
197.625, the 20-year planning period must commence either: 

(a) On the date initially scheduled for final adoption of the amendment specified by the 
local government in the initial notice of the amendment required by OAR 660-018-0020; or 

(b) If more recent than the date determined in subsection (a), at the beginning of the 20-
year period specified in the coordinated population forecast for the urban area adopted by the 
city and county pursuant to OAR 660-024-0030, unless ORS 197.296 requires a different date 
for local governments subject to that statute.   

Finding:  The urban growth boundary amendment is conducted as a post-acknowledgement plan 
amendment.  The review is being conducted in the manner of periodic review, pursuant to ORS 197.626.  
The 20-year period specified in the coordinated population forecast is to 2032, so the 20-year period is 
2012-2032. 

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (3) A local government may review and amend the UGB in 
consideration of one category of land need without a simultaneous review and amendment in 
consideration of other categories of land need. 

Finding:  This urban growth boundary amendment is only in consideration of industrial and public/quasi-
public land needs.  It does not review or consider other categories of land need.   

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (5) Except for a metropolitan service district described in ORS 
197.015(13), the determination of 20-year employment land need for an urban area must 
comply with applicable requirements of Goal 9 and OAR chapter 660, division 9, and must 
include a determination of the need for a short-term supply of land for employment uses 
consistent with OAR 660-009-0025. Employment land need may be based on an estimate of 
job growth over the planning period; local government must provide a reasonable justification 
for the job growth estimate but Goal 14 does not require that job growth estimates 
necessarily be proportional to population growth.   

Finding: The City of Newberg is not located within a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO).  OAR 
660-009-0025(3) encourages but does not require local governments outside an MPO have policies 
regarding a short-term supply of industrial land.  The City will adopt a revised and updated Economic 
Opportunities Analysis that meets the requirements set forth in Goal 9 and OAR chapter 660, Division 9 
in conjunction with this amendment.   Employment land need is based on an estimate of job growth 
over the planning period.  This estimate considers both historic job growth in Newberg, and regional 
employment projections published by Oregon Employment Department.  The plan did not establish 
specific targets for a short-term supply of land. 

660-024-0040 – Land Need: (7) The determination of 20-year land needs for transportation 
and public facilities for an urban area must comply with applicable requirements of Goals 11 

Page 198



Page 63 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

and 12, rules in OAR chapter 660, divisions 11 and 12, and public facilities requirements in ORS 
197.712 and 197.768.   

Finding:  The City has adopted Public Facilities Plans in accordance with the requirements of Goal 11 and 
OAR chapter 660, Division 11.  One project identified in the capital improvements project list is a new 
water treatment plant on Wynooski Street.  This UGB expansion includes 3 gross buildable acres for 
public/quasi-public land to allow for the future construction of a new water treatment plant.  The City of 
Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan further discusses the need, cost, layout and alternative sites of 
the future new plant.  The Water Treatment Facilities Plan was adopted by Council in June 2002 by 
Resolution 2002-2365.  

 Goal 12 and OAR chapter 660, Division 12, don’t apply to this application 

660-024-0050 – Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency: (1) When evaluating or amending 
a UGB, a local government must inventory land inside the UGB to determine whether there is 
adequate development capacity to accommodate 20-year needs determined in OAR 660-024-
0040…For employment land, the inventory must include suitable vacant and developed land 
designated for industrial or other employment use, and must be conducted in accordance with 
OAR 660-009-0015.   

Finding: The adopted Economic Opportunities Analysis contains an inventory of industrial land within 
the UGB, and was conducted in accordance with OAR 660-009-0015.  The inventory included suitable 
vacant and developed land designated for industrial or other employment use.  The Economic 
Opportunities Analysis land inventory analysis showed that there were 56 existing gross buildable acres 
of industrial land in the UGB but a 20-year need for 191 acres. Therefore, there is a deficit of 135 
buildable acres of industrial land within the UGB to meet Newberg’s 20-year land need.   Section 1 of 
this report contains a map and a description of the existing buildable industrial land within the UGB.  In 
addition, there is an unmet need for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type 
Public/Quasi-Public land for a water treatment plant. 

660-024-0050 – Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency: (4) If the inventory demonstrates 
that the development capacity of land inside the UGB is inadequate to accommodate the 
estimated 20-year needs determined under OAR 660-024-0040, the local government must 
amend the plan to satisfy the need deficiency, either by increasing the development capacity 
of land already inside the city or by expanding the UGB, or both, and in accordance with ORS 
197.296 where applicable.  Prior to expanding the UGB, a local government must demonstrate 
that the estimated needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the 
UGB.  If the local government determines there is a need to expand the UGB, changes to the 
UGB must be determined by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with Goal 14 
and OAR 660-024-0060.  

Finding:  As stated above, the City’s industrial land inventory shows an inadequate capacity of land to 
meet the 20-year need.  The City projects a need for 191 gross buildable acres of industrial land through 
2032.  The Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) takes infill and redevelopment into account, and 

Page 199



Page 64 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

projects that out of 46 needed sites of less than 2 acres, 23 sites will be made up through infill and 
redevelopment.  Similarly, the EOA projects that 7 out of 21 needed sites of 2-10 acres will be made up 
through infill and redevelopment.  One existing site over 10 acres, the Suntron site, also is projected to 
accommodate new employment.  In addition, it’s possible that some of the need for sites of 10-50 acres 
will be met through infill and redevelopment or through a higher density of employees per site.  Table 4 
on page 16 and Figure 2 on page 19 illustrates this concept. 

In Addition, Newberg’s Comprehensive Plan identifies a need for a new water treatment plant.  See 
Appendix E: Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information.  Newberg’s existing water treatment 
plant is located on a parcel outside the urban growth boundary.  The site is very constrained in that it is 
located entirely within the perimeter of the SP Newsprint site.  It is on a small footprint with no 
opportunities for expansion.  Newberg’s Public Facilities Plan includes a need for a new water treatment 
plant on Wynooski Road.  According to the City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan, Newberg 
should relocate the plant to a new site to allow upgrade and expansion.  According to the plan and the 
Newberg Public Works Department, this site needs to include at least 3 gross buildable acres.  Thus, 
needs through 2032 are for at least 3 additional gross buildable acres of industrial type PQ land.  
Additional industrial type PQ needs may be identified in the future. 

Newberg’s analysis has determined that 56 gross buildable acres of this need can met inside current 
industrial designated land inside the UGB, and one buildable acre of this need can be met by 
redesignating land already in the UGB.  The UGB must be expanded to include the 137 gross buildable 
acres necessary to meet the 20-year industrial and the public/quasi-public need for a water treatment 
plant.  The proposed UGB expansion includes 132 gross buildable acres to meet most of these needs.  
Section II of this document includes detailed findings to the Goal 14 and OAR 660-024-0060 boundary 
location requirements.   

ORS 197.298 – Priority of Land to be Included within Urban Growth Boundary 

(1) In addition to any requirements established by rule addressing urbanization, land may not 
be included within an urban growth boundary except under the following priorities: 

(a) First priority is land that is designated urban reserve land under ORS 195.145 (Urban 
reserves), rule or metropolitan service district action plan. 

(b) If land under paragraph (a) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the amount 
of land needed, second priority is land adjacent to an urban growth boundary that is identified 
in an acknowledged comprehensive plan as an exception area or nonresource land. Second 
priority may include resource land that is completely surrounded by exception areas unless 
such resource land is high-value farmland as described in ORS 215.710 (High-value farmland 
description for ORS 215.705). 

(c) If land under paragraphs (a) and (b) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, third priority is land designated as marginal land pursuant to ORS 
197.247 (1991 Edition). 

Page 200



Page 65 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(d) If land under paragraphs (a) to (c) of this subsection is inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land needed, fourth priority is land designated in an acknowledged comprehensive 
plan for agriculture or forestry, or both. 

(2) Higher priority shall be given to land of lower capability as measured by the capability 
classification system or by cubic foot site class, whichever is appropriate for the current use. 

(3) Land of lower priority under subsection (1) of this section may be included in an urban 
growth boundary if land of higher priority is found to be inadequate to accommodate the 
amount of land estimated in subsection (1) of this section for one or more of the following 
reasons: 

(a) Specific types of identified land needs cannot be reasonably accommodated on higher 
priority lands; 

(b) Future urban services could not reasonably be provided to the higher priority lands due to 
topographical or other physical constraints; or 

(c) Maximum efficiency of land uses within a proposed urban growth boundary requires 
inclusion of lower priority lands in order to include or to provide services to higher priority 
lands. [1995 c.547 §5; 1999 c.59 §56] 

 

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (1) When considering a UGB 
amendment, a local government must determine which land to add by evaluating alternative 
boundary locations. This determination must be consistent with the priority of land specified in 
ORS 197.298 and the boundary location factors of Goal 14, as follows: 

(a) Beginning with the highest priority of land available, a local government must 
determine which land in that priority is suitable to accommodate the need deficiency 
determined under OAR 660-024-0050. 

(b) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category exceeds the amount 
necessary to satisfy the need deficiency, a local government must apply the location factors of 
Goal 14 to choose which land in that priority to include in the UGB. 

(c) If the amount of suitable land in the first priority category is not adequate to satisfy 
the identified need deficiency, a local government must determine which land in the next 
priority is suitable to accommodate the remaining need, and proceed using the same method 
specified in subsections (a) and (b) of this section until the land need is accommodated.  

(d) Notwithstanding subsection (a) to (c) of this section, a local government may consider 
land of lower priority as specified in ORS 197.298(3).  

Page 201



Page 66 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

(e) For purposes of this rule, the determination of suitable land to accommodate land 
needs must include consideration of any suitability characteristics specified under section (5) 
of this rule, as well as other provisions of law applicable in determining whether land is 
buildable or suitable.  

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings regarding the boundary location analysis and 
priority of land to be included in the UGB.  In summary, Newberg first applied the identified site 
suitability characteristics to the potential sites in the study area.  Newberg identified two sites that met 
the industrial site suitability criteria.  The city applied the priority factors to the two sites, and 
designated land according to the priorities.  This included first priority urban reserve land, second 
priority rural exception land, and fourth priority agricultural land.  Fourth priority agricultural land was 
designated with higher priority given according to soil classification.  The Goal 14 location factors were 
applied to agricultural land to determine which of that suitable land to include in the urban growth 
boundary.  Table 15 below shows how land was designated by priority. 

Table 15:  UGB Designation by Priority 

  Gross Buildable Acres 

Need through 2032 194   

Land already in UGB 56  

Redesignate land in UGB 1  

Priority 1 Urban Reserve 
Land 

 3 

Priority 2 Rural Exception 
Land 

 4 

Priority 4 Agricultural Land 
 125 

Total Added to UGB  132 
Remaining Need 5   

 

The analysis of agricultural land gave higher priority to land of lower agricultural capability class.  Of the 
suitable agricultural sites, two subsites contain large amounts of Class I soils:  Sites 11.6 and 14.2.  
Neither of these sites was included in the UGB.  The remaining sites have generally the same agricultural 
capability classes, a mixture of Class II, III, and VI, and can be considered the same priority class.  An 
exception is about one acre of land within site 11.8 which has a sliver of Class I soils.  See Map 9.   That 
small portion actually has a house, two outbuildings and a parking area built on it.  It would be very 
inefficient to exclude this sliver of land, as it would be sandwiched between industrial land on either side 
and would very much limit the usefulness of the future industrial site in that area, would limit extension 
of utilities or roads through that site. Thus, maximum efficiency of land use requires including that sliver.  

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (3) The boundary location factors of 
Goal 14 are not independent criteria.  When the factors are applied to compare alternative 

Page 202



Page 67 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

boundary locations and to determine the UGB location, a local government must show that all 
the factors were considered and balanced. 

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings regarding the boundary location factors and how 
they were applied to all of the potential alternative sites to determine the best location for future 
industrial land.  All factors were considered and balanced. 

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (4) In determining alternative land 
for evaluation under ORS 197-298, “land adjacent to the UGB” is not limited to those lots or 
parcels that abut the UGB, but also includes land in the vicinity of the UGB that has a 
reasonable potential to satisfy the identified needs deficiency. 

Finding:  These findings considered sites not only abutting the UGB, but those sites within a study area 
extending about ¾ miles from the UGB.  Newberg relies on OAR 660-024-0060(5), which states that local 
governments may specify certain characteristics, including proximity, necessary for land to be suitable 
for an identified need.  One of Newberg’s industrial site suitability characteristics is proximity, and it 
specifies that parcels be “Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the 
vicinity of the UGB that immediately could be added to the UGB.”  Sites within the study area not 
abutting the UGB were evaluated to determine if intervening land also reasonably could be included in 
the UGB.  Therefore, Newberg’s boundary location alternatives analysis includes land in the vicinity of 
the UGB that has a reasonable potential to satisfy the identified needs deficiency.   

660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (5) If a local government has 
specified characteristics such as parcel size, topography, or proximity that are necessary for 
land to be suitable for an identified need, the local government may limit its consideration to 
land that has the specified characteristics when it conducts the boundary location alternatives 
analysis and applies ORS 197.298. 

Finding:  Newberg has specified characteristics necessary for industrial land in its Economic 
Opportunities Analysis, and used those characteristics to guide the required boundary location 
alternatives analysis.  In addition, the City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan identifies specific 
areas and characteristics for consideration of land suitable for a new water treatment plant; the 
identified public/quasi-public land proposed for inclusion in the UGB meets these criteria.  Section 2 of 
this report has detailed boundary location alternatives analysis findings that apply the site suitability 
characteristics.   

The industrial site suitability characteristics are listed in detail in Table 6: Required Industrial Site 
Suitability Characteristics on page 21. 

 
660-024-0060 – Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis: (6) The adopted findings for UGB 
adoption or amendment must describe or map all of the alternative areas evaluated in the 
boundary location alternatives analysis.  If the analysis involves more than one parcel or area 
within a particular priority category in ORS 197.298 for which circumstances are the same, 
these parcels or areas may be considered and evaluated as a single group. 

Page 203



Page 68 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Finding:  Section 2 of this report has detailed findings that describe all of the alternative areas evaluated 
through the boundary location alternatives analysis.  In addition, all of the alternative areas have been 
mapped and may be seen on Map 4 and Map 11.   

Statewide Planning Goals and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan  
As required by State Senate Bill 100, the Newberg Comprehensive Plan addresses and is consistent with 
the established statewide planning goals and guidelines.  Each of the goals and/or policies within the 
Comprehensive Plan corresponds with an applicable statewide planning goal and implements the goal in 
conjunction with local needs and desires.  Because an Urban Growth Boundary amendment is also a 
Comprehensive Plan amendment, it must be found that “the proposed change is consistent with and 
promotes the goals and policies of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and this Code (Development 
Code)” (NMC 15.302.030 (2)(a)).  

660-024-0020 Adoption or Amendment of a UGB  

(1) All statewide goals and related administrative rules are applicable when establishing or 
amending a UGB, except as follows:  

(a) The exceptions process in Goal 2 and OAR chapter 660, division 4, is not applicable unless a 
local government chooses to take an exception to a particular goal requirement, for example, 
as provided in OAR 660-004-0010(1);  

(b) Goals 3 and 4 are not applicable; 

(c) Goal 5 and related rules under OAR chapter 660, division 23, apply only in areas added to 
the UGB, except as required under OAR 660-023-0070 and 660-023-0250;  

(d) The transportation planning rule requirements under OAR 660-012-0060 need not be 
applied to a UGB amendment if the land added to the UGB is zoned as urbanizable land, either 
by retaining the zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary or by assigning 
interim zoning that does not allow development that would generate more vehicle trips than 
development allowed by the zoning assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary;  

(e) Goal 15 is not applicable to land added to the UGB unless the land is within the Willamette 
River Greenway Boundary;  

(f) Goals 16 to 18 are not applicable to land added to the UGB unless the land is within a 
coastal shorelands boundary;  

(g) Goal 19 is not applicable to a UGB amendment.  

Finding:  As noted above, statewide planning goals 3, 4, 15, 16, 17, 18, and 19 do not apply to this 
application.  The remaining goals are addressed through the applicable Comprehensive Plan goals and 
policies below.   

Page 204



Page 69 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Citizen Involvement (Statewide Planning Goal 1). NCP Goal: To maintain a Citizen Involvement 
Program that offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning 
process. 

Finding:  The overall goal is for all governing bodies to develop and maintain a citizen involvement 
program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be involved in all phases of the planning process.    
Public and agency involvement is addressed in Public Involvement and County Coordination Process for 
Newberg 2007 URA Expansion (Newberg Community Development Department, 2007) and the South 
Industrial Study (WRG, 2009).  In addition, Newberg and Yamhill County will be holding public hearings 
on the UGB expansion with adequate public notice for participation.  Coordination with DLCD, OBDD 
and the Governor’s ERT occurred in putting together revisions to the EOA and in developing industrial 
site selection criteria. 

Newberg has a citizen involvement strategy through Ordinance 91-2297.  Part of the evaluation of the 
current program notes that, in addition to other avenues of citizen participation, “involvement is also 
encouraged through citizen involvement at public meetings”.  The analysis section of the report also 
noted that “the City of Newberg has a sound and comprehensive citizen involvement program” (ORD 91-
2297).  Newberg is currently using the same citizen involvement program as described and analyzed by 
Ordinance 91-2297. 

Land Use Planning (Statewide Planning Goal 2).  NCP Goal: To maintain an on-going land use 
planning program to implement statewide and local goals. The program shall be consistent 
with natural and cultural resources and needs. 

Finding:  This goal provides for creating and maintaining a Comprehensive Plan for the city.  The 
statewide goal further states that “city…plans and actions related to land use shall be consistent with 
the comprehensive plans…adopted under ORS Chapter 268”.  This report serves to determine the 
compliance of the proposal with the City’s adopted Comprehensive Plan and statewide goals.  In 
addition, Goal 2 requires an adequate factual base, the consideration of alternatives, and coordination 
with Yamhill County and affected state agencies.   This report, the South Industrial Area Master Plan, 
and the Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis provide the principal factual bases for this UGB 
amendment.   

Agricultural Lands (Statewide Planning Goal 3 – Goal 3 does not apply to UGB amendments). 
NCP Goal: To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1) The conversion of urbanizable land from 
agricultural to urban land uses shall be orderly and efficient; 2) Agriculture is a part of our 
heritage, uniqueness, culture and future. Inclusion of lands in agricultural use within the 
Urban Growth Boundary is recognition of a commitment to future urbanization, as such lands 
are necessary to meet long-range population and economic needs, based on criteria outlined 
in the statewide Urbanization Goal. Urbanization of agricultural land shall be carefully 
considered and balanced with the needs of the community as a whole.  

Page 205



Page 70 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Finding:  The south study area is an appropriate place for future industrial development because it 
would result in an orderly and efficient transition from agricultural uses to urban uses.  This area is 
located near industrially zoned and developed land already, minimizing conflicts with adjacent 
residential or other agricultural lands, and can be easily served with city and private infrastructure.  
Newberg has a severe shortage of employment lands, a deficit that can only be remedied by choosing an 
appropriate place for future employment that meets the industrial site suitability criteria in the adopted 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.   

Wooded Areas (Statewide Planning Goal 4 – Goal 4 does not apply to UGB amendments). NCP 
Goal: To retain and protect wooded areas. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2) Development in drainageways shall be limited in 
order to prevent erosion and protect water quality. Trees provide needed protection from 
erosion and should be maintained.   

Finding:  The City has regulations governing development within mapped stream corridors, including the 
protection of vegetation.  The south study area is ringed by natural riparian areas with deep stream 
corridors.  Because the subject properties are located outside of the current Urban Growth Boundary, 
the City does not yet have the stream corridors mapped throughout the study area.  Stream corridors on 
these properties will be designated through this amendment as shown on Map 12.  Any future 
development on the study parcels will have to go through review to ensure that wetlands are protected. 

Air, Water, and Land Resource Quality (Statewide Planning Goal 6). NCP Goal: To maintain, 
and where feasible, enhance the air, water and land resource qualities within the community. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1) Development shall not exceed the carrying capacity 
of the air, water or land resource base; 5) New industry should be located in areas which 
minimize impacts upon the air, water, and land resource base, as well as upon surrounding 
land uses. 

Finding:  This UGB expansion is for industrial and public/quasi-public land.  The south study area is an 
appropriate place for industrial development as it is located adjacent to other industrially zoned and 
developed parcels, is adjacent to a major road network with access to the interstate, and can be 
adequately served with sewer and water.  The western portion of the south study area is an appropriate 
place for public/quasi-public land because it is adjacent to the City’s existing treatment plants, meets 
the site suitability criteria for public/quasi-public land, and was identified in the adopted Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan (2002) as the appropriate location for a new water treatment plant.  As noted 
above, any site development would have to comply with the city’s stream corridor regulations to protect 
the natural vegetation and the quality of water in the stream corridor.  The corridors themselves will 
serve to minimize impacts on surrounding land uses. 

Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards (Statewide Planning Goal 7). NCP Goal: To 
protect life and property from natural disasters and hazards.  

Page 206



Page 71 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Applicable Statewide Goal 7 Standards: A.2. (Natural Hazard Planning) Natural hazards for 
purposes of this goal are: floods (coastal and riverine), landslides, earthquakes and related 
hazards, tsunamis, coastal erosion, and wildfires. Local governments may identify and plan for 
other natural hazards; B.4. (Guidelines - Implementation) When reviewing development 
requests in high hazard areas, local governments should require site-specific reports, 
appropriate for the level and type of hazard prepared by a licensed professional. 

Finding:  Many of the properties in the south study area have portions of a natural stream corridor 
across or along them.  FEMA has mapped flood plains in the area.  The maps, with effective date March 
2, 2010, show all flood plains are contained within the mapped stream corridors (Map 5).  Yamhill 
County’s flood plain management regulations will apply prior to annexation, and Newberg’s flood plain 
management regulations will apply upon annexation. 

Open Space, Scenic, Natural, Historic and Recreational Resources (Statewide Planning Goals 5 
& 8). NCP Goals: 1) To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space 
use and that natural, scenic and historic resources are protected; 2) To provide adequate 
recreational resources and opportunities for the citizens of the community and visitors; 3) To 
protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the Willamette River Greenway. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.e) The floodplains and natural drainageway areas 
in Newberg should be preserved with a largely open character to provide a basic open space 
framework for the community. The capacities of these areas shall be maintained to provide a 
natural stormwater and natural drainage system, as well as to continue to provide a natural 
habitat for local fish and wildlife. Natural drainageways should be kept in open space uses. 
Bicycle and pedestrian pathways might be included in these areas. Care should be taken to 
minimize disturbances in these often erosive and steep areas. All uses should be compatible 
with the specific sites. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 5 Standards: Local governments shall adopt programs that will 
protect natural resources and conserve scenic, historic, and open space resources for present 
and future generations. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 8 Standards: To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the 
state and visitors and, where appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational 
facilities including destination resorts. 

Finding: In accordance with Goal 5, Newberg has adopted stream corridor regulations to protect 
and conserve the area within the stream corridor as open space for the city.   Many of the 
properties within the south study area have a portion of stream corridor across or along them. The 
west corridor is a portion of the Hess Creek stream corridor.  These are shown on Map 12.  The east 
corridor is part of the Springbrook Creek stream corridor.  Newberg’s comprehensive plan includes 
detailed Goal 5 ESEE findings regarding these two corridors.   The same findings apply to the 
portions of these corridors included in the present UGB amendment.  Any development on the 
properties would have to comply with the stream corridor regulations.  The stream corridor 

Page 207



Page 72 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

regulations restrict any development or mechanized removal of vegetation and seek to minimize 
any disturbance in the corridor area. 

The south study area for the industrial UGB expansion is within the study area for the South 
Industrial Area Master Plan.  The stream corridor areas are necessary to include within the UGB, not 
only to provide compatibility and buffering in accordance with other Goal requirements, but also to 
fulfill the provisions of the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP).  The stream corridor areas 
provide the necessary buffering and industrial amenities required and envisioned by the SIAMP.  
When discussing the master plan design concept, the plan states:  

“The plan district edges are designated as conservation corridors to protect existing 
natural areas and to provide a buffer to other surrounding uses in the immediate vicinity. 
The plan district design includes two parks to provide recreational access to the 
conservation areas and to complement the employment uses. The parks are located on 
each side of the plan area to ensure that recreational accessibility is evenly distributed 
across the employment district. The plan envisions a trail/multi-use path network within 
the conservation areas to create an integrated system that links this plan district to 
existing and planned city-wide and regional trail networks.” (SIAMP, p. 28) 

The plan goes into more detail about the conservation corridors and the industrial amenities on the 
following pages, noting that “The conservation corridor provides a distinctive edge to the plan 
district while also providing an effective buffer between planned land uses and existing uses in the 
immediate vicinity.” (SIAMP, p. 30)  The plan also states that “Park and recreational amenities are 
envisioned to contribute to the daily health and quality of life for those working within the plan 
districts and living nearby.” (SIAMP, p. 30)  The SIAMP was developed through an extensive public 
process and reflects the desires of the community to have a well-planned, attractive industrial area 
as the gateway to the city.  The Newberg City Council accepted the South Industrial Area Master 
Plan on November 2, 2009 through Resolution 2009-2872.   

Including the stream corridor areas within the UGB clearly meet the requirements of the 
Comprehensive Plan Goals as well as Goals 5 and 8.  As stated above, Newberg has effective stream 
corridor regulations to protect and conserve the areas as open space.  In addition, the corridors may 
provide some passive recreation benefits to the city and to the future industrial area as envisioned 
by the SIAMP, as well as provide the necessary buffering from adjacent properties.   

The Economy (Statewide Planning Goal 9). NCP Goal: To develop a diverse and stable 
economic base. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2.a) Industrial expansion shall be located and 
designed to minimize impacts on surrounding land uses; 2.c) Newberg shall actively pursue the 
inclusion of large industrial sites within the urban growth boundary; 2.d) The City shall 
undertake specific activities to encourage the growth of existing businesses, to encourage a 
diversity of businesses, and to attract new businesses to the community in industries that will 
provide local employment opportunities consistent with community needs and goals; 2.f) 

Page 208



Page 73 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Concerted community efforts should be made to see that industrial development expands 
outward from existing areas rather than occurring in haphazard patterns; 2.g) The City shall 
identify land that will provide for expansion of existing businesses and/or attract new 
businesses and shall reserve that land for future industrial development that is consistent with 
community needs and goals; 2.h) Where areas have been planned for large industrial sites, 
zoning regulations shall be developed and maintained to keep those sites intact.  Such sites 
shall not be further divided except to create planned industrial parks that support a specific 
industry.  

Finding: The site suitability criteria for industrial land take compatibility into account, an important 
principle stated multiple times in the Comprehensive Plan policies.  The south study area is the only 
area that meets all the site suitability criteria, including the compatibility criterion.  The south study 
area is located adjacent to other industrially zoned and developed parcels, ensuring that future 
industrial development will expand outward from an existing industrial area rather than occurring in 
a haphazard or leapfrog type of pattern.  The City’s Economic Opportunities Analysis contains 
Newberg’s economic development strategy for how to retain existing businesses and allow them to 
expand while at the same time providing enough land for new businesses to locate here.  This 
overall process was spurred by the work of the Ad Hoc Committee for Newberg’s Future, which 
identified a need for large industrial sites within the City and gave the direction to try to remedy 
that problem.  Part of the overall process included the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP).  
The SIAMP identified a layout that would preserve large lot availability for future industrial 
development.  The large lot availability was preserved further through the adoption of the M-4 
Industrial zoning district requiring either a minimum of 20-acre parcels or Planned Unit 
Developments for smaller acreages (Ordinance 2009-2720).   

Housing (Statewide Planning Goal 10). NCP Goal: To provide for a diversity in the type, density 
and location of housing within the City to ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable 
housing units to meet the needs of City residents of various income levels. 

Finding: Inclusion of properties in the south study area in the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary will 
not help provide housing as prescribed by this goal.  However, it will provide additional industrial 
land which in turn will provide jobs, helping City residents afford housing.  In addition, industrial 
land provides a stable tax base for the city that generally doesn’t use many City resources (Police, 
Fire).   Therefore, inclusion of industrial land in the Urban Growth Boundary, and eventually 
annexing it into the city, may be beneficial to the housing goals and policies of the City.   

Urban Design. NCP Goals: 1) To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character 
of the City; 2) To develop and maintain the physical context needed to support the livability 
and unique character of Newberg.  

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.e) Developments should respect the natural ground 
cover of their sites to the extent possible and plans should be made to preserve existing 
mature, non-hazardous trees in healthy condition; 1.h) Landscaping shall be required along 
street frontage strips within the street right-of-way in order to soften the appearance of 

Page 209



Page 74 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

commercial and industrial developments;2.a) Industrial development should be encouraged to 
located in industrial parks offering good access, buffering and landscaping. 

Finding:  The south study area is located near other industrially zoned and developed properties, 
making properties within it a good choice to add to the Urban Growth Boundary.  The study area 
would have to comply with applicable City landscaping and buffering regulations, and the landscape 
provisions of the South Industrial Area Master Plan upon site development.  In addition, 
development on many of the properties would have to comply with the City’s stream corridor 
regulations to preserve and protect trees and other vegetation within the stream corridor.   

Public Facilities and Services (Statewide Planning Goal 11).  NCP Goal: To plan and develop a 
timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and services to serve as a 
framework for urban development. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 2.b) The extension of publicly-owned facilities and 
services into currently undeveloped areas shall occur only in accordance with the Public 
Facilities and Service Plan; 2.d) Services shall be planned to meet anticipated community 
needs. 

Applicable Statewide Goal 11 Standards: A.1) Plans providing for public facilities and services 
should be coordinated with plans for designation of urban boundaries, urbanizable land, rural 
uses and for the transition of rural land to urban uses; A.5) A public facility or service should 
not be provided in an urbanizable area unless there is provision for the coordinated 
development of all the other urban facilities and services appropriate to that area.   

Finding:  The UGB expansion includes land designated as public/quasi-public, in part to allow for 
construction of a new water treatment Plant for Newberg.  The City has an adopted Water 
Treatment Facilities Plan (2002) that designates the site, the layout, and the estimated cost of the 
new plant. 

The South Industrial Area Master Plan includes plans for future sewer, water, storm drain, and 
transportation improvements to serve the UGB expansion area. 

Transportation (Statewide Planning Goal 12). NCP Goals: 1) Establish cooperative agreements 
to address transportation based planning, development, operation and maintenance; 2) 
Establish consistent policies which require concurrent consideration of transportation/land use 
system impacts; 3)Promote reliance on multiple modes of transportation and reduce reliance 
on the automobile; 4) Minimize the impact of regional traffic on the local transportation 
system; 5) Maximize pedestrian, bicycle, and other non-motorized travel throughout the City; 
6) Provide effective levels of non-auto oriented support facilities (e.g. bus shelters, bicycle 
racks, etc.); 7) Minimize the capital improvement and community costs to implement the 
transportation plan; 8) Maintain and enhance the City’s image, character and quality of life; 9) 
Create effective circulation and access for the local transportation system; 10) Maintain the 
viability of existing rail, water and air transportation systems; 11) Establish fair and equitable 

Page 210



Page 75 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

distribution of transportation improvement costs; 12) Minimize the negative impact of a 
Highway 99 bypass on the Newberg community. 

OAR 660-024-0020 (1)(d) The transportation planning rule requirements under OAR 660-012-
0060 need not be applied to a UGB amendment if the land added to the UGB is zoned as 
urbanizable land, either by retaining the zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion in the 
boundary or by assigning interim zoning that does not allow development that would 
generate more vehicle trips than development allowed by the zoning assigned prior to 
inclusion in the boundary; 

 
Finding:   Overall, this UGB amendment will provide significant benefits to the transportation system 
by reducing the number of workers that need to commute out of Newberg to work.  According to 
information from the U.S. Census, approximately 58% of workers in Newberg commute outside the 
community to go to work.14

The Transportation System Plan (TSP) will be amended as part of this request to include the 
proposed road network identified and planned for in the South Industrial Area Master Plan (SIAMP) 
(See 

  Creating opportunities for local employment will have an overall 
beneficial effect of lessening per capita vehicle miles traveled on area roads. 

Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan).  ODOT, Yamhill 
County Road Department, Marion County Public Works/Planning, and Newberg Planning Division 
and Public Works Engineering Division were all active participants in the planning and design of the 
SIAMP, including the proposed road network through the area.  More study will be done in the 
future to determine potential impacts to the local and regional transportation system; the City is not 
required at this time to address the Transportation Planning Rule under OAR 660-012-0060 until the 
zoning changes on the properties, allowing for uses that would generate more vehicle trips than 
currently permitted (OAR 660-024-0020(1)(d)).  The SIAMP designated several new major collector 
and local roadways throughout the south study area; the TSP currently requires all major collector 
streets to be built with bike lanes, and both types of roadway will have sidewalks on both sides.  In 
addition, a pedestrian and bicycle network of paths is being planned throughout the stream corridor 
areas of the SIAMP plan area.   

The south study area is the most appropriate place for future industrial development because it is 
the area with the fewest potential impacts on the existing transportation system: 

� Development is not likely to result in increased big truck traffic through downtown 
Newberg – due to its location, truck traffic will access I-5 via Highway 219 or will use the 
future 99W bypass route to travel westbound. 

� The area has good existing access to I- 5 via Highway 219. 
� The area is located adjacent to existing industrially zoned and developed properties so 

much of the traffic through the area is already industrial in nature – there will not be new 
conflicts with existing residential traffic. 

                                                            
14 Source:  U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2009 American Community Survey  

Page 211



Page 76 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

In reviewing the Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan 2005 Update (MCRTSP), it is clear that 
the UGB amendment is consistent with and promotes the goals contained in the plan.  The MCRTSP 
identifies Highway 219 and Ehlen/McKay Road as a “Strategic Intra/Inter- County Corridors” (See 
Appendix H: Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic Intra/Inter-County 
Corridors), and designates them as “freight routes.”  Chapter 10 of the RTSP (Transportation Policies) 
has the following policies: 

� Policy 11: The County recognizes the importance of facilitating freight movement. With this in 
mind, the strategic routes designated in Figure 7-1 are also hereby designated freight routes. 
Effort will be made to facilitate freight movement on freight routes. (10.3.1 Transportation 
System Planning Policies) 

In their 20-year strategy, Goal 2 is to “Provide an Accessible, Efficient, and Practical Transportation 
System.” The following objectives of that Goal provide favorable achievement of Strategy 3, Inter-
County Mobility: 

Facilitate goods movement into and out of area, increase freight mobility, and intermodal 
transfer. 

 Facilitate shipping of goods by the most efficient and least impactive means possible. 

 Address changing characteristics of trucking, aviation, agriculture, and rail industries. 

 Facilitate system connections as needed to improve efficiency and access. 

10.3.7 Urban Growth Management Framework Coordination Policies, Policy 6 is: 

  Improve key freight routes. 

The plan also makes the following statement: 

The Aurora/Donald Interchange serves the communities of Aurora and Donald, St. Paul, Canby, 
Barlow, Butteville, connects to the Aurora State Airport, and provides a good connection to 
Newberg and the Hwy 18/99W corridor, which connects to Yamhill County and the Coast.  (RTSP, 
pg. 12-9, emphasis added) 

It is clear that Newberg’s UGB amendment is consistent with the planned function of these routes, and 
the goals and policies contained in the Marion County RTSP. 

Newberg will coordinate future transportation analysis studies for the south industrial area with Yamhill 
County, Marion County, and the communities of St. Paul and Donald. 

Energy (Statewide Planning Goal 13). NCP Goal: To conserve energy through efficient land use 
patterns and energy related policies and ordinances. 

Page 212



Page 77 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.a) The city will encourage energy-efficient 
development patterns. Such patterns shall include the mixture of compatible land uses and a 
compactness of urban development.  

Applicable Statewide Goal 13 Standards: B.1)Land use plans should be based on utilization of 
the following techniques and implementation devices which can have  material impact on 
energy efficiency: a. lot size, dimension, and siting controls; b. building height, bulk and 
surface area; c. density of uses, particularly those which relate to housing densities; d. 
availability of light, wind and air; e. compatibility of and competition between competing land 
use activities; and f. systems and incentives for the collection, reuse and recycling of metallic 
and nonmetallic waste. 

Finding: The properties in the south study area are adjacent to existing and planned major 
transportation facilities (Highway 219 and the future Newberg-Dundee Bypass), and are adjacent to 
other industrially zoned and developed properties.  By including these properties in the Urban 
Growth Boundary with an Industrial designation, the City would be encouraging energy-efficient 
development patterns.  Any industrial development on these properties could have a symbiotic 
relationship with surrounding industrial uses, and would not require supply and delivery trucks to 
travel far off the main transportation facilities.   

In addition, any industrial development on the properties would have to comply with the Newberg 
Development Code standards (once annexed) for lot dimensions, density, bulk, and other similar 
standards in accordance with statewide Goal 13.   

This UGB amendment includes land that is currently used for the Newberg Garbage & Recycling 
Transfer site.  Bringing this land into the UGB with its existing use may also provide for greater 
collaboration with future surrounding industrial uses for the collection, reuse and recycling of 
metallic and nonmetallic waste.   

One of Newberg’s target industries includes alternative energy equipment manufacturing.  Including 
the land in the UGB will opportunities to develop new equipment to harness wind, solar, and other 
energy sources. 

A very important component is providing adequate land for local employment.  Newberg’s past 
population growth has been strong, and this growth is expected to continue.  If adequate 
employment land is not available, these residents will have to travel outside the community for jobs, 
greatly increasing energy usage.   

Urbanization (Statewide Planning Goal 14). NCP Goals: 1) To provide for the orderly and 
efficient transition from rural to urban land uses; 2) To maintain Newberg’s identity as a 
community which is separate from the Portland Metropolitan Area; 3) To create a quality 
living environment through a balanced growth of urban and cultural activities. 

Applicable Comprehensive Plan Policies: 1.a) The conversion of lands from rural to urban uses 
within the Urban Growth Boundary will be based on a specific plan for the extension of urban 

Page 213



Page 78 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

services; 1.b) The City shall oppose urban development outside the city limits but within the 
Newberg Area of Influence; 1.c) The City shall encourage urban development within the city 
limits; 1.d) The Urban Growth Boundary shall designate urbanizable land; 1.e) The City will 
support development within the areas outside the city limits but within the Newberg Urban 
Growth Boundary or Urban Reserve Area based on the following standards or restrictions: 
….New commercial or industrial uses will generally be discouraged within the UGB and Urban 
Reserve Area; 1.f) In expanding or otherwise altering the Urban Growth Boundary, the 
Boundary shall follow road rights-of-way, lot lines, or natural features;3.b) The City shall 
coordinate planning activities with the County in order that lands suitable for industrial use 
but not needed within the planning period are zoned in a manner which retains these lands for 
future industrial use.   

Applicable Goal 14 Standards:  

Land Need – Establishment and change of urban growth boundaries shall be based on the 
following: 1) Demonstrated need to accommodate long range urban population, consistent 
with a 20-year population forecast coordinated with affected local governments; and 2) 
Demonstrated need for housing, employment opportunities, livability or uses such as public 
facilities, street and roads, schools, parks or open space, or any combination of the need 
categories in this subsection (2).  In determining need, local government may specify 
characteristics, such as parcel size, topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable 
for an identified need.  Prior to expanding an urban growth boundary, local governments shall 
demonstrate that needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already inside the 
urban growth boundary. 

Boundary Location – The location of the urban growth boundary and changes to the boundary 
shall be determined by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with ORS 197.298 
and with consideration of the following factors: 1) Efficient accommodation of identified land 
needs; 2) Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 3) Comparative 
environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; and 4) Compatibility of the 
proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest activities occurring on farm and 
forest land outside the UGB.  

Applicable Goal 14 Guidelines: A.1) Plans should designate sufficient amounts of urbanizable 
land to accommodate the need for further urban expansion, taking into account (1) the 
growth policy of the area; (2) the needs of the forecast population; (3) the carrying capacity of 
the planning area; and (4) open space and recreational needs. A.2) The size of the parcels of 
urbanizable land that are converted to urban land should be of adequate dimension so as to 
maximize the utility of the land resource and enable the logical and efficient extension of 
services to such parcels. B.1) The type, location and phasing of public facilities and services are 
factors which should be utilized to direct urban expansion.   

Finding:  Section 1 of this report has detailed land need findings for Goal 14, and Section 2 of this 
report has detailed findings for the boundary location requirements of Goal 14.   

Page 214



Page 79 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

 
The identified stream corridors are an important component of the overall urbanizable area for the 
future industrial area, and including them fulfills the requirements of the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan and Goal 14.  First, including them meets the Comprehensive Plan Goal to “create a quality 
living environment through a balanced growth of urban and cultural activities.”  That goal illustrates 
the aim of the South Industrial Area Master Plan – to create a quality, attractive and balanced 
working environment for the workers in that area.  In this way, the stream corridors meet this goal 
by providing some respite and green space for the workers, as well as helping to create an attractive 
industrial area that is buffered from adjacent uses.  Including the stream corridor areas as shown on 
Map 12 also meets the Comprehensive Plan policy that says, “In expanding or otherwise altering the 
Urban Growth Boundary, the Boundary shall follow road rights-of-way, lot lines, or natural 
features.”  The proposed boundary of the UGB follows lot lines wherever practical, and follows the 
centerline of the creek on those lots where land on the other side of the stream corridor (on the 
same parcel) can be used in the future for another use.   

Goal 14 requires cities to show a demonstrated need for livability.  It goes on to say that local 
governments may specify characteristics necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need.  
The South Industrial Area Master Plan shows the stream corridors as meeting needs for livability for 
the future industrial area, both as buffers and amenities for the industrial uses.  Therefore, there is 
an inherent need for those things that can only be met through inclusion of the stream corridors.  
The boundary location requirements direct that you take into account “efficient accommodation of 
identified land needs” when deciding which land can meet the need.  In this case, a need for 
buffering (for livability of both the industrial area employers and workers as well as adjacent 
residents) for the future industrial area cannot be met in other areas not immediately adjacent to 
the future industrial area. 

Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Goals and Policies 
A.  URBAN AREA DEVELOPMENT GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To encourage the containment of growth within existing urban centers, provide for the 

orderly, staged, diversified and compatible development of all of the cities of Yamhill 
County, and assure an efficient transition from rural to urban land use.   

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will, in cooperation with the cities and special districts of the county, 

encourage urban growth to take the form of a series of compact, balanced 
communities, each with its own business and community center and each related to 
industrial areas and other centers of employment.  

b. Yamhill County will cooperate and coordinate with each of the cities in the 
development of urban growth boundaries and will adopt an urban area growth 
management agreement with each city which outlines a growth management plan for 
unincorporated areas within the boundary and the means by which the boundary can 
be modified.  

c. Yamhill County will recognize the lands within established urban growth boundaries as 
the appropriate and desired location for urban development.  

Page 215



Page 80 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

2. To encourage the containment of urban services and facilities and other public capital 
improvements within existing urbanizing areas in order to achieve an orderly pattern of 
urban growth.  

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will continue to seek full cooperation and coordination among the 

cities, the school districts, other special-purpose districts of the county and the county 
itself in jointly planning and programming all land use, urban services and facilities 
and other public improvements having an impact on the rate and direction of urban 
growth.   

Finding:  The proposed UGB amendment to include identified large site needs within a master-
planned industrial area is consistent with Statewide Planning Goals 9 and 14, ensuring both an 
adequate supply of industrial sites over the planning period and a compact and efficient urban form. 
In addition, it meets the above policy (A.1.a.) of encouraging urban growth to be compact and have 
industrial areas and other centers of employment, as opposed to having dispersed industrial 
development throughout the city.  Having a central, planned industrial area located adjacent to 
existing industrial development will assure an efficient transition from rural to urban land use due to 
the ability to share resources such as high wattage power substations, sewer pump stations, and 
transportation infrastructure. The cost to extend utilities to industrial development can better be 
shared by many similar users as well.  This helps meet Goal 2 above as well by encouraging capital 
improvements within urbanizing areas to achieve an orderly pattern of growth. 

The proposed UGB amendment extends Newberg’s UGB to the southeast – avoiding infringement 
upon neighboring communities.  

Upon adoption, urban services and facilities will be contained within the amended UGB, as required 
by County and City comprehensive policies, and the NUAGMA.  These policies are met. 

B.  CITY GROWTH AND DEVELOPMENT POLICIES  
a. All urban growth boundaries in the county will be delineated as shown on the plan 

map and no extension of urban land uses or city water and sewer services beyond the 
designated urban growth boundaries will be undertaken without concurrent 
amendments to both the respective city and county comprehensive plans.  

b. Yamhill County will encourage major land uses or functional areas and domestic water 
supply and sanitary sewer service areas in the cities to develop progressively outward 
and to be extended on a staged basis until they become coextensive with and fully 
service the designated urban area.  

 

Finding:  Newberg can efficiently provide the proposed UGB amendment area with urban services, 
as documented by the South Industrial Area Master Plan. No extension of urban services will occur 
until the UGB amendments are adopted. These policies are met. 

C.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GOAL STATEMENT  

Page 216



Page 81 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

1. To maintain a rate and pattern of economic growth sufficient to prevent recurring high 
levels of unemployment and under-employment in the county, balance the real property 
tax base of the various cities, and strengthen local economic bases.  

Policies 
a. Yamhill County will, in cooperation with the cities, the local chambers of commerce 

and affiliated industrial promotion groups, and State agencies concerned with State 
and regional economic development, encourage a diversified employment base, the 
strengthening of trade centers, and the attraction of both capital and labor intensive 
enterprises, consistent with the needs of each community and the county as a whole.  

b. Yamhill County will encourage economic development projects which do not conflict 
with the predominant timber and agricultural character of the county.  

Finding:  The proposed UGB amendment provides suitable sites for Newberg’s targeted industries, 
consistent with Statewide Planning Goal 9 (Employment). Adoption of the UGB amendment would 
encourage jobs, strengthen trade centers, and attract capital enterprises consistent with Yamhill 
County’s economic development objectives. These policies are met. 

D.  AGRICULTURAL LANDS GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To conserve Yamhill County's farm lands for the production of crops and livestock and 
to ensure that the conversion of farm land to urban use where necessary and appropriate 
occurs in an orderly and economical manner.  

Finding:  ORS 197.296 priorities effectively implement Yamhill County’s goal to protect farm lands 
where possible. As described in Sections 1 and 2, Newberg looked first to land inside the UGB, then 
land in urban reserve areas, then to exception areas, before determining that targeted industry site 
needs could only be met on farm lands in two potential areas. The selected UGB expansion site 
contains lower quality agricultural soils than the alternatives. 

The proposed UGB amendment will be buffered from agricultural uses to the east by natural 
constraints – slope breaks and riparian areas – and from agricultural uses to the south by a planned 
road. The South Industrial Area Master Plan ensures orderly and economical development.. 

Overall the Urban Growth Boundary is designed to preserve farm lands outside the boundary.  A 
UGB only is effective in achieving this goal if there is adequate land inside the boundary to 
accommodate future urban land uses.  This UGB amendment will help achieve the goal of 
conserving farm lands outside the boundary. 

E.  TRANSPORTATION GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To provide and encourage an efficient, safe, convenient and economic transportation 
and communication system, including road, rail, waterways, public transit and air, to serve the 
needs of existing and projected urban and rural development within the county, as well as to 
accommodate the regional movement of people and goods and the transfer of energy, 
recognizing the economic, social and energy impacts of the various modes of transportation. 

Page 217



Page 82 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

e. Yamhill County will cooperate with and support the State Highway Division, the Mid-
Willamette Valley Council of Governments, and any other county or regional transportation 
agency in an effort to establish a viable and productive regional transportation planning 
process and operations system geared to identifying, prioritizing and resolving both present 
and future transportation needs, with special reference to our county and regional network.   

k. All county transportation-related decisions will be made in particular consideration of 
energy efficiency and conservation.  

o. All transportation-related decisions will be made in support of the efficient and 
economic movement of people, goods, and services throughout the region, and will be based 
on the location and adequacy of facilities for such goods and services.  

Finding:  The Yamhill County Road Department was an active participant during the City’s South 
Industrial Area Master Plan process, including during the planning of the future road network 
through the study area.  The City of Newberg, Yamhill County, and other county or regional partners 
will continue to work cooperatively to plan and implement the future road network for the 
proposed industrial area.  As previously discussed above in the Goal 12 finding, the south study area 
is the best location for future industrial development as it is the most efficient location for existing 
and planned transportation networks and will have the least impact on surrounding uses. 

F.  AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY GOAL STATEMENT  
1. To conserve and to protect natural resources, including air, water, soil and vegetation and 

wildlife, from pollution or deterioration which would dangerously alter the ecological 
balance, be detrimental to human health, or compromise the beauty and tranquility of the 
natural environment. 

Findings:  The Newberg Comprehensive Plan includes policies that address air, water and land 
resources quality as development occurs within the Newberg UGB.  LCDC has acknowledged these 
policies as adequate to address state and federal environmental standards.  The City of Newberg will 
protect identified riparian areas within the proposed UGB expansion when this land is annexed and 
developed in accordance with City standards. 

Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement 
The Newberg Urban Area Growth Management Agreement (NUAGMA) is a joint agreement between 
Newberg and Yamhill County for coordination and cooperation in the management of growth in and 
around the Newberg Urban Area.  The NUAGMA covers Urban Growth Boundary agreements and says 
that decisions must be made based on the following factors: 

a. Demonstrated need to accommodate long-range urban population growth requirements 
consistent with LCDC goals; 

b. Need for housing, employment opportunities, and livability; 
c. Orderly and economic provision for public facilities and services; 
d. Maximum efficiency of land uses within and on the fringe of the existing urban area; 

Page 218



Page 83 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

e. Environmental, energy, economic and social consequences; 
f. Retention of agricultural land as defined, with Class I being the highest priority for retention and 

Class VI the lowest priority; and, 
g. Compatibility of proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural activities.  

Finding: As demonstrated previously in this report, the City has a demonstrated need for employment 
land to meet our long-range population requirements.  The south study area is the most appropriate 
place for future industrial lands as it is in a location where public infrastructure may be extended in an 
orderly and efficient manner.  The south study are is located adjacent to the existing wastewater 
treatment plant and the water treatment plant; the South Industrial Area Master Plan identifies a 
location for a new sewer pump station to serve the proposed industrial area and water can easily be 
brought to the area from Wynooski Road.  The south study area is also located adjacent to other 
industrially zoned and developed properties, making it an efficient place to locate new industrial 
developments with minimal conflicts with adjacent non-industrial uses.  In addition, the south study 
area is naturally buffered from other nearby agricultural uses by a natural stream corridor ringing the 
area.  Criteria e and f are addressed in more detail in Section 2 of this report. 

Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
Section 151.122(B) (2) of the Newberg Development Code has criteria for Comprehensive Plan map 
amendments.  This UGB amendment package includes two different Comprehensive Plan Amendments: 

1. Amend the Comprehensive Plan Map to include 132 gross buildable acres, including 129 gross 
buildable acres of Industrial (IND) land and 3 gross buildable acres of Public/Quasi-Public (PQ) 
land. 

2. Change the Comprehensive Plan designation of 2 parcels of Medium Density Residential (MDR) 
land along Adolf Road to Industrial (IND) – a net gain of 1 buildable acre of industrial land. 

§151.122(B) (2) Amendment Criteria.  The City must demonstrate: 
(a) The proposed change is consistent with and promotes the objectives of the Newberg 

Comprehensive Plan and this code; 
(b) There is a public need for a change of the kind in question; 
(c) The need will be best served by changing the classification of the particular piece of property in 

question as compared with all other available property. 
(d) Compliance with the State Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0060) for proposals that 

significantly affect transportation facilities.   

Finding:  This report has detailed findings in support of the Comprehensive Plan amendment that would 
expand the UGB; therefore, this finding will focus on the second Comprehensive Plan amendment listed 
above.  The properties in question are bounded by Highway 219, Wilsonville Road, and Adolf Road, in a 
triangular configuration (See Map 12).  The area is not an appropriate place for residential development 
as it is bounded by busy roads, adjacent to future industrial uses, and is located in the future right-of-
way alignment of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  The Comprehensive Plan Goal for Housing is: “To 
provide for a diversity in the type, density and location of housing within the City to ensure there is an 
adequate supply of affordable housing units to meet the needs of City residents of various income 

Page 219



Page 84 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

levels.”  Although this amendment would remove land from the housing designation, including it in the 
industrial designation is a better fit for these reasons: 

� Because the triangular area is located in the future Bypass interchange area, there is only 
approximately one gross buildable acre.  Any housing units on this land still would be heavily 
affected by a bypass interchange ramp. 

� By including the land in industrial use instead, the land has the ability to provide jobs in the 
interim time before the Bypass interchange is constructed.  Local jobs provide residents with the 
income to afford other housing in Newberg and otherwise contribute to the community.   

The Transportation section of the Comprehensive Plan includes two relevant policies to this 
amendment:  

2.a) Transportation improvements shall be used to guide urban development and shall be 
designed to serve anticipated future needs; and 2.b) The city shall adopt zoning and 
development overlay regulations to manage land uses and access in the vicinity of Newberg-
Dundee Bypass interchanges that are consistent with the primary function of the bypass to 
serve through traffic and that are consistent with the Oregon Highway Plan.  Highway 
oriented development and retail commercial shall be precluded at proposed access points.   

The future Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-way and interchange planned for the area around 
Wilsonville Road/Wynooski Road/Highway 219 should be used to guide the form of urban development 
in the nearby area.  Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 
219 Interchange.  For this reason, the City seeks to redesignate the parcels from residential to industrial, 
and include an interim industrial overlay that further restricts the types of uses available to the 
properties.  As previously stated in this report, the City has a demonstrated need for industrial land, and 
this triangular area is in an optimal location for restricted industrial uses, and meets site suitability 
criteria as listed previously in this report.  Because the designation of the property would further restrict 
the available uses, the Transportation Planning Rule does not apply in this case. 

Conclusion 
Based on the findings in Sections 1-3, the proposed UGB amendment complies with applicable Oregon 
Administrative Rules, Oregon Revised Statutes, Oregon Statewide Planning Goals and provisions of the 
Newberg and Yamhill County Comprehensive Plans, the Newberg Urban Area Growth Management 
Agreement, and the Newberg Development Code. 

Overall Conclusion and Actions 
The proposed urban growth boundary amendment would meet most the needs for industrial land and a 
part of the need for public/quasi-public land for the Newberg Urban Area through 2032.  Figure 5 
summarizes the land needs met by this expansion. 

  

Page 220



Page 85 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

Figure 5:  Meeting Industrial and Industrial Type PQ Needs through 2032 

 

 

The proposed urban growth boundary amendment and comprehensive plan amendment meet the 
applicable state statutes and rules, and comply with City and County comprehensive plan policies.  Thus, 
this report contains findings that support the following Newberg and Yamhill County actions: 

(1) Amend the comprehensive plan map to change the designation of two parcels (tax lots 3221-
2600 & 3228B-100) with 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) from Medium Density Residential 
(MDR) to Industrial (IND) 

(2) Amend the UGB to include 132 gross buildable acres of land as shown on Map 13. 

(3) Designate the properties included in the UGB as Industrial (IND) or Public/Quasi-Public (PQ) as 
shown on Map 12. 

(4) Designate a stream corridor overlay as shown on Map 12. 

(5) Amend the Newberg Transportation System Plan to include the road network as shown in 
Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan.

Buildable 
industrial 

land in UGB, 
56 ac. 

Buildable 
land to be 

redesignated 
industrial in 
UGB, 1 ac. 

Urban 
reserve 

land 
added to 

UGB, 3 ac. 

Rural 
exception 

land addded 
to UGB, 4 ac. 

Ag. Land 
added to 
UGB (Mix 

Class II-VI), 
124 ac. 

Ag land 
added to 

UGB (Class I), 
1 ac. 

Remaining 
unmet 
need, 5 

ac. 

All numbers are gross buildable acres. 

Page 221



Page 86 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Section 4: Maps 
 

Page 222



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
1

C
ity

 o
f N

ew
be

rg
In

du
st

ria
l L

an
d 

Su
pp

ly

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
B

ui
ld

ab
le

 In
du

st
ria

l
Ex

is
tin

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
U

N
D

EE
´

Page 223



W
as

te
w

at
er

Pl
an

t
Ex

pa
ns

io
n

I

IV

VI
I

VI
II

X

XI
I

XI

V

VI

II

III

IX

Airport

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
2

Si
te

s 
in

 U
G

B
 S

tu
di

ed
Fo

r C
ha

ng
e 

to
 In

du
st

ria
l

Le
ge

nd Pa
rc

el
 w

/ 5
+ 

bu
ild

ab
le

 a
c.

Pl
an

ne
d 

B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

In
du

st
ria

l D
is

tri
ct

s
Bu

ild
ab

le
 In

du
st

ria
l L

an
d

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B
U

rb
an

 R
es

er
ve

 A
re

a
St

re
am

 C
or

rid
or

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE
´

VI
II 

   
  S

ite
s 

st
ud

ie
d

   
   

   
  f

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
to

   
   

   
  i

nd
us

tr
ia

l

Page 224



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
3

St
ud

y 
A

re
as

 w
ith

 
Ya

m
hi

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
Zo

ni
ng

 D
es

ig
na

tio
ns

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B
Ya

m
hi

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
G

en
er

al
 Z

on
in

g
A

g 
Fo

re
st

 S
m

al
l H

ol
di

ng
 E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

re
/F

or
es

t
M

in
er

al
 R

es
ou

rc
e

R
es

id
en

tia
l E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t E
xc

ep
tio

n 
A

re
a

Pu
bl

ic
 F

ac
ili

ty
 E

xc
ep

tio
n 

A
re

a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

´

Page 225



109
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

13

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
4

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

Pa
rc

el
s 

w
ith

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 L

an
d

B
y 

Pa
rc

el
 S

iz
e

Le
ge

nd Pl
an

ne
d 

By
pa

ss
 C

or
rid

or

Bu
ild

ab
le

 <
 5

 a
c.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 5
+ 

an
d 

<1
0 

ac
.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 1
0 

- 3
0 

ac
.

Bu
ild

ab
le

 >
 3

0 
ac

.

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

St
re

am
s 

an
d 

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE
´

14
  S

tu
dy

 S
ite

Th
is

 m
ap

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
gr

ou
ps

of
 p

ar
ce

ls
 in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

w
ith

 b
ui

ld
ab

le
 la

nd
 th

at
 c

on
ta

in
at

 le
as

t 2
0 

ac
re

s 
(o

r s
m

al
le

r
if 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
du

st
ria

l
di

st
ric

t).

Th
is

 m
ap

 a
ls

o 
id

en
tif

ie
s 

si
te

s
by

 s
iz

e 
ca

te
go

ry
.

Page 226



Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 m

ix
tu

re
 o

f
<5

%
 s

lo
pe

s,
 

5-
10

%
 s

lo
pe

s,
 

an
d 

st
ee

pe
r s

lo
pe

s.

M
uc

h 
of

 th
e 

ar
ea

is
 >

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
, w

ith
 

la
rg

e 
ar

ea
s 

> 
10

%
 s

lo
pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 
>5

%
 a

nd
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
s

M
uc

h 
of

 s
ite

 h
as

 s
lo

pe
s 

ov
er

 1
0%

Sl
op

es
 o

ve
r 1

0%
 d

o
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r i
nd

us
tr

ia
l

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

La
rg

e 
pa

rt
 o

f s
ite

is
 >

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
, w

ith
so

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
> 

10
%

 s
lo

pe

Sl
op

es
 o

ve
r 1

0%
 d

o
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r i
nd

us
tr

ia
l

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
5

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

To
po

gr
ap

hi
c 

Su
ita

bi
lit

y

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

U
G

B
_S

tu
dy

_A
re

a

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 <

 5
 a

c.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 5

 - 
<1

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 1

0 
- 3

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 >

 3
0 

ac
.

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

Fl
oo

dp
la

in

Sl
op

e
Pe

rc
en

t 0%
 - 

5%

5%
-1

0%

>1
0%

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

To
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
Ex

cl
ud

e:
• S

lo
pe

s 
of

 1
0%

 o
r g

re
at

er
,

• S
ite

s 
th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

 
   

le
ss

 th
an

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

-
   

m
en

t a
re

as
, a

nd
• A

re
as

 w
ith

in
 s

tr
ea

m
 c

or
rid

or
s

   
an

d 
w

et
la

nd
s.

´

Si
te

 is
 >

5%
 a

nd
>1

0%
 s

lo
pe

s

M
os

t o
f s

ite
 >

5%
 s

lo
pe

,
la

rg
e 

ar
ea

s 
>1

0%
 s

lo
pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

< 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or

9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

Si
te

 is
 p

re
do

m
in

an
tly

> 
5%

 s
lo

pe
 o

ut
si

de
st

re
am

 c
or

rid
or

N
or

th
 is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 <

 5
%

 s
lo

pe
; 

So
ut

h 
is

 p
re

do
m

in
an

tly
 >

10
%

 s
lo

pe
. 

Page 227



9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
6

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

:
In

du
st

ria
l P

ro
xi

m
ity

 
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 <

 5
 a

c.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 5

+ 
an

d 
<1

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 1

0 
- 3

0 
ac

.

B
ui

ld
ab

le
 >

 3
0 

ac
.

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

In
cl

ud
e 

pa
rc

el
s 

or
 c

on
tig

uo
us

gr
ou

p 
of

 p
ar

ce
ls

:
1.

  W
ith

in
, o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B
,

   
  o

r 
as

 p
ar

t o
f g

ro
up

 o
f p

ar
ce

ls
 in

 th
e

   
  v

ic
in

ity
 o

f t
he

 U
G

B
 th

at
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
   

  c
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
U

G
B

.
2.

  A
dj

oi
n 

an
 in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

   
  a

re
a,

 o
r t

ha
t c

on
ta

in
 a

t l
ea

st
 1

00
   

  a
cr

es
 to

 c
re

at
e 

ne
w

 in
du

st
ria

l a
re

a.
3.

  T
ha

t h
av

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

   
  a

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

   
  w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

. 

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
 c

ou
ld

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

to
 U

G
B

.
N

ot
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

 o
f 

st
at

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f
st

at
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r a

rt
er

ia
l

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
.

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 is
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 in
du

st
ria

l d
is

tr
ic

t.
A

bu
ts

 a
nd

 h
as

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 2
19

.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
co

ul
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B
.

C
or

ra
l C

re
ek

 R
d.

 a
cc

es
s

to
 H

ig
hw

ay
 9

9W
 n

ot
 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r t

ru
ck

 tr
af

fic
.  

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.

´

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
of

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l

A
cr

os
s 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 fr

om
 U

G
B

.
N

o 
hi

gh
w

ay
 o

r a
rt

er
ia

l a
cc

es
s.

 
N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

ar
ea

, n
or

 g
ro

up
 o

f b
ui

ld
ab

le
 p

ar
ce

ls
 

> 
10

0 
ac

re
s.

  

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

or
 s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
. N

o 
ac

ce
ss

to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t o
r s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.  

N
o 

tr
uc

k 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t
or

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  

A
dj

ac
en

cy
 to

 U
G

B
 is

 is
su

e.
N

o 
tr

uc
k 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 a
rt

er
ia

l
st

re
et

 o
r s

ta
te

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.  
  

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 to
uc

he
s

on
e 

in
du

st
ria

l p
ro

pe
rt

y.
  A

cc
es

s
to

 S
pr

in
gb

ro
ok

 R
oa

d 
ar

te
ria

l 
st

re
et

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
.

N
ot

 w
ith

in
 1

/8
 m

ile
 o

f s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l. 
 N

ot
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
in

du
st

ria
l

or
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

re
a,

 n
o 

gr
ou

p 
of

bu
ild

ab
le

 p
ar

ce
ls

 >
 1

00
 a

cr
es

.

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, n

or
 p

ar
t

of
 a

re
a 

th
at

 c
ou

ld
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
be

 a
dd

ed
 to

 U
G

B
.  

D
ire

ct
 h

ig
hw

ay
ac

ce
ss

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

. 

N
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
or

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

.
A

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
U

G
B

 b
ut

 s
ep

ar
at

ed
by

 th
e 

st
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
.

N
ot

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
, 

no
r p

ar
t o

f a
re

a 
th

at
co

ul
d 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 b
e

ad
de

d 
to

 U
G

B
.  

C
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 1
/8

 m
ile

of
 H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
 if

 a
cc

es
s

vi
a 

O
ld

 Y
am

hi
ll 

H
ig

hw
ay

 

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

U
G

B
 a

nd
 w

ith
in

1/
8 

m
ile

 o
f H

ig
hw

ay
 2

40
.  

N
ot

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 in

du
st

ria
l o

r c
om

m
er

ci
al

ar
ea

, n
o 

gr
ou

p 
of

 
bu

ild
ab

le
 p

ar
ce

ls
 >

 1
00

 a
cr

es
.

A
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

U
G

B
.  

Si
te

 h
as

 >
 1

00
 b

ui
ld

ab
le

 a
cr

es
.

A
cc

es
s 

to
 W

ils
on

vi
lle

 R
d.

ar
te

ria
l. 

  

Page 228



0
0.

5
1

0.
25

M
ile

s

M
A

P 
7

N
ew

be
rg

 S
tu

dy
 A

re
as

:
C

om
pa

tib
ili

ty
R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

Le
ge

nd P
la

nn
ed

 B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

E
xi

st
in

g 
U

G
B

10
%

 S
lo

pe
s 

or
 G

re
at

er

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

U
G

B
 S

tu
dy

 A
re

a

R
es

id
en

tia
l A

re
as

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N

D
U

N
D

EE

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l
to

 e
as

t. 
 W

ou
ld

 re
qu

ire
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

to
 w

es
t a

nd
 s

ou
th

.  
U

nb
uf

fe
re

d
fr

om
 u

rb
an

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l t

o 
ea

st
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t
to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

Su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
tia

l

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

to
 n

or
th

 a
nd

 w
es

t

B
uf

fe
re

d 
fr

om
 

ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

by
 s

tr
ea

m
 c

or
rid

or
s.

St
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 a

rt
er

ia
l

cr
ea

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.  

Tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

on
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 u
rb

an
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l
on

 th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
w

es
t. 

 W
ou

ld
re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 to

 re
ac

h
ar

te
ria

l. 
 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 
Ex

cl
ud

e 
si

te
s 

th
at

:
1.

 A
bu

t r
es

id
en

tia
l n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
ds

   
 o

n 
m

or
e 

th
an

 2
5%

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
 p

er
im

et
er

   
 u

nl
es

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

to
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

l b
uf

fe
rs

 
   

 a
re

 p
re

se
nt

.
2.

 R
eq

ui
re

 tr
uc

k 
tr

af
fic

 to
 tr

av
el

 th
ro

ug
h

   
 o

r a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

a 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
   

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
to

 re
ac

h 
an

 a
rt

er
ia

l s
tr

ee
t

   
 o

r s
ta

te
 h

ig
hw

ay
.  

 ´

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

an
d

th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k
tr

av
el

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

- 
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 to
 re

ac
h

hi
gh

w
ay

 o
r a

rt
er

ia
l. 

 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

In
 th

e 
m

id
dl

e 
of

 ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

tia
l

ar
ea

 w
ith

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 to

 a
nd

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

.  
 

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 a

nd
 th

ro
ug

h
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.

U
nb

uf
fe

re
d 

fr
om

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l

to
 e

as
t, 

so
ut

h 
an

d 
w

es
t.

Si
te

 is
 w

ith
in

 d
ev

el
op

ed
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
tia

l a
re

a.
  W

ou
ld

re
qu

ire
 tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

9
8

5

1

2

3 4

1112
14

151618
17

19

2021

6

7

10

13

R
es

id
en

tia
l b

ou
nd

ar
y 

is
 <

 2
5%

.
Tr

uc
k 

tr
av

el
 o

n 
ar

te
ria

l s
tr

ee
t.

St
re

am
 c

or
rid

or
 a

nd
 a

rt
er

ia
l

cr
ea

te
 b

uf
fe

rs
.  

Tr
uc

k 
tr

av
el

on
 a

rt
er

ia
l s

tr
ee

t.

W
ou

ld
 re

qu
ire

 tr
av

el
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o
an

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
.  

 

Page 229



11

14
W

IL
SO

N
VI

LL
E

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

9T
H

ADOLF

R
A

IN
TR

EE

SANDOZ

O
A

K
 M

EA
D

CORRAL CREEK

U
N

N
A

M
ED

 S
TR

E
ET

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILLE

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
EN

N
ED

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
8

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 A
er

ia
l P

ho
to

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
1

Si
te

 1
4

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´
14

Si
te

Page 230



11

14
W

IL
SO

N
V

IL
LE

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

ADOLF

9T
H

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

O
A

K 
M

EA
D

CORRAL C
REEK

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILL

E

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
9

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 S
oi

l C
la

ss
 in

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
ra

l P
la

nn
ed

A
re

as

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
4

Si
te

 1
1

SO
IL

_C
LA

SS
I II III IV VI Ex

is
tin

g 
U

G
B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

14
Si

te

Page 231



11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.5

11
.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

STATE HWY 219

WYNOOSKI

RENNE

DOG RIDGE

HASH

AIRPARK

NEUMANN

ADOLF

9T
H

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

O
A

K 
M

EA
D

CORRAL C
REEK

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

CORINNE

SPRINGBROOK

SIEFKEN

DONNA

BUTT
EVILL

E

INDUSTRIAL
11

TH

EVEREST

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

M
C

K
ER

N

COMMERCE

UNNAMED STREET

0
80

0
1,

60
0

40
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
10

Si
te

s 
11

 a
nd

 1
4

w
ith

 S
ub

si
te

s 
an

d
Pr

io
rit

y 
C

la
ss

es

Le
ge

nd Si
te

 1
1

Si
te

 1
4

Pr
io

rit
y 

C
la

ss
Pr

io
rit

y 1s
t -

 U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve

2n
d 

- R
ur

al
 E

xc
ep

tio
n

4t
h 

H
ig

h-
A

gr
., 

C
la

ss
 II

I &
 lo

w
er

4t
h 

M
ed

.-A
gr

., 
C

la
ss

 II
 w

/II
I, 

V
I

4t
h 

Lo
w

-A
gr

., 
C

la
ss

 II
 w

/I,
 II

I, 
V

I

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

In
du

st
ria

l A
re

as
 in

 U
G

B

Pl
an

ne
d 

B
yp

as
s 

C
or

rid
or

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

14
.1

Su
bs

ite

Page 232



11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

8T
H

WYNOOSKI

11
TH

RENNE

STATE HWY 219

RIVER

PARRISH

NEUMANN

DOG RIDGE

ADOLF

PACIFIC

12
TH10

TH
9T

H

14
TH

SANDOZ

AIRPARK

COLUMBIA

U
N

N
A

M
E

D
 S

TR
E

E
T

13
TH

SIEFKEN

PI
N

AF
O

R
E RIVERSIDE

CENTER

INDUSTRIAL

A
LL

E
Y

SP
R

IN
G

BR
O

O
K

C
O

R
IN

N
E

MILL

ROGERS LA
NDIN

G

M
CK

ER
N

COMMERCE

9T
H

UNNAMED STREET

0
1,

20
0

2,
40

0
60

0
Fe

et

M
A

P 
11

U
rb

an
 G

ro
w

th
 B

ou
nd

ar
y

Ex
pa

ns
io

n 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

Le
ge

nd Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

A

Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

B

Bo
un

da
ry

 A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

C

In
cl

ud
ed

 in
 A

ll 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

es

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

U
rb

an
 R

es
er

ve
 A

re
a

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
B

yp
as

s 
C

or
rid

or

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.511

.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

WYNOOSKI

HASH

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

RAINTREE

INDUSTRIAL

M
C

K
ER

N STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

PARRISH

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

HASH

NEUMANN

R
AI

N
TR

EE

11
.7

11
.4

14
.1

11
.511

.8

11
.1

11
.2

11
.3

11
.6

11
.9

14
.3

14
.2

STATE HWY 219

DOG RIDGE

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

WYNOOSKI

PARRISH

HASH

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

RAINTREE

AIRPARK

INDUSTRIAL

M
CK

ER
N

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
A

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
B

B
ou

nd
ar

y 
A

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
C

Th
is

 m
ap

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

re
e 

bo
un

da
ry

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 b

e 
co

m
pa

re
d 

us
in

g
th

e 
G

oa
l 1

4 
Lo

ca
tio

n 
Fa

ct
or

s.
A

ll 
th

re
e 

al
te

rn
at

iv
es

 a
re

 4
th

 p
ri

or
ity

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l l

an
d,

 a
nd

 c
on

ta
in

 
ro

ug
hl

y 
eq

ua
l a

m
ou

nt
s 

of
bu

ild
ab

le
 la

nd
.

14
.1S

ub
si

te

Page 233



PQ
IN

D

IN
D

IN
D

*
*

U
G

B
 e

xt
en

ds
 to

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

U
G

B
 e

xt
en

ds
 to

 
ce

nt
er

lin
e 

of
 c

re
ek

U
G

B
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

po
rti

on
of

 p
ro

pe
rty

 n
ot

 a
lre

ad
y

in
 U

G
B

Pr
op

er
tie

s 
al

re
ad

y 
in

 U
G

B
re

de
si

gn
at

ed
 IN

D

PARRISH

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

STATE HWY 219

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

DOG RIDGE
NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

HASH

M
C

K
ER

N

UNNAMED STREET

R
AI

N
TR

EE

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
12

Se
le

ct
ed

 U
G

B
 A

m
en

dm
en

t
an

d 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n 
M

ap
 A

m
en

dm
en

t A
re

a
w

ith
 P

ro
po

se
d 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
Pl

an
 D

es
ig

na
tio

ns

Le
ge

nd Ex
pa

nd
ed

 U
G

B

A
ffe

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rt

ie
s

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
la

n 
D

es
ig

na
tio

n
PQ

  P
ub

lic
/Q

ua
si

-P
ub

lic

IN
D

  I
nd

us
tri

al

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

St
re

am
 C

or
rid

or
 O

ve
rla

y

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´
*Fu

tu
re

 P
ar

k 
S

ite

Page 234



32
28

   
00

90
0

96
80

 A
D

O
LF

 R
D

32
28

   
01

00
0

91
50

 S
T 

PA
U

L 
H

W
Y

 N
E

32
28

   
01

90
0

ST
 P

A
U

L 
H

W
Y 

N
E

32
28

   
00

80
1

96
90

 A
D

O
LF

 R
D

3229   00400
2608 WYNOOSKI

3228   01700
WYNOOSKI

32
28

   
00

80
2

10
10

0 
A

D
O

LF
 R

D

3228   01100
9195 ST PAUL HWY NE

3228   01200

9475 ST PAUL HWY NE

32
29

   
00

60
0

24
12

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
29

   
02

20
0

13
01

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
29

   
00

50
0

26
00

 W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I

32
28

   
00

80
0

28
57

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
21

   
05

30
0

28
73

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
21

   
05

20
0

28
74

0 
W

IL
S

O
N

V
IL

LE
 R

D
 N

E

32
29

   
00

20
2

 

32
28

B
B

 0
01

00
A

D
O

LF
 R

D

32
21

   
02

60
0

S
T 

PA
U

L 
H

W
Y

 N
E

PARRISH

W
IL

SO
N

V
IL

LE

STATE HWY 219

W
YN

O
O

S
KI

DOG RIDGE

NEUMANN

ADOLF

SANDOZ

SIEFKEN

R
A

IN
TR

E
E

HASH

M
C

K
ER

N

UNNAMED STREET

R
AI

N
TR

EE

0
50

0
1,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

M
A

P 
13

Pr
op

er
ty

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

Le
ge

nd Af
fe

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rti

es

Ex
is

tin
g 

U
G

B

City of Newberg Industrial Lands Analysis - 2012 UGB Expansion

´

Page 235



Page 100 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB ��������	�
��	���	��������������February 2012 

 

Appendices 
 

 

 

Page 236



Page A-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix A ��February 2012 

 

Appendix A: Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis (2012) 
 

 

 

Page 237



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  1 

Economic 
Opportunities 

Analysis 
Section 12 of Newberg Inventory of Natural and Cultural 

Resources

Originally Adopted by Newberg City Council January 3, 2006 (Ordinance No. 2006-2635) 
Revised by Ordinance 2010-2723, Adopted by Newberg City Council on February 1, 2010, Draft 

Revision February 2012 

Appendix A

Page 238



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  2 

City of Newberg
Economic Opportunities Analysis

Table of Contents 
Table of Tables ............................................................................................................................... 3 
Table of Figures .............................................................................................................................. 4 
I. Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 5 
II. Economic Trends Analysis ..................................................................................................... 7 

National, State and Regional Trends .......................................................................................... 7 
Regional Economic Development Industry Clusters and Targeted Industries ......................... 13 
Yamhill County Agri-Business ................................................................................................. 14 
Regional Industrial Land Availability ...................................................................................... 17 
Newberg Population Profile ...................................................................................................... 18 

Historic and Future Growth Trends ...................................................................................... 18 
Age Characteristics ............................................................................................................... 19 
Educational Attainment and Income ..................................................................................... 20 
Commuting Patterns.............................................................................................................. 23 

Newberg Employment Characteristics ..................................................................................... 24 
Historic Economy ................................................................................................................. 24 
Current Economy .................................................................................................................. 25 
Retail Conditions .................................................................................................................. 28 

III. Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential ......................................... 29 
State Employment Forecast ...................................................................................................... 29 
Regional Employment Forecast ................................................................................................ 30 
Newberg Employment Forecast ................................................................................................ 31 

Employment by Land Use Type ........................................................................................... 32 
Newberg’s Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages ........................................................ 34 

Comparative Advantages ...................................................................................................... 34 
Comparative Disadvantages .................................................................................................. 36 

Special Opportunities ................................................................................................................ 37 
Dental Equipment Cluster ..................................................................................................... 37 
Alternative Energies.............................................................................................................. 38 
South Industrial Area ............................................................................................................ 38 
Aviation Related Industry ..................................................................................................... 39 
Nursery and other Agricultural Products .............................................................................. 39 
Wine/Tourism Industry ......................................................................................................... 40 
Retail ..................................................................................................................................... 41 

IV. Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy .................................................................... 42 
Capitalizing on Comparative Advantages & Addressing Comparative Disadvantages ........... 42 
Regional Focus.......................................................................................................................... 43 
Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters (Targeted Industries) ................ 45 
Comprehensive Plan Policies and Recommended Supportive Economic Development Actions
................................................................................................................................................... 46 

V. Industrial and Commercial Land Needs and Supply ............................................................ 48 

Appendix A

Page 239



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  3 

Industrial Land Need................................................................................................................. 48 
Industrial Employment Projections....................................................................................... 48 

Industrial Site Suitability Requirements ................................................................................... 53 
State Rules Governing Site Suitability Characteristics ......................................................... 53 
Background on Newberg’s Industrial Site Characteristics ................................................... 54 
Industrial Site Size ................................................................................................................ 56 
Industrial District Size and Industrial/Commercial Proximity ............................................. 58 
Topography ........................................................................................................................... 60 
Proximity to UGB ................................................................................................................. 61 
Proximity to Transportation and Services............................................................................. 62 
Compatibility with Residential Uses .................................................................................... 63 

Industrial Land and Sites .......................................................................................................... 64 
2032 Industrial Site Need vs. Supply .................................................................................... 67 

Commercial Land Need {Reserved for Future use] ................................................................. 68 
VI. Conclusion ......................................................................................................................... 69 

Table of Tables 
Table 12- 1: Yamhill County Value of Agricultural Production, 2007 ........................................ 14 
Table 12- 2:  Newberg Census Populations .................................................................................. 18 
Table 12- 3: Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using the OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) 
Safe Harbor ................................................................................................................................... 19 
Table 12- 4:  Comparative Age Characteristics ............................................................................ 20 
Table 12- 5:  Comparative Educational Attainment ..................................................................... 21 
Table 12- 6:  Comparative Household Income ............................................................................. 22 
Table 12- 7:  Comparative Median Household Income ................................................................ 22 
Table 12- 8:  Newberg Employment 1978-2010 .......................................................................... 25 
Table 12- 9:  Estimated Newberg Employment by Industry 2010 ............................................... 26 
Table 12- 10:  Newberg Top Employers 2010 .............................................................................. 27 
Table 12- 11:  Population and Retail Sales (2007) ....................................................................... 28 
Table 12- 12:  Statewide Employment Forecast, 2010-2020 ........................................................ 30 
Table 12- 13:  Combined Nonfarm Employment Projection for Regions 2, 3, and 15, 2010-2020 
(Multnomah, Washington, Marion, Polk, Yamhill, & Clackamas Counties) ............................... 31 
Table 12- 14:  Newberg Urban Area 2032 Employment Forecast ............................................... 32 
Table 12- 15: Projected Distribution of Newberg Employment by Land Use Type .................... 33 
Table 12- 16:  Strategies to Capitalize on Comparative Advantages ........................................... 42 
Table 12- 17:  Strategies to Address Comparative Disadvantages ............................................... 43 
Table 12- 18:  Newberg Targeted Industries ................................................................................ 46 
Table 12- 19:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 2032 ................................ 49 
Table 12- 20: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 2032 .................................. 50 
Table 12- 21:  Site Size Ranges by Targeted Industrial Cluster and Sector ................................. 51 
Table 12- 22:  Targeted Industry Clusters and Sectors by Site Size Ranges and Existing Newberg 
Industrial Firm Examples .............................................................................................................. 52 
Table 12- 23:  Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics .............................................. 56 
Table 12- 24:  Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032 ................................................... 67 

Appendix A

Page 240



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  4 

Table of Figures 
Figure 12- 1:  Comparative Median Household Income .............................................................. 23 
Figure 12- 2:  Commuting Patterns for Workers .......................................................................... 24 
Figure 12- 3: Employed Workers over 16 by Industry ................................................................. 26 
Figure 12- 4:  Typical Site Sizes in Nearby Industrial Areas ....................................................... 57 
Figure 12- 5:  Typical Industrial District Size of Nearby Communities ....................................... 59 
Figure 12- 6:  Buildable Industrial Land, Newberg UGB 2012 ................................................... 66 

Appendix A

Page 241



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  5 

I. Introduction 
Newberg has a strong economy based on manufacturing, health care, education, tourism, 
agriculture, and retail.  As the city with the second largest population in Yamhill County, 
Newberg serves as the commerce center for the eastern portion of the county’s primarily 
agricultural economy. Over the past few decades, Newberg’s economic base has become more 
diversified.  Several of its home-grown industries have evolved into national and international 
leaders in their respective fields.

This trend toward growth and diversification is likely to continue as the growth of the Portland 
metropolitan area increasingly influences Newberg.  However, our city is one steeped in history, 
and is a community that possesses a strong sense of place.  The citizens of Newberg highly value 
these characteristics and wish to maintain its unique identity.  To do so, Newberg must 
strengthen its economic base.  Newberg must support its existing businesses while nurturing new 
enterprises.  

Newberg has identified four business clusters that are the foundation of its economy: 
manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism industry.  Ensuring the 
vitality of these business clusters is key to the economic health of our community   

Like most communities, Newberg’s economic development efforts focus on two principal 
strategies: 

1. Retention and Expansion of Existing Businesses.  Newberg has been extremely fortunate 
in having strong commercial and industrial sectors.  Newberg has an unwavering 
commitment to its existing businesses and industries. This commitment is underscored by 
the positive attitude of appointed and elected officials to meeting the needs of the 
business community – in terms of providing public facilities and services necessary for 
businesses to grow and prosper, and in listening to the business community in its long-
range planning processes and regulatory review. 

2. Recruitment of New Businesses.  A substantial portion of Newberg’s Economic 
Opportunities Analysis is devoted to attracting new traded-sector industrial and service-
based industries that will bring new resources to maintain and improve the livability of 
the community.  To ensure that Newberg’s economic development efforts are successful, 
we have carefully assessed economic trends and our comparative economic advantages 
and disadvantages, as required by Statewide Planning Goal 9 (Economy of the State).   

The City has worked closely with the Portland-Vancouver Regional Partners Council for 
Economic Development, the Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD), and 
the Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) in defining the types of 
industry clusters that can be reasonably attracted to our community.  Newberg also has 
determined the size and characteristics of sites required for Newberg to be competitive --
from a regional perspective -- in attracting our targeted businesses to the community.   

Critical to Newberg’s economic development efforts is the availability of developable land for 
businesses, as redevelopment opportunities are limited.  The City closely monitors the supply of 

Appendix A

Page 242



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  6 

these types of lands to ensure that opportunities for economic growth can be capitalized upon as 
they arise.

As for Newberg’s targeted industrial clusters, most of these businesses require relatively flat 
sites, with a minimum of conflicting land uses, such as residential areas, and close access to a 
major highway or arterial without travel through land with conflicting uses.  Most will benefit 
tremendously by the construction of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass and its connection to Highway 
219, which is planned in the Oregon Highway Plan. 

The City also has considered the site characteristics required to attract targeted industrial clusters 
when considering Newberg relative to other Northwest communities.  Newberg has identified 
four types of industrial development to focus on: 

� Large site light industrial (individual sites reserved for single users);
� Airport light industrial (within the Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan);
� Infill light industrial that takes advantage of remaining industrial sites within the existing 

UGB; and
� Master planned light industrial parks that provide a range of medium to small sites in a 

master planned setting.

The Oregon Business Development Department has made it very clear that providing large 
industrial sites for traded-sector employment opportunities in a master planned park setting with 
close access to Interstate 5 will put Newberg at a distinct advantage when compared with other 
Northwest communities.

Newberg has relatively little suitable industrial land left within its UGB.  After considering a 
range of alternatives both in and outside of the existing UGB, Newberg has concluded that the 
South Industrial Area best meets the site requirements of targeted industrial clusters.  This area:

� Has large, flat “suitable” sites (i.e., meeting identified site requirements) with close 
access to Highway 219.  The area has access within 15 minutes to I-5, with no 
intervening urban areas.  It has close access to the Highway 99W corridor, which will be 
further enhanced with construction of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass;

� Has natural buffers from adjacent agricultural and rural residential land that enhances the 
attractiveness of the area for traded-sector industrial use;

� Has immediate access to electrical, natural gas, sewer and water services;
� Is a natural extension of Newberg’s existing light industrial and airport-related industrial 

areas.

Newberg’s other primary existing business clusters (health care, higher education, wine/tourism) 
also must have opportunities for expansion if they are to remain vital.  These businesses are 
usually located on lands zoned for commercial and/or institutional development. 

Higher education institutions in Newberg include George Fox University and Portland 
Community College.  While the University currently owns sufficient land to satisfy its physical 
needs for the foreseeable future, much of that land is expected to be redeveloped to satisfy their 

Appendix A

Page 243



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  7 

programmatic needs.  Portland Community College constructed a campus in Newberg as a result 
of a bond measure that was passed in 2008. 

The foundation of the local healthcare industry is Providence Newberg Medical Center, which is 
located at the east end of Newberg directly on Highway 99W.  The hospital is located on land 
that will accommodate its expansion plans for the foreseeable future.  Land to accommodate 
development of ancillary private medical services that would benefit from close proximity to the 
hospital is available.

The wine/tourism industry in Newberg is principally involved in the retail and service business 
sectors.  Growing of the wine grapes and processing them into wine is done outside of 
Newberg’s city limits.  Further development of this industry will likely be accommodated 
through two mechanisms.  First, Newberg’s historic downtown buildings/land will continue to be 
reused and redeveloped for businesses of this industry, including direct sales of wine, restaurants, 
antiques, arts and crafts stores, etc.  Second, the Springbrook Master Plan has a commercial node 
that is expected to include businesses that will cater to the needs of wine tourists.  Moreover, this 
commercial node will be located next to the newly constructed Allison Inn and Spa, a high-end 
resort that targets wine tourists.   Additional opportunities for manufacturing, processing, and 
storing wine could be made available if Newberg had adequate industrial land. 

Finally, a community’s economic development strategy must consist of more than ensuring the 
availability of an adequate land supply for future growth.  The community also must commit to 
comprehensive set of actions that support local businesses.  Included in this analysis is a list of 
recommended economic development actions that are intended to help Newberg assist its local 
economic partners.

II. Economic Trends Analysis 
The EOA addresses local and regional trends (660-009-0015 (1)) on the following pages, 
concluding that Newberg’s future employment growth will be dependent on regional economic 
clusters. The trends analysis results in identification of future industrial uses – the “Targeted 
Industrial Clusters” for Newberg.

National, State and Regional Trends 
Economic development in Newberg over the next 20 years will occur in the context of long-run 
national trends.1

The aging of the baby boom generation, accompanied by increases in life expectancy. The 
number of people age 65 and older will more than double by 2050, while the number of people 
under age 65 with grow only 22 percent. The economic effects of this demographic change 
include a slowing of the growth of the labor force, an increase in the demand for healthcare 
services, and an increase in the percent of the federal budget dedicated to Social Security and 
Medicare.

 The most important of these trends include: 

2

1 National trends courtesy of ECONorthwest.
2 The Board of Trustees, Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds, 
2008, The 2008 Annual Report of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and 

Appendix A

Page 244



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  8 

Baby boomers are expecting to work longer than previous generations. An increasing proportion 
of people in their early to mid-50s expect to work full-time after age 65. In 2004, about 40% of 
these workers expect to work full-time after age 65, compared with about 30% in 1992.3 This 
trend can be seen in Oregon, where the share of workers 65 years and older grew from 2% of the 
workforce in 1992 to 3% of the workforce in 2002, an increase of 64%. Over the same ten-year 
period, workers 45 to 64 years increased by 70%.4

Tightening labor force: Slower population growth and a decreasing over-all labor force 
participation rate are expected to contribute to a slowdown in labor force growth. The rate of 
labor force growth is projected to decrease by about 4%. The projected 8% percent increase for 
the 2008-18 period is less than the 12% growth that occurred between 1998 and 2008.  The total 
labor force is projected to grow by 12.6 million between 2008 and 2018, to 166.9 million 
persons. From 2008-2018 the number of women in the labor force will grow at a slightly faster 
rate (9 percent) compared to men (7.5 percent).5

Need for replacement workers. Although economic growth will create a substantial number of 
job openings over the 2008–18 projection period, the majority are expected to come from 
replacement needs. Replacement needs are projected to account for 67% of the approximately 
50.9 million job openings between 2008 and 2018. Professional and related occupations are 
projected to have the largest number of total job openings, 11.9 million, and 56% of those will be 
due to replacement needs. Replacement needs generally are greatest in the largest occupations 
and in those with relatively low pay or limited training requirements. As a result, service 
occupations are projected to have the greatest number of job openings due to replacements, about 
7.6 million.6

Increases in labor productivity. Worker productivity, the amount of product created per hour of 
labor, is on the rise.  This is in large part due to increases in efficiency gained by better 
machinery and technology.  The Bureau of Labor Statistics reports that business productivity 
rose 11 percent from 2005 to 2010.  Productivity in manufacturing rose nearly 14 percent during 
the same period.7 While this bodes well for employers trying to increase profits, it also is an 
ominous sign for workers, as fewer are needed for the same output.8  Manufacturing and other 
industries are seeing a corresponding increase in the ratio of floor area per employee, as more 
floor space is used by machine and less by workers.9

Continued trend towards domestic outsourcing. Businesses continue to outsource work to less 

Federal Disability Insurance Trust Funds, April 10, 2008.
3 “The Health and Retirement Study,” 2007, National Institute of Aging, National Institutes of Health, U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services.
4 “Growing Numbers of Older Workers in Oregon,” Oregon Employment Department.
5 Employment Projections 2008-2018, Bureau of Labor Statistics
6 Occupational Outlook Handbook, 2010-11 Edition, Bureau of Labor Statistics; Alan Lacey and Benjamin Wright, 
Monthly Labor Review 2009.
7 “Productivity and Costs, Fourth Quarter and Annual Averages 2010, Revised,” Bureau of Labor Statistics,
(March 3, 2011).

8 Davidson, Paul, “Higher productivity cuts jobs now, pays off in long term,” USA Today (February 23, 2011). 
9 Schectman, Joel.  “Rise of the Machines,” Newsweek (December 17, 2010) 

Appendix A

Page 245



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  9 

expensive markets. Outsourcing generally falls into two categories: (1) moving jobs from 
relatively expensive areas to less expensive areas within the U.S. and (2) moving jobs outside of 
the U.S. to countries with lower labor costs. About three-quarters of layoffs in the U.S. between 
1995 and 2004 were the result of domestic relocation, involving movement of work within the 
same company. The industries with the largest amounts of domestic outsourcing were: 
manufacturing, retail trade, and information.10

Continued growth in global trade and the globalization of business activity. With increased 
global trade, both exports and imports rise. Faced with increasing domestic and international 
competition, firms will seek to reduce costs through implementing quality- and productivity-
enhancing technologies, such as robotics or factory automation. In addition, production processes 
will continue to be outsourced offshore.11

Continued shift of employment from manufacturing and resource-intensive industries to the 
service-oriented sectors of the economy. Increased worker productivity and the international 
outsourcing of routine tasks lead to declines in employment in the major goods-producing 
industries. Projections from the Bureau of Labor Statistics indicate that U.S. employment growth 
will continue to be strongest in healthcare and social assistance, professional and business 
services, and other service industries. Construction employment will also grow but 
manufacturing employment will decline.12

The importance of high-quality natural resources. The relationship between natural resources and 
local economies has changed as the economy has shifted away from resource extraction.
Increases in population and household income, combined with changes in tastes and preferences, 
have dramatically increased demands for outdoor recreation, scenic vistas, clean water, and other 
resource-related amenities. Such amenities contribute to a region’s quality of life and play an 
important role in attracting both households and firms.13

Continued westward and southward migration of the U.S. population. Although there are some 
exceptions at the state level, the 2009 American Community Survey shows continued regional 
population movement from the Northeast and Midwest to the South and West.14

The growing importance of education as a determinant of wages and household income. Level of 
education largely determines employment, which largely determines income level.  Completion 

10 Sharon P. Brown and Lewis B. Siegel, “Mass Layoff Data Indicate Outsourcing and Offshoring Work,” Monthly 
Labor Review, August 2005, pp. 3-10.
11 Eric B. Figueroa and Rose A. Woods, 2007, “Industry Output and Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly 
Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 53-85.
12 Eric B. Figueroa and Rose A. Woods, 2007, “Industry Output and Employment Projections to 2016,” Monthly 
Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 53-85.; Arlene Dohm and Lyn Shniper, “Occupational Employment Projections 
to 2016,” Monthly Labor Review, November 2007, pp. 86-125. 
13 For a more thorough discussion of relevant research, see, for example, Power, T.M. and R.N. Barrett. 2001. Post-
Cowboy Economics: Pay and Prosperity in the New American West. Island Press, and Kim, K.-K., D.W. 
Marcouiller, and S.C. Deller. 2005. “Natural Amenities and Rural Development: Understanding Spatial and 
Distributional Attributes.” Growth and Change 36 (2): 273-297.
14 U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2009 American Community Survey. Table S0702. Movers Between Regions.

Appendix A

Page 246



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  10 

of a four-year college degree paves the way for a professional or managerial occupation in the 
information-based economy, which on average yields higher incomes than service jobs or menial 
labor.  According to the Bureau of Labor Statistics, the majority of the fastest growing 
occupations over the next decade will require an academic degree: computer software application 
engineers, elementary school teachers, and accountants and auditors.  Service jobs, (e.g., retail 
sales person, food preparation workers, and home care aides) will account for about half of all 
jobs by 2016.15

Continued increase in demand for energy. Despite short-term fluctuations, energy prices and 
total demand are forecast to remain at relatively high levels through 2035.  Growth in U.S. 
energy use is linked to population growth through increases in demand for housing, commercial 
floorspace, transportation, manufacturing, and services. This affects not only the level of energy 
use, but also the mix of fuels and consumption by sector. Although total demand is forecast to 
increase, energy consumption per person has declined sharply during the recent economic 
recession. Energy use per capita increases slightly as the economy rebounds, then begins 
declining in 2013 as higher efficiency standards for vehicles and lighting begin to take effect. 
From 2013 to 2035, energy use per capita declines by 0.3 percent per year on average.16

Impact of rising energy prices on commuting patterns. Energy prices may continue to be high 
(relative to historic energy prices) or continue to rise over the planning period17  which may 
impact willingness to commute long distances. There is some indication that increases in fuel 
prices have resulted in decreased suburban housing demand which has resulted in decreased 
prices, especially in large urban areas (e.g., Los Angeles or Chicago) and suburbs far from the 
center city. If this pattern continues, the area in Oregon most likely to be most impacted is 
Portland, which has the largest area of urban and suburban development in the state.18

Possible effect of rising transportation and fuel prices on globalization. Increases in globalization 
are related to the cost of transportation: When transportation is less expensive, companies move 
production to areas with lower labor costs. Oregon has benefited from this trend, with domestic 
outsourcing of call centers and other back office functions. In other cases, businesses in Oregon 
(and the nation) have “off-shored” employment to other countries, most frequently 
manufacturing jobs.  

Likewise, increases in either transportation or labor costs may impact globalization. When the 
wage gap between two areas is larger than the additional costs of transporting goods, companies 

15 In 2006, the national median income was about $32,000.  Workers with some college education earned slightly 
less than median, while workers with a bachelor’s degree earned $45,000.  Workers who only had a high school 
diploma earned $26,000 a year, while workers without a high school degree only earned $19,000 a year. Workers in 
Oregon experience the same patterns as the nation, however, notably, pay is generally lower in Oregon than the 
national average. (Source: “Growing Number of Older Workers in Oregon,” Oregon Employment Department and 
American Community Survey, U.S. Census, 2006.) 
16 Annual Energy Outlook 2010 with Projections to 2035. U.S. Energy Information Administration.
17 Energy Information Administration, 2008, Annual Energy Outlook 2008 with Projections to 2030, U.S. 
Department of Energy, DOE/EIA-0383(2008), April
18 Cortright, Joe. “Driven to the Brink: How the Gas Price Spike Popped the Housing Bubble and devalued the 
Suburbs,” May 2008.

Appendix A

Page 247



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  11 

are likely to shift operations to an area with lower labor costs.  Conversely, when transportation 
costs increase, companies may have incentive to relocate to be closer to suppliers or consumers.
This effect occurs incrementally over time and it is difficult to measure the impact in the short-
term. If fuel prices and transportation costs decrease over the 20-year planning period, businesses 
may not make the decision to relocate (based on transportation costs) because the benefits of 
being closer to suppliers and markets may not exceed the costs of relocation. 

Growing opportunities for “green” businesses. Businesses are increasingly concerned with 
“green” business opportunities and practices. These business practices are concerned with “the 
design, commercialization, and use of processes and products that are feasible and economical 
while reducing the generation of pollution at the source and minimizing the risk to human health 
and the environment.”19

Green business opportunities historically have been at the mercy of feasibility and economics; if 
a firm ignores feasibility and economics while trying to be green, the firm may not be able to 
afford to operate long enough to learn how to make green businesses feasible. However, growing 
popularity in “eco-friendly” products and green development has caused the green market to 
become cost-competitive with the conventional market. The three types of green business 
opportunities are products, processes, and education. 

 Producing green products. In general, green products consume fewer resources, and 
create less pollution, which in turn, is beneficial to human health. For example, hybrid vehicles 
(which use a mixture of power or fuel sources), use less gasoline to operate and add fewer 
pollutants to the air, while still providing the same transportation services as a traditional vehicle. 
Another example is bamboo fencing and lumber, which is considered a “rapidly renewable” 
material.20 Unlike traditional building materials, rapidly renewable materials, by virtue of a more 
consistent harvesting cycle, may sustain a community over a longer period of time than the 
steady and eventual depletion of finite resources or the degradation of a productive ecosystem.21

 Providing education about green practices or products. Green education is often closely 
related to producing green products and is often done by consultants or nonprofit organizations. 
One example of a company involved in green education is the U.S. Green Building Council, a 
501(c)(3) non-profit, which provides third-party verification that a building or community was 
designed and built using strategies aimed at improving environmental performance (LEED 
certification), provides numerous education resources and commissions studies geared to 
advance the green building movement.  Another example is a consulting firm that writes a green 
plan for a city or business.   

Using green business practices. Green business practices are alternative methods of 
doing business that promote resource conservation, prevent or reduce pollution, or have other 
beneficial environmental effects. Examples of green business processes include: buying products 

19 Urban Green Partnership at urbangreenpartnership.org
20 Rapidly renewable materials are considered to be an agricultural product, both fiber and animal that takes 10 years 
or less to grow or raise, and to harvest in an ongoing and sustainable fashion.  Bamboo is the fastest-growing plant 
on Earth. 
21  New Construction and Major Renovation LEED Reference Guide, Version 2.2, U.S. Green Building Council 
(September 2006).

Appendix A

Page 248



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  12 

locally to reduce shipping distance, recycling waste products (where possible), or maximizing 
the use of natural lighting to reduce use of electricity and light bulbs. 

Potential impacts of global climate change. There is growing support for but not a consensus 
about whether global climate change is occurring as a result of greenhouse gas emissions. There 
is a lot of uncertainty surrounding global climate change, including the pace of climate change 
and the ecological and economic impacts of climate changes. In the Pacific Northwest, climate 
change may result in the following changes: (1) increase in average temperatures, (2) shift in the 
type of precipitation, with more winter precipitation falling as rain, (3) decrease in mountain 
snow-pack and earlier spring thaw and (4) increases in carbon dioxide in the air.22 Assuming that 
global climate change is occurring and will continue to occur over the next 20 years, a few 
broad, potential economic impacts for the nation and Pacific Northwest include:23

 Potential impact on agriculture and forestry. Climate change may impact Oregon’s 
agriculture through changes in: growing season, temperature ranges, and water availability.24

Climate change may impact Oregon’s forestry through increase in wildfires, decrease in the rate 
of tree growth, change in mix of tree species, and increases in disease and pests that damage 
trees.25

 Potential impact on tourism and recreation. Impacts on tourism and recreation may range 
from: (1) decreases in snow-based recreation if snow-pack in the Cascades decreases, (2) 
negative impacts to tourism along the Oregon Coast as a result of damage and beach erosion 
from rising sea levels,26 (3) negative impacts on availability of water summer river recreation 
(e.g., river rafting or sports fishing) as a result of lower summer river flows, and (4) negative 
impacts on the availability of water for domestic and business uses.

 Potential changes in government policies. There is currently no substantial national 
public policy response to global climate change. States and regional associations of states are in 
the process of formulating policy responses to address climate change including: increasing 
renewable energy generation, selling agricultural carbon sequestration credits, and encouraging 
energy efficiency.27

However, the impending issue of global climate change will also offer economic opportunities.

Without clear indications of future government policy, it is impossible to 
assess the impact of government policies on the environment and subsequently, the economy.  

22 “Economic Impacts of Climate Change on Forest Resources in Oregon: A Preliminary Analysis,” Climate 
Leadership Initiative, Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, May 2007.
23 The issue of global climate change is complex and there is a substantial amount of uncertainty about climate 
change. This discussion is not intended to describe all potential impacts of climate change but to present a few ways 
that climate change may impact the economy of cities in Oregon and the Pacific Northwest. 
24 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005.
25 “Economic Impacts of Climate Change on Forest Resources in Oregon: A Preliminary Analysis,” Climate 
Leadership Initiative, Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, May 2007.
26 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005.
27 Pew Center on Global Climate Change website: http://www.pewclimate.org/what_s_being_done/in_the_states/

Appendix A

Page 249



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  13 

The search for alternative energy sources may result in increased investment and employment in 
“green” energy sources, such as wind, solar, and bio-fuels. Firms in the Northwest are well 
positioned to lead efforts on climate change mitigation, which may result in export products, 
such as renewable technologies or green manufacturing. 28

Short-term national trends will also affect economic growth in the region, but these trends are 
difficult to predict. At times these trends may run counter to the long-term trends described 
above. A recent example is the downturn in economic activity starting in 2007 following 
declines in the housing market and the mortgage banking crisis. The result of the economic 
downturn has been a decrease in employment related to the housing market, such as construction 
and real estate. Employment in these industries will recover as the housing market recovers and 
will continue to play a significant role in the national, state, and local economy over the long run. 
This report takes a long-run perspective on economic conditions (as the Goal 9 requirements 
intend) and does not attempt to predict the impacts of short-run national business cycles on 
employment or economic activity. 

The national trends discussed above inform many of the emerging and targeted industry clusters 
identified in this EOA. They also underscore the importance of concentrating traded-sector 
industries in Newberg to reduce energy consumption and reliance on commuting. It’s important 
to note that, despite national trends, Newberg has maintained a relatively high percentage of 
manufacturing jobs within the community and supports continuing to do so. 

Regional Economic Development Industry Clusters and Targeted 
Industries 
Industry clusters of a region are its principal economic drivers.  The Portland Regional Business 
Plan identifies specific, traded-sector industry clusters that should be supported to enhance the 
economic base of the region.  The Plan defines a cluster as follows: 

A cluster is a group of firms that, though their interactions with each other and with their 
customers and suppliers, develop innovative, cutting-edge products and processes that 
distinguish them in the market place and from firms in the same industry found 
elsewhere.  The competitiveness of an industry cluster is determined by the presence of 
highly specialized pools of skills, technology and infrastructure tailored to the needs of 
the cluster firms.  The presence of sophisticated and demanding customers in a cluster 
pressures firms to innovate on a continuing basis.... 

Those industry clusters that compete nationally and internationally are the core of this 
region’s economy and what distinguishes it from other regions.  The industry cluster that 
exist and that are emerging in the metropolitan area are built on the distinctive 
knowledge competencies of the region, and the strengths that currently enable the region 
to compete globally for economic activity and investment.  Additionally, industries that 
sell their products and services nationally and internationally have greater long-term 
growth potential since their opportunities for growth are not constrained by the size of 

28 “The Economic Impacts of Climate Change in Oregon: A preliminary Assessment,” Climate Leadership Initiative, 
Institute for Sustainable Environment, University of Oregon, October 2005.

Appendix A

Page 250



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  14 

this region’s market.  For these reasons, focusing on industry clusters is both a more 
efficient and effective use of this region’s efforts and resources.

The Plan identifies the following industry clusters that the Portland region should focus on in 
their economic development efforts.  Because of Newberg’s proximity to the region, Newberg 
also has good likelihood of attracting these industries, and also should focus on attracting them.  
These include: 

1. Established
a. High Tech (Semiconductors/Silicon, Imaging & Display Technology) 
b. Metals, Machinery, Transportation Equipment 
c. Nursery Products 
d. Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
e. Lumber and Wood Products 

2. Emerging
a. High Tech (Nano & Micro Technology, Cyber-Security, Health/Medical Information 

Technology) 
b. Creative Services (Advertising, Public Relations, Film and Video, Web/Internet 

Content and Design)
c. Sports Apparel/Recreation-Related Products

3. Targeted (clusters desired to create and establish)
a. Biotech/Bioscience (Medical Devices, Bioinfomatics, Pharmaceuticals, Genomics, 

Anti-Virals)
b. Sustainable Industries (Renewable Energy, Resource Efficiency Technologies, 

Sustainable Building Materials, Green Chemistry)
c. Professional Services (Architecture, Engineering, Legal and Financial Services, etc.)
d. Distribution & Logistics

Newberg should provide opportunities for these industries to expand and locate within the 
Newberg UGB over the 20-year planning period.  In addition, costs of doing business in
Newberg (e.g. real estate, taxes) can often be significantly lower than in much of the Portland 
metro area.  Our community offers a unique quality of life compared to others in the region, one 
that will attract those who believe their business will benefit from being located here. If Newberg 
provides suitable sites for these industry clusters, there is a reasonable likelihood that they will 
choose our community.  

Yamhill County Agri-Business 
In June 2009, Barney & Worth, Inc. prepared the Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and 
Community Development Plan: Summary Report for Yamhill County.  The plan assessed the 
existing state of agriculture and agri-tourism in the County, and assessed future opportunities for 
growth.  According to the report, Nursery and Greenhouse Crops comprise 45.2% of the value of 
agricultural production in the county.   

Table 12- 1: Yamhill County Value of Agricultural Production, 2007

Appendix A

Page 251



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  15 

Yamhill County Value of Agricultural 
Production, 2007  Value ($000) Percent of Total

All Crops
  Nursery & Greenhouse Crops  $133,724 45.2% 
  Grass & Legume Seeds  $56,889 19.2% 
  Nuts & Tree Fruit  $24,684 8.3% 
  Small Woodlots and Christmas Trees  $13,204 4.5% 
  Grain & Hay  $9,600 3.2% 
  Vegetable & Truck Crops  $3,185 1.1% 
  Other Crops (Wine Grapes)  $13,387 4.5% 
 Sub total  $254,673 86.0% 
All Livestock
  Dairy Products  $20,482 6.9% 
  Poultry  $9,780 3.3% 
  Cattle  $6,267 2.1% 
  Other Animal Products  $4,903 1.7% 
 Sub total  $41,432 14.0% 
All Crops and Livestock $296,105 

Source: Oregon Agricultural Information Network.

The report also recognizes great opportunities in the agri-tourism sectors. Key findings from the 
report include:

For 150 years and longer, Yamhill County has benefitted from its strong 
agricultural base. Even now, the agriculture sector produces $300 million in 
annual sales (not including food processing and wine). The great strength of 
Yamhill County agriculture is its diversity. Local agricultural production remains 
strong in many profitable sub-sectors, with fast growing horticulture accounting 
for nearly half of total sales. The future for Yamhill County agriculture looks 
bright. 

Alongside horticulture and traditional crops, the Yamhill County wine industry 
has emerged over the past 30 years to become headline news nationally and 
internationally. Yamhill’s name – like Napa, Sonoma, Bordeaux and Burgundy – 
has become synonymous with its wine. With the wine sector continuing to flourish, 
new wineries opening each year, more acres planted with grapes, this trend will 
also be sustained in Yamhill County.  

Coupled with the area’s scenic beauty (thanks in part to agriculture!), the 
wineries assure that Yamhill County will continue to host many visitors. Estimates 
already place that number at 1.5 million per year who visit local wineries. Half of 
those visitors come from the Portland area, and the other half are from the 
western states and all over the U.S. and world. 

. . . 

Appendix A

Page 252



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  16 

Yamhill County – with its solid agricultural base, wine destination status, 
proximity to the metro area, and stunning beauty – also appears to be on the 
verge of something great. With the opening of the Allison resort in Newberg, 
along with other new attractions, there’s an opportunity just now to pick 
priorities and adopt strategies that move the community forward.29

The plan identifies a number of key ingredients to secure the future for Yamhill County’s 
agriculture and tourism sectors: 

Shared vision for Yamhill County’s future. Yamhill County communities and 
citizens need to reach agreement on values and priorities for the future. Tourism 
is here to stay – now is the critical time to plan, safeguarding quality of life for 
local residents and maximizing the potential for community benefits.  

More lodging facilities. To capture the economic benefits of the estimated 1.5 
million annual visitors to wine country, Yamhill County must have more high 
amenity overnight accommodations.  

More attractions. Wineries and hotels alone aren’t enough to hold every visitor’s 
attention and assure repeat visits. Wine tourism is seasonal and cyclical, and 
other destinations and attractions will be needed to complement Yamhill County 
wine country and fill out the tourism calendar: arts and culture, entertainment, 
historic sites, parks and trails, golf, outdoor adventures, shopping.  

Rezoning to accommodate prototype development projects. Analysis has revealed 
the types of representative projects needed to support agriculture and tourism 
lack adequate sites. Rezoning enables communities to place these projects where 
they “fit” and provide benefits to the community.  

Site assembly. Preparing land for development, from initial site selection through 
planning and marketing, is site assembly. To assure job growth and allow for new 
investment, communities will need to be proactive in identifying an adequate 
supply of properly sized, suitably zoned development sites and be active 
participants in the development process. 

County-wide infrastructure strategy. The most pressing problem for every 
community is infrastructure. Regional cooperation in Yamhill County to jointly 
plan for the future and secure adequate drinking water supplies can be a model 
for cost saving inter-agency arrangements for other services. Moving ahead with 
a reprisal solution for drinking water is critical for many Yamhill County 
communities.  

29 Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and Community Development Plan: Summary Report Prepared for:
Yamhill County, Oregon, Barney & Worth, Inc., in association with Globalwise, Inc., E.D. Hovee & Company, 
LLC, and Spencer & Kupper, page 41.

Appendix A

Page 253



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  17 

Coordinate opportunity sites / services. The shortage of suitable development sites 
and scarcity of funds require strategic thinking. Which key sites and development 
opportunities must have adequate services available?30

Regional Industrial Land Availability 

In January 2009, Metro published its Urban Growth Report, 2009-2030.  That study made a 
number of findings. 

� The Metro area anticipates captures 73% to 75% of the Portland-Vancouver MSA’s 
employment growth.  The lowest capture rates were in manufacturing (52% to 62%), 
retail (62% to 63%), and accommodation and food service (62% to 63%). 

� As for availability of land, the report states, 
The current employment demand forecast and the analysis of employment 
capacity within the UGB do not indicate a need to add land to the boundary for 
industrial or non-industrial purposes at the regional level to maintain sufficient 
capacity to support the region’s forecasted employment at the low end of the 
demand range. However, the analysis does show a need for additional capacity 
through investments, policy changes, or expansions to support the high end of the 
demand range for non-industrial employment. Further analysis of preferences for 
large lots and the current inventory results in a small potential gap in the land 
needed to support current preferences for large lot formats for single and multi-
tenant users.  

� The study also concluded that one-quarter of the metro industrial land supply was only 
“Fair” or “Poor” considering development readiness and development constraints. 

The report did not inventory industrial land outside Metro but within the MSA.  The report’s 
findings suggest significant opportunities for industrial and employment growth outside Metro, 
including those targeted by Newberg. 

In 2011, Metro added a 330-acre area north of Hillsboro for the purposes of attracting future 
large-site industrial employers. 

Business Oregon, along with the Port of Portland, Metro, NAIOP, and the Portland Business 
Alliance presented their Regional Industrial Lands Inventory Findings in November 2011. 
Those findings considered the quantity and quality of available industrial lands in the region, and 
the demand for that land.  The report concluded: 

� 25% of Business Oregon leads were seeking sites of over 25 acres.
� There was consistent interest in 50+ and 100+ acre sites, even during the current 

economic downturn. 
� Diversity of site sizes is critical to traded sector industries and competitiveness.
� Aggregate large lot, industrial land supply within the Metro region is constrained on a 

number of fronts  
� The region had few Tier 1 market ready sites and choices for traded-sector opportunities. 

30 Barney & Worth, Inc., page 43.

Appendix A

Page 254



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  18 

The report’s findings suggest there should be additional economic opportunities for industrial 
users, particularly large lot industrial users, outside the metro area, such as in Newberg.

Newberg Population Profile   

Historic and Future Growth Trends
Newberg has grown steadily through the last few decades. Table 12- 2 shows the population 
growth over time since 1960.   

Table 12- 2: Newberg Census Populations
Year Population
1960 4,204 
1970 6,507 
1980 10,394 
1990 13,086 
2000 18,064 
2010 22,068 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau

Portland State University estimated Newberg’s July 1, 2011 population to be 22,230.  Newberg’s 
UGB population in 2011 is estimated to be 22,794.31

Between 1990 and 2010, Newberg grew at an average annual growth rate of 2.65%.  Between 
2000 and 2010, Newberg grew 18%.  In comparison, Newberg’s growth rate was greater than the 
Portland Metropolitan area’s at 13%, the state of Oregon at 11%, and Yamhill County’s at 
14%.32  It should be noted that Yamhill County, where Newberg is located, is part of the 
Portland Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA).

Newberg adopted population forecasts for the Newberg urban area in 2005.  Following receipt of 
the 2010 Census information, Yamhill County has announced a desire to create a population 
study for the county and the urban areas within the county.  At this time, there is no definite 
timeline for completion of this study.  In the meantime, for purposes of the current project 
Newberg will use the “safe harbor” population forecast method allowed under OAR 660-024-
0030 (4)(b). It is generally recognized that this method yields a conservative population forecast 
suitable for an amendment of an urban growth boundary in interim periods before a county 
adopts a coordinated forecast for all urban areas within the county.   This method uses the most 
recent long range population forecast for the county from the Oregon Office of Economic 
Analysis to project future county population.   It assumes that the urban area’s share of the future 
county population remains the same as the current share.  The resulting forecast is shown in
Table 12- 3 below.

31 Newberg Planning Division, 2011, using the revised July 1, 2011 PSU population estimate for the city, and adding 
the 2010 Census data at the block level for land between the UGB and city limits.
32 U.S. Census Bureau

Appendix A

Page 255



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  19 

Table 12- 3: Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast Using the OAR 660-024-
0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor

Population 
Estimate

Population 
Forecast

2011 2032
Yamhill County 99,850 146,167
Newberg UGB 22,794 33,367
Newberg UGB % of 
County 22.8% 22.8%

Sources:  The Yamhill County 2011 estimate is from Portland State University Population Research 
Center (2011).  The Newberg UGB 2011 estimate was derived using the revised July 1, 2011 PSU 
population estimate for the city, and adding the 2010 Census data at the block level for land between the 
UGB and city limits The Yamhill County 2032 population forecast is from the Oregon Office of 
Economic Analysis (2003).  The 2032 county population forecast was interpolated using OEA’s 
forecasted 2030-2035 growth rate.

It is expected that this number will be revised in future planning efforts.

Age Characteristics
Table 12- 4 below compares Newberg’s population by age categories with the populations of 
Yamhill County, the Portland Metropolitan Statistical Area (PMSA), and the state of Oregon.  
The table also compares the median age for each geographical area.  

Appendix A

Page 256



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  20 

Table 12- 4: Comparative Age Characteristics

Age Categories Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon
Under 5 years 7.40% 6.80% 6.80% 6.40%
5 to 9 years 6.10% 7.00% 6.60% 6.30%
10 to 14 years 5.80% 6.90% 6.50% 6.30%
15 to 19 years 8.40% 7.70% 6.40% 6.70%
20 to 24 years 9.00% 6.80% 6.10% 6.80%
25 to 29 years 9.40% 7.00% 8.00% 7.10%
30 to 34 years 8.20% 6.40% 7.70% 6.60%
35 to 39 years 6.90% 6.90% 7.50% 6.80%
40 to 44 years 6.00% 6.20% 7.30% 6.60%
45 to 49 years 7.30% 7.20% 7.50% 7.20%
50 to 54 years 4.60% 7.20% 7.30% 7.40%
55 to 59 years 6.20% 6.40% 6.50% 6.90%
60 to 64 years 4.20% 4.90% 5.00% 5.70%
65 to 69 years 3.10% 3.40% 3.20% 4.00%
70 to 74 years 1.90% 2.70% 2.40% 2.90%
75 to 79 years 1.20% 2.30% 1.80% 2.40%
80 to 84 years 1.30% 1.80% 1.60% 2.00%
85 years and over 2.90% 2.20% 1.60% 2.00%

Median Age (years) 32.9 35.9 36.2 37.9

Source:  2007-2009 American Community Survey 

The data shows that Newberg’s population is younger that the comparative populations, 
especially in the 20 to 34 year old categories.  This is likely due to the presence of students 
attending George Fox University.  In general, our population over 45 years of age is somewhat 
lower than the comparative populations. 

Educational Attainment and Income
Table 12- 5 below compares the educational attainment of the Newberg population over 25 years 
of age compared with Yamhill County, the PMSA, and the state of Oregon.  Newberg has a 
lower number of high school graduates than Yamhill County, the PMSA, or Oregon.  Newberg 
also has fewer residents with a Bachelor’s degree or higher when compared to the PMSA and the 
state.  This may indicate that, although Newberg has a strong workforce in many areas, it does 
not have as many of the highly skilled professional jobs available that would require a 
Bachelor’s degree.

Appendix A

Page 257



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  21 

Table 12- 5:  Comparative Educational Attainment
Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon

Less than 9th grade 4.59% 5.36% 3.47% 3.71%
9th to 12th grade, no 
diploma

4.36% 6.26% 5.47% 6.17%

High school graduate, 
GED, or alternative

19.34% 24.42% 20.35% 22.45%

Some college, no 
degree

23.04% 23.22% 22.84% 23.06%

Associate's degree 7.94% 6.71% 6.95% 7.14%
Bachelor's degree 15.50% 12.90% 19.22% 16.09%
Graduate or 
professional degree

7.83% 7.43% 10.54% 9.04%

Percent High School 
Graduate or Higher

73.64% 74.69% 79.90% 77.79%

Percent Bachelor's 
Degree or Higher

23.33% 20.33% 29.77% 25.13%

Source: 2007-2009 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates

Table 12- 6 below compares the household income levels of the Newberg population over 25 
years of age compared with the state of Oregon, Yamhill County and the PMSA.  Newberg has a 
higher percentage of households in the $20,000 - $25,000, $35,000 - $40,000, and $45,000 - 
$50,000 ranges.  These are likely due to the number of Newberg workers with jobs in the 
manufacturing, retail, and educational services sectors.  Newberg also has a higher percentage of 
households in the $60,000 - $100,000 range.  This may be due to local workers with 
management level jobs, and may also be attributable to higher wages earned by workers living in 
Newberg and working in other cities.  As seen in Figure 12- 2 on page 24, Newberg has a high 
percentage of workers commuting out of Newberg to jobs in other cities.   

Appendix A

Page 258



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  22 

Table 12- 6: Comparative Household Income
Household Income* Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon
Less than $10,000 5.96% 5.14% 5.73% 7.20%
$10,000 to $14,999 5.81% 5.80% 4.54% 5.63%
$15,000 to $19,999 5.95% 6.21% 4.69% 5.72%
$20,000 to $24,999 5.55% 4.48% 4.72% 5.78%
$25,000 to $29,999 4.14% 5.30% 4.86% 5.61%
$30,000 to $34,999 3.46% 4.52% 4.98% 5.64%
$35,000 to $39,999 6.16% 5.94% 4.87% 5.40%
$40,000 to $44,999 4.42% 5.14% 4.91% 5.08%
$45,000 to $49,999 6.94% 5.42% 4.53% 4.55%
$50,000 to $59,999 6.86% 8.67% 8.92% 8.95%
$60,000 to $74,999 15.70% 12.73% 11.40% 10.89%
$75,000 to $99,999 15.30% 14.03% 13.57% 12.26%
$100,000 to $124,999 8.25% 7.30% 8.70% 7.17%
$125,000 to $149,999 2.61% 3.79% 5.16% 3.93%
$150,000 to $199,999 2.90% 3.28% 4.50% 3.27%
$200,000 or more 0.00% 2.25% 3.93% 2.92%
*In 2009 Inflation-Adjusted Dollars
Source: 2007-2009 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates

Table 12- 7compares the median household income for Newberg, Yamhill County, the PMSA, 
and the state of Oregon.  Figure 12- 1 graphically shows that Newberg’s median household 
income is higher than that of Yamhill County and the state, and slightly lower than that for the 
PMSA.

Table 12- 7: Comparative Median Household Income
Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon

Median 
Household 

Income
$52,948 $52,206 $56,689 $49,325

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2009 American Community Survey

Appendix A

Page 259



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  23 

Figure 12- 1: Comparative Median Household Income

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007-2009 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates

Comparing the previous education and income tables reveals a very interesting profile of the 
Newberg community.  The Newberg population has a smaller percentage of 4-year college and 
graduate degrees than the state or the PMSA; however, Newberg is also home to George Fox 
University.  This indicates that George Fox University graduates are not remaining in Newberg, 
whether by choice or by other factors such as limited available job opportunities.  Newberg’s 
median household income is slightly higher than that for Yamhill County, but lower than that for 
the PMSA.  As shown in Figure 12- 3 on page 26, Newberg has a high percentage of workers in 
educational services and manufacturing jobs, both historically lower-paying professions (with 
the exception of highly skilled manufacturing jobs).   

Commuting Patterns
The 2007-2009 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates indicate that approximately 63%
of workers over age 16 that live in Newberg travel outside of Newberg for work.  The data 
indicates that the mean travel time for a worker leaving Newberg for work is approximately 25 
minutes.  Given Newberg’s relatively close proximity to the Portland metropolitan area, it is 
reasonable to assume that many of the workers leaving Newberg for work are going to one of the 
nearby Portland suburbs (which are located in Washington, Multnomah and Clackamas 
Counties).  Figure 12- 2 below shows this commuting pattern.

$44,000 

$46,000 

$48,000 

$50,000 

$52,000 

$54,000 

$56,000 

$58,000 

Newberg Yamhill County PMSA Oregon 

Median Household Income 

Appendix A

Page 260



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  24 

Figure 12- 2: Commuting Patterns for Workers

Source: 2007-2009 American Community Survey 3-Year Estimates

Approximately 36% of all workers that live in Yamhill County commute to the nearby Portland 
metropolitan area counties (Washington, Multnomah and Clackamas Counties); a statistic that is 
similar to the number of Newberg workers commuting out to these counties.  The Newberg 
number is likely higher due to its proximity to these neighboring counties relative to the rest of 
the Yamhill County population.   

Reasons for these commuting patterns are likely to be manifold, and may include: 
� Lower housing costs in Newberg compared to the Portland area. 
� More employment opportunities in the Portland area. 
� Desire to live in a community like Newberg with a high quality of life and sense of 

community, rather than a “same as everywhere else” type of Portland area suburb.  

Newberg would like to provide more local employment opportunities, thus reducing travel time 
and distance for existing and future residents.  In short, Newberg would like to reverse trends 
towards “bedroom community” status by providing a greater variety of local employment 
opportunities.  To achieve this objective, Newberg must provide industrial sites with 
characteristics that capitalize on Newberg’s comparative economic advantages.

Newberg Employment Characteristics 

Historic Economy
Settlement of our region by people of European ancestry began a mostly agricultural economy 
for the area.  As the region developed, Newberg slowly became the commercial center for the 
eastern end of Yamhill County and it remains so to this day.  Evidence of this development is 
expressed through Newberg’s Central Business District, which consists of many early twentieth 
century buildings constructed in a high-density pattern.   

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 

Yamhill County 

Newberg 

Commuting Patterns for Workers  

Stay for Work 

Commute Out for Work 

Appendix A

Page 261



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  25 

The advent of the car as a primary mode of transportation for people brought about commercial 
development pattern of a lower density.  Most of this type of development is situated along 
Highway 99W in the eastern section of the city. 

Employment growth in Newberg has been strong and steady over the past several decades. 
Table 12- 8 shows Newberg employment growth from 1978 to 2010. 

Table 12- 8:  Newberg Employment 1978-2010 
Year Employment AAGR
1978 3,250 
1992 4,645 2.6% 
2010 8,053 3.1% 

Sources:  Newberg Inventory of Natural and Cultural Resources, 1978, Newberg Transportation System 
Plan 1994, Oregon Employment Department 2011

Current Economy
Newberg has a diverse economic base.  This diversity, along with the types of businesses, has 
provided Newberg with a reasonably stable economy.  Figure 12- 3 shows how Newberg 
compares with Yamhill County, the PMSA and the state for percentage of workers by industry.  
As the chart shows, Newberg has a high percentage of workers in construction, manufacturing, 
retail trade, and educational services. 

Appendix A

Page 262



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  26 

Figure 12- 3: Employed Workers over 16 by Industry

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2005-2009 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Table 12- 9 shows the estimated Newberg employment by industry in 2010. 
Table 12- 9: Estimated Newberg Employment by Industry 2010

Industry City Urban Area
Construction 197  387  
Manufacturing  1,763   2,164  
Wholesale Trade 81  115  
Retail Trade 830  837  
Transportation, Warehousing & Utilities 79  119  
Information 45  51  
Financial Activities 245  253  
Professional & Business Services 310  370  
Education & Health Services  2,170  2,193 
Leisure & Hospitality  1,014   1,033  
Other Services 381  439  
Government 938  958  
Total 8,053 8,919

0.00% 

5.00% 

10.00% 

15.00% 

20.00% 

25.00% 

Employed Workers over 16 by Industry 

Newberg 

Yamhill County 

PMSA 

Oregon 

Appendix A

Page 263



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  27 

Source:  Oregon Employment Department, Newberg Planning Division33

The following is a list of the top employers located within the urban growth boundary of 
Newberg in 2010.  
Table 12- 10: Newberg Top Employers 2010

Employer Average 
Employment

Product 
Description Industry Cluster

A-dec 952 Dental equipment Manufacturing 
Newberg Public 
Schools 566 K-12 Education Education 

Providence Newberg 
Medical Center 545 Health Care Health Care 

George Fox 
University 412 Higher Education Higher Education 

SP Newsprint 
Company 265 Newsprint Manufacturing 

Fred Meyer, Inc. 240 Groceries, retail Retail 
City of Newberg 196 Government Government 

Friendsview 
Retirement Center 175 

Continuing care 
retirement 
community 

Health Care 

The Allison Inn and 
Spa 165 Hotel and spa Wine/Tourism 

Climax Portable 
Machine Tools 131 Portable machine 

tools Manufacturing 

Marus Dental 100 Dental Equiupment Manufacturing 
Hazelden 
Springbrook 80 Alcohol and drug 

treatment Health Care 

Chehalem Youth & 
Family Services 80 Child and family 

services Health Care 

Harris Thermal 
Transfer Products 68 Heat exchanger 

manufacturing Manufacturing 

Dental Components, 
Inc. 60 Dental equipment Manufacturing 

Ushio Oregon, Inc. 56 High intensity lamps Manufacturing 

Safeway 56 Groceries, 
pharmacy Retail 

PPM Technologies 54 Food processing 
machinery Manufacturing 

A.R.E. Manufacturing 35 Dental equipment 
and boat parts Manufacturing 

Source: Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce; Reuters; Manta.com

33 Certain data is confidential at the city level, including management and utilities employment.  This data was 
imputed based on other available information, such as Yamhill County data.

Appendix A

Page 264



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  28 

Newberg has a higher than average manufacturing employment base.  The list of companies in 
the table above shows that many of the community’s businesses are industrial in nature.  
Education (e.g. George Fox University) and health care (e.g. Providence Newberg Medical 
Center) are also big components of Newberg’s economic structure.  With the addition of the 
Allison Inn & Spa, the wine industry is beginning to make a larger impact, along with the
associated tourism industry: bed and breakfasts, restaurants, art shops, wine-tasting rooms.

Retail Conditions
Newberg’s close proximity to the Portland metro area and relatively low retail opportunities 
results in retail dollar “leakage” from the community.  This means that fewer retail dollars stay in 
the community and continue to circulate within the local population.  Support for this assertion 
of retail dollar leakage can be demonstrated through some simple calculations.  By taking the 
total annual retail sales numbers of area, divided by the area’s population, one gets a total annual 
retail spending per capita in that community.  Using this formula, the following is a list of the 
annual retail sales per capita of similarly sized and situated cities in Oregon.  

Table 12- 11: Population and Retail Sales (2007)

Geographic Area  Sales ($1,000) Population 

Annual Retail 
Sales Per 

Capita 

Wilsonville $873,067 18,814 $46,405 
Roseburg $781,574 20,906 $37,385 
Sandy $255,974 8,643 $29,616 
Medford $2,045,693 72,186 $28,339 
Bend $2,087,937 74,563 $28,002 
Grants Pass $862,526 33,171 $26,002 
Klamath Falls $498,773 19,662 $25,367 
Woodburn $441,704 22,044 $20,037 
Redmond $438,042 23,769 $18,429 
McMinnville $518,669 30,899 $16,786 
Pendleton $248,230 16,477 $15,065 
Sherwood $250,150 17,219 $14,528 
Oregon $50,370,919 3,747,455 $13,441 
Newberg $289,314 22,193 $13,036 
United States $3,917,663,456 301,621,157 $12,989 
Ashland $224,419 21,299 $10,537 
Canby $162,723 15,602 $10,430 
Forest Grove $116,579 20,402 $5,714 
Central Point $90,777 16,447 $5,519 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2007 Economic Census

Newberg’s local retail spending is slightly below the state average.  McMinnville’s retail 
spending is higher than Newberg, but it also has more shopping opportunities.  Ashland and 

Appendix A

Page 265



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  29 

Medford’s relationship is much like Newberg’s with the Portland metro area, with many Ashland 
retail dollars likely to be going to Medford businesses.  Other commercial centers around 
Oregon, especially those geared toward retail and tourism such as Wilsonville, Bend, and 
Woodburn, also attract more retail dollars per capita that the state average.

It is acknowledged that this calculation is simplistic.  Many other variables would affect a more 
thorough analysis, such as total income, disposable income, geographic boundaries and 
population dispersion.  However, it is probable that the biggest factor in retail dollar leakage 
remains the fact that small towns with limited shopping opportunities will always lose retail 
dollars to nearby urban centers.   

Outside of Newberg, agriculture is still an important industry to the area’s economy.  The 
wine/tourism industry has an especially large impact upon Newberg.  Many new businesses such 
as restaurants, bed and breakfasts, art galleries, and gift shops, have been established with the
recognition that tourists would be a principal customer.  The Yamhill Valley (consisting of
portions of Yamhill and Polk counties) is the heart of Oregon’s $576 million wine industry, with 
about 200 vineyards and 85 of Oregon’s 200 wineries.34

III. Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential 

 The wine industry in Yamhill County 
has grown exponentially over the last few decades. 

This section, Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential (OAR 660-009-0015-
4), determines the types and amounts of industrial and other employment uses likely to occur in 
the planning area, relating to the results of the Trends Analysis and Inventory, and considers the 
planning area’s economic advantages and disadvantages.  

State Employment Forecast 

In December 2011, the Oregon Employment Department released its forecast for employment 
statewide for the period 2010-2020.  The department forecasts that total state employment will 
grow at an average annual rate of 1.7% during that period.  The forecast is shown in Table 12- 12
below.

34 News-Register

Appendix A

Page 266



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  30 

Table 12- 12:  Statewide Employment Forecast, 2010-2020

Industry 2010 2020 Change
%

Change AAGR
Natural resources and 
mining 50,900 58,900 8,000 16% 1.5% 
Construction 67,600 86,100 18,500 27% 2.4% 
Manufacturing 164,200 189,100 24,900 15% 1.4% 
Trade, transportation, and 
utilities 309,300 359,400 50,100 16% 1.5% 
Information 32,200 36,800 4,600 14% 1.3% 
Financial activities 92,600 104,700 12,100 13% 1.2% 
Professional and business 
services 182,300 231,400 49,100 27% 2.4% 
Educational and health 
services 228,600 296,100 67,500 30% 2.6% 
Leisure and hospitality 162,300 193,900 31,600 19% 1.8% 
Other services 57,200 66,400 9,200 16% 1.5% 
Government 298,900 321,300 22,400 7% 0.7% 
Total payroll employment 1,646,100 1,944,100 298,000 18% 1.7%

Source:  Oregon Employment Department, 2011

Regional Employment Forecast 
In December 2011, the Oregon Employment Department also issued employment forecasts for 
2010-2020 for the regions surrounding Newberg.  The forecasts projects that employment 
growth in the region will exceed the state average.  The Employment Department forecasts that 
employment in the region will increase by 20 percent over the coming decade.  Table 12- 13
below shows the combined employment projections for Region 2 (Multnomah and Washington 
Counties), Region 3 (Marion, Yamhill, and Polk Counties), and Region 15 (Clackamas County).  
The combined projection was used because Newberg is almost centrally located within this six 
county region. 

Appendix A

Page 267



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  31 

Table 12- 13: Combined Nonfarm Employment Projection for Regions 2, 3, and 15, 2010-
2020 (Multnomah, Washington, Marion, Polk, Yamhill, & Clackamas Counties)

Industry 2010 2020 Change
%

Change AAGR
Construction 42,280 55,530 13,250 31% 2.8% 
Manufacturing 105,810 121,260 15,450 15% 1.4% 
Wholesale Trade 51,360 62,140 10,780 21% 1.9% 
Retail Trade 101,160 117,130 15,970 16% 1.5% 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 32,560 39,120 6,560 20% 1.9% 
Information 20,810 24,630 3,820 18% 1.7% 
Financial Activities 61,230 69,950 8,720 14% 1.3% 
Professional & Business 
Services 123,610 158,870 35,260 29% 2.5% 
Education & Health Services 140,380 184,060 43,680 31% 2.7% 
Leisure & Hospitality 92,400 112,380 19,980 22% 2.0% 
Other Services 35,070 40,990 5,920 17% 1.6% 
Government 161,030 174,110 13,080 8% 0.8% 
Total 967,700 1,160,170 192,470 20% 1.8%

Source:  Oregon Employment Department, 2011. 

Newberg Employment Forecast 
Newberg’s employment forecast is based on the historic employment growth rate for Newberg, 
and the Oregon Employment Department’s regional employment forecast.  As noted in Table 12- 
8 on page 25, employment growth in Newberg historically has been strong and steady.  
Employment from 1992-2010 had an average annual growth rate of  3.1%.  As noted Table 12- 
13 above, the Oregon Employment Department projects overall employment in the region to 
grow at an average annual rate of 1.8% from 2010-2020.   

It is reasonable to forecast that the future employment growth rate in Newberg will be close to 
the middle of these two rates.  Newberg’s comparative advantages listed in this report show that 
Newberg’s historically strong employment growth should continue into the future.  The regional
growth projections suggest, however, that at least for the short term Newberg’s employment 
growth will not reach the historic rate of 3.1%.  Long term employment growth should be higher 
than the projected shorter term regional growth rate for a number of reasons, including: 

� Regional growth projections for the period through 2020 consider a slow but steady 
recovery from the recession from the late ‘00s.  It is reasonable to assume that longer 
term growth will shake off the lingering effects of this recession.

� Over 80 percent of jobs are located in cities35

35 Oregon Blue Book, “City Government in Oregon”, 2011.

, so much more job growth can be expected 
within cities than in the rural areas of the region

Appendix A

Page 268



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  32 

� Newberg’s comparative advantages suggest that it is poised to capture more than its 
proportional share of regional employment growth, especially in sectors such as leisure 
and hospitality, manufacturing, education and health services, and construction. 

Newberg forecasts that future employment in the Newberg urban area will grow at an average 
annual rate of 2.5%, which is midway between the historical employment growth rate and the 
regional forecasted growth rate.  The employment projections are consistent with Newberg’s 
economic development goals to bring more family-wage jobs to the area and to avoid becoming 
a bedroom community.  The forecasted employment is shown in Table 12- 14.

Table 12- 14: Newberg Urban Area 2032 Employment Forecast
Year 2010 2032

Employment 8,919 15,355 

Employment by Land Use Type
Newberg’s future employment was allocated by land use type.  Employment was divided into 
four land use types: 

1. Industrial.  This type typically includes uses such as manufacturing, repair and 
maintenance, truck yards, contractor storage, and warehousing.  These typically would 
use land with some type of Industrial comprehensive plan designation. 

2. Office & Services.  This type typically includes uses such as medical offices, business 
offices, beauty salons, hotels, and some auto repair.  These typically would be located in 
Commercial comprehensive plan districts, but also may include Institutional, Residential-
Professional, or similar land in other comprehensive plan districts. 

3. Retail.  This type typically includes uses such as retail stores and restaurants.  These 
typically are located in Commercial comprehensive plan districts.

4. Other.  This type typically includes schools, churches, government water and waste water 
plants, on-site construction, and home occupations.  These may be located in Residential, 
Public/ Quasi-public, or other comprehensive plan districts. 

The projected percentage of employment in each of these land use types is shown in Table 12- 
15 below. 

Appendix A

Page 269



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  33 

Table 12- 15: Projected Distribution of Newberg Employment by Land Use Type

Industry

Percent of 
Employment
in Industry

Land Use Type

TotalIndustrial
Office & 
Services Retail Other

Construction 4.3% 30% 10% 0% 60% 100% 
Manufacturing 24.3% 91% 5% 0% 4% 100% 
Wholesale Trade 1.3% 82% 5% 0% 13% 100% 
Retail Trade 9.4% 0% 4% 95% 1% 100% 
Transportation, 
Warehousing & Utilities 1.3% 82% 18% 0% 0% 100% 
Information 0.6% 40% 50% 0% 10% 100% 
Financial Activities 2.8% 0% 90% 0% 10% 100% 
Professional & 
Business Services 4.1% 14% 82% 0% 4% 100% 
Education & Health 
Services 33.4% 0% 40% 0% 60% 100% 
Leisure & Hospitality 11.6% 0% 40% 55% 5% 100% 
Other Services 4.9% 40% 40% 0% 20% 100% 
Government 1.9% 0% 35% 0% 65% 100% 
Total 100.0% 28.3% 29.2% 15.3% 27.2% 100%

Source:  Newberg Planning Division 2011 

This distribution was developed by the Newberg Planning Division.  The percent of employment 
in each industry was determined using the estimated Newberg employment.  To determine the 
percent of employment in each land use type, Newberg Planning staff used two sources.  First it 
used the 2004 Johnson-Gardner City of Newberg – Demand for Commercial and Industrial Land
report, which determined land uses types by percentage and industry.  Second, Newberg 
Planning staff reviewed Newberg business license data from 2010, and adjusted the percentages 
from the Johnson-Gardner report based on observations from that data. Note the business license 
data does list employment that is exempt from business licensing, such as the School District, but 
it is limited because it does not list employment counts.  Newberg Planning staff was able to 
make some estimates using that data.  The observations from the business license data include: 

1. More construction employment uses office space than the Johnson-Gardner 
estimate.

2. Other services is a broad category including things such as auto repair, equipment 
repair, beauty salons, and religious institutions.  It appears this employment is 
split approximately 40% industrial, 40% office & services, and 20% other.

3. Government employment is largely City of Newberg employment.  Future needs 
for future public works facilities are accounted in Public/Quasi-Public land needs 
projections, so they were included in the “other” category rather than industrial to 
prevent duplication. 

Appendix A

Page 270



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  34 

Also, note that the Johnson-Gardner report in some areas projects employment will use land in 
more than one category.  While this was professional judgment, the table above adjusted the 
counts so employment appears in only one category. 

Newberg’s Comparative Advantages and Disadvantages 

Comparative Advantages
1. Small town quality of life

a. Relatively affordable housing 
b. Attractive rural setting in heart of wine country
c. Attractive historic downtown
d. Full service city separate from Portland metropolitan area with deep sense of 

community and history.  
e. High level of  community engagement 

2. Access to quality education and skills training  
a. George Fox University is very highly regarded.  George Fox is listed among the 

top 100 colleges in the United States in Forbes’ 2009-10 ranking of "America’s 
best colleges."  U.S. News and World Report named the University on its list of 
"Best National Universities," and was the only Christian college in the Pacific 
Northwest to make this list.  The Report also cited an academic reputation survey 
of high school counselors that ranked George Fox University among the top 100 
national universities.  Moreover, it reported that more Portland-area valedictorians 
and straight-A seniors enroll at George Fox University than at any other private 
college in Oregon. The Princeton Review lists George Fox as a “Best in the 
West” selection.

b. Portland Community College recently passed a bond measure funded construction 
of a branch campus in Newberg.  The College began to offer classes in the 
community in the fall of 2010.  The College offers a wide range of academic and 
technical skills training that serve the needs of local citizens and businesses alike.

c. The Newberg School District has a higher percentage of Newberg students that 
meet or exceed state standards in reading, mathematics, writing and science than 
state averages.  Average student SAT scores are 1567 compared to Oregon 
average of 1550 and national average of 1511. 

3. Established and growing industry clusters
a. The percentage of employment in the manufacturing sector in Newberg is higher 

than state average.  Average wage is high in this sector.
b. Dental equipment manufacturing cluster is very strong, including a world leader 

in this industry. 
c. The new $68.5 million Providence regional medical center has created hundreds 

of highly-skilled, well-paying job and solidified health care as one of Newberg’s 
targeted industries.  The hospital has also spurred development of retirement and 
health care facilities for seniors.

Appendix A

Page 271



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  35 

d. The wine/tourism industry in Yamhill County is world-renowned.  Given 
Newberg’s strategic location as the eastern gateway to the area’s wine country 
from the Portland metropolitan region, this industry is expected to experience 
continued strong growth. Total direct spending for tourism in Yamhill County has 
gone from $29.1 million in 1991 to $60.7 million in 2003.36 Businesses such as 
restaurants, bed and breakfasts, wine shops, and art galleries are benefiting from 
this rising industry and are actively pursuing these customers.  In particular, 
Newberg’s historic downtown has experience significant revitalization in recent 
years, much of it due to the increasing impacts of this industry.  In 2009, the 
Allison, a large luxury inn and spa targeting wine tourists, was opened.  This 
development was a significant investment in this local industry and a very 
demonstrative statement in its future.

4. Strong local support for business and employment opportunities 
a. Newberg commits staff resources to retain existing business and recruit new 

businesses . 
b. Newberg is commitment to planning “shovel ready” industrial sites. 

i.  Sportsman Airpark Master Plan preserves the functional aspects of this airport.  
It also reserves developable industrial land for businesses that would benefit 
from having close access to airport services.

ii.  South Industrial Area Master Plan provides for the development of new 
industrial sites of various sizes that have good transportation access, especially to 
Interstate 5. 

c. The Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce has high membership and very 
active in supporting members, business, and industry. 

d. Coordination with County ensures that land outside city limits is reserved for 
intended employment uses and not converted to residential or commercial uses

5. Proximity to Portland metropolitan region
a. Newberg has access to large market area, including the Portland-Vancouver area. 

This also provides access to other regions, including the Seattle, the Bay area and 
even Asian markets.

b. Newberg has access to major state highways: Highway 99W and 219, and as little 
as 15 minute access to I-5. 

c. Newberg has access to national/international transportation facilities, including air 
and water transportation facilities at the Port of Portland.

d. Newberg has strong relationships with other economic development organizations 
in the region. 

6. Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass 
a. The Newberg-Dundee Bypass is included in Oregon’s Highway Plan.    The 

location EIS has been approved.  Plans are currently underway to construct a first 
segment of the bypass in the mid 2010’s. 

b. The Bypass will provide improved transportation facilities that will benefit 
existing industrial users (airport, Highway 219) in south Newberg by allowing 

36 Dean Runyan Associates

Appendix A

Page 272



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  36 

traffic from those areas to access Highway 99W and SW Portland area markets 
without routing truck traffic through downtown. 

c. The Bypass will provide improved access to Newberg and the Portland region 
from I-5 (via Highway 219). 

d. The Bypass will reduce traffic in downtown Newberg and facilitate the objective 
of having a pedestrian-oriented city and retail and service center. 

e. The Bypass will provide improved transportation facilities near flat serviceable 
land in south Newberg. 

7. Oregon’s Statewide Planning Goals.  Economic development in Oregon is strongly 
influenced by many of these goals.  In particular, Goal 9 requires cities to identify 
comparative advantages, targeted employment opportunities and site requirements and to 
reserve land for long-term industrial uses.  Compared to national and international 
competitors, this required planning work can help ensure that Newberg’s efforts in the 
retention and recruitment of businesses is targeted, efficient and effective.   

Comparative Disadvantages
The global economy provides strong competition for local, regional and national manufacturers. 
Many other countries, such as China and India, are attracting manufacturing facilities through a 
growing, trained workforce with lower, average wages than this region.  Some of Newberg’s 
disadvantages in competing in a regional and national marketplace include: 

1. Transportation and access issues:
a. Congestion on Highway 99W and travel times to Metro area markets slows 

shipments of goods and material, employees, and customers.  
b. Truck traffic on Highway 99W prevents Newberg’s historic downtown from 

achieving its full potential by creating an environment that is less-than pedestrian 
friendly.   

c. Although Newberg has easy access to I-5 via Highway 219 and McKay Road, the 
Donald/Aurora Interchange at I-5 has access and capacity issues that will likely 
require a reconfiguration or some other interchange redesign to handle increased 
traffic capacity from future development in the region.   

d. The Newberg-Dundee Bypass is a significant future advantage to Newberg.  
However, ODOT may want to limit development near the Bypass interchange 
with Highway 219 in the future to ensure that adequate volume and capacity 
standards are met.  Development limitations may require trip caps or a restriction 
on certain high-traffic generating uses.

2. In 2012, Newberg lacks suitable industrial sites to meet needs of targeted employment 
opportunities: 

a. Many existing industrially zoned parcels are constrained by size, topography, or 
height restrictions.

b. Some formerly viable sites have been lost due to needs for Bypass right-of-way 
acquisition. 

c. Some existing sites are being reserved for future expansion of adjoining industrial 
users.

Appendix A

Page 273



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  37 

d. Cost of infrastructure to serve sites can be prohibitive.
e. Newberg lacks master planned industrial and business parks that allow for 

immediate development when industrial firms consider location in Newberg area 

3. Highly parcelized land outside the UGB limits alternatives for meeting identified site 
requirements.  Prior to the full implementation of Goal 3 and 4 measures to protect 
agricultural land outside of the Newberg UGB, considerable rural residential 
development was permitted outside the Newberg city limits.  As such, the small parcel 
sizes and rural homes and businesses outside of the Newberg UGB limit the availability 
of suitable employment sites in rural residential exception areas.  

4. Newberg’s commercial sector has been under considerable stress as retail paradigms have 
changed over the last few decades.  Regional malls and the more recent development of 
“big-box” stores are strong competitors to Newberg businesses.  While the volume sales 
model of these types of stores bring lower costs to consumers for goods, this pattern has 
had a negative impact on the relatively smaller retailers of the local economy.  In 
addition, the ease of shopping through internet sales is being utilized by growing number 
of customers.  Many locally-owned businesses find it difficult to compete under this new 
paradigm, a situation that has forced many of them to go out of business.   

5. In addition, Newberg’s close proximity to the Portland metro area and relatively low 
retail opportunities results in retail dollar “leakage” from the community.  This means 
that fewer retail dollars stay in the community and continue to circulate within the local 
population.   

6. Despite major investments in the last few years, SP Newsprint is experiencing financial 
pressures due to changing market conditions. The financial pressures on SP Newsprint 
are mostly on the macroeconomic scale, significantly reducing Newberg’s ability to 
positively impact this situation.  

7. Oregon’s Statewide Planning Goals.  Economic development in Oregon is strongly 
influenced by many of these goals.  Balancing of these goals often creates a planning 
process for local economic development that is long, expensive, and uncertain: a process 
that is frequently incompatible with needs of an ever-increasingly fast-paced business 
world.  It can prevent including suitable industrial and employment sites when needed. 

Special Opportunities 
Beyond the regional economic markets, Newberg has several special opportunities to capitalize 
on its unique niche geographically and in the market place.  These are discussed below.

Dental Equipment Cluster  
Newberg is the home of A-dec, one of the largest dental equipment manufacturers in the world.  
This also has spurred other dental equipment companies, such as DCI International and 
Beaverstate Dental, and several other industries that supply machined parts, electrical supplies, 
or other equipment. The dental industry is an expanding market, especially in Asian markets 

Appendix A

Page 274



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  38 

where dental care is increasing.  There are over 30 billion teeth in China: if Newberg suppliers 
can capitalize on even a small part of this market, they could expand substantially. 

Alternative Energies
As concerns of peak oil, global warming, and carbon emissions rise, so do opportunities for the 
alternative energy industry.  Several Newberg firms already have begun to capitalize on this 
industry.  Harris Thermal constructs heat exchange equipment that is used in the manufacture of 
biofuels.  Climax Portable Machine Tools constructs equipment that is used in the maintenance 
of wind power turbines.  Local companies such as Voltair are manufacturing wind turbines for 
private sale.  The Newberg area has an expanding wind energy cluster of suppliers, 
manufacturers, and technicians.  Newberg has excellent opportunities to capitalize on this 
market.

South Industrial Area
As noted in the discussion of regional industrial land availability on page 17, the region has a 
significant lack of suitable industrial sites.  In particular, the region lacks large, flat industrial 
sites with good transportation access and available utilities.  In addition, the state’s Industrial 
Lands Advisory Committee found,  

Land located at existing freeway interchanges, such as the Stafford District at I–
205 and Stafford Road, Langdon Farms at the I–5 and Charbonneau exit, and the 
I–5 Donald/Aurora exit are logical market driven locations for large scale 
industrial and employment intensive development. 37

However, they also found: 

Donald-Aurora I–5 Interchange—The Donald-Aurora interchange on I–5 is 
approximately 20 miles south of Portland. Although this is a prime location for 
industrial development when viewed from a market perspective, the land 
surrounding the interchange is zoned Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) and is in not 
within any jurisdiction’s UGB. Given current land use laws these are substantial 
obstacles to development. 38

Newberg’s South Industrial area is along Wynooski Road and Highway 219.  Newberg recently 
prepared the South Industrial Area Master Plan, which envisions utilizing the area along 
Highway 219 south of Wynooski Road by including several large, flat parcels for future 
industrial use. The South Industrial Area is uniquely posed to accommodate industrial users in 
the region: 

� It contains large, level sites.  The area can accommodate employers needing sites of 10 
acres up to 100 acres.

� The area is adjacent to Newberg’s existing industrial areas, and is a logical extension of 

37 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003
38 Industrial Lands Advisory Committee Report, December 15, 2003

Appendix A

Page 275



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  39 

that area.
� It has excellent access.  The area is a less than 15 minute drive to I-5 without traveling 

through any intervening urban areas.  The future Newberg-Dundee bypass will travel 
east to the Portland metro area through no traffic lights until the Portland UGB.  It will 
allow travel west to the Oregon Coast through only one stop light, and to the Mid-
Willamette Valley with few stops.

� Newberg has the utility capacity to serve the area with relatively short extensions.
� The area has excellent riparian buffers consisting of two stream corridors between the 

proposed future industrial area and conflicting uses.  No travel would be required 
through residential or commercial areas.

Were the area included in the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary, it certainly would attract the 
targeted industries Newberg is seeking.

Aviation Related Industry
Newberg is home to the Sportsman Airpark.  This is a private/public use airport in the Urban 
Growth Boundary.  The Sportsman Airpark Industrial District is situated next to the landing 
strip.  The Sportsman Airpark District has three important advantages over other airport related 
industrial areas:

� Industrial land can be owned by individual users.  In most industrially zoned districts 
near airports, land can only be leased to users, and “through the fence” use of adjacent 
industrial land is not allowed.   

� All adjacent land is within the UGB.
� The airpark is adjacent to the Airpark Residential Zone, which allows business owners 

and entrepreneurs to live in close proximity to their planes. 

With these advantages, the airpark presents excellent opportunities for small to medium 
industrial users.  It can accommodate aircraft related industries, such as manufacture of airplane 
parts or aircraft maintenance.  It can also attract entrepreneurial businesses that need to use a 
plane for business travel, visiting clients, or delivering goods.  A good example of this is a new 
company in town, Voltair, which is constructing a new facility in the Airpark Industrial area.  
Voltair is a manufacturer of wind turbines and their location in the Airpark Industrial area will 
allow for quick access for maintenance crews to fly to eastern Oregon to service turbine 
installations.  

Nursery and other Agricultural Products
As noted in the section Yamhill County Agri-Business on page 14, Yamhill County has 
developed the Yamhill County Agri-Business Economic and Community Development 
Plan.  Of particular note in the plan is the predominance of the nursery and greenhouse 
crop industry in Yamhill County, following by the grass seed and fruit and nut products.  
All of these are present in the Newberg area.  The plan identified needs for processing 
facilities in the County for these and other agricultural products.  The plan includes 
several strategies to promote the agricultural industrial.  Of particular relevance to 
Newberg are the following recommended strategies: 

Appendix A

Page 276



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  40 

Rezoning to accommodate prototype development projects. Analysis has revealed 
the types of representative projects needed to support agriculture and tourism 
lack adequate sites. Rezoning enables communities to place these projects where 
they “fit” and provide benefits to the community.  

Site assembly. Preparing land for development, from initial site selection through 
planning and marketing, is site assembly. To assure job growth and allow for new 
investment, communities will need to be proactive in identifying an adequate 
supply of properly sized, suitably zoned development sites and be active 
participants in the development process. 

County-wide infrastructure strategy. The most pressing problem for every 
community is infrastructure. Regional cooperation in Yamhill County to jointly 
plan for the future and secure adequate drinking water supplies can be a model 
for cost saving inter-agency arrangements for other services. Moving ahead with 
a reprisal solution for drinking water is critical for many Yamhill County 
communities.39

Newberg has the infrastructure capable to support such processing facilities.  The South 
Industrial area provides adequate sized sites that would accommodate small and large 
processing facilities.

Of course converting agricultural land to other uses should not be taken lightly, as that 
land is important to the agricultural industry.  Newberg can assist in this respect by 
maintaining an urban growth boundary and providing adequate land within that boundary 
to meet urban land needs at relatively dense development levels.  Agricultural land only 
should be included in the urban area where there is a demonstrated need. 

Wine/Tourism Industry
The Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce recently branded the area as “the Gateway to 
Oregon Wine Country.”  Vineyards and wine productions is a booming business in the Chehalem 
Valley.  This is attracting a great number of tourists, most with money to spend.  This has 
spurred a number of associated economic opportunities, including: 

� Accommodation and Hospitality services.  Newberg is home to Oregon wine country’s 
premiere facility: The Allison Inn and Spa.  It also is home to several bed and breakfast 
inns and other hotels.   

� Restaurant and wine tasting.  Newberg features several opportunities for fine dining, 
including the Painted Lady and the Jory at the Allison.  Downtown Newberg features 
several wine bars.  There are many opportunities to expand fine and casual dining and 
wine tasting.  

� Arts and Culture.  Newberg’s downtown has a strong and growing arts community.  The 
Chehalem Cultural Center recently opened and allows art creation and exhibits.  This is a 

39 Barney & Worth, Inc., page 43.

Appendix A

Page 277



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  41 

strongly growing sector with a lot of opportunity. 
� Golf and Recreation.  Newberg is home to the Chehalem Glenn Golf Course, one of 

Oregon’s best.  This publicly owned course attracts tourists from around the region.  A 
third nine holes is planned, which will further promote the tourism in the area.  
Additional recreation opportunities, such as for bowling or a family fun center, are 
desired in the community. 

� Riverfront commercial.  Newberg has an adopted Riverfront Master Plan for areas along 
the Willamette River.  This future development area will allow views of the Willamette 
while one shops, dines, or stays.  The riverfront area provides access to Roger’s Landing, 
one of the best and most used accesses to the Willamette River.

Retail
Newberg’s retail objectives, beyond promoting the wine and tourism industries, focus on 
providing opportunities for local residents and businesses to obtain the goods the need without 
travel outside the community.  Newberg does have strong retail areas, but sales of certain retail 
goods are either missing or undersupplied.  In many cases the goods are available regionally, but 
Newberg residents must drive to other areas, such as Washington Square, Wilsonville, 
Sherwood, or McMinnville.  As of 2012, the following retail services are either missing or 
undersupplied in Newberg: office supplies; electronics; clothing and footwear; sewing supplies; 
sporting goods; appliances; whole and natural foods.  Additional retail services in these areas 
would be welcome. 

Appendix A

Page 278



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  42 

IV. Newberg’s Economic Development Strategy 

Capitalizing on Comparative Advantages & Addressing Comparative 
Disadvantages 
Table 12- 16: Strategies to Capitalize on Comparative Advantages

Advantage Strategy / Action
1. Small Town 
Quality of Life

� Continue to provide relatively affordable housing opportunities. 
� Minimize adverse impacts on existing and planned residential neighborhoods from 

conflicting employment opportunities. 
� Continue revitalization efforts of historic downtown. 
� Support organizations that foster “social capital”. 
� Work to improve the pedestrian/bicycle network in Newberg. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p., 1.q., 3.a.)

2. Access to 
Quality 
Education and 
Skills Training

� Continue to support the Newberg School District, George Fox University, Portland 
Community College, and other public and private schools in their efforts to train and 
motivate the kind of workforce required by existing and future employers in Newberg. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.q.)
3.  Strong 
Established 
and Growing 
Industry 
Clusters

� Provide sufficient land near existing industrial areas to allow for expansion. 
� Provide suitable sites with characteristics required by such industries to take 

advantage of industrial clusters in Newberg. 
� Encourage the reuse/redevelopment of properties in zones allowing business. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 2.e., 2.g.)

4. Strong 
Local Support 
for Business 
and
Employment 
Opportunities 

� Continue to plan for future employment opportunities by providing suitable sites for 
industrial (export) and commercial uses. 

� Continue to work collaboratively with the State, Yamhill County, and local businesses 
to fund infrastructure and planning necessary to maintain and attract desired 
employment. 

� Continue to work with and support the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce.
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.m., 1.n., 1.o., 3.b.)

5. Proximity to 
Portland 
Metropolitan 
Region  

� Continue to work with Metropolitan area partners in promoting the economic 
advantages of the region. 

� Provide opportunities for identified regional employment clusters in Newberg. 
� Continue to advocate for improved access to regional markets, via Highways 99W 

and 219 and the Interstate. 
� Continue to maintain rail and air access opportunities. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 1.o., 2.g.)

6. Future 
Newberg-
Dundee 
Bypass

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to build political 
support and ensure funding for the Bypass. 

� Encourage support, funding and construction of the full Bypass project. 
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.)

7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning 
Goals

� Newberg has taken advantage of Oregon’s Economic Development Program (Goal 
9) by identifying comparative advantages (and disadvantages), targeting export-
based employment clusters, identifying and providing for the site requirements 
necessary to maintain and attract such clusters in Newberg, and coordinating with 
Yamhill County and affected state agencies to retain and provide services to suitable 
employment sites.  Newberg will continue to coordinate with these agencies. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.)

Appendix A

Page 279



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  43 

Table 12- 17: Strategies to Address Comparative Disadvantages
Disadvantage Strategy / Action
1. Transportation 
and Access 
Issues

� Continue to work with the Oregon Legislature and State agencies to 
ensure funding for the Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 

� Continue to advocate for Highway 99W improvements to reduce 
congestion and maintain regional connectivity. 

� Continue to work with ODOT for review of all development proposals in 
areas that may impact a state highway facility. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.o.) 
2. Lack of Suitable 
Employment Sites

� Newberg has considered local, regional, state and national economic 
trends and identified industry clusters that the City has a reasonable 
likelihood of attracting to the community. 

� Newberg has also researched and identified the site characteristics 
demanded by firms within these industry clusters.   Newberg is actively 
planning for a future industrial area that will meet both the industrial site 
characteristics and the land needs of the city’s population over the next 
30 years. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.h., 2.g.)
3. Limited Suitable 
Land Supply 
Outside UGB

� After considering the potential for rural residential exception areas to 
meet identified site requirements, the City has selected sites on 
agricultural land that will be reserved for identified employment needs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.e., 2.g.)
4. and 5. Stressed 
Commercial 
Sector and Retail 
Dollar Leakage

� Recruit businesses that can fulfill commercial needs that are currently 
being unmet locally.    

� Support small businesses that are adjusting these new retail realities by 
either focusing on high quality customer service and/or gearing their 
business plans toward niche markets.   

� Encourage local retail businesses to improve their online presence.     
(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.i).

6. Market 
Pressures on SP 
Newsprint

� Newberg will continually look for opportunities to work with SP Newsprint 
to help reduce their operational costs. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d.)
7. Oregon’s 
Statewide 
Planning Goals

� Newberg will continue to pursue Urban Growth Boundary amendments 
and Urban Reserve expansions to provide adequate land for future uses. 

(Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f.)

Regional Focus 
Newberg has recognized the importance of being part of a shared, regional economic vision.  
Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley is a document that was created 
cooperatively between five governmental entities located within the Chehalem Valley.  This 
document was adopted by the Newberg City Council in January 2005.  One section of this 
document, called Economy and Employment, describes the economic future of the area as 
follows: 

A diversified economy provides balanced economic opportunities for the residents 
of the Chehalem Valley. Agriculture and agribusinesses are an important 
component of the local economy. The natural beauty of the area encourages 

Appendix A

Page 280



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  44 

tourism and the wine industry. A carefully targeted retail recapture strategy has
encouraged more local shopping and minimized buying outside of the area. 
Downtown areas are vibrant commercial areas that support the local economy.

Clean industries have been developed using a “campus” design. Plenty of family 
wage jobs are available for citizens of the area. Tourism is a major economic 
force, its strengths based on the premise that the Chehalem Valley is 1) the 
gateway to the wine country; 2) characterized by a clean and comfortable 
environment; and, 3) offers the historical experience of a friendly, small town and 
village America in the earlier period of the 20th century. As a destination 
location for visitors, the community of Dundee now has two small exclusive hotels 
and bed and breakfast inns. The service industry has expanded, with the health 
industry and health research being a major provider of employment 
in this sector of the economy.40

Key strategic steps laid out for the Economy and Employment section of the plan are as follows: 

� Hold a broad community forum on economic development to build consensus.
� Invigorate the Chamber of Commerce Economic Development Committee. 
� Seek financial aid in the form of grants. 
� Develop community college training programs tailored to the labor force needs of 

prospective employers.

The regional economic development paradigm is expected to continue in the foreseeable future.  
Newberg has worked extensively with the Mid-Willamette Valley Council of Governments and 
the Oregon Business Development Department for many years.  With an understanding that 
Newberg’s economic future is likely to be strongly linked with fortunes of the Portland region, 
the City has recently developed relationships with economic development organizations in the 
metropolitan area.  In the summer of 2004, the City of Newberg joined the Association of
Regional Economic Development Partners, Inc. (now the Portland-Vancouver Regional Partners 
Council for Economic Development.).  The Partners is “a public-private partnership that focuses 
on shared economic priorities and works to implement business retention, expansion, and 
recruitment as well as marketing strategies and recommendations for policy development.  The 
members are public and private sector economic development professionals in the region who 
have worked collaboratively for more than 10 years to retain and recruit businesses, and promote 
the metropolitan region as a vital economic center.” 

On January 3, 2005, the Newberg City Council passed Resolution No. 2005-2554, which stated 
the city’s support for the framework of the Portland Regional Business Plan of the Regional 
Economic Development Partners.   

40 Beyond the Vision: A Strategic Plan for the Chehalem Valley

Appendix A

Page 281



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  45 

Locally Targeted Economic Development Industry Clusters (Targeted 
Industries) 
The majority of Newberg’s economic development efforts should continue to be focused upon 
supporting existing local businesses.  In the economic development profession, there is a general 
principle call the “80/20 rule”, which means that 80 percent of an area’s economic development 
efforts should be dedicated towards the retention and expansion of existing local businesses.   In 
addition, it is often said that “Your good businesses are your competitor’s best recruitment 
prospects!”  Therefore, a community should ensure, as much as possible, that their local 
businesses are content and prosperous, or else they may look elsewhere to do business.   In 
summary, it is far easier, effective and efficient to try to maintain and expand your economy 
through one’s local industries than to attract new ones.   

As important as Newberg’s retention efforts are for its economic health, recruiting specific new 
businesses to Newberg such as those listed in the Portland-Vancouver Regional Business Plan 
and the Newberg EOA is a critical aspect of Newberg’s economic development strategy.  Some 
of these businesses can be recruited to strengthen existing clusters within the community.  Others 
are new types of businesses that can be attracted based on combination of three factors: a 
business’ cluster strength in the Portland region; Newberg’s close proximity to the metro area, 
and Newberg’s unique high quality of life compared to other communities in the region. The 
City’s business recruitment efforts should be focused on identified strong, traded-sector clusters.
These types of businesses will bring new wealth to the community and diversify the local 
economy, thereby creating an economic base that is stronger and more stable.  Table 12- 18 on 
page 46lists industries on which Newberg should focus its economic development efforts. 

Appendix A

Page 282



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  46 

Table 12- 18: Newberg Targeted Industries
Business Cluster Targeted business types
Manufacturing and Industry

High Tech 
Manufacturing 

 

Semiconductors/silicon, imaging & display technology 
Nano & micro technology, cyber-security, health/medical 
information technology 
Biotech/bioscience (medical devices, bioinfomatics, 
pharmaceuticals, genomics, anti-virals) 

General 
Manufacturing 

Dental equipment 
Metals, machinery, transportation equipment 
Lumber and wood products (value added) 
Sustainable industries (renewable energy, resource efficiency 
technologies, sustainable building materials, green chemistry) 

Distribution & logistics 

Sports apparel/recreation-related products 
Aviation related Specialty aircraft equipment, aircraft repair, machine shops, 

small entrepreneur business 

Agriculture 
Wineries 
Specialty foods and food processing 
 Nursery and agricultural products (value added) 

Services 
Professional services architecture, engineering, legal and 
financial services, etc. 
Creative services (advertising, public relations, film and video, 
web/internet content and design) 

Health Care

 Providence Medical Center Expansion, medical offices, senior 
services 

Higher Education

 
Portland Community College campus, George Fox University 
expansion, high school vocational training and college 
preparedness, private post-secondary training 

Wine/Tourism

 
Wineries and tasting rooms, restaurants, art studios, theater and 
entertainment, recreation (golf, bowling), conference facilities, 
specialty retail 

Source: Newberg Planning Division

Comprehensive Plan Policies and Recommended Supportive Economic 
Development Actions 
Newberg has developed a vision for the community’s economic future.  The City of Newberg’s 
adopted Comprehensive Plan includes a list of goals and policies that help shape Newberg’s 
future economy (Section H. The Economy).   The following is a list of Newberg’s recommended 
economic development actions and the applicable Comprehensive Plan policies they support.  
All of the Comprehensive Plan policies are from Section H (The Economy) and support the 
larger goal “To develop a diverse and stable economic base.”   

1. Work with the State to “certify” industrial sites to shorten the development time of 

Appendix A

Page 283



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  47 

projects and provide certainty to a business that regulatory and permitting issues will not 
delay the project’s timeline.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f., 2.g. 

2. Identify and implement cost and time saving measures that improve the development 
permitting process.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 2.d. 

3. Develop a financial incentives “toolbox” to recruit new businesses and encourage 
existing business expansions.  The incentives should be applied only after a proposed 
project has been reviewed by a rigorous analysis that demonstrates a clear benefit to the 
City.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.b., 1.g. 

4. Maintain a useful economic development website that is easy to navigate and contains 
substantive content that meets the needs of business.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.a., 1.g. 

5. Work with local, regional and state educational and training resources (private and 
public) to assist with the workforce training needs of businesses and provide 
opportunities for workers to voluntarily upgrade their skills.  The available workforce 
pool in the Newberg region is approximately 223,000.  The regional workforce is 
estimated by using the assumption that a 23 minute mean commute time (2000 Census) 
draws workers from an approximately 15 mile radius from the center of Newberg Oregon 
is recognized for having an educated workforce, one with good basic work skill sets that 
allows them to be relatively easily trained.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.c., 1.f. 

6. Gauge the health of local businesses regularly and identify how the City can help resolve 
issues, when feasible.  Focus should be on businesses of the traded-sector and local 
clusters.  Anticipate local problem areas by keeping abreast of regional, national, and 
international business trends.
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.p. 

7. Develop closer ties to organizations/businesses located within the Portland area with a 
similar interest in regional economic development (e.g. Regional Economic Development 
Partners, future Portland Economic Development District, etc).  However, joining 
METRO will not be considered.  Reevaluate current relationship with Mid-Willamette 
Valley Community Development Partnership.  
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 1.f. 

8. Develop a Downtown Revitalization Master Plan prior to the construction of the 
Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  Identify funding sources necessary to implement the plan. 
Applicable Comprehensive Plan policies: 3.a. 

Appendix A

Page 284



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  48 

V. Industrial and Commercial Land Needs and Supply 
To encourage and accommodate future commercial and industrial growth, Newberg must have 
buildable land readily available with characteristics necessary to be competitive in the regional 
economic development market.  Newberg’s Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future recently 
completed an analysis of the community’s future land use needs.  That analysis is described in 
the Report to Newberg City Council; Recommendations for Newberg’s Future, which was 
accepted by the Newberg City Council on July 21, 2005.  On August 1, 2005, the City Council 
initiated the amendment process for the comprehensive plan changes recommended in the 
Report.  This section includes the Committee’s recommendations for commercial and industrial 
land needs for Newberg’s future.  This also includes updates made since then to reflect 
development since the time of the report. In addition, this section details Newberg’s employment 
projections, industrial and commercial land needs, industrial site suitability characteristics 
necessary to meet the projected land need, and current industrial and commercial buildable land 
supply. 

Industrial Land Need 
A variety of parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations are required to provide 
suitable sites to attract targeted industry clusters.  In 2005, the Report to Newberg City Council; 
Recommendations for Newberg’s Future documented that there was a general lack of suitable 
large (20+ acre) industrial sites with access to a state highway and physical separation or 
transitional buffering from residential neighborhoods.  The report documented an additional need 
for 4-5 large (20+ acre) industrial sites for the period 2005-2025. Industrial land needs for the 
2005-2025 period totaled about 216 acres, with an additional 6 sites needed for the period 2026-
2040.  The assumption was that approximately 50 percent of future industrial employment will 
take place on large parcels. 

Industrial Employment Projections
Table 12- 19 on page 49 projects the future industrial space utilizing employment in Newberg 
through 2040. The table uses the total employment projected in Table 12- 14 on page 32, and the 
distribution of employment shown in Table 12- 15 on page 33.

Appendix A

Page 285



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  49 

Table 12- 19:  Industrial Land Using Employment Forecast Through 203241

Industry
2010 Total 

Emp.

%Industrial 
Space 

Utilizing 2010 2032
Construction 387 30% 116 200 
Manufacturing 2,164 91% 1,969 3,390 
Wholesale Trade 115 82% 94 162 
Retail Trade 837 0% - - 
Transportation, Warehousing & 
Utilities 119 82% 98 168 
Information 51 40% 20 35 
Financial Activities 253 0% - - 
Professional & Business Services 370 14% 52 89 
Education & Health Services 2,978 0% - - 
Leisure & Hospitality 1,033 0% - - 
Other Services 439 40% 176 302 
Government 173 0% - - 
Total 8,919 28.3% 2,525 4,347
Cumulative from 2010 1,822 

Industrial Land Needs by Site Size
Table 12- 20 links projected industrial employment from Table 12- 19 on page 49 with potential 
site size ranges. While examples can be found of large sites with few employees, and small sites 
with many employees, larger employers generally require larger sites. This table is one way to 
address that dynamic while relating projected industrial site needs to adopted employment 
projections.  

The data is based on the assumption that most sites under 10 acres will be located in industrial 
parks, which will require dedication of an average of 15% right-of-way for streets and utilities.  
For sites over 10 acres, the table assumes 5% of the area for streets and utilities. The table also 
includes assumptions that most (55%) of Newberg’s future industrial employment will be located
on sites 10 acres or less, and that one-third of those future new industrial firms 2-10 acres in size, 
and one-half of firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill, redevelopment or 
intensification of existing employment land uses.  The table also assumes that for sites over 10 
acres, one currently unoccupied site (Suntron) will be reoccupied, and that some infill will occur 
within existing larger sites.

Table 12- 20 shows the 2032 need for approximately 26 acres of very small (under 2 acre) sites, 
81 acres of small (2- to 10-acre) sites,42

41 The most recent employment data available for Newberg is 2010 data, and the region employment projections 
released in December 2011 use 2010 as a base year.

 two sites in the 10-30 acre range, and one site in the 30- 
to 50-acre range, for a total industrial site need of 191 gross buildable acres by 2032.  These 

42 Much of this site size need can be most efficiently accommodated by master planned business parks.

Appendix A

Page 286



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  50 

needs for small and medium sites are consistent with recent demand for industrial land in 
Newberg prior to the recession.  From 2005 to 2009, there were 24 acres of industrial land 
developed.  A number of industrial employers expanded or constructed new facilities over that 
time, including Action Equipment, Climax Portable Machine Tools, Harris Thermal, A-dec, and 
Freeman Manufacturing.  
Table 12- 20: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment Through 203243

Emps.
per 

Firm
Percent 
of Emp.

Number 
of New 
Emps.

Number 
of 

Firms
Sites 

Needed

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Ave. 
Site Size 
(Acres)

Ave. 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres)

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed

0-9 15% 273 46 23 <2 1 0.15 26 
23 infill & redevelopment 0 

10 to 74 40% 729 21 14 2 - 10 5 0.75 81 
7 infill & redevelopment 0 

75 + 45% 820 
2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42 
1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42 
1 1 infill & redevelopment 0 

Total 100% 1,822 71 71 191
Source: Winterbrook Planning 2009, Newberg Planning Division 2012 

Table 12- 21 links targeted industry clusters discussed in this EOA with uses identified in the 
2005 Report to Newberg City Council.  These clusters and uses were allocated site size ranges 
based on ECONW data and a meeting with Oregon Business Development Department (OBDD) 
representative Tom Fox on September 10, 2009.  Site size ranges were verified against OBDD 
data relating to real firms seeking sites in Oregon, in the targeted industry clusters.  Industry 
clusters containing firms that could potentially require large sites – 10-30 acres or 30-50 acres in 
size – are identified by the Potential Large Site Category columns. Thirteen industry clusters 
include firms that could potentially require 10-30 acre sites, and nine include firms that could 
potentially require 30-50 acre sites.

OBDD reviewed the site size ranges by targeted industry cluster in Table 12- 21and supports the 
estimated site sizes and ranges as viable and marketable for Newberg’s targeted industries.

43 Note that there were no buildable industrial sites developed from 2010-2012.

Appendix A

Page 287



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  51 

Table 12- 21: Site Size Ranges by Targeted Industrial Cluster and Sector

10 - 30 30 - 50
Electronics, Other 10 - 30 10 - 60 6 - 55 X X
Health, Nano/Micro 
Tech, Cyber Security 5 - 20 6 - 55 X X

Bio-Tech/Bioscience/      
Pharmaceuticals, Health 
Services

5 - 40 2 - 60 X X

Dental Equipment 5 - 40 2 - 55 X X
Fabricated Metals, 
Plastics 10 - 20 10 - 20 3 - 7 X

Transportation 
Equipment 10 - 30 10 1 X

Industrial Machinery 10 - 20 10 - 20 3 - 6 X
Lumber and Wood 
Products (Value Added) 1 - 10 10 243 X X

Sustainable Industries 5 - 25 25 - 200 1 - 7 X X
Distribution and 
Logistics 5 - 60 30 - 60 X X

Sports and Recreational 
Campus 10 - 50 X X

Airport Related 
Industrial

Specialty Aircraft 
Equipment, Aircraft 
Repair, Machine Shops, 
Small Entrepreneur 
Business

1 - 70 70 1 - 3

Winery 3 - 5
Specialty Foods and 
Food Processing 1 - 10 10 - 150 5 X X

Nursery and Ag 
Products (Value Added) 1 - 10 2 - 13 X

Professional Services 1 - 5 1 - 2
Creative Services, 
Printing, Publishing 1 - 10 1 - 2

High Tech 
Manufacturing

General 
Manufacturing

Agriculture

Services

Potential Large 
Site CategoriesIndustry 

Cluster Uses
ECO/WB* 

(Acres)
OBDD** 
(Acres)

Newberg 
Examples 

(Acres)

*ECO/WB:  EcoNorthwest and Winterbrook Planning
**Outside Investment Prospects, OECDD (OBDD), Oct 2008

Table 12- 22 arranges the identified targeted industry clusters and sectors by potential site sizes, 
and associates those sizes with existing Newberg industries. As shown in Table 12- 22, some 
industry clusters and sectors appear in multiple site size categories due to wide potential ranges. 
Of note, Newberg’s existing large industrial sites (A-Dec and SP Newsprint) are over 50 acres in 
size.

Appendix A

Page 288



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  52 

Newberg has an excellent example of a high tech traded-sector manufacturing cluster – three 
large firms in the dental industry. A-Dec, A.R.E. Manufacturing, and Dental Components Inc. 
employ slightly over 1,000 people on 67 acres of industrial land.  It is not unreasonable for 
Newberg to assume similar success with another targeted-industry cluster. As such, 10-30 and 
30-50 acre sites should be included to provide the City with this opportunity. 
Table 12- 22: Targeted Industry Clusters and Sectors by Site Size Ranges and Existing 
Newberg Industrial Firm Examples

Site Size 
Range

Industry Clusters/Uses Newberg Industry 
Examples

<10 Acres � Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
� Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
� Dental Equipment 
� Fabricated Metals, Plastics 
� Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
� Sustainable Industries 
� Distribution and Logistics 
� Airport Related Industrial 
� Winery 
� Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
� Nursery and Ag Products (Value Added) 
� Professional Services 
� Creative Services 

� Climax Portable Machine 
Tools 

� PPM Technologies 
� A.R.E. Manufacturing 
� Dental Components Inc. 
� Ushio Oregon 
� Harris Thermal Transfer 

Products 
� Airpark Business 

Complex 

10 – 30 Acres � Electronics 
� Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
� Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
� Dental Equipment 
� Fabricated Metals, Plastics 
� Transportation Equipment 
� Industrial Machinery 
� Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
� Sustainable Industries 
� Distribution and Logistics 
� Sports and Recreational Equipment Campus 
� Specialty Foods and Food Processing 
� Nursery and Ag Products 

� Suntron Corporation44

>30 Acres 

 

� Electronics 
� Health, Nano/Micro Tech, Cyber Security 
� Bio-Tech/Bioscience/Pharmaceuticals 
� Dental Equipment 
� Lumber and Wood Products (Value Added) 
� Sustainable Industries 
� Distribution and Logistics 
� Sports and Recreational Equipment Campus 
� Specialty Foods and Food Processing 

� SP Newsprint Company 
� A-dec, Inc. 

44 Suntron closed operation in Newberg in 2010.

Appendix A

Page 289



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  53 

Industrial Site Suitability Requirements  
Cities are required by OAR 660 Division 9 to identify required site types to accommodate 
expected employment growth based on the site characteristics typical of expected uses.  Site 
characteristics are attributes of a site such as shape, topography, visibility, infrastructure, 
proximity to facilities and transportation infrastructure.  Many common elements of industrial 
site requirements can be found in the many Economic Opportunities Analysis reports from 
around the state that we reviewed.  ECONorthwest completed many of the EOAs, and concludes 
in these plans that “previous research conducted by ECO has found that while there are always 
specific criteria for individual firms, many firms share common site criteria.  In general, all firms 
need sites that are relatively flat, free of natural or regulatory constraints, with minimal 
residential conflicts, and located with good access to transportation, public facilities and 
services.”45

State Rules Governing Site Suitability Characteristics

This section details Newberg’s specific industrial site suitability characteristics and 
why each is important.   

There are many state rules and goals that govern economic development planning for cities, and 
those rules specify certain requirements and guidelines for site suitability characteristics.  The 
applicable rules and guidelines from OAR 660 Division 9 (Economic Development) and 
Statewide Planning Goal 14 (Urbanization) are listed below.

OAR 660-009-0005 Definitions
(2) Development Constraints” means factors that temporarily or permanently limit or prevent 
the use of land for economic development. Development constraints include, but are not limited 
to, wetlands, environmentally sensitive areas such as habitat, environmental contamination, 
slope, topography, cultural and archaeological resources, infrastructure deficiencies, parcel 
fragmentation, or natural hazard areas.  

(3) “Industrial Use” means employment activities generating income from the production, 
handling or distribution of goods. Industrial uses include, but are not limited to: manufacturing; 
assembly; fabrication; processing; storage; logistics; warehousing; importation; distribution 
and transshipment; and research and development. Industrial uses may have unique land, 
infrastructure, energy, and transportation requirements. Industrial uses may have external 
impacts on surrounding uses and may cluster in traditional or new industrial areas where they 
are segregated from other non-industrial activities.  

(11) "Site Characteristics" means the attributes of a site necessary for a particular industrial or 
other employment use to operate. Site characteristics include, but are not limited to, a minimum 
acreage or site configuration including shape and topography, visibility, specific types or levels 
of public facilities, services or energy infrastructure, or proximity to a particular transportation 
or freight facility such as rail, marine ports and airports, multimodal freight or transshipment 
facilities, and major transportation routes. 

OAR 660-009-0015 Economic Opportunities Analysis 

45 Common wording found in the EOA reports done by ECONorthwest for Cottage Grove (2009), Springfield 
(2009), Ashland (2007), McMinnville (2001).

Appendix A

Page 290



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  54 

(2)  Identification of Required Site Types. The economic opportunities analysis must identify the 
number of sites by type reasonably expected to be needed to accommodate the expected 
employment growth based on the site characteristics typical of expected uses. Cities and counties 
are encouraged to examine existing firms in the planning area to identify the types of sites that 
may be needed for expansion. Industrial or other employment uses with compatible site 
characteristics may be grouped together into common site categories. 

Statewide Planning Goal 14 - Urbanization 
In determining need, local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel size, 
topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified need. 

LUBA 2010-015 & Court of Appeals Decisions
On February 1, 2010, the Newberg City Council adopted Ordinance 2010-2723, updating its 
EOA.  Friends of Yamhill County and several citizens appealed the decision to the Land Use 
Board of Appeals (LUBA) in February 2010.  LUBA remanded the EOA and ruled on five of the 
six arguments presented by the petitioners, with the heart of the decision centering on how to 
define needed site suitability characteristics.  LUBA ruled that “site characteristics are properly 
viewed as attributes that are (1) typical of the industrial or employment use and (2) have some 
meaningful connection with the operation of the industrial or employment use.”  (Friends of 
Yamhill County v. City of Newberg, Or LUBA (August, 2010)). The petitioners appealed 
LUBA’s remand order to the Court of Appeals for judicial review in September 2010.

The Court of Appeals held oral argument in November 2010 and affirmed LUBA’s decision on 
February 16, 2011.  The petitioners had initially appealed for the Court to review the entirety of 
LUBA’s ruling; however, the Court addressed only the site characteristics argument.  The Court 
stated the following in their affirmation:

“In that statutory and regulatory context, we agree with LUBA that ‘site characteristics’ need 
not be ‘indispensable’ to a particular use in order to be ‘necessary for a particular industrial or 
other employment use to operate.’ The intent of Division 9 is to ensure that there is an ‘adequate 
supply of land for economic development and employment growth in Oregon,’ OAR 660-009-
0000, which is vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of the state. … That overriding intent 
to allow and plan for anticipated economic growth – in part, through the identification of ‘site 
characteristics’ that make the land ‘suitable’ to meet the needs of anticipated growth – suggests 
something other than petitioners’ strict ‘indispensability’ test that would take into consideration 
only those ‘site characteristics’ without which particular industry and employment uses could 
not operate. Rather, the planning scheme (based on projections and economic trends) suggests, 
as LUBA adopted, a more pragmatic approach toward accommodating economic growth: That 
‘necessary’ site characteristics are those attributes that are reasonably necessary to the 
successful operation of particular industrial or employment uses, in the sense that they bear 
some important relationship to that operation.” (Friends of Yamhill County v. City of Newberg,
Or App (February 16, 2011)). 

Background on Newberg’s Industrial Site Characteristics 
Newberg’s industrial site characteristics come from many different sources, and are 
representative of what is typical for our city and region.  To determine the suitable industrial site 

Appendix A

Page 291



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  55 

characteristics for Newberg, we used the following sources:
� Interviews with local businesses – Climax Portable Machine Tools, ARE Manufacturing, 

Harris Thermal, and Owen Roe Winery – and with a local industrial land broker, Mike 
Gougler. 

� Inventory of existing industrial sites in the region – sites in Canby, Forest Grove, 
McMinnville, Newberg, Sherwood, Tualatin, Wilsonville, and Woodburn – resulting in 
the report Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial 
Uses (Newberg Planning Division, 2011).  

� Inventory of the Economic Opportunities Analysis plans of other cities to gather 
information about their industrial site characteristics – Newberg looked at the economic 
opportunities Analyses for the Cities of Ashland, Springfield, McMinnville, Cottage 
Grove, Silverton, Klamath Falls, and Cascade Locks. 

� Review of statewide RFPs for industrial land requests.
� Review of materials from Business Oregon, including the State of Oregon Industrial 

Development Competitiveness Matrix and the application for Oregon Industrial Site 
Certification.

� Reports and materials from the Department of Land Conservation and Development, 
including a memo on Tips for Conducting an Economic Opportunities Analysis, a fact 
sheet on Economic Opportunities Analyses, Goal 9 Handbook – Appendix A: Glossary, 
and Sufficiency of Commercial and Industrial Land in Oregon - Recommendations for 
Oregon Communities (2002).   

� The Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future Report to City Council (2005), which 
specified site characteristics for each land type.  This report included expert materials 
from Winterbrook Planning and ECONorthwest, in addition to interviews with local 
businesses.  

� Other reports, including the following: Methods for Evaluating Commercial and 
Industrial Land Sufficiency: A Recommendation for Oregon Communities, Otak, 
Incorporated and ECONorthwest (2002); Portland Strategy for Economic Vitality (2002); 
Industrial/Business Park Standards: Rural Regions, Deloitte & Touche (2001); Ohio 
State University Extension Fact Sheet – Characteristics of an Industrial Site; Alabama 
Cooperative Extension System – Creating Industrial Sites (1999).

The research led us to establish our industrial site suitability characteristics in the categories of 
individual site size, industrial district size, topography, proximity and compatibility as shown in 
Table 12- 23 below.  Each category is explained in further detail in the sections below.   

Appendix A

Page 292



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  56 

Table 12- 23: Required Industrial Site Suitability Characteristics
Required Site 
Characteristic Description

Site Size

� Inventory to include a sufficient number of sites within each site category 
to meet identified needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 
to 30 buildable acres, and 30 to 50 buildable acres). 

� Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable 
land that contains at least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or 
smaller if adjacent to existing industrial district). 

Topography

  Exclude: 
� Slopes of 10% or greater, 
� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable 

areas, and 
� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

Proximity

  Include parcels or contiguous group of parcels: 
� Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the 

vicinity of the UGB that immediately could be added to the UGB. 
� Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 

buildable or industrially developed acres to create new industrial area. 
� That have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 

1/8 mile.  

Compatibility

  Exclude sites that: 
� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter 

unless effective topographical buffers are present, such as a stream 
corridor, arterial street, state highway, rail line, or park.  

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential 
neighborhood to reach an arterial street or state highway.    

Industrial Site Size
The most basic characteristic needed by industrial users is site size.  Industrial users need 
adequate land to site buildings, storage areas, outdoor production areas, parking areas, and on-
site circulation.  They also need or are required to have land for utilities, landscaping,
environmental mitigation, and security.  Some sites require buffers for noise, smell, vibration, 
and visual barriers.  In addition, industries now find needs to provide amenities for employees 
such as outdoor park-like or recreation areas for lunches, breaks, or fitness, to increase morale 
and productivity.  One Newberg industrial representative stated that they would like to 
incorporate a park area for employees if and when they need to move their facility to a new area 
in order to provide a quality work environment (they are currently constrained on their site and 
will need to move with any future growth of their business).  These quality of life factors are 
included in the site size calculation that firms make when looking for a new site.  As a result, 
most industrial sites are only 40% to 60% developable for basic industrial use.  In addition, many 
industries require land for long-term expansion so that they aren’t forced to move their business 
down the road or split their sites, resulting in lost production and investment. 

Site size needs vary widely by industry.  In interviews, local industrial businesses told us that the 
minimum site size they would need was typically 5 – 10 acres minimum for each business.  The 

Appendix A

Page 293



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  57 

Business Oregon Industrial Development Competitiveness Matrix lists site size requirements for 
ten categories of businesses.  The smallest site size listed is 3 acres for call center/business 
services and 5 acres for rural/frontier industrial.  Neither of those are likely business types that 
would apply to Newberg.  The next smallest site size listed is 10 acres minimum for general 
manufacturing.  The site sizes go up from there to 200 acres minimum for regional distribution 
centers. 46

Newberg’s study of industrial sites in nearby communities found a variety of industrial site sizes 
within those areas.  Note that many of the sites studied have individual sites larger and smaller 
than the typical sizes noted.

  In addition, a review of recent RFP’s for industrial businesses looking to locate in 
Oregon revealed that an average of 10 acres was the minimum site size required.  

Figure 12- 4: Typical Site Sizes in Nearby Industrial Areas

Source: Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial Uses,
Newberg Planning Division (2011) 

Newberg’s industrial site size characteristic is in accordance with the typical site size 
requirements and needs seen locally and regionally today.  The needs for sites in each size 
category are detailed Table 12- 20 on page 49.  This breaks outs site needs in four general 
categories.  In total, the inventory must include a sufficient number of sites within each site 
category to meet identified needs (<2 buildable acres, 2 to 10 buildable acres, 10 to 30 buildable 
acres, and 30 to 50 buildable acres).  If there are insufficient sites within any particular category, 
then Newberg will need to seek sites with sufficient land to meet needs in that category.

46 Letter from Michael Williams, Industrial Lands Specialist, Business Oregon (July 2010); Newberg Industrial 
Users Survey (November 2010)

<2 ac. 
 14% 

2-5 ac. 
 28% 

5-10 ac. 
 24% 

10-30 ac. 
 24% 

30-50 ac. 
 5% 

50+ ac. 
 5% 

Appendix A

Page 294



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  58 

Industrial District Size and Industrial/Commercial Proximity 
A common form of industrial development is to cluster industrial uses in industrial districts or 
industrial parks.  There are many reasons for this, including: 

� The district can have adequately sized power and other utilities to serve industrial uses.
� The district can have adequately sized roads for heavy truck traffic. 
� There are fewer issues of compatibility when industrial uses are located adjacent to each 

other rather than next to residential type uses. 
� There are economies of scale when many industrial uses can be served by the same 

suppliers or delivery systems. 
� Industrial uses can create synergy with each other.  For example, one industry’s by-

products can be used by another industry as resources. 
� Businesses can share employee amenities such as parks, fitness centers, lunch areas, and 

day care facilities.
� Larger districts provide opportunities for business expansion onto adjoining or nearby 

sites.

Having clustered uses is a common theme throughout industrial development in most cities.  The 
Cottage Grove EOA states that “firms with similar business activities can realize operational 
savings when they congregate in a single location or region.  Clustering can reduce costs by 
creating economies of scale for suppliers.  Firms tend to locate in areas where there is already a 
presence of other firms engaged in similar or related activities.”47  In addition, the report 
Methods for Evaluating Commercial and Industrial Land Sufficiency: A Recommendation for 
Oregon Communities (Otak, Inc & ECONorthwest, 2002) states that “Economists have shown 
that firms locate in a city because of the presence of factors other than direct factors of 
production.  These indirect factors include agglomerative economies, also known industry 
clusters, location amenities, and innovative capacity.”48 Clustering, or industrial districts, are 
meaningful to the operation of industry because of the shared economies of scale and synergy it 
can create.  

Clustering industrial uses is also related to the other site suitability characteristics of topography, 
proximity to transportation and services, and compatibility with residential uses.  An obvious 
choice for an industrial park or district to develop is in an area large enough for industrial 
development that meets the other three site suitability characteristics.  Different sources on 
industrial site analysis state that around 50 – 100 acres is the average site size for an industrial 
district.49

Newberg’s review of local and regional industrial areas showed that typical existing industrial 
districts in our area are over 100 acres in size.  

47 Cottage Grove EOA, ECONorthwest (2009).
48 Otak, Incorporated and ECONorthwest, Methods for Evaluating Commercial and Industrial Land Sufficiency: A 
Recommendation for Oregon Communities prepared for The Advisory Committee on Commercial and Industrial 
Development, December 2002.  
49 Deloitte & Touche, Industrial/Business Park Standards: Rural Regions (October 2001); Alabama Cooperative 
Extension System, Creating Industrial Sites (January 1999).  

Appendix A

Page 295



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  59 

Figure 12- 5: Typical Industrial District Size of Nearby Communities

Source: Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial Uses,
Newberg Planning Division (2011) 

An interesting finding in the study was that of the districts less than 100 acres, all of them were 
adjacent to a large commercial area.  Adjacency to a commercial area can provide some of the 
same benefits as adjacency to industrial areas.  For example, street and utility sizes are similar 
for commercial and some industrial users.  Compatibility issues are not as great between 
commercial and industrial uses.  Delivery services can serve both commercial and industrial 
businesses for many supplies such as office equipment.  Employee amenities such as a fitness 
center, daycare, or coffee shop, can be provided in the commercial area.  While not all proximity 
needs, such as byproduct sharing or expansion needs, can be met simply by being adjacent to 
commercial uses, many can.

Therefore, Newberg has established the following site size suitability characteristic for industrial 
uses:

Site contains a parcel or group of parcels in close proximity with buildable land that contains at 
least 20 buildable or industrially developed acres (or smaller if adjacent to existing industrial 
district).

Newberg also has established the following proximity criterion: 

Adjoin an industrial or commercial area, or that contain at least 100 buildable or industrially 
developed acres to create new industrial area.

This characteristic recognizes that, while typical industrial districts exceed 100 acres, nearly all 
industrial districts are at least 20 acres.  This is the minimum size needed for Newberg targeted 
industries, and is paired with the commercial/industrial proximity criterion.  An exception to the 
20 acre minimum would be if the site is already adjacent to an industrial district, where the total 

10-15 ac. 

20-50 ac. 

50-100 ac. 

>100 ac. 

0 5 10 15 20 

In
du

st
ri

al
 D

is
tr

ic
t S

iz
e 

Number of Sites 

Appendix A

Page 296



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  60 

size of the existing and new industrial areas exceeded this minimum threshold.   

Topography
Topography is a critical factor in industry site location. Industrial uses require level sites for a
number of reasons, including: 

� Many industries move supplies, equipment, and product from one part of the site to 
another.  This movement becomes very difficult if the grade changes requiring steps or 
ramps within the site.

� Trucks, forklifts, and other equipment are limited as to the grade at which they can safety 
operate.

� Most buildings and structures require level floors.  If a site is sloped, the site usually 
needs graded to be level.  Grading sites can weaken the structural stability of the soil, or 
require retaining walls.  Many industrial uses include heavy equipment which demands 
stable footings.  Grading and retaining walls can weaken this stability.

According to Bill Grunkmeyer, author of the Ohio State University Extension fact sheet on the 
characteristics of an industrial site:

“Topography of the site is also an important factor. Companies usually seek fairly level sites 
with adequate drainage to avoid standing water. Depending on a firm's desire for aesthetic 
considerations, a gently sloping site may be attractive. Once again, in considering topography a 
firm is trying to decrease the cost of site work. If a community is located in a hilly region it is 
still possible to find an acceptable site by laying out a plan that locates the firm on a plateau or 
terraced section of a hill. This could be very attractive, particularly if the community takes into 
consideration easy access and high visibility potentials.”50

In the book Planning the Built Environment, author Larz T. Anderson discusses the effect of 
slope on the feasibility of industrial land uses. The following is a summary of his findings:  

� 1 to 3% slope: May accommodate moderate and small plans without extensive linear 
production; trucking terminals; and warehouses. 

� 3 to 5% slope: Intensive, small-scale industry with minimum trucking needs (truck access 
is difficult and perhaps impossible with icing). 

� 5 to 10% slope: Intensive, small-scale industry on slopes up to 7% (truck access becomes 
difficult and expensive when the slope exceeds 7%). 

� 10 to 15% slope: This slope range is economically impractical for industrial 
development.51

The Department of Land Conservation Goal 9 Guidebook includes a definition of constrained 
land that says that over 10% slope for industrial use is a physical constraint.52

50 Bill Grunkemeyer, Characteristics of an Industrial Site, Ohio State University Extension Fact Sheet. 
http://ohioline.osu.edu/cd-fact/1525.html.  
51 Larz T. Anderson, Planning the Built Environment, APA Planners Press (2000).  
52 Department of Land Conservation Development, Goal 9 Guidebook, Appendix A.

Appendix A

Page 297



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  61 

One Newberg business stated that they would need a level site with stable soil to facilitate a level 
concrete floor around 30,000 square feet in size.  Two other Newberg examples illustrate the 
necessity of level sites: Action Equipment’s new building, and A-dec’s expansion on their 
existing site.  Action Equipment recently located a new facility on level industrial land on Hayes 
Street.  In their site search, they specified a need for a level site.  The company manufactures 
large, long conveyor equipment.  The building design had to focus on being large and level in 
order to accommodate set up, processing, and moving of the equipment, which in some cases is 
over a hundred feet long.  In the second example, even though you would think the A-dec site is 
level just from looking at it, the topography caused problems when they needed to expand.  A-
dec had two buildings close together, and had to build a complex ramp to run forklifts from one 
building to another in order to make the operation work. 

All of the 22 local and regional industrial districts studied were predominantly less than 5% 
slope, and all had our targeted industries represented in them.53

Therefore, a slope of less than 5% is typical for industrial uses, and slopes over 10% are not 
considered buildable industrial land.  In addition, development is not permitted in stream 
corridors or wetland areas, so these areas also must be excluded.

Thus, Newberg has established the following topography    

Exclude:
� Slopes of 10% or greater, 
� Sites that are not predominantly less than 5% slope within buildable areas, and 
� Areas within stream corridors and wetlands. 

Proximity to UGB
Newberg’s targeted industries need to be within the urban growth boundary.  With some 
exceptions, state land use laws restrict Newberg’s targeted industrial uses from locating outside 
the UGB.  Extensions of public facilities to serve uses outside UGBs are also severely limited.  
Thus, Newberg’s industrial land needs only can be met by land that is either already within the 
UGB, or on land that can be added to the UGB.  

ORS 197.298 essentially limits UGB expansions to lands adjacent to the UGB.  OAR 660-024- 
660-024-0060 (4) states, “In determining alternative land for evaluation under ORS 197.298, 
"land adjacent to the UGB" is not limited to those lots or parcels that abut the UGB, but also 
includes land in the vicinity of the UGB that has a reasonable potential to satisfy the identified 
need deficiency.” 

Thus, a required industrial characteristic is that the site must be:

 Within, or adjacent to existing UGB, or as part of group of parcels in the vicinity of the UGB 

53 Newberg Planning Division, Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industries, 
(November 2010)

Appendix A

Page 298



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  62 

that immediately could be added to the UGB. 

In determining whether a site could be added to the UGB, the analysis should consider whether 
intervening land also could be added to meet identified needs for industrial or some other use.  
This needs to consider the priority of that land for inclusion in the UGB, and the reasonableness 
of adding that land considering other factors, such as the ability to provide infrastructure to the 
area.  

Proximity to Transportation and Services
All of the industrial location site literature references how important having good highway 
access is for industry.  Shipping is an integral part of most industrial businesses.  Most shipping 
is done by the highway system, although some is still done by rail and port.  As stated in the 
Business and Industrial Park Development Handbook,  

“One of the most important location considerations for a business park or a large, single-
industrial site is the array of transportation services available at the site.  Proximity to airports 
increasingly is sought by businesses, and although rail is not longer considered essential, some 
manufacturing and distribution tenants still require it.  The major difference between earlier 
planned industrial districts and parks, and modern business parks has been the new freedom in 
choice of locations made possible by the “clean” uses now found in parks and by improved 
roads, especially the freeway network and the large trucking industry.”54

According to the City of Hillsboro Economic Opportunities Analysis Industrial Development 
Pattern Type Matrix, for medium industrial users (25k-100k sq ft built space; and/or 4 to 25 
acres of outdoor inventory/production areas): 

“Transportation system that provides convenient connections to state highways is very 
important…Rail access is important to many uses and can be essential for some 
uses…Convenient access to well trained and qualified workforce is essential and industry 
clustering for access to skilled labor force is common…”

Of the 22 local and regional industrial sites studied, 17 had immediate access to a major road 
(arterial or state highway).  Only one district had access to a major road that was further than 1/8 
mile, and that one was within ¼ mile of a major road.  No districts had access more than ¼ mile 
away.55

It is typical for industries to need to be as close as possible to a major road for easy access, and 
most industries in our area are within 1/8 mile to a major road.  Adequate access has a 
meaningful connection to industry because most businesses rely on being able to receive supplies 
and ship goods readily and easily.  It is harmful to the business, to surrounding uses, and to the 
safety of pedestrian, bicycle, and neighborhood traffic to have large trucks regularly traveling 
through neighborhoods that are not built to handle large truck traffic.  Therefore, Newberg has 

54 ULI 1998, p. 88
55 Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial Uses, Newberg Planning Division 
(2011)

Appendix A

Page 299



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  63 

established the following industrial site suitability characteristic:

Sites that have suitable truck access to a state highway or arterial street within 1/8 mile.

Compatibility with Residential Uses
Cities have to take into account location and compatibility when planning for economic 
development.  At the heart of municipal zoning is an identified need to separate residential and 
industrial uses.  The landmark case of Euclid v. Ambler declared that government has a valid 
interest in maintaining neighborhood character and regulating where certain land uses should 
occur.56  The Oregon Administrative Rule that governs economic development includes a 
provision that guides cities to manage compatibility of uses: 

OAR 660-0090-0025 (6) Compatibility. Cities and counties are strongly encouraged to manage 
encroachment and intrusion of uses incompatible with industrial and other employment uses. 
Strategies for managing encroachment and intrusion of incompatible uses include, but are not 
limited to, transition areas around uses having negative impacts on surrounding areas, design 
criteria, district designation, and limiting non-essential uses within districts.

Most industrial businesses want to be good neighbors and to be able to fully operate their 
businesses without constraints imposed by being forced into direct contact with residential 
neighbors.  Other cities have determined that industrial uses need to have other compatible uses 
nearby as well.  An explanation for land use buffers is found in several Economic Opportunities 
Analysis reports done by ECONorthwest for various cities: 

“According to the public officials and developers/brokers ECO interviewed, industrial areas 
have operational characteristics that do not blend as well with residential land uses as they do 
with office and mixed-use areas.  Generally, as the function of industrial use intensifies (e.g., 
heavy manufacturing) so too does the importance of buffering to mitigate impacts of noise, 
odors, traffic, and 24-hour 7-day week operations.  Adequate buffers may consist of vegetation, 
landscaped swales, roadways, and public use parks/recreation areas.  Depending upon the 
industrial use and site topography, site buffers range from approximately 50 to 100 feet.  
Selected commercial office, retail, lodging and mixed-use (e.g. apartments or office over retail) 
activities are becoming acceptable adjacent uses to light industrial areas.”57

Newberg’s existing industrial users report that it is not prudent to locate industrial development 
next to residential neighborhoods.  One prominent industrial business is currently adjacent to 
residential development on one side, and says that they have issues with large truck traffic 
getting mixed in with neighborhood pedestrian, bicycle and vehicle traffic, causing visibility and 
safety problems.  In addition, site noise is undesirable to residential neighbors, whether from the 
banging and grinding that accompanies manufacturing uses or from onsite loudspeakers used for 
communication throughout the site.  Many industrial uses also have long hours, sometimes even 
24 hours a day, compounding noise issues.  Other things that can be considered nuisances to 
residential neighbors are outdoor storage of materials, dust, and vibration; all commonplace 

56 http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Village_of_Euclid_v._Ambler_Realty_Co.  
57 Economic Opportunities Analysis, Cities of McMinnville (2001) and Springfield (2009), OR

Appendix A

Page 300



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  64 

things in industrial developments.   

In our review of local and regional industrial parks, half of the areas had less than 5% of their 
boundary with residential areas.  All except one had less than 25% of their boundary with 
residential areas.58 It follows that it would be feasible to create a large buffer from residential 
areas on one side of an industrial development, but it would be very difficult to do that on every 
side without wasting a large amount of usable space.  Therefore, being adjacent to a residential 
neighborhood on 25% of an industrial property’s boundary would be feasible, but more than that 
would seriously hamper the industrial use. 

Having to route truck traffic through or adjacent to residential neighborhoods also can severely 
hamper an industrial business’s operation.  As noted in the previous section, residential streets 
are not built to accommodate truck traffic.  Residents in those areas can be bothered by the 
vibration, noise, and odor of the truck traffic, and demand that truck traffic be rerouted or limited 
to certain volumes or hours.  

In our review of nearby industrial areas, 91% did not have access through or adjacent to 
residential areas.   Thus, typical industries do not access through residential areas.

In accordance with these standards, Newberg has established the following criteria:

 Exclude sites that:
� Abut residential neighborhoods on more than 25% of the site perimeter unless effective 

topographical buffers are present, such as a stream corridor, arterial street, state 
highway, rail line, or park.  

� Require truck traffic to travel through or adjacent to a residential neighborhood to 
reach an arterial street or state highway.   

Industrial Land and Sites 
The comprehensive plan inventory of buildable industrial land was updated in 2012, consistent 
with the requirement in OAR 660-009-0015 (3) for an inventory of industrial and other 
employment land.  The term “buildable industrial land” as used in this plan is consistent with 
the terms defined in OAR 660-009-0005 as “total supply” of “vacant” or “developed” industrial 
land that is “suitable” and “serviceable.”59 Buildable land:

1) Includes lots that have any “Industrial” comprehensive plan designation.  This includes land 
in the “Employment” Springbrook District, specific plan industrial districts, and land in the 
MIX comprehensive plan district zoned industrial.  It excludes publicly owned properties 
intended for city facilities such as the wastewater treatment plant expansion, which are 
counted in the “public/quasi-public” category. 

2) Includes lots that are:
a) Equal to or larger than one half-acre not currently containing permanent buildings or 

58 Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial Uses, Newberg Planning Division 
(2011)
59 This should not be confused with the term “buildable land” in OAR 660-008-0005(2), because that rule 
specifically applies only to residential land. 

Appendix A

Page 301



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  65 

improvements; or 
b) Equal to or larger than five acres where less than one half-acre is occupied by permanent 

buildings or improvements.
c) Non-vacant land that is likely to be redeveloped during the planning period.  For this 

inventory, this included (but was not limited to),  
i) Lots equal to or larger than one-half acre, and less than five acres likely to be 

redeveloped during the planning period. 
ii) The undeveloped portion of a lot equal to or larger than five acres.

d) Excludes (unsuitable) portions of lots within stream corridors, with slopes over 10 
percent, or currently occupied by buildings or industrial uses not likely to be redeveloped 
during the planning period, or contained within the Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-
way as shown in the Tier 2 Preferred Alternative selected September 2010.

Table 12 - 1 shows the existing buildable industrial land in the UGB as of 201260 Figure 12- 6.
is a map of the buildable industrial land in the UGB in 2012. 

Table 12 - 1: Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012)

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres

Site Sizes

< 2 
ac.

2-10
ac.

10-30
ac.

30-50
ac. Total

Springbrook 
Employment 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

23  1 1  2 

Sportsman 
Airpark61 Airport Industrial  22 2 4   6 

Wynooski 
Industrial Light Industrial 10 1 2   3 

Elliot Road 
Industrial 

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office 

1 1    1 

Total 56 4 7 1 12 
Source: Newberg Planning Division. 

The UGB as of 2012 has approximately 56 buildable industrial acres.  Newberg’s existing 
industrial land supply is mostly contained within two industrial/employment park areas: 
approximately 23 buildable acres zoned SD/E (Springbrook District Employment) in the 
Springbrook area and approximately 22 vacant acres near the Sportsman Airpark. There are also 
about 11 acres of buildable industrial land scattered throughout the City on individual lots. 

60 The inventory of buildable industrial land did not change from 2010-2012.
61 The Sportsman Airpark contains one large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 
10.8 acres of buildable industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing 
the buildable industrial land into an industrial park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre 
category, even though it contains slightly over 10 acres of buildable land, because the approved master plan 
envisions further division, and the aviation related uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms rather than one 
large firm.

Appendix A

Page 302



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  66 

Figure 12- 6: Buildable Industrial Land, Newberg UGB 2012 

Appendix A

Page 303



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  67 

2032 Industrial Site Need vs. Supply  
As shown in Table 12- 24, Newberg has an unmet need for one 30- to 50-acre site, one 10- to 30-
acre site, 51 acres of 2- to 10-acre sites, and 20 acres of sites under 2 acres in size. 

Table 12- 24: Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Number 
of Sites -

2012
UGB

Buildable 
Acres -

2012 UGB

2032
Needed

Buildable
Sites

2032
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres

2032
Deficit # 
of Sites

2032 Deficit 
Buildable 

Acres
<2 5  6  23  26  (18) (20) 
2 to 10 7  30  14  81  (7) (51) 
10 to 30 1  20  2  42  (1) (22) 
30 to 50 0  0  1  42  (1) (42) 
Total 13 56 40 191 (27) (135)

This means that Newberg will need to include an additional 135 buildable industrial acres within 
the UGB to include: 

1) A 30- to 50-acre site;
2) A 10- to 30-acre site; and
3) Industrial park sites totaling approximately 71 buildable acres.

 

Appendix A

Page 304



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  68 

Commercial Land Need {Reserved for Future use] 

Appendix A

Page 305



Section 12: Economic Opportunities Analysis | City of Newberg  69 

VI. Conclusion 
Newberg’s economic base has diversified over time and several of its home-grown industries 
have become national and international leaders in their respective fields.  The City is slowly 
transitioning into more of an urban center for east Yamhill County as the population grows.   
However, Newberg citizens have made it clear that they value the “live here, work here, shop 
here” values and way of life.  To keep up the City’s commitment to the values of its residents, 
Newberg must strengthen its economic base and provide adequate industrial and commercial 
land for current and future populations.   

The industrial and commercial buildable land supply tables in this report indicate a shortage of 
both types of land within the current Newberg Urban Growth Boundary.  It is critical for 
economic development efforts to have adequate buildable land available that meets the identified 
site suitability requirements for both industrial and commercial areas.  The City cannot help 
provide enough jobs for current and future residents without adequate land to locate new 
businesses on, and without adequate land for existing businesses to expand onto.   

Fortunately, Newberg has many advantages that make it stand out in the regional marketplace, 
including the following: 

� Small town quality of life
� Access to quality education and skills training 
� Strong established and growing industry clusters 
� Strong local support for business and employment opportunities 
� Proximity to the Portland Metropolitan Region  
� Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass 
� Compliance with Oregon’s statewide planning goals 

In addition, Newberg has easy access to Interstate 5 on its south side for easy access to industrial 
locations.  One of the most important advantages on the list is that Newberg has strong existing 
and growing industry clusters in the areas of manufacturing, health care, higher education, and 
wine tourism.  Providing additional adequate land for industrial and commercial businesses that 
are in these same sectors and other compatible sectors will help strengthen Newberg’s economic 
base for the future. 

By following the recommended actions in the plan, Newberg can maintain and build a strong 
economic base to benefit all its citizens.

Appendix A

Page 306



Page B-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix B ��February 2012 
 

Appendix B:  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendments 

The following are Comprehensive Plan revisions to implement the revised 
Economic Opportunities Analysis.  Additions to the text are shown as underlined,
deletions are shown as strikethrough.

SECTION 1 – Amend the C.  SIGNIFICANCE section as follows:

The Urban Growth Boundary will also have an important effect on local residents. The UGB, 
although only a guide, is intended to provide adequate space for land use needs over a 20-year 
planning horizon to the year 2010 and defines the area within which urban services can be 
provided. The purpose of the UGB is to contain urban growth within a reasonable area while 
providing adequate choices for new development locations.

SECTION 2 – Add the following to section H. THE ECONOMY:

GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base.

POLICIES:
1. General Policies

m. The City shall collaborate with project developers to construct and maintain the 
best utility systems possible (e.g. water and sanitary sewer), both from a quality as 
well as quantity (capacity) standpoint.

n. The City, in cooperation with public and/or private entities, shall invest in the best 
telecommunications infrastructure possible.

o. The City shall collaborate with other public and private entities and project 
developers to construct and maintain the best surface transportation infrastructure 
possible (e.g. roads, airpark, railroad).

p. The City shall strive to develop and promote a high quality of life in the 
community in order to attract and retain a diverse and highly skilled workforce.  

q. The City shall foster an environment of business innovation so that the 
community may remain economically competitive.  

SECTION 3 – Amend the POPULATION GROWTH section as follows:
A. HISTORIC POPULATION

Newberg grew over 450 500 percent from 1960 to 200910.  This population 
growth was due to a variety of factors:  regional population growth, expansion of 
industry and business in the area, proximity to other employment centers, and the 
high quality of life in the area.

Page 307



Page B-2 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix B ��February 2012 
 

Table III-1.  Newberg City Population – 1960-200910
Year Population
1960 4,204
1970 6,507
1980 10,394
1990 13,086
2000 18,064
200910 23,150 22,068
Sources:  U.S. Census, Population Research Center, Portland, State University

The Portland State University Population Research Center estimated Newberg’s 
population as of July 1, 20092010 to be 22,11023,150. As of July 1, 2009 2011,
the Urban Growth Boundary has an estimated population of 23,582 22,794.

SECTION 4 – Amend the LAND NEED AND SUPPLY section as follows:

D. INDUSTRIAL LAND NEED AND SUPPLY

1. Industrial Land Need

Johnson-Gardner prepared future industrial land forecasts based on long-range employment 
forecasts and converted the new jobs to space needs for each employment sector(Table IV-10).
This forecast is based on a high employment growth scenario 
Newberg has identified four “target” industry clusters that are the foundation of its economy: 
manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism industry. In addition, there 
are regional “target industries” that can reasonably be attracted to our community. Newberg’s 
Economic Opportunities Analysis considers the size and type of sites needed by these target 
industries. In addition to an As part of the overall supply of buildable land, Newberg needs to 
have sites available the that meet the specific needs of potential industrial users, so-called “target 
industries”. these industries. A variety of parcel sizes, building types, and land use designations 
are required to attract target industries and provide market choice. Economic trends indicate that 
just over half of Newberg’s future industrial employment will be located on sites of 10 acres or 
less.  Of those, one-third of the future new industrial firms under 10 acres in size, and one-half of 
firms under 2 acres in size, will find a site through infill redevelopment or intensification of 
existing employment uses.  The remainder of Newberg’s future industrial employment will 
require larger parcels over 10 acres in size. Table IV-10 below shows that Newberg has a need 
for 191 gross buildable acres through 2032.

Page 308



Page B-3 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix B ��February 2012 
 

Table IV-10: Site Size Distribution by Firm Employment through 2032

Emps. 
per 

Firm
Percent 
of Emp.

Number 
of Emps.

Number 
of 

Firms
Sites 

Needed

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Ave.
Site Size 
(Acres)

Ave. 
ROW 
Need 

(Acres)

Gross 
Buildable 

Acres 
Needed

0-9 15% 273 46 23 <2 1 0.15 26
23 infill & redevelopment 0

10 to 74 40% 729 21 14 2 - 10 5 0.75 81
7 infill & redevelopment 0

75 + 45% 820
2 2 10 - 30 20 1.00 42
1 1 30 - 50 40 2.00 42
1 1 infill & redevelopment 0

Total 100% 1,822 71 71 191
Source: Winterbrook Planning 2009, Newberg Planning Division 2012

Table IV-10.  Industrial Land Need
2005-2025 2026-2040

Industrial 87 acres 75 acres
Source: Johnson Gardner

In 2005, there is a general lack of suitable large (20+ acre) industrial sites with access to a state 
highway and physical separation or transitional buffering from residential 
neighborhoods.Therefore, Newberg needs 4 large (20+ acre) industrial sites for the period 2005-
2025 and an additional 6 sites for the period 2026-2040.  The assumption is that approximately 50 
percent of the future industrial employment will take place on large parcels.  

2. 2025 2032 Industrial Land Supply and Need 

The city reviewed and updated the buildable industrial land inventory in 2012, consistent with 
the requirement in OAR 660-009-0015(3) for an inventory of industrial and other employment 
land.  The term “buildable industrial land” as used in this plan is consistent with the terms 
defined in OAR 660-009-0005 as “total supply” of “vacant” or “developed” industrial land that 
is “suitable” and serviceable”.  Table IV-11 shows the existing buildable land in the UGB as of 
2012.

Table IV-11: Buildable Industrial Land in Newberg UGB (2012)

Location Potential Uses Buildable 
Acres

Site Sizes

< 2 
ac.

2-10
ac.

10-30
ac.

30-50
ac. Total

Springbrook 
Employment

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office

23 1 1 2

Page 309



Page B-4 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix B ��February 2012 
 

Sportsman 
Airpark1 Airport Industrial 22 2 4 6

Wynooski 
Industrial Light Industrial 10 1 2 3

Elliot Road 
Industrial

Light 
Manufacturing or 
Industrial Office

1 1 1

Total 56 4 7 1 12

Table IV-12 relates the supply of industrial land in the UGB to the projected need.

Table IV-12: Industrial Land Supply and Need through 2032

Size 
Range 
(Acres)

Number of 
Sites -

2012 UGB

Buildable 
Acres -

2012 UGB

2032 
Needed 

Buildable 
Sites

2032 
Needed 
Gross 

Buildable 
Acres

2032 
Deficit # of 

Sites

2032 Deficit 
Buildable 

Acres
<2 5 6 23 26 (18) (20)
2 to 10 7 30 14 81 (7) (51)
10 to 30 1 20 2 42 (1) (22)
30 to 50 0 0 1 42 (1) (42)
Total 13 56 40 191 (27) (135)

The industrial buildable land inventory inside the current UGB has approximately 159 acres.  
While this may seem to be a large supply, it is disadvantaged by a number of elements.  First, it 
consists mostly of small, scattered sites, with only 8 parcels larger than 5 acres and only 3 
parcels that are 20 acres or larger. Second, several sites are hindered because of proximity to 
residential neighborhoods or other factors.  Thus, some of the industrial should be rezoned for 
other uses.  Third, a significant part of the “buildable” land is in fact in industrial use, such as 
storage yards.  Also, the land need is adjusted to account for existing industrial uses that are 
displaced by the Newberg Dundee Bypass.

Table IV-11.  2025 Industrial Land Supply and Need
Industrial Site Size 2025 Need Supply Surplus/(Deficit)

Small/Medium sites (< 20 ac) 50 ac 99 ac 49 ac
Large sites (20+ ac) 100 ac 60 ac (40) ac

1 The Sportsman Airpark contains on large 55-acre property that contains the existing airport, plus approximately 
10.8 acres of buildable industrial land.  The approved Sportsman Airpark Master Plan includes a plan for developing 
the buildable industrial land into an industrial park with aviation related uses.  This site was counted in the 2-10 acre 
category, even though it contains slightly over 10 acres of buildable land, because the approved master plan 
envisions further division, and the aviation related uses are more likely to be separate smaller firms rather than one 
large firm.

Page 310



Page B-5 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix B ��February 2012 
 

Inside the current UGB, the only one large site (20 acres) that is viable in the long term is at the 
Sportsman Airpark.  Two other sites are better suited for other uses long term.  Therefore, 
Newberg needs to look to add additional industrial land to its UGB.

Page 311



Page C-1 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

Appendix C:  Economic Opportunities Analysis and Comprehensive Plan Text 
Amendment Findings 

The revised Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA) must comply with the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan, Statewide Planning Goal 9, ORS 197.638, ORS 197.712, OAR 660-009-
015, Friends of Yamhill County v. City of Newberg, Or LUBA (August, 2010) and Friends of 
Yamhill County v. City of Newberg, Or App (February 16, 2011).

Below are the findings to these criteria.  

I. Newberg Comprehensive Plan

Section H. The Economy – Goal: To develop a diverse and stable economic base.

Finding: The EOA is considered the “implementation” portion of Section H in the 
Comprehensive Plan, and as such it strives to implement this goal and its associated policies in 
Section H of the Newberg Comprehensive Plan.  The EOA contains many elements, including 
information on local and regional targeted industries, the site size and suitability characteristics 
of those targeted industries, Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages, and an 
economic development strategy with actions to address the comparative advantages and 
disadvantages to strengthen Newberg’s standing in the regional marketplace to attract the 
targeted industries.  The action items found in the EOA are linked back directly to the policies 
they implement from Section H of the Comprehensive Plan.  All of these things combine to work 
toward meeting the goal of developing a diverse and stable economic base.  This goal could not 
be met without a revised and updated EOA because economic statistics and market forces change 
over time, requiring constant monitoring and updating for the economic strategy to stay relevant.  
Therefore, the revised and updated EOA best helps implement this goal of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  

II. Statewide Planning Goal 9: Economic Development – To provide adequate 
opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities vital to the 
health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon’s citizens. 

Comprehensive Plans for urban areas shall:
1. Include an analysis of the community’s economic patterns, potentialities, 

strengths, and deficiencies as they relate to state and national trends;
2. Contain policies concerning the economic development opportunities in the 

community;
3. Provide for at least an adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations, 

and service levels for a variety of industrial and commercial uses consistent with 
plan policies;

Page 312



Page C-_ �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

4. Limit uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses to 
those which are compatible with proposed uses.

GUIDELINES – A. PLANNING

A.1. A principal determinant in planning for major industrial and commercial 
developments should be the comparative advantage of the region within which the 
developments would be located. Comparative advantage industries are those economic 
activities which represent the most efficient use of resources, relative to other geographic 
areas.

A.2. The economic development projections and the comprehensive plan which is 
drawn from the projections should take into account the availability of the necessary 
natural resources to support the expanded industrial development and associated 
populations. The plan should also take into account the social, environmental, energy, 
and economic impacts upon the resident population.

A.3. Plans should designate the type and level of public facilities and services 
appropriate to support the degree of economic development being proposed.

A.4. Plans should strongly emphasize the expansion of and increased productivity 
from existing industries and firms as a means to strengthen local and regional economic
development.

A.5. Plans directed toward diversification and improvement of the economy of the 
planning area should consider as a major determinant, the carrying capacity of the air, 
land and water resources of the planning area. The land conservation and development
actions provided for by such plans should not exceed the carrying capacity of such 
resources.

Finding: The EOA is Section 12 (The Economy) of the Inventory of Natural and Cultural 
Resources, which is the base document that the Comprehensive Plan and its goals and policies is 
based on.  The revised EOA includes the elements required above: an analysis of Newberg’s 
economic patterns, forecasts, comparative advantages and disadvantages (strengths and 
deficiencies); provisions for an adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations, and 
service levels for a variety of industrial and commercial uses consistent with plan policies; and 
compatibility requirements that limit uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and 
commercial uses to those which are compatible with proposed uses.  The Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan contains policies concerning the economic development opportunities in the 
community.  

The revised EOA includes a robust discussion of Newberg’s comparative advantages and 
disadvantages related to the regional economic marketplace.  Newberg has identified four 
business clusters that are the foundation of its economy and that economic development efforts 
will be focused on, including: manufacturing, health care, higher education, and the wine/tourism 

Page 313



Page C-3 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

industry.  The updated buildable land inventories in the revised EOA indicate a shortage of both 
types of land; the City is working on a concurrent UGB expansion effort to remedy this situation 
to ensure Newberg’s economic health. The Comprehensive Plan considers the availability of 
resources to support a growing population, and has goals and policies to ensure that adequate
provisions are made.  In addition, the City has a Transportation System Plan, a Sewer Master 
Plan, a Water Master Plan, and a Storm Drainage Master Plan that detail the type and level of 
public facilities for current and future developments.  

The first strategy of Newberg’s economic development efforts focuses on retention and 
expansion of existing businesses.  Several of the home-grown industries that reflect Newberg’s 
four main business clusters have become national and international leaders in their respective 
fields.  The revised EOA details Newberg’s commitment to its existing businesses and firms, 
including a list of strategies and actions that are intended to help Newberg assist its local 
economic partners.   

III. ORS 197.638 Department of Land Conservation and Development may request 
review by Economic and Community Development Department of local inventory 
and analysis of industrial and commercial land.

(1) Upon request of the Department of Land Conservation and Development, the 
Economic and Community Development Department shall review the inventory and 
analysis of industrial and commercial land, and measures taken to address the land 
needs, required of certain local governments under ORS 197.712. The review shall 
address the likely effect of measures developed by a local government on the 
adequacy of the supply of sites and opportunities to satisfy needs identified under 
ORS 197.712.

(2) The Land Conservation and Development Commission and the Director of the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development shall consider the review and 
any recommendations of the Economic and Community Development Department 
when determining whether a local government has complied with the statewide land 
use planning goals and the requirements of ORS 197.712. [1999 c.622 §13]

Finding: Newberg worked closely with its regional Business Development Officer, Tom Fox, 
from the Oregon Business Development Department (formerly the Oregon Economic and 
Community Development Department) in 2009 regarding the analysis of industrial and 
commercial land needs.  Mr. Fox reviewed the information in the revised EOA, including the site 
size ranges by targeted industry cluster and sector, site size distribution by firm employment, and 
required site suitability characteristics, and concurs that they are viable for firms seeking sites in 
Oregon and for Newberg’s targeted industries.  In addition, he noted that the City should have 
success in expanding and attracting businesses in the targeted industry clusters if they follow the 
site size and suitability criteria for development sites (see letter from Tom Fox, dated December 
1, 2009). Newberg also worked with Michael Williams, Industrial Lands Specialist for Business 
Oregon, in 2010.  Mr. Williams concurred with Newberg’s industrial land analysis and strategy 
(see letter from Michael Williams, dated July 23, 2010).

Page 314



Page C-4 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

IV. ORS 197.712 Commission duties; comprehensive plan provisions; public facility 
plans; state agency coordination plans; compliance deadline; rules.

(1) In addition to the findings and policies set forth in ORS 197.005, 197.010 and 
215.243, the Legislative Assembly finds and declares that, in carrying out statewide 
comprehensive land use planning, the provision of adequate opportunities for a 
variety of economic activities throughout the state is vital to the health, welfare and
prosperity of all the people of the state.

(2) By the adoption of new goals or rules, or the application, interpretation or 
amendment of existing goals or rules, the Land Conservation and Development 
Commission shall implement all of the following:

(a) Comprehensive plans shall include an analysis of the community’s economic 
patterns, potentialities, strengths and deficiencies as they relate to state and 
national trends.

(b) Comprehensive plans shall contain policies concerning the economic 
development opportunities in the community.

(c) Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for at least an 
adequate supply of sites of suitable sizes, types, locations and service levels 
for industrial and commercial uses consistent with plan policies.

(d) Comprehensive plans and land use regulations shall provide for compatible 
uses on or near sites zoned for specific industrial and commercial uses.

(e) A city or county shall develop and adopt a public facility plan for areas within 
an urban growth boundary containing a population greater than 2,500 
persons. The public facility plan shall include rough cost estimates for public 
projects needed to provide sewer, water and transportation for the land uses 
contemplated in the comprehensive plan and land use regulations. Project 
timing and financing provisions of public facility plans shall not be 
considered land use decisions.

(f) In accordance with ORS 197.180, state agencies that provide funding for 
transportation, water supply, sewage and solid waste facilities shall identify in 
their coordination programs how they will coordinate that funding with other 
state agencies and with the public facility plans of cities and counties. In 
addition, state agencies that issue permits affecting land use shall identify in 
their coordination programs how they will coordinate permit issuance with 
other state agencies and cities and counties.

(g) Local governments shall provide:
(A) Reasonable opportunities to satisfy local and rural needs for residential 

and industrial development and other economic activities on appropriate 
lands outside urban growth boundaries, in a manner consistent with 
conservation of the state’s agricultural and forest land base; and

(B) Reasonable opportunities for urban residential, commercial and industrial 
needs over time through changes to urban growth boundaries.

(3) A comprehensive plan and land use regulations shall be in compliance with this 
section by the first periodic review of that plan and regulations. [1983 c.827 §17; 
1991 c.612 §17]

Page 315



Page C-5 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

Finding: The revised EOA includes a comparative analysis of Newberg’s economic patterns, 
potentialities, advantages and disadvantages.  In addition, it features a section that discusses 
Newberg’s industrial and commercial land needs and supply, including site size ranges and 
suitability characteristics.  The Comprehensive Plan contains policies concerning economic 
development opportunities in the community and provisions for compatibility with industrial and 
commercial uses.  The City also has several public facility plans, including the Transportation 
System Plan, the Sewer Master Plan, the Water Master Plan, and the Storm Drainage Master 
Plan.  The revised EOA, with its updated buildable land inventories and other information, 
provides the basis for the City to meet future urban land needs over time through changes to the 
urban growth boundary.  

V. OAR 660-009-0010 – Application

(5) The effort necessary to comply with OAR 660-009-0015 through 660-009-
0030 will vary depending upon the size of the jurisdiction, the detail of previous 
economic development planning efforts, and the extent of new information on 
national, state, regional, county, and local economic trends.  A jurisdiction’s 
planning effort is adequate if it uses the best available or readily collectable 
information to respond to the requirements of this division. 

Finding: Newberg has a fairly current EOA that was adopted and acknowledged in 2006.  The 
proposed revisions add a great deal of detail to several categories of data in the EOA.  The new 
data is based on the best available information, particularly as it relates to economic and 
population trends and typical site characteristics for employment lands.  

Summary of Changes to the EOA:
� Updated population, demographic, economic and employment statistics.
� An economic trends analysis section that looks at national, state and regional trends, 

regional economic development industry clusters and target industries, Yamhill County 
agri-business, and regional industrial land availability.

� A new section that covers an assessment of our community economic development 
potential.  This section includes updated employment projections, a discussion of 
Newberg’s comparative advantages and disadvantages relative to similar regional 
markets, and Newberg’s special opportunities to capitalize on its unique geographic niche 
in the regional marketplace. 

� A more robust discussion of Newberg’s economic development strategy.  The current 
EOA focuses largely on regional targeted industry clusters; the revised version of the 
EOA focuses more on our local targeted industry clusters as the foundation of our 
economic development efforts.  This section also includes actions to capitalize on 
Newberg’s comparative advantages and to address the comparative disadvantages, and 
actions to implement the overall economic development strategy.  

� A more robust discussion of the typical site characteristics that are required for 
Newberg’s employment lands.

Page 316



Page C-6 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

� Updated buildable land inventories and the addition of maps that illustrate the available 
industrial land by area. 

VI. OAR 660-009-0015 – Economic Opportunities Analysis 

Cities and counties must review and, as necessary, amend their comprehensive plans to 
provide economic opportunities analyses containing the information described in 
sections (1) to (4) of this rule. This analysis will compare the demand for land for 
industrial and other employment uses to the existing supply of such land. 

(1) Review of National, State, Regional, County and Local Trends. The economic 
opportunities analysis must identify the major categories of industrial or other 
employment uses that could reasonably be expected to locate or expand in the 
planning area based on information about national, state, regional, county or local 
trends. This review of trends is the principal basis for estimating future industrial and 
other employment uses as described in section (4) of this rule. A use or category of 
use could reasonably be expected to expand or locate in the planning area if the area 
possesses the appropriate locational factors for the use or category of use. Cities and 
counties are strongly encouraged to analyze trends and establish employment 
projections in a geographic area larger than the planning area and to determine the 
percentage of employment growth reasonably expected to be captured for the 
planning area based on the assessment of community economic development potential 
pursuant to section (4) of this rule. 

Finding: The revised EOA contains the information described n sections (1) through (4) of OAR 
660-009-0015.  Section II of the EOA is the Economic Trends Analysis, which included the 
following items: national, state and regional trends; regional economic development industry 
clusters and target industries; Yamhill County agri-business; regional industrial land availability; 
Newberg population profile; and Newberg employment characteristics.  Newberg has identified 
four business clusters that are the foundation of its economy – manufacturing, health care, higher 
education, and the wine/tourism industry – and the majority of its economic development efforts 
will go into recruitment and expansion of existing businesses.  

(2) Identification of Required Site Types. The economic opportunities analysis must 
identify the number of sites by type reasonably expected to be needed to 
accommodate the expected employment growth based on the site characteristics 
typical of expected uses. Cities and counties are encouraged to examine existing firms 
in the planning area to identify the types of sites that may be needed for expansion.
Industrial or other employment uses with compatible site characteristics may be 
grouped together into common site categories. 

OAR 660-009-005(11) “Site Characteristics” means the attributes of a site necessary 
for a particular industrial or other employment use to operate.  Site characteristics 
include, but are not limited to, a minimum acreage or site configuration including 
shape and topography, visibility, specific types or levels of public facilities, services 

Page 317



Page C-7 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

or energy infrastructure, or proximity to a particular transportation or freight facility 
such as rail, marine ports and airports, multimodal freight or transshipment 
facilities, and major transportation routes.  

Finding: Newberg has identified the number of sites by site size it will need to meet its 
employment need through 2032 and to implement its economic development strategy.  It also has 
identified general types of land (industrial and commercial) that it anticipates it will need.  This 
strategy meets the requirement of OAR 660-009-0015(2) above, and also is in accordance with 
the recent LCDC approval of Woodburn’s UGB process.  In that decision, LCDC stated: 

“The commission understands and accepts the explanation of the city that 
identifying sites to meet employment needs is not an exercise where each potential 
site is matched with perfect information about a potential user at a specific point 
in the future. Rather, economic development planning under Goals 9 and 14 
evaluates opportunities and needs, and plans for a number of sites with
characteristics typically required for target industries that are likely to meet the 
community’s needs for employment over the planning period.” 

The Economic Opportunities Analysis also establishes site characteristics for industrial and 
commercial uses. Newberg used extensive research to determine required site characteristics, 
including the following sources:

� Interviews with local businesses – Climax Portable Machine Tools, ARE Manufacturing, 
Harris Thermal, and Owen Roe Winery – and with a local industrial land broker, Mike 
Gougler.

� Inventory of existing industrial sites in the region – sites in Canby, Forest Grove, 
McMinnville, Newberg, Sherwood, Tualatin, Wilsonville, and Woodburn – resulting in 
the report Typical Characteristics of Industrial Sites for Newberg Targeted Industrial 
Uses (Newberg Planning Division, 2011). 

� Inventory of the Economic Opportunities Analysis plans of other cities to gather 
information about their industrial site characteristics – Looked at the Economic 
Opportunities Analysis for the Cities of Ashland, Springfield, McMinnville, Cottage 
Grove, Silverton, Klamath Falls, and Cascade Locks.

� Review of statewide RFPs for industrial land requests.
� Review of materials from Business Oregon, including the State of Oregon Industrial 

Development Competitiveness Matrix and the application for Oregon Industrial Site 
Certification.

� Reports and materials from the Department of Land Conservation and Development, 
including a memo on Tips for Conducting an Economic Opportunities Analysis, a fact
sheet on Economic Opportunities Analyses, Goal 9 Handbook – Appendix A: Glossary, 
and Sufficiency of Commercial and Industrial Land in Oregon - Recommendations for 
Oregon Communities (2002).  

Page 318



Page C-8 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

� The Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future Report to City Council (2005), which 
specified site characteristics for each land type.  This report included expert materials 
from Winterbrook Planning and ECONorthwest, in addition to interviews with local 
businesses.  

� Other reports, including the following: Methods for Evaluating Commercial and 
Industrial Land Sufficiency: A Recommendation for Oregon Communities, Otak, 
Incorporated and ECONorthwest (2002); Portland Strategy for Economic Vitality (2002); 
Industrial/Business Park Standards: Rural Regions, Deloitte & Touche (2001); Ohio 
State University Extension Fact Sheet – Characteristics of an Industrial Site; Alabama 
Cooperative Extension System – Creating Industrial Sites (1999).

The Oregon Court of Appeals recently gave clarification on how to determine site characteristics.  
On February 1, 2010, the Newberg City Council adopted Ordinance 2010-2723, adopting 
revisions to its EOA.  Friends of Yamhill County and several citizens appealed the decision to 
the Land Use Board of Appeals (LUBA) in February 2010.  LUBA remanded the EOA and ruled 
on five of the six arguments presented by the petitioners, with the heart of the decision centering 
on how to define needed site suitability characteristics.  LUBA ruled that “site characteristics are 
properly viewed as attributes that are (1) typical of the industrial or employment use and (2) have 
some meaningful connection with the operation of the industrial or employment use.”  (Friends 
of Yamhill County v. City of Newberg, Or LUBA (August, 2010)). The petitioners appealed 
LUBA’s remand order to the Court of Appeals for judicial review in September 2010.

The Court of Appeals held oral argument in November 2010 and affirmed LUBA’s decision on 
February 16, 2011.  The Court stated the following in their affirmation:

“In that statutory and regulatory context, we agree with LUBA that ‘site characteristics’ 
need not be ‘indispensable’ to a particular use in order to be ‘necessary for a particular 
industrial or other employment use to operate.’ The intent of Division 9 is to ensure that 
there is an ‘adequate supply of land for economic development and employment growth 
in Oregon,’ OAR 660-009-0000, which is vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of 
the state. … That overriding intent to allow and plan for anticipated economic growth –
in part, through the identification of ‘site characteristics’ that make the land ‘suitable’ to 
meet the needs of anticipated growth – suggests something other than petitioners’ strict 
‘indispensability’ test that would take into consideration only those ‘site characteristics’ 
without which particular industry and employment uses could not operate. Rather, the 
planning scheme (based on projections and economic trends) suggests, as LUBA 
adopted, a more pragmatic approach toward accommodating economic growth: That 
‘necessary’ site characteristics are those attributes that are reasonably necessary to the 
successful operation of particular industrial or employment uses, in the sense that they 
bear some important relationship to that operation.” (Friends of Yamhill County v. City 
of Newberg, Or App (February 16, 2011)).

Page 319



Page C-9 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

Thus, consistent with this ruling, for each industrial and commercial site characteristic, the EOA 
identifies (1) what is typical for the use, and (2) how that characteristic has a meaningful 
connection with the operation of that use.  For industrial sites, the EOA establishes four 
characteristics:  site size, proximity, topography, and compatibility.  For commercial sites, the 
EOA also establishes four characteristics:  site size, proximity, topography, and compatibility.  A
complete explanation of each site suitability characteristic can be found on pages 49 (industrial) 
and 66 (commercial) of the EOA.  

The rule also allows common site categories to be grouped together.  Newberg has done this in 
their EOA by creating the categories of Industrial and Commercial.  Newberg studied their 
targeted employment uses and those employment uses permitted by the industrial and 
commercial zoning designations and found that they have compatible site characteristics that 
would facilitate grouping them together for analysis.  For example, all the industrial uses 
including warehousing, repair, wineries, specialty food processing and manufacturing operate 
successfully in industrial districts on level sites with close access to major roads, separated from 
incompatible residential uses, so it makes sense to group them together in the industrial category.  
Likewise, all the commercial uses, including retail, office, and services operate successfully in 
commercial districts on fairly level sites with close access to major roads, and with some 
separation from residential uses, so these also are grouped together in a commercial category.

(3) Inventory of Industrial and Other Employment Lands. Comprehensive plans for all 
areas within urban growth boundaries must include an inventory of vacant and 
developed lands within the planning area designated for industrial or other 
employment use. 
(a) For sites inventoried under this section, plans must provide the following 

information: 
(A) The description, including site characteristics, of vacant or developed sites 

within each plan or zoning district; 
(B) A description of any development constraints or infrastructure needs that 

affect the buildable area of sites in the inventory; and 
(C) For cities and counties within a Metropolitan Planning Organization, the 

inventory must also include the approximate total acreage and percentage of 
sites within each plan or zoning district that comprise the short-term supply of 
land. 

(b) When comparing current land supply to the projected demand, cities and counties 
may inventory contiguous lots or parcels together that are within a discrete plan 
or zoning district. 

(c) Cities and counties that adopt objectives or policies providing for prime industrial 
land pursuant to OAR 660-009-0020(6) and 660-009-0025(8) must identify and 
inventory any vacant or developed prime industrial land according to section 3(a) 
of this rule.

Page 320



Page C-{` �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

Finding: The revised EOA includes an inventory of industrial and other employment lands 
within the urban growth boundary.  The buildable land inventories have been updated, and the 
existing industrial areas are labeled and discussed in Section V.  The existing industrial areas 
within the UGB are also shown in the EOA.

(4) Assessment of Community Economic Development Potential. The economic 
opportunities analysis must estimate the types and amounts of industrial and other 
employment uses likely to occur in the planning area. The estimate must be based on 
information generated in response to sections (1) to (3) of this rule and must consider 
the planning area's economic advantages and disadvantages. Relevant economic 
advantages and disadvantages to be considered may include but are not limited to: 
(a) Location, size and buying power of markets; 
(b) Availability of transportation facilities for access and freight mobility; 
(c) Public facilities and public services; 
(d) Labor market factors; 
(e) Access to suppliers and utilities; 
(f) Necessary support services; 
(g) Limits on development due to federal and state environmental protection laws; 
(h) Educational and technical training programs. 

(5) Cities and counties are strongly encouraged to assess community economic 
development potential through a visioning or some other public input based process 
in conjunction with state agencies. Cities and counties are strongly encouraged to use 
the assessment of community economic development potential to form the community 
economic development objectives pursuant to OAR 660-009-0020(1)(a). 

Finding: Section III of the revised EOA is the Assessment of Community Economic 
Development Potential.  This section includes employment projections, Newberg’s comparative 
advantages and disadvantages, and a discussion of Newberg’s special opportunities to capitalize 
on its unique niche geographically and in the regional marketplace.  Newberg’s comparative 
advantages and disadvantages include the following:

Page 321



Page C-11 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�������\!��!^�_`{_ 

Newberg’s economic development strategy is discussed in Section IV of the revised EOA.  This 
section includes actions to capitalize on Newberg’s comparative advantages and to address the 
comparative disadvantages. The assessment of Newberg’s future economic development 
potential and strategy largely came from the work done by the City Council appointed Ad Hoc
Committee on Newberg’s Future (the committee), which met from April 2004 to June 2005.  
During that time, the committee worked with city staff and consultants, and also sought input 
from the general public through open houses, surveys, and public comments during their 
meetings.  The committee’s work resulted in the Ad Hoc Committee on Newberg’s Future 
Report to City Council, which was adopted in 2005.  The Report contained recommendations to 
provide for future land needs, ways to change some of the existing comprehensive plan/zoning 
designations to accommodate growth patterns, and identified areas where the city’s urban growth 
boundary and the urban reserve boundary should be modified to include land to meet the future 
land needs.  The recommendations were based on careful consideration of the city’s future 
population growth and on the desires stated by citizens throughout the committee’s process.

Disadvantages:
� Transportation and access issues
� Lack of suitable employment sites
� Highly parcelized land outside 

UGB limits ability to meet 
employment site requirements

� Stressed commercial sector
� Retail dollar leakage due to close 

proximity to metropolitan area 
markets

� Market pressures on SP Newsprint
� Oregon’s statewide planning goals

Advantages:
� Small town quality of life
� Access to quality education and 

skills training
� Established and growing industry

clusters
� Strong local support for business and 

employment opportunities
� Proximity to the Portland 

Metropolitan region
� Future Newberg-Dundee Bypass
� Oregon’s statewide planning goals

Page 322



Page D-1 �����������������������	!�"�*�����������	�– �??���@�D ����\!��!^�_`{_ 
 

Appendix D:  Yamhill County Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

Newberg Urban Area Coordinated Population Forecast

In 2012, Newberg conducted an analysis of needs for industrial lands.  As part of that analysis, 
Newberg proposed a coordinated population forecast using the OAR 660-024-0030 (4)(b) safe 
harbor, which provides:

A city and county may adopt a 20-year forecast for an urban area consistent with this section. 
The forecast is deemed to comply with applicable goals and laws regarding population forecasts 
for purposes of the current UGB evaluation or amendment provided the forecast: 
(A) Is adopted by the city and county in accordance with the notice, procedures and 
requirements described in section (1) of this rule; 
(B) Is based on OEA's population forecast for the county for a 20-year period commencing on 
the date determined under OAR 660-024-0040(2); and 
(C) Is developed by assuming that the urban area's share of the forecasted county population 
determined in subsection (B) of this rule will be the same as the urban area's current share of 
county population based on the most recent certified population estimates from Portland State 
University and the most recent data for the urban area published by the U.S. Census Bureau. 

Using this methodology, the County adopts a 2032 coordinated population forecast of 33,367 for 
the Newberg Urban Area for purposes of the 2012 Newberg Industrial UGB Amendment, as 
shown in the table below.

Newberg Urban Area 2032 Population Forecast
Using the OAR 660-024-0030(4)(b) Safe Harbor

Population 
Estimate

Population 
Forecast

2011 2032
Yamhill County 99,850 146,167
Newberg UGB 22,794 33,367
Newberg UGB % of 
County 22.8% 22.8%

Sources:  The Yamhill County 2011 estimate is from Portland State University Population Research 
Center (2011).  The Newberg UGB 2011 estimate was derived using the revised July 1, 2011 PSU 
population estimate for the city, and adding the 2010 Census data at the block level for land between the 
UGB and city limits The Yamhill County 2032 population forecast is from the Oregon Office of 
Economic Analysis (2003).  The 2032 county population forecast was interpolated using OEA’s 
forecasted 2030-2035 growth rate.

Page 323



Page E-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix E��February 2012 

 

Appendix E: Newberg Water Treatment Plant Needs Information 
 

 

 

Page 324



Appendix E

Excerpt from Public
Facilities Chapter of
Newberg
Comprehensive Plan
Text

Page 325



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-1 

7 FACILITIES PLANNING FOR A NEW WATER TREATMENT 
PLANT

The City of Newberg’s existing Water Treatment  Plant  (WTP) is  located on an 
extremely small site with little space for future expansion.  In addition, the existing WTP 
is recognized as having a limited remaining useful life, estimated to be 15 to 20 years in 
duration.  The purpose of this section is to identify potentially viable process alternatives 
for a new treatment plant to treat the City’s groundwater supply, to develop a site layout 
for the purpose of identifying space requirements for possible land purchase, review 
alternative sites selected by the City, and develop preliminary cost estimates for a new 
facility.  

7.1 DESIGN CRITERIA

This section discusses the two key design criteria for selecting and sizing a new WTP; 1) 
hydraulic capacity and, 2) groundwater iron levels.  These criteria are discussed below 
and summarized in Table 7.1. 

TABLE 7.1 SUMMARY OF KEY DESIGN CRITERIA

Parameter Value
Hydraulic
 Year 2027 Peak Day Demand 12 mgd 
 Initial Average Demand 3.5 mgd 
 Build-Out Capacity 23 mgd 
Iron Concentration  
 Average 4.0 mg/L 
 90th %tile 6.5 mg/L 
 Peak 12 mg/L 
 Treated 0.05 mg/L 

Hydraulic Capacity.  As discussed briefly in Section 6 and in more detail in Section 8, 
there are various scenarios which the City can consider for continuing to use the existing 
plant and for constructing a new plant.  These scenarios result in different initial 
capacities of the new plant depending on when it is brought on-line and how long the 
initial constructed capacity is expected to last before the new plant requires expansion.  
For the purposes of this facilities plan, the new plant’s initial capacity will be expected to 
last for 10 years after construction and that subsequent expansion will provide adequate 
capacity for another 15 years based on the City’s water demand projections as presented 
in Section 2.  For these purposes, the largest initial new plant capacity considered is 12 
mgd for a scenario where the new plant would be brought on-line in 2015.  Hence, Table 
7.1 indicates a 12 mgd capacity to serve the City until at least 2027, but other capacities 
are also considered herein.  Future discussions in this section focus on a 12 mgd initial 
plant capacity, but cost estimates are provided for smaller initial capacities also. 

  Appendix E

Page 326



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-2 

O&M costs should be based on the plant average flow in the first year of plant operation.  
Based on the demand projections, the estimated average daily demand in the Year 2012 is 
approximately 3.5 mgd increasing to about 5.6 mgd in the Year 2030.

While the initial plant capacity will be based on a 10-year projection, the total space 
requirements must be based on the ultimate system demands to ensure adequate space for 
future expansion.  Based on the demand projections, the ultimate City demand at “build-
out” is approximately 23 mgd.   

Iron Concentrations.  Historical iron levels in the City’s wells were shown in Section 2.  
For the purposes of this Facilities Plan, it is assumed that future wells added to the system 
will have similar iron levels as those measured in the historical data.  The current average 
iron concentration from the wellfield is approximately 4 mg/L and the peak observed 
level is 12 mg/L.   A well-operated iron removal facility should consistently be able to 
reduce iron levels in the raw water to less than 0.05 mg/L in the treated water.  This is 
well below the secondary MCL for iron of 0.3 mg/L.  The plant should also be able to 
remove any dissolved manganese which is present in the groundwater. 

7.2 TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS 

Dissolved iron in well water is typically removed through an oxidation step, followed by 
adequate contact time to allow the oxidation reactions to take place, followed by a 
conventional filtration process (rapid sand filters, dual media gravity filters, etc.).  The 
oxidation step converts the iron to the solid form of iron hydroxide that can subsequently 
be removed in the filtration process.  This describes the current process train at the 
existing WTP.  Similar oxidation of manganese also occurs, but at a slower rate than iron. 

Recent plant experience has demonstrated that the current process train places a 
significant strain on the filters.  Current iron levels in the wells produce a substantial 
amount of solids that must be entirely removed in the filters. In the absence of a 
clarification process to remove solids prior to filtration, the filters can be quickly 
overloaded and require frequent backwashing.  Short filter runs reduce plant efficiency, 
increase backwash volume and overwhelm the solids handling facilities.  Section 6 
reviews the costs and benefits of adding clarification to the existing plant. 

There are two primary treatment process trains that are viable for treatment of the 
existing groundwater system and should be evaluated for a new WTP:    

1. Oxidation        contact time        clarification       conventional granular filtration 
2. Oxidation        contact time        submerged membrane filtration 

Process train 1 is similar to the existing treatment plant but includes a clarification 
process to remove solids prior to filtration. Process train 2 combines the clarification and 
filtration process into a single membrane filtration process.    The following section 
describes the various treatment alternatives and identifies processes that are appropriate 
for a new WTP.  The section is organized by unit process. 

  Appendix E

Page 327



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-3 

7.2.1 Oxidation 

Oxidation is required to convert the iron to iron hydroxide (and manganese to manganese 
dioxide) for subsequent removal through clarification and filtration.  There are a number 
of oxidants that can oxidize iron; however, for the Newberg WTP, only two options are 
considered viable: aeration or chorine addition.  For the purposes of sizing a new facility, 
it is assumed that the City will continue to use free chlorine for oxidation of iron.  
Chlorination requires less headloss, a smaller footprint, is easier to operate and incurs 
lower maintenance costs.   However, aeration is a viable alternative for iron oxidation for 
a new facility if the City desires to store and add less chlorine than would be required for 
chlorine oxidation.  Chlorine will still have to be added for final disinfection and for 
maintaining a residual in the distribution system.    

An additional oxidation process that could be considered for a future treatment plant is 
“biologically assisted oxidation”.  Infilco Degremont manufactures this proprietary 
process under the name “Ferazur”.  In the process, iron-oxidizing bacteria excrete an 
enzyme, which catalyzes the oxidation rate of iron through aeration.  This eliminates the 
need for a chemical oxidant and reduces the contact time necessary to complete the 
oxidation step.  Further, the manufacturer claims that the floc formed in this process is 
much more “compact” than chemically-oxidized floc and thus less clogging to filters.  
Compact floc allows longer filter runs, higher filtration rates, less frequent backwashing, 
and results in lower solids production.  The process is not very common in the US and 
there are currently only a small number of full-scale installations.  Since this process is 
relatively new to the US, a pilot study would be recommended to prove its performance 
and to develop appropriate design criteria before it could be recommended for a new 
facility. 

7.2.2 Contact Time  

The contact time required for iron oxidation is based on several factors including the 
method of oxidation, the form of dissolved iron and the water pH.  With chlorine 
oxidation, the rate of oxidation increases with increasing pH.  In general, an oxidation pH 
of approximately 8.0 is considered optimum with diminishing returns at higher pH levels.  
Currently, the plant adds sodium hydroxide at the filter effluent to increase pH to 
approximately 7.5 for corrosion control prior to distribution.  It is recommended that 
sodium hydroxide be added to the raw water prior to oxidation to reduce the volume 
required for the contact chamber.  Assuming optimization of pH coupled with chlorine 
oxidation, a design detention time of 15 minutes is recommended.   

7.2.3 Clarification 

There are a significant number of clarification options for treatment of high iron water.  
Processes that could be used in this application include the following: 

� Conventional or High- Rate Horizontal Sedimentation Basin 
� Actiflo  
� Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF) 

  Appendix E

Page 328



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-4 

� Two-stage filtration 
� Sludge Blanket or Reactor Clarifiers

Conventional and High-Rate Horizontal-Flow Sedimentation.  Conventional
horizontal-flow sedimentation basins are the most commonly designed sedimentation 
process and consist of long narrow basins, which allow solids to settle as water travels the 
length of the basin.  Typical surface loading rates for conventional horizontal flow basins 
range from approximately 0.5 to 1.0 gpm/sf.  Inclined plates (e.g. Lamella plates) or 
tubes can be added to conventional sedimentation basins to increase the surface area 
available for solids removal, thereby increasing the allowable surface loading rate 
through the basin.  Typical surface loading rates for the area covered by tubes or plates 
range from approximately 2 to 4 gpm/sf, reducing the necessary basin area up to 2- to 3-
fold as compared to a conventional sedimentation process. Unlike most solids in surface 
water treatment, iron hydroxide floc is very light and does not settle well.  In order to 
create a settleable floc, it would be necessary to add a flocculant aid to “weigh” the floc 
down.  In addition, gravity sedimentation of a lightweight floc requires a significant 
amount of space.  Long basins with low surface loading rates would be required to 
provide time for the floc to settle.   These basins require a significant amount of space 
and are typically more expensive than other higher rate processes available.  Therefore, 
conventional sedimentation would not be recommended for a new facility. 

Actiflo. The Actiflo process combines flocculation/sedimentation process into a single 
unit and allows significantly higher surface loading rates than conventional processes. In 
the Actiflo process, microsand (50 to 100 µm diameter), coagulant and polymer are 
injected into the influent water.  The chemicals and microsand combine in the 
flocculation process to form a heavy floc, which readily settles in the downstream 
clarification process. Floc collected from the clarification process is pumped through a 
hydrocyclone where the microsand is separated from the remainder of the floc.  The 
separated microsand is recycled back into the basin while the floc is diverted to solids 
treatment (e.g., lagoons).  While Actiflo is an acceptable treatment option for a new 
facility, there are lower cost options (both construction and operating) available to 
remove iron solids from the water that contain less mechanical equipment and are easier 
to operate.  Therefore, Actiflo would not be recommended for a new facility.

Dissolved Air Flotation (DAF). Dissolved air flotation uses tiny air bubbles to create 
buoyant floc which float to the surface of the basin.    The process is typically used in 
applications where a lightweight floc is formed or if there is significant algae in the 
source water.   A sidestream of clarified water is saturated with air in a pressure vessel 
and is then recirculated to the head of the basin where it is mixed with the influent water.  
The pressurized water releases tiny air bubbles in the basin which adhere to the influent 
floc material causing the floc to float to the basin surface.  The surface sludge, called 
“float, is continuously removed from the basin by rotating surface skimmers.  The float is 
discharged into a channel where it is diverted to the solids handling facilities.   Clarified 
water from the basin is captured in perforated pipes located near the bottom of the basin.   
DAF is a viable option for removal of the lightweight iron hydroxide floc formed during 
iron oxidation and should be considered for a future WTP. 

  Appendix E

Page 329



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-5 

Two-stage Filtration.  The two-stage filtration process was developed many years ago 
and has been used for over 15 years in the United States, mostly in “package plant” 
applications.  The process consists of oxidation followed by two stages of filtration.  The 
first filtration stage is considered a “roughing” filter, which captures approximately 80 
percent of solids on the coarse media.  The high-rate, roughing filter usually contains 
upflow buoyant media and combines the flocculation and clarification process into a 
single unit.  Large-sized buoyant media is placed in a basin and flocculation is achieved 
by the “microturbulence” created as the water passes through the media.  The flocculated 
material adheres and accumulates to the surface of the buoyant media and is periodically 
removed through backwashing.   

These types of processes are sometimes called “contact clarifiers” and when combined 
with filtration, the process is called “contact filtration” or “two-stage filtration”.  These 
types of processes can be operated at loading rates up to 10 gpm/sf providing significant 
space savings.  The second stage of filtration usually consists of down-flow multimedia 
gravity filtration at rates from 4 to 6 gpm/sf. The basins must be operated at 50 to 100% 
of their design capacity to perform effectively.  Typically, contact filtration is suitable for 
waters with turbidity levels up to 50 NTU.  Two-stage filtration would be an appropriate 
process for treatment of the well supply and should be considered for a future facility. 

Sludge Blanket or Reactor Clarifiers.  Sludge Blanket and Reactor Clarifiers are 
upflow units, are very compact and are pre-engineered by equipment manufacturers.  
Both of these processes rely on contact of the influent flow with a pre-formed layer of 
sludge held in suspension by balancing upward flow with weighted floc.  Sludge blanket 
clarifiers and reactor-clarifiers are appropriate for systems with steady water quality and 
relatively constant flow rates.  Rapid changes in either of these parameters can upset the 
balance in the reactor.  Since it is likely that the City will not operate the plant 24 hours 
per day, neither of these processes is recommended for a new facility.  It may also be 
difficult to create a heavy enough floc to properly operate within the clarifier due to the 
light ferric hydroxide floc formed by iron oxidation. 

7.2.4 Filtration 

Granular media filtration would be used if a conventional filtration process including 
clarification was selected.  Submerged membranes, if selected, would replace the 
clarification and granular media filtration processes.  Both granular media and submerged 
membrane filtration are discussed in this section. 

Granular Media Filtration. The existing filters at the WTP are tri-media containing 
layers of anthracite, sand and garnet.  The trimedia filter is typically found in older plants 
and is not commonly used in modern plants.  Standard dual media granular filters 
containing a bed of anthracite media over a shallow bed of sand are recommended for a 
new WTP.   Dual media filters have been shown to provide similar removal efficiencies 
as tri-media filters while reducing the rate of headloss accumulation observed with 
smaller sized trimedia filters.   Based on pilot experience, a relatively deep media bed 
containing approximately 4 to 5 feet of anthracite over 12 inches of sand should be 

  Appendix E

Page 330



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-6 

sufficient to allow filtration rates up to 8 gpm/sf with one filter out of service and 6 
gpm/sf with all filters in service.  The deeper media allows higher filtration rates which 
reduces the surface area required for filtration and lowers construction costs.  For a 12 
mgd treatment plant, four dual-media filters are recommended.  Four filters balance the 
hydraulic impact to the plant when one filter is out of service for backwashing with the 
cost of filter construction.   

Submerged Membrane Filtration.  Submerged membranes differ from more 
conventional pressure membranes in that water is suctioned through the membrane rather 
than pumped.   Cartridges of membranes are submerged in a basin and pumps are used to 
provide a slight vacuum to suction the flow.  The membrane basin contains a series of air 
diffusers on the basin bottom, which keeps solids in suspension and prevents them from 
adhering to the membrane surface.   Since the process is operated at relatively low 
pressures and solids do not clog the surface, this type of membrane can treat waters with 
significantly higher solids content than traditional pressure membrane filters.  For 
treatment of the well water, an oxidation and contact time step would be required ahead 
of the membrane filters.  The oxidized iron solids would then flow to the membrane basin 
where the finished water is suctioned through the membrane and the solids are 
continuously “bled” from the basin and diverted to the solids handling facilities.   
Approximately every 15 minutes, a pulse of water is backfed through the membrane for 
approximately 30 seconds to dislodge any solids from the surface.   

Membrane filtration is gaining increased popularity in the U.S. market.  Membrane 
technology is developing quickly resulting in lower cost equipment and smaller space 
requirements and will continue to develop in the future achieving further improvements.  
Membrane systems are typically fully automated and require minimal operator attention.  
Submerged membrane technology is an appropriate technology for treatment of the well 
water.  The process requires the smallest footprint of all of the options available and 
construction costs have been decreasing to the point that membranes would be very 
competitive with a conventional treatment plant. 

7.3 SUMMARY OF TREATMENT ALTERNATIVES

Table 7.2 provides a summary of potentially viable treatment alternatives for a new WTP 
facility for the City of Newberg.  As shown, there are a number of viable process 
alternatives to treat the high iron levels in the groundwater supply.  For a conventional 
treatment plant, a treatment sequence of chlorination, contact time, DAF and granular 
filtration would produce excellent water quality.  A roughing filter (first stage of two-
stage filtration) could replace the DAF process in this sequence without compromising 
performance.  For a more automated and easier to operate facility, a treatment sequence 
of chlorination, contact time and submerged membranes would best meet the City’s 
objectives.  As the City moves closer to constructing a new facility, a detailed 
comparison of each of these alternatives will help the City to select the most appropriate 
facility to meet their objectives. 

  Appendix E

Page 331



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-7 

Table 7.2  Summary of Viable and Recommended Treatment Alternatives 
 Process Effectiveness Recommended? 
Oxidation  
 Aeration +  
 Chlorination + Yes
 Biologically-Aided Aeration Unknown
Contactor + Yes
Clarification  
 Conventional/High Rate Conv. o
 Actiflo +
 Dissolved Air Flotation + Yes
 Two-Stage Filtration + Yes
 Reactor/Sludge Blanket Clarifier - 
Filtration  
 Granular Media Filters + Yes
 Submerged Membrane + Yes

7.4 ANCILLARY FACILITIES:

This section discusses the options and recommendations for the following ancillary water 
treatment facilities: 

� Solids Handling 
� Clearwell
� Chemical Feed 
� High Service Pumping 
� Administration/Laboratory Building 

7.4.1 Solids Handling 

Estimated Sludge Production.  Assuming an initial average daily flow rate of 3.5 mgd 
and 4 mg/L iron, approximately 280 pounds per day (ppd) of dry solids will be produced 
or about 50 dry tons per year.   If the solids are dewatered to a minimum of 15%, 50 dry 
tons of sludge is equivalent to approximately 335 wet tons.  At design capacity, average 
daily sludge production is estimated to increase to approximately 400 ppd (dry) or 75 dry 
tons annually (500 wet tons).

Solids Handling Processes.  The type of solids handling processes selected for a new 
facility will depend largely on the method of disposal.  The two available options are 
landfill disposal or delivering solids to the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP).  
Assuming that the WWTP has sufficient solids and hydraulic capacity, disposal to the 
sanitary sewer is the least expensive option and requires the smallest footprint.  Many 
WWTPs find iron floc to be beneficial to the plant performance by enhancing primary 
clarification and improving phosphorous removal.  Water treatment solids streams can be 
pumped directly the WWTP, or more commonly, are thickened to approximately 2 to 4 % 

  Appendix E

Page 332



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-8 

solids and stored in an equalization basin prior to discharge to the WWTP.  Thickening 
and equalization substantially reduces the pumping and piping capacity needed to divert 
solids and reduces the hydraulic load to the wastewater plant.  Currently, the existing 
WTP stores backwash solids in a lagoon and as required, suctions the thickened sludge 
from the basin and hauls it to the WWTP for treatment and disposal.  For the purposes of 
this facilities plan, it is assumed that the City will be able to continue to discharge solids 
to the WWTP from a new WTP.  However, space should be provided at the new site for 
future dewatering facilities if the WWTP is no longer able to accept the sludge and the 
City is forced to haul solids to a landfill.    

If sludge must be hauled to a landfill, the sludge must be thickened and dewatered to a 
minimum of approximately 15% solids.  Either a mechanical dewatering process such as 
belt filter press or centrifuge or a gravity dewatering process such as sludge lagoons or 
sand drying beds could be used.  In the Portland region, most WTPs combine the 
thickening and dewatering process in  sludge lagoons and either haul the sludge cake to a 
landfill or dispose of the sludge on-site.  At the new plant in Wilsonville, a gravity sludge 
thickener and centrifuge facility were required because the WWTP did not have sufficient 
solids handling capacity to accept the sludge and there was insufficient space for a sludge 
lagoon system.  Mechanical dewatering systems are typically only used for very large 
plants or plants with significant space constraints where WWTP disposal is not a viable 
option.  For estimating future space requirements, space should be provided for the 
potential future addition of sludge lagoons. Figure 7.1 provides a schematic of the solids 
handling and disposal options available.

Figure 7.1 
Solids Handling Process Options

Disposal
  WWTP 

Landfill
  Thickening   Dewatering 

Lagoon Lagoon
Gravity Thickener Sand Drying Bed 
High Rate Thickener Mechanical Dewatering 
Dissolved Air Flotation Centrifuge 
 Belt Press  

7.4.2 Clearwell 

On-site, finished water storage (clearwell) can be used to provide plant flow equalization, 
emergency storage during plant shutdowns, a source of backwash water, disinfection 
contact time, and serve as a wetwell for finished water pumping.  Most plant upsets or 
major equipment failures can be resolved in approximately two to four hours, thus the 
absolute minimum recommended clearwell volume needed for emergency plant 
shutdowns is two hours storage at the design flow rate.  At the initial design capacity of 
12 mgd, 2 hours of storage requires a 1 MG clearwell.  Thus, the absolute minimum 
recommended clearwell volume for the new plant is 1 MG, noting that additional on-site 
storage would provide greater operational flexibility and a longer buffer period during 

  Appendix E

Page 333



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-9 

plant shut-downs.  At ultimate capacity of 23 mgd, a minimum of 2 MG storage is 
recommended. 

The initial clearwell should contain two separate compartments of equal volume to allow 
periodic cleaning.  A rectangular shaped clearwell (as opposed to circular) is 
recommended to minimize space requirements and facilitate future expansion. 

7.4.3 Finished Water Pump Station 

For the purposes of this Facilities Plan, it is assumed that the finished water pumps will 
be vertical turbine and will be located on the deck of the clearwell.  This is typically the 
most economical design for finished water pumping and reduces the total space 
requirement by eliminating the need for a separate pump building.  The pump station will 
also house the backwash pumps, for gravity filtration options. 

7.4.4 Chemical Feed Facilities 

Four chemical feed systems are recommended for the new treatment plant: 

Chlorine.  Chlorine can be delivered in either a liquid (sodium hypochlorite) or gaseous 
(chlorine gas) form or hypochlorite can be generated on-site.  Either on-site hypochlorite 
generation (0.8%) or delivered sodium hypochlorite (12.5% maximum) is recommended 
for use at the new WTP.  Both options provide a higher degree of safety than with 
transport and storage of ton cylinders of compressed chlorine gas and eliminate the need 
to comply with UFC requirements for storage of a hazardous gas (chlorine scrubber room 
with ventilation).  For the purposes of this Facilities Plan, it is assumed that delivered 
hypochlorite will be used.  Hypochlorite can be stored in HDPE tanks and fed with 
chemical metering pumps.  Special consideration must be given to the design of the 
system to allow the escape of oxygen gas that is a byproduct of hypochlorite decay.

Sodium Hydroxide. Sodium hydroxide is recommended to increase the pH of the raw 
water to increase the rate of iron oxidation and thereby reduce the required size of the 
contact chamber.  Sodium hydroxide can also be added to the finished water if necessary 
to adjust the pH prior to distribution. Sodium hydroxide can be purchased as either a 25% 
or 50% solution.  The 50% solution is less expensive per pound of caustic and requires 
smaller capacity pumps and tanks to store and feed chemical but it has a freezing point of 
approximately 55 F.  If 50% sodium hydroxide is delivered, it would either have to be 
stored and fed at temperatures above 55 F or it would have to be diluted on-site to 
approximately 25% upon delivery.  The freezing point of 25% sodium hydroxide is 0�F,
so no special precautions need to be made for storing it in a warm environment.  It is 
recommended that the 50% solution be provided and stored in indoors with adequate 
heating and ventilation to maintain a minimum of 60�F.  However, the chemical storage 
and feed equipment should be designed to allow for dilution if needed.

Solids Handling Polymer.  The thickening process typically requires addition of a high 
molecular weight anionic or nonionic polymer to aid in sedimentation. Polymers can be 
purchased in both liquid and dry forms.  The dry form can either be batched manually or 

  Appendix E

Page 334



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-10 

fed with an automated dry feeder.  Liquid filter aid can be stored in tanks, totes or drums 
and fed with a chemical metering pump.  Liquid polymer addition requires the least 
operator attention and maintenance and based on the volume required, is recommended 
for this application.  It is assumed that the polymer will be stored in delivered 55 gallon 
drums or totes. 

Filter Aid Polymer (Granular Media Filtration Only). Addition of filter aid is 
recommended to enhance filter production and turbidity removal if a granular media 
filtration process is selected.  Filter aid polymers are similar to solids handling polymers 
and can be purchased in either liquid or dry forms.  Based on the low doses required, it is 
assumed that the filter aid will be stored in delivered 55 gallon drums or larger totes. 

7.4.5 Administrative/Laboratory Space 

The following minimum administrative space is recommended for a new 12 mgd WTP: 

Control Room 250 s.f. 
Laboratory 750 s.f. 
Maintenance/Storage Area 750 s.f. 
Conference/Lunch Room 300 s.f. 
Offices (2) 300 s.f. 
Toilet/Lockers/Showers (2) 1000 s.f. 
Mechanical Room 200 s.f. 
Electrical Equipment   200 s.f. 
Total Minimum Useable Area  3,750 s.f. 

7.5 WTP SITE LAYOUT

The approximate space required for the 12 mgd WTP, including room for future 
expansion to 23 mgd, is 3.0 acres.  As a point of reference, the existing WTP sits on 
approximately 1.25 acres and has an ultimate capacity of about 10 MGD. 

There are five potential sites available for locating the new facility based on a City survey 
of available land in the general vicinity of the existing WTP.  These sites are identified as 
A through E on Figure 7.2.  Table 7.3 provides a summary of the characteristics of each 
site.  Usable area refers to land area located above the flood plain.  All of the sites have 
sufficient useable space to locate the new WTP including room for expansion to 23 
MGD.  However, the topography of Site B appears to be not well suited for construction 
of a new WTP; most of the site is on a slope or in a low-lying area.  Sites A, B, C and D 
are all located at an elevation similar to the existing treatment plant and therefore, 
minimal reduction in well pumping capacity would be expected.  However, Site E is 
about 20 to 30 feet higher than the existing site and a noticeable reduction in well 
capacity would need to be accounted for if a plant was located at this site.  Site D is 
within the proposed transportation bypass route for the City.  Site A is closest to the 
wellfield, requiring fewer pipeline upgrades for a new raw water supply.  It has good

 Appendix E

Page 335



Appendix E

Page 336



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-11 

access to Wynooski Street, which would make chemical deliveries more efficient and 
safe.  In addition, it is not in a residential area, and is very close to the WWTP.  The 
proximity of the two facilities is also an advantage.

TABLE 7.3 SUMMARY OF AVAILABLE SITES FOR NEW WATER TREATMENT PLANT

Site
Size 
(Ac)

Useable
Size (Ac) 

Average
Elevation (ft) 

UGB
Designation 

Site A     
 A1 0.5 0.5 150 Commercial 
 A2 4.4 1.19 128 Commercial 
 A3 8.01 3.25 130 Commercial 
Site B 19.27 14.16 128 Commercial 
Site C 14.4 12.5 138 Commercial 
Site D 16.52 11.36 140 Industrial 
Site E 10.0 10.0 160 Industrial 

Due to constructability, accessibility and hydraulic considerations as well as proximity to 
the wellfield, Site A appears to be best-suited for use as a WTP site and is recommended.  
SP Newsprint currently owns Site A, including all three parcels.  It is recommended that 
the City pursue purchase of this property as soon as it is feasible.  Based on an appraisal 
performed in 2001 by Ron Woodard for the Morland property (Site D), the estimated cost 
for Site A is $311,313 in 2001 dollars (calculated on a per acre basis). 

A WTP layout was prepared on Site A to ensure that this site is appropriate for a future 
WTP.  A 12 MGD conventional filtration plant utilizing dissolved air flotation was 
selected for a site layout since this treatment train requires the largest footprint of the 
recommended alternatives.  Thus, it represents a conservative estimate of the space 
needed for a new plant.   Figure 7.3 shows the layout of the new facility overlaid on the 
City’s preferred site.  Facilities shown on the site include: 

� Three, Parallel Contact Basins with Baffle Walls 
� Three, Parallel DAF basins 
� Four, Granular Media Filters
� 1 MG Clearwell with High Service Pump Station 
� 1 Backwash Equalization Basin 
� 1 Solids Thickener and Pump Station 
� Administration Building Including Chemical Feed Facilities 

Space is also shown for future expansion that would include the following additional 
facilities: 

� Three Sludge Lagoons 

 Appendix E

Page 337



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-12 

� One Additional Sludge Thickener 
� Four Additional Filters 
� Three Additional Contact Basins 
� Three Additional DAF Basins 

As shown, the acreage of this site is adequate to accommodate a WTP.  However, 
potential site constraints will need to be evaluated prior to a decision on land purchase.  
Potential site constraints such as wetlands/drainages, FEMA floodplain boundaries, 
threatened and endangered species and habitat, zoning requirements and hazardous waste  
contamination from prior uses can significantly limit the actual acreage available for 
plant construction.  A reconnaissance level evaluation to determine the potential for these 
types of site constraints should be completed prior to purchase. 

7.6 WTP COST ESTIMATE

Budget level estimates for a new WTP were prepared and are shown in Table 7.4.  It is 
normally expected that an estimate of this type would be accurate within plus 30 percent 
or minus 15 percent of the actual cost.  As a reference, the current 20 City ENR CCI for 
the Seattle Region is 7,560 (Feb 2002).  The total estimated construction cost for a 12 
mgd conventional water treatment plant is approximately $11.5 million.  Typically, 
construction costs for new WTPs fall in the range of $0.85 to $1.25 per gallon depending 
on process complexity and site specific conditions.  The $0.96 per gallon used for this 
estimate falls within the lower range of typical costs and reflects a lower level of process 
complexity.  An additional 40% was added to the construction cost to account for design, 
construction management services, administration, legal services, and contingencies 
bringing the total estimated project cost of a new plant to just over $16 million.  

 Appendix E

Page 338



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-13 

TABLE 7.4 COST ESTIMATE FOR NEW 12 MGD CONVENTIONAL WTP 

 Construction
Item  Cost
Yard Piping*  $    1,740,000 
Site Civil Work  $    1,044,000 
Administration Building  $       550,000 
Chemical Feed Facilities  $       290,000 
Flocculation Basins  $       490,000 
Dissolved Air Flotation Basins  $       975,000 
Deep Bed Filters w/ Air Scour  $    1,820,000 
1 MG Clearwell  $       570,000 
Finished Water Pump Station  $       930,000 
Backwash Equalization  $       580,000 
Sludge Thickener and Pump Station  $       250,000 
Electrical/Instrumentation (@ 20%)  $    2,280,000 

Construction Sub-Total  $  11,500,000 

Contingencies, Engineering and CM, 
Admin (@ 40%) 

 $    4,600,000 

TOTAL CAPITAL COST***  $  16,100,000 
* Does not include raw and finished water pipelines which are site specific.  

Transmission System Costs are presented in Table 7.5.  
** Does not include land acquisition costs. 
***Costs are in 2002 dollars  

Based on this estimate for a new 12 mgd WTP, project cost estimates were also 
developed for smaller initial capacities if a new WTP is constructed earlier than 2015.  
The estimated project costs for these smaller capacities are: 
� 9 mgd initial capacity = $12.9 million 
� 5 mgd initial capacity = $8.4 million 

The cost of Raw Water Transmission and Finished Water Transmission are specific to the 
site selected for the new WTP.  Of the five potential sites selected by the City, 
transmission costs for only A, B, and C were evaluated since they represent the most 
desirable options according to the City.  Each of these sites is located along or near the 
existing 18-inch finished water transmission pipeline extending east from the existing 
WTP to Wynooski Rd.  The new plant should be able to connect to this existing 18-inch 
line and deliver the initial treated water plant capacity of 12 mgd with flow splitting to 
the west (back through the pipe towards the existing WTP) and also to the east.  Based on 
preliminary hydraulic calculations, this approach should have a transmission capacity of 
11 to 14 mgd.  The City will need to conduct additional hydraulic modeling to determine 
the exact capacity, and this will also be affected by possible improvements to the 
distribution system in the future.  No additional finished water transmission piping should 

 Appendix E

Page 339



City of Newberg Water Treatment Facilities Plan 
June 2002 Page 7-14 

be necessary for the foreseeable future, and therefore no costs are included for finished 
water transmission piping in this analysis.

However, a new 30-inch raw water transmission line will be required to deliver well 
water from the existing WTP to the new site.  A 30-inch pipeline was selected to be 
capable of delivering the ultimate maximum capacity of 23 mgd such that additional raw 
water piping would not have to be added in the future.  This new raw water pipeline was 
assumed to follow the alignment of the existing 18-inch finished water transmission 
pipeline from the existing WTP to Wynooski Road.  [Note:  It is assumed that the cost of 
a new 24-inch River Crossing for future expanded well supply is already accounted for in 
the City’s CIP and is not included herein.]

Table 7.5 provides a summary of the estimated construction and project costs for the new 
30-inch Raw Water Transmission Pipeline required to each of the three potential WTP 
sites.  Depending on location, the raw water transmission costs add an additional 
$500,000 to $1.0 million to the total project cost of the new plant.  A 30% allowance  is 
included in the project costs for the pipeline which is lower than the 40% allowance used 
for the WTP costs.  These costs do not include property acquisition and/or easement 
costs. 

TABLE 7.5 SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED RAW WATER TRANSMISSION COSTS

WTP Location 
30” Raw Water 

Pipeline (ft) 
Construction

Cost ($) 
Project
Cost ($) 

Site A 2,000 $400,000 $520,000 
Site B 2,900 $580,000 $750,000 
Site C 4,100 $820,000 $1,060,000 

Further discussion regarding the site options for a new WTP is required to determine the 
desired location.  Obviously, Site A would have lower raw water pipeline costs because 
of its proximity to the existing WTP and wellfield.  Sites A and B are closer to the City’s 
WWTP which has potential benefits from a solids handling perspective if the WWTP 
continues to accept WTP solids. 

 Appendix E

Page 340



Appendix E

Page 341



Appendix E

Page 342



Page F-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix F ��February 2012 

 

Appendix F: ODOT Build Alternative and Design Options – West Newberg to Hwy 219 
Interchange 
 

 

Page 343



H
ess  C re ek

Tributary C

Hess Creek North

C

h e h a l e m  C r e e k

k
,  T

r ib
u

t a
ry

 A

Spring Brook

W
ILS

O
N

V
ILLE

 R

2N
D

 S
T

BLAINE ST

F
E

R
N

W
O

O
D

 R
D

RIVER ST

DOG RIDGE RD

6T
H

 S
T

WYNOOSKI ST

SPRINGBROOK RD

4T
H

 S
T

EDWARDS ST

CHEHALEM ST

BRUTSCHER ST

AIRPARK WAY

EVEREST RD

RIVERSIDE RD

COLUMBIA ST

WILLAMETTE ST

W
Y

N
O

O
S

K
I R

D

RD

ELLIOTT RD

W
ATE

R
FR

O
N

T S
T

WAS

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 S

T

BURL ST

PACIFIC ST

14T
H

 S
T

ADOLF RD

LINCOLN ST

SCHOOL ST

WILDWOOD RD

HARRISON ST

ZAR
D

 LN

ROYAL OAK ST

STEVENSON RD

CHARLES ST

WHITE OAK ST

P
IN

A
F

O
R

E
 LN

GARFIELD

MEADOW LOOP

GLEN HOLLOW DR

ACORN ST

PIERCE LN

CHURCH ST

MILL PL

R
D

JAMES ST

ROGERS LANDING RD

1S
T

 S
T

HOWARD ST

MORT

SANDOZ RD

G
R

A
N

D
 O

A
K

 D
R

A
N

D
R

E
W

 S
T

OAK LEA

INDUSTRIAL PKWY

C
H

A
R

LE
S

 C
T

BINA DR

ELVA DR

PIERCE DR

2ND WAY

DORIS DR

ARDUS DR

11TH
 C

T

O
A

K
 M

E

CORINNE DR

PARKVIEW DR

LILLY
 C

T

MEREDITH DR

CARLTON WA

LIN
D

G
R

E
N

 D
R

COMMERCE PKWY

JO
H

A
N

N
A

 C
T

S
H

E
R

ID
A

N
 S

T

OLD HIGHWAY 99W  

9T
H

 S
T

4T
H

 S
T

HAR
5T

H
 S

T

8T
H

 S
T

P
O

R
T

LA
N

D
 R

D

SITKA AVE

13T
H

 S
T

GARFIELD ST

CENTER ST

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
 S

T

3R
D

 S
T

2N
D

 S
T

1S
T

 S
T

10T
H

 S
T

RIVER ST

1S
T

 S
T

10T
H

 S
T

COLLEGE ST

11T
H

 S
T

9T
H

 S
T

GRANT ST

SCHO

12T
H

 S
T

3R
D

 S
T

7T
H

 S
T

7T
H

 S
T

8T
H

 S
T

VILLA RD

MERIDIAN ST

S
p

o
rtsm

an
A

irp
ark

��
 

W
illam

ette R
iver

C
o

lu
m

b
ia E

m
p

ire 
F

arm
s

S
P

 N
ew

sp
rin

t

W
illam

ette & Pacific Railroad

U
G

B

City Limits

L
o

cal
C

ircu
latio

n
fo

r S
eg

m
en

t 6

L
o

cal C
ircu

latio
n

fo
r S

eg
m

en
t 6

�����

S
P

 N
ew

sp
rin

t
C

ircu
latio

n

Tributary A

N
e

w
b

e
rg

N
e

w
b

e
rg

5.1C
.2 B

elow
-G

rade

5.1D
.2 A

bove-G
rade

L
o

cal C
ircu

latio
n

fo
r S

eg
m

en
t 5

L
o

cal C
ircu

latio
n

fo
r S

eg
m

en
t 5

L
o

cal C
ircu

latio
n

fo
r S

eg
m

en
t 5

F
ig

u
re 2-9  B

u
ild

 A
ltern

ative an
d

 D
esig

n
 O

p
tio

n
s

S
eg

m
en

ts 5 an
d

 6: W
est N

ew
b

erg
 to

 O
reg

o
n

 219 In
terch

an
g

e
D

esig
n

 O
p

tio
n

s 5.1C
.2, 5.1D

.2, 5.2D

U
rban G

row
th B

oundary (U
G

B
)

C
ity Lim

its

B
ypass  A

pproved C
orridor

R
ailroad

B
ridges, O

vercrossings, 
or U

ndercrossings

D
esign O

ption 4.2 R
igh

t-of-W
ay

S
egm

ent 5 Local C
irculation

D
esign O

ptions 5.1C
.2

, 5.1D
.2 &

 5.2D
 R

ight-of-W
ay 

S
P

 N
ew

sprint C
irculation

S
egm

ent 6 Local C
irculation

S
egm

ent 6 R
ight-of-W

ay

D
esign O

ption 7.4C
 R

ight-of-W
ay

�
0

400
800

1,200
1,600

2,000
200

F
eet

M
ap ID

: D
E

IS
_B

ase_8x11_C
h2.m

xd
P

rint D
ate: 08/28/08

N
ew

b
erg

D
un

d
ee

D
ayton

L
o

cato
r

S
ee In

set

Hes s  C reek

Tributa

Creek North

RIVER ST

WYNOOSKI ST

CHE

AIRPARK WAY

COLUMBIA

WILLAMETTE ST

PACIFIC ST
14T

H
 S

T

MILL PL

ROGERS LANDIN

A
N

D
R

E
W

 S
T

11TH
 C

T

13T
H

 S
T

10T
H

 S
T

10T
H

 S
T

COLLEGE ST

11T
H

 S
T

9T
H

 S
T

12T
H

 S
T

8
T

H
 S

T

MERIDIAN ST

D
esig

n
 O

p
tio

n
 5.2DS

P
 N

ew
sp

rin
t

C
ircu

latio
n

L
o

cal
C

ircu
latio

n
fo

r S
eg

m
en

t 5

L
o

cal C
ircu

latio
n

fo
r S

eg
m

en
t 5

In
set

P
age B

-1 | C
ITY

 O
F N

E
W

B
E

R
G

 • Industrial U
G

B
 A

m
endm

ent – A
ppendix B

 • M
arch 2010

Appendix FS
ee

N
ote

forD
esign

O
ption

D
escriptions

Page 344



Page G-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix G ��February 2012 

 

Appendix G: Newberg South Industrial Area Master Plan – Transportation Plan 
 

 

Page 345



�������	
����������������������	� ��� ������� ����

���������!���"�

TRANSPORTATION�PLAN�

The�access�and�circulation�component�of�the�plan�identifies�connections�for�multiple�modes�to�the�City’s�
existing�and�planned�transportation�system.�The�plan�provides�for�the�needs�of�multiple�users�including�
trucks,�automobiles,�pedestrians,�and�bicyclists.��The�alignments�and�designations�identified�in�the�plan�
area�are�conceptual�and�subject�to�further�study.�

Vehicular�Circulation�

Vehicular� circulation� is� provided� for� via� both� existing� and� new� facilities.� The� district’s� transportation�
network� is� planned� around� the� anticipated� Newberg|Dundee� Bypass� while� recognizing� that� it� may� be�
some� time� before� the� facility� is� constructed.� Highway� 219� is� planned� as� the� primary� north|south�
roadway� connection� into� and� through� the� district.� � The� minimum� spacing� for� a� new� intersection� with�
Highway� 219� is� approximately� 1,600� feet� from� the� identified� Bypass� interchange.� � An� interim� (Pre|
Bypass)�connection�into�the�area�is�identified�along�Highway�219�across�from�the�current�Wynooski�Road�
intersection.� When� the� Bypass� is� constructed,� it� will� require� the� realignment� of� Wynooski� Road� and�
move�the�Wynooski�Road/Highway�219�intersection�further�south�out�of�the�Bypass�interchange�area.���

The� master� plan� layout� shows� Wynooski� Road� realigned� to� provide� a� new� intersection� midway� along�
Highway�219�that�will� serve�as� the�district’s�primary�access.�Wynooski�Road�and� future�Street�“C”�are�
planned�as�the�primary�east|west�roadway�connection.��Inherent�in�the�design�is�the�flexibility�to�extend�
Street� “C”� eastward� over� Springbrook� Creek� and� continue� as� a� new� Wilsonville� Road� alignment.� This�
would�provide�a�direct�route�into�the�plan�area,�but�would�also�require�an�expensive�new�bridge�crossing�
with�environmental�impacts.�This�new�connection�should�be�studied�in�more�detail�to�determine�if�the�
benefits�of�the�new�connection�justify�the�fiscal�and�environmental�impacts.��

Street� “A”� is� designed� as� an� internal� north|south� collector� that� provides� access� into� individual�
development� sites,� provides� a� connection� to� Wilsonville� Road,� and� a� connection� to� parklands� located�
south�of�the�area.��Several�optional�local�streets�are�delineated�internal�to�the�district�as�possible�future�
connections� and� service� accessways.� Finally,� the� roadway� network� is� designed� to� position� streets�
adjacent� to�conservation�areas� in�order� to�create�recreational�access�and�project�an�attractive�district�
streetscape.�

Proposed�Master�Plan�Transportation�System
Street�Name� Functional�Classification Future�Improvement�Plans�

State�Highway�219� Minor�Arterial 5�lanes�
Wilsonville�Rd� Minor�Arterial 3 lanes�
Wynooski�Rd� Major�Collector 3 lanes�

Street�“A”� Minor�Collector 2�Lanes�
Street�“B”� Local 2|Lanes�
Street�“C”� Minor�Collector* 2|Lanes�

*Street�“C”�has�the�potential�to�be�expanded�to�a�Minor�Arterial�if�Wilsonville�Road�is�realigned�to�
cross�Springbrook�Creek�and�continue�at�this�roadway.��

Pedestrian�&�Bicycle�Circulation�

The�plan�envisions�that�pedestrian�and�bicycle�traffic�will�be�accommodated�and�encouraged�within�the�
plan� district� area.� It’s� envisioned� that� all� streets� will� be� improved� and� constructed� to� safely� and�
comfortably�accommodate�these�users.� � In�addition,�the�plan�illustrates�a�trail/multi|use�path�network�
within�the�conservation�corridors.�This�network�is�intended�to�connect�to�an�existing�and�future�regional�
network� in� and� around� the� plan� area.� It� is� envisioned� that� the� trail� network� will� function� as� a�
recreational� amenity� and� serve� as� an� alternative� transportation� mode� to� and� from� the� employment�
areas.� �

Appendix G

Page 346



�������	
����������������������	� �#� ������� ����

���������!���"�

Design�Elements�

The� plan� envisions� creating� and� adopting� specific� roadway� design� standards� for� the� plan� district.� The�
street� designs� are� intended� to� include� pedestrian� amenities,� aesthetic� features� and� practical� mobility�
considerations� that� are� unique� to� a� successful� industrial/employment� district.� Additionally,� the� plan�
envisions� certain� sustainability� elements� be� included� in� the� roadway� design� to� manage� stormwater�
runoff� and� ensure� water� quality.� The� district� roadway� designs� should� address� and� accommodate� the�
following�fundamentals:�

� Safely�and�effectively�accommodate�semi|truck�and�industrial�vehicles�

� Provide�pedestrian�sidewalks�and/or�multi|use�paths�along�all�roadways.�
Use� curb|tight� sidewalk� design� on� internal� roadways� to� improve�
pedestrian�visibility�on�narrower�streets�

� Plan� for�bicycle� traffic�on�district� roadways.�Provide�designated�bicycle�
lanes�or�multi|use�paths�along�higher�order�streets�and�plan�for�shared�
facilities�on�local�internal�streets�

� Establish�a�streetscape�design�that�identifies�the�district�as�a�unique�part�
of� the� community� including� uniform� landscaping� and� streetscape�
elements�

� Incorporate� stormwater� management/water� quality� facilities� into�
roadway�design�

� Limit�pavement�and�asphalt�width�

� �

Appendix G

Page 347



A
pp

en
di

x 
G

Page 348



Page H-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix H ��February 2012 

 

Appendix H: Marion County Rural Transportation System Plan Figure 7-1, Strategic 
Intra/Inter-County Corridors 
 

 

 

Page 349



SA
LEM

K
EIZER

W
O

O
D

B
U

R
N

STA
Y

TO
N

SILV
ERTO

N

TU
R

N
ER

ID
A

N
H

A

G
A

TES

M
T

A
N

G
EL

JEFFER
SO

N

A
U

R
O

RA

ST
PA

U
L

SC
O

TTS
M

ILLS

H
U

B
BA

R
D

D
O

N
A

LD

M
ILL

C
ITY

G
ER

V
A

IS

A
U

M
SV

ILLE
SU

B
LIM

ITY

D
ETRO

IT

5

5

5

5

R
oadsState

Paved

G
ravel

O
ther

C
ounty

C
ity

Lim
its

U
G

B

Legend
Legend

Figure
7-1

Strategic
Intra/Inter-C

ounty
C

orridors

Strategic
Intra/Inter-C

ounty
C

orridors
Strategic

Intra/Inter-C
ounty

C
orridors

Possible
S

trategic
C

orridorE
xtension

orR
efinem

ent

Existing
orC

om
m

itted
P

ark-and-R
ide/PoolFacility

Possible
Future

P
ark-and-R

ide/PoolLocation

0
2

4
M

iles

Public
W

orks

D
ate:11/26/04

Project:
Prepared

By:
U

:\G
IS

PR
O

JE
C

TS\Traffic\...7_1.m
xd

LL

R
uralTransportation

System
Plan

R
uralTransportation

System
Plan

2005
U

pdate
2005

U
pdate

N
ote:Strategic

corridors
are

also
typically

designated
freightroutes

and
prim

ary
em

ergency
response

routes.

Appendix H

Page 350



Page I-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

Appendix I:  Site Photos 

Figure I- 1:  Subsite 11.1, looking SW from Wynooski Road 

 

Figure I- 2:  Subsite 11.2 looking East on Wynooski Road. Subsite is on the right. 

 

Page 351



Page I-2 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

 

Figure I- 3:  Subsite 11.2 looking from Wynooski Road 

 

Figure I- 4:   Subsite 11.3 looking SW from Wynooski Road 

 

  

Page 352



Page I-3 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 5:  Subsite 11.3 looking south from Wynooski Road 

 

Figure I- 6:  Subsite 11.3 looking west from Hwy. 219.  Transfer station is in background. 

 

  

Page 353



Page I-4 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 7:  Subsite 11.3 looking west from Hwy. 219.  Subsite 11.4 is visible on left. 

 

Figure I- 8:  Subsite 11.4 looking west from Highway 219 

 

  

Page 354



Page I-5 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 9:  Subsite 11.4 looking west from Highway 219 

 

Figure I- 10:  Subsite 11.7 looking SE from Hwy. 219.  White fence is edge of subsite.

 

Page 355



Page I-6 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 11:  Subsite 11.7 looking NE from Hwy. 219

 

Figure I- 12:  Subsite 11.8 looking NE from Adolf Road. 

 

  

Page 356



Page I-7 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 13:  Subsite 11.8 looking south from Wilsonville Road 

 

Figure I- 14:  Subsite 11.9 looking south from Wilsonville Road

 

  

Page 357



Page I-8 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix I ��February 2012 

 

Figure I- 15:  Adolf Triangle looking SW from Adolf Road.  Hwy. 219 is visible in the background.  Site is within UGB. 

 

 

Page 358



Page J-1 CITY OF NEWBERG ��Industrial UGB Amendment – Appendix J ��February 2012 

 

Appendix J: DLCD Notices of Proposed Amendment 
 

 

 

 

Page 359



THIS FORM 1 MUST BE RECEIVED BY DLCD AT LEAST 
45 DAYS PRIOR TO THE FIRST EVIDENTIARY HEARING

PER ORS 197.610, OAR 660-018-000 

Jurisdiction: City of Newberg / Yamhill County Date of First Evidentiary Hearing: June 1, 2010
Local File Number: UGB-09-001 Date of Final Hearing: August 18, 2010
Is this a REVISION to a previously submitted proposal?  Yes  No      Date submitted: March 12, 2010

  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment     Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
  Land Use Regulation Amendment     Zoning Map Amendment 
  New Land Use Regulation      Urban Growth Boundary Amendment 
  Transportation System Plan Amendment    Other:      

Briefly Summarize Proposal.  Do not use technical terms.  Do not write “See Attached”(limit 500 characters): 

Has sufficient information been included to advise DLCD of the effect of proposal?  Yes, text is included 
For Map Changes: Include 8½”x11” maps of Current and Proposed designation.  Yes, Maps included 
Plan map changed from: County AFSH, AFLH, P, IND & City MDR To: City IND & PQ
Zone map changed from:  To:      
Location of property (do not use Tax Lot): South of Newberg, on either side of Hwy 219, south of Wilsonville Road 
& Wynooski Road        
Previous density:     New density:        Acres involved: 260
Applicable statewide planning goals:  

   
Is an exception to a statewide planning goal proposed?  YES   NO    Goals:      

Affected state or federal agencies, local governments or special districts (It is jurisdiction’s responsibility to notify these
agencies. DLCD only records this information):  ODOT, Yamhill County 

Local Contact:  Jessica Nunley, AICP Phone: 503-554-7744 Extension:       
Address: 414 E First Street / P.O. Box 970 City: Newberg   Zip: 97132 
Fax Number:  503-537-1272                                              E-mail Address: jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov 

DLCD file No. ___________________________ 

1     DLCD Notice of
      Proposed Amendment

         in person   electronic  mailed 

For DLCD Use Only 

�  Inclusion of 136 gross buildable acres (260 total acres) into the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). Of the 
136 gross buildable acres, 125 acres would receive a comprehensive plan designation of Industrial (IND), and 10 
gross buildable acres would be designated Public/Quasi�Public (PQ). 
�  Redesignation of 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) of land already in the Newberg UGB from Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) to Industrial (IND). 
�  TSP amendment to include the future transportation plan for the south industrial area (from the South Industrial 
Area Master Plan). 
The proposed UGB amendment is located adjacent to Newberg’s southern city limits, on either side of Highway 219, 
south of Wilsonville Road and Wynooski Road.   

Appendix J

Page 360



THIS FORM 1 MUST BE RECEIVED BY DLCD AT LEAST 
45 DAYS PRIOR TO THE FIRST EVIDENTIARY HEARING

PER ORS 197.610, OAR 660-018-000 

Jurisdiction: City of Newberg / Yamhill County Date of First Evidentiary Hearing: June 1, 2010
Local File Number: UGB-09-001 Date of Final Hearing: June 6, 2011
Is this a REVISION to a previously submitted proposal?  Yes  No      Date submitted: April 5, 2011

  Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment     Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 
  Land Use Regulation Amendment     Zoning Map Amendment 
  New Land Use Regulation      Urban Growth Boundary Amendment 
  Transportation System Plan Amendment    Other:      

Briefly Summarize Proposal.  Do not use technical terms.  Do not write “See Attached”(limit 500 characters): 

Has sufficient information been included to advise DLCD of the effect of proposal?  Yes, text is included 
For Map Changes: Include 8½”x11” maps of Current and Proposed designation.  Yes, Maps included 
Plan map changed from: County AFSH, AFLH, P, IND & City MDR To: City IND & PQ
Zone map changed from:  To:      
Location of property (do not use Tax Lot): South of Newberg, on either side of Hwy 219, south of Wilsonville Road 
& Wynooski Road        
Previous density:9 du/ac on 1 gb ac New density: NA  Acres involved: 260
Applicable statewide planning goals:  

   
Is an exception to a statewide planning goal proposed?  YES   NO    Goals:      

Affected state or federal agencies, local governments or special districts (It is jurisdiction’s responsibility to notify these
agencies. DLCD only records this information):  ODOT, Yamhill County 

Local Contact:  Jessica Nunley, AICP Phone: 503-554-7744 Extension:       
Address: 414 E First Street / P.O. Box 970 City: Newberg   Zip: 97132 
Fax Number:  503-537-1272                                              E-mail Address: jessica.nunley@newbergoregon.gov 

DLCD file No. ___________________________ 

1     DLCD Notice of
      Proposed Amendment

         in person   electronic  mailed 

For DLCD Use Only 

� A revised Newberg Economic Opportunities Analysis, including revised employment projections, land needs and 
supply, and industrial and commercial site suitability characteristics.  

� Inclusion of 132 gross buildable acres (260 total acres) into the Newberg  UGB, and designation of land as 
Industrial and Public/Quasi-Public (PQ), with a stream corridor overlay on portions.  

� Redesignation of 1 gross buildable acre (7 total acres) of land already in the Newberg UGB from Medium Density 
Residential (MDR) to Industrial (IND). 

� Amendments to Newberg Comprehensive Plan text relating to economic opportunities and including revised 
population projections. 

� TSP amendment to include the future transportation plan for the south industrial area.  

Attachment 5 to ORD 2011-2740 
for the 6/20/11 Council Hearing

Appendix J

Page 361



 1 DLCD Notice of Proposed Amendment
Post Acknowledgment Plan Amendments

  Urban Growth Boundary 
Urban Reserve Area 

THIS COMPLETED FORM, including the text of the amendment and any supplemental information, must be received at DLCD’s 
Salem office at least 35 DAYS PRIOR TO THE FIRST EVIDENTIARY HEARING ORS 197.610, OAR 660-018-000 

Jurisdiction: City of Newberg Date of First Evidentiary Hearing: 06/01/2010 
Local File Number: UGB-09-001 Date of Final Hearing: 03/19/2012 
Is this a REVISION to a previously submitted proposal?     No        Yes    Original submittal date: 03/12/2010 

Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment(s)   Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment(s) 
  Land Use Regulation Amendment(s)     Zoning Map Amendment(s) 
  Transportation System Plan Amendment(s)    Urban Growth Boundary Amendment(s) 
  Other (please describe):            Urban Reserve Area Amendment(s)  

Briefly Summarize Proposal in plain language IN THIS SPACE (maximum 500 characters): 

Has sufficient information been included to advise DLCD of the effect of proposal?   Yes, text is included 
Are Map changes included: minimum 8½”x11” color maps of Current and Proposed designations.   Yes, Maps included 
Plan map change from: AFSH, AFLH, P, IND, MDR To: IND & PQ
Zone map change from:      To:      
Location of property (Site address and TRS): Wynooki Rd, St. Paul Hwy, Wilsonville Rd. 3221, 3228, 3229    

Previous density range:9 du/ac. (part) New density range: NA  Acres involved: 260.00   
Applicable statewide planning goals:  

Is an exception to a statewide planning goal proposed?  YES  NO    Goal(s):      

Affected state or federal agencies, local governments or special districts (It is jurisdiction’s responsibility to notify these agencies.  

Local Contact person (name and title):  Barton Brierley  
Phone:  503-537-1212 Extension:       
Address: P.O. Box 970 City: Newberg   Zip: 97132- 
Fax Number:  503-537-1272 E-mail Address:  barton.brierley@newbergoregon.gov 

- FOR DLCD internal use only -

DLCD File No ___________________________ 

        In person  Digital  mailed 

                          For DLCD Use Only                    

-Revised Economic Opportunities Analysis with employment forecasts, population forecast, industrial land needs and 
supply, and industrial site suitability characteristics.
-UGB Amendment for 132 buildable ac. designated Industrial and Public/Quasi-Public, with stream corridor overlay.  
-Redesignation of 1 buildable ac. in the Newberg UGB from Medium Density Residential to Industrial. 
-TSP Amendment to include future road network & text. 
-Comprehensive plan text amendment relating to industrial lands. 

Affected agencies:  Yamhill County, ODOT, Marion County 

Appendix J

Page 362



Forecasts of Oregon's County Populations and Components of Change, 2000 - 2040

Note: populations as of July 1
Base population of July 1, 2000: Totals estimated by PRC, PSU and age-sex details estimated by OEA based on Census Bureau's distributions.
Oregon's age-sex detail may not match with the short-term forecast released in the OEA's Economic and Revenue Forecast
Prepared by Office of Economic Analysis, Department of Administrative Services, State of Oregon
Release: April 2004

Area Name 2000 2003 2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040
Oregon 3,436,750 662,816 3,618,200 3,843,900 4,095,708 4,359,258 4,626,015 4,891,225 5,154,793 5,425,408
Yamhill 85,500 88,150 90,098 98,932 108,812 119,011 129,850 141,505 153,549 166,776

Population Change
Estimate

Area Name 2000-2003 2000-2005 2005-2010 2010-2015 2015-2020 2020-2025 2025-2030 2030-2035 2035-2040
Oregon 104,750 181,450 225,700 251,808 263,550 266,757 265,210 263,568 270,615
Yamhill 2,650 4,598 8,834 9,880 10,199 10,839 11,655 12,044 13,227

Annual Growth Rate
Estimate

Area Name 2000-2003 2000-2005 2005-2010 2010-2015 2015-2020 2020-2025 2025-2030 2030-2035 2035-2040
Oregon 1.00% 1.03% 1.21% 1.27% 1.25% 1.19% 1.11% 1.05% 1.02%
Yamhill 1.02% 1.05% 1.87% 1.90% 1.79% 1.74% 1.72% 1.63% 1.65%

Estimates (PSU) FORECAST

FORECAST

FORECAST

Attachment 22  
to Ord 2012-2751

Page 363



1

Barton Brierley

From: Roger Currier [rcurrier@hevanet.com]
Sent: Monday, February 27, 2012 4:28 PM
To: Barton Brierley; Marc Shelton; Bob Andrews; Bart Rierson; Denise Bacon; 

Wade Witherspoon; Stephen McKinney
Cc: Leslie Lewis; Kathy George; Mary Stern
Subject: UGB expansion letter.doc

City of Newberg 
Re: UGB -09-001 
For the record of the UGB expansion 

Newberg City Council, I understand that you  are again considering  the same UGB 
amendment that failed ( reconsidered) last time. It seems that from what I have followed that 
Yamhill County Comissioners have not as yet produced a new population number. I believe that 
this failed last time due to the numbers possibly being larger for projections than actual?  

How can you reconsider something that was sent back based on that projection if you do 
not have it yet? I would think that the idea of a hearing would wait until these numbers are 
released in final form? How can you believe that they have changed enough (in your favor) to 
quantify this hearing before the release? 

And further on that subject, I believe that the numbers for growth have “maybe” fallen 
from the original given the state of the County now? So if the numbers “when” released  are less, 
what would your basis be for passing this same UGB expansion? Remember tat you have already 
stated that what you needed in the original application was on these large (unverified by the 
County) numbers for population. 

Roger Currier 
Newberg, Or.
97132

Attachment 23 to 
Ord. 2012-2751

Page 364



City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2012-2994, 2012-2995, AND 2012-2996 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance Resolution   XX   Motion   Information ___ 
No. No. No. 2012-2994, No. 2012-2995 and No. 2012-2996 

SUBJECT:  New Water, Wastewater and 
Stormwater Rates Effective January 1, 2013 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:      Dan Danicic, City Manager and 
                   Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director 
File No.: 

HEARING TYPE:  ADMINISTRATIVE 

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2994, No. 2012-2995 and No. 2012-2996.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) was formed by the City Council in 1992 to review and 
recommend utility rates (water, wastewater and stormwater) to the City Council for approval and 
implementation.  

The Committee met seven times between September 14, 2011 and January 18, 2012 to review water, 
wastewater and stormwater characteristics and requirements, including the Capital Improvement 
Program and operating and maintenance costs for all three systems. 

The CRRC reviewed proposed rates at their meetings.  The review included: 
� The Capital Improvement Plans for the next four years 
� Revenue and budget requirements 
� Service characteristics 
� Customer class characteristics 
� Peak demands on the systems 

The driving forces for the proposed new rates included: 
� System characteristic and load requirements 
� Supporting the Operations and Maintenance budgets 
� Revenue requirements 
� Debt service requirements  

The following attachments are included in this packet: 
� Approved minutes of the Citizen’s Rate Review Committee (CRRC) from September 14, 

October 5, October 18, November 9, and November 30, 2011, in addition to
� Draft minutes of January 4, January 18, February 8 Town Hall, and February 15, 2012 Public 

Hearing.  The Town Hall Information Packet is attached. 

In addition to the proposed rate increases, the CRRC is recommending that the City Council: 
1. Increase the fixed percent for water from 9% to 15% the first year and from 15% to 20% the 

second year, and 
2. Move the implementation date for the rate increases from July 1, 2012 to January 1, 2013. 

Page 365



City of Newberg:  Resolution NO. 2012-2994, 2012-2995, AND 2012-2996 PAGE 2

The proposed rates included in each resolution are to cover the time period from January 2013 through 
December 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT:

These recommended changes to the rates are anticipated to raise $6,361,336 in revenues in FY 12-13 
and $6,393,172 in FY 13-14 in the Wastewater Fund; $4,328,231 in revenues in FY 12-13 and 
$4,321,831 in FY 13-14 in the Water Fund; and $828,665 in revenues in FY 12-13 and $975,854 in FY 
13-14 in the Stormwater Fund.  These amounts are sufficient to cover the cost of current operation and 
maintenance costs, provide for the necessary capital projects and meet cash flow requirements in their 
respective funds. 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:   

It is important and necessary to raise sufficient revenues in order to maintain the City’s water, 
wastewater and stormwater systems.

Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



Page 377



Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



Page 383



Page 384



Page 385



Page 386



Page 387



Page 388



Page 389



Page 390



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	������*���+�� � � ��"��+�

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITIZENS’ RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2012 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chair Tony Rourke called the meeting to order at 7:11 P.M. 

II. ROLL CALL 

Members 
Present: Tony Rourke, Chair/Secretary Ernie Amundson, Jr. Helen Brown  

Mike Gougler  Charles Zickefoose Mayor Bob Andrews, Ex-Officio 
Members 
Absent: Blair Didway (excused) 

Staff
Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager    Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director  
  Jay Harris, City Engineer/Engineering Manager Jennifer L. Nelson, Deputy City Recorder
Others
Present: Deb Galardi, Consultant Larry Anderson, Citizen 

III. COMMITTEE BUSINESS 

1. Committee and Staff Introductions (updated membership list distributed at the meeting)

Chair Rourke noted Mr. Blair Didway was unable to attend this evening.  The members and staff introduced 
themselves and passed around the membership list for corrections and updates. 

2. Elect Chair, Vice Chair and Secretary 

Chair Rourke explained they have never elected a secretary for the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) 
but the city manager noted this position was in the City’s Charter. 

Mr. Dan Danicic, city manager, added this secretary usually takes the minutes and/or signs off on the minutes 
from a previous meeting to confirm they were recorded/amended properly.  Since the chair has been fulfilling 
that role, if the committee desires to not have the secretary position filled, they can do so with the understanding 
the chair performs this duty.  Mr. Danicic will talk with the City Council and Mayor about amending the code.  
Chair Rourke suggested just adding the duties to the chair position in the code. 

MOTION #1: Zickefoose/Gougler to combine the duties of the chair and secretary and name the position 
as the “chair/secretary”.  Motion carried (5 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Didway]/1 Vacant). 

MOTION #2: Zickefoose/Gougler to re-elect the same officers to the next term. Motion carried (5 Yes/0 
No/1 Absent [Didway]/1 Vacant). 

Page 391



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	������*���+�� � � ��"����

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr. Larry Anderson wished to discuss city policies for collection and reimbursement of System Development 
Charges (SDCs).  He spoke of there not being enough money in the SDC fund to pay for improvements to an 
intersection in town.  Those improvements were required of the developer when the property was annexed and 
homes were built.  He wondered where all the money has gone since the City has had ten years of record pace 
development and SDC fee collection.  He used the Orchard Lair Development as an example for his own 
estimates of SDC collection at around $480,000.00 and asked why $135,000.00 could not be put into the signal 
at Everest Road.  He commented that the City seems to have the SDC collection part down, but there are 
problems with the spending and reimbursement.  He felt there is a real safety issue with that intersection not 
being improved and was bothered that the City had $1.4 million to spend on the Oxberg Lake Project and not 
this unsafe intersection.  He spoke of the need for a more transparent reimbursement policy and well-defined 
procedures used so that the City would never use more than the value of the rate collected. 

Mr. Mike Gougler spoke of his own experiences with his last SDC reimbursement process, which took two 
years.  He said the documents he needed to provide to the City filled two large three-ring binders with actual 
expenses.  He asked staff if the CRRC is responsible for setting SDC rates.  Mr. Danicic replied it is not.  Their 
charge is to set rates for water, wastewater, and stormwater or other fees assigned by Council, but traditionally
this has not gone into SDC rates or calculations.  Mr. Danicic said the points brought up by Mr. Anderson have 
to be discussed before Council and the Budget Committee at this point. 

Chair Rourke recommended the city manager get together with Mr. Anderson to guide him through the process. 

V. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Approval of November 30, 2011 minutes (Pages 3-6) 

MOTION #3:  Gougler/Zickefoose approving the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee minutes from November 
30, 2011, as written. Motion carried (5 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Didway]/1 Vacant). 

VI. CONTINUED BUSINESS 

1. Conclude Stormwater Methodology Overview 

Mr. Danicic stated this discussion was completed at the last meeting, but he placed it on the agenda in case there 
were any lingering questions. 

Mr. Gougler referred to Planning Commission (PC) minutes and wondered about feasibility and enforcement to 
comply with the Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDL) standards presented by Sonja Johnson, Environmental 
Technician, to adjust lot size and establish rules prohibiting car washing in driveways. 

Chair Rourke wondered how this impacts rates and discussed issues with Mr. Gougler what the City is required 
to pay attention to, like extreme temperatures, mercury, and keeping bacteria from crossing sanitary lines with 
storm lines or overflowing septic systems in storms.  He did not think mercury was an issue Newberg really 
deals with since there is no fluorescent lamp recycling or mercury from mining; the only one source would be 
from feminine hygiene products.  All non-issues for Newberg since they are not asked to control turbidity by 
the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ).  He said this process has gone through years of man hours to 
put together and does not affect our budget; if the City tries to comply it goes from manageable to a major 

Page 392



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	������*���+�� � � ��"����

component of cost for development and construction in Newberg.  There was concern if the consequences were 
fully hashed out for the extra costs and how to control this.  Mr. Danicic stated costs are controlled by 
stormwater management and relies on the best management practices to deal with temperature by encouraging 
placing more trees along zones; he said there is little in the plan that are hard costs other than staff time to the 
City and the program is designed that way realizing small towns like Newberg cannot do what cities like 
Gresham can.  He anticipated implementing this with existing staff to the extent that they can. 

Mr. Gougler said if he builds a house, assuming it is a project that size or more, then a project summary design 
for flow calculations and stormwater facilities will be required with whatever other house plans are issued 
requiring splash block and curbs.  He asked what a citizen is to do when this can get more expensive and there 
is not cash flow coming into the City for building.  He wondered how much control builders will have on 
monies they are obligated to spend.  He said this is why infill in Portland stalled.  He sees this as a big cost issue 
that needs to be handled as a community.  Mr. Danicic said he understands his concerns and is trying to think of 
the next step to address this.  He suggested the CRRC formulate a motion to alert the Council further 
investigation needs to be conducted before adoption of increased stormwater rates that may not work in the 
future. 

Chair Rourke said he still failed to see how this affects rates.  Mr. Gougler replied the expense is primarily to 
the City if they happen to violate DEQ code in respect to turbidity and if the City pays, it is the people who pay 
up front to comply and the problem is if the developer cannot determine some limited exposure to what has to 
occur they will be reluctant to do certain types of housing. 

MOTION #4: Gougler/Zickefoose the CRRC understands Council will be soon considering a revised 
stormwater management system for TDML and recommends Council understand the impacts to stormwater 
rates and that they will likely be higher. 

Chair Rourke asked if this is what they do every two years, look at the time frame and recommend for that time 
frame and revisit because things always change. 

Mr. Gougler said they also have to mandate when they make rate increase recommendations, this committee 
catches heat and they do have fiduciary responsibility to worry about the effects of action the City has taken on 
our rates.  We will have to look at this in two years when discussed and understand what should be done now; 
the same logic applied when they discussed fixed percentages for water fees. 

Mayor Andrews asked Mr. Gougler if he brought these pertinent issues to the Planning Commission about 
impacts.  Mr. Gougler said he did so in a letter. 

VOTE #4: To recommend Council consider impacts to stormwater rates while considering the revised 
stormwater management system for TMDL.  Motion carried (5 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Didway]/1 Vacant). 

Ms. Helen Brown said this is a good step in the direction of transparency when those in knowledge can make 
others aware, it is not like a ton of bricks being dropped.  She said she never thought about this and it is nice to 
clear things up by bringing up things the average city member does not know about. She thanked Mr. Gougler. 

Page 393



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	������*���+�� � � ��"����

2. Planning Commission Report on Stormwater Management Plan (for information only) (Pages 7-24) 

This is in discussion that took place in the previous section above. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation on Wastewater Methodology, Rate Comparisons and CIP (Pages 25-42) 

Ms. Deb Galardi presented the staff report including a PowerPoint (please see official meeting packet starting 
on page 31 for the full report).  She discussed rate methodology for the rate of discharge with residential vs. 
commercial in terms of their concentrated wastes and costs to treat higher volumes and how this was similar to 
water in terms of the fixed vs. volume basis for establishing rates.  Wastewater fixed costs are much higher than 
water because it is not only based on meters, billing and replacement costs like water, it is also based on a long 
standing policy and industry practice to include costs with building for capacity, infiltration and inflow (I&I).  
A secondary issue is that it is not discharged directly, but into a system with cracks and leaks. All utilities have 
a problem with I&I in this part of the world and we can only do so much to tighten the system.  The 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) said distribution can be based on flow discharge of the number of 
customers or when recovered through taxes based on property value.  She continued with her report on page 36 
regarding the wastewater cost allocation process. 

Mayor Andrews asked for a definition of the term “strength”.  Ms. Galardi said it is the concentration of waste 
or how dirty it is and it fits into the component of treatment costs allocated between processes, like with 
digesters, with BOD (Biochemcial Oxygen Demand) and TSS (Total Suspended Solids).  Ms. Galardi continued 
her report discussing costs recovered through volume rates and fixed charges and them being based on the 
average of the winter months.   

Mayor Andrews asked if fixed costs are not being recognized.  Ms. Galardi spoke of looking at what portion of 
the costs is truly fixed being more like 75% in terms of consistency and industry standards are balancing more 
discharge or more costs to the City, moving away from flat rates to variable ones.  It is true more than 24% is 
fixed, but there are concerns for small volume users and what other communities are doing to balance. 

Chair Rourke asked why the winter average is from December to March rather than being spread out further 
from November to April.   Mr. Danicic stated there is no science behind it, the rates were created the way they 
are and the City has been comfortable with it.  Ms. Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director, added they are the lowest 
four months of year and there can be increases in April, but we chose just the four months. 

Mayor Andrews asked about the average annual growth of 9.3% on frame eight of the PowerPoint.  Ms. Galardi 
replied historically costs charged to the wastewater system from 2008 to 2011 average a growth of 9.3%; part of 
this may be the allocation of staff additions or part reflects significant increases; they do not have FTE growth 
in personnel as well.  Mayor Andrews asked how much growth there was in staff for wastewater.  Mr. Danicic 
said there were some staff increases for wastewater leading up to 2007 to keep up with Operations and 
Management (O&M) requirements; they move staff a lot from fund to fund to help with inflation and when 
there are staff increases with cost of living increases or merit increases, but some have reached the end of the 
step increase schedule. 

Ms. Galardi continued with her presentation on page 10 regarding the preliminary 5-year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) speaking first of DEQ and the State Revolving Funds (SRF) obtained by the City with good interest 
rates.  The big news two years ago was the SRF increases were recommended based on revenue bonds they did 
not know would be received and they were; there has been some delay in construction, but the new debt service 

Page 394



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	������*���+�� � � ��"��#�

does not start being paid until the projects which are part of the funding package are completed and none have 
been completed.  None of the additional debt service is anticipated and funding has materialized, which buys 
time and flexibility for additional increases. 

Mayor Andrews asked what “RRE” was for the Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP).  Mr. Danicic stated it 
stood for Repair, Rehabilitation, and Expansion (RRE) projects which cover a whole suite of improvements; 
they are only at the beginning, addressing the existing needs, but a whole list of projects can be provided.  
Mayor Andrews asked if expansion is necessary for future growth; Mr. Danicic replied some is for current 
capacity. 

Chair Rourke asked if they are using money for the WWTP improvement plan.  Ms. Galardi said the City draws 
from this as needed and some has been started with estimates made for how it will be drawn; the debt service 
will not hit until the 2014-2015 fiscal year at interest only for six months before paying on the principal.  This 
allows payments to be put off to build the capacity into the rates to handle it. 

Mr. Chuck Zickefoose asked if this was broken into segments.  Ms. Galardi replied the first authorization was 
for $11.4 million; once that is done, then they can start paying on that some months after, but before the next 
$14 million.  It was assumed as three separate loans essentially. 

Mr. Ernie Amundson, Jr., asked if there was a connection between the rise in Full-time equivalent (FTE) 
transferred over with surplus because there is more money here than the other funds.  Mr. Danicic said yes, 
there will be an increase in the cost of staffing with wastewater, but staff reallocated appropriately; in the past 
there was 50/50 split for convenience and with the change the result was higher staff costs.  Chair Rourke asked 
if this was shown in the 2010-11 operations & maintenance (O&M) or in 2011-12.  Mr. Danicic replied it would 
not be until 2012-13 budgets and it is a projection of transfers.  Chair Rourke referred to the rate comparison by 
the city in the packet and stated Newberg is right behind the most expensive. 

2. Finance Director Memorandum and City Manager 11/12 Budget Message (Pages 43-47) 
TIME – 8:48 PM 

Mr. Danicic replied this was more for the committee’s information in response to previous questions about cuts 
and demonstrates the City has been cutting all along; one element the CRRC may not be aware.   Two positions 
have been eliminated in the public works department since the budget was completed and an additional three 
cuts occurred in the last fiscal year; so five FTE have disappeared, not accounting for the year before. 

Chair Rourke said they will be meeting next week to discuss the total rates with the final numbers and staff 
recommendations for two years.  Mr. Danicic added they will look at bill comparisons too.  Mr. Chuck 
Zickefoose asked if there was a way to compare Newberg to other communities as well.  Mr. Danicic said he 
would call on a few other cities to see what their utility bills look like. 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 8:53 PM. 

Approved by the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee on this ____ day of _________, 2012.    

_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Jennifer L. Nelson, Deputy City Recorder   Tony Rourke, CRRC Chair/Secretary

Page 395



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	�����+-*���+�� ������"��+�

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITIZENS’ RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, JAMUARY 18, 2012 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

CITY HALL MAIN FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM (414 EAST THIRD STREET) 

I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chair Tony Rourke called the meeting to order at 7:02 P.M.

II.  ROLL CALL 

Members 
Present: Tony Rourke, Chair Ernie Amundson, Jr. Vice-Chair Helen Brown   

Mike Gougler Mayor Bob Andrews, Ex-Officio Blair Didway  
 Chuck Zickefoose (arrived at 7:05 p.m.)   

Staff
Present: Dan Danicic, City Manager 

Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director   
DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder  

Others
Present: Deb Galardi, Consultant Jim Cooper, Sunny Acres Water Company  

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Jim Cooper, who is in attendance as a representative for the Sunny Acres Water Company, stated he will pose 
questions to the committee at the Town Hall Meeting, February 8, 2012.

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 

No Items. 

V. CONTINUED BUSINESS  

No Items. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS - Review of Proposed Utility Rates:

Mr. Dan Danicic, City Manager, referred to the proposed utility meeting handout for 2012-13 and 2013-14 
and explained the proposal is a 17.5% increase in rates for the next two years for stormwater with an 
anticipation of the same percentage in Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 and 2015-16. There will be no increase in the 
wastewater fund in FY 2012-13; an increase of 3.0% in FY 2013-14 and a projected increase of 5% FY 2014-
15 and 2015-16.  There will be no increase in water rates for 2012-13; an increase of 3.0% in FY 2013-14; 
and an increase of 3.5% FY 2014-15 and 2015-16.  The water rates methodology modifies the fixed allocation 
from 9% to 15% in FY 2012-13 and to 20% in FY 2013-14. 

Page 396



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	�����+-*���+�� ������"����

The lower rates were accomplished through FTE (full time employee) reductions; 4 overall in the budget and 
that also represents the reduction of 8 fewer employees in the space of 4 years.  Staff went through the FTE 
allocations which were heavy in water, and shifted those to the wastewater/stormwater funds and 
transportation fund which mitigated the rate impacts.  Line item inflation factors were reassessed and reduced 
significantly.  Each line item in the rate model has an inflation factor associated with it which ranges from 0% 
to 10%.  Many of the materials and services line items were reduced to 0% inflation factors.  Transfer reserves 
are at 1% which had been as high as 58% in 2009-10.   

Some items that are not addressed in the overall rates are the non-potable and the Springs classes.  The non-
potable class is the reuse water and the only customer at this time is the golf course.  Five years ago the 
Springs were broken out of the City water system as a separate customer class altogether. The City continues 
to maintain the system which was the original water source for the City of Newberg.  The Springs customers 
experienced a high rate increase when this was done and they asked the City Council to consider 
implementing it over a period of time which the City Council chose to do.  The City Council is now in the 
process of assessing whether the City should keep the Springs customers and continue maintaining it. 
Customers outside the City limits who are not on the Springs system are charged 1.5 times more for water use. 
That is a policy decision not a decision that is made because it costs 50% more to provide water.

Mr. Danicic stated a concern of the CRRC has been in regard to the increase in percent of fixed costs of 15% 
in 2012-13 and 20% in 2013-14 and how it will affect the lower water volume users more than the high water 
volume users.  Janelle Nordyke provided a chart which showed the customer classes, cubic feet,  increases to 
utility bills; giving the committee an indication of how it will affect the low-volume citizens.  Deb Galardi 
stated there will be decreases as well because it is revenue neutral.  In order to increase the percent of fixed 
costs, the fixed rate goes up and volume goes down.  A large volume user could see a reduction in their bill.  
For many there will be a zero change.     

Mr. Danicic stated the cost of water is seven-tenths of a penny per gallon.  He then referred to the Monthly 
Utility Bill Comparison for January, 2012 on page 2 of the meeting packet and explained traditionally towns 
around Newberg have been included in the comparison, but this time the criteria he used were towns that are 
approximately the size and population of Newberg and own and operate their own wastewater facilities.  
These include Lake Oswego, Wilsonville, Klamath Falls, and Grants Pass as comparables. The utility bill was 
compared in its entirety and shows that Newberg is not the highest in comparison.  He asked the committee 
for their input on this approach to rate comparisons. 

Tony Rourke asked why Klamath Falls & Grants Pass are so much cheaper in regard to water.  Helen Brown 
replied Grants Pass has the oldest river rights on the Rogue River and they also use UV lights instead of 
chlorine to kill bacteria.  Mr. Danicic will have staff research that before the Town Hall Meeting so it is made 
clear to the public why those costs are less on the utility bills.   

Mike Gougler asked if Wilsonville, Grants Pass, and Klamath Falls have grants to capitalize and do not 
budget for necessary capital expenditures.  If they are not budgeting to replace their water plant or sewer 
plant, that information needs to be made clear to the public.  Chuck Zickefoose stated Wilsonville will see an 
increase due to capital expansion in the near future.  Deb Galardi stated Lake Oswego will see a large impact 
on water in the next few years.  Tony Rourke stressed the importance of this information being communicated 
to the public.  It should also be clear that 1% is not close to adequate for reserves, but in recognition to the 
situation the City is in, we need to continue and not raise that percentage.  Hopefully the economy will be in a 
better condition in two years.

Page 397



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����)�	�����+-*���+�� ������"����

Mr. Danicic reviewed the notification plans to include a notice in the Newberg Graphic, on the City website, 
and a postcard will be sent to all addresses in the City, as well as postings at the Library, City Hall, and Public 
Safety Building regarding the Town Hall Meeting on February 8, 2012.  After the Town Hall Meeting, the 
CRRC reconvenes on February 15, 2012 to see if any further changes are needed.

Blair Didway asked if staff has a sample of the notice to be sent out to the public.  Mr. Danicic will email the 
notice to the CRRC for them to review before it is sent to the printer.  The committee members can then 
respond and make suggestions.  He will also share the outline of the presentation with the CRRC beforehand 
by e-mail. 

Rate Discussion:
Helen Brown stated she is hoping the City Council will understand the time and energy the CRRC and City 
Staff have put into this.  She is in agreement with what has been presented and discussed.

Blair Didway stated with what he has observed, the actual rate increases are evenly spread across the board 
which will make it more reasonable.   

The consensus of the CRRC is in favor of what will be presented to the citizens of Newberg. 

MOTION #1:  Amundson/Gougler to accept the proposal from staff for the next 2 years to be presented to 
the citizens at the Town Hall Meeting to be held on February 8, 2012. Motion carried. (7 Yes/0 No/0 Absent) 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 7:55 P.M. 

Approved by the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee on this _____day of __________, 2012.   

_______________________________  _______________________________________ 
DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder   Tony Rourke, Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Chair

Page 398



   

City of Newberg: Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Town Hall Meeting, February 8, 2012 Page 1 of 4 

CITY OF NEWBERG CITIZENS’ RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE 
TOWN HALL MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 8, 2012 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
Chair Tony Rourke called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 

Committee and Staff Introductions: 
Chair Rourke introduced himself as did all committee members; City of Newberg staff and Deb Galardi, 
Consultant.

Overview of Rate Setting Process: 
Dan Danicic, City Manager, stated the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) meets every year to year and 
a half.  The committee reviews every utility; in this case water, wastewater, and stormwater and the rate 
methodology by looking at the current state of the budget and what staff is proposing for future expenses.  
Through the course of many months the committee meets on a regular basis to review each of the utility funds 
which brings them to this Town Hall Meeting to present the rates that are being considered.  The committee will 
meet again next week, February 15, 2012 at the Public Safety Building for their final public hearing.  At that 
time they will take the input from the Town Hall Meeting and discuss it along with staff.  The CRRC will make 
a formal motion to adopt, modify or change the rate proposal.  At that point it will go to the City Council 
Hearing which is currently scheduled for March 19, 2012 at the Public Safety Building and at that time they will 
consider the CRRC’s recommendations and make a decision.  The City Council has the authority to accept the 
rates as proposed or may reduce the rates if they so wish.  If they desire to increase the rates it will then come 
back to the CRRC for consideration. 

II. PRESENTATION BY CITY MANAGER 

Copies of the Town Hall presentation were made available to those in attendance; as well as the line-items 
located in the Utility Rate Presentation Supplemental Information; utility debt details, and full-time equivalents.

The Citizen’s Rate Review Committee was established by Code in 1992.  It was created in response to a petition 
from the citizens to place the question of rate increases before the voters.   

Mr. Danicic reviewed the rate methodology beginning with stormwater.  The main functions are collection 
which is culverts and catch basins that are in the system; a small water quality component, and customer billing 
which is seen throughout the utilities.  The City of Newberg is considered a National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) – Phase II.   It is the water quality criteria for discharges to the river from the 
stormwater system.  It was originally started in the early 1990’s and targeted large cities.  Phase II requires the 
City of Newberg to set Best Management Practices such as street sweeping, cleaning catch basins; encourage 
planting trees along creeks, and rules and regulations regarding construction practices. The rate structure is 
assessed by Equivalent Dwelling Units (EDU).  One EDU = 2,877 square feet of Impervious Area.  Residential 
properties are defined as one EDU.  Impervious areas were identified on every lot by using aerial maps of the 
City.  Impervious areas are sidewalks, parking lots, and buildings which are areas that impede water entering 
into the ground.

The basic functions of wastewater are collection – the sewer pipes coming from the home to the treatment plant; 
pumping, treatment, and customer billing.  Not every customer has the same impact on the treatment system 

Page 399



   

City of Newberg: Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Town Hall Meeting, February 8, 2012 Page 2 of 4 

which removes solids.  What defines the criteria of solids is Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and Total 
Suspended Solids (TSS).  Residential customers have a certain load that is associated with those two elements. 
Industry standards are used in deciding how to separate customer classes.  The component that is split in two is 
the infiltration and inflow.  The volume charge is based on Winter Water Usage for the months December – 
March, and customer class.  The volume is averaged over the four months.    

Hank Grum was concerned how the wastewater usage is calculated as he believes he has not been charged 
correctly on his bills.  Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director stated the new number is recalculated and applied in 
April and gets applied to the months following, including November.  Mr. Danicic stated if there are questions 
regarding the utility bills there is a number located on the bill that customers can call or come into the City for 
assistance.  The City typically looks for anomalies in the billings. 

Some of the concerns voiced by audience members included the frequency of cleaning open ditches and who is 
responsible for cleaning them; flooding of a citizen’s home on two occasions due to a culvert filled with debris; 
and flooding on College Street for several years in a row until it was repaired recently.  Why are there no visible 
signs of maintenance when customers are paying fees for them?  Pat Haight stated there is a drain on Illinois 
Street that has been covered up with no way for water to drain.  Mr. Danicic stated the City is maintaining the 
system but will look at the level of service of maintenance.   

Mr. Danicic continued on to explain the wastewater customer classes include:  Single Family Residential, 
Multifamily, Commercial-1, Commercial-2, Commercial-3, Industrial, and Outside City Users (customers 
connected to the distribution system.)  Reuse and Springs are separate classes and are not part of this rate review 
because the City does a separate calculation for those two groups.  An audience member asked why the Springs 
and reuse are not included in the rate review.  Mr. Danicic explained three years ago the Springs were 
disconnected from the City’s system.  The challenge is the extreme rainfall causes dirty water.  When water 
becomes dirty then a “Boil Water Notice” would need to be sent out to citizens. The reuse system takes the 
affluent from the Wastewater Treatment Plant, treats it to a higher level which is used for irrigation or non-
contact processed water.  The golf course is using reuse.

The standard water system functions include supply, treatment, pumping, storage, distribution, customer billing, 
and meter management.  The characteristics are average demand, peak day demand, and peak hour demand; 
customer billing and meter size.  The peak need for different customer classes affect the system differently.   

Mr. Danicic reviewed the Utility Budget and explained the Water Fund would need to have a double-digit rate 
increase due to costs, thus staff did a reallocation of staffing. There is no debt in the Stormwater Fund.  There is 
no money allocated for system replacement reserves through FY (Fiscal Year) 2013/14.  The line item for 
contingency is for anticipated needs such as an environmental catastrophe.  There is some replacement reserve 
put aside for wastewater.  Deb Galardi explained the reason the wastewater has a larger contingency is due to 
delays in the capital projects.  That money is programmed to be used in the next five years to fund the 
improvements of the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  Those are reserve funds for capital improvements which the 
City is going to expend.  Mr. Danicic stated it is a risk analysis; savings for an emergency.   

The water budget shows a reduction in costs but there is also debt in this fund.  The existing water system needs 
to be improved and capacity increased.  Development has come to a standstill and there is not enough to pay the 
System Development Charges (SDC’s) portion for debt. 

An audience member asked for clarification regarding contingency and stated it seems high. Deb Galardi 
explained the City does track funds for the utilities separate in the capital projects but transfers money to the 
capital fund as needed and that money now sits in the Water Fund.  Contingency is a mixture of capital reserves 
as well as true operating and emergency contingency.  Mr. Danicic stated the line item for capital projects is 
what will actually be spent on capital projects next year.    

Page 400



   

City of Newberg: Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Town Hall Meeting, February 8, 2012 Page 3 of 4 

Mr. Danicic reviewed the 5-year Capital Improvement Projects as follows: 
� Stormwater 5-year CIP:  Master Plan update in FY 2012/13.   
� Wastewater 5-year CIP:  The WWTP – Design, construction, and capacity improvement.   The Hess 

Creek pre-design study FY 2011/12; Wynooski pump station property FY 2012/13; and multi-funded 
projects for South Springbrook Rd. – design and construction.

� Water 5-year CIP:  Upcoming projects include Springs improvements, reservoir upgrades, WTP 
expansion land purchase and South Springbrook design and construction.

Mr. Danicic reviewed the significant budget changes as follows: 
� 4 FTE (Full-Time Employee) reductions (total of 8 since 2010 = 15%) 
� Adjusted FTE budget allocation between funds 
� Reduced line items and corresponding inflation rate 
� Changed effective date for rate changes July to January 
� Modified fixed allocation within water rate model 

The estimated infrastructure value for water is $120 Million; Wastewater is $160 Million; and Stormwater is 
$23 Million.

Mr. Danicic explained the water consumption current fixed percentage is 9%; 2013 will be 15%; and in 2014 
will be 20%. 

The proposed rate changes are as follows:  January, 2013 has a 0% increase for water and wastewater; 
stormwater will be 17.5%.  In January, 2014 water and wastewater will have an increase of 3% and stormwater 
will remain at 17.5%.   

Mr. Danicic reviewed the utility bill comparison which shows anticipated increases in the next two years with 
similar agencies: Lake Oswego, Wilsonville, Klamath Falls, and Grants Pass.  Grant’s Pass has not made rate 
increases is several years and the water plant was built far above capacity of the need and they are still within 
capacity today. Their Master Plan is out of date and is up for significant changes in the future.   

Audience members stated the need for further cuts in staff and salaries, as well as reducing employee health 
coverage that is paid by the City.  Many cannot afford an increase in rates due to the economy.  Perhaps the 
rates could be based on what the customer is able to pay. 

Mr. Danicic stated a budget of $20,000 is set aside annually to provide utility payment assistance.  The Utility 
Bill Assistance Program includes YCAP Voucher Program, Military Credit, Grants to Non-Profits, and Low 
Income Credit.   Audience members stated there needs to be an increase in low income assistance.   

Looking toward the future:
� The WWTP rehab and expansion cost will be debt financed to develop capacity to 2040.   
� An expected rate increases of 5% in 2014 and 2015.
� The aging infrastructure – 14% of the wastewater and water systems are over 75 years old (27M).

Water and wastewater plant will now have 20 to 25 years of life.

Mike Gougler stated the committee is very concerned with the well being of the less fortunate.  Each point has 
been addressed with staff.  Ernie Amundson constantly raises the issue for people who cannot pay.  Mr. Gougler 
is troubled, however, in firing more staff or cutting hours which causes less service for the community when 
others who can donate money on their water bill to help the less fortunate, do not. Very little has been donated 
to date. There have been many CRRC meetings held in the past months with very little in attendance.  Also, for 

Page 401



   

City of Newberg: Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Town Hall Meeting, February 8, 2012 Page 4 of 4 

10 years there was a sub-rate; no money was set aside to replace the Wastewater Treatment Plant.  The 
members of the CRRC look at every penny.  Mr. Gougler stated Ernie Amundson asks consistently for cutbacks 
to keep from raising rates.

Audience members stated the need for better notification on when and where the CRRC meetings are held.  
Chair Rourke stated it was on the website, in the Newberg Graphic, and sent out in mailings, as well.   

Is there something else that can be done to cut back?  Why the need to pay extra on the utility bill for Police and 
Fire services if citizen’s pay taxes to cover those departments?  Ernie Amundson stated cutbacks cannot be done 
because of the union.  Mr. Danicic said the Police and Fire Departments are union, staff is not.  Chair Rourke 
stated the Budget Committee meetings are about to begin and are open for public comment regarding that issue. 

Audience member stated he had personally laid out an economic scenario to try to understand the future is not 
what is in the past.  He suggested to City Council to use funding for capital improvements, realizing a Federal 
Obligation Bond can push the cost out to 20 - 25 years.  At the same time, the Federal Government has bonds 
for opportunities to fund capital improvement.  He went to the CRRC and suggested affordability – people who 
make more pay more, those who make less, pay less.  Also, he stated he had brought forth two sound ideas in 
the past to eliminate rate increases which were not taken into consideration.  Another factor – retirement and 
health – 50% of cost of labor is health. Across the country, municipalities have done something about that.  He 
would hope the committee would understand the people want something different to mitigate costs throughout 
the future.  Mike Gougler stated the committee did listen and consider his ideas.  To assume that City staff has 
not looked into every avenue for funding is a mistake.   

Another audience member stated that staffing cuts need to be made as in business.  Mike Gougler suggested 
attending the Budget Committee meetings because they determine those cuts; the CRRC does not.  

Ian McDonough thanked the CRRC for serving with no pay.  In regard to City staff, he has had much 
interaction with staff and the City of Newberg exceeds the service standing of any municipality he has dealt 
with.   Unfortunately, owners cannot get lending assistance and every year dues have had to be raised.  He 
found interesting in this presentation, slide #10 compared to page 8 of the supplemental information.  He sees 
the contingencies raised and buried are the capital projects.  He may not understand it all, but is there a way to 
ratchet back contingencies until we see an increase in the housing recovery and an increase in the market?  He 
has 5 elderly neighbors who are on the edge.  He also has not attended the CRRC meetings before because this 
is the first time he had received a postcard in the mail.   

III. ADJOURNMENT 

The Citizens’ Rate Review Town Hall Meeting adjourned at 9:46 p.m.  

Approved by the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee on this ___________ day of _______ 2012. 

_______________________________  ____________________________________________ 
DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder   Tony Rourke, Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Chair

Page 402



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����.��������+#*���+�� ������"��+�

CITY OF NEWBERG 
CITIZENS’ RATE REVIEW COMMITTEE MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 15, 2012 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

I.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Chair Tony Rourke called the meeting to order at 7:03 P.M.

II.  ROLL CALL 

Members 
Present: Tony Rourke, Chair Blair Didway Helen Brown (arrived 7:09 p.m.)  

Mike Gougler Chuck Zickefoose Mayor Bob Andrews, Ex-Officio 

Members  
Absent: Ernie Amundson, Jr., Vice-Chair (excused) 

Staff
Present: Dan Danicic, City Manager 

Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director 
DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder  

Others
Present: Deb Galardi, Consultant 

Chair Rourke asked the committee members for any abstentions, conflicts of interests, or objections to 
jurisdiction.  None were brought forward.

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mr. Hank Grum referred to the information that was made available at the Town Hall Meeting on February 8, 
2012, on page 17 under the Wastewater Financed CIP’s Total Revenues – Interim WWTP CWSRLF (Clean 
Water State Revolving Loan Fund) totaling $9,626,844.00 adopted FY2011/12 and stated he would like to 
know what he is paying for in those amounts, as well as the proposed revenue amounts FY 2012/13 and 
2013/14.  He has determined over the past that the amount for maintenance, expansion, replacement, and 
rehabilitation includes old water and sewer pipes that need to be replaced and is unsure what percent or how 
many of those pipes are still in need of replacement as well as the cost to replace them.  Also, a few months 
ago the Yamhill County Commissioners rejected growth figures, as reported in the Newberg Graphic, and he 
would like to know what growth figure the budget is being based upon and has it been adjusted due to the 
decision of the Commissioners.  There was an article in the Newberg Graphic today that stated the grade 
school enrollment has dropped 3% which shows people are moving out of Newberg. It has been mentioned a 
few times in passing without any great attention that the State and Federal Government issue unfunded 
mandates but the tax payers end up paying for it.  He asked what percentage in the budget is due to what the 
City has been told they must do. Without that information he cannot exercise his right as a tax payer to take 
any political action if he does not agree with those mandates.  Also, there is a present indebtedness for effluent 
reuse and he is unsure how much of that is still hanging on from putting in the equipment to water the golf 
course and how much is being budgeted to expand the effluent reuse system. In the City’s loan application to 
the State for clean water funds, a holding reservoir is listed in that plan in the northeast; a wetland to hold the 

Page 403



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����.��������+#*���+�� ������"����

effluent reuse because it cannot be used all at once.  There is a statement that there is a hope of othereffluent 
reuse customers such as the Friend’s Cemetery, the George Fox athletic fields, the Park District fields, and the 
Airport.  Mr. Grum would like to know the status of those plans and if they figure into the proposed budget.  
He spoke to the City Manager last week and mentioned these same items but has not received an answer thus 
far.

Mike Gougler asked if Mr. Grum had requested a cost break-down of the government mandates.  Mr. Grum 
replied he had spoken to Dan Danicic last week and a few months ago asked Chair Tony Rourke for an 
address to email comments and Mr. Grum was told he would need to contact the City Manager directly.

Ian McDonough, Chairman of the Homeowners Association of Spalding Oak Condominiums, thanked the 
members of the CRRC, understanding the sacrifices they make as well as the due diligence of the Staff of the 
City of Newberg.  He is not speaking against a rate increase per say and would support justifiable reasons for 
such a rate increase, however subsequent to the meeting of last week as an additional item of information, the 
Association is being hit with an new master insurance rate increase of 34% which will result in payments of 
individual homeowners of an additional $5 per owner, per month. Mr. McDonough stated that in the last three 
budgets for the Homeowner’s Association, they have asked for modest dues increases for the same reasons the 
CRRC is considering raising rates, which is to capture reserves and plan for future maintenance and 
reconstruction.  However, in each case they have had to carefully balance the need for building reserves and 
repairs versus the ability of the homeowners to pay.  In each case, those dues increases have been at a 
percentage rate of approximately 2.3% or $5 per owner, per month.  As the CRRC considers the 
recommendations from staff, he asked for the CRRC to also consider that in this economy many owners are in 
their 80’s, are on a very limited income, and due to other governmental regulations, find they are virtually 
unable to sell their homes.  Any one of these increases or fees could very well be the straw that breaks the 
camels back of some of the elderly residents and owners.

Mike Gougler appreciates the comments Mr. McDonough brought forth.  The CRRC has always held that 
particular issue at the forefront.  He asked Mr. McDonough if he would suggest the City hold the rates and 
incurs the costs for deferring them.  He is unsure how long it can be put off.  There is pressure from the 
Federal Government and he is unsure how problems will be solved without doing an increase now.  Mr. 
McDonough stated he understands and has agonized having to raise dues to build the reserves necessary 
because if the repairs are not done, the value of the property decreases.  He empathizes with the CRRC as the 
Association has had to make decisions that has been painful for individuals and actually had to force one 
resident to relocate.  He asked for the rate increases to be held at the minimum.  

Chair Rourke closed the public testimony at 7:23 p.m. and asked staff if any written testimony had been 
received.  Dan Danicic read the letter that was received from Bonnie Hulitt who could not be present at the 
meeting. 

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR 

No items. 

V. CONTINUED BUSINESS  

1. Staff Recommendation Regarding Rates: 

Mr. Danicic stated that through the rate review process the committee and staff has looked at the wastewater 
and stormwater budgets which have been going up consistently since 2001 to keep up with demand and 

Page 404



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����.��������+#*���+�� ������"����

maintain the current system.  Requests from the public have been heard to maintain and not increase the rates.  
Mr. Danicic commended staff for bringing the proposed rates down to a 0% increase for next year which has 
taken a great deal of change within the organization and reducing the staff and the amount of time spent in 
repair and replacement.  To do any less would do a disservice to the community. The Staff proposes and 
recommends the committee consider the utility rates for Water on January, 2013 at a 0% increase; with a 3% 
increase in January, 2014.  For Wastewater no increase for the January, 2013; with a 3% increase in January, 
2014; and for Stormwater a 17.5% increase in January, 2013 and a 17.5% increase in January, 2014.  Deb 
Galardi asked for clarification regarding the change in rate structure on water.  Mr. Danicic stated in addition, 
the rate water methodology in 2013 for the fixed portion will be 15% and in 2014 the fixed portion of the cost 
will be at 20%.  Also included in the proposal is the change in the implementation date from July to January.   

Chair Rourke closed the public hearing at 7:29 p.m. 

2. CRRC Deliberation (including comments from Town Hall)   

Chair Rourke referred to Mr. Grum’s comments and asked for clarification on the maintenance costs and 
growth projections.  Mr. Danicic is unclear as to Mr. Grum’s concerns regarding the maintenance costs and 
the details that he is asking.  The maintenance numbers involve the existing system.  He does not have the 
percentage of the old system with him at the meeting.  Mr. Grum misstated a bit in regard to the population 
estimates.  The Yamhill County Commissioners did not approve Newberg’s requests for population estimates 
which did not include the entire county because Commissioner Leslie Lewis was concerned that the county 
figures were not high enough. The Commissioners asked for it to be reviewed and are having a formal study 
done.  Thus, no new population estimates have been adopted but are operating off of population growth 
estimates that are based on the master management plans for all three facilities.  The WWTP expansion is 
necessary today regardless of the population increase or decrease. Mr. Danicic does not have the numbers 
with him regarding the percentage of costs on regulatory and proposed mandates but he would guess 80% is 
for some regulatory requirement.  Every drop of water is regulated due to mandates.  Mr. Danicic has 
responded in writing to Mr. Grum regarding how the reuse system is not part of any of the debt money the 
City currently has and he does not anticipate obtaining in the future.  There are no capital projects in the next 
two years specifically tied to reuse.  Reuse was instituted for temperature purposes and the temperature 
criteria required a $2.5 Million project investment.  He apologized in that he did not realize Mr. Grum’s recent 
comments to him were intended to be written and submitted to the CRRC for their consideration. 

Blair Didway suggested having it clearly stated on utility bills the opportunity to round up the amount due to 
the nearest dollar as an attempt to help support the Billing Assistance Program in the future.  Even a small 
contribution can make a positive impact.  He would also like to see more advertising regarding the program.   

Chair Rourke asked for clarification regarding a suggestion made by a citizen at the Town Hall Meeting and 
the potential of using General Obligation Bonds to fund capital projects for the City of Newberg.  Mr. Danicic 
explained the bonds mean you are obligating the full faith and credit of the City as repayment of the loan or a 
bond which means pledging property tax payer’s money.  The individual at the Town Hall who suggested it 
seemed to think there is money out there that is less expensive and may be a better route than the State funds 
used to debt finance some of the projects.  Mr. Danicic does not believe that is the case since the interest rate 
at the State level funding is low and allows the City to use the utility rates as a source of backing the debt 
payments.

Mike Gougler believes there is no other way to make any more adjustments.  A higher fixed percentage of the 
water fee is a good thing and changing the rate structure in this way will help in the future especially during 
depressed economic times.   

Page 405



��$�	�%�&����&�'�!���((������	�����.��������+#*���+�� ������"����

Chuck Zickefoose concurs.  After much deliberation the results are far better then he thought they would be. 

Blair Didway has only been on the CRRC since January, 2012, but from what he has seen the committee has 
done a remarkable job.  He likes the rate structure a lot; keeping the rate structure on fixed and help citizens 
budget that into their monthly expenses.  He agrees and concurs with the proposal.  It is well prepared and 
executed. 

Helen Brown believes many of the citizens at the Town Hall Meeting realized the CRRC is not just raising 
rates for the fun of it, but this has to be done.  Perhaps the CRRC needs to sponsor a quarterly town hall 
meeting since it is an education process. 

Chair Rourke stated the CRRC started out looking at 10 % increases for January.  Going from that percentage 
to a 0% increase is significant and he hopes it does not reflect poorly on the maintenance of the system in the 
next two years.  He believes staff did much work and Ernie Amundson pushed for staff reductions and that 
has been reflected in the proposal.

Mike Gougler believes it is important on behalf of the committee to express thanks to staff for the incredible 
amount of preparation and one of the highest levels of presentations he has ever seen.  He appreciates Mayor 
Andrews attending all of the meetings as well as the minute takers who have been present.  He also noted that 
although the Newberg Graphic has been quoted by citizens who have attended, no reporter has attended the 
CRRC meetings, which is unfortunate.   

3. Recommend Proposed Rates to City Council for Consideration (or direct staff to prepare additional 
analysis) 

MOTION #1:   Gougler/Zickefoose moved to implement the rate increases from July to January beginning 
2013; to modify the fixed portion of the Water rate from its current 9% to 15% in 2013 and to 20% in 2014; to 
implement the rates that have been proposed – a 0% increase for Water in January, 2013 and a 3% increase in 
January, 2014; for Wastewater no increase for January, 2013; a 3% increase in January, 2014; and for 
Stormwater a 17.5% increase in January, 2013 and a 17.5% increase in January, 2014.
Motion carried (5 Yes/0 No/ 1 Absent [Admundson]) 

VI. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 8:01 P.M. 

Approved by the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee on this day of _______, _______.   

_______________________________  ____________________________________________ 
DawnKaren Bevill, Minutes Recorder   Tony Rourke, Citizens’ Rate Review Committee Chair

Page 406



Citizens’ Rate Review Committee 
February 8, 2012 

 

1 

Town Hall 
Presentation 

  

P
age 407



Agenda 

•  Citizens’ Rate Review Committee History 
•  Rate Methodology 
•  Utility Budgets 
•  Capital Projects 
•  Rate History 
•  Proposed Rates 
•  Utility Bill Overview and Comparison 
•  Future 

2 

P
age 408



CRRC History 

The Citizens’ Rate Review Committee was 
established by Code in 1992 
 
It was created in response to a petition from 
the citizens to place the question of rate 
increases before the voters 

3 

P
age 409



Stormwater Cost Allocation Process 

Water Quality Collection 

Standard Stormwater System Functions 
Customer/ 

Billing 

Assessed by Equivalent Drainage Units (EDU) 
 

One EDU = 2,877 sq ft of Impervious Area 
 

Residential Properties are Defined as One EDU 

Rate Structure 

4 

P
age 410



Wastewater Cost Allocation Process 

Treatment Collection Pumping 

Standard Sewer System Functions 
Customer/ 

Billing 

Volume Charge 
 

Based on Winter Water Use 
and Customer Class 

Rate Structure 

Billing Charge 

Infiltration & 
Inflow (20%) BOD TSS Customer/

Billing 
Base  
Flow 

Standard Sewer System Service Characteristics 

Infiltration & 
Inflow (80%) 

5 

P
age 411



Wastewater Customer Classes 

•  Single Family Residential 
•  Multifamily 
•  Commercial – 1 
•  Commercial – 2 
•  Commercial – 3 
•  Industrial 
•  Outside City  

6 

P
age 412



Water Cost Allocations 

Treatment Supply Distrib. 
Meter 
Mgmt Pumping Storage 

Standard Water System Functions 

Customer 
Billing 

Service Charge Volume Charge 

Rate Structure 

Peak Day 
Demand 

Peak Hour 
Demand 

Customer/
Billing 

Average 
Demand 

Meter 
Size 

Standard Water System Service Characteristics 

7 

P
age 413



Water Customer Classes 

•  Single Family Residential 
•  Multifamily 
•  Commercial 
•  Industrial 
•  Irrigation 
•  Outside City  
•  Public Agency 

Reuse and Springs are separate classes 
not a part of this rate review. 

8 

P
age 414



Utility Budgets 
9 

Stormwater 11/12 12/13 13/14 
Revenue $665,000 $828,665 $975,854 

Personal Services $376,000 $569,000 $597,000 

Materials & Services $328,000 $290,000 $300,000 

Debt $0 $0 $0 

Capital Projects $168,500 $0 $0 

Replacement Reserve $0 $0 $0 

Contingency $542,000 $516,000 $594,000 

P
age 415



Utility Budgets 
10 

Wastewater 11/12 12/13 13/14 
Revenue $5,750,000 $6,360,000 $6,400,000 

Personal Services $1,400,000 $1,500,000 $1,570,000 

Materials & Services $2,570,000 $2,460,000 $2,560,000 

Debt $740,000 $729,408 $724,259 

Capital Projects $88,000 $520,000 $975,000 

Replacement Reserve $58,000 $64,000 $64,000 

Contingency $3,680,000 $4,920,000 $5,540,000 

P
age 416



Utility Budgets 
11 

Water 11/12 12/13 13/14 
Revenue $4,300,000 $4,330,000 $4,320,000 

Personal Services $1,550,000 $1,200,000 $1,300,000 

Materials & Services $2,100,000 $1,740,000 $1,800,000 

Debt $410,000 $414,000 $413,000 

Xfr to SDC for Debt $0 $505,000 $1,630,000 

Capital Projects $1,062,000 $746,000 $927,000 

Replacement Reserve $43,000 $43,000 $42,000 

Contingency $2,250,000 $2,000,000 $356,000 

P
age 417



Stormwater 5-year CIP 
12 

Project 11/12 12/13 13/14 

Master Plan Update $250,000 

Vermillion – Drain to Creek $152,000 

Multi Funded Projects 

Crestview Drive Improvements $110,000 

TOTAL $262,000 $250,000 $0 

P
age 418



Wastewater 5-year CIP 
13 

Project 11/12 12/13 13/14 

WWTP RRE – Design $1,276,229 $1,012,845 $1,557,008 

WWTP RRE – Construction $1,910,479 $7,210,092 $2,910,849 

Hess Creek Predesign Study $35,000 

Wynooski PS Property $146,500 

Multi Funded Projects 
South Springbrook – Design $600,000 

South Springbrook – Const. $1,300,000 

TOTAL $3,221,708 $8,969,437 $5,767,857 

P
age 419



Water 5-year CIP 
14 

Project 11/12 12/13 13/14 

Spring Improvements $400,000 $400,000 

Reservoir Upgrades  $75,000 $175,000 $685,000 

WTP Expansion Land Purchase $350,000 

WTP Expansion Geotech Study $25,000 

Well Field Improvements $70,000 

WTP Backwash Pond Liner $70,000 

Multi Funded Projects 

Crestview Drive Improvements $80,000 

South Springbrook – Design $125,000 

South Springbrook – Const. $1,000,000 

TOTAL $720,000 $1,050,000 $1,685,000 

P
age 420



Utility Reserves 
15 

Fund 
(Estimated 
Infrastructure Value) 

11/12 12/13 13/14 

Water 
($120M) 

$2,855,305 $2,915,524 $2,974,111 

Wastewater 
($160M) 

$1,110,136 $1,179,731 $1,249,993 

Stormwater 
($23M) 

$250,000 $250,000 $250,000 

P
age 421



Significant Budget Changes 
16 

•  4 FTE reduction (total of 8 since 2010 = 15%) 
 
•  Adjusted FTE budget allocations between funds 

•  Reduced line items and inflation rate  

•  Changed effective date for rate changes July to January 
 
•  Modified fixed allocation within water rate model 

P
age 422



Water Consumption Comparison 
17 

 850,000  

 900,000  

 950,000  

 1,000,000  

 1,050,000  

 1,100,000  

 1,150,000  

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 

Water Consumption Comp. (100 cf) 

Prior Forecast Actual/Est. 

6% 
8% 14% 

Year % Fixed 

Current 9% 

2013 15% 

2014 20% 

P
age 423



Proposed Rates 
18 

Fund January 
2013 

January 
2014 

Water 0% 3% 

Wastewater 0% 3% 

Stormwater 17.5% 17.5% 

P
age 424



Utility Bill Comparison 
19 

  Newberg 
(Current) 

Newberg (Proposed) Lake 
Oswego Wilsonville Klamath 

Falls 
Grants 
Pass   12/13 13/14 

Water $32.51 $32.51 $33.49 $34.80 2 $30.98 $15.65 $15.16 

Wastewater $67.80 $67.80 $69.83 $59.01 3 $64.09 4 $67.06 4 $26.04 

Stormwater $5.29 $6.22 $7.30 $10.27 3 $4.84 - - 

Public Safety $3.00 $3.00 $3.00 - - - - 

Fire $1.50 $1.50 $1.50 - - - - 
Street 

Maintenance - - - $7.81 3 $4.03 
- 

- 

Street Light - - - - $2.89 - - 

Monthly 
Utility Bill $110.10 $111.03 $115.12 $111.89 $106.83 $82.71 $41.20 

1Comparison cities selection criteria:  Similar sized population, responsible for water and wastewater treatment plants and 
systems (city not part of a district).  Rates are based on SF residential, 3/4" water meter using 700 cf of water/mo. Average 
winter water consumption is also 700 cf. 
All rates are in effect as of February 2012 unless otherwise noted. 
2Rate Effective March 2012 
3Rate Effective July 2012 
4Rate Effective Jan 2014 

P
age 425



Rate History 
20 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

A
ve

ra
ge

 U
ti

oi
ty

 B
il

l p
er

 M
on

th
 (

10
0

0
cc

f)
 

Total Bill 

Total Bill with CPI 

$71 Rate to have $1.7M 
Reserve per year to pay 
for 2003 Improvements 

$1.7M/YR since 2003 
equals $15.3M 
Equal to current debt 
for WWTP 

P
age 426



Utility Bill Assistance Program 
21 

A budget of $20,000 is set aside annually to provide utility payment assistance. 
 
YCAP Voucher Program:  For many years Newberg has partnered with YCAP 
to provide utility bill assistance to Newberg customers. 
 
Military Credit:  Active military duty customers may receive a maximum 
monthly $10 utility bill credit.   
 
Grants to Non-Profits:  Non-profit organizations may apply for a grant to 
provide assistance.  Current organizations: LOVE, Inc, Newberg Christian 
Church, 2nd Street Community Church, 7th Day Adventist Church, Newberg 
Friends Church, and North Valley Friends Church. 
 
Low Income Credit:  Customers than meet low income status (based on a list 
of criteria) can receive a maximum $10 credit per month.  Customers who 
accept the credits are enrolled in a Water and Energy Audit Program.   P

age 427



Future 

�  WWTP Rehab and Expansion Cost will be debt 
financed to develop capacity to 2040. 

�  Expect 5% rate increases in 2014 and 2015 
�  Aging Infrastructure 
�  14% of wastewater and water system is over 75-years old 

($27M) 
�  Water and Wastewater Plant will now have 20 to 25 years of 

life 

22 

P
age 428



�

�

�

�

FEBRUARY 8, 2012 

TOWN HALL  

 

 

 

UTILITY RATE PRESENTATION 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

Page 429



�

�

�

�

THIS PAGE 

INTENTIONALLY 

LEFT BLANK 

Page 430



Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/Month) $1.13 $1.18 $1.18

Meter Charge ($/Month)
3/4" $3.24 $5.52 $8.13
1" $5.51 $9.38 $13.82

1-1/2" $10.69 $18.22 $26.83
2" $17.17 $29.26 $43.09
3" $32.40 $55.20 $81.30
4" $54.11 $92.18 $135.77
6" $107.89 $183.82 $270.73
8" $172.69 $294.22 $433.33
10" $269.89 $459.82 $677.23

Volume Charge ($/ccf)
Single Family Residential $4.02 $3.72 $3.59
Multifamily $3.26 $3.02 $2.91
Commercial $3.65 $3.59 $3.47
Industrial $3.85 $3.89 $3.75
Irrigation $6.84 $6.66 $6.40
Outside City $6.03 $5.57 $5.39
Public Agency $3.76 $3.70 $3.57

CITY OF NEWBERG
MONTHLY WATER SERVICE CHARGES

Proposed Utility Rates

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 1

Page 431



Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/Month) $17.54 $17.54 $18.07
Multifamily $16.20 $16.20 $16.69

Volume Charge ($/ccf)
Single Family Residential $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Multifamily $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Commercial - 1 $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Commercial - 2 $8.92 $8.92 $9.19
Commercial - 3 $14.94 $14.94 $15.39
Industrial $8.92 $8.92 $9.19
Outside City $7.18 $7.18 $7.40

Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/EDU/Month) $5.29 $6.22 $7.30

MONTHLY STORMWATER SERVICE CHARGES

CITY OF NEWBERG
MONTHLY WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES

CITY OF NEWBERG

Proposed Utility Rates

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 2

Page 432



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

FUND 04 PROPRIETARY CAPITAL PROJECTS
REVENUES
04-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital -                  
04-0000-390006 Transfer In-Wastewater Fund 87,900            523,250          975,000          
04-0000-390007 Transfer In-Water Fund 1,062,000       746,250          926,750          
04-0000-390017 Transfer In-Stormwater Fund 168,500          -                  -                  
04-0000-390043 Transfer In-Storm SDC 93,500            250,000          -                  
04-0000-390046 Transfer In-Wastewater SDC 58,600            223,250          325,000          
04-0000-390047 Transfer In-Water SDC 93,000            303,750          758,250          

TOTAL REVENUES 1,563,500      2,046,500      2,985,000      

5150 CAPITAL PROJECTS
04-5150-706395 WWTP Wynooski IPS Property Purchase 146,500          146,500          -                  

Springbrook Mainline Design -                  600,000          -                  
Springbrook Mainline Construction -                  -                  1,300,000       

Wastewater Projects 146,500          746,500          1,300,000       

04-5150-707555 Spring Improvements 700,000          400,000          -                  
04-5150-707577 WTP Exp Land Purchase -                  350,000          -                  
04-5150-707587 North Valley Rd Reservoir Upgrades 210,000          175,000          685,000          
04-5150-707593 Wellfield Improvements 70,000            -                  -                  

Springbrook 24" Mainline Upsizing Design -                  125,000          -                  
Springbrook 24" Mainline Upsizing Construction -                  -                  1,000,000       

Water Projects 1,155,000       1,050,000       1,685,000       

04-5150-717710 Vermillion Drain to Creek 152,000          -                  -                  
04-5150-717727 Crestview Drive (Oxberg Lake) 110,000          -                  -                  

Stormwater Master Plan -                  250,000          -                  

Stormwater Projects 262,000          250,000          -                  

5150 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,563,500      2,046,500      2,985,000      

9180 RESERVES
04-9180-810000 Reserve for Restricted Interest -                  -                  -                  

9180 TOTAL RESERVES -                  -                  -                  

FUND 04 TOTAL PROP CAPITAL PROJECTS 1,563,500      2,046,500      2,985,000      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 1

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 3

Page 433



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

FUND 06 WASTEWATER FUND 4,359,562      5,713,347      
REVENUES
06-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital 2,661,576       3,683,790       4,917,552       
06-0000-342004 Dev Review and Inspection Fee 1,500              1,000              1,000              
06-0000-342005 Compost Sales/Sawdust Sales 45,000            31,200            31,200            
06-0000-343000 Illinois Street Rental Revenue 13,800            13,800            13,800            
06-0000-348000 User Fees 5,750,000       6,361,366       6,393,172       
06-0000-349001 Connection Charges 5,000              5,000              5,000              
06-0000-350000 Utility Billing Penalties 35,000            35,000            35,000            
06-0000-355000 Other Fees: Dumping 35,000            35,000            35,000            
06-0000-360000 Miscellaneous Revenues 1,000              1,500              1,500              
06-0000-361000 Interest Earned 7,000              11,000            3,541              
06-0000-361004 Interest-Other Investments -                  -                  -                  
06-0000-390001 Transfer In-General Fund 19,639            -                  -                  
06-0000-390026 Transfer In-WW Replacement & Reserves -                  -                  -                  

TOTAL REVENUES 8,574,515      10,178,656    11,436,765    
10,868,547     12,258,209     

PUBLIC WORKS 51XX

5110 WASTEWATER ADMINISTRATION
06-5110-410000 Administrative Salaries 38,244            24,494            25,719            
06-5110-441000 FICA/Medicare 2,926              1,928              2,082              
06-5110-442000 Workers Compensation 805                 530                 573                 
06-5110-443000 Unemployment 115                 76                   82                   
06-5110-444000 Retirement-PERS 5,106              3,363              3,632              
06-5110-444002 Retirement-Pension Bond 1,281              843                 911                 
06-5110-445000 Health/Life/LTD 7,075              4,659              5,032              

Total Personal Services 55,552            35,893            38,031            

06-5110-510000 Office Supplies 500                 -                  -                  
06-5110-511000 Postage 50                   50                   50                   
06-5110-515000 Printing & Advertising 150                 -                  -                  
06-5110-520000 Dues & Meetings 1,000              1,000              1,000              
06-5110-520003 Recruitment Expense 50                                      54                   
06-5110-523000 Supplies 500                 250                 250                 
06-5110-525000 Travel & Training 3,000              1,000              1,000              
06-5110-526000 Employee Testing -                  
06-5110-533000 Contractual Services 40,000            -                  -                  
06-5110-551000 Books & Publications 100                 100                 100                 
06-5110-590000 Internal Chrg-Admin Support Services 567,362          601,404          637,488          
06-5110-590002 Internal Chrg-Computers -                  -                  -                  
06-5110-590004 Internal Chrg-Facilities (COP) 56,359            56,359            56,359            
06-5110-590015 Internal Chrg-Franchise Fee 287,500          318,068          319,659          

Total Materials and Services 956,571          978,283          1,015,960       

5110 TOTAL WASTEWATER ADMIN 1,012,123      1,014,176      1,053,991      

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 2

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 4

Page 434



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5113 CAP PROJ ENGINEERING
06-5113-432000 Engineer Salaries 158,215          103,915          109,111          
06-5113-420000 Clerical Salaries 11,347            -                  -                  
06-5113-438000 Longevity 938                 567                 595                 
06-5113-441000 FICA/Medicare 13,043            8,222              8,880              
06-5113-442000 Workers Compensation 3,111              1,999              2,159              
06-5113-443000 Unemployment 511                 322                 348                 
06-5113-444000 Retirement-PERS 7,866              8,811              9,515              
06-5113-444001 Retirement-Principal 16,503            11,701            12,637            
06-5113-444002 Retirement-Pension Bond 1,262              1,418              1,531              
06-5113-445000 Health/Life/LTD 23,384            24,796            26,779            

Total Personal Services 236,180          161,751          171,555          

06-5113-510000 Office Supplies 1,000              200                 200                 
06-5113-515000 Printing & Advertising 300                 150                 150                 
06-5113-520000 Dues & Meetings 2,500              1,000              1,000              
06-5113-523000 Supplies 1,500              1,500              1,500              
06-5113-525000 Travel & Training 10,750            5,000              5,000              
06-5113-532000 Bank Fees 500                 520                 541                 
06-5113-533000 Contractual Services 30,000            15,000            15,000            
06-5113-533045 Maintenance Agreements 10,200            10,608            11,032            
06-5113-551000 Books & Publications 500                 500                 500                 
06-5113-562000 Fuel 1,000              1,100              1,210              
06-5113-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 500                 500                 500                 
06-5113-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 150                 150                 150                 
06-5113-576000 Recording Fees 200                 200                 200                 

Total Materials and Services 59,100            36,428            36,983            

06-5113-610000 Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

Total Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

5113 TOTAL CAP PROJ ENGINEERING 296,200         199,136         209,533         

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 3

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 5

Page 435



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5131 WASTEWATER PLANT OPERATIONS
06-5131-410000 Administrative Salaries 37,836            39,728            41,714            
06-5131-420000 Clerical Salaries 15,948            16,745            17,583            
06-5131-431000 Salaries & Wages 343,932          437,548          459,425          
06-5131-433000 Summer Help 12,000            12,600            13,230            
06-5131-436000 Beeper Pay 2,272              2,653              2,786              
06-5131-436100 Uniform Allowance 700                 -                  -                  
06-5131-438000 Longevity 2,340              2,203              2,379              
06-5131-441000 FICA/Medicare 31,749            40,241            43,460            
06-5131-442000 Workers Compensation 15,748            19,653            21,225            
06-5131-443000 Unemployment 1,247              1,580              1,706              
06-5131-444001 Retirement-Principal 71,965            91,728            99,066            
06-5131-445000 Health/Life/LTD 91,552            115,640          124,891          

Total Personal Services 627,289          780,319          827,465          

06-5131-510000 Office Supplies 1,500              1,500              1,500              
06-5131-511000 Postage 700                 700                 700                 
06-5131-512000 Uniforms 1,800              1,800              1,800              
06-5131-520000 Dues & Meetings 2,450              2,450              2,450              
06-5131-523000 Supplies & Small Tools 11,000            10,000            10,000            
06-5131-525000 Travel & Training 13,000            13,000            13,000            
06-5131-526000 Employee Testing 500                 520                 541                 
06-5131-533000 Contractual Services 46,492            46,492            46,492            
06-5131-533045 Maintenance Agreements 1,840              1,914              1,990              
06-5131-537000 Operating Supplies 218,400          227,136          236,221          
06-5131-540000 Utilities 378,000          370,000          399,600          
06-5131-545000 Lab Supplies & Oper 20,000            15,000            15,600            
06-5131-546000 Permits & Fees 16,500            19,300            20,072            
06-5131-547000 Analytical Lab Testing 20,000            15,000            15,600            
06-5131-548000 Industrial Pretreatment 6,000              6,000              6,000              
06-5131-551000 Books & Publications 400                 400                 400                 
06-5131-562000 Fuel 17,875            19,663            21,629            
06-5131-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 8,000              8,000              8,000              
06-5131-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 230,000          230,000          230,000          
06-5131-568000 Pump Station Maintenance 25,000            25,000            25,000            
06-5131-571000 Building & Grounds Maintenance 10,000            10,000            10,000            

Total Materials and Services 1,029,457       1,023,875       1,066,595       

06-5131-610000 Capital Outlay 35,000            35,000            35,000            
06-5131-610400 Capital Outlay-Ops Vehicle Replac 27,000            -                  -                  

Total Capital Outlay 62,000            35,000            35,000            

5131 TOTAL WASTEWATER PLANT OP 1,718,746  1,839,194      1,929,060      

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 4

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 6

Page 436



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5132 WASTEWATER MAINTENANCE
06-5132-410000 Administrative Salaries 31,020            19,870            20,864            
06-5132-420000 Clerical Salaries 13,707            10,902            11,447            
06-5132-431000 Salaries & Wages 265,896          265,520          278,796          
06-5132-433000 Summer Help 15,360            16,128            16,934            
06-5132-436000 Beeper Pay 1,835              1,658              1,741              
06-5132-436100 Uniform Allowance 566                 -                  -                  
06-5132-438000 Longevity 2,452              2,246              2,426              
06-5132-441000 FICA/Medicare 25,308            24,885            26,876            
06-5132-442000 Workers Compensation 19,329            19,912            21,505            
06-5132-443000 Unemployment 994                 977                 1,056              
06-5132-444001 Retirement-Principal 58,675            56,812            61,357            
06-5132-445000 Health/Life/LTD 84,162            84,324            91,070            

Total Personal Services 519,304          503,234          534,072          

06-5132-512000 Uniforms 1,400              1,400              1,400              
06-5132-520000 Dues & Meetings 2,750              2,750              2,750              
06-5132-520003 Recruitment Expense 500                 300                 312                 
06-5132-523000 Supplies & Small Tools 11,000            12,000            12,000            
06-5132-524000 Safety Program 1,000              500                 500                 
06-5132-525000 Travel & Training 6,500              6,500              6,500              
06-5132-526000 Employee Testing 1,000              1,000             1,040              
06-5132-533000 Contractual Services 20,000            20,000            20,000            
06-5132-533045 Maintenance Agreements 4,000              2,000              2,080              
06-5132-538301 Inflow/Infiltration Correction 35,000            30,000            31,200            
06-5132-538306 Wastewater Rehabilitation 150,000          100,000          104,000          
06-5132-538307 Wastewater System Replacement 50,000            35,000            36,400            
06-5132-538323 Manhole Rehabilitation 35,000            35,000            36,400            
06-5132-538325 Lateral Replacement 35,000            30,000            31,200            
06-5132-540000 Utilities 6,000              6,000              6,240              
06-5132-543000 Illinois Street Rental Expense 10,000            10,000            10,000            
06-5132-562000 Fuel 12,000            12,000            13,200            
06-5132-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 9,500              11,000            11,000            
06-5132-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 3,500              4,000              4,000              
06-5132-567000 Pipe & Materials 25,000            25,000            26,000            
06-5132-590001 Internal Chrg-Veh/Equip 42,925            44,642            46,428            

Total Materials and Services 462,075          389,092          402,650          

5132 TOTAL WASTEWATER COLLECTION 981,379         892,326         936,722         

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS (WW) 4,008,448      3,944,832      4,129,306      

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 5

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 7

Page 437



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

NONDEPARTMENTAL 91XX
9150 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL

06-9150-603001 Loan: Composter/Headworks 181,253          187,363          198,536          
06-9150-608000 Loan: Effluent Reuse 107,992          112,193          114,696          
06-9150-609000 Loan: WW Property Expansion 193,000          193,000          193,000          

9150 TOTAL PRINCIPAL 482,245         492,556         506,232         

9160 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST
06-9160-603001 Loan: Composter/Headworks 66,522            60,088            53,296            
06-9160-608000 Loan: Effluent Reuse 123,262          120,022          116,095          
06-9160-609000 Loan: WW Property Expansion 64,848            56,742            48,636            

9160 TOTAL INTEREST 254,632         236,852         218,027         

9150/9160 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 736,877         729,408         724,259         

9170 TRANSFERS
06-9170-904000 Transfer Out-Capital Projects 87,900            523,250          975,000          
06-9170-926000 Transfer Out-Wastewater Repl Reserve 57,500            63,614            63,932            

9170 TOTAL TRANSFERS 145,400         586,864         1,038,932      

9180 RESERVES
06-9180-800000 Contingency 3,544,221       4,917,552       5,544,268       
06-9180-810000 Contingency-Ops Veh Replace 139,569          -                  -                  

9180 TOTAL RESERVES 3,683,790      4,917,552      5,544,268      

TOTAL NONDEPARTMENTAL 4,566,067      6,233,824      7,307,459      

FUND 06 TOTAL WASTEWATER FUND 8,574,515      10,178,656    11,436,765    

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 6

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 8

Page 438



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

FUND 07 WATER FUND
REVENUES
07-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital 2,999,352       2,255,137       2,024,291       
07-0000-342004 Dev Review and Inspection Fee 1,500              1,000              1,000              
07-0000-348000 User Fees 4,300,000       4,328,231       4,321,898       
07-0000-349001 Connection Charges 30,000            30,000            40,000            
07-0000-350000 Utility Billing Penalties 30,000            30,000            30,000            
07-0000-355000 Other Fees: Hydrant Permits 5,000              5,000              5,000              
07-0000-360000 Miscellaneous Revenues 10,000            10,000            10,000            
07-0000-361000 Interest Earned 12,000            10,821            8,643              

TOTAL REVENUES 7,387,852      6,670,189      6,440,832      

PUBLIC WORKS 51XX

5110 WATER ADMINISTRATION
07-5110-410000 Administrative Salaries 36,384            24,494            25,719            
07-5110-441000 FICA/Medicare 2,783              1,928              2,082              
07-5110-442000 Workers Compensation 765                 530                 573                 
07-5110-443000 Unemployment 109                 76                   82                   
07-5110-444000 Retirement-PERS 4,857              3,363              3,632              
07-5110-444002 Retirement-Pension Bond 1,219              843                 911                 
07-5110-445000 Health/Life/LTD 6,730              4,659              5,032              

Total Personal Services 52,847            35,893            38,031            

07-5110-510000 Office Supplies 500                 500                 500                 
07-5110-511000 Postage 50                   50                   50                   
07-5110-515000 Printing & Advertising 200                 200                 200                 
07-5110-520000 Dues & Meetings 4,200              4,200              4,200              
07-5110-520003 Recruitment Expense 50                   52                   54                   
07-5110-523000 Supplies 500                 500                 500                 
07-5110-523010 Conservation Public Outreach Program 10,000            5,000              5,000              
07-5110-525000 Travel & Training 2,500              2,500              2,500              
07-5110-533000 Contractual Services 40,000            -                  -                  
07-5110-551000 Books & Publications 100                 100                 100                 
07-5110-590000 Internal Chrg-Admin Support Services 516,274          547,250          580,085          
07-5110-590004 Internal Chrg-Facilities (COP) 56,359            56,359            56,359            
07-5110-590015 Internal Chrg-Franchise Fee 215,000         216,095          218,344          

Total Materials and Services 845,733          832,806          867,892          

5110 TOTAL WATER ADMINISTRATION 898,580         868,699         905,923         

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 7

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 9

Page 439



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5113 CAP PROJ ENGINEERING
07-5113-432000 Engineer Salaries 233,483          103,915          109,111          
07-5113-420000 Clerical Salaries 10,911            -                  -                  
07-5113-438000 Longevity 1,418              567                 595                 
07-5113-441000 FICA/Medicare 18,805            8,222              8,880              
07-5113-442000 Workers Compensation 4,303              1,999              2,159              
07-5113-443000 Unemployment 739                 322                 348                 
07-5113-444000 Retirement-PERS 7,866              8,811              9,515              
07-5113-444001 Retirement-Principal 30,183            11,701            12,637            
07-5113-444002 Retirement-Pension Bond 1,262              1,418              1,531              
07-5113-445000 Health/Life/LTD 41,322            24,796            26,779            

Total Personal Services 350,292          161,751          171,555          

07-5113-510000 Office Supplies 1,000              500                 500                 
07-5113-515000 Printing & Advertising 300                 300                 300                 
07-5113-520000 Dues & Meetings 5,500              1,600              1,600              
07-5113-523000 Supplies 1,000              1,000              1,000              
07-5113-525000 Travel & Training 13,500            4,000              4,000              
07-5113-526000 Employee Testing 100                 104                 108                 
07-5113-532000 Bank Fees 500                 520                 541                 
07-5113-533000 Contractual Services 25,000            10,000            10,000            
07-5113-533045 Maintenance Agreements 10,200            10,608            11,032            
07-5113-551000 Books & Publications 2,500              300                 300                 
07-5113-562000 Fuel 1,000              1,100              1,210              
07-5113-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 300                 300                 300                 
07-5113-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 150                 150                 150                 
07-5113-576000 Recording Fees 150                 150                 150                 

Total Materials and Services 61,200            30,632            31,191            

07-5113-610000 Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

Total Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

5113 TOTAL CAP PROJ ENGINEERING 412,412         193,340         203,741         

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 8

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 10

Page 440



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5141 WATER PLANT OP
07-5141-410000 Administrative Salaries 37,836            39,728            41,714            
07-5141-420000 Clerical Salaries 16,380            17,199            18,059            
07-5141-431000 Salaries & Wages 305,040          269,665          283,148          
07-5141-433000 Summer Help 12,000            12,600            13,230            
07-5141-436000 Beeper Pay 1,922              1,848              1,940              
07-5141-436100 Uniform Allowance 600                 540                 583                 
07-5141-438000 Longevity 2,340              2,851              3,079              
07-5141-441000 FICA/Medicare 28,772            27,096            29,264            
07-5141-442000 Workers Compensation 14,318            13,394            14,466            
07-5141-443000 Unemployment 1,130              1,065              1,150              
07-5141-444001 Retirement-Principal 64,883            60,709            65,566            
07-5141-445000 Health/Life/LTD 85,288            84,514            91,275            

Total Personal Services 570,509          531,209          563,474          

07-5141-510000 Office Supplies 1,000              800                 800                 
07-5141-511000 Postage 4,200              4,000              4,000              
07-5141-512000 Uniforms 1,200              1,000              1,000              
07-5141-515000 Printing & Advertising 10,000            10,400            10,816            
07-5141-520000 Dues & Meetings 3,500              3,000              3,000              
07-5141-523000 Supplies & Small Tools 10,000            10,400            10,816            
07-5141-525000 Travel & Training 8,250              7,000              7,000              
07-5141-526000 Employee Testing 500                 520                 541                 
07-5141-533000 Contractual Services 35,000            30,000            30,000            
07-5141-533045 Maintenance Agreements 2,500              2,600              2,704              
07-5141-537000 Operating Supplies 100,000          75,000            75,000            
07-5141-540000 Utilities 275,000          245,000          264,600          
07-5141-545000 Lab Supplies 2,000              2,080              2,163              
07-5141-546000 Permits & Fees 4,000              4,160              4,326              
07-5141-547000 Analytical Lab Testing 25,000            18,200            18,928            
07-5141-551000 Books & Publications 400                 416                 433                 
07-5141-560000 Property Taxes 1,545              1,607              1,671              
07-5141-562000 Fuel 5,000              4,000              4,000              
07-5141-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 4,500              2,500              2,500              
07-5141-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 85,000            70,000            70,000            
07-5141-568000 Springs Riparian System Maintenance 15,000            15,600            16,224            
07-5141-569000 Well Maintenance 35,000            31,200            32,448           
07-5141-571000 Building & Grounds Maintenance 4,000              3,500              3,500              

Total Materials and Services 632,595          542,983          566,470          

07-5141-610000 Capital Outlay 75,000            75,000            75,000            

Total Capital Outlay 75,000            75,000            75,000            

5141 TOTAL WATER PLANT OP 1,278,104      1,149,192      1,204,944      

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 9

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 11

Page 441



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5142 WATER DISTRIB SYSTEM
07-5142-410000 Administrative Salaries 29,508            18,924            19,870            
07-5142-420000 Clerical Salaries 14,124            10,380            10,899            
07-5142-431000 Salaries & Wages 307,608          255,696          268,481          
07-5142-433000 Summer Help 17,640            17,640            18,522            
07-5142-436000 Beeper Pay 2,184              2,161              2,269              
07-5142-438000 Longevity 2,428              2,080              2,246              
07-5142-441000 FICA/Medicare 28,571            23,476            25,354            
07-5142-442000 Workers Compensation 14,423            13,452            14,528            
07-5142-443000 Unemployment 1,121              921                 995                 
07-5142-444001 Retirement-Principal 65,851            53,216            57,473            
07-5142-445000 Health/Life/LTD 90,317            72,067            77,832            

Total Personal Services 573,775          470,013          498,469          

07-5142-512000 Uniforms 1,750              1,750              1,750              
07-5142-520000 Dues & Meetings 2,750              2,750              2,750              
07-5142-523000 Supplies & Small Tools 8,500              8,500              8,500              
07-5142-523009 Water Meters 100,000          20,000            20,000            
07-5142-523011 Water Meter Installations 25,000            20,000            20,000            
07-5142-525000 Travel & Training 7,000              7,000              7,000              
07-5142-526000 Employee Testing 850                 884                 919                 

            29,431            29,431            
07-5142-533045 Maintenance Agreements 2,000              2,080              2,163              
07-5142-538507 Water Appurtenances Replacements 50,000            -                  -                  
07-5142-538519 Water Line Replacement 60,000            50,000            50,000            
07-5142-538585 Water Master Plan-Water Line Looping 40,000            -                  -                  
07-5142-540000 Utilities 5,000              5,400              5,832              
07-5142-562000 Fuel 9,000              9,900              10,890            
07-5142-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 6,000              6,000              6,000              
07-5142-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 5,000              5,000              5,000              
07-5142-567000 Pipe & Materials 35,000            36,400            37,856            
07-5142-568000 Springs Riparian System Maintenance 10,000            10,400            10,816            
07-5142-569000 Wellfield Maintenance 5,000              5,200              5,408              
07-5142-590001 Internal Chrg-Veh/Equip 33,525            34,866            36,261            

Total Materials and Services 454,875          255,561          260,576          

5142 TOTAL WATER DISTRIB SYSTEM 1,028,650      725,574         759,045         

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS (WATER) 3,617,746      2,936,805      3,073,653      

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 10

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 12

Page 442



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

NONDEPARTMENTAL 91XX
9150 DEBT SERVICE - PRINCIPAL

07-9150-602001 Loan:  Water Reservoir 211,301          222,608          229,018          
07-9150-607000 Loan:  Parallel River Line 30,824            32,537            34,259            

9150 TOTAL PRINCIPAL 242,125         255,145         263,277         

9160 DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST
07-9160-602001 Loan:  Water Reservoir 139,221          131,614          123,267          
07-9160-607000 Loan:  Parallel River Line 28,623            27,390            26,088            

9160 TOTAL INTEREST 167,844         159,004         149,355         

9150/9160 TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 409,969         414,149         412,632         

9170 TRANSFERS
07-9170-904000 Transfer Out-Capital Projects 1,062,000       746,250          926,750          
07-9170-927000 Transfer Out-Water Repl Reserve 43,000            43,219            43,669            
07-9170-947000 Transfer Out-Water SDC -                  505,475          1,627,460       

9170 TOTAL TRANSFERS 1,105,000      1,294,944      2,597,879      

9180 RESERVES
07-9180-800000 Contingency 2,205,173       2,024,291       356,668          
07-9180-810000 Contingency-Ops Veh Replace 49,964            -                  -                  

9180 TOTAL RESERVES 2,255,137      2,024,291      356,668         

TOTAL NONDEPARTMENTAL 3,770,106      3,733,384      3,367,179      

FUND 07 TOTAL WATER FUND 7,387,852      6,670,189      6,440,832      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 11

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 13

Page 443



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

FUND 17 STORMWATER FUND
REVENUES
17-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital 744,580          541,599          515,554          
17-0000-342004 Dev Review and Inspection Fee 1,500              1,500              1,500              
17-0000-348000 User Fees 665,000          828,665          975,854          
17-0000-361000 Interest Earned 3,000              2,214              1,435              

TOTAL REVENUES 1,414,080      1,373,978      1,494,343      

PUBLIC WORKS 51XX

5113 CAP PROJ ENGINEERING
17-5113-410000 Administrative Salaries 6,528              24,494            25,719            
17-5113-420000 Clerical Salaries 3,492              -                  -                  
17-5113-432000 Engineering Salaries 40,705            129,771          136,259          
17-5113-438000 Longevity 93                   567                 595                 
17-5113-441000 FICA/Medicare 3,887              11,846            12,438            
17-5113-442000 Workers Comp 1,027              3,019              3,170              
17-5113-443000 Unemployment 152                 464                 487                 
17-5113-444000 Retirement-PERS 871                 11,836            12,427            
17-5113-444001 Retirement-Principal 6,893              16,029            16,831            
17-5113-444002 Retirement-Pension Bond 219                 2,199              2,309              
17-5113-445000 Health/Life/LTD 11,748            37,546            39,423            

Total Personal Services 75,615            237,771          249,658          

17-5113-510000 Office Supplies 1,000              100                 100                 
17-5113-515000 Printing & Advertising 100                 100                 100                 
17-5113-520000 Due & Meetings 2,000              1,000              1,000              
17-5113-523000 Supplies 1,000              500                 500                 
17-5113-523010 Quality Public Outreach Program 4,000              2,000              2,000              
17-5113-523011 Quality Incentive Program 6,500              2,000              2,000              
17-5113-525000 Travel & Training 5,700              3,000              3,000              
17-5113-532000 Bank Fees 100                 104                 108                 
17-5113-533000 Contractual Services 30,000            -                  -                  
17-5113-533045 Maintenance Agreements 10,200            10,608            11,032            
17-5113-551000 Book & Publications 300                 300                 300                 
17-5113-562000 Fuel 100                 110                 121                 
17-5113-563000 V                  150                 150                 
17-5113-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 150                 150                 150                 
17-5113-576000 Recording Fees 100                 100                 100                 
17-5113-590004 Internal Chrg-Facilities 7,780              8,169              8,577              

Total Materials and Services 69,180            28,391            29,238            

17-5113-610000 Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

Total Capital Outlay 920                 957                 995                 

5113 TOTAL CAP PROJ ENGINEERING 145,715         267,119         279,891         

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 12

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 14

Page 444



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

5170 STORMWATER MAINTENANCE
17-5170-410000 Administrative Salaries 5,292              19,870            20,864            
17-5170-420000 Clerical Salaries 3,324              10,899            11,444            
17-5170-431000 Maintenance Salaries 167,604          167,114          175,469          
17-5170-433000 Summer Help 12,000            12,600            13,230            
17-5170-436000 Beeper Pay 1,095              1,150              1,207              
17-5170-438000 Longevity 444                 882                 926                 
17-5170-441000 FICA/Medicare 14,516            16,258            17,071            
17-5170-442000 Workers Comp 11,723            11,459            12,032            
17-5170-443000 Unemployment 569                 638                 670                 
17-5170-444001 Retirement-Principal 32,318            37,195            39,055            
17-5170-445000 Health/Life/LTD 51,300            52,794            55,434            

Total Personal Services 300,185          330,859          347,402          

17-5170-510000 Office Supplies 1,500              1,500              1,500              
17-5170-512000 Uniforms 1,500              1,500              1,500              
17-5170-520000 Dues & Meetings 1,000              1,000              1,000              
17-5170-523000 Supplies & Small Tools 5,000              6,000              6,000              
17-5170-524000 Safety Program 500                 500                 500                 
17-5170-525000 Travel & Training 3,000              3,000              3,000              
17-5170-526000 Employee Testing 500                 500                 520                 
17-5170-533000 Contractual Services 5,000              6,000              6,000              
17-5170-533045 Maintenance Agreements 2,000              2,000              2,080              
17-5170-538702 Stormwater Repair 46,500            35,000  
17-5170-540000 Utilities 2,500              3,000              3,240              
17-5170-562000 Fuel 12,000            13,000            14,300            
17-5170-563000 Vehicle Maintenance 10,000            15,000            15,000            
17-5170-566000 Equip Repair & Maintenance 3,000              3,000              3,000              
17-5170-567000 Pipe & Materials 18,000            15,000            15,600            
17-5170-590000 Internal Chrg-Admin Support Services 126,081          133,646          141,665          
17-5170-590001 Internal Chrg-Veh/Equip 20,000            20,800            21,632            

Total Materials and Services 258,081          260,446          272,937          

5170 TOTAL STORMWATER MAINT 558,266         591,305         620,339         

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS (STORM) 703,981         858,424         900,230         

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 13

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 15

Page 445



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

NONDEPARTMENTAL 91XX
9170 TRANSFERS

17-9170-904000 Transfer Out-Capital Projects 168,500          -                  -                  

9170 TOTAL TRANSFERS 168,500         -                 -                 

9180 RESERVES
17-9180-800000 Contingency 541,599          515,554          594,113          

9180 TOTAL RESERVES 541,599         515,554         594,113         

TOTAL NONDEPARTMENTAL 710,099         515,554         594,113         

FUND 17 TOTAL STORMWATER FUND 1,414,080      1,373,978      1,494,343      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

FUND 26 WASTEWATER REPLACEMENT AND RESERVE FUND
REVENUES
26-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital 1,048,636       1,110,136       1,179,731       
26-0000-361000 Interest Earned 4,000              5,981              6,330              
26-0000-390006 Transfer In-Wastewater Fund 57,500            63,614            63,932            

TOTAL REVENUES 1,110,136      1,179,731      1,249,993      

9170 TRANSFERS
26-9170-904000 Transfer Out-Capital Projects -                  -                  -                  
26-9170-906000 Transfer Out-Wastewater Fund -                  -                  -                  

9170 TOTAL TRANSFERS -                 -                 -                 

9180 RESERVES
26-9180-850000 Reserve For Wastewater Improvement 1,110,136       1,179,731       1,249,993       

9180 TOTAL RESERVES 1,110,136      1,179,731      1,249,993      

FUND 26 TOTAL WASTEWATER REPLACE FUND 1,110,136      1,179,731      1,249,993      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 14

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 16

Page 446



ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT # DESCRIPTION 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

 2011-12 City of Newberg Adopted Budget
and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed CRRC Budgets 

FUND 27 WATER REPLACEMENT AND RESERVE FUND
REVENUES
27-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital 2,801,305       2,855,305       2,915,524       
27-0000-361000 Interest Earned 11,000            13,500            14,918            
27-0000-361004 Interest-Other Investments -                  3,500              -                  
27-0000-390007 Transfer In-Water Fund 43,000            43,219            43,669            

TOTAL REVENUES 2,855,305      2,915,524      2,974,111      

9170 TRANSFERS
27-9170-904000 Transfer Out-Capital Projects -                  -                  -                  
27-9170-907000 Transfer Out-Water Fund -                  -                  -                  
27-9170-932000 Transfer Out-Veh/Equip Repl-Maint -                  -                  -                  

9170 TOTAL TRANSFERS -                 -                 -                 

9180 RESERVES
27-9180-850000 Reserve For Water Improv 2,855,305       2,915,524       2,974,111       

9180 TOTAL RESERVES 2,855,305      2,915,524      2,974,111      

FUND 27 TOTAL WATER REPLACE FUND 2,855,305      2,915,524      2,974,111      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

FUND 36 WASTEWATER FINANCED CIP'S
REVENUES
36-0000-300000 Beg F/B-Net Working Capital -                  -                  -                  
36-0000-393003 Interim Fin-WWTP CWSRLF 9,626,844       8,222,937       4,467,857       

TOTAL REVENUES 9,626,844      8,222,937      4,467,857      

5150 WASTEWATER CAPITAL PROJECTS
36-5150-706400 WWTP RRE Ph 1 & 2 Design 3,371,844       1,012,845       1,557,008       
36-5150-706401 WWTP RRE Construction 6,255,000       7,210,092       2,910,849       

5150 TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS 9,626,844       8,222,937       4,467,857       

FUND 36 TOTAL WASTEWATER FINANCED CIP'S 9,626,844      8,222,937      4,467,857      

ENDING FUND BALANCE -                  -                  -                  

City of Newberg 2011-12 Budget and 2012-13 and 2013-14 Proposed 15

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 17

Page 447



1/13/2012 2:02 PM

WW WW WW WW WW WW WW WW
Long-term Wastewater Debt Rates SDC Rates SDC Rates SDC Rates SDC

WWTP RRE 85%/15% -                -                368,957        65,110           701,973    123,878         1,212,486  213,968     

New Debt Principal and Interest Payments
2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16

City of Newberg 
Utility Debt 

6/30/2011 6/30/2012
DEBT Water Water WW WW DEBT

Long-term Debt BALANCE Rates SDC Rates SDC BALANCE
Water Loans
Reservoir/Transmission 3,217,044     350,522         3,005,743      
WTP Exp 5,772,011     505,363        5,507,228      
Parallel River 2,289,184     59,447           138,710        2,186,436      
Effluent Reuse 2,098,297     174,555        2,016,783      
Fernwood Rd PS 160,485        27,041          141,345         
TOTAL WATER 13,537,021   409,969         845,669        -                 -            12,857,535    
Wastewater
Composter 1,675,850     247,775         1,494,597      
Effluent Reuse 50%/50% 5,561,882     231,254         231,254    5,345,898      
WWTP Property (BR) 1,544,000     257,848         1,351,000      
Fernwood Rd Pump St. 298,052        50,219      262,506         
WWTP RRE 85%/15%
TOTAL WASTEWATER 9,079,784     -                -                736,877         281,473    8,454,001      

2011-2012
Principal & Interest Payments

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 18

Page 448



FTE History
Adopted Adopted Proposed

FTE By Fund 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13

Wastewater Fund
Administration 0.41                 0.41                 0.25                 
Engineering 3.42                 2.67                 1.50                 
Operations 6.88                 7.37                 8.87                 
Maintenance 6.24                 5.99                 5.50                 

  TOTAL 16.95               16.44               16.12               

Water Fund
Administration 0.39                 0.39                 0.25                 
Engineering 4.74                 3.97                 1.50                 
Operations 6.88                 6.38                 5.38                 
Maintenance 6.98                 6.98                 5.50                 

  TOTAL 18.99               17.72               12.63               

Stormwater
Engineering 0.91                 0.89                 2.25                 
Maintenance 4.40                 3.65                 3.75                 

  TOTAL 5.31                 4.54                 6.00                 

Administrative Support Services
Public Works - Fleet & Facilities 2.50                 2.25                 2.25                 

PUBLIC WORKS TOTALS 43.75               40.95               37.00               *

15% decrease�in�
FTE�since�
2010|11

C:\Users\tabrina\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary�Internet�Files\Content.Outlook\IV0ANX45\FTE�2012|13.xlsx

Town Hall  
Feb. 8, 2012 Page 19

Page 449



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2994

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING NEW MONTHLY WATER RATES FOR THE 
CITY OF NEWBERG EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2013

RECITALS:

1. Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 13.15 governs the city of Newberg water system and the adoption 
of city water rates, fees and charges. 

2. The Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) met September 14, 2011, October 5, 2011, October 
18, 2011, November 9, 2011, and November 30, 2011, to review water system characteristics and 
requirements, including the Capital Improvement Program and operating/maintenance costs.   

3. The review also included the modification of the water rate structure by increasing the fixed cost 
charge portion for the service charges.  That fixed portion allocation will change from the current 
9% to 15% in January 2013 and 20% in January 2014. 

4. The CRRC held a Town Hall Meeting on the proposed monthly charges on February 8, 2012, and a 
Public Hearing on February 15, 2012, to adopt their final rate change recommendations. 

5. The CRRC recommends changes to the monthly water charges based on their analysis of current and 
future anticipated water funds needs. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Effective January 1, 2013, the monthly water service rates shall consist of charges as shown on the 
attached Exhibit “A”, which is hereby attached and by this reference incorporated.

2. Rates for any other water use, not explicitly provided for in this resolution, (ie connection and 
collection charges) shall be established by the finance director so as to conform as close as practical 
to the charges established herein.  Such charges shall be reviewed by the City Council. 

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 20, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of March, 2012. 

__________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee at their meetings on 9/14/11, 10/5/11, 10/18/11, 
11/9/11, 11/30/11, 1/4/12, 1/18/12, 2/8/12 and 2/15/12.

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2994 PAGE 1

Page 450



EXHIBIT “A” TO 
RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2994

CITY OF NEWBERG
MONTHLY WATER SERVICE CHARGES

Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/Month) $1.13 $1.18 $1.18

Meter Charge ($/Month)
3/4" $3.24 $5.52 $8.13
1" $5.51 $9.38 $13.82

1-1/2" $10.69 $18.22 $26.83
2" $17.17 $29.26 $43.09
3" $32.40 $55.20 $81.30
4" $54.11 $92.18 $135.77
6" $107.89 $183.82 $270.73
8" $172.69 $294.22 $433.33

10" $269.89 $459.82 $677.23

Volume Charge ($/ccf)
Single Family Residential $4.02 $3.72 $3.59
Multifamily $3.26 $3.02 $2.91
Commercial $3.65 $3.59 $3.47
Industrial $3.85 $3.89 $3.75
Irrigation $6.84 $6.66 $6.40
Outside City $6.03 $5.57 $5.39
Public Agency $3.76 $3.70 $3.57

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2994 PAGE 2

Page 451



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 452



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2995

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING NEW MONTHLY WASTEWATER RATES FOR 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2013

RECITALS:

1. Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 13.10 governs the city of Newberg wastewater system and the 
adoption of the wastewater rates, fees and charges. 

2. The Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) met January 4, 2012, and January 18, 2012, to 
review wastewater system characteristics and requirements, including the Capital Improvement 
Program and operating/maintenance costs.   

3. The CRRC held a Town Hall Meeting on the proposed monthly charges on February 8, 2012, and a 
Public Hearing on February 15, 2012, to adopt their final rate change recommendations. 

4. The CRRC recommends changes to the monthly wastewater charges based on their analysis of 
current and future anticipated wastewater funds needs. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Effective January 1, 2013, the monthly wastewater service charges shall be as follows: 

CITY OF NEWBERG 
MONTHLY WASTEWATER SERVICE CHARGES 

Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/month) $17.54 $17.54 $18.07  
Multifamily $16.20 $16.20 $16.69

Volume Charge ($/ccf) 
Single Family Residential $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Multifamily $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Commercial - 1 $7.18 $7.18 $7.40
Commercial - 2 $8.92 $8.92 $9.19
Commercial - 3 $14.94 $14.94 $15.39
Industrial $8.92 $8.92 $9.19
Outside City $7.18 $7.18 $7.40

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2995 PAGE 1

Page 453



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2995 PAGE 2

2. Rates for any other wastewater use, not explicitly provided for in this resolution, shall be established 
by the finance director so as to conform as close as practical to the charges established herein.  Such 
charges shall be reviewed by the city council. 

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 20, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of March, 2012. 

__________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee at their meetings on 9/14/11, 10/5/11, 10/18/11, 
11/9/11, 11/30/11, 1/4/12, 1/18/12, 2/8/12 and 2/15/12. 

Page 454



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2996

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING NEW MONTHLY STORMWATER RATES FOR 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2013

RECITALS:

1. Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 13.20 governs the stormwater system and the adoption of the 
stormwater rates, fees and charges. 

2. The Citizens’ Rate Review Committee (CRRC) met Novembber 30, 2011, and January 18, 2012, to 
review stormwater system characteristics and requirements, including the Capital Improvement 
Program and operating/maintenance costs.   

3. The CRRC held a Town Hall Meeting on the proposed monthly charges on February 8, 2012, and a 
Public Hearing on February 15, 2012, to adopt their final rate change recommendations. 

4. The CRRC recommends changes to the monthly stormwater charges based on their analysis of 
current and future anticipated stormwater funds needs. 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

1. Effective January 1, 2013, the monthly stormwater service rates shall be as follows:  

CITY OF NEWBERG
MONTHLY STORMWATER SERVICE CHARGES

Customer Class Current Proposed Proposed
2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Service Charge ($/EDU/month) $5.29 $6.22 $7.30

An EDU (Equivalent Dwelling Unit), as defined by Newberg Municipal Code Section 13.20.020, 
means a configuration of development, or impervious surfaces on a parcel, deemed to contribute an 
amount of runoff to the city’s stormwater system equal to that runoff created and contributed to the 
system by the average single-family residential parcel. 

2. Adjustments or reductions of the fee can be made upon application of the owner of developed 
property to the city engineer and upon certification by the city engineer that the owner or the 
property meets one or more of the criteria established in the Newberg Municipal Code Section 
13.20.080.

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2996 PAGE 1

Page 455



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2996 PAGE 2

3. Rates for any other stormwater use, not explicitly provided for in this resolution, shall be established 
by the finance director so as to conform as close as practical to the charges established herein.  Such 
charges shall be reviewed by the city council. 

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 20, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of March, 2012. 

__________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through the Citizens’ Rate Review Committee at their meetings on 9/14/11, 10/5/11, 10/18/11, 
11/9/11, 11/30/11, 1/4/12, 1/18/12, 2/8/12 and 2/15/12.

Page 456



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 1

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 19, 2012 

Order  Ordinance Resolution  XX   Motion   Information ___ 
No. No. No. 2012-2988 

SUBJECT: Administration of the Newberg 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund

Contact Person (Preparer) for this Motion:
David Beam, AICP 
Dept.: Planning and Building 
File No.: Gen File 09-015

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution No. 2012-2988, establishing policies and procedures for 
administration of the City of Newberg’s Affordable Housing Trust Fund.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The City of Newberg has recognized that the community has an affordable 
housing issue.  On May 8, 2008, the Newberg City Council passed Resolution No. 2008-2781, establishing 
the Housing for Working Families Ad Hoc Committee.  The charge of the committee was to “… identify 
and recommend tools appropriate for the Newberg community that are intended to encourage the 
development of housing for working families.” On May 4, 2009, the committee presented the Newberg
Affordable Housing Action Plan to the City Council.  At that meeting, the city council passed Resolution 
No. 2009-2843, stating their acceptance of the plan. 

As stipulated in Resolution No. 2008-2781 that established the ad hoc committee, the creation of the
Newberg Affordable Housing Action Plan was phase one of a longer process to help bring more affordable 
housing to Newberg.  Phase two of the city’s comprehensive approach to this issue includes multiple efforts. 

On July 20, 2009, the city council formed the Affordable Housing Action Committee through Resolution 
No. 2009-2857.  The task of the committee was to assist with the development and refinement of some of 
the affordable housing tools set out in the Newberg Affordable Housing Action Plan. On April 4, 2011, the 
committee held a workshop with the city council and provided a summary of their completed work as well 
as a list of recommended future actions.  One of the recommendations made by the committee was the 
establishment of a Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund.   

On February 21, 2012, the city council held a public hearing on Ordinance No. 2012-2749, which proposed 
the establishment of a Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund (NAHTF).  The City Council continued the 
public hearing to the March 5, 2012 meeting.  At the March 5th meeting, the city council approved the 
ordinance.

The purpose of the NAHTF is to partner with organizations with an interest in increasing the available 
number of affordable housing units in the community and maintaining the existing affordable housing stock. 
 Monies in the fund will be used to support affordable housing projects for local citizens with incomes that 
do not exceed 100% of the area median income.  Potential uses of the fund could include assistance with the 
development costs of an affordable housing project (e.g. Habitat for Humanity) or mitigating some of the 
costs in upgrading the energy efficiency of an existing rental unit complex. 

At the city council’s March 19, 2012 meeting, the City Council will consider the approval of Resolution No. 
2012-2988, which would establish policies and procedures for administration of the NAHTF.   

In summary, the fund will provide financial resources for those seeking affordable housing assistance 

Page 457



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 2

through three programs: 

Competitive Awards Program.  This is an annual competitive awards program for affordable 
housing projects of a non-time sensitive nature.  Interested parties will be able submit proposed 
projects for program awards through a Request for Proposals process.  Loans and/or grants may be 
awarded through this program.    

Time Sensitive Program. Applications for funding through this program may be submitted at any 
time in the year to accommodate affordable housing project opportunities that are time sensitive. 
Coordination with other private and government funding application timelines will help ensure that 
NAHTF funds are best applied to leverage additional resources in support of the housing projects.  
Loans and/or grants may be awarded through this program. 

Rental Rehabilitation Program.  This program is intended to assist private property owners with 
rental rehabilitation projects.  Applications for this program may be submitted at any time and need 
not be considered under the competitive awards program.  Only loans will be awarded through this 
program.  

Ultimate authority regarding the dispersal of financial awards from the fund would remain with the city 
council.

FISCAL IMPACT: The city’s current budget includes a line item of $70,217 that is intended to be used as 
seed money for the NAHTF. It is staff’s understanding that this money is derived from grant funds obtained 
by the city many years ago from the federal government with the express purpose to assist with affordable 
housing.  Currently, there are no restrictions on the use of these funds.  Other potential sources of revenue 
for the fund are expected to be brought forth to the council for consideration in the future.  Some staff time 
will be needed to administer the fund. 

Many of the dollars from the Fund are intended to leverage other resources, thereby hopefully increasing the 
impact of local efforts toward making housing more affordable.    

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: Affordable housing continues to be an important issue for Newberg.  The 
Affordable Housing Action Committee has spent many hours analyzing mechanisms by which the city may 
help mitigate this problem.  Their recommendation to the council to administer the Newberg Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund as described in this proposed resolution deserves serious consideration.

Page 458



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR 
ADMINISTRATION OF THE CITY OF NEWBERG’S AFFORDABLE
HOUSING TRUST FUND

RECITALS:

1. On March 5, 2012, the Newberg City Council approved Ordinance No. 2012-2749 establishing the 
Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund, to keep our community diverse and healthy by facilitating 
the production and preservation of affordable housing throughout Newberg.

2. The policies and procedures for administration of the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
establish eligible uses, eligible applicants, method by which funds are awarded, and selection 
criteria.

3. The city council understands the changing nature of the housing market and corresponding housing 
needs.  Therefore, the council has established flexible policies and procedures for administering the 
Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund (NAHTF) that can respond to changing market conditions 
and opportunities.

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund (NAHTF) is to support the 
development, preservation, and rehabilitation of housing that is affordable to the citizens of Newberg 
with incomes that do not exceed 100% of the area median income.  The NAHTF will have a 
dedicated source of revenue to provide ongoing funding for housing projects or programs that 
address the housing needs of these Newberg residents.  The primary purpose of the NAHTF is to 
encourage the development, preservation, and rehabilitation of housing for homeownership or rent, 
at a cost that will enable very low, low and moderate-income families to afford quality housing 
while paying no more than thirty percent of gross household income on housing. 

1.2 To promote the rehabilitation, preservation and production of quality, well-designed rental and 
ownership housing, the NAHTF will award funds to community development partners that are 
furthering the NAHTF mission.  It is expected that the local contributions made through Newberg’s 
Affordable Housing Trust Fund will maximize the leveraging of state and federal funds, as well as 
encourage private sector investment in affordable housing. 

1.3 Understanding the high cost of housing regionally, it is evident that low and moderate-income 
households are not being served by the housing market.  To address the disparity between the cost of 
housing and the means of resident household to afford housing, the Newberg Affordable Housing 
Trust Fund aims to provide direct financial support to projects that retain or increase the supply of 

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 1

Page 459



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 2

needed housing for households earning less than 100% the area median income as defined by the 
Newberg planning and building director, using the best available data.

1.4 The administrative procedures associated with the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund, 
including fund administration, determination of eligible applicants, eligible uses and activities, 
award preferences, eligibility criteria, award process, and selection criteria are hereby established. 

SECTION 2. Eligible Applicants 

2.1 The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund is structured to ensure that many different types of 
organizations and persons are eligible to receive funds. 

2.2 Eligible applicants include governmental subdivisions, community development corporations, local 
housing authorities, community action agencies, community-based or neighborhood-based non-
profit housing organizations, other non-profit organizations, for-profit entities and private 
employers, and private landlords. 

SECTION 3. Eligible Uses and Activities 

3.1 Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds shall support the creation or preservation of housing that 
is affordable to households with incomes that do not exceed 100% of the area median income, as 
defined by the Newberg planning and building director, using the best available data.

3.2 Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds will be limited to those activities that create, preserve or 
acquire housing within the Newberg city limits. 

3.3 Housing developments financed by the NAHTF which receive subsidy, financing, tax credits or 
other assistance under a State or Federal housing programs, may contain market rate units insofar as 
permissible under those programs and/or to the extent that they are necessary to support the creation 
of and/or ongoing sustainability of the affordable housing units in the development. However, 
Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds may not be used to support such market rate units. 

3.4 Affordable housing units developed utilizing subsidy from the Newberg Affordable Housing Trust 
Fund shall comply with the income and housing cost limits established by Newberg Code Section 
15.242.030, as amended, and as restricted by a contract prepared by the City of Newberg.  The city 
council reserves the right to make exceptions to the standards established by Newberg Code Section 
15.242.030 for proposed projects it wishes to support and deems further the provision of affordable 
housing within the community.     

3.5 The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds can be provided as either a grant or a loan depending 
on the project or program receiving funding.  To retain a significant degree of flexibility, the eligible 
uses have a broad application including the following: 

3.5.a Acquisition and construction of new affordable housing.  Eligible acquisition and 
construction costs include reasonable costs associated with building or land purchase, 
including but not limited to: 
	 Purchase price 
	 Option costs 
	 Financing fees 

Page 460



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 3

	 Appraisal costs 
	 Closing costs 
	 Interest
	 Inspection fees 
	 Title insurance 
	 Relocation costs 
	 Architectural/engineering fees 
	 Permit fees 
	 System development charges 
	 Construction costs 

3.5.b Conservation of energy through the use of “green” technologies provided that the benefits 
of the energy savings is passed on in the form of reduced costs to the qualified occupants of 
the affordable housing. 

3.5.c Land banking to include the purchase of land to be dedicated toward the development of 
affordable housing in the near or long-term. 

3.5.d Predevelopment activities undertaken by a community development organization in support 
of the development of affordable housing including planning, architectural services, 
engineering services, landscape design, legal services, surveys, appraisals, site clearance and 
demolition, environmental clearance, permit application fees and system development 
charges. Grant funding for these types of activities may be required to convert to a loan if the 
project receives full funding. For-profit developers are not eligible to apply for Newberg’s 
Affordable Housing Trust Funds to assist with predevelopment costs.  

3.5.e Bridge loans to assist in development of affordable housing (for rental or owner occupancy). 
Bridge loans are intended to provide funding to permit housing projects to proceed in 
advance of the availability of permanent project funding.  Bridge loan funding is available 
for acquisition or construction activities. 

3.5.f Capacity building for non-profit affordable housing providers in the form of direct grant 
awards to fund administration of an affordable housing project or program. 

3.5.g Rehabilitation and emergency repairs as part of an established program to secure units as 
affordable or to provide direct benefits to existing very low to moderate income households. 
 Eligible rehabilitation and emergency repair costs include but are not limited to: 
	 Architectural/engineering fees 
	 Consultations
	 Construction costs 
	 Relocation costs 
	 Hazardous materials abatement including lead based paint noticing consistent with 

the Federal Lead Safe Housing Regulations HUD requirements at 24 CFR §35 

3.5.h Direct benefits to very low to moderate income households through an established program 
including down payment assistance, rental assistance, mortgage foreclosure prevention, 
emergency housing vouchers, homeownership training, renter education, or other programs 
intended to increase housing opportunities for Newberg’s low to moderate income residents. 

Page 461



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 4

3.5.i Transitional and emergency housing for homeless individuals and families through an 
established program to move people toward self-sufficiency. 

3.5.j Educational programs and services for potential home owners and renters. 

3.5.k Other uses as deemed appropriate by the Newberg City Council as supporting the 
development or preservation of affordable housing within the City of Newberg. 

SECTION 4. Program Goals 

4.1 To help maintain the effectiveness and long-term viability of the NAHTF, preferences will given to 
the provision of loans over grants.  General criteria of project selection are found in Section 8 of this 
resolution.  In no particular order, the following preferences are provided as general guidance for 
future applicants for Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds. 

4.1.a Developments that produce new affordable housing units.  New affordable housing units 
shall include housing units constructed where none had existed previously, abandoned or 
fire-damaged residential units to be returned to residential use, and non-residential or mixed-
use projects in non-residentially-zoned property.  Any designated new affordable housing 
units shall be secured as affordable for future use through the recording of an appropriate 
legal instrument approved by the city attorney. 

4.1.b Developments that provide new affordability.  New affordability refers to existing housing 
where a new level of affordability is provided that does not currently exist.  This could occur 
in rental or ownership housing where the number of affordable units is increased, where a 
portion of existing units will be made affordable to households at income levels substantially 
lower than the units previously served, or where the term of affordability on the units will be 
extended for a period of at least twenty-five (25) years. 

4.1.c Developments that improve the energy efficiency and safety of existing affordable housing 
stock while maintaining affordability of the units. 

4.1.d Developments of housing utilizing the land trust model to secure property and perpetual 
affordability. 

4.1.e Developments that include joint ventures between multiple non-profit developers and/or for-
profit developers, working in partnership, to complete an affordable housing project. 

4.1.f Developments that include a joint venture between service providers and non-profit 
affordable housing developers to create projects that contain additional benefits to low 
income individuals in the development of the project, or additional services for the resident 
upon completion. 

4.1.g Developments that incorporate the use of “green” building materials, use of energy-efficient 
appliances, low-water use landscaping, and reduced storm water runoff.  In addition, 
developments that incorporate building design and operational factors that minimize energy 
use and resource consumption as well as avoid indoor health impact.   

Page 462



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 5

4.1.h Developments that include affordable units for the disabled and the homeless. 

4.1.i Projects that propose long-term affordability. 

4.1.j Projects that are sponsored by non-profit organizations. 

4.1.k Projects that use private funding sources and State funding sources to leverage the least 
amount of Newberg’s Affordable Housing Trust Funds. 

SECTION 5. Fund Administration 

The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund (NAHTF) originated through the direction of the Newberg 
City Council.

5.1 The City of Newberg acts as fiduciary agent and administrator of the funds.  The city reserves the 
right to contract certain tasks to most effectively and efficiently achieve its administrative duties. 

5.2 Funds dedicated to the Newberg Housing Trust fund shall be exclusively reserved to support the 
eligible uses activities identified in Section 3, and shall not be used for the general operation of the 
city.

5.3 The City of Newberg shall accept requests for funding from the NAHTF’s Time Sensitive Loan 
Program from eligible applicants at anytime in order to accommodate affordable housing project 
opportunities that are time sensitive. Coordination with other private and government funding 
application timelines will help ensure that NAHTF funds are best applied to leverage additional 
resources in support of the housing projects.  Project submittals deemed not time-sensitive will not 
be approved, but the applicant will be encouraged to submit their proposal to the annual request for 
proposals (RFP) funding process under the NAHTF’s Competitive Awards Program.  Also, eligible 
applicants may submit proposals to the NAHTF’s Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program at any time. 

5.4 The City of Newberg shall annually issue a notice of funding available (NOFA) to announce the 
availability of funds.  The City shall also issue a request for proposals (RFP) for affordable housing 
projects that are not time sensitive. 

5.5 As a target in any given year, up to 80 percent of the NAHTF will be available for project loans and 
up to 5 percent will be available for project grants.  The remaining 15 percent of the NAHTF will be 
available for project contingencies through grants and/or loans. 

5.6 In any given year, at least 50% of the available funds within the NAHTF shall be available for use 
through the competitive awards program.  In any given year, the city council may make an exception 
to this standard to take advantage of affordable housing opportunities.

5.7 The City of Newberg shall form an affordable housing commission (AHC) that consists of three 
members appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the city council.  Membership of the 
commission should reflect representative broad interests regarding affordable housing in the 
community.  The commission shall review applications for Newberg Affordable Housing Trust 
Funds to determine project eligibility and evaluate the applications based on the selection criteria.  
The commission shall provide recommendations to the city council who shall make final award 
decisions.  In addition, the commission shall meet twice a year to prepare the NAHTF’s annual 

Page 463



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 6

NOFA and RFP for consideration of approval by the city council.  Otherwise, the commission will 
meet as necessary during the year. 

5.8 Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds will be allocated in a manner consistent with the 
threshold criteria provided Section 8, and consistent with state and local public contracting law. 

SECTION 6. Match Requirements 

6.1 The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund is intended to support the development of needed 
housing.  In addition, the City of Newberg believes that projects can become stronger and more 
successful through the partnership of many organizations.  Therefore, the following match 
requirements apply to projects utilizing grants from the NAHTF. 

6.1.a The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund grant contribution shall not exceed 50% of the 
total project, or program cost.  Required match can be met utilizing government funding, 
direct contribution from the applicant, private donations, and the contribution of land, 
materials or labor to the project. 

6.1.b In the case that land previously owned by the applicant is considered as required match, the 
value of the land shall be determined by a city approved certified appraisal completed by the 
applicant or real market value from the Yamhill County assessor office provided by the 
applicant, unless otherwise directed in Oregon Revised Statute or city municipal code. 

6.1.c The valuation of land, and available equity to be considered as matching funds, shall be 
verified by the city prior to the disbursement of an NAHTF grant when its value is 
considered as required matching funds. 

6.1.d Donated materials and labor, which are proposed as required match through the development 
of a project shall have their value estimated at the time of application.  The actual value of 
these contributions is subject to verification by the city at completion of the project. 

6.1.e Award recipients shall provide verifiable accounting for donated labor and materials, when 
such was necessary to satisfy the NAHTF match requirements. 

6.1.f If a recipient of an NAHTF grant has been deemed by the city to have failed to have fulfilled 
all the necessary grant award match requirements, the city may require a full or partial 
repayment of any NAHTF grants awarded to a project.   

6.2 Approved loans provided by the NAHTF may cover up to 100% of a project’s costs. 

SECTION 7 Allocation of Funds 

The Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Fund is structured to allow flexibility for the city and housing 
providers.  The establishment of three distinct and separate award processes is intended to provide for both 
consistency and flexibility of the NAHTF program.  Annually, the city shall issue a notice of funding 
availability (NOFA), announcing the availability of funds in the following year and the types of programs.  
The city shall issue the NOFA for the year through publication in the Newberg Graphic and on the city’s 
website.   The NOFA shall be issued on or near July 1st of the year.

Page 464



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 7

First, there is the competitive awards program.  Annually, the city may issue a request for proposals for 
affordable housing projects of a non-time sensitive nature.  Proposals awarded funding through the RFP 
process shall be done through a competitive basis.  Loans and/or grants may be awarded through this 
program.    

Second, there is the time sensitive program. Through this program, applicants requesting funding from the 
NAHTF may submit requests at any time in the year to accommodate affordable housing project 
opportunities that are time sensitive. Coordination with other private and government funding application 
timelines will help ensure that NAHTF funds are best applied to leverage additional resources in support of 
the housing projects.  Loans and/or grants may be awarded through this program. 

Third, there is the rental rehabilitation program.  This program is intended to assist private property owners 
with rental rehabilitation projects. Applications for this program may be submitted at any time and need not 
be considered under the competitive awards program.  Applicants seeking funding assistance must be 
willing to enter into a contractual agreement with the city that will ensure the future affordability of the 
project units for a specific period of time.  Only loans will be awarded through this program.  

The distribution of any and all NAHTF funds through competitive or non-competitive awards, as described 
in Sections 7.1 through 7.3, will be in accordance with state and local public contracting laws. 

7.1 Competitive Awards Program  

The City of Newberg has a limited amount of Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds to use each year in 
comparison to the scope of the housing needs within the community.  As a result, it is essential that the 
funds are used to meet the city’s priorities in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  To this end, a 
competitive award process uses a set of award criteria to evaluate proposals received through a request for 
proposals (RFP) process in terms of how they address the specific priorities outlined in the annual RFP. 

The steps for making the competitive grant awards or loans are outlined below. 

7.1.a The City of Newberg may issue an RFP Request for proposals on an annual basis depending 
on availability of funds, providing applicants with a minimum of 45 days to respond to the 
request.  The RFP shall be issued on or near July 1st of the year. 

7.1.b City staff shall assess the project proposals to determine if the eligibility criteria are met and 
shall develop a recommendation to provide to the Newberg affordable  housing commission 
and the city council. 

7.1.c The Newberg affordable housing commission will provide applicants the opportunity to 
make a presentation on their project proposal and provide community members the 
opportunity to comment by holding a public meeting. 

7.1.d The Newberg affordable housing commission will develop an award recommendation to the 
city council using the NAHTF criteria to determine which projects best meet the city’s 
spending priorities.  Each application will be rated on a numeric scale as established in the 
annual RFP for each criterion of selection (Section 8). 

7.1.e The Newberg city council shall make a final decision on the award of Newberg Affordable 
Housing Trust Funds. 

Page 465



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 8

7.1.f The City of Newberg shall prepare an agreement between the city and the award recipient.  
The agreement shall outline the conditions of award and shall be executed prior to the 
disbursement of any Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds. 

7.1.g An award granted to an applicant may be rescinded by the city if the applicant does not 
initiate the activities identified in response to the RFP in advance of the City’s issuance of 
another RFP. 

7.2 Time Sensitive Loan Program   

The City of Newberg recognizes that the nature of affordable housing development is often opportunity 
driven and time sensitive.  Through this program, applications may be submitted at any time during a given 
year.  When applications are received, the city shall review them to determine if the applications meet the 
city’s threshold criteria.  If the criteria are met, then the funds may be awarded to, or reserved for, the 
applicant.  Funds available through this process are awarded on a first come, first served basis.   

7.2.a   Project Eligibility.  Projects are eligible to utilize funds for activities listed in Section 3. 

7.2.b   Project Security.  Applicant must demonstrate and commit sufficient collateral to ensure the 
security of the loan. 

7.2.c Loan Terms.  Loan terms will be customized to fit the particular needs of the project. 

7.2.d Process. 
(1) The city manager shall appoint a loan officer to process loan applications. 
(2) The loan officer will prepare application specifications.   
(3) The loan officer will review applications for eligibility, and qualify applicants as 

either standard or preferred applicants.  The loan officer may establish a priority for 
awarding of qualified loans. 

(4) Prior to awarding any loan, the application will be forwarded to the Newberg 
affordable housing commission for consideration of recommendation for approval by 
the Newberg city council.     

(5) The loan officer shall prepare the necessary documents and agreements to execute 
and provide for repayment of the loan. 

7.3 Rental Rehabilitation Loan Program 

7.3.a Purpose   

 The purpose of the rental rehabilitation loan program is to loan housing trust funds to local 
landlords so they can rehabilitate dwellings and make them safe and decent for rental to low 
or very low income families. 

7.3.b Eligibility  
(1) The dwelling must be within the Newberg city limits. 
(2) The dwelling must be rented to low or very low income families or individuals, 

according to income guidelines established by the affordable housing commission.  
Preference will be given to units to be rented to very low income families or 

Page 466



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 9

individuals.
(3) Repairs shall improve the overall livability of the dwelling by addressing health and 

safety issues and by making the home more energy efficient and affordable.  Priority 
is placed on the repairs needed to make the home safe and to prevent further 
deterioration and escalated costs if left unattended.  Typical examples of these 
projects include new roofs, new windows, new electrical wiring, heating system 
repair/replacement, and utility repairs.   

(4) The applicant shall demonstrate sufficient equity in the home and sufficient ability to 
repay the loan. 

(5) The applicant shall demonstrate that the rehabilitation could not be accomplished 
using conventional loan programs. 

(6) Preference shall be given to landlords who live in Newberg or the Newberg area, and 
who own 10 or fewer rental units, and who own the property outright or have 
substantial equity in the property. 

7.3.c Loan Terms 
(1) Loans are available in amounts ranging between $5,000 and $15,000. This amount 

may be increased up to $25,000 if the need for repairs is justified and adequate 
equity is established. 

(2) The standard interest rate is two percent (2%) below the prime rate. 
(3) The standard term of the loan is seven years.  
(4) The applicant shall pay a loan processing fee equal to 1 percent (1%) of the loan or 

$100, whichever is greater. 
(5) Standard loan terms may be modified by approval of the affordable housing 

commission.  
(6) The applicant shall enter into an agreement guaranteeing the dwelling will only be 

occupied by families or individuals meeting the income guidelines.  
7.3.d Process 

(1) The city manager shall appoint a loan officer to process loan applications. 
(2) The loan officer will prepare application specifications.  The loan officer will receive 

applications by a date specified in the notice of funding availability.  The loan officer 
will accept applications after that date if funding remains available, and may 
establish a waiting list for applications in future funding cycles.

(3) The loan officer will review applications for eligibility, and qualify applicants as 
either standard or preferred applicants.  The loan officer may establish a priority for 
awarding of qualified loans. 

(4) Prior to awarding any loan, the application will be forwarded to the affordable 
housing commission for consideration of recommendation for approval by the 
Newberg city council.     

(5) The loan officer shall prepare the necessary documents and agreements to execute 
and provide for repayment of the loan. 

(6) The applicant shall complete all repairs within one year of loan award 

SECTION 8 NAHTF Grant or Loan Award Threshold and Selection Criteria 

8.1 The project is considered an eligible use or activity under Section 3, and benefits households earning 
less than 100% the area median income (threshold verification). 

8.2 If the project is related to the provision of technical assistance to affordable housing providers, the 
use of Newberg Housing Trust Funds functions to increase the capacity of the organization to 

Page 467



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 10

specifically address the mission of the NAHTF (threshold verification). 

8.3 Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds shall be limited to the minimum amount necessary to 
complete the project.  The lower the percentage of NAHTF funds requested, relative to the full 
project costs, the higher ranking the project shall be given. 

8.4 The project addresses the unmet housing needs as identified in the Housing Element of the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan.  

8.5 The lower the income level that is targeted for the benefitting households, the higher the ranking the 
project shall be given. 

8.6 The project provides new affordable housing, or new affordability, through retention or 
rehabilitation of existing housing, within the city.  The greater the number of units provided, the 
higher the ranking the project shall be given. 

8.7 The project retains the affordable housing units as affordable.  The longer period of time the units 
remain affordable, the higher ranking the project shall be given. 

8.8 The project addresses energy conservation through the integration of green building technologies in 
new construction, or achieves greater energy efficiency through rehabilitation of existing housing. 

8.9 The project maximizes partnerships in the community (volunteers, in-kind contributions, cash 
contributions, multiple organization involved, etc). 

8.10 The project utilizes already existing resources in effective and innovative ways.  The project shall 
not duplicate service provided by another organization. 

8.11 The agency submitting the proposal has the capacity to carry out the project and has had 
demonstrated successes completing projects of similar scope. 

8.12 The budget and timeline are thorough and realistic. 

8.13 The project is ready for implementation. 

8.14 If the project includes the acquisition of property, the identified property is currently available for 
acquisition and the applicant has secured either a purchase option or letter of interest from the seller. 
 If the applicant is also applying for federal funding (i.e. Community Development Block Grants or 
HOME) they should carefully review procurement requirements and limitations before obtaining a 
purchase option. 

8.15 The relocation of existing residents will be minimized, and when necessary, the applicant has 
included accurate relocation assistance costs as part of the project pro forma. 

8.16 The proposal demonstrates that Newberg Housing Trust Funds are the most appropriate funding 
source, and necessary, for the project. 

8.17 Additional selection criteria may be developed and included in the annual RFP to best direct 
Newberg Affordable Housing Trust Funds toward an identified priority need.  Numeric rankings for 

Page 468



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-2988 PAGE 11

each of the selection criteria shall be incorporated into the annual RFP. 

� EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 20, 2012.
ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Newberg, Oregon, this 19th day of March, 2012. 

__________________________
Norma I. Alley, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the mayor this 22nd day of March, 2012. 

____________________
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 LEGISLATIVE HISTORY
By and through Affordable Housing Action Committee at 4/4/2011 meeting.

Page 469



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 470


	Agenda
	Proclamation for Carnegie Library Week
	Resolution No. 2012-2993 - City Attorney Annual Evaluation
	Council Minutes for February 21, 2012
	Ordinance No. 2012-2750 - SDC Deferral for Affordable Housing
	Ordinance No. 2012-2751 - EOA/SE Industrial UGB Amendments
	RCA for Utility Rates Resolutions
	Resolution No. 2012-2994 - Water Rates
	Resolution No. 2012-2995 - Wastewater Rates
	Resolution No. 2012-2996 - Stormwater Rates

	Resolution No. 2012-2988 - Affordable Housing Trust Fund



